
Joint Powers Governing Board, Regular Board Meeting

06/11/2025 05:30 PM
1040 Florence Road

Livermore, CA 94550

1



AGENDA

The Mission of Tri-Valley ROP is to:

Educate and train a broad spectrum of students by providing a bridge of opportunity
connecting school to continuing education and career.
Support and guide the development of life and career skills valued by business, industry,
colleges, and society.
Provide an environment of continuous program improvement, responsive to the changing
needs of students, employers, and industry.
Educate all students to acquire the skills, attitudes and values needed to find and retain
jobs, to be socially responsible, and to make positive contributions to their families and the
community.

JOINT POWERS GOVERNING BOARD

Kristin Speck, Chairperson
(925) 351-2031
speckkristin@@dublinusd.org
Member District:
Dublin Unified School District

Emily Prusso, Vice Chairperson
(925) 606-3281
eprussotrustee@lvjusd.org
Member District:
Livermore Valley Joint Unified School District

Laurie Walker, Trustee
(925) 963-6371
laurie_walker@pleasantonusd.net
Member District:
Pleasanton Unified School District

Julie Duncan, Superintendent
(925) 455-4800 x 106
jduncan@tvrop.org
Secretary to the Governing Board

Joint Powers Governing Board, Regular Board
Meeting

06/11/2025 - 05:30 PM
1040 Florence Road

Livermore, CA 94550
Printed: 06/06/2025 01:57 PM

2



JOINT POWERS GOVERNING BOARD MEETING PROCEDURES

Members of the public are encouraged to attend meetings of the Board. Individuals may address
the Board regarding items on the agenda during the agenda item or, for Closed Session items,
prior to Board adjournment into Closed Session. To address the Board regarding an item that is on
the agenda, please complete a blue speaker card and submit it to the Administrative Assistant
prior to Call to Order of the meeting or prior to the agenda item you wish to address. This allows
the Board Chairperson to divide the available time among speakers.

Speakers may address the Board under agenda item PUBLIC COMMENT, regarding items of
public interest within the Board’s jurisdiction but are not on the agenda. Speakers should
complete a yellow speaker card and submit it to the Administrative Assistant prior to Call to
Order. By law, the Board may listen to comments, but may not enter into discussion nor take
action on any item not on the agenda. Time is limited to 3 minutes per speaker and 20 minutes
per subject matter.

1. CALL TO ORDER / ROLL CALL - 5:30 p.m. 5

2. PUBLIC COMMENT on posted closed session items only 6

3. ADJOURN TO CLOSED SESSION 7

A. Public Employee Performance Evaluation (Government Code, §54957) 8

4. RECONVENE IN OPEN SESSION - 6:00 p.m. 9

A. Pledge of Allegiance 10

B. Approval of the Agenda 11

C. Announcement of Any Reportable Action Taken in Closed Session 12

5. PUBLIC COMMENT 13

6. CONSENT CALENDAR - MOTIONS 14

A. Approval of the Minutes from the Regular Board Meeting of May 7, 2025 15

B. Approval of the Bill and Salary Report –May 1 - May 31, 2025 20

C. Approval of the Purchase Order Summary – May 1 – May 31, 2025 46

D. Approval of the Memorandum of Understanding with Pleasanton Unified School
District for the 2025 – 2026 Middle College Coordinator 48

3



E. Approval of Memorandums of Understanding for 2025 – 2026 with Member
Districts 56

F. Approval of Memorandums of Understanding with Livermore Valley Joint Unified
School District for Services during 2025 – 2026 67

G. Approval of the College and Career Access Pathways (CCAP) Agreement
between Tri-Valley ROP and Las Positas Community College 71

H. Approval of Disposal List of Equipment and Instructional Equipment 94

7. DEFERRED CONSENT ITEM/S 96

8. INFORMATION / ACTION ITEMS 97

A. Public Hearing on the Proposed 2025 – 2026 Budget 98

B. Proposed Budget and Adoption for 2025 – 2026 99

C. First and Final Reading of the CSBA Recommended Revisions of Tri-Valley
Regional Occupational Program Board Policies 184

D. Approval of Personnel Document June 11, 2025 341

9. SUPERINTENDENT'S REPORT 346

10. BOARD MEMBER REPORTS 347

11. ANNOUNCEMENTS 348

12. ADJOURNMENT 349

 

4



1. CALL TO ORDER / ROLL CALL - 5:30 p.m.

5



2. PUBLIC COMMENT on posted closed session items only

6



3. ADJOURN TO CLOSED SESSION

7



Summary

Title: Superintendent

3. A. Public Employee Performance Evaluation (Government Code, §54957)

8



4. RECONVENE IN OPEN SESSION - 6:00 p.m.

9



4. A. Pledge of Allegiance

10



Summary

Prior to approving the agenda, a Board member may request that an agenda item be pulled or
moved on the agenda.

4. B. Approval of the Agenda

11



4. C. Announcement of Any Reportable Action Taken in Closed Session

12



Summary

At this time, members of the public may address the Board regarding matters not on the agenda
but within the Board’s jurisdiction. (For items that are on the agenda, the opportunity for public
comment will be presented during each agenda item.)  Speakers should submit a speaker card to
the Administrative Assistant prior to Call to Order: a yellow card for items not on the agenda and a
blue card to speak during an agenda item.  Time is limited to 3 minutes per speaker and 20
minutes per topic.

5. PUBLIC COMMENT

13



Summary

The Consent Calendar is for items that require the approval of the Board, but are routine in
nature. The Board acts upon these items in one vote.  Any member of the Board, administration,
or public may request that an item be pulled from the Consent Calendar and discussed and/or
acted upon separately under Deferred Consent Items.

6. CONSENT CALENDAR - MOTIONS

14



Summary

The Board will consider approval of the minutes from the May 7, 2025, Board Meeting.

Supporting Documents

 JPGB_TVROP_Minutes_05-07-2025

6. A. Approval of the Minutes from the Regular Board Meeting of May 7, 2025

15



TVROP Joint Powers Governing Board 
Minutes for the Regular Board Meeting of May 7, 2025 

  

 

 

Tri-Valley Regional Occupational Program  
1040 Florence Road, Livermore, CA 94550 
Ph. (925) 455-4800 - Fax (925) 449-9126 

 
JOINT POWERS GOVERNING BOARD 

 
Regular Board Meeting of May 7, 2025  

5:30 p.m. Closed Session 
6:00 p.m. Open Session 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER / ROLL CALL – 5:30 p.m. 
Chairperson Speck called the meeting to order at 5:33 p.m. 
Roll Call 
Trustee Walker – Aye 
Trustee Speck – Aye 
Trustee Prusso - Aye 

 
2. PUBLIC COMMENT on posted closed session items only - None 

 
3. ADJOURN TO CLOSED SESSION 

 
A. Discipline/Dismissal/Release (Government Code, §45195) 

 
B. Public Employee Performance Evaluation (Government Code, §54957) 

Title: Superintendent 
 

4. RECONVENE IN OPEN SESSION – 6:00 p.m. 
Chairperson Speck reconvened into open session at 6:14 p.m. 

 
A. Pledge of Allegiance  

 
B. Approval of the Agenda 

The agenda was approved as written. 
  

 
 
 

C. Announcement of Any Reportable Action Taken in Closed Session – No action taken during 
closed session. 

 
5. RECOGNITIONS 

Suzanne Smith, Zoe Zannis, and Meredith Dorado recognized the following WIOA mentors for their 
contributions: Dean Salinas, DeSilva Gates and Tamara Edwards, LAVTA. 

 
6. PUBLIC COMMENT – None 
 
 
 
 
 

Moved Seconded Ayes Noes Abstain Absent 
Walker Prusso 3 0 0 0 

16



TVROP Joint Powers Governing Board 
Minutes for the Regular Board Meeting of May 7, 2025 

  

 

 
7. CONSENT CALENDAR – MOTIONS 

 
 

 
 

A. Approval of the Minutes from the Regular Board Meeting of March 12, 2025 
The Board approved the minutes from the March 12, 2025, Board Meeting. 

 
B. Approval of the Bill and Salary Report – March 1 – April 30, 2025 

The Board approved the Bill and Salary Reports, which show the District’s operating and salary 
expenditures for the period noted. 

 
C. Approval of the Purchase Order Summary – March 1 – April 30, 2025 

The Board approved the Purchase Order Summary which show the encumbrances of District funds for 
the period noted. 

 
D. Approval of Donations 

The Board approved donations received through April 30, 2025. 
 

E. Approval of the Construction Technology 1 Course Outline 
The Board approved the Construction Technology 1 Course Outline. 
 

F. Approval of the 2024-2025 Salary Schedules 
The Board approved the two corrections to the 2024-2025 Salary Schedules previously approved on 
March 12, 2025. 

8. DEFERRED CONSENT ITEM/S - None 
 

9. INFORMATION / ACTION ITEMS 
 

A. 2025 – 2026 Draft Master Schedule – Information 
Superintendent Duncan presented an update on the Master Schedule for the 2025 - 2026 school year. 

   
B. 2025 – 2026 Board Meeting Calendar – Action 

The Board approved the preliminary 2025 - 2026 Board Meeting Calendar. 
 

 
 
 

C. First and Final Reading of the Revised, BP 3100: Budget– Information/Action 
The Board approved the revised BP 3100: Budget. 
 

 
 

 
 

10. CORRESPONDENCE 
 

• Letter from Alysse Castro, Superintendent, Alameda County Office of Education, 2024-25 Second 
Interim Budget report. 

Moved Seconded Ayes Noes Abstain Absent 
Prusso Walker 3 0 0 0 

Moved Seconded Ayes Noes Abstain Absent 
Walker Prusso 3 0 0 0 

Moved Seconded Ayes Noes Abstain Absent 
Prusso Walker 3 0 0 0 

17



TVROP Joint Powers Governing Board 
Minutes for the Regular Board Meeting of May 7, 2025 

  

 

 
11. SUPERINTENDENT’S REPORT 

Julie Duncan, Superintendent, reported on recent meetings, activities, or legislation. 
 

Customer Service 
• Julie and Suzanne have been working with Dawn Wilkie from Kaiser to secure Medical Occupations 

placements for the 2025-2026 school year. We were reintroduced to them through our contacts and 
relationship with Katie Marcel from ITV 

• Continue to work with Bay Area LEEDS, April Treece to facilitate the marketing, registration and promotion 
of Summer Camps and Teacher Externships. This year as part of the Externships, teachers are being offered 
placement in the LLNL Teacher Research Academies. We already have 20+ signups for Externships which is 
a 150% increase 

 
Programs 

• Named Shelley Matek, Developmental Psychology of Children instructor our 2025-2026 Teacher of the Year 
• DECA Chapters competed in the ICDC Event in Orlando with over 26,000 national and international 

competitors. All chapters had a great showing 
• Rolled out Summer Camp registration for Robotics, Drones and Girls Who Construct all to be held at Las 

Positas College. Registration has increased by over 100% and we have very robust waitlists 
• Free Summer CNA Academy for 15 students will be offered July 7 – August 8, in partnership with ITV, Bay 

Area K16 Collaborative, Tri-Valley Career Center and the Bay Area CNA School. We have begun the 
personalized recruitment efforts at all Alternative Education sites 
 
Fiscal Management 

• Worked with Districts to support AB 401 and oppose AB 917 
• Attended Legislative Action Day in Sacramento and met with staffers for Senator Nunes and Assemblywoman 

Bauer-Kahan staff on CTE/ROP funding issues and legislative objectives 
• Suzanne applied to CSBA to be presenters of Model Programs at the fall conference in Sacramento. The title 

of the presentation is Middle College: Transforming Lives, Expanding Opportunities & Building Community 
• Julie met as the only K12 educator in partnership with School Services and Capitol Advisors with Assembly 

Education Secretary and CDE to successfully get LEA language on Dual Enrollment to include JPA ROPs and 
ROCPs 
 
Relationships 

• Julie worked with Doug on the 2024-2025 Budget including clean-up of individual program accounts in order 
to develop our 2025-2025 budget 

• Suzanne was named President elect for CAROCP, Athena will be the Amador Valley ACSA Region 6 CTE 
Member at Large, and Julie will serve as ACSA CTE Council State President 

• Suzanne and Julie participated in LVJUSD’s Strategic Planning days 
• We are excited to launch our first CCAP course. Suzanne and Teressa Williams, K12 Pathway Coordinator 

have worked with LPC to offer a Summer CCAP Course. We had tremendous interest, which exceeded our 
expectations 
 

12. BOARD MEMBER REPORTS – None 
 

13. ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 

• The next Regular Meeting of the Joint Powers Governing Board is scheduled for Wednesday, 
June 11, 2025 at 5:30 p.m. 

 
 
 18



TVROP Joint Powers Governing Board 
Minutes for the Regular Board Meeting of May 7, 2025 

  

 

 
14. ADJOURNMENT – 6:55 p.m.  

 
 

Submitted,      Approved and entered into the proceedings  
of the Board this 11th day of June, 2025 

 
_______________________________  _______________________________   
Julie Duncan     Kristin Speck    
Secretary to the Board     Chairperson 

 
 
 
KS/JD/rv 
 
 
 

19



Summary

The Board will consider approval of the Bill and Salary Reports, which shows the District’s
operating and salary expenditures for the period noted.

Supporting Documents

 Bill and Salary_May 1 - May 31, 2025

6. B. Approval of the Bill and Salary Report –May 1 - May 31, 2025

20



Fiscal20a Account Transaction Detail-Activity Change

Fiscal Year 2024/25Activity for Dates 05/01/2025 to 05/31/2025

Pay To

Name
Journal # Description

Trans 

Dt

Adopted

Budget

Revised

Budget
RevenueRef#

Net Change

to Balance

110-8660-6391-    -    -   -  -0-  Interest,Adult Ed Block,

BR25-00048 Est Actuals Revision,BR25-03,Fund 11005/16/25 5,830.00 5,830.00 

990-8290-5610-    -    -   -  -0-0000  Other Fed Rev,WIOA,Unrest

AR25-00089 WIOA GRANT REIMBURSEMENT 1/1/25-3/31-2505/21/25 26,647.50 26,647.50-

990-8587-6387-3800-9200-000-90-0-0000  Pass Thru Rev,CTEIG,Unres

CT25-00986 APP-15446B-25 22-23 CTEIG (RS 6387)05/05/25 336,470.00 336,470.00-

990-8689-0000-6000-3110-201-90-0-2200  Other Fees & Co,Unrestric

AR25-00090 2024-2025  Granada HS PSAT Testing - D. Watson05/21/25 750.01 750.01-INV25-00033

990-8689-0000-6000-3110-202-90-0-2200  Other Fees & Co,Unrestric

AR25-00091 2024-2025  Livermore HS PSAT Testing - P.Cabading05/21/25 750.01 750.01-INV25-00034

990-8699-9010-6000-1000-501-90-0-9930  Other Local Rev,Other Res

AR25-00088 LAS POSITAS MC STOLES/SHIRTS05/07/25 435.00 435.00-

.00 5,830.00 365,052.52 359,222.52-Total for Revenue Accounts

Revised

Budget

Adopted

Budget
Journal #

Pay To

Name

Net Change

to Balance
ExpenditureEncumbered

Trans 

Dt
DescriptionRef#

110-1110-6391-4630-1000-000-90-0-0000  Tchr Sal 11 Pay,Unrest.,A

BR25-00050 Est Actuals Revision 05/16/25 34,679.00- 34,679.00-

110-1128-6391-4630-1000-000-90-0-0000  Tchr Hourly,Unrest.,Adult

BR25-00048 Est Actuals Revision,BR25-03,Fund 11005/16/25 807.00- 807.00-

PR25-00033 05/28/25 Manual Payroll (Earnings) 05/28/25 22.08 829.08-

Account Total .00 22.08 .00 807.00-05/31/25

110-3101-6391-4630-1000-000-90-0-0000  STRS Cert,Unrest.,Adult V

BR25-00048 Est Actuals Revision,BR25-03,Fund 11005/16/25 6,778.00- 6,778.00-

PR25-00033 05/28/25 Manual Payroll (Contributions)05/28/25 4.21 6,782.21-

Account Total .00 4.21 .00 6,778.00-05/31/25

110-3321-6391-4630-1000-000-90-0-0000  Medicare Cert,Unrest.,Adu

BR25-00048 Est Actuals Revision,BR25-03,Fund 11005/16/25 515.00- 515.00-

PR25-00033 05/28/25 Manual Payroll (Contributions)05/28/25 .40 515.40-

Account Total .00 .40 .00 515.00-05/31/25

110-3501-6391-4630-1000-000-90-0-0000  SUI Cert,Unrest.,Adult Vo

BR25-00048 Est Actuals Revision,BR25-03,Fund 11005/16/25 17.00- 17.00-

110-3601-6391-4630-1000-000-90-0-0000  Wk Comp Cert,Unrest.,Adul

BR25-00048 Est Actuals Revision,BR25-03,Fund 11005/16/25 671.00- 671.00-

PR25-00033 05/28/25 Manual Payroll (Contributions)05/28/25 .60 671.60-

Account Total .00 .60 .00 671.00-05/31/25

110-4300-6391-4630-1000-000-90-0-0000  Mat & Supp,Unrest.,Adult

BR25-00048 Est Actuals Revision,BR25-03,Fund 11005/16/25 28,503.00- 28,503.00-

Selection

Page 1 of 25

Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 79, Online/Offline = N, Fiscal Year = 2025, Start Date = 5/1/2025, End Date = 5/31/2025, Unposted JEs? = 

N, Assets and Liabilities? = N, Restricted? = Y, Obj Digits = 0, Page Break Lvl = )

079 - Tri-Valley Regional Occupational Program
Generated for Kristen Sims (KSIMS79), Jun  2 2025  9:00AM

21



Fiscal20a Account Transaction Detail-Activity Change

Fiscal Year 2024/25Activity for Dates 05/01/2025 to 05/31/2025

Journal # Description
Net Change

to Balance
ExpenditureEncumbered

Revised

Budget

Adopted

Budget

Trans 

Dt

Pay To

Name
Ref#

Revised

Budget

Adopted

Budget
Journal #

Pay To

Name

Net Change

to Balance
ExpenditureEncumbered

Trans 

Dt
DescriptionRef#

110-5825-6371-4630-1000-000-90-0-0000  Consultants,Unrest.,Adult

BR25-00048 Est Actuals Revision,BR25-03,Fund 11005/16/25 195,469.00- 195,469.00-

Mckinney, Mildred EN25-00565 CalWorks Metrix Instructor 24-25 SY 05/20/25 1,938.30- 193,530.70-T25-00018

Mckinney, Mildred EX25-00669 CalWorks Metrix Instructor 24-25 SY 05/20/25 1,938.30 195,469.00-T25-00018

Account Total .00 1,938.30 1,938.30-195,469.00-05/31/25

110-5825-6391-4630-1000-000-90-0-0000  Consultants,Unrest.,Adult

Castaneda, Adrian Martinez    DBA Tri-VlleyEN25-00553 Adult Ed Student Services Advisor SY 24-2505/06/25 3,600.00- 3,600.00 T25-00055

Castaneda, Adrian Martinez    DBA Tri-VlleyEX25-00649 Adult Ed Student Services Advisor SY 24-2505/06/25 3,600.00 T25-00055

Castaneda, Adrian Martinez    DBA Tri-VlleyEN25-00575 Adult Ed Student Services Advisor SY 24-2505/20/25 3,600.00- 3,600.00 T25-00055

Castaneda, Adrian Martinez    DBA Tri-VlleyEX25-00681 Adult Ed Student Services Advisor SY 24-2505/20/25 3,600.00 T25-00055

Account Total .00 7,200.00 7,200.00-.00 05/31/25

990-1110-0000-6000-1000-000-90-0-0000  Tchr Sal 11 Pay,Unrest.,R

BR25-00049 Est Actuals Revision,BR25-03,Fund 99005/16/25 36,518.00 36,518.00 

PR25-00033 05/28/25 Manual Payroll (Earnings) 05/28/25 40,235.28 3,717.28-

PR25-00035 05/30/25 Regular Payroll (Earnings) 05/30/25 140,142.81 143,860.09-

PR25-00037 Salary Encumbrance between 05/31/25 and 06/30/25 Payroll05/30/25 133,004.55 276,864.64-

Account Total .00 180,378.09 133,004.55 36,518.00 05/31/25

990-1110-0000-6000-4000-501-90-0-9930  Tchr Sal 11 Pay,Middle Co

BR25-00049 Est Actuals Revision,BR25-03,Fund 99005/16/25 8,518.00 8,518.00 

PR25-00033 05/28/25 Manual Payroll (Earnings) 05/28/25 7,994.70 523.30 

PR25-00035 05/30/25 Regular Payroll (Earnings) 05/30/25 27,681.76 27,158.46-

PR25-00037 Salary Encumbrance between 05/31/25 and 06/30/25 Payroll05/30/25 27,681.76 54,840.22-

Account Total .00 35,676.46 27,681.76 8,518.00 05/31/25

990-1110-7339-6000-1000-501-90-0-7001  Tchr Sal 11 Pay,MCEC 24-2

BR25-00049 Est Actuals Revision,BR25-03,Fund 99005/16/25 9,936.00 9,936.00 

PR25-00033 05/28/25 Manual Payroll (Earnings) 05/28/25 902.61 9,033.39 

PR25-00035 05/30/25 Regular Payroll (Earnings) 05/30/25 3,443.05 5,590.34 

PR25-00037 Salary Encumbrance between 05/31/25 and 06/30/25 Payroll05/30/25 3,443.05 2,147.29 

Account Total .00 4,345.66 3,443.05 9,936.00 05/31/25

990-1120-0000-6000-1000-000-90-0-0000  Tchr Stipend,Unrest.,ROCP

BR25-00049 Est Actuals Revision,BR25-03,Fund 99005/16/25 556.00- 556.00-

PR25-00035 05/30/25 Regular Payroll (Earnings) 05/30/25 2,222.24 2,778.24-

PR25-00037 Salary Encumbrance between 05/31/25 and 06/30/25 Payroll05/30/25 1,666.56 4,444.80-

Account Total .00 2,222.24 1,666.56 556.00-05/31/25

990-1128-0000-6000-1000-000-90-0-0000  Tchr Hourly,Unrest.,ROCP

BR25-00049 Est Actuals Revision,BR25-03,Fund 99005/16/25 5,934.00 5,934.00 

Selection

Page 2 of 25

Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 79, Online/Offline = N, Fiscal Year = 2025, Start Date = 5/1/2025, End Date = 5/31/2025, Unposted JEs? = 

N, Assets and Liabilities? = N, Restricted? = Y, Obj Digits = 0, Page Break Lvl = )

079 - Tri-Valley Regional Occupational Program
Generated for Kristen Sims (KSIMS79), Jun  2 2025  9:00AM

22



Fiscal20a Account Transaction Detail-Activity Change

Fiscal Year 2024/25Activity for Dates 05/01/2025 to 05/31/2025

Journal # Description
Net Change

to Balance
ExpenditureEncumbered

Revised

Budget

Adopted

Budget

Trans 

Dt

Pay To

Name
Ref#

990-1128-0000-6000-1000-000-90-0-0000  Tchr Hourly,Unrest.,ROCP (continued)

PR25-00033 05/28/25 Manual Payroll (Earnings) 05/28/25 445.88 5,488.12 

PR25-00035 05/30/25 Regular Payroll (Earnings) 05/30/25 720.00 4,768.12 

Account Total .00 1,165.88 .00 5,934.00 05/31/25

990-1128-0000-6000-4000-501-90-0-9930  Tchr Hourly,Middle Colleg

BR25-00049 Est Actuals Revision,BR25-03,Fund 99005/16/25 511.00 511.00 

PR25-00033 05/28/25 Manual Payroll (Earnings) 05/28/25 107.24 403.76 

Account Total .00 107.24 .00 511.00 05/31/25

990-1312-0000-6000-2100-000-90-0-0000  Supv Admin Sal,Unrest.,RO

BR25-00049 Est Actuals Revision,BR25-03,Fund 99005/16/25 5,756.00 5,756.00 

PR25-00033 05/28/25 Manual Payroll (Earnings) 05/28/25 4,796.70 959.30 

PR25-00035 05/30/25 Regular Payroll (Earnings) 05/30/25 28,253.09 27,293.79-

PR25-00037 Salary Encumbrance between 05/31/25 and 06/30/25 Payroll05/30/25 28,253.09 55,546.88-

Account Total .00 33,049.79 28,253.09 5,756.00 05/31/25

990-1312-0000-6000-7100-000-90-0-0000  Supv Admin Sal,Unrest.,RO

BR25-00049 Est Actuals Revision,BR25-03,Fund 99005/16/25 2,736.00 2,736.00 

PR25-00033 05/28/25 Manual Payroll (Earnings) 05/28/25 2,280.00 456.00 

PR25-00035 05/30/25 Regular Payroll (Earnings) 05/30/25 19,553.28 19,097.28-

PR25-00037 Salary Encumbrance between 05/31/25 and 06/30/25 Payroll05/30/25 19,553.28 38,650.56-

Account Total .00 21,833.28 19,553.28 2,736.00 05/31/25

990-2210-0000-6000-3110-101-90-0-2200  Class Supp Sal,Career Cen

BR25-00049 Est Actuals Revision,BR25-03,Fund 99005/16/25 1,060.00 1,060.00 

PR25-00033 05/28/25 Manual Payroll (Earnings) 05/28/25 867.42 192.58 

PR25-00035 05/30/25 Regular Payroll (Earnings) 05/30/25 5,259.81 5,067.23-

PR25-00037 Salary Encumbrance between 05/31/25 and 06/30/25 Payroll05/30/25 5,410.37 10,477.60-

Account Total .00 6,127.23 5,410.37 1,060.00 05/31/25

990-2210-0000-6000-3110-201-90-0-2200  Class Supp Sal,Career Cen

BR25-00049 Est Actuals Revision,BR25-03,Fund 99005/16/25 1,083.00 1,083.00 

PR25-00033 05/28/25 Manual Payroll (Earnings) 05/28/25 885.78 197.22 

PR25-00035 05/30/25 Regular Payroll (Earnings) 05/30/25 5,967.04 5,769.82-

PR25-00037 Salary Encumbrance between 05/31/25 and 06/30/25 Payroll05/30/25 5,967.04 11,736.86-

Account Total .00 6,852.82 5,967.04 1,083.00 05/31/25

990-2210-0000-6000-3110-202-90-0-2200  Class Supp Sal,Career Cen

BR25-00049 Est Actuals Revision,BR25-03,Fund 99005/16/25 1,083.00 1,083.00 

PR25-00033 05/28/25 Manual Payroll (Earnings) 05/28/25 885.78 197.22 

PR25-00035 05/30/25 Regular Payroll (Earnings) 05/30/25 5,917.04 5,719.82-

PR25-00037 Salary Encumbrance between 05/31/25 and 06/30/25 Payroll05/30/25 5,917.04 11,636.86-

Account Total .00 6,802.82 5,917.04 1,083.00 05/31/25

Selection

Page 3 of 25

Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 79, Online/Offline = N, Fiscal Year = 2025, Start Date = 5/1/2025, End Date = 5/31/2025, Unposted JEs? = 

N, Assets and Liabilities? = N, Restricted? = Y, Obj Digits = 0, Page Break Lvl = )

079 - Tri-Valley Regional Occupational Program
Generated for Kristen Sims (KSIMS79), Jun  2 2025  9:00AM

23



Fiscal20a Account Transaction Detail-Activity Change

Fiscal Year 2024/25Activity for Dates 05/01/2025 to 05/31/2025

Journal # Description
Net Change

to Balance
ExpenditureEncumbered

Revised

Budget

Adopted

Budget

Trans 

Dt

Pay To

Name
Ref#

990-2210-0000-6000-3110-301-90-0-2200  Class Supp Sal,Career Cen

BR25-00049 Est Actuals Revision,BR25-03,Fund 99005/16/25 784.00 784.00 

PR25-00033 05/28/25 Manual Payroll (Earnings) 05/28/25 688.50 95.50 

PR25-00035 05/30/25 Regular Payroll (Earnings) 05/30/25 2,855.75 2,760.25-

PR25-00037 Salary Encumbrance between 05/31/25 and 06/30/25 Payroll05/30/25 2,855.75 5,616.00-

Account Total .00 3,544.25 2,855.75 784.00 05/31/25

990-2210-0000-6000-3110-302-90-0-2200  Class Supp Sal,Career Cen

BR25-00049 Est Actuals Revision,BR25-03,Fund 99005/16/25 530.00 530.00 

PR25-00033 05/28/25 Manual Payroll (Earnings) 05/28/25 433.80 96.20 

PR25-00035 05/30/25 Regular Payroll (Earnings) 05/30/25 2,855.75 2,759.55-

PR25-00037 Salary Encumbrance between 05/31/25 and 06/30/25 Payroll05/30/25 2,855.75 5,615.30-

Account Total .00 3,289.55 2,855.75 530.00 05/31/25

990-2210-6388-6000-3110-000-90-0-1105  Class Supp Sal,SWG5,ROCP

BR25-00049 Est Actuals Revision,BR25-03,Fund 99005/16/25 701.00 701.00 

PR25-00033 05/28/25 Manual Payroll (Earnings) 05/28/25 517.91 183.09 

PR25-00035 05/30/25 Regular Payroll (Earnings) 05/30/25 5,253.05 5,069.96-

PR25-00037 Salary Encumbrance between 05/31/25 and 06/30/25 Payroll05/30/25 5,253.05 10,323.01-

Account Total .00 5,770.96 5,253.05 701.00 05/31/25

990-2225-0000-6000-3110-101-90-0-2200  Class Suppt OT,Career Cen

BR25-00049 Est Actuals Revision,BR25-03,Fund 99005/16/25 2,389.00- 2,389.00-

PR25-00033 05/28/25 Manual Payroll (Earnings) 05/28/25 1.12 2,390.12-

Account Total .00 1.12 .00 2,389.00-05/31/25

990-2225-0000-6000-3110-201-90-0-2200  Class Suppt OT,Career Cen

BR25-00049 Est Actuals Revision,BR25-03,Fund 99005/16/25 1,789.00- 1,789.00-

PR25-00033 05/28/25 Manual Payroll (Earnings) 05/28/25 4.63 1,793.63-

Account Total .00 4.63 .00 1,789.00-05/31/25

990-2225-6388-6000-4000-000-90-0-1105  Class Suppt OT,SWG5,ROCP

BR25-00049 Est Actuals Revision,BR25-03,Fund 99005/16/25 1.00 1.00 

PR25-00033 05/28/25 Manual Payroll (Earnings) 05/28/25 5.25 4.25-

Account Total .00 5.25 .00 1.00 05/31/25

990-2228-0000-6000-3110-102-90-0-2200  Class Suppt Hr,Career Cen

BR25-00049 Est Actuals Revision,BR25-03,Fund 99005/16/25 1,904.00- 1,904.00-

PR25-00033 05/28/25 Manual Payroll (Earnings) 05/28/25 5.98 1,909.98-

Account Total .00 5.98 .00 1,904.00-05/31/25

990-2228-0000-6000-3110-201-90-0-2200  Class Suppt Hr,Career Cen

BR25-00050 Est Actuals Revision 05/16/25 250.00- 250.00-

990-2228-0000-6000-3110-202-90-0-2200  Class Suppt Hr,Career Cen

BR25-00049 Est Actuals Revision,BR25-03,Fund 99005/16/25 1,750.00- 1,750.00-

Selection

Page 4 of 25

Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 79, Online/Offline = N, Fiscal Year = 2025, Start Date = 5/1/2025, End Date = 5/31/2025, Unposted JEs? = 

N, Assets and Liabilities? = N, Restricted? = Y, Obj Digits = 0, Page Break Lvl = )

079 - Tri-Valley Regional Occupational Program
Generated for Kristen Sims (KSIMS79), Jun  2 2025  9:00AM

24



Fiscal20a Account Transaction Detail-Activity Change

Fiscal Year 2024/25Activity for Dates 05/01/2025 to 05/31/2025

Journal # Description
Net Change

to Balance
ExpenditureEncumbered

Revised

Budget

Adopted

Budget

Trans 

Dt

Pay To

Name
Ref#

990-2228-0000-6000-3110-202-90-0-2200  Class Suppt Hr,Career Cen (continued)

PR25-00033 05/28/25 Manual Payroll (Earnings) 05/28/25 7.43 1,757.43-

Account Total .00 7.43 .00 1,750.00-05/31/25

990-2228-0000-6000-3110-301-90-0-2200  Class Suppt Hr,Career Cen

BR25-00049 Est Actuals Revision,BR25-03,Fund 99005/16/25 2,438.00- 2,438.00-

PR25-00033 05/28/25 Manual Payroll (Earnings) 05/28/25 .62 2,438.62-

Account Total .00 .62 .00 2,438.00-05/31/25

990-2228-0000-6000-3110-302-90-0-2200  Class Suppt Hr,Career Cen

BR25-00049 Est Actuals Revision,BR25-03,Fund 99005/16/25 1,722.00- 1,722.00-

PR25-00033 05/28/25 Manual Payroll (Earnings) 05/28/25 2.78 1,724.78-

Account Total .00 2.78 .00 1,722.00-05/31/25

990-2228-7339-6000-4000-501-90-0-7001  Class Suppt Hr,MCEC 24-25

BR25-00050 Est Actuals Revision 05/16/25 1,500.00- 1,500.00-

990-2310-0000-6000-2700-000-90-0-0000  Supv Admin Sal,Unrest.,RO

BR25-00049 Est Actuals Revision,BR25-03,Fund 99005/16/25 1,501.00 1,501.00 

PR25-00033 05/28/25 Manual Payroll (Earnings) 05/28/25 1,250.80 250.20 

PR25-00035 05/30/25 Regular Payroll (Earnings) 05/30/25 8,917.09 8,666.89-

PR25-00037 Salary Encumbrance between 05/31/25 and 06/30/25 Payroll05/30/25 8,917.09 17,583.98-

Account Total .00 10,167.89 8,917.09 1,501.00 05/31/25

990-2410-0000-6000-2700-000-90-0-0000  Clerical Sal,Unrest.,ROCP

BR25-00049 Est Actuals Revision,BR25-03,Fund 99005/16/25 2,311.00 2,311.00 

PR25-00033 05/28/25 Manual Payroll (Earnings) 05/28/25 1,914.39 396.61 

PR25-00035 05/30/25 Regular Payroll (Earnings) 05/30/25 12,305.01 11,908.40-

PR25-00037 Salary Encumbrance between 05/31/25 and 06/30/25 Payroll05/30/25 12,305.01 24,213.41-

Account Total .00 14,219.40 12,305.01 2,311.00 05/31/25

990-2428-0000-6000-4000-501-90-0-9930  Clerical Hr,Middle Colleg

BR25-00049 Est Actuals Revision,BR25-03,Fund 99005/16/25 4,892.00- 4,892.00-

PR25-00033 05/28/25 Manual Payroll (Earnings) 05/28/25 1.38 4,893.38-

PR25-00035 05/30/25 Regular Payroll (Earnings) 05/30/25 1,039.50 5,932.88-

Account Total .00 1,040.88 .00 4,892.00-05/31/25

990-2920-0000-6000-2700-000-90-0-0000  Othr Class Stip,Unrest.,R

PR25-00033 05/28/25 Manual Payroll (Earnings) 05/28/25 7.43 7.43-

990-3101-0000-6000-1000-000-90-0-0000  STRS Cert,Unrest.,ROCP

BR25-00049 Est Actuals Revision,BR25-03,Fund 99005/16/25 6,211.00 6,211.00 

PR25-00033 05/28/25 Manual Payroll (Contributions)05/28/25 6,176.46 34.54 

PR25-00035 05/30/25 Regular Payroll (Contributions)05/30/25 24,521.74 24,487.20-

PR25-00037 Salary Encumbrance between 05/31/25 and 06/30/25 Payroll05/30/25 23,012.30 47,499.50-

Account Total .00 30,698.20 23,012.30 6,211.00 05/31/25

Selection

Page 5 of 25

Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 79, Online/Offline = N, Fiscal Year = 2025, Start Date = 5/1/2025, End Date = 5/31/2025, Unposted JEs? = 

N, Assets and Liabilities? = N, Restricted? = Y, Obj Digits = 0, Page Break Lvl = )

079 - Tri-Valley Regional Occupational Program
Generated for Kristen Sims (KSIMS79), Jun  2 2025  9:00AM

25



Fiscal20a Account Transaction Detail-Activity Change

Fiscal Year 2024/25Activity for Dates 05/01/2025 to 05/31/2025

Journal # Description
Net Change

to Balance
ExpenditureEncumbered

Revised

Budget

Adopted

Budget

Trans 

Dt

Pay To

Name
Ref#

990-3101-0000-6000-2100-000-90-0-0000  STRS Cert,Unrest.,ROCP

BR25-00049 Est Actuals Revision,BR25-03,Fund 99005/16/25 908.00 908.00 

PR25-00033 05/28/25 Manual Payroll (Contributions)05/28/25 756.90 151.10 

PR25-00035 05/30/25 Regular Payroll (Contributions)05/30/25 5,087.57 4,936.47-

PR25-00037 Salary Encumbrance between 05/31/25 and 06/30/25 Payroll05/30/25 5,087.57 10,024.04-

Account Total .00 5,844.47 5,087.57 908.00 05/31/25

990-3101-0000-6000-4000-501-90-0-9930  STRS Cert,Middle College,

BR25-00049 Est Actuals Revision,BR25-03,Fund 99005/16/25 1,438.00 1,438.00 

PR25-00033 05/28/25 Manual Payroll (Contributions)05/28/25 1,313.14 124.86 

PR25-00035 05/30/25 Regular Payroll (Contributions)05/30/25 5,000.71 4,875.85-

PR25-00037 Salary Encumbrance between 05/31/25 and 06/30/25 Payroll05/30/25 5,000.71 9,876.56-

Account Total .00 6,313.85 5,000.71 1,438.00 05/31/25

990-3101-0000-6000-7100-000-90-0-0000  STRS Cert,Unrest.,ROCP

BR25-00049 Est Actuals Revision,BR25-03,Fund 99005/16/25 427.00 427.00 

PR25-00033 05/28/25 Manual Payroll (Contributions)05/28/25 355.90 71.10 

PR25-00035 05/30/25 Regular Payroll (Contributions)05/30/25 3,615.30 3,544.20-

PR25-00037 Salary Encumbrance between 05/31/25 and 06/30/25 Payroll05/30/25 3,615.30 7,159.50-

Account Total .00 3,971.20 3,615.30 427.00 05/31/25

990-3101-6388-6000-1000-000-90-0-1106  STRS Cert,SWG6,ROCP

BR25-00049 Est Actuals Revision,BR25-03,Fund 99005/16/25 1.00 1.00 

990-3101-7339-6000-1000-501-90-0-7001  STRS Cert,MCEC 24-25,ROCP

BR25-00049 Est Actuals Revision,BR25-03,Fund 99005/16/25 1,897.00 1,897.00 

PR25-00033 05/28/25 Manual Payroll (Contributions)05/28/25 172.44 1,724.56 

PR25-00035 05/30/25 Regular Payroll (Contributions)05/30/25 657.62 1,066.94 

PR25-00037 Salary Encumbrance between 05/31/25 and 06/30/25 Payroll05/30/25 657.62 409.32 

Account Total .00 830.06 657.62 1,897.00 05/31/25

990-3201-0000-6000-1000-000-90-0-0000  PERS Cert,Unrest.,ROCP

BR25-00049 Est Actuals Revision,BR25-03,Fund 99005/16/25 470.00 470.00 

PR25-00033 05/28/25 Manual Payroll (Contributions)05/28/25 460.89 9.11 

PR25-00035 05/30/25 Regular Payroll (Contributions)05/30/25 1,742.78 1,733.67-

PR25-00037 Salary Encumbrance between 05/31/25 and 06/30/25 Payroll05/30/25 1,742.78 3,476.45-

Account Total .00 2,203.67 1,742.78 470.00 05/31/25

990-3202-0000-6000-2700-000-90-0-0000  PERS Class,Unrest.,ROCP

BR25-00049 Est Actuals Revision,BR25-03,Fund 99005/16/25 627.00 627.00 

PR25-00033 05/28/25 Manual Payroll (Contributions)05/28/25 523.24 103.76 

PR25-00035 05/30/25 Regular Payroll (Contributions)05/30/25 5,362.45 5,258.69-

PR25-00037 Salary Encumbrance between 05/31/25 and 06/30/25 Payroll05/30/25 5,362.45 10,621.14-

Account Total .00 5,885.69 5,362.45 627.00 05/31/25

Selection

Page 6 of 25

Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 79, Online/Offline = N, Fiscal Year = 2025, Start Date = 5/1/2025, End Date = 5/31/2025, Unposted JEs? = 

N, Assets and Liabilities? = N, Restricted? = Y, Obj Digits = 0, Page Break Lvl = )

079 - Tri-Valley Regional Occupational Program
Generated for Kristen Sims (KSIMS79), Jun  2 2025  9:00AM

26



Fiscal20a Account Transaction Detail-Activity Change

Fiscal Year 2024/25Activity for Dates 05/01/2025 to 05/31/2025

Journal # Description
Net Change

to Balance
ExpenditureEncumbered

Revised

Budget

Adopted

Budget

Trans 

Dt

Pay To

Name
Ref#

990-3202-0000-6000-3110-101-90-0-2200  PERS Class,Career Center,

BR25-00049 Est Actuals Revision,BR25-03,Fund 99005/16/25 181.00 181.00 

PR25-00033 05/28/25 Manual Payroll (Contributions)05/28/25 124.02 56.98 

PR25-00035 05/30/25 Regular Payroll (Contributions)05/30/25 1,287.53 1,230.55-

PR25-00037 Salary Encumbrance between 05/31/25 and 06/30/25 Payroll05/30/25 1,328.25 2,558.80-

Account Total .00 1,411.55 1,328.25 181.00 05/31/25

990-3202-0000-6000-3110-102-90-0-2200  PERS Class,Career Center,

BR25-00049 Est Actuals Revision,BR25-03,Fund 99005/16/25 515.00- 515.00-

PR25-00033 05/28/25 Manual Payroll (Contributions)05/28/25 1.11 516.11-

Account Total .00 1.11 .00 515.00-05/31/25

990-3202-0000-6000-3110-201-90-0-2200  PERS Class,Career Center,

BR25-00049 Est Actuals Revision,BR25-03,Fund 99005/16/25 394.00- 394.00-

PR25-00033 05/28/25 Manual Payroll (Contributions)05/28/25 128.97 522.97-

PR25-00035 05/30/25 Regular Payroll (Contributions)05/30/25 1,478.83 2,001.80-

PR25-00037 Salary Encumbrance between 05/31/25 and 06/30/25 Payroll05/30/25 1,478.83 3,480.63-

Account Total .00 1,607.80 1,478.83 394.00-05/31/25

990-3202-0000-6000-3110-202-90-0-2200  PERS Class,Career Center,

BR25-00049 Est Actuals Revision,BR25-03,Fund 99005/16/25 316.00- 316.00-

PR25-00033 05/28/25 Manual Payroll (Contributions)05/28/25 130.98 446.98-

PR25-00035 05/30/25 Regular Payroll (Contributions)05/30/25 1,465.30 1,912.28-

PR25-00037 Salary Encumbrance between 05/31/25 and 06/30/25 Payroll05/30/25 1,465.30 3,377.58-

Account Total .00 1,596.28 1,465.30 316.00-05/31/25

990-3202-0000-6000-3110-301-90-0-2200  PERS Class,Career Center,

BR25-00049 Est Actuals Revision,BR25-03,Fund 99005/16/25 547.00- 547.00-

PR25-00033 05/28/25 Manual Payroll (Contributions)05/28/25 98.60 645.60-

PR25-00035 05/30/25 Regular Payroll (Contributions)05/30/25 704.86 1,350.46-

PR25-00037 Salary Encumbrance between 05/31/25 and 06/30/25 Payroll05/30/25 704.86 2,055.32-

Account Total .00 803.46 704.86 547.00-05/31/25

990-3202-0000-6000-3110-302-90-0-2200  PERS Class,Career Center,

BR25-00049 Est Actuals Revision,BR25-03,Fund 99005/16/25 390.00- 390.00-

PR25-00033 05/28/25 Manual Payroll (Contributions)05/28/25 62.76 452.76-

PR25-00035 05/30/25 Regular Payroll (Contributions)05/30/25 704.86 1,157.62-

PR25-00037 Salary Encumbrance between 05/31/25 and 06/30/25 Payroll05/30/25 704.86 1,862.48-

Account Total .00 767.62 704.86 390.00-05/31/25

990-3202-0000-6000-4000-501-90-0-9930  PERS Class,Middle College

BR25-00049 Est Actuals Revision,BR25-03,Fund 99005/16/25 1,323.00- 1,323.00-

PR25-00033 05/28/25 Manual Payroll (Contributions)05/28/25 .38 1,323.38-

Account Total .00 .38 .00 1,323.00-05/31/25

Selection

Page 7 of 25

Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 79, Online/Offline = N, Fiscal Year = 2025, Start Date = 5/1/2025, End Date = 5/31/2025, Unposted JEs? = 

N, Assets and Liabilities? = N, Restricted? = Y, Obj Digits = 0, Page Break Lvl = )

079 - Tri-Valley Regional Occupational Program
Generated for Kristen Sims (KSIMS79), Jun  2 2025  9:00AM

27



Fiscal20a Account Transaction Detail-Activity Change

Fiscal Year 2024/25Activity for Dates 05/01/2025 to 05/31/2025

Journal # Description
Net Change

to Balance
ExpenditureEncumbered

Revised

Budget

Adopted

Budget

Trans 

Dt

Pay To

Name
Ref#

990-3202-6388-6000-3110-000-90-0-1105  PERS Class,SWG5,ROCP

BR25-00049 Est Actuals Revision,BR25-03,Fund 99005/16/25 96.00 96.00 

PR25-00033 05/28/25 Manual Payroll (Contributions)05/28/25 70.79 25.21 

PR25-00035 05/30/25 Regular Payroll (Contributions)05/30/25 1,285.70 1,260.49-

PR25-00037 Salary Encumbrance between 05/31/25 and 06/30/25 Payroll05/30/25 1,285.70 2,546.19-

Account Total .00 1,356.49 1,285.70 96.00 05/31/25

990-3202-6388-6000-4000-000-90-0-1105  PERS Class,SWG5,ROCP

BR25-00049 Est Actuals Revision,BR25-03,Fund 99005/16/25 142.00 142.00 

990-3311-0000-6000-1000-000-90-0-0000  OASDI Cert,Unrest.,ROCP

BR25-00049 Est Actuals Revision,BR25-03,Fund 99005/16/25 100.00 100.00 

PR25-00033 05/28/25 Manual Payroll (Contributions)05/28/25 131.00 31.00-

PR25-00035 05/30/25 Regular Payroll (Contributions)05/30/25 421.20 452.20-

PR25-00037 Salary Encumbrance between 05/31/25 and 06/30/25 Payroll05/30/25 421.20 873.40-

Account Total .00 552.20 421.20 100.00 05/31/25

990-3312-0000-6000-2700-000-90-0-0000  OASDI Class,Unrest.,ROCP

BR25-00049 Est Actuals Revision,BR25-03,Fund 99005/16/25 237.00 237.00 

PR25-00033 05/28/25 Manual Payroll (Contributions)05/28/25 196.78 40.22 

PR25-00035 05/30/25 Regular Payroll (Contributions)05/30/25 1,303.17 1,262.95-

PR25-00037 Salary Encumbrance between 05/31/25 and 06/30/25 Payroll05/30/25 1,303.17 2,566.12-

Account Total .00 1,499.95 1,303.17 237.00 05/31/25

990-3312-0000-6000-3110-101-90-0-2200  OASDI Class,Career Center

BR25-00049 Est Actuals Revision,BR25-03,Fund 99005/16/25 72.00 72.00 

PR25-00033 05/28/25 Manual Payroll (Contributions)05/28/25 53.86 18.14 

PR25-00035 05/30/25 Regular Payroll (Contributions)05/30/25 321.62 303.48-

PR25-00037 Salary Encumbrance between 05/31/25 and 06/30/25 Payroll05/30/25 330.95 634.43-

Account Total .00 375.48 330.95 72.00 05/31/25

990-3312-0000-6000-3110-102-90-0-2200  OASDI Class,Career Center

BR25-00049 Est Actuals Revision,BR25-03,Fund 99005/16/25 118.00- 118.00-

PR25-00033 05/28/25 Manual Payroll (Contributions)05/28/25 .35 118.35-

Account Total .00 .35 .00 118.00-05/31/25

990-3312-0000-6000-3110-201-90-0-2200  OASDI Class,Career Center

BR25-00049 Est Actuals Revision,BR25-03,Fund 99005/16/25 59.00- 59.00-

PR25-00033 05/28/25 Manual Payroll (Contributions)05/28/25 55.13 114.13-

PR25-00035 05/30/25 Regular Payroll (Contributions)05/30/25 365.47 479.60-

PR25-00037 Salary Encumbrance between 05/31/25 and 06/30/25 Payroll05/30/25 365.47 845.07-

Account Total .00 420.60 365.47 59.00-05/31/25

990-3312-0000-6000-3110-202-90-0-2200  OASDI Class,Career Center

BR25-00049 Est Actuals Revision,BR25-03,Fund 99005/16/25 41.00- 41.00-

Selection

Page 8 of 25

Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 79, Online/Offline = N, Fiscal Year = 2025, Start Date = 5/1/2025, End Date = 5/31/2025, Unposted JEs? = 

N, Assets and Liabilities? = N, Restricted? = Y, Obj Digits = 0, Page Break Lvl = )

079 - Tri-Valley Regional Occupational Program
Generated for Kristen Sims (KSIMS79), Jun  2 2025  9:00AM

28



Fiscal20a Account Transaction Detail-Activity Change

Fiscal Year 2024/25Activity for Dates 05/01/2025 to 05/31/2025

Journal # Description
Net Change

to Balance
ExpenditureEncumbered

Revised

Budget

Adopted

Budget

Trans 

Dt

Pay To

Name
Ref#

990-3312-0000-6000-3110-202-90-0-2200  OASDI Class,Career Center (continued)

PR25-00033 05/28/25 Manual Payroll (Contributions)05/28/25 55.45 96.45-

PR25-00035 05/30/25 Regular Payroll (Contributions)05/30/25 362.37 458.82-

PR25-00037 Salary Encumbrance between 05/31/25 and 06/30/25 Payroll05/30/25 362.37 821.19-

Account Total .00 417.82 362.37 41.00-05/31/25

990-3312-0000-6000-3110-301-90-0-2200  OASDI Class,Career Center

BR25-00049 Est Actuals Revision,BR25-03,Fund 99005/16/25 103.00- 103.00-

PR25-00033 05/28/25 Manual Payroll (Contributions)05/28/25 42.73 145.73-

PR25-00035 05/30/25 Regular Payroll (Contributions)05/30/25 164.64 310.37-

PR25-00037 Salary Encumbrance between 05/31/25 and 06/30/25 Payroll05/30/25 164.65 475.02-

Account Total .00 207.37 164.65 103.00-05/31/25

990-3312-0000-6000-3110-302-90-0-2200  OASDI Class,Career Center

BR25-00049 Est Actuals Revision,BR25-03,Fund 99005/16/25 74.00- 74.00-

PR25-00033 05/28/25 Manual Payroll (Contributions)05/28/25 27.07 101.07-

PR25-00035 05/30/25 Regular Payroll (Contributions)05/30/25 173.54 274.61-

PR25-00037 Salary Encumbrance between 05/31/25 and 06/30/25 Payroll05/30/25 173.54 448.15-

Account Total .00 200.61 173.54 74.00-05/31/25

990-3312-0000-6000-4000-501-90-0-9930  OASDI Class,Middle Colleg

BR25-00049 Est Actuals Revision,BR25-03,Fund 99005/16/25 303.00- 303.00-

PR25-00033 05/28/25 Manual Payroll (Contributions)05/28/25 .01 303.01-

PR25-00035 05/30/25 Regular Payroll (Contributions)05/30/25 64.45 367.46-

Account Total .00 64.46 .00 303.00-05/31/25

990-3312-6388-6000-3110-000-90-0-1105  OASDI Class,SWG5,ROCP

BR25-00049 Est Actuals Revision,BR25-03,Fund 99005/16/25 43.00 43.00 

PR25-00033 05/28/25 Manual Payroll (Contributions)05/28/25 32.13 10.87 

PR25-00035 05/30/25 Regular Payroll (Contributions)05/30/25 325.69 314.82-

PR25-00037 Salary Encumbrance between 05/31/25 and 06/30/25 Payroll05/30/25 325.69 640.51-

Account Total .00 357.82 325.69 43.00 05/31/25

990-3312-6388-6000-4000-000-90-0-1105  OASDI Class,SWG5,ROCP

BR25-00049 Est Actuals Revision,BR25-03,Fund 99005/16/25 1.00 1.00 

PR25-00033 05/28/25 Manual Payroll (Contributions)05/28/25 .32 .68 

Account Total .00 .32 .00 1.00 05/31/25

990-3312-7339-6000-4000-501-90-0-7001  OASDI Class,MCEC 24-25,RO

BR25-00050 Est Actuals Revision 05/16/25 93.00- 93.00-

990-3321-0000-6000-1000-000-90-0-0000  Medicare Cert,Unrest.,ROC

BR25-00049 Est Actuals Revision,BR25-03,Fund 99005/16/25 610.00 610.00 

PR25-00033 05/28/25 Manual Payroll (Contributions)05/28/25 589.80 20.20 

PR25-00035 05/30/25 Regular Payroll (Contributions)05/30/25 2,040.30 2,020.10-

Selection

Page 9 of 25

Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 79, Online/Offline = N, Fiscal Year = 2025, Start Date = 5/1/2025, End Date = 5/31/2025, Unposted JEs? = 

N, Assets and Liabilities? = N, Restricted? = Y, Obj Digits = 0, Page Break Lvl = )

079 - Tri-Valley Regional Occupational Program
Generated for Kristen Sims (KSIMS79), Jun  2 2025  9:00AM

29



Fiscal20a Account Transaction Detail-Activity Change

Fiscal Year 2024/25Activity for Dates 05/01/2025 to 05/31/2025

Journal # Description
Net Change

to Balance
ExpenditureEncumbered

Revised

Budget

Adopted

Budget

Trans 

Dt

Pay To

Name
Ref#

990-3321-0000-6000-1000-000-90-0-0000  Medicare Cert,Unrest.,ROC (continued)

PR25-00037 Salary Encumbrance between 05/31/25 and 06/30/25 Payroll05/30/25 1,919.36 3,939.46-

Account Total .00 2,630.10 1,919.36 610.00 05/31/25

990-3321-0000-6000-2100-000-90-0-0000  Medicare Cert,Unrest.,ROC

BR25-00049 Est Actuals Revision,BR25-03,Fund 99005/16/25 83.00 83.00 

PR25-00033 05/28/25 Manual Payroll (Contributions)05/28/25 69.55 13.45 

PR25-00035 05/30/25 Regular Payroll (Contributions)05/30/25 401.92 388.47-

PR25-00037 Salary Encumbrance between 05/31/25 and 06/30/25 Payroll05/30/25 401.92 790.39-

Account Total .00 471.47 401.92 83.00 05/31/25

990-3321-0000-6000-4000-501-90-0-9930  Medicare Cert,Middle Coll

BR25-00049 Est Actuals Revision,BR25-03,Fund 99005/16/25 131.00 131.00 

PR25-00033 05/28/25 Manual Payroll (Contributions)05/28/25 117.42 13.58 

PR25-00035 05/30/25 Regular Payroll (Contributions)05/30/25 385.84 372.26-

PR25-00037 Salary Encumbrance between 05/31/25 and 06/30/25 Payroll05/30/25 385.84 758.10-

Account Total .00 503.26 385.84 131.00 05/31/25

990-3321-0000-6000-7100-000-90-0-0000  Medicare Cert,Unrest.,ROC

BR25-00049 Est Actuals Revision,BR25-03,Fund 99005/16/25 40.00 40.00 

PR25-00033 05/28/25 Manual Payroll (Contributions)05/28/25 33.06 6.94 

PR25-00035 05/30/25 Regular Payroll (Contributions)05/30/25 279.89 272.95-

PR25-00037 Salary Encumbrance between 05/31/25 and 06/30/25 Payroll05/30/25 279.89 552.84-

Account Total .00 312.95 279.89 40.00 05/31/25

990-3321-7339-6000-1000-501-90-0-7001  Medicare Cert,MCEC 24-25,

BR25-00049 Est Actuals Revision,BR25-03,Fund 99005/16/25 144.00 144.00 

PR25-00033 05/28/25 Manual Payroll (Contributions)05/28/25 13.14 130.86 

PR25-00035 05/30/25 Regular Payroll (Contributions)05/30/25 47.22 83.64 

PR25-00037 Salary Encumbrance between 05/31/25 and 06/30/25 Payroll05/30/25 47.23 36.41 

Account Total .00 60.36 47.23 144.00 05/31/25

990-3322-0000-6000-2700-000-90-0-0000  Medicare Class,Unrest.,RO

BR25-00049 Est Actuals Revision,BR25-03,Fund 99005/16/25 56.00 56.00 

PR25-00033 05/28/25 Manual Payroll (Contributions)05/28/25 45.94 10.06 

PR25-00035 05/30/25 Regular Payroll (Contributions)05/30/25 304.77 294.71-

PR25-00037 Salary Encumbrance between 05/31/25 and 06/30/25 Payroll05/30/25 304.77 599.48-

Account Total .00 350.71 304.77 56.00 05/31/25

990-3322-0000-6000-3110-101-90-0-2200  Medicare Class,Career Cen

BR25-00049 Est Actuals Revision,BR25-03,Fund 99005/16/25 17.00 17.00 

PR25-00033 05/28/25 Manual Payroll (Contributions)05/28/25 12.60 4.40 

PR25-00035 05/30/25 Regular Payroll (Contributions)05/30/25 75.22 70.82-

PR25-00037 Salary Encumbrance between 05/31/25 and 06/30/25 Payroll05/30/25 77.40 148.22-

Selection

Page 10 of 25

Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 79, Online/Offline = N, Fiscal Year = 2025, Start Date = 5/1/2025, End Date = 5/31/2025, Unposted JEs? = 

N, Assets and Liabilities? = N, Restricted? = Y, Obj Digits = 0, Page Break Lvl = )

079 - Tri-Valley Regional Occupational Program
Generated for Kristen Sims (KSIMS79), Jun  2 2025  9:00AM

30



Fiscal20a Account Transaction Detail-Activity Change

Fiscal Year 2024/25Activity for Dates 05/01/2025 to 05/31/2025

Journal # Description
Net Change

to Balance
ExpenditureEncumbered

Revised

Budget

Adopted

Budget

Trans 

Dt

Pay To

Name
Ref#

Account Total .00 87.82 77.40 17.00 05/31/25

990-3322-0000-6000-3110-102-90-0-2200  Medicare Class,Career Cen

BR25-00049 Est Actuals Revision,BR25-03,Fund 99005/16/25 28.00- 28.00-

PR25-00033 05/28/25 Manual Payroll (Contributions)05/28/25 .09 28.09-

Account Total .00 .09 .00 28.00-05/31/25

990-3322-0000-6000-3110-201-90-0-2200  Medicare Class,Career Cen

BR25-00049 Est Actuals Revision,BR25-03,Fund 99005/16/25 14.00- 14.00-

PR25-00033 05/28/25 Manual Payroll (Contributions)05/28/25 12.88 26.88-

PR25-00035 05/30/25 Regular Payroll (Contributions)05/30/25 85.47 112.35-

PR25-00037 Salary Encumbrance between 05/31/25 and 06/30/25 Payroll05/30/25 85.47 197.82-

Account Total .00 98.35 85.47 14.00-05/31/25

990-3322-0000-6000-3110-202-90-0-2200  Medicare Class,Career Cen

BR25-00049 Est Actuals Revision,BR25-03,Fund 99005/16/25 9.00- 9.00-

PR25-00033 05/28/25 Manual Payroll (Contributions)05/28/25 12.98 21.98-

PR25-00035 05/30/25 Regular Payroll (Contributions)05/30/25 84.75 106.73-

PR25-00037 Salary Encumbrance between 05/31/25 and 06/30/25 Payroll05/30/25 84.75 191.48-

Account Total .00 97.73 84.75 9.00-05/31/25

990-3322-0000-6000-3110-301-90-0-2200  Medicare Class,Career Cen

BR25-00049 Est Actuals Revision,BR25-03,Fund 99005/16/25 24.00- 24.00-

PR25-00033 05/28/25 Manual Payroll (Contributions)05/28/25 9.99 33.99-

PR25-00035 05/30/25 Regular Payroll (Contributions)05/30/25 38.51 72.50-

PR25-00037 Salary Encumbrance between 05/31/25 and 06/30/25 Payroll05/30/25 38.51 111.01-

Account Total .00 48.50 38.51 24.00-05/31/25

990-3322-0000-6000-3110-302-90-0-2200  Medicare Class,Career Cen

BR25-00049 Est Actuals Revision,BR25-03,Fund 99005/16/25 17.00- 17.00-

PR25-00033 05/28/25 Manual Payroll (Contributions)05/28/25 6.33 23.33-

PR25-00035 05/30/25 Regular Payroll (Contributions)05/30/25 40.59 63.92-

PR25-00037 Salary Encumbrance between 05/31/25 and 06/30/25 Payroll05/30/25 40.59 104.51-

Account Total .00 46.92 40.59 17.00-05/31/25

990-3322-0000-6000-4000-501-90-0-9930  Medicare Class,Middle Col

BR25-00049 Est Actuals Revision,BR25-03,Fund 99005/16/25 70.00- 70.00-

PR25-00033 05/28/25 Manual Payroll (Contributions)05/28/25 .09 70.09-

PR25-00035 05/30/25 Regular Payroll (Contributions)05/30/25 15.07 85.16-

Account Total .00 15.16 .00 70.00-05/31/25

990-3322-6388-6000-3110-000-90-0-1105  Medicare Class,SWG5,ROCP

BR25-00049 Est Actuals Revision,BR25-03,Fund 99005/16/25 10.00 10.00 

PR25-00033 05/28/25 Manual Payroll (Contributions)05/28/25 7.51 2.49 

PR25-00035 05/30/25 Regular Payroll (Contributions)05/30/25 76.17 73.68-

Selection

Page 11 of 25

Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 79, Online/Offline = N, Fiscal Year = 2025, Start Date = 5/1/2025, End Date = 5/31/2025, Unposted JEs? = 

N, Assets and Liabilities? = N, Restricted? = Y, Obj Digits = 0, Page Break Lvl = )

079 - Tri-Valley Regional Occupational Program
Generated for Kristen Sims (KSIMS79), Jun  2 2025  9:00AM

31



Fiscal20a Account Transaction Detail-Activity Change

Fiscal Year 2024/25Activity for Dates 05/01/2025 to 05/31/2025

Journal # Description
Net Change

to Balance
ExpenditureEncumbered

Revised

Budget

Adopted

Budget

Trans 

Dt

Pay To

Name
Ref#

990-3322-6388-6000-3110-000-90-0-1105  Medicare Class,SWG5,ROCP (continued)

PR25-00037 Salary Encumbrance between 05/31/25 and 06/30/25 Payroll05/30/25 76.17 149.85-

Account Total .00 83.68 76.17 10.00 05/31/25

990-3322-6388-6000-4000-000-90-0-1105  Medicare Class,SWG5,ROCP

BR25-00049 Est Actuals Revision,BR25-03,Fund 99005/16/25 1.00 1.00 

PR25-00033 05/28/25 Manual Payroll (Contributions)05/28/25 .07 .93 

Account Total .00 .07 .00 1.00 05/31/25

990-3322-7339-6000-4000-501-90-0-7001  Medicare Class,MCEC 24-25

BR25-00050 Est Actuals Revision 05/16/25 22.00- 22.00-

990-3401-0000-6000-7100-000-90-0-0000  H&W Cert,Unrest.,ROCP

PR25-00035 05/30/25 Regular Payroll (Contributions)05/30/25 156.22 156.22-

PR25-00037 Salary Encumbrance between 05/31/25 and 06/30/25 Payroll05/30/25 156.22 312.44-

Account Total .00 156.22 156.22 .00 05/31/25

990-3401-6388-6000-1000-000-90-0-1106  H&W Cert,SWG6,ROCP

BR25-00049 Est Actuals Revision,BR25-03,Fund 99005/16/25 58.00- 58.00-

990-3401-7339-6000-1000-501-90-0-7001  H&W Cert,MCEC 24-25,ROCP

BR25-00050 Est Actuals Revision 05/16/25 1,396.00- 1,396.00-

990-3501-0000-6000-1000-000-90-0-0000  SUI Cert,Unrest.,ROCP

BR25-00049 Est Actuals Revision,BR25-03,Fund 99005/16/25 21.00 21.00 

PR25-00033 05/28/25 Manual Payroll (Contributions)05/28/25 20.36 .64 

PR25-00035 05/30/25 Regular Payroll (Contributions)05/30/25 71.31 70.67-

PR25-00037 Salary Encumbrance between 05/31/25 and 06/30/25 Payroll05/30/25 67.10 137.77-

Account Total .00 91.67 67.10 21.00 05/31/25

990-3501-0000-6000-2100-000-90-0-0000  SUI Cert,Unrest.,ROCP

BR25-00049 Est Actuals Revision,BR25-03,Fund 99005/16/25 3.00 3.00 

PR25-00033 05/28/25 Manual Payroll (Contributions)05/28/25 2.40 .60 

PR25-00035 05/30/25 Regular Payroll (Contributions)05/30/25 14.06 13.46-

PR25-00037 Salary Encumbrance between 05/31/25 and 06/30/25 Payroll05/30/25 14.06 27.52-

Account Total .00 16.46 14.06 3.00 05/31/25

990-3501-0000-6000-4000-501-90-0-9930  SUI Cert,Middle College,R

BR25-00049 Est Actuals Revision,BR25-03,Fund 99005/16/25 4.00 4.00 

PR25-00033 05/28/25 Manual Payroll (Contributions)05/28/25 4.06 .06-

PR25-00035 05/30/25 Regular Payroll (Contributions)05/30/25 13.72 13.78-

PR25-00037 Salary Encumbrance between 05/31/25 and 06/30/25 Payroll05/30/25 13.72 27.50-

Account Total .00 17.78 13.72 4.00 05/31/25

990-3501-0000-6000-7100-000-90-0-0000  SUI Cert,Unrest.,ROCP

BR25-00049 Est Actuals Revision,BR25-03,Fund 99005/16/25 1.00 1.00 

PR25-00033 05/28/25 Manual Payroll (Contributions)05/28/25 1.14 .14-

Selection

Page 12 of 25

Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 79, Online/Offline = N, Fiscal Year = 2025, Start Date = 5/1/2025, End Date = 5/31/2025, Unposted JEs? = 

N, Assets and Liabilities? = N, Restricted? = Y, Obj Digits = 0, Page Break Lvl = )

079 - Tri-Valley Regional Occupational Program
Generated for Kristen Sims (KSIMS79), Jun  2 2025  9:00AM

32



Fiscal20a Account Transaction Detail-Activity Change

Fiscal Year 2024/25Activity for Dates 05/01/2025 to 05/31/2025

Journal # Description
Net Change

to Balance
ExpenditureEncumbered

Revised

Budget

Adopted

Budget

Trans 

Dt

Pay To

Name
Ref#

990-3501-0000-6000-7100-000-90-0-0000  SUI Cert,Unrest.,ROCP (continued)

PR25-00035 05/30/25 Regular Payroll (Contributions)05/30/25 9.71 9.85-

PR25-00037 Salary Encumbrance between 05/31/25 and 06/30/25 Payroll05/30/25 9.71 19.56-

Account Total .00 10.85 9.71 1.00 05/31/25

990-3501-7339-6000-1000-501-90-0-7001  SUI Cert,MCEC 24-25,ROCP

BR25-00049 Est Actuals Revision,BR25-03,Fund 99005/16/25 5.00 5.00 

PR25-00033 05/28/25 Manual Payroll (Contributions)05/28/25 .45 4.55 

PR25-00035 05/30/25 Regular Payroll (Contributions)05/30/25 1.70 2.85 

PR25-00037 Salary Encumbrance between 05/31/25 and 06/30/25 Payroll05/30/25 1.70 1.15 

Account Total .00 2.15 1.70 5.00 05/31/25

990-3502-0000-6000-2700-000-90-0-0000  SUI Class,Unrest.,ROCP

BR25-00049 Est Actuals Revision,BR25-03,Fund 99005/16/25 2.00 2.00 

PR25-00033 05/28/25 Manual Payroll (Contributions)05/28/25 1.58 .42 

PR25-00035 05/30/25 Regular Payroll (Contributions)05/30/25 10.61 10.19-

PR25-00037 Salary Encumbrance between 05/31/25 and 06/30/25 Payroll05/30/25 10.61 20.80-

Account Total .00 12.19 10.61 2.00 05/31/25

990-3502-0000-6000-3110-101-90-0-2200  SUI Class,Career Center,R

BR25-00049 Est Actuals Revision,BR25-03,Fund 99005/16/25 1.00 1.00 

PR25-00033 05/28/25 Manual Payroll (Contributions)05/28/25 .44 .56 

PR25-00035 05/30/25 Regular Payroll (Contributions)05/30/25 2.63 2.07-

PR25-00037 Salary Encumbrance between 05/31/25 and 06/30/25 Payroll05/30/25 2.71 4.78-

Account Total .00 3.07 2.71 1.00 05/31/25

990-3502-0000-6000-3110-102-90-0-2200  SUI Class,Career Center,R

BR25-00049 Est Actuals Revision,BR25-03,Fund 99005/16/25 1.00- 1.00-

990-3502-0000-6000-3110-201-90-0-2200  SUI Class,Career Center,R

PR25-00033 05/28/25 Manual Payroll (Contributions)05/28/25 .45 .45-

PR25-00035 05/30/25 Regular Payroll (Contributions)05/30/25 2.98 3.43-

PR25-00037 Salary Encumbrance between 05/31/25 and 06/30/25 Payroll05/30/25 2.98 6.41-

Account Total .00 3.43 2.98 .00 05/31/25

990-3502-0000-6000-3110-202-90-0-2200  SUI Class,Career Center,R

BR25-00049 Est Actuals Revision,BR25-03,Fund 99005/16/25 1.00- 1.00-

PR25-00033 05/28/25 Manual Payroll (Contributions)05/28/25 .45 1.45-

PR25-00035 05/30/25 Regular Payroll (Contributions)05/30/25 2.96 4.41-

PR25-00037 Salary Encumbrance between 05/31/25 and 06/30/25 Payroll05/30/25 2.96 7.37-

Account Total .00 3.41 2.96 1.00-05/31/25

990-3502-0000-6000-3110-301-90-0-2200  SUI Class,Career Center,R

BR25-00049 Est Actuals Revision,BR25-03,Fund 99005/16/25 1.00- 1.00-

PR25-00033 05/28/25 Manual Payroll (Contributions)05/28/25 .34 1.34-

Selection

Page 13 of 25

Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 79, Online/Offline = N, Fiscal Year = 2025, Start Date = 5/1/2025, End Date = 5/31/2025, Unposted JEs? = 

N, Assets and Liabilities? = N, Restricted? = Y, Obj Digits = 0, Page Break Lvl = )

079 - Tri-Valley Regional Occupational Program
Generated for Kristen Sims (KSIMS79), Jun  2 2025  9:00AM

33



Fiscal20a Account Transaction Detail-Activity Change

Fiscal Year 2024/25Activity for Dates 05/01/2025 to 05/31/2025

Journal # Description
Net Change

to Balance
ExpenditureEncumbered

Revised

Budget

Adopted

Budget

Trans 

Dt

Pay To

Name
Ref#

990-3502-0000-6000-3110-301-90-0-2200  SUI Class,Career Center,R (continued)

PR25-00035 05/30/25 Regular Payroll (Contributions)05/30/25 1.43 2.77-

PR25-00037 Salary Encumbrance between 05/31/25 and 06/30/25 Payroll05/30/25 1.43 4.20-

Account Total .00 1.77 1.43 1.00-05/31/25

990-3502-0000-6000-3110-302-90-0-2200  SUI Class,Career Center,R

BR25-00049 Est Actuals Revision,BR25-03,Fund 99005/16/25 1.00- 1.00-

PR25-00033 05/28/25 Manual Payroll (Contributions)05/28/25 .22 1.22-

PR25-00035 05/30/25 Regular Payroll (Contributions)05/30/25 1.43 2.65-

PR25-00037 Salary Encumbrance between 05/31/25 and 06/30/25 Payroll05/30/25 1.43 4.08-

Account Total .00 1.65 1.43 1.00-05/31/25

990-3502-0000-6000-4000-501-90-0-9930  SUI Class,Middle College,

BR25-00049 Est Actuals Revision,BR25-03,Fund 99005/16/25 2.00- 2.00-

PR25-00035 05/30/25 Regular Payroll (Contributions)05/30/25 .52 2.52-

Account Total .00 .52 .00 2.00-05/31/25

990-3502-6388-6000-3110-000-90-0-1105  SUI Class,SWG5,ROCP

BR25-00049 Est Actuals Revision,BR25-03,Fund 99005/16/25 1.00 1.00 

PR25-00033 05/28/25 Manual Payroll (Contributions)05/28/25 .26 .74 

PR25-00035 05/30/25 Regular Payroll (Contributions)05/30/25 2.63 1.89-

PR25-00037 Salary Encumbrance between 05/31/25 and 06/30/25 Payroll05/30/25 2.63 4.52-

Account Total .00 2.89 2.63 1.00 05/31/25

990-3502-7339-6000-4000-501-90-0-7001  SUI Class,MCEC 24-25,ROCP

BR25-00050 Est Actuals Revision 05/16/25 1.00- 1.00-

990-3601-0000-6000-1000-000-90-0-0000  Wk Comp Cert,Unrest.,ROCP

BR25-00049 Est Actuals Revision,BR25-03,Fund 99005/16/25 1,044.00 1,044.00 

PR25-00033 05/28/25 Manual Payroll (Contributions)05/28/25 1,012.92 31.08 

PR25-00035 05/30/25 Regular Payroll (Contributions)05/30/25 3,562.85 3,531.77-

PR25-00037 Salary Encumbrance between 05/31/25 and 06/30/25 Payroll05/30/25 3,353.34 6,885.11-

Account Total .00 4,575.77 3,353.34 1,044.00 05/31/25

990-3601-0000-6000-2100-000-90-0-0000  Wk Comp Cert,Unrest.,ROCP

BR25-00049 Est Actuals Revision,BR25-03,Fund 99005/16/25 144.00 144.00 

PR25-00033 05/28/25 Manual Payroll (Contributions)05/28/25 119.44 24.56 

PR25-00035 05/30/25 Regular Payroll (Contributions)05/30/25 701.01 676.45-

PR25-00037 Salary Encumbrance between 05/31/25 and 06/30/25 Payroll05/30/25 701.01 1,377.46-

Account Total .00 820.45 701.01 144.00 05/31/25

990-3601-0000-6000-4000-501-90-0-9930  Wk Comp Cert,Middle Colle

BR25-00049 Est Actuals Revision,BR25-03,Fund 99005/16/25 225.00 225.00 

PR25-00033 05/28/25 Manual Payroll (Contributions)05/28/25 201.71 23.29 

PR25-00035 05/30/25 Regular Payroll (Contributions)05/30/25 689.28 665.99-

Selection

Page 14 of 25

Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 79, Online/Offline = N, Fiscal Year = 2025, Start Date = 5/1/2025, End Date = 5/31/2025, Unposted JEs? = 

N, Assets and Liabilities? = N, Restricted? = Y, Obj Digits = 0, Page Break Lvl = )

079 - Tri-Valley Regional Occupational Program
Generated for Kristen Sims (KSIMS79), Jun  2 2025  9:00AM

34



Fiscal20a Account Transaction Detail-Activity Change

Fiscal Year 2024/25Activity for Dates 05/01/2025 to 05/31/2025

Journal # Description
Net Change

to Balance
ExpenditureEncumbered

Revised

Budget

Adopted

Budget

Trans 

Dt

Pay To

Name
Ref#

990-3601-0000-6000-4000-501-90-0-9930  Wk Comp Cert,Middle Colle (continued)

PR25-00037 Salary Encumbrance between 05/31/25 and 06/30/25 Payroll05/30/25 689.28 1,355.27-

Account Total .00 890.99 689.28 225.00 05/31/25

990-3601-0000-6000-7100-000-90-0-0000  Wk Comp Cert,Unrest.,ROCP

BR25-00049 Est Actuals Revision,BR25-03,Fund 99005/16/25 68.00 68.00 

PR25-00033 05/28/25 Manual Payroll (Contributions)05/28/25 56.77 11.23 

PR25-00035 05/30/25 Regular Payroll (Contributions)05/30/25 486.88 475.65-

PR25-00037 Salary Encumbrance between 05/31/25 and 06/30/25 Payroll05/30/25 486.88 962.53-

Account Total .00 543.65 486.88 68.00 05/31/25

990-3601-6388-6000-1000-000-90-0-1106  Wk Comp Cert,SWG6,ROCP

BR25-00049 Est Actuals Revision,BR25-03,Fund 99005/16/25 57.00 57.00 

990-3601-7339-6000-1000-501-90-0-7001  Wk Comp Cert,MCEC 24-25,R

BR25-00049 Est Actuals Revision,BR25-03,Fund 99005/16/25 248.00 248.00 

PR25-00033 05/28/25 Manual Payroll (Contributions)05/28/25 22.50 225.50 

PR25-00035 05/30/25 Regular Payroll (Contributions)05/30/25 85.73 139.77 

PR25-00037 Salary Encumbrance between 05/31/25 and 06/30/25 Payroll05/30/25 85.73 54.04 

Account Total .00 108.23 85.73 248.00 05/31/25

990-3602-0000-6000-2700-000-90-0-0000  Wk Comp Class,Unrest.,ROC

BR25-00049 Est Actuals Revision,BR25-03,Fund 99005/16/25 95.00 95.00 

PR25-00033 05/28/25 Manual Payroll (Contributions)05/28/25 79.06 15.94 

PR25-00035 05/30/25 Regular Payroll (Contributions)05/30/25 528.43 512.49-

PR25-00037 Salary Encumbrance between 05/31/25 and 06/30/25 Payroll05/30/25 528.43 1,040.92-

Account Total .00 607.49 528.43 95.00 05/31/25

990-3602-0000-6000-3110-101-90-0-2200  Wk Comp Class,Career Cent

BR25-00049 Est Actuals Revision,BR25-03,Fund 99005/16/25 30.00 30.00 

PR25-00033 05/28/25 Manual Payroll (Contributions)05/28/25 21.63 8.37 

PR25-00035 05/30/25 Regular Payroll (Contributions)05/30/25 130.97 122.60-

PR25-00037 Salary Encumbrance between 05/31/25 and 06/30/25 Payroll05/30/25 134.72 257.32-

Account Total .00 152.60 134.72 30.00 05/31/25

990-3602-0000-6000-3110-102-90-0-2200  Wk Comp Class,Career Cent

BR25-00049 Est Actuals Revision,BR25-03,Fund 99005/16/25 48.00- 48.00-

PR25-00033 05/28/25 Manual Payroll (Contributions)05/28/25 .10 48.10-

Account Total .00 .10 .00 48.00-05/31/25

990-3602-0000-6000-3110-201-90-0-2200  Wk Comp Class,Career Cent

BR25-00049 Est Actuals Revision,BR25-03,Fund 99005/16/25 24.00- 24.00-

PR25-00033 05/28/25 Manual Payroll (Contributions)05/28/25 22.17 46.17-

PR25-00035 05/30/25 Regular Payroll (Contributions)05/30/25 148.58 194.75-

PR25-00037 Salary Encumbrance between 05/31/25 and 06/30/25 Payroll05/30/25 148.58 343.33-

Selection

Page 15 of 25

Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 79, Online/Offline = N, Fiscal Year = 2025, Start Date = 5/1/2025, End Date = 5/31/2025, Unposted JEs? = 

N, Assets and Liabilities? = N, Restricted? = Y, Obj Digits = 0, Page Break Lvl = )

079 - Tri-Valley Regional Occupational Program
Generated for Kristen Sims (KSIMS79), Jun  2 2025  9:00AM

35



Fiscal20a Account Transaction Detail-Activity Change

Fiscal Year 2024/25Activity for Dates 05/01/2025 to 05/31/2025

Journal # Description
Net Change

to Balance
ExpenditureEncumbered

Revised

Budget

Adopted

Budget

Trans 

Dt

Pay To

Name
Ref#

Account Total .00 170.75 148.58 24.00-05/31/25

990-3602-0000-6000-3110-202-90-0-2200  Wk Comp Class,Career Cent

BR25-00049 Est Actuals Revision,BR25-03,Fund 99005/16/25 16.00- 16.00-

PR25-00033 05/28/25 Manual Payroll (Contributions)05/28/25 22.24 38.24-

PR25-00035 05/30/25 Regular Payroll (Contributions)05/30/25 147.33 185.57-

PR25-00037 Salary Encumbrance between 05/31/25 and 06/30/25 Payroll05/30/25 147.33 332.90-

Account Total .00 169.57 147.33 16.00-05/31/25

990-3602-0000-6000-3110-301-90-0-2200  Wk Comp Class,Career Cent

BR25-00049 Est Actuals Revision,BR25-03,Fund 99005/16/25 41.00- 41.00-

PR25-00033 05/28/25 Manual Payroll (Contributions)05/28/25 17.16 58.16-

PR25-00035 05/30/25 Regular Payroll (Contributions)05/30/25 71.11 129.27-

PR25-00037 Salary Encumbrance between 05/31/25 and 06/30/25 Payroll05/30/25 71.11 200.38-

Account Total .00 88.27 71.11 41.00-05/31/25

990-3602-0000-6000-3110-302-90-0-2200  Wk Comp Class,Career Cent

BR25-00049 Est Actuals Revision,BR25-03,Fund 99005/16/25 29.00- 29.00-

PR25-00033 05/28/25 Manual Payroll (Contributions)05/28/25 10.87 39.87-

PR25-00035 05/30/25 Regular Payroll (Contributions)05/30/25 71.11 110.98-

PR25-00037 Salary Encumbrance between 05/31/25 and 06/30/25 Payroll05/30/25 71.11 182.09-

Account Total .00 81.98 71.11 29.00-05/31/25

990-3602-0000-6000-4000-501-90-0-9930  Wk Comp Class,Middle Coll

BR25-00049 Est Actuals Revision,BR25-03,Fund 99005/16/25 121.00- 121.00-

PR25-00033 05/28/25 Manual Payroll (Contributions)05/28/25 .03- 120.97-

PR25-00035 05/30/25 Regular Payroll (Contributions)05/30/25 25.88 146.85-

Account Total .00 25.85 .00 121.00-05/31/25

990-3602-6388-6000-3110-000-90-0-1105  Wk Comp Class,SWG5,ROCP

BR25-00049 Est Actuals Revision,BR25-03,Fund 99005/16/25 17.00 17.00 

PR25-00033 05/28/25 Manual Payroll (Contributions)05/28/25 12.94 4.06 

PR25-00035 05/30/25 Regular Payroll (Contributions)05/30/25 130.80 126.74-

PR25-00037 Salary Encumbrance between 05/31/25 and 06/30/25 Payroll05/30/25 130.80 257.54-

Account Total .00 143.74 130.80 17.00 05/31/25

990-3602-6388-6000-4000-000-90-0-1105  Wk Comp Class,SWG5,ROCP

BR25-00049 Est Actuals Revision,BR25-03,Fund 99005/16/25 1.00 1.00 

PR25-00033 05/28/25 Manual Payroll (Contributions)05/28/25 .13 .87 

Account Total .00 .13 .00 1.00 05/31/25

990-3602-7339-6000-4000-501-90-0-7001  Wk Comp Class,MCEC 24-25,

BR25-00050 Est Actuals Revision 05/16/25 38.00- 38.00-

990-4300-0000-6000-1000-201-90-0-9410  Mat & Supp,Dev Psych I&II

ODP Business Solutions EN25-00549 LHS & GHS DPOC - Classroom Supplies05/06/25 242.87- 242.87 T25-00118

Selection

Page 16 of 25

Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 79, Online/Offline = N, Fiscal Year = 2025, Start Date = 5/1/2025, End Date = 5/31/2025, Unposted JEs? = 

N, Assets and Liabilities? = N, Restricted? = Y, Obj Digits = 0, Page Break Lvl = )

079 - Tri-Valley Regional Occupational Program
Generated for Kristen Sims (KSIMS79), Jun  2 2025  9:00AM

36



Fiscal20a Account Transaction Detail-Activity Change

Fiscal Year 2024/25Activity for Dates 05/01/2025 to 05/31/2025

Journal # Description
Net Change

to Balance
ExpenditureEncumbered

Revised

Budget

Adopted

Budget

Trans 

Dt

Pay To

Name
Ref#

990-4300-0000-6000-1000-201-90-0-9410  Mat & Supp,Dev Psych I&II (continued)

ODP Business Solutions EX25-00642 LHS & GHS DPOC - Classroom Supplies05/06/25 7.43 235.44 T25-00118

ODP Business Solutions EX25-00643 LHS & GHS DPOC - Classroom Supplies05/06/25 64.90 170.54 T25-00118

ODP Business Solutions EX25-00644 LHS & GHS DPOC - Classroom Supplies05/06/25 123.10 47.44 T25-00118

ODP Business Solutions EX25-00645 LHS & GHS DPOC - Classroom Supplies05/06/25 47.44 T25-00118

Account Total .00 242.87 242.87-.00 05/31/25

990-4300-0000-6000-1000-202-90-0-1518  Mat & Supp,Auto Specialis

Livermore Auto Parts, Inc.EN25-00563 LHS Auto Tech Parts & Mat. 05/20/25 47.59- 47.59 T25-00088

Livermore Auto Parts, Inc.EX25-00664 LHS Auto Tech Parts & Mat. 05/20/25 78.71 31.12-T25-00088

Livermore Auto Parts, Inc.EX25-00665 LHS Auto Tech Parts & Mat. 05/20/25 4.37 35.49-T25-00088

Livermore Auto Parts, Inc.EX25-00666 LHS Auto Tech Parts & Mat. 05/20/25 15.01- 20.48-T25-00088

Account Total .00 68.07 47.59-.00 05/31/25

990-4300-0000-6000-1000-202-90-0-9410  Mat & Supp,Dev Psych I&II

ODP Business Solutions EN25-00549 LHS & GHS DPOC - Classroom Supplies05/06/25 242.88- 242.88 T25-00118

ODP Business Solutions EX25-00642 LHS & GHS DPOC - Classroom Supplies05/06/25 7.43 235.45 T25-00118

ODP Business Solutions EX25-00643 LHS & GHS DPOC - Classroom Supplies05/06/25 64.90 170.55 T25-00118

ODP Business Solutions EX25-00644 LHS & GHS DPOC - Classroom Supplies05/06/25 123.10 47.45 T25-00118

ODP Business Solutions EX25-00645 LHS & GHS DPOC - Classroom Supplies05/06/25 47.45 T25-00118

Account Total .00 242.88 242.88-.00 05/31/25

990-4300-0000-6000-1000-302-90-0-9910  Mat & Supp,EMR,ROCP

US Bank EX25-00682 US BANKY MAY 2025 05/20/25 109.70 109.70-

990-4300-0000-6000-2700-000-90-0-0000  Mat & Supp,Unrest.,ROCP

ODP Business Solutions EN25-00546 TVROP District Office office supplies 05/06/25 91.40- 91.40 T25-00021

ODP Business Solutions EX25-00638 TVROP District Office office supplies 05/06/25 31.41 59.99 T25-00021

ODP Business Solutions EX25-00639 TVROP District Office office supplies 05/06/25 59.99 T25-00021

ODP Business Solutions EN25-00568 TVROP District Office office supplies 05/20/25 196.00- 196.00 T25-00021

ODP Business Solutions EX25-00672 TVROP District Office office supplies 05/20/25 28.98 167.02 T25-00021

ODP Business Solutions EX25-00673 TVROP District Office office supplies 05/20/25 27.32 139.70 T25-00021

ODP Business Solutions EX25-00674 TVROP District Office office supplies 05/20/25 139.70 T25-00021

US Bank EX25-00682 US BANKY MAY 2025 05/20/25 149.25 149.25-

Silkworm, Inc EN25-00581 Marketing/24-25 InService tshrits 05/21/25 525.56 674.81-T25-00135

Silkworm, Inc EN25-00584 Marketing/24-25 InService tshrits 05/22/25 525.56- 149.25-T25-00135

Silkworm, Inc EX25-00692 Marketing/24-25 InService tshrits 05/22/25 525.56 674.81-T25-00135

Account Total .00 962.21 287.40-.00 05/31/25

990-4300-0000-6000-4000-501-90-0-9930  Mat & Supp,Middle College

ODP Business Solutions EN25-00547 MC office supplies for SY 24/25 05/06/25 62.54- 62.54 T25-00010

ODP Business Solutions EX25-00640 MC office supplies for SY 24/25 05/06/25 62.54 T25-00010

ODP Business Solutions EN25-00567 MC office supplies for SY 24/25 05/20/25 90.09- 90.09 T25-00010

Selection

Page 17 of 25

Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 79, Online/Offline = N, Fiscal Year = 2025, Start Date = 5/1/2025, End Date = 5/31/2025, Unposted JEs? = 

N, Assets and Liabilities? = N, Restricted? = Y, Obj Digits = 0, Page Break Lvl = )

079 - Tri-Valley Regional Occupational Program
Generated for Kristen Sims (KSIMS79), Jun  2 2025  9:00AM

37



Fiscal20a Account Transaction Detail-Activity Change

Fiscal Year 2024/25Activity for Dates 05/01/2025 to 05/31/2025

Journal # Description
Net Change

to Balance
ExpenditureEncumbered

Revised

Budget

Adopted

Budget

Trans 

Dt

Pay To

Name
Ref#

990-4300-0000-6000-4000-501-90-0-9930  Mat & Supp,Middle College (continued)

ODP Business Solutions EX25-00671 MC office supplies for SY 24/25 05/20/25 90.09 T25-00010

US Bank EX25-00682 US BANKY MAY 2025 05/20/25 710.67 710.67-

Account Total .00 863.30 152.63-.00 05/31/25

990-4300-5610-3800-4000-000-90-0-0000  Mat & Supp,Unrest.,Voc. E

BR25-00047 Purchase from Graduation Outlet 05/09/25 149.00 149.00 

US Bank EX25-00682 US BANKY MAY 2025 05/20/25 148.70 .30 

Account Total .00 148.70 .00 149.00 05/31/25

990-4300-7339-6000-1000-501-90-0-7001  Mat & Supp,MCEC 24-25,ROC

ODP Business Solutions EN25-00548 MCEC-TVROP Grant/Brown Materials & Supplies05/06/25 71.43 71.43-T25-00093

ODP Business Solutions EX25-00641 MCEC-TVROP Grant/Brown Materials & Supplies05/06/25 71.43-T25-00093

BR25-00049 Est Actuals Revision,BR25-03,Fund 99005/16/25 9,329.00- 9,329.00-

Account Total .00 71.43-71.43 9,329.00-05/31/25

990-4300-7339-6000-1000-510-90-0-7050  Mat & Supp,CC Access Path

BR25-00049 Est Actuals Revision,BR25-03,Fund 99005/16/25 6,500.00- 6,500.00-

990-4300-7339-6000-1000-511-90-0-7050  Mat & Supp,CC Access Path

BR25-00049 Est Actuals Revision,BR25-03,Fund 99005/16/25 6,500.00- 6,500.00-

990-4300-7339-6000-1000-512-90-0-7050  Mat & Supp,CC Access Path

BR25-00049 Est Actuals Revision,BR25-03,Fund 99005/16/25 6,500.00- 6,500.00-

990-4300-9010-6000-1000-000-90-0-0000  Mat & Supp,Unrest.,ROCP

BR25-00049 Est Actuals Revision,BR25-03,Fund 99005/16/25 74,055.00- 74,055.00-

US Bank EX25-00682 US BANKY MAY 2025 05/20/25 330.60 74,385.60-

Account Total .00 330.60 .00 74,055.00-05/31/25

990-4300-9010-6000-1000-501-90-0-9930  Mat & Supp,Middle College

Silkworm, Inc EN25-00573 Middle College apparel 05/20/25 973.92- 973.92 T25-00066

Silkworm, Inc EX25-00679 Middle College apparel 05/20/25 973.92 T25-00066

Account Total .00 973.92 973.92-.00 05/31/25

990-5200-0000-6000-1000-000-90-0-0000  Travel & Conf,Unrest.,ROC

RAAKER, TAMI EX25-00652 APRIL 2025 ICDC RTAA 05/20/25 229.15 229.15-

UDOUTCH, BAILEY EX25-00654 APRIL 2025 CONFERENCE BU 46 05/20/25 309.83 538.98-

US Bank EX25-00682 US BANKY MAY 2025 05/20/25 4,810.34 5,349.32-

Account Total .00 5,349.32 .00 .00 05/31/25

990-5210-0000-6000-1000-101-90-0-1410  Mileage,Criminal Justic,R

HUTSON, AUSTIN L EX25-00621 APRIL 2025 M AH 45 05/06/25 46.10 46.10-

990-5210-0000-6000-1000-201-90-0-9915  Mileage,Med Occupations,R

CABRERA, KATHY EX25-00653 APRIL 2025 M KC 31 05/20/25 37.80 37.80-

KOELLING, AMARISSA EX25-00656 MARCH 2025 M AK 170 05/20/25 70.00 107.80-

KOELLING, AMARISSA EX25-00657 APRIL 2025 M AK 70 05/20/25 38.29 146.09-

Selection

Page 18 of 25

Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 79, Online/Offline = N, Fiscal Year = 2025, Start Date = 5/1/2025, End Date = 5/31/2025, Unposted JEs? = 

N, Assets and Liabilities? = N, Restricted? = Y, Obj Digits = 0, Page Break Lvl = )

079 - Tri-Valley Regional Occupational Program
Generated for Kristen Sims (KSIMS79), Jun  2 2025  9:00AM

38



Fiscal20a Account Transaction Detail-Activity Change

Fiscal Year 2024/25Activity for Dates 05/01/2025 to 05/31/2025

Journal # Description
Net Change

to Balance
ExpenditureEncumbered

Revised

Budget

Adopted

Budget

Trans 

Dt

Pay To

Name
Ref#

Account Total .00 146.09 .00 .00 05/31/25

990-5210-0000-6000-1000-301-90-0-1411  Mileage,CSI,ROCP

HUTSON, AUSTIN L EX25-00621 APRIL 2025 M AH 45 05/06/25 46.09 46.09-

990-5210-0000-6000-1000-302-90-0-9915  Mileage,Med Occupations,R

MACHADO, ALYSA L EX25-00655 APRIL 2025 M AO 59 05/20/25 53.27 53.27-

990-5210-0000-6000-3110-302-90-0-2200  Mileage,Career Center,ROC

DELGADO, ANABEL EX25-00622 OCT 2024 M AD 54 05/06/25 2.88 2.88-

DELGADO, ANABEL EX25-00623 DEC 2024 M AD 54 05/06/25 1.74 4.62-

DELGADO, ANABEL EX25-00624 NOV 2024 M AD 54 05/06/25 7.10 11.72-

DELGADO, ANABEL EX25-00625 SEPT 2024 M AD 54 05/06/25 3.42 15.14-

DELGADO, ANABEL EX25-00626 FEB 2025 M AD 54 05/06/25 8.89 24.03-

Account Total .00 24.03 .00 .00 05/31/25

990-5210-0000-6000-4000-501-90-0-9930  Mileage,Middle College,RO

Fairchild, Tara D EX25-00627 APRIL 2025 M TF 63 05/06/25 25.83 25.83-

990-5210-7339-6000-1000-501-90-0-7001  Mileage,MCEC 24-25,ROCP

BR25-00049 Est Actuals Revision,BR25-03,Fund 99005/16/25 10.00 10.00 

990-5610-0000-6000-2700-000-90-0-0000  Equip Maint,Unrest.,ROCP

Caltronics Business SystemsEN25-00540 Caltronics copier lease 24-25 SY 05/06/25 497.56- 497.56 T25-00004

Caltronics Business SystemsEX25-00632 Caltronics copier lease 24-25 SY 05/06/25 497.56 T25-00004

Account Total .00 497.56 497.56-.00 05/31/25

990-5818-0000-6000-2700-000-90-0-0000  Fees & Assess,Unrest.,ROC

Bay Area Air Quality Management DistrictEN25-00537 R Barnard LHS Annual Permit Renewal SY 25/2605/06/25 1,212.00- 1,212.00 T25-00130

Bay Area Air Quality Management DistrictEX25-00629 R Barnard LHS Annual Permit Renewal SY 25/2605/06/25 1,212.00 T25-00130

Account Total .00 1,212.00 1,212.00-.00 05/31/25

990-5825-5610-3800-4000-000-90-0-0000  Consultants,Unrest.,Voc.

BR25-00047 Purchase from Graduation Outlet 05/09/25 149.00- 149.00-

Glushenko, Joelle EN25-00562 J Glushenko 24-25 TVROP Project Coordinator05/20/25 5,312.50- 5,163.50 T25-00045

Glushenko, Joelle EX25-00662 J Glushenko 24-25 TVROP Project Coordinator05/20/25 2,507.50 2,656.00 T25-00045

Glushenko, Joelle EX25-00663 J Glushenko 24-25 TVROP Project Coordinator05/20/25 2,805.00 149.00-T25-00045

GJ25-00025 Transfer partial expense from Strong Workforce 5 to WIOA05/28/25 1,875.00 2,024.00-

GJ25-00025 Transfer partial expense from Strong Workforce 5 to WIOA05/28/25 2,000.00 4,024.00-

GJ25-00025 Transfer partial expense from Strong Workforce 5 to WIOA05/28/25 2,500.00 6,524.00-

GJ25-00025 Transfer partial expense from Strong Workforce 5 to WIOA05/28/25 1,875.00 8,399.00-

GJ25-00025 Transfer partial expense from Strong Workforce 5 to WIOA05/28/25 1,000.00 9,399.00-

GJ25-00025 Transfer partial expense from Strong Workforce 5 to WIOA05/28/25 5,614.85 15,013.85-

GJ25-00025 Transfer partial expense from Strong Workforce 5 to WIOA05/28/25 23.25 15,037.10-

GJ25-00025 Transfer partial expense from Strong Workforce 5 to WIOA05/28/25 1,875.00 16,912.10-

GJ25-00025 Transfer partial expense from Strong Workforce 5 to WIOA05/28/25 1,625.00 18,537.10-

Selection

Page 19 of 25

Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 79, Online/Offline = N, Fiscal Year = 2025, Start Date = 5/1/2025, End Date = 5/31/2025, Unposted JEs? = 

N, Assets and Liabilities? = N, Restricted? = Y, Obj Digits = 0, Page Break Lvl = )

079 - Tri-Valley Regional Occupational Program
Generated for Kristen Sims (KSIMS79), Jun  2 2025  9:00AM

39



Fiscal20a Account Transaction Detail-Activity Change

Fiscal Year 2024/25Activity for Dates 05/01/2025 to 05/31/2025

Journal # Description
Net Change

to Balance
ExpenditureEncumbered

Revised

Budget

Adopted

Budget

Trans 

Dt

Pay To

Name
Ref#

990-5825-5610-3800-4000-000-90-0-0000  Consultants,Unrest.,Voc. (continued)

GJ25-00026 Transfer partial expenses from Strong Workforce 5 to WIOA05/28/25 1,875.00 20,412.10-

GJ25-00026 Transfer partial expenses from Strong Workforce 5 to WIOA05/28/25 2,000.00 22,412.10-

GJ25-00026 Transfer partial expenses from Strong Workforce 5 to WIOA05/28/25 2,500.00 24,912.10-

GJ25-00026 Transfer partial expenses from Strong Workforce 5 to WIOA05/28/25 4,356.25 29,268.35-

GJ25-00026 Transfer partial expenses from Strong Workforce 5 to WIOA05/28/25 1,875.00 31,143.35-

GJ25-00026 Transfer partial expenses from Strong Workforce 5 to WIOA05/28/25 6,638.10 37,781.45-

GJ25-00026 Transfer partial expenses from Strong Workforce 5 to WIOA05/28/25 1,875.00 39,656.45-

GJ25-00026 Transfer partial expenses from Strong Workforce 5 to WIOA05/28/25 1,625.00 41,281.45-

Glushenko, Joelle EN25-00585 J Glushenko 24-25 TVROP Project Coordinator05/30/25 9,690.00- 31,591.45-T25-00045

Account Total .00 46,444.95 15,002.50-149.00-05/31/25

990-5825-6388-6000-1000-000-90-0-1105  Consultants,SWG5,ROCP

Schlick, Madison EN25-00545 SWG5 M SchlickTech Coordinator 24-25 SY05/06/25 3,382.52- 3,382.52 T25-00019

Zoe T. Zannis EN25-00555 SWG5 Z. Zannis Student Success Specialist SY 24-2505/06/25 3,102.50- 6,485.02 T25-00041

Schlick, Madison EX25-00637 SWG5 M SchlickTech Coordinator 24-25 SY05/06/25 4,308.32 2,176.70 T25-00019

Zoe T. Zannis EX25-00651 SWG5 Z. Zannis Student Success Specialist SY 24-2505/06/25 3,102.50 925.80-T25-00041

Suter, Meredith EN25-00566 SWG5 M Suter HS Pathway Liaison 07/01/24-6/30/2505/20/25 5,482.50- 4,556.70 T25-00042

Zoe T. Zannis EN25-00579 SWG5 Z. Zannis Student Success Specialist SY 24-2505/20/25 3,570.00- 8,126.70 T25-00041

Schlick, Madison EX25-00668 SWG5 M SchlickTech Coordinator 24-25 SY05/20/25 4,250.00 3,876.70 T25-00019

Suter, Meredith EX25-00670 SWG5 M Suter HS Pathway Liaison 07/01/24-6/30/2505/20/25 5,482.50 1,605.80-T25-00042

Zoe T. Zannis EX25-00686 SWG5 Z. Zannis Student Success Specialist SY 24-2505/20/25 3,570.00 5,175.80-T25-00041

GJ25-00025 Transfer partial expense from Strong Workforce 5 to WIOA05/28/25 1,875.00- 3,300.80-

GJ25-00025 Transfer partial expense from Strong Workforce 5 to WIOA05/28/25 2,000.00- 1,300.80-

GJ25-00025 Transfer partial expense from Strong Workforce 5 to WIOA05/28/25 2,500.00- 1,199.20 

GJ25-00025 Transfer partial expense from Strong Workforce 5 to WIOA05/28/25 1,875.00- 3,074.20 

GJ25-00025 Transfer partial expense from Strong Workforce 5 to WIOA05/28/25 1,000.00- 4,074.20 

GJ25-00025 Transfer partial expense from Strong Workforce 5 to WIOA05/28/25 5,614.85- 9,689.05 

GJ25-00025 Transfer partial expense from Strong Workforce 5 to WIOA05/28/25 23.25- 9,712.30 

GJ25-00025 Transfer partial expense from Strong Workforce 5 to WIOA05/28/25 1,875.00- 11,587.30 

GJ25-00025 Transfer partial expense from Strong Workforce 5 to WIOA05/28/25 1,625.00- 13,212.30 

GJ25-00026 Transfer partial expenses from Strong Workforce 5 to WIOA05/28/25 1,875.00- 15,087.30 

GJ25-00026 Transfer partial expenses from Strong Workforce 5 to WIOA05/28/25 2,000.00- 17,087.30 

GJ25-00026 Transfer partial expenses from Strong Workforce 5 to WIOA05/28/25 2,500.00- 19,587.30 

GJ25-00026 Transfer partial expenses from Strong Workforce 5 to WIOA05/28/25 4,356.25- 23,943.55 

GJ25-00026 Transfer partial expenses from Strong Workforce 5 to WIOA05/28/25 1,875.00- 25,818.55 

GJ25-00026 Transfer partial expenses from Strong Workforce 5 to WIOA05/28/25 6,638.10- 32,456.65 

GJ25-00026 Transfer partial expenses from Strong Workforce 5 to WIOA05/28/25 1,875.00- 34,331.65 

GJ25-00026 Transfer partial expenses from Strong Workforce 5 to WIOA05/28/25 1,625.00- 35,956.65 

Selection

Page 20 of 25

Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 79, Online/Offline = N, Fiscal Year = 2025, Start Date = 5/1/2025, End Date = 5/31/2025, Unposted JEs? = 

N, Assets and Liabilities? = N, Restricted? = Y, Obj Digits = 0, Page Break Lvl = )

079 - Tri-Valley Regional Occupational Program
Generated for Kristen Sims (KSIMS79), Jun  2 2025  9:00AM

40



Fiscal20a Account Transaction Detail-Activity Change

Fiscal Year 2024/25Activity for Dates 05/01/2025 to 05/31/2025

Journal # Description
Net Change

to Balance
ExpenditureEncumbered

Revised

Budget

Adopted

Budget

Trans 

Dt

Pay To

Name
Ref#

Account Total .00 20,419.13-15,537.52-.00 05/31/25

990-5825-6388-6000-2100-000-90-0-1199  Consultants,SWG C,ROCP

Williams, Terresa EN25-00574 SW Pathway Coordinator SY 24-25 05/20/25 13,720.40- 13,720.40 T25-00024

Williams, Terresa EX25-00680 SW Pathway Coordinator SY 24-25 05/20/25 13,720.40 T25-00024

Account Total .00 13,720.40 13,720.40-.00 05/31/25

990-5825-7339-6000-1000-000-90-0-0000  Consultants,Unrest.,ROCP

Zoe T. Zannis EN25-00554 MCEC Dual Enrollment Z. Zannis 7/1/2024 - 6/30/2505/06/25 3,272.50- 3,272.50 T25-00040

Zoe T. Zannis EX25-00650 MCEC Dual Enrollment Z. Zannis 7/1/2024 - 6/30/2505/06/25 3,272.50 T25-00040

BR25-00049 Est Actuals Revision,BR25-03,Fund 99005/16/25 126,759.00- 126,759.00-

Zoe T. Zannis EN25-00578 MCEC Dual Enrollment Z. Zannis 7/1/2024 - 6/30/2505/20/25 2,826.25- 123,932.75-T25-00040

Zoe T. Zannis EX25-00685 MCEC Dual Enrollment Z. Zannis 7/1/2024 - 6/30/2505/20/25 2,826.25 126,759.00-T25-00040

Account Total .00 6,098.75 6,098.75-126,759.00-05/31/25

990-5830-0000-6000-1000-000-90-0-0000  Contr.Services,Unrest.,RO

Dublin Unified School DistrictEN25-00542 DUSD Sub billing 2024-2025 SY 05/06/25 547.65- 547.65 T25-00129

Livermore Sanitation Inc EN25-00544 R Barnard 24-25 LHS Solid Waste Weekly05/06/25 261.40- 809.05 T25-00002

Pleasanton Unified School DistEN25-00551 PUSD Sub billing 2024-2025 SY 05/06/25 4,166.27- 4,975.32 T25-00116

Dublin Unified School DistrictEX25-00634 DUSD Sub billing 2024-2025 SY 05/06/25 547.65 4,427.67 T25-00129

Livermore Sanitation Inc EX25-00636 R Barnard 24-25 LHS Solid Waste Weekly05/06/25 261.40 4,166.27 T25-00002

Pleasanton Unified School DistEX25-00647 PUSD Sub billing 2024-2025 SY 05/06/25 4,166.27 T25-00116

Account Total .00 4,975.32 4,975.32-.00 05/31/25

990-5830-0000-6000-1000-202-90-0-1518  Contr.Services,Auto Speci

Aramark Uniform ServicesEN25-00577 LHS Auto Shop SY 2024-25 towel service05/20/25 56.69- 56.69 T25-00006

Aramark Uniform ServicesEX25-00684 LHS Auto Shop SY 2024-25 towel service05/20/25 56.69 T25-00006

Account Total .00 56.69 56.69-.00 05/31/25

990-5830-0000-6000-1000-501-90-0-9930  Contr.Services,Middle Col

Pleasanton Unified School DistEN25-00570 24-25 SY A. Brown LPC MC Coordinator MOU05/20/25 18,951.25- 18,951.25 T25-00068

Pleasanton Unified School DistEX25-00676 24-25 SY A. Brown LPC MC Coordinator MOU05/20/25 18,951.25 T25-00068

Account Total .00 18,951.25 18,951.25-.00 05/31/25

990-5830-0000-6000-2700-000-90-0-0000  Contr.Services,Unrest.,RO

Comcast EN25-00541 TVROP DO internet, & cable services 24-25 SY05/06/25 413.45- 413.45 T25-00003

QES Computers Inc EN25-00552 Tech Labor:  Install Windows 05/06/25 240.00- 653.45 T25-00128

Comcast EX25-00633 TVROP DO internet, & cable services 24-25 SY05/06/25 413.45 240.00 T25-00003

QES Computers Inc EX25-00648 Tech Labor:  Install Windows 05/06/25 240.00 T25-00128

Caltronics Business SystemsEN25-00559 24-25 Caltronics usage-Maint agreement05/20/25 241.20- 241.20 T25-00005

Del Valle High School EN25-00560 24/25 Catering for TEC Meetings 05/20/25 724.50- 965.70 T25-00069

ReadyRefresh by Nestle EN25-00580 TVROP DO water services & rental fee05/20/25 400.00 565.70 T25-00134

Amazon Web Services, Inc.EX25-00658 AWS data storage 2024-25 SY 05/20/25 69.46 496.24 T25-00007

Caltronics Business SystemsEX25-00659 24-25 Caltronics usage-Maint agreement05/20/25 241.20 255.04 T25-00005

Selection

Page 21 of 25

Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 79, Online/Offline = N, Fiscal Year = 2025, Start Date = 5/1/2025, End Date = 5/31/2025, Unposted JEs? = 

N, Assets and Liabilities? = N, Restricted? = Y, Obj Digits = 0, Page Break Lvl = )

079 - Tri-Valley Regional Occupational Program
Generated for Kristen Sims (KSIMS79), Jun  2 2025  9:00AM

41



Fiscal20a Account Transaction Detail-Activity Change

Fiscal Year 2024/25Activity for Dates 05/01/2025 to 05/31/2025

Journal # Description
Net Change

to Balance
ExpenditureEncumbered

Revised

Budget

Adopted

Budget

Trans 

Dt

Pay To

Name
Ref#

990-5830-0000-6000-2700-000-90-0-0000  Contr.Services,Unrest.,RO (continued)

Del Valle High School EX25-00660 24/25 Catering for TEC Meetings 05/20/25 724.50 469.46-T25-00069

ReadyRefresh by Nestle EN25-00583 TVROP DO water services & rental fee05/22/25 102.02- 367.44-T25-00016

ReadyRefresh by Nestle EX25-00690 TVROP DO water services & rental fee05/22/25 151.97 519.41-T25-00016

ReadyRefresh by Nestle EX25-00691 TVROP DO water services & rental fee05/22/25 94.04 613.45-T25-00016

Account Total .00 1,934.62 1,321.17-.00 05/31/25

990-5830-0000-6000-4000-501-90-0-9930  Contr.Services,Middle Col

FN CO FOOD SERVICE EN25-00543 SY 2024-2025 Student Lunches 05/06/25 9,096.78- 9,096.78 T25-00039

FN CO FOOD SERVICE EX25-00635 SY 2024-2025 Student Lunches 05/06/25 9,096.78 T25-00039

FN CO FOOD SERVICE EN25-00561 SY 2024-2025 Student Lunches 05/20/25 8,896.62- 8,896.62 T25-00039

FN CO FOOD SERVICE EX25-00661 SY 2024-2025 Student Lunches 05/20/25 8,896.62 T25-00039

Account Total .00 17,993.40 17,993.40-.00 05/31/25

990-5830-6388-6000-1000-000-90-0-1105  Contr.Services,SWG5,ROCP

BR25-00049 Est Actuals Revision,BR25-03,Fund 99005/16/25 1,014.00- 1,014.00-

Pleasanton Unified School DistEN25-00572 StrongWorkforce Grant 5 (Year 1 and Year 2)05/20/25 51,584.00- 50,570.00 T25-00125

Pleasanton Unified School DistEX25-00678 StrongWorkforce Grant 5 (Year 1 and Year 2)05/20/25 51,584.00 1,014.00-T25-00125

Account Total .00 51,584.00 51,584.00-1,014.00-05/31/25

990-5830-6388-6000-1000-000-90-0-1106  Contr.Services,SWG6,ROCP

Pleasanton Unified School DistEN25-00571 SWG6, Jan-June 2024 Yr1 & 2024-2025 Yr205/20/25 36,238.00- 36,238.00 T25-00121

Pleasanton Unified School DistEX25-00677 SWG6, Jan-June 2024 Yr1 & 2024-2025 Yr205/20/25 36,238.00 T25-00121

Account Total .00 36,238.00 36,238.00-.00 05/31/25

990-5830-7339-6000-1000-501-90-0-7001  Contr.Services,MCEC 24-25

Pleasanton Unified School DistEN25-00550 MCEC/TVROP grant Sub billing 2024-2025 SY05/06/25 687.95- 687.95 T25-00107

Pleasanton Unified School DistEX25-00646 MCEC/TVROP grant Sub billing 2024-2025 SY05/06/25 687.95 T25-00107

BR25-00049 Est Actuals Revision,BR25-03,Fund 99005/16/25 5,180.00- 5,180.00-

Account Total .00 687.95 687.95-5,180.00-05/31/25

990-5830-7339-6000-1000-510-90-0-7050  Contr.Services,CC Access

BR25-00049 Est Actuals Revision,BR25-03,Fund 99005/16/25 26,350.00- 26,350.00-

990-5830-7339-6000-1000-511-90-0-7050  Contr.Services,CC Access

BR25-00049 Est Actuals Revision,BR25-03,Fund 99005/16/25 26,350.00- 26,350.00-

990-5830-7339-6000-1000-512-90-0-7050  Contr.Services,CC Access

BR25-00049 Est Actuals Revision,BR25-03,Fund 99005/16/25 26,350.00- 26,350.00-

990-5845-0000-6000-2700-000-90-0-0000  Legal,Unrest.,ROCP

Atkinson Andelson Loya Ruud & RomoEN25-00536 TVROP legal services 24-25 SY 05/06/25 981.75- 981.75 T25-00049

Atkinson Andelson Loya Ruud & RomoEX25-00628 TVROP legal services 24-25 SY 05/06/25 981.75 T25-00049

Account Total .00 981.75 981.75-.00 05/31/25

990-5846-0000-6000-2700-000-90-0-0000  Licensing,Unrest.,ROCP

US Bank EX25-00682 US BANKY MAY 2025 05/20/25 93.10 93.10-

Selection

Page 22 of 25

Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 79, Online/Offline = N, Fiscal Year = 2025, Start Date = 5/1/2025, End Date = 5/31/2025, Unposted JEs? = 

N, Assets and Liabilities? = N, Restricted? = Y, Obj Digits = 0, Page Break Lvl = )

079 - Tri-Valley Regional Occupational Program
Generated for Kristen Sims (KSIMS79), Jun  2 2025  9:00AM

42



Fiscal20a Account Transaction Detail-Activity Change

Fiscal Year 2024/25Activity for Dates 05/01/2025 to 05/31/2025

Journal # Description
Net Change

to Balance
ExpenditureEncumbered

Revised

Budget

Adopted

Budget

Trans 

Dt

Pay To

Name
Ref#

990-5880-0000-6000-2700-000-90-0-0000  Transportation,Unrest.,RO

Black Tie Transportation EN25-00538 Transportation-GetSet Field Trip on 3/25/2505/06/25 1,918.62- 1,918.62 T25-00108

Black Tie Transportation EN25-00539 Transportation-GetSet Field Trip on 4/23/202505/06/25 1,918.62- 3,837.24 T25-00113

Black Tie Transportation EX25-00630 Transportation-GetSet Field Trip on 3/25/2505/06/25 1,918.62 1,918.62 T25-00108

Black Tie Transportation EX25-00631 Transportation-GetSet Field Trip on 4/23/202505/06/25 1,918.62 T25-00113

Account Total .00 3,837.24 3,837.24-.00 05/31/25

990-5880-9010-6000-1000-000-90-0-0000  Transportation,Unrest.,RO

BR25-00049 Est Actuals Revision,BR25-03,Fund 99005/16/25 2,392.00- 2,392.00-

990-5930-0000-6000-2700-000-90-0-0000  Telephone,Unrest.,ROCP

Verizon Wireless EN25-00576 Verizon services - jetpacks & iPads 05/20/25 269.46- 269.46 T25-00009

Verizon Wireless EX25-00683 Verizon services - jetpacks & iPads 05/20/25 269.46 T25-00009

Account Total .00 269.46 269.46-.00 05/31/25

990-7211-6387-3800-9200-000-90-0-0000  Transfer PassTh,Unrest.,V

Livermore Valley Joint USDEN25-00556 J. Duncan 2023-2024 LVJUSD CTEIG Funds 100%05/13/25 892,123.20 892,123.20-T25-00131

Pleasanton Unified School DistEN25-00557 J. Duncan 2023-2024 PUSD CTEIG Funds 100%05/14/25 892,123.20 1,784,246.40-T25-00132

Dublin Unified School DistrictEN25-00558 J. Duncan 2023-2024 DUSD CTEIG Funds 100%05/14/25 693,873.60 2,478,120.00-T25-00133

Livermore Valley Joint USDEN25-00564 J. Duncan 2023-2024 LVJUSD CTEIG Funds 100%05/20/25 892,123.20- 1,585,996.80-T25-00131

Pleasanton Unified School DistEN25-00569 J. Duncan 2023-2024 PUSD CTEIG Funds 100%05/20/25 892,123.20- 693,873.60-T25-00132

Livermore Valley Joint USDEX25-00667 J. Duncan 2023-2024 LVJUSD CTEIG Funds 100%05/20/25 892,123.20 1,585,996.80-T25-00131

Pleasanton Unified School DistEX25-00675 J. Duncan 2023-2024 PUSD CTEIG Funds 100%05/20/25 892,123.20 2,478,120.00-T25-00132

Dublin Unified School DistrictEN25-00582 J. Duncan 2023-2024 DUSD CTEIG Funds 100%05/22/25 693,873.60- 1,784,246.40-T25-00133

Dublin Unified School DistrictEX25-00689 J. Duncan 2023-2024 DUSD CTEIG Funds 100%05/22/25 693,873.60 2,478,120.00-T25-00133

Account Total .00 2,478,120.00 .00 .00 05/31/25

3,743,372.06-3,099,533.74 128,575.32 515,263.00-.00 Total for Expense Accounts

Pay To

Name
Journal # Description

Trans 

Dt

Adopted

Budget

Revised

Budget
Debit CreditRef#

Net Change

to Balance

110-9720-    -    -    -   -  - -  Encum Res,

Castaneda, Adrian Martinez    DBA Tri-VlleyEN25-00553 Adult Ed Student Services Advisor SY 24-2505/06/25 3,600.00 T25-00055 3,600.00-

Mckinney, Mildred EN25-00565 CalWorks Metrix Instructor 24-25 SY 05/20/25 1,938.30 T25-00018 5,538.30-

Castaneda, Adrian Martinez    DBA Tri-VlleyEN25-00575 Adult Ed Student Services Advisor SY 24-2505/20/25 3,600.00 T25-00055 9,138.30-

.00 .00 9,138.30 .00 Account Total 05/31/25

110-9790-6371-    -    -   -  -0-  Undesignated,CalWORKS

BR25-00048 Est Actuals Revision,BR25-03,Fund 11005/16/25 195,469.00 

110-9790-6391-    -    -   -  -0-  Undesignated,Adult Ed Blo

BR25-00048 Est Actuals Revision,BR25-03,Fund 11005/16/25 43,121.00 

BR25-00050 Est Actuals Revision 05/16/25 34,679.00 

.00 77,800.00 .00 .00 Account Total 05/31/25

Selection

Page 23 of 25

Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 79, Online/Offline = N, Fiscal Year = 2025, Start Date = 5/1/2025, End Date = 5/31/2025, Unposted JEs? = 

N, Assets and Liabilities? = N, Restricted? = Y, Obj Digits = 0, Page Break Lvl = )

079 - Tri-Valley Regional Occupational Program
Generated for Kristen Sims (KSIMS79), Jun  2 2025  9:00AM

43



Fiscal20a Account Transaction Detail-Activity Change

Fiscal Year 2024/25Activity for Dates 05/01/2025 to 05/31/2025

Pay To

Name
Journal # Description

Trans 

Dt

Adopted

Budget

Revised

Budget
Debit CreditRef#

Net Change

to Balance

Pay To

Name
Journal # Description

Trans 

Dt

Adopted

Budget

Revised

Budget
Debit CreditRef#

Net Change

to Balance

990-9720-    -    -    -   -  - -  Encum Res,

Atkinson Andelson Loya Ruud & RomoEN25-00536 TVROP legal services 24-25 SY 05/06/25 981.75 T25-00049 981.75-

Bay Area Air Quality Management DistrictEN25-00537 R Barnard LHS Annual Permit Renewal SY 25/2605/06/25 1,212.00 T25-00130 2,193.75-

Black Tie Transportation EN25-00538 Transportation-GetSet Field Trip on 3/25/2505/06/25 1,918.62 T25-00108 4,112.37-

Black Tie Transportation EN25-00539 Transportation-GetSet Field Trip on 4/23/202505/06/25 1,918.62 T25-00113 6,030.99-

Caltronics Business SystemsEN25-00540 Caltronics copier lease 24-25 SY 05/06/25 497.56 T25-00004 6,528.55-

Comcast EN25-00541 TVROP DO internet, & cable services 24-25 SY05/06/25 413.45 T25-00003 6,942.00-

Dublin Unified School DistrictEN25-00542 DUSD Sub billing 2024-2025 SY 05/06/25 547.65 T25-00129 7,489.65-

FN CO FOOD SERVICE EN25-00543 SY 2024-2025 Student Lunches 05/06/25 9,096.78 T25-00039 16,586.43-

Livermore Sanitation Inc EN25-00544 R Barnard 24-25 LHS Solid Waste Weekly05/06/25 261.40 T25-00002 16,847.83-

Schlick, Madison EN25-00545 SWG5 M SchlickTech Coordinator 24-25 SY05/06/25 3,382.52 T25-00019 20,230.35-

ODP Business Solutions EN25-00546 TVROP District Office office supplies 05/06/25 91.40 T25-00021 20,321.75-

ODP Business Solutions EN25-00547 MC office supplies for SY 24/25 05/06/25 62.54 T25-00010 20,384.29-

ODP Business Solutions EN25-00548 MCEC-TVROP Grant/Brown Materials & Supplies05/06/25 71.43 T25-00093 20,312.86-

ODP Business Solutions EN25-00549 LHS & GHS DPOC - Classroom Supplies05/06/25 485.75 T25-00118 20,798.61-

Pleasanton Unified School DistEN25-00550 MCEC/TVROP grant Sub billing 2024-2025 SY05/06/25 687.95 T25-00107 21,486.56-

Pleasanton Unified School DistEN25-00551 PUSD Sub billing 2024-2025 SY 05/06/25 4,166.27 T25-00116 25,652.83-

QES Computers Inc EN25-00552 Tech Labor:  Install Windows 05/06/25 240.00 T25-00128 25,892.83-

Zoe T. Zannis EN25-00554 MCEC Dual Enrollment Z. Zannis 7/1/2024 - 6/30/2505/06/25 3,272.50 T25-00040 29,165.33-

Zoe T. Zannis EN25-00555 SWG5 Z. Zannis Student Success Specialist SY 24-2505/06/25 3,102.50 T25-00041 32,267.83-

Livermore Valley Joint USDEN25-00556 J. Duncan 2023-2024 LVJUSD CTEIG Funds 100%05/13/25 892,123.20 T25-00131 859,855.37 

Pleasanton Unified School DistEN25-00557 J. Duncan 2023-2024 PUSD CTEIG Funds 100%05/14/25 892,123.20 T25-00132 1,751,978.57 

Dublin Unified School DistrictEN25-00558 J. Duncan 2023-2024 DUSD CTEIG Funds 100%05/14/25 693,873.60 T25-00133 2,445,852.17 

Caltronics Business SystemsEN25-00559 24-25 Caltronics usage-Maint agreement05/20/25 241.20 T25-00005 2,445,610.97 

Del Valle High School EN25-00560 24/25 Catering for TEC Meetings 05/20/25 724.50 T25-00069 2,444,886.47 

FN CO FOOD SERVICE EN25-00561 SY 2024-2025 Student Lunches 05/20/25 8,896.62 T25-00039 2,435,989.85 

Glushenko, Joelle EN25-00562 J Glushenko 24-25 TVROP Project Coordinator05/20/25 5,312.50 T25-00045 2,430,677.35 

Livermore Auto Parts, Inc.EN25-00563 LHS Auto Tech Parts & Mat. 05/20/25 47.59 T25-00088 2,430,629.76 

Livermore Valley Joint USDEN25-00564 J. Duncan 2023-2024 LVJUSD CTEIG Funds 100%05/20/25 892,123.20 T25-00131 1,538,506.56 

Suter, Meredith EN25-00566 SWG5 M Suter HS Pathway Liaison 07/01/24-6/30/2505/20/25 5,482.50 T25-00042 1,533,024.06 

ODP Business Solutions EN25-00567 MC office supplies for SY 24/25 05/20/25 90.09 T25-00010 1,532,933.97 

ODP Business Solutions EN25-00568 TVROP District Office office supplies 05/20/25 196.00 T25-00021 1,532,737.97 

Pleasanton Unified School DistEN25-00569 J. Duncan 2023-2024 PUSD CTEIG Funds 100%05/20/25 892,123.20 T25-00132 640,614.77 

Selection

Page 24 of 25

Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 79, Online/Offline = N, Fiscal Year = 2025, Start Date = 5/1/2025, End Date = 5/31/2025, Unposted JEs? = 

N, Assets and Liabilities? = N, Restricted? = Y, Obj Digits = 0, Page Break Lvl = )

079 - Tri-Valley Regional Occupational Program
Generated for Kristen Sims (KSIMS79), Jun  2 2025  9:00AM

44



Fiscal20a Account Transaction Detail-Activity Change

Fiscal Year 2024/25Activity for Dates 05/01/2025 to 05/31/2025

Pay To

Name
Journal # Description

Trans 

Dt

Adopted

Budget

Revised

Budget
Debit CreditRef#

Net Change

to Balance

990-9720-    -    -    -   -  - -  Encum Res, (continued)

Pleasanton Unified School DistEN25-00570 24-25 SY A. Brown LPC MC Coordinator MOU05/20/25 18,951.25 T25-00068 621,663.52 

Pleasanton Unified School DistEN25-00571 SWG6, Jan-June 2024 Yr1 & 2024-2025 Yr205/20/25 36,238.00 T25-00121 585,425.52 

Pleasanton Unified School DistEN25-00572 StrongWorkforce Grant 5 (Year 1 and Year 2)05/20/25 51,584.00 T25-00125 533,841.52 

Silkworm, Inc EN25-00573 Middle College apparel 05/20/25 973.92 T25-00066 532,867.60 

Williams, Terresa EN25-00574 SW Pathway Coordinator SY 24-25 05/20/25 13,720.40 T25-00024 519,147.20 

Verizon Wireless EN25-00576 Verizon services - jetpacks & iPads 05/20/25 269.46 T25-00009 518,877.74 

Aramark Uniform ServicesEN25-00577 LHS Auto Shop SY 2024-25 towel service05/20/25 56.69 T25-00006 518,821.05 

Zoe T. Zannis EN25-00578 MCEC Dual Enrollment Z. Zannis 7/1/2024 - 6/30/2505/20/25 2,826.25 T25-00040 515,994.80 

Zoe T. Zannis EN25-00579 SWG5 Z. Zannis Student Success Specialist SY 24-2505/20/25 3,570.00 T25-00041 512,424.80 

ReadyRefresh by Nestle EN25-00580 TVROP DO water services & rental fee05/20/25 400.00 T25-00134 512,824.80 

Silkworm, Inc EN25-00581 Marketing/24-25 InService tshrits 05/21/25 525.56 T25-00135 513,350.36 

Dublin Unified School DistrictEN25-00582 J. Duncan 2023-2024 DUSD CTEIG Funds 100%05/22/25 693,873.60 T25-00133 180,523.24-

ReadyRefresh by Nestle EN25-00583 TVROP DO water services & rental fee05/22/25 102.02 T25-00016 180,625.26-

Silkworm, Inc EN25-00584 Marketing/24-25 InService tshrits 05/22/25 525.56 T25-00135 181,150.82-

Glushenko, Joelle EN25-00585 J Glushenko 24-25 TVROP Project Coordinator05/30/25 9,690.00 T25-00045 190,840.82-

PR25-00037 Salary Encumbrance between 05/31/25 and 06/30/25 Payroll05/30/25 328,554.44 137,713.62 

.00 .00 2,669,957.81 2,807,671.43 Account Total 05/31/25

990-9790-0000-    -    -   -  -0-  Undesignated,Unrestricted

BR25-00049 Est Actuals Revision,BR25-03,Fund 99005/16/25 59,501.00-

BR25-00050 Est Actuals Revision 05/16/25 250.00 

.00 59,251.00- .00 .00 Account Total 05/31/25

990-9790-7339-    -    -   -  -0-  Undesignated,MCEC Dual En

BR25-00049 Est Actuals Revision,BR25-03,Fund 99005/16/25 227,578.00 

BR25-00050 Est Actuals Revision 05/16/25 3,050.00 

.00 230,628.00 .00 .00 Account Total 05/31/25

990-9790-9010-    -    -   -  -0-  Undesignated,Other Res Lo

BR25-00049 Est Actuals Revision,BR25-03,Fund 99005/16/25 76,447.00 

.00 521,093.00 128,575.32 2,807,671.43 2,679,096.11 Total for Ending Balance Accounts

- Expenditures- Encumbrances+ RevenuesStarting Balance

Actual

Budgeted

3,099,533.74 128,575.32 

515,263.00-

365,052.52 

5,830.00 

Total for Org 079-Tri-Valley Regional Occupational Program

Selection

Page 25 of 25

Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 79, Online/Offline = N, Fiscal Year = 2025, Start Date = 5/1/2025, End Date = 5/31/2025, Unposted JEs? = 

N, Assets and Liabilities? = N, Restricted? = Y, Obj Digits = 0, Page Break Lvl = )

079 - Tri-Valley Regional Occupational Program
Generated for Kristen Sims (KSIMS79), Jun  2 2025  9:00AM

45



Summary

The Board will consider the approval of the Purchase Order Summary which shows encumbrances
for the District funds for the period noted.

Supporting Documents

 Purchase Order Summary_May 1 - May 31, 2025

6. C. Approval of the Purchase Order Summary – May 1 – May 31, 2025

46



Board Report with Fund/ObjectReqPay11a

Includes Purchase Orders dated 05/01/2025 - 05/31/2025

PO
Number Vendor Name Description

Fund
Object

Account
AmountLoc

T25-00131 Livermore Valley Joint USD J. Duncan 2023-2024 LVJUSD CTEIG 

Funds 100%

990-7211000 892,123.20 

T25-00132 Pleasanton Unified School Dist J. Duncan 2023-2024 PUSD CTEIG 

Funds 100%

990-7211000 892,123.20 

T25-00133 Dublin Unified School District J. Duncan 2023-2024 DUSD CTEIG 

Funds 100%

990-7211000 693,873.60 

T25-00134 ReadyRefresh by Nestle TVROP DO water services & rental 

fee

990-5830000 400.00 

T25-00135 Silkworm, Inc Marketing/24-25 InService tshrits 990-4300000 525.56 

T26-00001 Active Internet Technologies TVROP Website Management 5 Yr 

Term

990-5846000 1,646.00 

T26-00002 Livermore Sanitation Inc R Barnard 25-26 LHS Solid Waste 

Weekly P/U

990-5830000 3,264.00 

2,483,955.56 Total7 Total Number of  POs

Fund Recap

Fund Description PO Count Amount

990 General Fund 5 2,479,045.56 

Total Fiscal Year 2025 2,479,045.56 

990 General Fund 2 4,910.00 

Total Fiscal Year 2026 4,910.00 

Total 2,483,955.56 

PO Changes 

Description  Change Amount

Fund/

ObjectNew PO Amount

T25-00045 67,235.00 990-5825 General Fund/Consultants 9,690.00-

Total PO Changes 9,690.00-

The preceding Purchase Orders have been issued in accordance with the District's Purchasing Policy and 

authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Purchase Orders be approved 

and that payment be authorized upon delivery and acceptance of the items ordered.

079 - Tri-Valley Regional Occupational Program Generated for Kristen Sims (KSIMS79), Jun  2 2025  9:02AM

Page 1 of 1

47



Summary

The Board will consider approval of the MOU with Pleasanton Unified School District (PUSD) for
the 2025 – 2026 school year.

Supporting Documents

 2025 - 2026 PUSD TVROP A Brown Agreement

6. D. Approval of the Memorandum of Understanding with Pleasanton Unified School District
for the 2025 – 2026 Middle College Coordinator

48



  

 

1 
 

Pending Board Approval: June 11, 2025 
AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES OF AN ADMINISTRATOR 

between the 
PLEASANTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

and 
TRI-VALLEY REGIONAL OCCUPATIONAL PROGRAM 

 
This Agreement (hereinafter “Agreement”) for the services of an Administrator is by and 

between the Pleasanton Unified School District (hereinafter “District”), and the Tri-Valley 
Regional Occupational Program (hereinafter “TVROP”).  The District and TVROP are hereinafter 
referred to collectively as “parties.” 
 

A. 
RECITALS 

 
1. Amy Brown (“Brown”) is currently employed by the District. 
 
2. The TVROP desires to utilize Brown during the 2025 - 2026 school year as Coordinator, 

Middle College, at a 1.0 FTE for the TVROP, and the District has agreed to allow Brown 
to accept this assignment for the 2025 - 2026 school year. 

 
3. The District and TVROP enter into this Agreement in order to allow Brown to serve as an 

Administrator for the TVROP, while remaining a District employee. 
 

B. 
TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

 
The District and TVROP agree: 

 
1. Term of Agreement 
 

a. Term 
 

This Agreement shall commence on July 1, 2025 and shall end on June 30, 2026. 
 

2. Provision of Administrator 
 

For the term of this Agreement, the District shall make Brown available to serve as an 
Administrator for the TVROP. 
 

49



  

 

2 
 

3. Employee Status 
 

While serving as an Administrator for the TVROP, Brown shall remain an employee of the 
District for the purpose of receiving compensation, retirement benefits, state mandated 
requirements and other employer provided benefits.  

 
4. Direction and Control 
 

When performing duties as Administrator for the TVROP, Brown shall be under the 
direction and control of the TVROP.   
 

5. Duties of Administrator for the TVROP 
 

a. As Administrator for the TVROP, Brown shall perform duties and responsibilities as 
set forth by the TVROP. 

  
6. Compensation and Benefits 
 

a. TVROP shall reimburse the District for the actual cost of the salary and statutory 
benefits paid to Brown in 2025 - 2026 in accordance with Exhibit “A” (25/26 
Management/Confidential Salary Schedule) for Brown’s position as a Coordinator, 
Middle College, at a 1.0 FTE, 214 days. The salary is currently calculated for 2025 - 
2026 as: 
 
$   176,719.00 Salary Step 10 (PUSD Coordinator III) 
$       2,464.13 Master’s Stipend 
$          900.00 Non-Reimbursable Expenses 
$     39,934.80 Statutory Benefits (22.55%) 
$      13,853.28 Employer Paid Health Benefits (50% of Kaiser Single) 
$    233,871.21 Total (Estimated) 
 

b. Reimbursement to the District shall be monthly for service provided to TVROP by 
Brown @ $19,489.27 (estimated) invoiced monthly. 

 
c. Brown shall earn twelve (12) days of sick leave per school year. 
 

7.      Complaints 
 

Any and all allegations or complaints, whether formal or informal, made to the District 
against Brown relating to her services as Administrator for the TVROP, shall be disclosed 
to the TVROP.  Likewise, any and all allegations or complaints, whether formal or 
informal, made to the TVROP against Brown relating to her services as Administrator for 
the TVROP, shall be disclosed to the District. By agreeing to serve as Administrator for 
the TVROP, and agreeing to accept the terms and conditions of this Agreement, Brown 

50



  

 

3 
 

authorizes both the District and the TVROP to disclose any allegations or complaints, 
whether formal or informal, and the results of any investigation(s) to one another. 
 
Upon receipt of an allegation or complaint, the District and the TVROP shall determine 
whether the District or the TVROP will be the primary agency to investigate the concern. 
Nothing in this Paragraph shall prohibit the District from investigating any allegation or 
complaint it chooses to investigate. Following an investigation of an allegation or 
complaint, the TVROP may, at its sole discretion, either terminate this Agreement, 
pursuant to Paragraph 8 below, or take other appropriate action. Nothing set forth in this 
Paragraph shall prohibit the District from imposing appropriate discipline upon Brown 
while serving as an Administrator for the TVROP as an employee of the District. 
 

8. Termination of Agreement 
 

This Agreement may be terminated by the TVROP, at any time and with or without cause 
by the TVROP.  Termination of this Agreement during the year shall not affect the 
TVROP’s obligation to reimburse the District for the full year of costs associated with 
Brown’s employment for that year. 
 

9. Entire Agreement 
 

This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the parties and supersedes all 
prior negotiations, representations or agreements, either written or oral.  This Agreement 
may only be amended or modified by an agreement in writing signed by all the parties. 
 

10. Waiver 
 

None of the provisions of this Agreement shall be considered waived by either party unless 
such waiver is specified in writing. 
 

11. Severability 
 

Should any provision of this Agreement be held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be 
invalid, void or unenforceable, the remaining provisions shall continue in full force and 
effect. 
 

12. Governing Law/Venue 
 

This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of California.  Venue shall be 
in Alameda County. 
 

13. Execution 
 

51



  

 

4 
 

By executing this Agreement, the District and TVROP acknowledge that they have 
carefully read, and agree to be bound by, all terms and conditions contained in this 
Agreement. 

 
14. Notices 
 

Formal notices, communications or demand to a party shall be sufficiently given if either 
(a) personally delivered, (b) mailed by registered or certified mail, first class postage 
prepaid, return receipt requested, to the principal office of TVROP or to the District, or (c) 
delivered by Federal Express or other reliable private express delivery service to the 
principal office of TVROP or to the District, as follows: 
 

If to TVROP:  Julie Duncan 
     TVROP, Superintendent 
     1040 Florence Road 
     Livermore, CA 94550 
 
  If to the District: Nimarta Grewal 
     Pleasanton Unified School District, Asst. Superintendent 
     4665 Bernal Avenue 
     Pleasanton, CA 94566 
 
15. Counterparts 
 

This Agreement may be executed in identical counterparts, each of which shall constitute 
a duplicate original. 
 

16. Indemnification 
 

Each Party shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless each other Party, its board, 
employees and representatives from any and all costs incurred in any administrative or civil 
action related to actions or omissions related to performance under this Agreement.  This 
indemnification shall apply wherever any such cost arises in whole or in part from the 
negligent, wrongful or willful acts or omissions of the indemnifying party, its employees, 
agents, subcontractors, independent contractors, consultants or other representatives.  This 
indemnification shall extend to include, but not be limited to attorneys’ fees and costs of 
defense, and any administrative or judicial decision requiring a Party to provide money or 
services.  This indemnity provision shall survive the term of this Agreement. 
 

52



  

 

5 
 

PLEASANTON UNIFIED SCHOOL 
DISTRICT 
 
By: _______________________________ 
Nimarta Grewal 
Assistant Superintendent, Human Resources 
 
Dated: ____________________________ 
 

TRI-VALLEY REGIONAL 
OCCUPATIONAL PROGRAM 
 
By: _______________________________ 
Julie Duncan 
Superintendent 
 
Dated: _____________________________ 
 

  
I, Amy Brown, agree to serve as a TVROP Administrator, and agree to the terms and 

conditions set forth in this Agreement. 
 
 
 
Dated: __________________________ __________________________ 
       Amy Brown 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

53



PLEASANTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
Certificated Management/Classified Management/Confidential Annual Salary Schedule 

Fiscal Year 2025/26

PUSD Management / Confidential Days Range Pay Rate Step 1 Step 2 Step 3 Step 4 Step 5 Step 6 Step 7 Step 8 Step 9 Step 10

Administrative Assistant 219 1 Daily ( 431.51)             ( 440.14)             ( 448.95)             ( 457.92)             ( 467.08)             ( 476.43)             ( 485.95)             ( 495.67)             ( 505.59)             ( 515.70)             

Annual ( 94,501)             ( 96,391)             ( 98,320)             ( 100,284)            ( 102,291)            ( 104,338)            ( 106,423)            ( 108,552)            ( 110,724)            ( 112,938)           
Exec. Asst. to Superintendent & Board of 
Trustees 219 2 Daily ( 563.08)             ( 574.34)             ( 585.82)             ( 597.54)             ( 609.49)             ( 621.69)             ( 634.12)             ( 646.79)             ( 659.73)             ( 672.92)             

Annual ( 123,315)            ( 125,780)            ( 128,295)            ( 130,861)            ( 133,478)            ( 136,150)            ( 138,872)            ( 141,647)            ( 144,481)            ( 147,369)           

Program Supervisor * 202 3 Daily ( 653.13)             ( 666.19)             ( 679.51)             ( 693.10)             ( 706.96)             ( 721.10)             ( 735.52)             ( 750.23)             ( 765.24)             ( 780.54)             

Annual ( 131,932)            ( 134,570)            ( 137,261)            ( 140,006)            ( 142,806)            ( 145,662)            ( 148,575)            ( 151,546)            ( 154,578)            ( 157,669)           

Coordinator I * 219 4 Daily ( 525.09)             ( 535.59)             ( 546.31)             ( 557.24)             ( 568.38)             ( 579.75)             ( 591.34)             ( 603.17)             ( 615.23)             ( 627.53)             

Annual ( 114,995)            ( 117,294)            ( 119,642)            ( 122,036)            ( 124,475)            ( 126,965)            ( 129,503)            ( 132,094)            ( 134,735)            ( 137,429)           

Manager 17 Daily ( 586.13)             ( 597.86)             ( 609.82)             ( 622.02)             ( 634.46)             ( 647.15)             ( 660.09)             ( 673.29)             ( 686.75)             ( 700.49)             

196 17A Annual ( 114,881)            ( 117,181)            ( 119,525)            ( 121,916)            ( 124,354)            ( 126,841)            ( 129,378)            ( 131,965)            ( 134,603)            ( 137,296)           

202 17B Annual ( 118,398)            ( 120,768)            ( 123,184)            ( 125,648)            ( 128,161)            ( 130,724)            ( 133,338)            ( 136,005)            ( 138,724)            ( 141,499)           

209 17C Annual ( 122,501)            ( 124,953)            ( 127,452)            ( 130,002)            ( 132,602)            ( 135,254)            ( 137,959)            ( 140,718)            ( 143,531)            ( 146,402)           

214 17D Annual ( 125,432)            ( 127,942)            ( 130,501)            ( 133,112)            ( 135,774)            ( 138,490)            ( 141,259)            ( 144,084)            ( 146,965)            ( 149,905)           

219 17E Annual ( 128,362)            ( 130,931)            ( 133,551)            ( 136,222)            ( 138,947)            ( 141,726)            ( 144,560)            ( 147,451)            ( 150,398)            ( 153,407)           

Coordinator II * 219 5 Daily ( 632.58)             ( 645.24)             ( 658.15)             ( 671.31)             ( 684.73)             ( 698.43)             ( 712.39)             ( 726.64)             ( 741.18)             ( 756.01)             

Annual ( 138,535)            ( 141,308)            ( 144,135)            ( 147,017)            ( 149,956)            ( 152,956)            ( 156,013)            ( 159,134)            ( 162,318)            ( 165,566)           

Coordinator III / Assist Director * 6 Daily ( 690.97)             ( 704.79)             ( 718.89)             ( 733.27)             ( 747.94)             ( 762.89)             ( 778.15)             ( 793.72)             ( 809.60)             ( 825.79)             

209 6A Annual ( 144,413)            ( 147,301)            ( 150,248)            ( 153,253)            ( 156,319)            ( 159,444)            ( 162,633)            ( 165,887)            ( 169,206)            ( 172,590)           

214 6B Annual ( 147,868)            ( 150,825)            ( 153,842)            ( 156,920)            ( 160,059)            ( 163,258)            ( 166,524)            ( 169,856)            ( 173,254)            ( 176,719)           

219 6C Annual ( 151,322)            ( 154,349)            ( 157,437)            ( 160,586)            ( 163,799)            ( 167,073)            ( 170,415)            ( 173,825)            ( 177,302)            ( 180,848)           

Vice Principal, Elementary 199 7 Daily ( 657.15)             ( 670.29)             ( 683.69)             ( 697.36)             ( 711.31)              ( 725.54)             ( 740.06)             ( 754.85)             ( 769.95)             ( 785.36)             

Annual ( 130,773)            ( 133,388)            ( 136,054)            ( 138,775)            ( 141,551)            ( 144,382)            ( 147,272)            ( 150,215)            ( 153,220)            ( 156,287)           

Vice Principal, Alter HS 206 8 Daily ( 670.76)             ( 684.17)             ( 697.86)             ( 711.82)              ( 726.06)             ( 740.58)             ( 755.40)             ( 770.51)             ( 785.92)             ( 801.64)             

Annual ( 138,177)            ( 140,939)            ( 143,759)            ( 146,635)            ( 149,568)            ( 152,559)            ( 155,612)            ( 158,725)            ( 161,900)            ( 165,138)           

Vice Principal, Middle School 206 9 Daily ( 677.22)             ( 690.76)             ( 704.58)             ( 718.67)             ( 733.04)             ( 747.70)             ( 762.66)             ( 777.91)             ( 793.47)             ( 809.33)             

Annual ( 139,507)            ( 142,297)            ( 145,143)            ( 148,046)            ( 151,006)            ( 154,026)            ( 157,108)            ( 160,249)            ( 163,455)            ( 166,722)           

Vice Principal, High School 209 10 Daily ( 698.66)             ( 712.63)             ( 726.88)             ( 741.41)             ( 756.24)             ( 771.37)             ( 786.79)             ( 802.53)             ( 818.57)             ( 834.94)             

Annual ( 146,020)            ( 148,940)            ( 151,918)            ( 154,955)            ( 158,054)            ( 161,216)            ( 164,439)            ( 167,729)            ( 171,081)            ( 174,502)           

Principal, Elementary 209 11 Daily ( 708.52)             ( 722.69)             ( 737.14)             ( 751.88)             ( 766.92)             ( 782.27)             ( 797.91)             ( 813.87)             ( 830.15)             ( 846.75)             

Annual ( 148,081)            ( 151,042)            ( 154,062)            ( 157,143)            ( 160,286)            ( 163,494)            ( 166,763)            ( 170,099)            ( 173,501)            ( 176,971)           

Principal, Middle School 214 12 Daily ( 731.54)             ( 746.18)             ( 761.11)              ( 776.33)             ( 791.85)             ( 807.69)             ( 823.84)             ( 840.31)             ( 857.12)             ( 874.26)             

Annual ( 156,550)            ( 159,683)            ( 162,878)            ( 166,135)            ( 169,456)            ( 172,846)            ( 176,302)            ( 179,826)            ( 183,424)            ( 187,092)           

Principal, High School 219 13 Daily ( 753.63)             ( 768.70)             ( 784.07)             ( 799.76)             ( 815.76)             ( 832.07)             ( 848.71)             ( 865.69)             ( 883.00)             ( 900.67)             

Annual ( 165,045)            ( 168,345)            ( 171,711)            ( 175,147)            ( 178,651)            ( 182,223)            ( 185,867)            ( 189,586)            ( 193,377)            ( 197,247)           

Director I * 218 14 Daily ( 677.50)             ( 691.05)             ( 704.87)             ( 718.97)             ( 733.35)             ( 748.02)             ( 762.97)             ( 778.24)             ( 793.80)             ( 809.68)             

Annual ( 147,695)            ( 150,649)            ( 153,662)            ( 156,735)            ( 159,870)            ( 163,068)            ( 166,327)            ( 169,656)            ( 173,048)            ( 176,510)           

Director II * 218 15 Daily ( 766.39)             ( 781.72)             ( 797.35)             ( 813.30)             ( 829.57)             ( 846.17)             ( 863.10)             ( 880.36)             ( 897.96)             ( 915.92)             

Annual ( 167,073)            ( 170,415)            ( 173,822)            ( 177,299)            ( 180,846)            ( 184,465)            ( 188,156)            ( 191,918)            ( 195,755)            ( 199,671)           

Director III * 218 16 Daily ( 781.70)             ( 797.33)             ( 813.28)             ( 829.54)             ( 846.14)             ( 863.07)             ( 880.33)             ( 897.93)             ( 915.89)             ( 934.21)             

Annual ( 170,411)            ( 173,818)            ( 177,295)            ( 180,840)            ( 184,459)            ( 188,149)            ( 191,912)            ( 195,749)            ( 199,664)            ( 203,658)           
* Refer to the appendix for detailed positions and categories Due to rounding in the automated payroll system, rates shown on this schedule are not the exact figure and are being provided for general purpose only

Master Stipend 1.5% of Step 6 of Principal Elem salary: $2,464.13

Doctorate Stipend 2.5% of Step 6 of Principal Elem salary: $4,106.88

Annual Fringe Benefit Health Coverage - Effective January 1, 2025 up to $13,354.80 toward district-provided health plan or the option of $2,000 cash in lieu
Dental Coverage - Up to $300 toward district-provided dental plan
Vision Coverage - Up to $120 toward district-provided vision plan

The above-specified work year reductions shall be for the 2025-2026 school year only. Effective July 1, 2026, the work years shall be restored to the levels maintained during the 2024-2025 school year.
Note: Stipends are calculated based on the annual salary for the regular Management work year as reflected in the 2024-2025 school year. Effective: July 1, 2025

 Board Approved:  05/08/2025 
Page 1 of 2

54



APPENDIX to 2025/26 Management/Confidential Salary Schedule
Range Position  Department 
Assistant Director Assistant Director, Adult Education  Adult Education 
Assistant Director Assistant Director, SELPA  SELPA 
Assistant Director Assistant Director, SPED  Special Education 
Coordinator I Coordinator, Custodian  MOT 
Coordinator I Coordinator, Safety & Communications  Superintendent 
Coordinator II Coordinator, Child Nutrition Services Culinary  Child Nutrition Services 
Coordinator II Coordinator, Child Nutrition Services Operations  Child Nutrition Services 
Coordinator II Coordinator, Maintenance & Transportation  MOT 
Coordinator II Project Manager, Facilities & Construction  Facilities & Construction 
Coordinator III Coordinator, Accountability & Special Programs  Curriculum & Instruction 
Coordinator III Coordinator, Curriculum, Instruction, & Assessment  Curriculum & Instruction 
Coordinator III Coordinator, Educational Options^  Curriculum & Instruction 
Coordinator III Coordinator, Educational Technology  Curriculum & Instruction 
Coordinator III Coordinator, Fiscal Services  Fiscal Services 
Coordinator III Coordinator, High School Operations  High School 
Coordinator III Coordinator, Student Services  Student Services 
Coordinator III Coordinator, Technology  Technology Services 
Director I Director, Early & Expanded Learning  Early & Expanded Learning 
Director II Director, Child Nutrition Services  Child Nutrition Services 
Director II Director, Adult Education & CTE  Adult Education 
Director II Chief Technology Officer  Technology Services 
Director II Director, Educational Options  Curriculum & Instruction 
Director II Director, Elementary Education  Curriculum & Instruction 
Director II Director, Human Resources  Human Resources 
Director II Director, Secondary Education  Curriculum & Instruction 
Director II Director, Student Services  Student Services 
Director III Executive Director, Facilities & Construction  Facilities & Construction 
Director III Executive Director, Fiscal Services  Fiscal Services 
Director III Executive Director, Operations  MOT 
Director III Senior Director, Human Resources  Human Resources 
Director III Senior Director, SELPA  SELPA 
Director III Senior Director, Special Education  Special Education 
Manager Behavior Program Manager  Special Education 
Program Supervisor Program Supervisor  Special Education 

^ Pending Board approval

05/08/2025 
Page 2 of 2

55



Summary

The Board will consider approving MOU’s between TVROP, Dublin, Livermore Valley Joint and
Pleasanton Unified School Districts for shared services with costs reimbursable to TVROP and
member districts respectively.

Supporting Documents

 2025 - 2026 MOU CCS Dublin

 2025 - 2026 MOU CCS Emerald

 2025 - 2026 MOU CCS Granada

 2025 - 2026 MOU CCS Livermore

 2025 - 2026 MOU DUSD Instructors

 2025-2026 MOU LVJUSD Instructors

 2025 - 2026 MOU PUSD Instructors

 2025 - 2026 MOU DUSD Adult Ed Student Services Advisor

 2025 - 2026 MOU LVJUSD Adult Ed Student Services Advisor

 2025 - 2026 MOU PUSD Adult Ed Student Services Advisor

6. E. Approval of Memorandums of Understanding for 2025 – 2026 with Member Districts

56



MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 

Tri-Valley Regional Occupational Program 

And 

Dublin Unified School District 

June 11, 2025 

 

This is a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) between the Tri-Valley Regional Occupational 
Program (TVROP) and Dublin Unified School District for Career Education Center services at Dublin 
High School performed by Daniel Yang for the 2025 - 2026 school year. 

• Dublin Unified School District will pay .50 FTE of Daniel Yang’s salary and benefits for the 
2025 - 2026 school year upon receipt of invoice. 

• TVROP will pay .50 FTE of Daniel Yang’s salary and benefits for the 2025 - 2026 school 
year.   

• The estimated total cost, including statutory benefits, is $86,016.70 for the 2025 - 2026 
school year.   

• Total estimated cost to Dublin Unified School District shall not exceed $43,008.00.  

• Additionally, Dublin Unified School District agrees to fund up to 60 hours of Dublin High 
School overtime services not to exceed $3,000.00 in salary and statutory benefits. 

Payments due from Dublin Unified School District to Tri-Valley Regional Occupational Program will 
be invoiced quarterly, with the final invoice by June 30, 2026. 

 

SIGNATURES OF AGREEMENT: 

_______________________________________  ______________________________________ 
Dr. Matt Campbell  Julie Duncan 
Assistant Superintendent, Educational Services  Superintendent 
Dublin Unified School District  Tri-Valley Regional Occupational Program 
     

Date:____________________________         Date:_________________________ 

 

 

Pending Board Approval: June 11, 2025  

 

57



MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 

Tri-Valley Regional Occupational Program 

And 

Dublin Unified School District 

June 11, 2025 

This is a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) between the Tri-Valley Regional Occupational 
Program (TVROP) and Dublin Unified School District for Career Education Center services at 
Emerald High School performed by Samantha Bacher for the 2025 - 2026 school year. 

• Dublin Unified School District will pay .50 FTE of Samantha Bacher’s salary and benefits
for the 2025 - 2026 school year upon receipt of invoice.

• TVROP will pay .50 FTE of Samantha Bacher’s salary and benefits for the 2025 - 2026
school year.

• The estimated total cost, including statutory benefits, is $81,328.06  for the 2025 - 2026
school year.

• Total estimated cost to Dublin Unified School District shall not exceed $40,664.00.

• Additionally, Dublin Unified School District agrees to fund up to 60 hours of Samantha
Bacher’s overtime services not to exceed $3,000.00 in salary and statutory benefits.

Payments due from Dublin Unified School District to Tri-Valley Regional Occupational Program will 
be invoiced quarterly, with the final invoice by June 30, 2026. 

SIGNATURES OF AGREEMENT: 

_______________________________________ ______________________________________ 
Dr. Matt Campbell Julie Duncan 
Assistant Superintendent, Educational Services Superintendent 
Dublin Unified School District Tri-Valley Regional Occupational Program 

Date:____________________________       Date:_________________________ 

Pending Board Approval: June 11, 2025 

58



 

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 
Tri-Valley Regional Occupational Program 

And 

Livermore Valley Joint Unified School District 

June 11, 2025 

 

This is a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) between the Tri-Valley Regional Occupational Program 
(TVROP) and Livermore Valley Joint Unified School District (LVJUSD) in regard to the Career Education 
Center services at Granada High School performed by Danielle Watson for the 2025 – 2026 school year. 

• LVJUSD will pay .50 FTE of Danielle Watson’s salary and benefits for the 2025 - 2026 
school year upon receipt of invoice. 

• TVROP will pay .50 FTE of Danielle Watson’s salary and benefits for the 2025 - 2026 
school year. 

• The estimated total cost, including statutory benefits, is $89,906.34 for the 2025 - 2026 school year. 

• LVJUSD’s estimated total cost shall not exceed $44,953.00. 

• LVJUSD additionally agrees to fund, not to exceed, 60 hours, of Granada High School overtime 
services not to exceed $4,200.00 in salary and statutory benefits. 

Payments due from LVJUSD to Tri-Valley Regional Occupational Program will be invoiced quarterly, with the 
final invoice by June 30, 2026. 

 

SIGNATURES OF AGREEMENT: 

_______________________________________  ______________________________________ 
Kayla Wasley  Julie Duncan 
Assistant Superintendent, Business Services  Superintendent 
Livermore Valley Joint Unified School District  Tri-Valley Regional Occupational Program 

 

Date:____________________________           Date:___________________________ 

 

         

Pending Board Approval: June 11, 2025  

59



 

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 
Tri-Valley Regional Occupational Program 

And 

Livermore Valley Joint Unified School District 

June 11, 2025 

 

This is a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) between the Tri-Valley Regional Occupational Program 
(TVROP) and Livermore Valley Joint Unified School District (LVJUSD) in regard to the Career Education 
Center services at Livermore High School performed by Paula-Ann Cabading for the 2025 - 2026 school year. 

• LVJUSD will pay .50 FTE of Paula-Ann Cabading’s salary and benefits for the 2025 - 2026 
school year upon receipt of invoice 

• TVROP will pay .50 FTE of Paula-Ann Cabading’s salary and benefits for the 2025 - 2026 
school year 

• The estimated total cost, including statutory benefits, is $89.151.52 for the 2025 - 2026 school year 

• LVJUSD’s estimated total cost shall not exceed $44,575.76 

• LVJUSD additionally agrees to fund, not to exceed, 60 hours, of Livermore High School overtime 
services not to exceed $4,200.00 in salary and statutory benefits 

Payments due from LVJUSD to Tri-Valley Regional Occupational Program will be invoiced quarterly, with the 
final invoice by June 30, 2026. 

 

SIGNATURES OF AGREEMENT: 

_______________________________________  ______________________________________ 
Kayla Wasley  Julie Duncan 
Assistant Superintendent, Business Services  Superintendent 
Livermore Valley Joint Unified School District  Tri-Valley Regional Occupational Program 

 

Date:____________________________           Date:___________________________ 

      

Pending Board Approval: June 11, 2025  

 

60



MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 

Tri-Valley Regional Occupational Program 

And 

Dublin Unified School District 

June 11, 2025 

This is a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) between the Tri-Valley Regional Occupational 
Program (TVROP) and Dublin Unified School District in regard to a joint teaching contract for 
two (2) career pathway sections.  

All instructors must have the appropriate CTE Credential in the subject stated below for 
reimbursement: 

• TVROP will pay .20 FTE for Dave Uken (DHS), Computer Integrated Manufacturing,
$37,625.65

• TVROP will pay .20 FTE for Subbulakshmi Palanichamy (EHS), Principles of BioMed,
$34,550.55

The estimated total cost to Tri-Valley Regional Occupational Program for all sections listed above, 
including statutory benefits, is estimated to not exceed $72,177.00 for the 2025 – 2026 school year.  

Dublin Unified School District will invoice Tri-Valley Regional Occupational Program quarterly with the 
final invoice by June 30, 2026. 

SIGNATURES OF AGREEMENT: 

     Date: ____________________________ Date: ___________________________ 

Pending Board Approval: June 11, 2025 

_______________________________________ ______________________________________ 
Dr. Matt Campbell Julie Duncan 
Assistant Superintendent, Educational Services Superintendent 
Dublin Unified School District Tri-Valley Regional Occupational Program 

61



 

 

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 
Tri-Valley Regional Occupational Program 

And 

Livermore Valley Joint Unified School District 

June 11, 2025 

 

This is a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) between the Tri-Valley Regional Occupational 
Program (TVROP) and Livermore Valley Joint Unified School District in regard to a joint teaching 
contract for two (2) career pathway sections.  

All instructors must have the appropriate CTE Credential in the subject stated below for 
reimbursement:  

• TVROP will pay .40 FTE (2 sections) of Dorothy Morallos (LHS) Honors Civil 
Engineering and Architecture, $52,917.00 

The estimated total cost to Tri-Valley Regional Occupational Program for all sections listed 
above, including statutory benefits, is estimated to not exceed $52,917.00 for the 2025 – 2026 
school year. 

Livermore Valley Joint Unified School District will invoice Tri-Valley Regional Occupational 
Program quarterly with the final invoice by June 30, 2026. 
 

SIGNATURES OF AGREEMENT: 

__________________________________  ___________________________________ 
Kayla Wasley  Julie Duncan 
Assistant Superintendent, Business Services  Superintendent 
Livermore Valley Joint Unified School District  Tri-Valley Regional Occupational Program 

 

Date: ____________________________  Date: ___________________________ 

         

Pending Board Approval: June 11, 2025 

 

62



 

 

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 

Tri-Valley Regional Occupational Program 

And 

Pleasanton Unified School District 

June 11, 2025 

 

This is a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) between the Tri-Valley Regional Occupational 
Program (TVROP) and Pleasanton Unified School District in regard to a joint teaching contract for 
seven (7) career pathway sections. 
 
All instructors must have the appropriate CTE Credential in the subject stated below for 
reimbursement: 

● TVROP will pay .20 FTE for Ernesto Baena (AVHS), Honors Civil Engineering, & 
Architecture $22,590.96 

● TVROP will pay .40 FTE for Robyn Fewster (AVHS) AP Environmental Science, 
$65,999.26 

● TVROP will pay .20 FTE for Josh Hill (FHS) Child Growth and Development, $35,861.21 

● TVROP will pay .40 FTE for Chris Jones (FHS) AP Environmental Science, $68,141.83 

● TVROP will pay .20 FTE for Ken Cuozzo (FHS) Principles of Biomed $33,817.94 

The estimated total cost to Tri-Valley Regional Occupational Program for all sections listed above, 
including statutory benefits, is estimated to not exceed $226,412.00 for the 2025 – 2026 school year. 
Pleasanton Unified School District will invoice Tri-Valley Regional Occupational Program quarterly 
with the final invoice by June 30, 2026. 

SIGNATURES OF AGREEMENT: 

_______________________________________  ______________________________________ 
Nimarta Grewal  Julie Duncan 
Assistant Superintendent, Human Resources  Superintendent 
Pleasanton Unified School District  Tri-Valley Regional Occupational Program 

 

Date:____________________________     Date:__________________________ 

 

Pending Board Approval: June 11, 2025  

 

63



MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 

Tri-Valley Regional Occupational Program 

And 

Dublin Unified School District 

July 11, 2025 

 

This is a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) between the Tri-Valley Regional Occupational 
Program and Dublin Unified School District in regard to shared services for an Adult Education 
Student Services Advisor in the Tri-Valley for the 2025 - 2026 school year being funded by the 
Mid Alameda County Consortium (Adult Ed Block Grant).  
 

• Dublin Unified School District will pay an amount not to exceed $15,000.00 for Adult 
Ed. Student Services Advisor services for the 2025 - 2026 school year 
 

• Dublin Unified School District will pay up to 40 additional hours not to exceed $2,500.00 
for approved specialized tasks specific to district needs 

 

Payments due from Dublin Unified School District to Tri-Valley ROP will be invoiced in August 
2026. 

 

SIGNATURES OF AGREEMENT: 

 

_______________________________________  ______________________________________ 
Matt  Campbell  Julie Duncan 
Assistant Superintendent, Educational Services  Superintendent 
Dublin Unified School District  Tri-Valley Regional Occupational Program 

          

          Date:____________________________   Date:_________________________ 

 

        Pending Board Approval: June 11, 2025 

 

  

 

64



MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 

Tri-Valley Regional Occupational Program 

And 

Livermore Valley Joint Unified School District 

June 11, 2025 

 
This is a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) between the Tri-Valley Regional 
Occupational Program and Livermore Valley Joint Unified School District in regard to shared services 
for an Adult Ed. Student Services Advisor in the Tri-Valley for the 2025 - 2026 school year being 
funded by the Mid Alameda County Consortium (Adult Ed Block Grant).  
 

• Livermore Valley Joint Unified School District will pay an amount not to exceed $15,000 
for Adult Ed. Student Services Advisor services for the 2025 - 2026 school year 
 

• Livermore Adult Community Education will provide office space at 1401 Almond 
Avenue, Livermore, CA 94550, for the Adult Ed. Student Services Advisor as an In-Kind 
contribution 

Payments due from Livermore Valley Joint Unified School District to Tri-Valley ROP will be invoiced 
in August 2026. 

 

SIGNATURES OF AGREEMENT: 

 

_______________________________________  ______________________________________ 
Kayla Wasley  Julie Duncan 
Assistant Superintendent, Business Services  Superintendent 
Livermore Valley Joint Unified School District  Tri-Valley Regional Occupational Program 
 

         Date:____________________________      Date:___________________________ 

   

         Pending Board Approval: June 11, 2025 

 

       

 

          

 

65



 
MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 

Tri-Valley Regional Occupational Program 

And 

Pleasanton Unified School District 

June 11, 2025 

This is a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) between the Tri-Valley Regional Occupational 
Program and Pleasanton Unified School District in regard to shared services for an Adult Ed. 
Student Services Advisor in the Tri-Valley for the 2025 - 2026 school year being funded by the 
Mid Alameda County Consortium (Adult Ed Block Grant). 

• Pleasanton Unified School District will pay an amount not to exceed $15,000.00 for 
Adult Ed. Student Services Advisor services for the 2025 - 2026 school year 
 

• Pleasanton Unified School District will pay up to 40 additional hours not to exceed 
$2,500.00 for approved specialized tasks specific to district needs 

Payments due from Pleasanton Unified School District to Tri-Valley ROP will be invoiced in August 
2026. 

SIGNATURES OF AGREEMENT: 

 

_______________________________________  ______________________________________ 
Nimarta Grewal  Julie Duncan 
Assistant Superintendent, Human Resources  Superintendent 
Pleasanton Unified School District  Tri-Valley Regional Occupational Program 

          

          Date:____________________________   Date:_________________________ 

          

         Pending Board Approval: June 11, 2025 

 

66



Summary

The Board will consider approval of the MOU’s with Livermore Valley Joint Unified School
District (LVJUSD) providing Financial Services, Auto Shop-Livermore High School and Mocho
Maintenance and Custodial Services.

Supporting Documents

 2025-2026 MOU LVJUSD Financial Services

 2025-2026 MOU LVJUSD Auto Shop

 2025-2026 MOU LVJUSD Mocho Site

6. F. Approval of Memorandums of Understanding with Livermore Valley Joint Unified School
District for Services during 2025 – 2026

67



 MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 
Tri-Valley Regional Occupational Program 

And 

Livermore Valley Joint Unified School District 

June 11, 2025 

This is a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) between the Tri-Valley Regional Occupational Program 
(TVROP) and Livermore Valley Joint Unified School District (LVJUSD) in regard to a joint contract for 
budget, accounting, purchasing and payroll services for the 2025 – 2026 school year. 

TVROP will pay LVJUSD $118,982.20 for the following services: 

• Maintain and update the TVROP budget on the Escape system with the coordination of TVROP 
staff.

• Process purchase orders and issue account payable warrants.

• Issue invoices as necessary, receipt payments and apportionments.

• Process payroll and ensure that STRS, PERS, and payroll taxes are paid in a timely manner.

• Prepare First, Second and Third Interim reports if and when necessary and present to the Board 
and other interested parties.

• Maintain a three-year budget projection.

• Close the 2024 - 2025 books, determine receivables, payables, deferrals and ending balance in 
the SACS software.

• Maintain a current cash flow.

• Work with contracted auditors and present the 2024 – 2025 audit to the Board once completed.

The TVROP will also pay for 40 hours per week of in-house contracted services for an Accounting 
Specialist.  The estimated Cost for this is $132,330.48 annually. Additional hours requested by TVROP will 
be invoiced separately.  

Total cost for the above services estimated at $251,312.68 annually. 

Payment from Tri-Valley Regional Occupational Program will be paid upon invoicing on December 31, 
2025 for half of the contract $125,656.34 and the remaining $125,656.34 to be invoiced by June 30, 2026. 
SIGNATURES OF AGREEMENT: 
_______________________________________ ______________________________________ 
Kayla Wasley Julie Duncan 
Assistant Superintendent, Business Services Superintendent 
Livermore Valley Joint Unified School District Tri-Valley Regional Occupational Program 

Date: ____________________________ Date: ___________________________________ 

Pending Board Approval: June 11, 2025  

68



MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 
Tri-Valley Regional Occupational Program 

And 

Livermore Valley Joint Unified School District 

June 11, 2025 

 

This is a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) between the Tri-Valley Regional Occupational Program 
(TVROP) and Livermore Valley Joint Unified School District (LVJUSD) in regard to a joint contract for 
custodial maintenance services for the Auto Shop located at Livermore High School for the 2025 – 2026 
school year. 

• LVJUSD will provide daily custodial maintenance services for the interior classroom, 
restrooms, locker room and office area.  

• Daily services will include cleaning floor surfaces (sweep & mop), clean and disinfect toilets, 
fixtures and sinks, empty waste containers, replenishment of dispensers, paper and soap 
supplies and waste containers and dispensers. 

• Weekly services will include; dusting, white boards, pencil sharpeners, vacuuming, spot clean 
doors and walls and clean table tops.  

• Annual services will include strip and wax of classroom floor tile and general summer 
cleaning.    

• The total cost for services and supplies is $12,959.71 for the 2025 – 2026 school year. 

Payment from Tri-Valley Regional Occupational Program will be made by invoice dated December 31, 
2025 for half of the contract $6,479.85 and the remainder $6,479.85 will be invoiced by June 30, 2026. 

 

SIGNATURES OF AGREEMENT: 

_______________________________________  ______________________________________ 
Kayla Wasley  Julie Duncan 
Assistant Superintendent, Business Services  Superintendent 
Livermore Valley Joint Unified School District  Tri-Valley Regional Occupational Program 
 

Date:____________________________    Date:___________________________ 

 

Pending Board Approval: June 11, 2025 

69



MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 
Tri-Valley Regional Occupational Program 

And 

Livermore Valley Joint Unified School District 

June 11, 2025 

 

This is a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) between the Tri-Valley Regional Occupational Program 
(TVROP) and Livermore Valley Joint Unified School District (LVJUSD) in regard to a joint contract for 
custodial and maintenance services for the administration building located at Arroyo Mocho Elementary 
School, 1040 Florence Road, Livermore, CA 94550 for the 2025 – 2026 school year. 

• LVJUSD will provide custodial and maintenance services for the administration building 
offices, restrooms, break room, workroom and main office lobby area. 

• Daily services to include emptying waste containers, replenishment of dispensers for paper and 
soap supplies, and disinfection of toilets and sinks. 

• Weekly services to include vacuuming carpet, sweeping and mopping floor tile, cleaning 
fixtures and mirrors, dusting, and spot cleaning floors, doors and walls. 

• Annual services to include shampoo of carpet, strip and wax floor tile and cleaning windows, 
inside and out. 

• The total cost for the above custodial services and supplies will be estimated at $580.41 per 
month. 

• Maintenance repairs will be billed for time and materials as needed. 

Payment from Tri-Valley Regional Occupational Program will be made biannually with $3,482.45 due on 
December 31, 2025 and $3,482.45 due on June 30, 2026. 

 

SIGNATURES OF AGREEMENT: 

_______________________________________  ______________________________________ 
Kayla Wasley  Julie Duncan 
Assistant Superintendent, Business Services  Superintendent 
Livermore Valley Joint Unified School District  Tri-Valley Regional Occupational Program 

 

 
Date:____________________________     Date:___________________________ 

Pending Board Approval: June 11, 2025  

70



Summary

The Board will consider approval of the CCAP Agreement between Tri-Valley ROP and Las
Positas Community College.

Supporting Documents

 College and Career Access Pathways Partnership Agreement for Dual Enrollment

6. G. Approval of the College and Career Access Pathways (CCAP) Agreement between Tri-
Valley ROP and Las Positas Community College

71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



Summary

The Board will consider approving Surplus Equipment either for sale, donation or disposal, per
Education Code Sections 17545.

Supporting Documents

 Disposal List of Equipment and Instructional Supplies

6. H. Approval of Disposal List of Equipment and Instructional Equipment

94



Tri-Valley Regional Occupation Program 
Electronic Disposal List 

JPGB Meeting of June 11, 2025 
 

 

 
Electronic Disposal 

Description of Item ROP Tag Number Reason for Disposal 
Laser Jet Pro 400 M401dw A00718 End of Life – Internal Failure 

Laser Jet Pro 400 M401dw A00446 End of Life – Internal Failure 

Dell Optiplex 7440 Desktop A02116 End of Life – Internal Failure 

Dell Optiplex 7440 Desktop A00453 End of Life – Internal Failure 

Dell Latitude 3470 A00555 End of Life – Internal Failure 

Dell Latitude 3470 A00640 End of Life – Internal Failure 

Dell Latitude 3470 A00903 End of Life – Internal Failure 

Dell Latitude 3470 A00921 End of Life – Internal Failure 

Dell Latitude 3470 A00937 End of Life – Internal Failure 

Dell Latitude 3420  A01999 End of Life – Physical Damage 

95



Summary

Items that are pulled from the Consent Calendar to be addressed individually will be discussed
and acted upon at this time.

7. DEFERRED CONSENT ITEM/S

96



Summary

Informational items are noted as informational only; Action Items are up for a vote by the Board.
Most items require a simple majority of Board member votes to pass.

8. INFORMATION / ACTION ITEMS

97



Summary

Open Public Hearing for the 2025 – 2026 Tri-Valley Regional Occupational Program Budget held
in Compliance with California Education Code 42103.

8. A. Public Hearing on the Proposed 2025 – 2026 Budget

98



Summary

Following the mandated Public Hearing on the 2025 – 2026 budget, it is appropriate for the
Board to consider approval.

Supporting Documents

 2025-26 TVROP Adopted Budget

 2025-26 Adopted Budget Presentation.final

8. B. Proposed Budget and Adoption for 2025 – 2026

99



TRI-VALLEY REGIONAL OCCUPATIONAL PROGRAM 

PROPOSED ADOPTED BUDGET  

2025-26 

 

The Tri-Valley Regional Occupational Program’s (TVROP) Budget for 2025-26 was developed 
through a collaborative process involving the Board of Trustees, Superintendent, the Director of 
Fiscal Services from the Livermore Valley Joint Unified School District, and other TVROP 
administrative staff.  

 

REVENUE 

Total revenue for the 2025-26 fiscal year is projected at $7,481,692, representing an increase of 
approximately $2.7 million from the previous year. 

• Federal Revenue – Decreased by $109,570, primarily due to the removal of the 
Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act (WIOA) grant.  

• State Revenue - Increased by $2,443,402, mainly due to the inclusion of Career 
Technical Education (CTE) Incentive Grant funds, which were not included in the 
previous year.  

• Local Revenue – Increased by $259,109, mainly due to a 4% increase in member 
contributions and higher projected interest earnings. 

 

EXPENDITURES 

Total expenditures for the 2025-26 fiscal year are projected at $8,478,249, representing an 
increase of approximately $3.2 million from the previous year. 

• Salaries and Benefits – Increased by approximately $416k compared to the prior year. 
This includes: 

o 2024-25 salary increases: 3% Certificated, 2% Director, 1% Classified and 
Management, plus an additional $500 per full-time equivalent (FTE) for in-lieu 
medical benefits.  

o 2025-26 salary increases: same structure as 2024-25, beginning July 1, 2025. 
o Inclusion of salaries funded by carryover from the Middle College Early College 

(MCEC) grant. 
o Adjustments for step and column and a change in the PERS contribution rate 

(decreased 27.05% to 26.81%). 

100



• Books and Supplies – Increased by approximately $89k, adjusted for inflation (California 
CPI: 2.92%). Includes restricted carryover from the MCEC and Career & College Access 
Pathways grants. 

• Services and Other Operating Expenditures – Increased by approximately $363k, 
adjusted for inflation, 2.92% CPI. Includes restricted carryover from the MCEC and 
Career & College Access Pathways grants 

• Other Outgo – Increased $2,361,453.  This increase is due to the CTE pass-through 
expenditure which was not included in the previous year.  
 

 SUMMARY 

Based on the 2025-26 Proposed Adopted Budget, TVROP is expected to end the 2025-26 fiscal 
year with an ending fund balance of $1,621,616.  This balance allows TVROP to meet the State 
required 5% Reserve for Economic Uncertainties of $423,912 and the Additional 3% Board 
Reserve of $183,504.  The Components of Ending Fund Balance also include $227,382 in 
Restricted funds and $20,000 in revolving funds, resulting in an unallocated amount of 
$766.818.   

101



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V12
File: CB_JPA, Version 6 Page 1 Printed: 5/21/2025 5:10 PM

Tri-Valley ROP JPA Budget, July 1 01 40410 0000000
Alameda County FINANCIAL REPORTS Form CB

2025-26 Budget G8BU7E67PA(2025-26)
Joint Powers Agency Certification

ANNUAL BUDGET REPORT:

July  1, 2025 Budget Adoption

This budget was dev eloped using the state-adopted Criteria and Standards. It was f iled and adopted subsequent to a public hearing by  the JPA gov erning board. (Pursuant to
Education Code sections 33129, 41023 and 42127)

Budget av ailable f or inspection at: Public Hearing:

Place: 1040 Florence Road, Liv ermore CA Place: 1040 Florence Road, Liv ermore CA

Date: June 6, 2025 Date: June 11, 2025

Time: 5:30 pm

Adoption Date: June 11, 2025

Signed:

Clerk/Secretary  of  the JPA Gov erning Board

(Original signature required)

Printed Name: Julie Duncan Title: Superintendent

Contact person f or additional inf ormation on the budget reports:

Name: Doug D'Amour Telephone: 925-606-3255

Title: Chief  Business Of f icial E-mail: ddamour@lv jusd.org

Criteria and Standards Review Summary

The f ollowing summary  is automatically  completed based on data prov ided in the Criteria and Standards Rev iew (Form 01CS). Criteria and standards that are "Not Met," and
supplemental inf ormation and additional f iscal indicators that are "Yes," may  indicate areas of  potential concern f or f iscal solv ency  purposes and should be caref ully  rev iewed.

CRITERIA AND STANDARDS Met Not Met

1 Av erage Daily  Attendance This criterion is not checked f or JPAs. n/a n/a

2 Enrollment This criterion is not checked f or JPAs. n/a n/a

3 ADA to Enrollment This criterion is not checked f or JPAs. n/a n/a

4 Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF)
Rev enue This criterion is not checked f or JPAs. n/a n/a

5 Salaries and Benef its Projected ratios of  total salaries and benef its to total general f und expenditures are consistent with
historical ratios f or the budget and two subsequent f iscal y ears. X

6a Other Rev enues Projected operating rev enues (e.g., f ederal, other state, and other local) are within the standard f or
the budget and two subsequent f iscal y ears. X

6b Other Expenditures Projected operating expenditures (e.g., books and supplies, and serv ices and other operating) are
within the standard f or the budget and two subsequent f iscal y ears. X

7 Ongoing and Major Maintenance Account This criterion is not checked f or JPAs. n/a n/a

8 Def icit Spending Def icit spending, if  any , has not exceeded the standard f or two or more of  the last three f iscal
y ears. X

9a Fund Balance General f und beginning balance has not been ov erestimated by  more than the standard f or two or
more of  the last three f iscal y ears. X

9b Cash Balance Projected general f und cash balance will be positiv e at the end of  the current f iscal y ear. X

10 Reserv es Projected av ailable reserv es (e.g., reserv e f or economic uncertainties, unassigned/unappropriated
amounts) meet minimum requirements f or the budget and two subsequent f iscal y ears. X

SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION No Yes

S1 Contingent Liabilities Are there known or contingent liabilities (e.g., f inancial or program audits, litigation, state compliance
rev iews) that may  impact the budget? X

S2 Using One-time Rev enues to Fund
Ongoing Expenditures

Are there ongoing general f und expenditures in excess of  one percent of  the total general f und
expenditures that are f unded with one-time resources? X

S3 Using Ongoing Rev enues to Fund One-
time Expenditures

Are there large non-recurring general f und expenditures that are f unded with ongoing general f und
rev enues? X

S4 Contingent Rev enues Are any  projected rev enues f or the budget or two subsequent f iscal y ears contingent on
reauthorization by  the local gov ernment, special legislation, or other def initiv e act (e.g., parcel
taxes, f orest reserv es)?

X

S5 Contributions Hav e transf ers to or f rom the general f und to cov er operating def icits changed by  more than the
standard f or the budget or two subsequent f iscal y ears? X

S6 Long-term Commitments Does the JPA hav e long-term (multiy ear) commitments or debt agreements? X

• If  y es, hav e annual pay ments f or the budget or two subsequent f iscal y ears
increased ov er prior y ear's (2024-25) annual pay ment? n/a

102



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V12
File: CB_JPA, Version 6 Page 2 Printed: 5/21/2025 5:10 PM

Tri-Valley ROP JPA Budget, July 1 01 40410 0000000
Alameda County FINANCIAL REPORTS Form CB

2025-26 Budget G8BU7E67PA(2025-26)
Joint Powers Agency Certification

SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION (continued) No Yes

S7a Postemploy ment Benef its Other than Pensions Does the JPA prov ide postemploy ment benef its other than pensions (OPEB)? X

• If  y es, are they  lif etime benef its? n/a

• If  y es, do benef its continue bey ond age 65? n/a

• If  y es, are benef its f unded by  pay -as-y ou-go? n/a

S7b Other Self -insurance Benef its Does the JPA prov ide other self -insurance benef its (e.g., workers' compensation)? X

S8 Status of  Labor Are salary  and benef it negotiations still open f or:

Agreements • Certif icated? (Section S8A, Line 1) n/a

• Classif ied? (Section S8B, Line 1) n/a

• Management/superv isor/conf idential? (Section S8C, Line 1) n/a

S9 Local Control and Accountability  Plan (LCAP) This supplemental section is not checked f or JPAs. n/a n/a

S10 LCAP Expenditures This supplemental section is not checked f or JPAs. n/a n/a

ADDITIONAL FISCAL INDICATORS No Yes

A1 Negativ e Cash Flow Do cash f low projections show that the JPA will end the budget y ear with a negativ e cash balance in the
general f und? X

A2 Independent Position Control Is personnel position control independent f rom the pay roll sy stem? X

A3 Declining Enrollment Is enrollment decreasing in both the prior f iscal y ear and budget y ear? n/a n/a

A4 New Charter Schools Impacting JPA's Enrollment Are any  new charter schools operating in JPA boundaries that are impacting the JPA's enrollment, either
in the prior f iscal y ear or budget y ear? n/a n/a

A5 Salary  Increases Exceed COLA Has the JPA entered into a bargaining agreement where any  of  the budget or subsequent f iscal y ears
of  the agreement would result in salary  increases that are expected to exceed the projected state
f unded cost-of -liv ing adjustment?

X

A6 Uncapped Health Benef its Does the JPA prov ide uncapped (100% employ er paid) health benef its f or current or retired employ ees? X

A7 Independent Financial Sy stem Is the JPA’s f inancial sy stem independent f rom the county  of f ice sy stem? X

A8 Fiscal Distress Reports Does the JPA hav e any  reports that indicate f iscal distress? If  y es, prov ide copies to the COE,
pursuant to EC 42127.6(a). X

A9 Change of  JPA Director or Financial Of f icial Hav e there been personnel changes in the JPA director or f inancial of f icial positions within the last 12
months? X

103



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V12
File: CC, Version 3 Page 1 Printed: 5/16/2025 10:25 AM

Budget, July 1 01 40410 0000000
Tri-Valley ROP JPA 2025-26 Budget Form CC
Alameda County WORKERS' COMPENSATION CERTIFICATION G8BU7E67PA(2025-26)

ANNUAL CERTIFICATION REGARDING SELF-INSURED WORKERS' COMPENSATION CLAIMS

Pursuant to Education Code Section 42141, if  a joint powers agency  is self -insured f or workers' compensation claims, the director of  the joint powers agency  annually  shall prov ide
inf ormation to the gov erning board of  the joint powers agency  regarding the estimated accrued but unf unded cost of  those claims. The gov erning board annually  shall certif y  to the county
superintendent of  schools the amount of  money , if  any , that it has decided to reserv e in its budget f or the cost of  those claims.

To the County  Superintendent of  Schools:

Our JPA is self -insured f or workers' compensation claims as def ined in Education Code Section 42141(a):

Total liabilities actuarially  determined: $

Less: Amount of  total liabilities reserv ed in budget: $

Estimated accrued but unf unded liabilities: $ 0.00

X This joint powers agency  is not self -insured f or workers' compensation claims.

Signed Date of  Meeting: June 11, 2025

Clerk/Secretary  of  the Gov erning Board

(Original signature required)

Printed Name: Julie Duncan Title: Superintendent

For additional inf ormation on this certif ication, please contact:

Name: Doug D'Amour

Title: Chief  Business Of f icial

Telephone: 925-606-3255

E-mail: ddamour@lv jusd.org

104



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V12
File: Fund-B, Version 9 Page 1 Printed: 5/16/2025 10:43 AM

Budget, July 1
Tri-Valley ROP JPA General Fund 01 40410 0000000
Alameda County Expenditures by Object Form 01

G8BU7E67PA(2025-26)

Description Resource Codes Object Codes
2024-25

Estimated Actuals
2025-26
Budget

Percent
Difference

A. REVENUES

1) LCFF Sources 8010-8099 0.00 0.00 0.0%

2) Federal Rev enue 8100-8299 109,570.00 0.00 -100.0%

3) Other State Rev enue 8300-8599 5,151,752.00 2,720,740.00 -47.2%

4) Other Local Rev enue 8600-8799 4,668,775.00 4,760,952.00 2.0%

5) TOTAL, REVENUES 9,930,097.00 7,481,692.00 -24.7%

B. EXPENDITURES

1) Certif icated Salaries 1000-1999 2,544,777.00 2,618,973.00 2.9%

2) Classif ied Salaries 2000-2999 570,424.00 609,568.00 6.9%

3) Employ ee Benef its 3000-3999 1,004,680.00 1,036,147.00 3.1%

4) Books and Supplies 4000-4999 300,181.00 300,146.00 0.0%

5) Serv ices and Other Operating Expenditures 5000-5999 2,624,333.00 1,551,962.00 -40.9%

6) Capital Outlay 6000-6999 0.00 0.00 0.0%

7) Other Outgo (excluding Transf ers of  Indirect Costs) 7100-7299,
7400-7499 3,083,753.00 2,361,453.00 -23.4%

8) Other Outgo - Transf ers of  Indirect Costs 7300-7399 0.00 0.00 0.0%

9) TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 10,128,148.00 8,478,249.00 -16.3%

C. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES BEFORE OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES AND USES (A5 - B9) (198,051.00) (996,557.00) 403.2%

D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES

1) Interf und Transf ers

a) Transf ers In 8900-8929 0.00 0.00 0.0%

b) Transf ers Out 7600-7629 0.00 0.00 0.0%

2) Other Sources/Uses

a) Sources 8930-8979 0.00 0.00 0.0%

b) Uses 7630-7699 0.00 0.00 0.0%

3) Contributions 8980-8999 0.00 0.00 0.0%

4) TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 0.00 0.00 0.0%

E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND BALANCE (C + D4) (198,051.00) (996,557.00) 403.2%

F. FUND BALANCE, RESERVES

1) Beginning Fund Balance

a) As of  July  1 - Unaudited 9791 2,816,224.00 2,618,173.00 -7.0%

b) Audit Adjustments 9793 0.00 0.00 0.0%

105



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V12
File: Fund-B, Version 9 Page 2 Printed: 5/16/2025 10:43 AM

Budget, July 1
Tri-Valley ROP JPA General Fund 01 40410 0000000
Alameda County Expenditures by Object Form 01

G8BU7E67PA(2025-26)

Description Resource Codes Object Codes
2024-25

Estimated Actuals
2025-26
Budget

Percent
Difference

c) As of  July  1 - Audited (F1a + F1b) 2,816,224.00 2,618,173.00 -7.0%

d) Other Restatements 9795 0.00 0.00 0.0%

e) Adjusted Beginning Balance (F1c + F1d) 2,816,224.00 2,618,173.00 -7.0%

2) Ending Balance, June 30 (E + F1e) 2,618,173.00 1,621,616.00 -38.1%

Components of  Ending Fund Balance

a) Nonspendable

Rev olv ing Cash 9711 20,000.00 20,000.00 0.0%

Stores 9712 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Prepaid Items 9713 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Others 9719 0.00 0.00 0.0%

b) Restricted 9740 605,361.00 227,382.00 -62.4%

c) Committed

Stabilization Arrangements 9750 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Commitments 9760 0.00 0.00 0.0%

d) Assigned

Other Assignments 9780 211,332.00 183,504.00 -13.2%

Additional Board Reserv e 3% (excluding obj 7211) 0000 9780 211,332.00

Additional Board Reserv e 3% (excluding obj 7211) 0000 9780 183,504.00

e) Unassigned/Unappropriated Reserv e f or Economic Uncertainties 9789 506,407.00 423,912.00 -16.3%

Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 9790 1,275,073.00 766,818.00 -39.9%

G. ASSETS

1) Cash

a) in County  Treasury 9110 5,923,491.87

1) Fair Value Adjustment to Cash in County  Treasury 9111 0.00

b) in Banks 9120 4,365.99

c) in Rev olv ing Cash Account 9130 20,000.00

d) with Fiscal Agent/Trustee 9135 0.00

e) Collections Awaiting Deposit 9140 0.00

2) Inv estments 9150 0.00

3) Accounts Receiv able 9200 0.00

4) Due f rom Grantor Gov ernment 9290 0.00

5) Due f rom Other Funds 9310 0.00

106



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V12
File: Fund-B, Version 9 Page 3 Printed: 5/16/2025 10:43 AM

Budget, July 1
Tri-Valley ROP JPA General Fund 01 40410 0000000
Alameda County Expenditures by Object Form 01

G8BU7E67PA(2025-26)

Description Resource Codes Object Codes
2024-25

Estimated Actuals
2025-26
Budget

Percent
Difference

6) Stores 9320 0.00

7) Prepaid Expenditures 9330 0.00

8) Other Current Assets 9340 0.00

9) Lease Receiv able 9380 0.00

10) TOTAL, ASSETS 5,947,857.86

H. DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

1) Def erred Outf lows of  Resources 9490 0.00

2) TOTAL, DEFERRED OUTFLOWS 0.00

I. LIABILITIES

1) Accounts Pay able 9500 43,387.81

2) Due to Grantor Gov ernments 9590 0.00

3) Due to Other Funds 9610 0.00

4) Current Loans 9640 0.00

5) Unearned Rev enue 9650 0.00

6) TOTAL, LIABILITIES 43,387.81

J. DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

1) Def erred Inf lows of  Resources 9690 0.00

2) TOTAL, DEFERRED INFLOWS 0.00

K. FUND EQUITY

(G10 + H2) - (I6 + J2) 5,904,470.05

FEDERAL REVENUE

Special Education Discretionary  Grants 8182 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Child Nutrition Programs 8220 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Donated Food Commodities 8221 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Interagency  Contracts Between LEAs 8285 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Pass-Through Rev enues f rom

Federal Sources 8287 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Career and Technical Education 3500-3599 8290 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other Federal Rev enue All Other 8290 109,570.00 0.00 -100.0%

TOTAL, FEDERAL REVENUE 109,570.00 0.00 -100.0%

OTHER STATE REVENUE

Other State Apportionments

All Other State Apportionments - Current Year 8311 0.00 0.00 0.0%

107



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V12
File: Fund-B, Version 9 Page 4 Printed: 5/16/2025 10:43 AM

Budget, July 1
Tri-Valley ROP JPA General Fund 01 40410 0000000
Alameda County Expenditures by Object Form 01

G8BU7E67PA(2025-26)

Description Resource Codes Object Codes
2024-25

Estimated Actuals
2025-26
Budget

Percent
Difference

All Other State Apportionments - Prior Years 8319 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Child Nutrition Programs 8520 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Mandated Costs Reimbursements 8550 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Pass-Through Rev enues f rom State Sources 8587 3,083,753.00 2,361,453.00 -23.4%

Calif ornia Clean Energy  Jobs Act 6230 8590 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Career Technical Education Incentiv e Grant Program 6387 8590 0.00 124,287.00 New

Drug/Alcohol/Tobacco Funds 6695 8590 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other State Rev enue All Other 8590 2,067,999.00 235,000.00 -88.6%

TOTAL, OTHER STATE REVENUE 5,151,752.00 2,720,740.00 -47.2%

OTHER LOCAL REVENUE

Other Local Rev enue

Sales

Sale of  Equipment/Supplies 8631 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Sale of  Publications 8632 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Food Serv ice Sales 8634 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other Sales 8639 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Leases and Rentals 8650 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Interest 8660 161,230.00 150,000.00 -7.0%

Net Increase (Decrease) in the Fair Value of  Inv estments 8662 54,297.00 0.00 -100.0%

Fees and Contracts

Adult Education Fees 8671 0.00 0.00 0.0%

In-District Premiums/Contributions 8674 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Transportation Fees From Indiv iduals 8675 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Interagency  Serv ices 8677 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other Fees and Contracts 8689 170,160.00 173,201.00 1.8%

Other Local Rev enue

Pass-Through Rev enues From Local Sources 8697 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other Local Rev enue 8699 16,020.00 0.00 -100.0%

Tuition 8710 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other Transf ers In 8781-8783 4,267,068.00 4,437,751.00 4.0%

Transf ers of  Apportionments

Special Education SELPA Transf ers

108



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V12
File: Fund-B, Version 9 Page 5 Printed: 5/16/2025 10:43 AM

Budget, July 1
Tri-Valley ROP JPA General Fund 01 40410 0000000
Alameda County Expenditures by Object Form 01

G8BU7E67PA(2025-26)

Description Resource Codes Object Codes
2024-25

Estimated Actuals
2025-26
Budget

Percent
Difference

From Districts or Charter Schools 6500 8791 0.00 0.00 0.0%

From County  Of f ices 6500 8792 0.00 0.00 0.0%

From JPAs 6500 8793 0.00 0.00 0.0%

ROC/P Transf ers

From Districts or Charter Schools 6360 8791 0.00 0.00 0.0%

From County  Of f ices 6360 8792 0.00 0.00 0.0%

From JPAs 6360 8793 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Transf ers of  Apportionments

From Districts or Charter Schools All Other 8791 0.00 0.00 0.0%

From County  Of f ices All Other 8792 0.00 0.00 0.0%

From JPAs All Other 8793 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other Transf ers In f rom All Others 8799 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, OTHER LOCAL REVENUE 4,668,775.00 4,760,952.00 2.0%

TOTAL, REVENUES 9,930,097.00 7,481,692.00 -24.7%

CERTIFICATED SALARIES

Certif icated Teachers' Salaries 1100 1,961,499.00 2,034,486.00 3.7%

Certif icated Pupil Support Salaries 1200 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Certif icated Superv isors' and Administrators' Salaries 1300 583,278.00 584,487.00 0.2%

Other Certif icated Salaries 1900 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, CERTIFICATED SALARIES 2,544,777.00 2,618,973.00 2.9%

CLASSIFIED SALARIES

Classif ied Instructional Salaries 2100 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Classif ied Support Salaries 2200 314,371.00 337,077.00 7.2%

Classif ied Superv isors' and Administrators' Salaries 2300 107,006.00 111,695.00 4.4%

Clerical, Technical and Of f ice Salaries 2400 148,297.00 160,046.00 7.9%

Other Classif ied Salaries 2900 750.00 750.00 0.0%

TOTAL, CLASSIFIED SALARIES 570,424.00 609,568.00 6.9%

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

STRS 3101-3102 678,393.00 694,030.00 2.3%

PERS 3201-3202 161,691.00 170,047.00 5.2%

OASDI/Medicare/Alternativ e 3301-3302 83,750.00 88,211.00 5.3%

Health and Welf are Benef its 3401-3402 1,981.00 1,875.00 -5.4%

109



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V12
File: Fund-B, Version 9 Page 6 Printed: 5/16/2025 10:43 AM

Budget, July 1
Tri-Valley ROP JPA General Fund 01 40410 0000000
Alameda County Expenditures by Object Form 01

G8BU7E67PA(2025-26)

Description Resource Codes Object Codes
2024-25

Estimated Actuals
2025-26
Budget

Percent
Difference

Unemploy ment Insurance 3501-3502 1,556.00 1,617.00 3.9%

Workers' Compensation 3601-3602 77,309.00 80,367.00 4.0%

OPEB, Allocated 3701-3702 0.00 0.00 0.0%

OPEB, Activ e Employ ees 3751-3752 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Employ ee Benef its 3901-3902 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 1,004,680.00 1,036,147.00 3.1%

BOOKS AND SUPPLIES

Approv ed Textbooks and Core Curricula Materials 4100 65,237.00 70,000.00 7.3%

Books and Other Ref erence Materials 4200 4,472.00 0.00 -100.0%

Materials and Supplies 4300 147,429.00 220,146.00 49.3%

Noncapitalized Equipment 4400 83,043.00 10,000.00 -88.0%

Food 4700 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, BOOKS AND SUPPLIES 300,181.00 300,146.00 0.0%

SERVICES AND OTHER OPERATING EXPENDITURES

Subagreements f or Serv ices 5100 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Trav el and Conf erences 5200 44,986.00 49,250.00 9.5%

Dues and Memberships 5300 13,306.00 10,000.00 -24.8%

Insurance 5400-5450 47,000.00 56,000.00 19.1%

Operations and Housekeeping Serv ices 5500 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Rentals, Leases, Repairs, and Noncapitalized Improv ements 5600 13,613.00 9,500.00 -30.2%

Transf ers of  Direct Costs 5710 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Transf ers of  Direct Costs - Interf und 5750 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Prof essional/Consulting Serv ices and Operating Expenditures 5800 2,494,928.00 1,420,212.00 -43.1%

Communications 5900 10,500.00 7,000.00 -33.3%

TOTAL, SERVICES AND OTHER OPERATING EXPENDITURES 2,624,333.00 1,551,962.00 -40.9%

CAPITAL OUTLAY

Land 6100 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Land Improv ements 6170 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Buildings and Improv ements of  Buildings 6200 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Equipment 6400 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Equipment Replacement 6500 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Lease Assets 6600 0.00 0.00 0.0%

110



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V12
File: Fund-B, Version 9 Page 7 Printed: 5/16/2025 10:43 AM

Budget, July 1
Tri-Valley ROP JPA General Fund 01 40410 0000000
Alameda County Expenditures by Object Form 01

G8BU7E67PA(2025-26)

Description Resource Codes Object Codes
2024-25

Estimated Actuals
2025-26
Budget

Percent
Difference

Subscription Assets 6700 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, CAPITAL OUTLAY 0.00 0.00 0.0%

OTHER OUTGO (excluding Transfers of Indirect Costs)

Tuition

Tuition, Excess Costs, and/or Def icit Pay ments

Pay ments to Districts or Charter Schools 7141 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Pay ments to County  Of f ices 7142 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Pay ments to JPAs 7143 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Transf ers Out

Transf ers of  Pass-Through Rev enues

To Districts or Charter Schools 7211 3,083,753.00 2,361,453.00 -23.4%

To County  Of f ices 7212 0.00 0.00 0.0%

To JPAs 7213 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Special Education SELPA Transf ers of  Apportionments

To Districts or Charter Schools 6500 7221 0.00 0.00 0.0%

To County  Of f ices 6500 7222 0.00 0.00 0.0%

To JPAs 6500 7223 0.00 0.00 0.0%

ROC/P Transf ers of  Apportionments

To Districts or Charter Schools 6360 7221 0.00 0.00 0.0%

To County  Of f ices 6360 7222 0.00 0.00 0.0%

To JPAs 6360 7223 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Transf ers of  Apportionments All Other 7221-7223 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other Transf ers 7281-7283 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other Transf ers Out to All Others 7299 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Debt Serv ice

Debt Serv ice - Interest 7438 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Debt Serv ice - Principal 7439 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, OTHER OUTGO (excluding Transf ers of  Indirect Costs) 3,083,753.00 2,361,453.00 -23.4%

OTHER OUTGO - TRANSFERS OF INDIRECT COSTS

Transf ers of  Indirect Costs 7310 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Transf ers of  Indirect Costs - Interf und 7350 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, OTHER OUTGO - TRANSFERS OF INDIRECT COSTS 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 10,128,148.00 8,478,249.00 -16.3%

111



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V12
File: Fund-B, Version 9 Page 8 Printed: 5/16/2025 10:43 AM

Budget, July 1
Tri-Valley ROP JPA General Fund 01 40410 0000000
Alameda County Expenditures by Object Form 01

G8BU7E67PA(2025-26)

Description Resource Codes Object Codes
2024-25

Estimated Actuals
2025-26
Budget

Percent
Difference

INTERFUND TRANSFERS

INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN

From: Special Reserv e Fund 8912 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Authorized Interf und Transf ers In 8919 0.00 0.00 0.0%

(a) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN 0.00 0.00 0.0%

INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT

To: Special Reserv e Fund 7612 0.00 0.00 0.0%

To: State School Building Fund/County  School Facilities Fund 7613 0.00 0.00 0.0%

To: Caf eteria Fund 7616 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Authorized Interf und Transf ers Out 7619 0.00 0.00 0.0%

(b) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT 0.00 0.00 0.0%

OTHER SOURCES/USES

SOURCES

Long-Term Debt Proceeds

Proceeds f rom Certif icates of  Participation 8971 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Proceeds f rom Leases 8972 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Proceeds f rom Lease Rev enue Bonds 8973 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Proceeds f rom SBITAs 8974 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other Financing Sources 8979 0.00 0.00 0.0%

(c) TOTAL, SOURCES 0.00 0.00 0.0%

USES

All Other Financing Uses 7699 0.00 0.00 0.0%

(d) TOTAL, USES 0.00 0.00 0.0%

CONTRIBUTIONS

Contributions f rom Unrestricted Rev enues 8980 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Contributions f rom Restricted Rev enues 8990 0.00 0.00 0.0%

(e) TOTAL, CONTRIBUTIONS 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES (a - b + c - d + e) 0.00 0.00 0.0%

112



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V12
File: Fund-B, Version 9 Page 9 Printed: 5/16/2025 10:43 AM

Budget, July 1
Tri-Valley ROP JPA General Fund 01 40410 0000000
Alameda County Expenditures by Function Form 01

G8BU7E67PA(2025-26)

Description Function Codes Object Codes
2024-25

Estimated Actuals
2025-26
Budget

Percent
Difference

A. REVENUES

1) LCFF Sources 8010-8099 0.00 0.00 0.0%

2) Federal Rev enue 8100-8299 109,570.00 0.00 -100.0%

3) Other State Rev enue 8300-8599 5,151,752.00 2,720,740.00 -47.2%

4) Other Local Rev enue 8600-8799 4,668,775.00 4,760,952.00 2.0%

5) TOTAL, REVENUES 9,930,097.00 7,481,692.00 -24.7%

B. EXPENDITURES (Objects 1000-7999)

1) Instruction 1000-1999 4,127,409.00 3,488,765.00 -15.5%

2) Instruction - Related Serv ices 2000-2999 1,215,046.00 986,759.00 -18.8%

3) Pupil Serv ices 3000-3999 425,999.00 454,887.00 6.8%

4) Ancillary  Serv ices 4000-4999 713,878.00 619,904.00 -13.2%

5) Community  Serv ices 5000-5999 0.00 0.00 0.0%

6) Enterprise 6000-6999 0.00 0.00 0.0%

7) General Administration 7000-7999 543,088.00 546,556.00 0.6%

8) Plant Serv ices 8000-8999 18,975.00 19,925.00 5.0%

9) Other Outgo 9000-9999 Except 7600-
7699 3,083,753.00 2,361,453.00 -23.4%

10) TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 10,128,148.00 8,478,249.00 -16.3%

C. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES BEFORE OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES AND USES (A5 - B10) (198,051.00) (996,557.00) 403.2%

D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES

1) Interf und Transf ers

a) Transf ers In 8900-8929 0.00 0.00 0.0%

b) Transf ers Out 7600-7629 0.00 0.00 0.0%

2) Other Sources/Uses

a) Sources 8930-8979 0.00 0.00 0.0%

b) Uses 7630-7699 0.00 0.00 0.0%

3) Contributions 8980-8999 0.00 0.00 0.0%

4) TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 0.00 0.00 0.0%

E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND BALANCE (C + D4) (198,051.00) (996,557.00) 403.2%

F. FUND BALANCE, RESERVES

1) Beginning Fund Balance

a) As of  July  1 - Unaudited 9791 2,816,224.00 2,618,173.00 -7.0%

113



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V12
File: Fund-B, Version 9 Page 10 Printed: 5/16/2025 10:43 AM

Budget, July 1
Tri-Valley ROP JPA General Fund 01 40410 0000000
Alameda County Expenditures by Function Form 01

G8BU7E67PA(2025-26)

Description Function Codes Object Codes
2024-25

Estimated Actuals
2025-26
Budget

Percent
Difference

b) Audit Adjustments 9793 0.00 0.00 0.0%

c) As of  July  1 - Audited (F1a + F1b) 2,816,224.00 2,618,173.00 -7.0%

d) Other Restatements 9795 0.00 0.00 0.0%

e) Adjusted Beginning Balance (F1c + F1d) 2,816,224.00 2,618,173.00 -7.0%

2) Ending Balance, June 30 (E + F1e) 2,618,173.00 1,621,616.00 -38.1%

Components of  Ending Fund Balance

a) Nonspendable

Rev olv ing Cash 9711 20,000.00 20,000.00 0.0%

Stores 9712 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Prepaid Items 9713 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Others 9719 0.00 0.00 0.0%

b) Restricted 9740 605,361.00 227,382.00 -62.4%

c) Committed

Stabilization Arrangements 9750 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Commitments (by  Resource/Object) 9760 0.00 0.00 0.0%

d) Assigned

Other Assignments (by  Resource/Object) 9780 211,332.00 183,504.00 -13.2%

Additional Board Reserv e 3% (excluding obj 7211) 0000 9780 211,332.00

Additional Board Reserv e 3% (excluding obj 7211) 0000 9780 183,504.00

e) Unassigned/Unappropriated

Reserv e f or Economic Uncertainties 9789 506,407.00 423,912.00 -16.3%

Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 9790 1,275,073.00 766,818.00 -39.9%

114



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V12
File: Fund-B, Version 9 Page 11 Printed: 5/16/2025 10:43 AM

Budget, July 1
Tri-Valley ROP JPA General Fund 01 40410 0000000
Alameda County Exhibit: Restricted Balance Detail Form 01

G8BU7E67PA(2025-26)

Resource Description

2024-25
Estimated
Actuals

2025-26
Budget

7339 528,914.00 227,381.00

9010 Other Restricted Local 76,447.00 1.00

Total, Restricted Balance 605,361.00 227,382.00

115



REVENUE CHANGE DETAIL

Federal
-$                     No Change

State
     Strong Workforce Grants 291,773$             SWG #5 Final 30%

-                            
-                            

Total State Revenue Changes 291,773$             

Local
     Interest 36,966$               Increased Interest
     Donations 2,570                   Increased Donations

-                            
Total Local Revenue Changes 39,536                 
TOTAL REVENUE CHANGES 331,309$             

EXPENDITURES CHANGE DETAIL

Salaries & Benefits 69,788$               Salary Increases

Books and Supplies (45,591)                

Services and Other Operating Expenses 22,159                 

Other Outgo -                            

TOTAL EXPENDITURE CHANGES 46,356                 

2024-25 Estimated Actuals
Budget Change Detail

116



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V12
File: Fund-F, Version 5 Page 1 Printed: 5/16/2025 10:24 AM

Budget, July 1
Tri-Valley ROP JPA Student Activity Special Revenue Fund 01 40410 0000000
Alameda County Expenditures by Object Form 08

G8BU7E67PA(2025-26)

Description Resource Codes Object Codes
2024-25

Estimated Actuals
2025-26
Budget

Percent
Difference

A. REVENUES

1) LCFF Sources 8010-8099 0.00 0.00 0.0%

2) Federal Rev enue 8100-8299 0.00 0.00 0.0%

3) Other State Rev enue 8300-8599 0.00 0.00 0.0%

4) Other Local Rev enue 8600-8799 0.00 0.00 0.0%

5) TOTAL, REVENUES 0.00 0.00 0.0%

B. EXPENDITURES

1) Certif icated Salaries 1000-1999 0.00 0.00 0.0%

2) Classif ied Salaries 2000-2999 0.00 0.00 0.0%

3) Employ ee Benef its 3000-3999 0.00 0.00 0.0%

4) Books and Supplies 4000-4999 0.00 0.00 0.0%

5) Serv ices and Other Operating Expenditures 5000-5999 0.00 0.00 0.0%

6) Capital Outlay 6000-6999 0.00 0.00 0.0%

7) Other Outgo (excluding Transf ers of  Indirect Costs) 7100-7299,
7400-7499 0.00 0.00 0.0%

8) Other Outgo - Transf ers of  Indirect Costs 7300-7399 0.00 0.00 0.0%

9) TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 0.00 0.00 0.0%

C. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES
BEFORE OTHER FINANCING SOURCES AND USES (A5 - B9) 0.00 0.00 0.0%

D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES

1) Interf und Transf ers

a) Transf ers In 8900-8929 0.00 0.00 0.0%

b) Transf ers Out 7600-7629 0.00 0.00 0.0%

2) Other Sources/Uses

a) Sources 8930-8979 0.00 0.00 0.0%

b) Uses 7630-7699 0.00 0.00 0.0%

3) Contributions 8980-8999 0.00 0.00 0.0%

4) TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 0.00 0.00 0.0%

E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND BALANCE (C + D4) 0.00 0.00 0.0%

F. FUND BALANCE, RESERVES

1) Beginning Fund Balance

a) As of  July  1 - Unaudited 9791 62,468.00 62,468.00 0.0%

b) Audit Adjustments 9793 0.00 0.00 0.0%

c) As of  July  1 - Audited (F1a + F1b) 62,468.00 62,468.00 0.0%

d) Other Restatements 9795 0.00 0.00 0.0%

e) Adjusted Beginning Balance (F1c + F1d) 62,468.00 62,468.00 0.0%

2) Ending Balance, June 30 (E + F1e) 62,468.00 62,468.00 0.0%

Components of  Ending Fund Balance

a) Nonspendable

Rev olv ing Cash 9711 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Stores 9712 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Prepaid Items 9713 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Others 9719 0.00 0.00 0.0%

b) Restricted 9740 62,468.00 62,468.00 0.0%

c) Committed

Stabilization Arrangements 9750 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Commitments 9760 0.00 0.00 0.0%

d) Assigned

Other Assignments 9780 0.00 0.00 0.0%

e) Unassigned/Unappropriated

Reserv e f or Economic Uncertainties 9789 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 9790 0.00 0.00 0.0%

G. ASSETS

1) Cash

117



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V12
File: Fund-F, Version 5 Page 2 Printed: 5/16/2025 10:24 AM

Budget, July 1
Tri-Valley ROP JPA Student Activity Special Revenue Fund 01 40410 0000000
Alameda County Expenditures by Object Form 08

G8BU7E67PA(2025-26)

Description Resource Codes Object Codes
2024-25

Estimated Actuals
2025-26
Budget

Percent
Difference

a) in County  Treasury 9110 0.00

1) Fair Value Adjustment to Cash in County  Treasury 9111 0.00

b) in Banks 9120 62,468.31

c) in Rev olv ing Cash Account 9130 0.00

d) with Fiscal Agent/Trustee 9135 0.00

e) Collections Awaiting Deposit 9140 0.00

2) Inv estments 9150 0.00

3) Accounts Receiv able 9200 0.00

4) Due f rom Grantor Gov ernment 9290 0.00

5) Due f rom Other Funds 9310 0.00

6) Stores 9320 0.00

7) Prepaid Expenditures 9330 0.00

8) Other Current Assets 9340 0.00

9) Lease Receiv able 9380 0.00

10) TOTAL, ASSETS 62,468.31

H. DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

1) Def erred Outf lows of  Resources 9490 0.00

2) TOTAL, DEFERRED OUTFLOWS 0.00

I. LIABILITIES

1) Accounts Pay able 9500 0.00

2) Due to Grantor Gov ernments 9590 0.00

3) Due to Other Funds 9610 0.00

4) Current Loans 9640 0.00

5) Unearned Rev enues 9650 0.00

6) TOTAL, LIABILITIES 0.00

J. DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

1) Def erred Inf lows of  Resources 9690 0.00

2) TOTAL, DEFERRED INFLOWS 0.00

K. FUND EQUITY

Ending Fund Balance, June 30

(G10 + H2) - (I6 + J2) 62,468.31

REVENUES

Sale of  Equipment and Supplies 8631 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other Sales 8639 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Interest 8660 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Net Increase (Decrease) in the Fair Value of  Inv estments 8662 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other Fees and Contracts 8689 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other Local Rev enue 8699 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, REVENUES 0.00 0.00 0.0%

CERTIFICATED SALARIES

Certif icated Teachers' Salaries 1100 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Certif icated Pupil Support Salaries 1200 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Certif icated Superv isors' and Administrators' Salaries 1300 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Certif icated Salaries 1900 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, CERTIFICATED SALARIES 0.00 0.00 0.0%

CLASSIFIED SALARIES

Classif ied Instructional Salaries 2100 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Classif ied Support Salaries 2200 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Classif ied Superv isors' and Administrators' Salaries 2300 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Clerical, Technical and Of f ice Salaries 2400 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Classif ied Salaries 2900 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, CLASSIFIED SALARIES 0.00 0.00 0.0%

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

STRS 3101-3102 0.00 0.00 0.0%

118



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V12
File: Fund-F, Version 5 Page 3 Printed: 5/16/2025 10:24 AM

Budget, July 1
Tri-Valley ROP JPA Student Activity Special Revenue Fund 01 40410 0000000
Alameda County Expenditures by Object Form 08

G8BU7E67PA(2025-26)

Description Resource Codes Object Codes
2024-25

Estimated Actuals
2025-26
Budget

Percent
Difference

PERS 3201-3202 0.00 0.00 0.0%

OASDI/Medicare/Alternativ e 3301-3302 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Health and Welf are Benef its 3401-3402 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Unemploy ment Insurance 3501-3502 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Workers' Compensation 3601-3602 0.00 0.00 0.0%

OPEB, Allocated 3701-3702 0.00 0.00 0.0%

OPEB, Activ e Employ ees 3751-3752 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Employ ee Benef its 3901-3902 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 0.00 0.00 0.0%

BOOKS AND SUPPLIES

Materials and Supplies 4300 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Noncapitalized Equipment 4400 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, BOOKS AND SUPPLIES 0.00 0.00 0.0%

SERVICES AND OTHER OPERATING EXPENDITURES

Subagreements f or Serv ices 5100 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Dues and Memberships 5300 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Insurance 5400-5450 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Rentals, Leases, Repairs, and Noncapitalized Improv ements 5600 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Transf ers of  Direct Costs - Interf und 5750 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Prof essional/Consulting Serv ices and

Operating Expenditures 5800 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Communications 5900 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, SERVICES AND OTHER OPERATING EXPENDITURES 0.00 0.00 0.0%

CAPITAL OUTLAY

Equipment 6400 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Equipment Replacement 6500 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Lease Assets 6600 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Subscription Assets 6700 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, CAPITAL OUTLAY 0.00 0.00 0.0%

OTHER OUTGO - TRANSFERS OF INDIRECT COSTS

Transf ers of  Indirect Costs - Interf und 7350 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, OTHER OUTGO - TRANSFERS OF INDIRECT COSTS 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 0.00 0.00 0.0%

INTERFUND TRANSFERS

INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN

Other Authorized Interf und Transf ers In 8919 0.00 0.00 0.0%

(a) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN 0.00 0.00 0.0%

INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT

Other Authorized Interf und Transf ers Out 7619 0.00 0.00 0.0%

(b) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT 0.00 0.00 0.0%

OTHER SOURCES/USES

SOURCES

Proceeds f rom Disposal of  Capital Assets 8953 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Transf ers f rom Funds of

Lapsed/Reorganized LEAs 8965 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Proceeds f rom Leases 8972 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Proceeds f rom SBITAs 8974 0.00 0.00 0.0%

(c) TOTAL, SOURCES 0.00 0.00 0.0%

USES

Transf ers of  Funds f rom

Lapsed/Reorganized LEAs 7651 0.00 0.00 0.0%

(d) TOTAL, USES 0.00 0.00 0.0%

CONTRIBUTIONS

Contributions f rom Unrestricted Rev enues 8980 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Contributions f rom Restricted Rev enues 8990 0.00 0.00 0.0%

119



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V12
File: Fund-F, Version 5 Page 4 Printed: 5/16/2025 10:24 AM

Budget, July 1
Tri-Valley ROP JPA Student Activity Special Revenue Fund 01 40410 0000000
Alameda County Expenditures by Object Form 08

G8BU7E67PA(2025-26)

Description Resource Codes Object Codes
2024-25

Estimated Actuals
2025-26
Budget

Percent
Difference

(e) TOTAL, CONTRIBUTIONS 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES

(a- b + c - d + e) 0.00 0.00 0.0%

120



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V12
File: Fund-F, Version 5 Page 5 Printed: 5/16/2025 10:24 AM

Budget, July 1
Tri-Valley ROP JPA Student Activity Special Revenue Fund 01 40410 0000000
Alameda County Expenditures by Function Form 08

G8BU7E67PA(2025-26)

Description Function Codes Object Codes
2024-25

Estimated Actuals
2025-26
Budget

Percent
Difference

A. REVENUES

1) LCFF Sources 8010-8099 0.00 0.00 0.0%

2) Federal Rev enue 8100-8299 0.00 0.00 0.0%

3) Other State Rev enue 8300-8599 0.00 0.00 0.0%

4) Other Local Rev enue 8600-8799 0.00 0.00 0.0%

5) TOTAL, REVENUES 0.00 0.00 0.0%

B. EXPENDITURES (Objects 1000-7999)

1) Instruction 1000-1999 0.00 0.00 0.0%

2) Instruction - Related Serv ices 2000-2999 0.00 0.00 0.0%

3) Pupil Serv ices 3000-3999 0.00 0.00 0.0%

4) Ancillary  Serv ices 4000-4999 0.00 0.00 0.0%

5) Community  Serv ices 5000-5999 0.00 0.00 0.0%

6) Enterprise 6000-6999 0.00 0.00 0.0%

7) General Administration 7000-7999 0.00 0.00 0.0%

8) Plant Serv ices 8000-8999 0.00 0.00 0.0%

9) Other Outgo 9000-9999 Except 7600-
7699 0.00 0.00 0.0%

10) TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 0.00 0.00 0.0%

C. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES
BEFORE OTHER FINANCING SOURCES AND USES (A5 - B9) 0.00 0.00 0.0%

D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES

1) Interf und Transf ers

a) Transf ers In 8900-8929 0.00 0.00 0.0%

b) Transf ers Out 7600-7629 0.00 0.00 0.0%

2) Other Sources/Uses

a) Sources 8930-8979 0.00 0.00 0.0%

b) Uses 7630-7699 0.00 0.00 0.0%

3) Contributions 8980-8999 0.00 0.00 0.0%

4) TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 0.00 0.00 0.0%

E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND BALANCE (C + D4) 0.00 0.00 0.0%

F. FUND BALANCE, RESERVES

1) Beginning Fund Balance

a) As of  July  1 - Unaudited 9791 62,468.00 62,468.00 0.0%

b) Audit Adjustments 9793 0.00 0.00 0.0%

c) As of  July  1 - Audited (F1a + F1b) 62,468.00 62,468.00 0.0%

d) Other Restatements 9795 0.00 0.00 0.0%

e) Adjusted Beginning Balance (F1c + F1d) 62,468.00 62,468.00 0.0%

2) Ending Balance, June 30 (E + F1e) 62,468.00 62,468.00 0.0%

Components of  Ending Fund Balance

a) Nonspendable

Rev olv ing Cash 9711 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Stores 9712 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Prepaid Items 9713 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Others 9719 0.00 0.00 0.0%

b) Restricted 9740 62,468.00 62,468.00 0.0%

c) Committed

Stabilization Arrangements 9750 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Commitments (by  Resource/Object) 9760 0.00 0.00 0.0%

d) Assigned

Other Assignments (by  Resource/Object) 9780 0.00 0.00 0.0%

e) Unassigned/Unappropriated

Reserv e f or Economic Uncertainties 9789 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 9790 0.00 0.00 0.0%

121



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V12
File: Fund-F, Version 5 Page 6 Printed: 5/16/2025 10:24 AM

Budget, July 1
Tri-Valley ROP JPA Student Activity Special Revenue Fund 01 40410 0000000
Alameda County Exhibit: Restricted Balance Detail Form 08

G8BU7E67PA(2025-26)

Resource Description

2024-25
Estimated
Actuals

2025-26
Budget

8210 Student Activ ity  Funds 62,468.00 62,468.00

Total, Restricted Balance 62,468.00 62,468.00

122



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V12
File: Fund-B, Version 9 Page 1 Printed: 5/16/2025 10:25 AM

Budget, July 1
Tri-Valley ROP JPA Adult Education Fund 01 40410 0000000
Alameda County Expenditures by Object Form 11

G8BU7E67PA(2025-26)

Description Resource Codes Object Codes
2024-25

Estimated Actuals
2025-26
Budget

Percent
Difference

A. REVENUES

1) LCFF Sources 8010-8099 0.00 0.00 0.0%

2) Federal Rev enue 8100-8299 0.00 0.00 0.0%

3) Other State Rev enue 8300-8599 75,401.00 0.00 -100.0%

4) Other Local Rev enue 8600-8799 55,164.00 0.00 -100.0%

5) TOTAL, REVENUES 130,565.00 0.00 -100.0%

B. EXPENDITURES

1) Certif icated Salaries 1000-1999 552.00 0.00 -100.0%

2) Classif ied Salaries 2000-2999 0.00 0.00 0.0%

3) Employ ee Benef its 3000-3999 129.00 0.00 -100.0%

4) Books and Supplies 4000-4999 0.00 0.00 0.0%

5) Serv ices and Other Operating Expenditures 5000-5999 95,630.00 273,269.00 185.8%

6) Capital Outlay 6000-6999 0.00 0.00 0.0%

7) Other Outgo (excluding Transf ers of  Indirect Costs) 7100-7299,
7400-7499 0.00 0.00 0.0%

8) Other Outgo - Transf ers of  Indirect Costs 7300-7399 0.00 0.00 0.0%

9) TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 96,311.00 273,269.00 183.7%

C. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES BEFORE OTHER
FINANCING SOURCES AND USES (A5 - B9) 34,254.00 (273,269.00) -897.8%

D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES

1) Interf und Transf ers

a) Transf ers In 8900-8929 0.00 0.00 0.0%

b) Transf ers Out 7600-7629 0.00 0.00 0.0%

2) Other Sources/Uses

a) Sources 8930-8979 0.00 0.00 0.0%

b) Uses 7630-7699 0.00 0.00 0.0%

3) Contributions 8980-8999 0.00 0.00 0.0%

4) TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 0.00 0.00 0.0%

E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND BALANCE (C + D4) 34,254.00 (273,269.00) -897.8%

F. FUND BALANCE, RESERVES

1) Beginning Fund Balance

a) As of  July  1 - Unaudited 9791 239,015.00 273,269.00 14.3%

b) Audit Adjustments 9793 0.00 0.00 0.0%

c) As of  July  1 - Audited (F1a + F1b) 239,015.00 273,269.00 14.3%

d) Other Restatements 9795 0.00 0.00 0.0%

e) Adjusted Beginning Balance (F1c + F1d) 239,015.00 273,269.00 14.3%

2) Ending Balance, June 30 (E + F1e) 273,269.00 0.00 -100.0%

Components of  Ending Fund Balance

a) Nonspendable

Rev olv ing Cash 9711 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Stores 9712 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Prepaid Items 9713 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Others 9719 0.00 0.00 0.0%

b) Restricted 9740 273,269.00 0.00 -100.0%

c) Committed

Stabilization Arrangements 9750 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Commitments 9760 0.00 0.00 0.0%

d) Assigned

Other Assignments 9780 0.00 0.00 0.0%

e) Unassigned/Unappropriated Reserv e f or Economic Uncertainties 9789 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 9790 0.00 0.00 0.0%

G. ASSETS

1) Cash

a) in County  Treasury 9110 313,214.23

1) Fair Value Adjustment to Cash in County  Treasury 9111 0.00

b) in Banks 9120 0.00

c) in Rev olv ing Cash Account 9130 0.00

d) with Fiscal Agent/Trustee 9135 0.00

123



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V12
File: Fund-B, Version 9 Page 2 Printed: 5/16/2025 10:25 AM

Budget, July 1
Tri-Valley ROP JPA Adult Education Fund 01 40410 0000000
Alameda County Expenditures by Object Form 11

G8BU7E67PA(2025-26)

Description Resource Codes Object Codes
2024-25

Estimated Actuals
2025-26
Budget

Percent
Difference

e) Collections Awaiting Deposit 9140 0.00

2) Inv estments 9150 0.00

3) Accounts Receiv able 9200 0.00

4) Due f rom Grantor Gov ernment 9290 0.00

5) Due f rom Other Funds 9310 0.00

6) Stores 9320 0.00

7) Prepaid Expenditures 9330 0.00

8) Other Current Assets 9340 0.00

9) Lease Receiv able 9380 0.00

10) TOTAL, ASSETS 313,214.23

H. DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

1) Def erred Outf lows of  Resources 9490 0.00

2) TOTAL, DEFERRED OUTFLOWS 0.00

I. LIABILITIES

1) Accounts Pay able 9500 0.00

2) Due to Grantor Gov ernments 9590 0.00

3) Due to Other Funds 9610 0.00

4) Current Loans 9640

5) Unearned Rev enue 9650 0.00

6) TOTAL, LIABILITIES 0.00

J. DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

1) Def erred Inf lows of  Resources 9690 0.00

2) TOTAL, DEFERRED INFLOWS 0.00

K. FUND EQUITY

(G10 + H2) - (I6 + J2) 313,214.23

LCFF SOURCES

LCFF Transf ers

LCFF Transf ers - Current Year 8091 0.00 0.00 0.0%

LCFF Transf ers - Prior Years 8099 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, LCFF SOURCES 0.00 0.00 0.0%

FEDERAL REVENUE

Interagency  Contracts Between LEAs 8285 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Pass-Through Rev enues f rom

Federal Sources 8287 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Career and Technical Education 3500-3599 8290 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other Federal Rev enue All Other 8290 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, FEDERAL REVENUE 0.00 0.00 0.0%

OTHER STATE REVENUE

Pass-Through Rev enues f rom State Sources 8587 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Adult Education Program 6391 8590 33,195.00 0.00 -100.0%

All Other State Rev enue All Other 8590 42,206.00 0.00 -100.0%

TOTAL, OTHER STATE REVENUE 75,401.00 0.00 -100.0%

OTHER LOCAL REVENUE

Other Local Rev enue

Sales

Sale of  Equipment/Supplies 8631 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Leases and Rentals 8650 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Interest 8660 7,741.00 0.00 -100.0%

Net Increase (Decrease) in the Fair Value of  Inv estments 8662 2,423.00 0.00 -100.0%

Fees and Contracts

Adult Education Fees 8671 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Interagency  Serv ices 8677 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Local Rev enue

All Other Local Rev enue 8699 45,000.00 0.00 -100.0%

Tuition 8710 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, OTHER LOCAL REVENUE 55,164.00 0.00 -100.0%

TOTAL, REVENUES 130,565.00 0.00 -100.0%

124



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V12
File: Fund-B, Version 9 Page 3 Printed: 5/16/2025 10:25 AM

Budget, July 1
Tri-Valley ROP JPA Adult Education Fund 01 40410 0000000
Alameda County Expenditures by Object Form 11

G8BU7E67PA(2025-26)

Description Resource Codes Object Codes
2024-25

Estimated Actuals
2025-26
Budget

Percent
Difference

CERTIFICATED SALARIES

Certif icated Teachers' Salaries 1100 552.00 0.00 -100.0%

Certif icated Pupil Support Salaries 1200 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Certif icated Superv isors' and Administrators' Salaries 1300 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Certif icated Salaries 1900 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, CERTIFICATED SALARIES 552.00 0.00 -100.0%

CLASSIFIED SALARIES

Classif ied Instructional Salaries 2100 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Classif ied Support Salaries 2200 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Classif ied Superv isors' and Administrators' Salaries 2300 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Clerical, Technical and Of f ice Salaries 2400 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Classif ied Salaries 2900 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, CLASSIFIED SALARIES 0.00 0.00 0.0%

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

STRS 3101-3102 106.00 0.00 -100.0%

PERS 3201-3202 0.00 0.00 0.0%

OASDI/Medicare/Alternativ e 3301-3302 8.00 0.00 -100.0%

Health and Welf are Benef its 3401-3402 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Unemploy ment Insurance 3501-3502 1.00 0.00 -100.0%

Workers' Compensation 3601-3602 14.00 0.00 -100.0%

OPEB, Allocated 3701-3702 0.00 0.00 0.0%

OPEB, Activ e Employ ees 3751-3752 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Employ ee Benef its 3901-3902 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 129.00 0.00 -100.0%

BOOKS AND SUPPLIES

Approv ed Textbooks and Core Curricula Materials 4100 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Books and Other Ref erence Materials 4200 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Materials and Supplies 4300 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Noncapitalized Equipment 4400 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, BOOKS AND SUPPLIES 0.00 0.00 0.0%

SERVICES AND OTHER OPERATING EXPENDITURES

Subagreements f or Serv ices 5100 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Trav el and Conf erences 5200 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Dues and Memberships 5300 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Insurance 5400-5450 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Operations and Housekeeping Serv ices 5500 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Rentals, Leases, Repairs, and Noncapitalized Improv ements 5600 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Transf ers of  Direct Costs 5710 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Transf ers of  Direct Costs - Interf und 5750 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Prof essional/Consulting Serv ices and Operating Expenditures 5800 95,630.00 273,269.00 185.8%

Communications 5900 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, SERVICES AND OTHER OPERATING EXPENDITURES 95,630.00 273,269.00 185.8%

CAPITAL OUTLAY

Land 6100 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Land Improv ements 6170 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Buildings and Improv ements of  Buildings 6200 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Equipment 6400 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Equipment Replacement 6500 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Lease Assets 6600 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Subscription Assets 6700 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, CAPITAL OUTLAY 0.00 0.00 0.0%

OTHER OUTGO (excluding Transfers of Indirect Costs)

Tuition

Tuition, Excess Costs, and/or Def icit Pay ments

Pay ments to Districts or Charter Schools 7141 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Pay ments to County  Of f ices 7142 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Pay ments to JPAs 7143 0.00 0.00 0.0%

125



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V12
File: Fund-B, Version 9 Page 4 Printed: 5/16/2025 10:25 AM

Budget, July 1
Tri-Valley ROP JPA Adult Education Fund 01 40410 0000000
Alameda County Expenditures by Object Form 11

G8BU7E67PA(2025-26)

Description Resource Codes Object Codes
2024-25

Estimated Actuals
2025-26
Budget

Percent
Difference

Other Transf ers Out

Transf ers of  Pass-Through Rev enues

To Districts or Charter Schools 7211 0.00 0.00 0.0%

To County  Of f ices 7212 0.00 0.00 0.0%

To JPAs 7213 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Debt Serv ice

Debt Serv ice - Interest 7438 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Debt Serv ice - Principal 7439 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, OTHER OUTGO (excluding Transf ers of  Indirect Costs) 0.00 0.00 0.0%

OTHER OUTGO - TRANSFERS OF INDIRECT COSTS

Transf ers of  Indirect Costs - Interf und 7350 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, OTHER OUTGO - TRANSFERS OF INDIRECT COSTS 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 96,311.00 273,269.00 183.7%

INTERFUND TRANSFERS

INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN

Other Authorized Interf und Transf ers In 8919 0.00 0.00 0.0%

(a) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN 0.00 0.00 0.0%

INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT

To: State School Building Fund/County  School Facilities Fund 7613 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Authorized Interf und Transf ers Out 7619 0.00 0.00 0.0%

(b) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT 0.00 0.00 0.0%

OTHER SOURCES/USES

SOURCES

Other Sources

Transf ers f rom Funds of  Lapsed/Reorganized LEAs 8965 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Long-Term Debt Proceeds

Proceeds f rom Certif icates of  Participation 8971 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Proceeds f rom Leases 8972 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Proceeds f rom SBITAs 8974 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other Financing Sources 8979 0.00 0.00 0.0%

(c) TOTAL, SOURCES 0.00 0.00 0.0%

USES

Transf ers of  Funds f rom Lapsed/Reorganized LEAs 7651 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other Financing Uses 7699 0.00 0.00 0.0%

(d) TOTAL, USES 0.00 0.00 0.0%

CONTRIBUTIONS

Contributions f rom Unrestricted Rev enues 8980 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Contributions f rom Restricted Rev enues 8990 0.00 0.00 0.0%

(e) TOTAL, CONTRIBUTIONS 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES (a - b + c - d + e) 0.00 0.00 0.0%

126



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V12
File: Fund-B, Version 9 Page 5 Printed: 5/16/2025 10:25 AM

Budget, July 1
Tri-Valley ROP JPA Adult Education Fund 01 40410 0000000
Alameda County Expenditures by Function Form 11

G8BU7E67PA(2025-26)

Description Function Codes Object Codes
2024-25

Estimated Actuals
2025-26
Budget

Percent
Difference

A. REVENUES

1) LCFF Sources 8010-8099 0.00 0.00 0.0%

2) Federal Rev enue 8100-8299 0.00 0.00 0.0%

3) Other State Rev enue 8300-8599 75,401.00 0.00 -100.0%

4) Other Local Rev enue 8600-8799 55,164.00 0.00 -100.0%

5) TOTAL, REVENUES 130,565.00 0.00 -100.0%

B. EXPENDITURES (Objects 1000-7999)

1) Instruction 1000-1999 96,311.00 273,269.00 183.7%

2) Instruction - Related Serv ices 2000-2999 0.00 0.00 0.0%

3) Pupil Serv ices 3000-3999 0.00 0.00 0.0%

4) Ancillary  Serv ices 4000-4999 0.00 0.00 0.0%

5) Community  Serv ices 5000-5999 0.00 0.00 0.0%

6) Enterprise 6000-6999 0.00 0.00 0.0%

7) General Administration 7000-7999 0.00 0.00 0.0%

8) Plant Serv ices 8000-8999 0.00 0.00 0.0%

9) Other Outgo 9000-9999 Except 7600-
7699 0.00 0.00 0.0%

10) TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 96,311.00 273,269.00 183.7%

C. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES BEFORE OTHER
FINANCING SOURCES AND USES (A5 - B10) 34,254.00 (273,269.00) -897.8%

D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES

1) Interf und Transf ers

a) Transf ers In 8900-8929 0.00 0.00 0.0%

b) Transf ers Out 7600-7629 0.00 0.00 0.0%

2) Other Sources/Uses

a) Sources 8930-8979 0.00 0.00 0.0%

b) Uses 7630-7699 0.00 0.00 0.0%

3) Contributions 8980-8999 0.00 0.00 0.0%

4) TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 0.00 0.00 0.0%

E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND BALANCE (C + D4) 34,254.00 (273,269.00) -897.8%

F. FUND BALANCE, RESERVES

1) Beginning Fund Balance

a) As of  July  1 - Unaudited 9791 239,015.00 273,269.00 14.3%

b) Audit Adjustments 9793 0.00 0.00 0.0%

c) As of  July  1 - Audited (F1a + F1b) 239,015.00 273,269.00 14.3%

d) Other Restatements 9795 0.00 0.00 0.0%

e) Adjusted Beginning Balance (F1c + F1d) 239,015.00 273,269.00 14.3%

2) Ending Balance, June 30 (E + F1e) 273,269.00 0.00 -100.0%

Components of  Ending Fund Balance

a) Nonspendable

Rev olv ing Cash 9711 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Stores 9712 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Prepaid Items 9713 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Others 9719 0.00 0.00 0.0%

b) Restricted 9740 273,269.00 0.00 -100.0%

c) Committed

Stabilization Arrangements 9750 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Commitments (by  Resource/Object) 9760 0.00 0.00 0.0%

d) Assigned

Other Assignments (by  Resource/Object) 9780 0.00 0.00 0.0%

e) Unassigned/Unappropriated

Reserv e f or Economic Uncertainties 9789 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 9790 0.00 0.00 0.0%

127



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V12
File: Fund-B, Version 9 Page 6 Printed: 5/16/2025 10:25 AM

Budget, July 1
Tri-Valley ROP JPA Adult Education Fund 01 40410 0000000
Alameda County Exhibit: Restricted Balance Detail Form 11

G8BU7E67PA(2025-26)

Resource Description

2024-25
Estimated
Actuals

2025-26
Budget

6371 CalWORKs f or ROCP or Adult Education 195,469.00 0.00

6391 Adult Education Program 77,800.00 0.00

Total, Restricted Balance 273,269.00 0.00

128



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V12
File: CASH, Version 8 Page 1 Printed: 5/16/2025 12:14 AM

Budget, July 1 01 40410 0000000
Tri-Valley ROP JPA 2025-26 Budget Form CASH
Alameda County Cashflow Worksheet - Budget Year (1) G8BU7E67PA(2025-26)

Description Object
Beginning
Balances

(Ref. Only)
July August September October November December January February

ESTIMATES THROUGH THE MONTH OF: JUNE

A. BEGINNING CASH 5,923,491.87 5,797,470.05 5,394,031.05 4,684,015.30 4,280,576.30 3,877,137.30 4,205,271.05 3,801,832.05

B. RECEIPTS

LCFF Sources

Principal Apportionment 8010-
8019

Property  Taxes 8020-
8079

Miscellaneous Funds 8080-
8099

Federal Rev enue 8100-
8299

Other State Rev enue 8300-
8599

Other Local Rev enue 8600-
8799 80,800.25 2,299,675.75

Interf und Transf ers In 8900-
8929

All Other Financing Sources 8930-
8979

TOTAL RECEIPTS 0.00 0.00 80,800.25 0.00 0.00 2,299,675.75 0.00 0.00

C. DISBURSEMENTS

Certif icated Salaries 1000-
1999 55,000.00 232,634.00 232,634.00 232,634.00 232,634.00 232,634.00 232,634.00 232,634.00

Classif ied Salaries 2000-
2999 22,000.00 52,960.00 52,960.00 52,960.00 52,960.00 52,960.00 52,960.00 52,960.00

Employ ee Benef its 3000-
3999 20,000.00 91,468.00 91,468.00 91,468.00 91,468.00 91,468.00 91,468.00 91,468.00

Books and Supplies 4000-
4999 5,000.00 26,377.00 26,377.00 26,377.00 26,377.00 26,377.00 26,377.00 26,377.00

Serv ices 5000-
5999 387,377.00 387,377.00

Capital Outlay 6000-
6999

Other Outgo 7000-
7499 1,180,726.00

Interf und Transf ers Out 7600-
7629

129



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V12
File: CASH, Version 8 Page 2 Printed: 5/16/2025 12:14 AM

Budget, July 1 01 40410 0000000
Tri-Valley ROP JPA 2025-26 Budget Form CASH
Alameda County Cashflow Worksheet - Budget Year (1) G8BU7E67PA(2025-26)

Description Object
Beginning
Balances

(Ref. Only)
July August September October November December January February

All Other Financing Uses 7630-
7699

TOTAL DISBURSEMENTS 102,000.00 403,439.00 790,816.00 403,439.00 403,439.00 1,971,542.00 403,439.00 403,439.00

D. BALANCE SHEET ITEMS

Assets and Def erred Outf lows

Cash Not In Treasury 9111-
9199 39,365.99 19,365.99

Accounts Receiv able 9200-
9299

Due From Other Funds 9310

Stores 9320

Prepaid Expenditures 9330

Other Current Assets 9340

Lease Receiv able 9380

Def erred Outf lows of  Resources 9490

SUBTOTAL 39,365.99 19,365.99 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Liabilities and Def erred Inf lows

Accounts Pay able 9500-
9599 43,387.81 43,387.81

Due To Other Funds 9610

Current Loans 9640

Unearned Rev enues 9650

Def erred Inf lows of  Resources 9690

SUBTOTAL 43,387.81 43,387.81 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Nonoperating

Suspense Clearing 9910

TOTAL BALANCE SHEET ITEMS (4,021.82) (24,021.82) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

E. NET INCREASE/DECREASE (B - C + D) (126,021.82) (403,439.00) (710,015.75) (403,439.00) (403,439.00) 328,133.75 (403,439.00) (403,439.00)

F. ENDING CASH (A + E) 5,797,470.05 5,394,031.05 4,684,015.30 4,280,576.30 3,877,137.30 4,205,271.05 3,801,832.05 3,398,393.05

G. ENDING CASH, PLUS CASH ACCRUALS AND
ADJUSTMENTS

130



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V12
File: CASH, Version 8 Page 3 Printed: 5/16/2025 12:14 AM

Budget, July 1 01 40410 0000000
Tri-Valley ROP JPA 2025-26 Budget Form CASH
Alameda County Cashflow Worksheet - Budget Year (1) G8BU7E67PA(2025-26)

Description Object March April May June Accruals Adjustments TOTAL BUDGET

ESTIMATES THROUGH THE MONTH OF: JUNE

A. BEGINNING CASH 3,398,393.05 2,688,377.30 2,284,938.30 4,602,239.30

B. RECEIPTS

LCFF Sources

Principal Apportionment 8010-
8019 0.00 0.00 0.00

Property  Taxes 8020-
8079 0.00 0.00

Miscellaneous Funds 8080-
8099 0.00 0.00

Federal Rev enue 8100-
8299 0.00 0.00

Other State Rev enue 8300-
8599 2,720,740.00 2,720,740.00 2,720,740.00

Other Local Rev enue 8600-
8799 80,800.25 2,299,675.75 4,760,952.00 4,760,952.00

Interf und Transf ers In 8900-
8929 0.00 0.00

All Other Financing Sources 8930-
8979 0.00 0.00

TOTAL RECEIPTS 80,800.25 0.00 2,720,740.00 2,299,675.75 0.00 0.00 7,481,692.00 7,481,692.00

C. DISBURSEMENTS

Certif icated Salaries 1000-
1999 232,634.00 232,634.00 232,634.00 232,634.00 4,999.00 2,618,973.00 2,618,973.00

Classif ied Salaries 2000-
2999 52,960.00 52,960.00 52,960.00 52,960.00 5,008.00 609,568.00 609,568.00

Employ ee Benef its 3000-
3999 91,468.00 91,468.00 91,468.00 91,468.00 9,999.00 1,036,147.00 1,036,147.00

Books and Supplies 4000-
4999 26,377.00 26,377.00 26,377.00 26,377.00 4,999.00 300,146.00 300,146.00

Serv ices 5000-
5999 387,377.00 387,377.00 2,454.00 1,551,962.00 1,551,962.00

Capital Outlay 6000-
6999 0.00 0.00

Other Outgo 7000-
7499 1,180,727.00 2,361,453.00 2,361,453.00

Interf und Transf ers Out 7600-
7629 0.00 0.00

All Other Financing Uses 7630-
7699 0.00 0.00

131



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V12
File: CASH, Version 8 Page 4 Printed: 5/16/2025 12:14 AM

Budget, July 1 01 40410 0000000
Tri-Valley ROP JPA 2025-26 Budget Form CASH
Alameda County Cashflow Worksheet - Budget Year (1) G8BU7E67PA(2025-26)

Description Object March April May June Accruals Adjustments TOTAL BUDGET

TOTAL DISBURSEMENTS 790,816.00 403,439.00 403,439.00 1,971,543.00 27,459.00 0.00 8,478,249.00 8,478,249.00

D. BALANCE SHEET ITEMS

Assets and Def erred Outf lows

Cash Not In Treasury 9111-
9199 19,365.99

Accounts Receiv able 9200-
9299 0.00

Due From Other Funds 9310 0.00

Stores 9320 0.00

Prepaid Expenditures 9330 0.00

Other Current Assets 9340 0.00

Lease Receiv able 9380 0.00

Def erred Outf lows of  Resources 9490 0.00

SUBTOTAL 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 19,365.99

Liabilities and Def erred Inf lows

Accounts Pay able 9500-
9599 43,387.81

Due To Other Funds 9610 0.00

Current Loans 9640 0.00

Unearned Rev enues 9650 0.00

Def erred Inf lows of  Resources 9690 0.00

SUBTOTAL 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 43,387.81

Nonoperating

Suspense Clearing 9910 0.00

TOTAL BALANCE SHEET ITEMS 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 (24,021.82)

E. NET INCREASE/DECREASE (B - C + D) (710,015.75) (403,439.00) 2,317,301.00 328,132.75 (27,459.00) 0.00 (1,020,578.82) (996,557.00)

F. ENDING CASH (A + E) 2,688,377.30 2,284,938.30 4,602,239.30 4,930,372.05

G. ENDING CASH, PLUS CASH ACCRUALS AND ADJUSTMENTS 4,902,913.05

132



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V12
File: CASH, Version 8 Page 5 Printed: 5/16/2025 12:14 AM

Budget, July 1 01 40410 0000000
Tri-Valley ROP JPA 2025-26 Budget Form CASH
Alameda County Cashflow Worksheet - Budget Year (2) G8BU7E67PA(2025-26)

Description Object
Beginning
Balances

(Ref. Only)
July August September October November December January February

ESTIMATES THROUGH THE MONTH OF: JUNE

A. BEGINNING CASH 4,930,372.05 4,930,372.05 4,930,372.05 4,930,372.05 4,930,372.05 4,930,372.05 4,930,372.05 4,930,372.05

B. RECEIPTS

LCFF Sources

Principal Apportionment 8010-
8019

Property  Taxes 8020-
8079

Miscellaneous Funds 8080-
8099

Federal Rev enue 8100-
8299

Other State Rev enue 8300-
8599

Other Local Rev enue 8600-
8799

Interf und Transf ers In 8900-
8929

All Other Financing Sources 8930-
8979

TOTAL RECEIPTS 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

C. DISBURSEMENTS

Certif icated Salaries 1000-
1999

Classif ied Salaries 2000-
2999

Employ ee Benef its 3000-
3999

Books and Supplies 4000-
4999

Serv ices 5000-
5999

Capital Outlay 6000-
6999

Other Outgo 7000-
7499

Interf und Transf ers Out 7600-
7629

133



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V12
File: CASH, Version 8 Page 6 Printed: 5/16/2025 12:14 AM

Budget, July 1 01 40410 0000000
Tri-Valley ROP JPA 2025-26 Budget Form CASH
Alameda County Cashflow Worksheet - Budget Year (2) G8BU7E67PA(2025-26)

Description Object
Beginning
Balances

(Ref. Only)
July August September October November December January February

All Other Financing Uses 7630-
7699

TOTAL DISBURSEMENTS 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

D. BALANCE SHEET ITEMS

Assets and Def erred Outf lows

Cash Not In Treasury 9111-
9199

Accounts Receiv able 9200-
9299

Due From Other Funds 9310

Stores 9320

Prepaid Expenditures 9330

Other Current Assets 9340

Lease Receiv able 9380

Def erred Outf lows of  Resources 9490

SUBTOTAL 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Liabilities and Def erred Inf lows

Accounts Pay able 9500-
9599

Due To Other Funds 9610

Current Loans 9640

Unearned Rev enues 9650

Def erred Inf lows of  Resources 9690

SUBTOTAL 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Nonoperating

Suspense Clearing 9910

TOTAL BALANCE SHEET ITEMS 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

E. NET INCREASE/DECREASE (B - C + D) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

F. ENDING CASH (A + E) 4,930,372.05 4,930,372.05 4,930,372.05 4,930,372.05 4,930,372.05 4,930,372.05 4,930,372.05 4,930,372.05

G. ENDING CASH, PLUS CASH ACCRUALS AND
ADJUSTMENTS

134



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V12
File: CASH, Version 8 Page 7 Printed: 5/16/2025 12:14 AM

Budget, July 1 01 40410 0000000
Tri-Valley ROP JPA 2025-26 Budget Form CASH
Alameda County Cashflow Worksheet - Budget Year (2) G8BU7E67PA(2025-26)

Description Object March April May June Accruals Adjustments TOTAL BUDGET

ESTIMATES THROUGH THE MONTH OF: JUNE

A. BEGINNING CASH 4,930,372.05 4,930,372.05 4,930,372.05 4,930,372.05

B. RECEIPTS

LCFF Sources

Principal Apportionment 8010-
8019 0.00

Property  Taxes 8020-
8079 0.00

Miscellaneous Funds 8080-
8099 0.00

Federal Rev enue 8100-
8299 0.00

Other State Rev enue 8300-
8599 0.00

Other Local Rev enue 8600-
8799 0.00

Interf und Transf ers In 8900-
8929 0.00

All Other Financing Sources 8930-
8979 0.00

TOTAL RECEIPTS 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

C. DISBURSEMENTS

Certif icated Salaries 1000-
1999 0.00

Classif ied Salaries 2000-
2999 0.00

Employ ee Benef its 3000-
3999 0.00

Books and Supplies 4000-
4999 0.00

Serv ices 5000-
5999 0.00

Capital Outlay 6000-
6999 0.00

Other Outgo 7000-
7499 0.00

Interf und Transf ers Out 7600-
7629 0.00

All Other Financing Uses 7630-
7699 0.00

135



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V12
File: CASH, Version 8 Page 8 Printed: 5/16/2025 12:14 AM

Budget, July 1 01 40410 0000000
Tri-Valley ROP JPA 2025-26 Budget Form CASH
Alameda County Cashflow Worksheet - Budget Year (2) G8BU7E67PA(2025-26)

Description Object March April May June Accruals Adjustments TOTAL BUDGET

TOTAL DISBURSEMENTS 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

D. BALANCE SHEET ITEMS

Assets and Def erred Outf lows

Cash Not In Treasury 9111-
9199 0.00

Accounts Receiv able 9200-
9299 0.00

Due From Other Funds 9310 0.00

Stores 9320 0.00

Prepaid Expenditures 9330 0.00

Other Current Assets 9340 0.00

Lease Receiv able 9380 0.00

Def erred Outf lows of  Resources 9490 0.00

SUBTOTAL 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Liabilities and Def erred Inf lows

Accounts Pay able 9500-
9599 0.00

Due To Other Funds 9610 0.00

Current Loans 9640 0.00

Unearned Rev enues 9650 0.00

Def erred Inf lows of  Resources 9690 0.00

SUBTOTAL 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Nonoperating

Suspense Clearing 9910 0.00

TOTAL BALANCE SHEET ITEMS 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

E. NET INCREASE/DECREASE (B - C + D) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

F. ENDING CASH (A + E) 4,930,372.05 4,930,372.05 4,930,372.05 4,930,372.05

G. ENDING CASH, PLUS CASH ACCRUALS AND ADJUSTMENTS 4,930,372.05

136



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V12
File: MYPJ, Version 7 Page 1 Printed: 5/16/2025 10:26 AM

Budget, July 1
Tri-Valley ROP JPA General Fund 01 40410 0000000
Alameda County Multiyear Projections Form MYP

Unrestricted/Restricted G8BU7E67PA(2025-26)

Description Object
Codes

2025-26
Budget

(Form 01)
(A)

%
Change

(Cols. C-A/A)
(B)

2026-27
Projection

(C)

%
Change

(Cols. E-C/C)
(D)

2027-28
Projection

(E)

(Enter projections f or subsequent y ears 1 and 2 in Columns
C and E; current y ear - Column A - is extracted)

A. REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES

1. LCFF Sources 8010-8099

2. Federal Rev enues 8100-8299 0.00 0.00% 0.00 0.00%

3. Other State Rev enues 8300-8599 2,720,740.00 -84.77% 414,287.00 -13.28% 359,287.00

4. Other Local Rev enues 8600-8799 4,760,952.00 3.84% 4,943,658.00 3.84% 5,133,620.00

5. Other Financing Sources

a. Transf ers In 8900-8929 0.00 0.00% 0.00%

b. Other Sources 8930-8979 0.00 0.00% 0.00%

c. Contributions 8980-8999 0.00 0.00% 0.00%

6. Total (Sum lines A1 thru A5c) 7,481,692.00 -28.39% 5,357,945.00 2.52% 5,492,907.00

B. EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES

1. Certif icated Salaries

a. Base Salaries 2,618,973.00 2,631,693.00

b. Step & Column Adjustment 12,720.00 12,783.00

c. Cost-of -Liv ing Adjustment

d. Other Adjustments

e. Total Certif icated Salaries (Sum lines B1a thru B1d) 1000-1999 2,618,973.00 0.49% 2,631,693.00 0.49% 2,644,476.00

2. Classif ied Salaries

a. Base Salaries 609,568.00 615,275.00

b. Step & Column Adjustment 5,707.00 5,819.00

c. Cost-of -Liv ing Adjustment

d. Other Adjustments

e. Total Classif ied Salaries (Sum lines B2a thru B2d) 2000-2999 609,568.00 0.94% 615,275.00 0.95% 621,094.00

3. Employ ee Benef its 3000-3999 1,036,147.00 1.48% 1,051,466.00 1.03% 1,062,249.00

4. Books and Supplies 4000-4999 300,146.00 2.07% 306,360.00 2.13% 312,883.00

5. Serv ices and Other Operating Expenditures 5000-5999 1,551,962.00 -4.79% 1,477,553.00 -26.99% 1,078,722.00

6. Capital Outlay 6000-6999 0.00 0.00% 0.00%

7. Other Outgo (excluding Transf ers of  Indirect Costs) 7100-7299, 7400-
7499 2,361,453.00 -100.00% 0.00 0.00% 0.00

8. Other Outgo - Transf ers of  Indirect Costs 7300-7399 0.00 0.00% 0.00%

9. Other Financing Uses

a. Transf ers Out 7600-7629 0.00 0.00% 0.00%

b. Other Uses 7630-7699 0.00 0.00% 0.00%

10. Other Adjustments (Explain in Section G below)

11. Total (Sum lines B1 thru B10) 8,478,249.00 -28.26% 6,082,347.00 -5.97% 5,719,424.00

C. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND BALANCE (Line
A6 minus line B11) (996,557.00) (724,402.00) (226,517.00)

D. FUND BALANCE

1. Net Beginning Fund Balance (Form 01, line F1e) 2,618,173.00 1,621,616.00 897,214.00

2. Ending Fund Balance (Sum lines C and D1) 1,621,616.00 897,214.00 670,697.00

3. Components of  Ending Fund Balance

(Enter reserv e projections f or subsequent y ears 1 and 2 in
Columns C and E; current y ear - Column A - is extracted.)

a. Nonspendable 9710-9719 0.00 20,000.00 20,000.00

b. Restricted 9740 227,382.00 171,450.00

c. Committed

1. Stabilization Arrangements 9750 0.00

2. Other Commitments 9760 0.00

d. Assigned 9780 183,504.00 182,470.00 171,583.00

e. Unassigned/Unappropriated

137



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V12
File: MYPJ, Version 7 Page 2 Printed: 5/16/2025 10:26 AM

Budget, July 1
Tri-Valley ROP JPA General Fund 01 40410 0000000
Alameda County Multiyear Projections Form MYP

Unrestricted/Restricted G8BU7E67PA(2025-26)

Description Object
Codes

2025-26
Budget

(Form 01)
(A)

%
Change

(Cols. C-A/A)
(B)

2026-27
Projection

(C)

%
Change

(Cols. E-C/C)
(D)

2027-28
Projection

(E)

1. Reserv e f or Economic Uncertainties 9789 0.00 304,117.00 285,971.00

2. Unassigned/Unappropriated 9790 1,210,730.00 219,177.00 193,143.00

f . Total Components of  Ending Fund Balance (Line D3f
must agree with line D2) 1,621,616.00 897,214.00 670,697.00

E. AVAILABLE RESERVES

1. General Fund

a. Stabilization Arrangements 9750 0.00 0.00 0.00

b. Reserv e f or Economic Uncertainties 9789 0.00 304,117.00 285,971.00

c. Unassigned/Unappropriated 9790 1,210,730.00 219,177.00 193,143.00

d. Negativ e Restricted Ending Balances

(Negativ e resources 2000-9999) (Enter projections) 979Z 0.00 0.00

2. Special Reserv e Fund - Noncapital Outlay  (Fund 17)

a. Stabilization Arrangements 9750

b. Reserv e f or Economic Uncertainties 9789

c. Unassigned/Unappropriated 9790

3. Total Av ailable Reserv es - by  Amount (Sum lines E1a thru
E2c) 1,210,730.00 523,294.00 479,114.00

4. Total Av ailable Reserv es - by  Percent (Line E3 div ided by
Line F2) 14.28% 8.60% 8.38%

F. RECOMMENDED RESERVES

1. JPA ADA

Used to determine the reserv e standard percentage lev el
on Line F5

(Enter ADA f or current and two subsequent y ears, if
applicable) 0.00 0.00 0.00

2. Total Expenditures and Other Financing Uses (Line B11) 8,478,249.00 6,082,347.00 5,719,424.00

3. Less: Special Education Pass-through

(Not applicable f or JPAs) N/A N/A N/A

4. Sub-Total (Line F2 minus F3) 8,478,249.00 6,082,347.00 5,719,424.00

5. Reserv e Standard Percentage Lev el

(Ref er to Form 01CS, Criterion 10 f or calculation details) 5.00% 5.00% 5.00%

6. Reserv e Standard - By  Percent (Line F4 times F5) 423,912.45 304,117.35 285,971.20

7. Reserv e Standard - By  Amount

(Ref er to Form 01CS, Criterion 10 f or calculation details) 88,000.00 88,000.00 88,000.00

8. Reserv e Standard (Greater of  Line F6 or F7) 423,912.45 304,117.35 285,971.20

9. Av ailable Reserv es (Line E3) Meet the Reserv e Standard
(Line F8) YES YES YES

G. ASSUMPTIONS

Please prov ide below or on a separate attachment, the assumptions used to determine the projections f or the f irst and second subsequent f iscal y ears. Further, please include an explanation
f or any  signif icant expenditure adjustments projected in lines B1d, B2d, and B10. For additional inf ormation, please ref er to the Budget Assumptions section of  the SACS Financial Reporting
Sof tware User Guide.

138



Major Object Category Description 2026-27 2027-28
Revenue

8000 State Revenue CTE Incentive Grant (2,361,453)$    -$                 
Middle College Early College 25,000$           (25,000)$         
Career & College Access Pathways 30,000$           (30,000)$         

8000 Local Revenue Member Contribution Increase (4%) 177,510$         184,610$         
MOU Billbacks 5,196$             5,352$             

Total Revenue Changes (2,123,747)$    134,962$        

Expenditure
1000 Certificated Salaries Step and Column Adjustment 12,720$           12,783$           
2000 Classified Salaries Step and Column Adjustment 5,707$             5,819$             
3000 Employee Benefits PERS rate increase, STRS/PERS employee changes 15,319$           10,784$           
4000 Materials & Supplies Reduce SWG & MCEC, CPI Adjustments 6,214$             6,524$             
5000 Services & Other Operating Reduce SWG & MCEC, CPI Adjustments (74,409)$         (398,831)$       
7000 Other Outgo CTE Incentive Grant Transfer (2,361,453)$    -$                 

Total Expenditure Changes (2,395,902)$    (362,921)$       

2025-26 Adopted Budget
Multi-Year Projection (MYP)  Change Detail

139



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V12
File: CS_JPA, Version 9 Page 1 Printed: 5/16/2025 10:26 AM

2025-26 Budget, July 1 01 40410 0000000
Tri-Valley ROP JPA General Fund Form 01CS
Alameda County Joint Powers Agency (JPA) Criteria and Standards Review G8BU7E67PA(2025-26)

Prov ide methodology  and assumptions used to estimate rev enues, expenditures, reserv es and f und balance, and multiy ear commitments (including cost-of -liv ing adjustments). Dev iations
f rom the standards must be explained and may  af f ect the approv al of  the budget.

Note: This f orm is the same as the school district criteria and standards rev iew except f or the av erage daily  attendance, enrollment, ADA to enrollment, LCFF rev enue, and
ongoing and major maintenance account criteria, which are not applicable f or JPAs. The criteria and standards rev iew should be completed only  to the extent that indiv idual
components apply  to each JPA, and with concurrence f rom the rev iewing agency .

CRITERIA AND STANDARDS

1. CRITERION: Average Daily Attendance

This criterion is not checked f or JPAs

2. CRITERION: Enrollment

This criterion is not checked f or JPAs

3 CRITERION: ADA to Enrollment

This criterion is not checked f or JPAs

4. CRITERION: Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF) Revenue

This criterion is not checked f or JPAs

5. CRITERION: Salaries and Benefits

STANDARD: Projected ratio of  total salaries and benef its to total general f und expenditures f or any  of  the budget y ear or two subsequent f iscal y ears has not changed f rom the
historical av erage ratio f rom the three prior f iscal y ears by  more than the greater of  three percent or the JPA's required reserv es percentage.

5A. Calculating the JPA's Historical Average Ratio of Salaries and Benefits to Total General Fund Expenditures

DATA ENTRY: All data are extracted or calculated.

Estimated/Unaudited Actuals

Salaries and Benef its Total Expenditures Ratio of  Salaries and
Benef its

Fiscal Year (Form 01, Objects 1000-3999) (Form 01, Objects 1000-
7499) to Total Expenditures

Third Prior Year (2022-23) 3,769,715.75 9,250,339.86 40.8%

Second Prior Year (2023-24) 3,615,511.35 8,892,436.66 40.7%

First Prior Year (2024-25) 4,119,881.00 10,128,148.00 40.7%

Historical Av erage Ratio: 40.7%

Budget Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year

(2025-26) (2026-27) (2027-28)

JPA's Reserv e Standard Percentage (Criterion 10B, Line 4): 5.0% 5.0% 5.0%

JPA's Salaries and Benefits Standard (historical average ratio, plus/minus the greater of
3% or the JPA's reserve standard percentage): 35.7% to 45.7% 35.7% to 45.7% 35.7% to 45.7%

140



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V12
File: CS_JPA, Version 9 Page 2 Printed: 5/16/2025 10:26 AM

2025-26 Budget, July 1 01 40410 0000000
Tri-Valley ROP JPA General Fund Form 01CS
Alameda County Joint Powers Agency (JPA) Criteria and Standards Review G8BU7E67PA(2025-26)

5B. Calculating the JPA's Projected Ratio of Salaries and Benefits to Total General Fund Expenditures

DATA ENTRY: If  Form MYP exists, Salaries and Benef its, and Total Expenditures data f or the 1st and 2nd Subsequent Years will be extracted; if  not, enter data f or the two subsequent
y ears. All other data are extracted or calculated.

Budget

Salaries and Benef its Total Expenditures

(Form 01, Objects 1000-
3999)

(Form 01, Objects 1000-
7499)

Ratio of  Salaries and
Benef its

Fiscal Year (Form MYP, Lines B1-B3) (Form MYP, Lines B1-B8,
B10) to Total Expenditures Status

Budget Year (2025-26) 4,264,688.00 8,478,249.00 50.3% Not Met

1st Subsequent Year (2026-27) 4,298,434.00 6,082,347.00 70.7% Not Met

2nd Subsequent Year (2027-28) 4,327,819.00 5,719,424.00 75.7% Not Met

5C. Comparison of JPA Salaries and Benefits Ratio to the Standard

DATA ENTRY: Enter an explanation if  the standard is not met.

1a. STANDARD NOT MET - Projected ratio(s) of  salary  and benef it costs to total expenditures are outside the standard in one or more of  the budget or two subsequent f iscal y ears.
Prov ide reasons why  the projection(s) exceed the standard, a description of  the methods and assumptions used in projecting salaries and benef its, and what changes, if  any ,
will be made to bring the projected salary  and benef it costs within the standard.

Explanation: TVROP's historical av erage f or salaries and benef its is low due to the CTE Incentiv e Grant pass-through.

(required if  NOT met)

6 CRITERION: Other Revenues and Expenditures

STANDARD: Projected operating rev enues (including f ederal, other state, and other local) or expenditures (including books and supplies, and serv ices and other operating), f or
any  of  the budget y ear or two subsequent f iscal y ears, hav e not changed f rom the prior f iscal y ear amount by  more than the f unded cost-of -liv ing adjustment (COLA) plus or
minus ten percent. For each major object category , changes that exceed the f unded COLA plus or minus f iv e percent must be explained.

6A. Calculating the JPA's Other Revenues and Expenditures Standard Percentage Ranges

DATA ENTRY: Enter data f or the budget and two subsequent f iscal y ears on line 1. All other data are extracted or calculated.

Budget Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year

(2025-26) (2026-27) (2027-28)

1. JPA's Change in Funding Lev el

2. JPA's Other Revenues and Expenditures Standard Percentage Range (Line 1,
plus/minus 10%): -10.00% to 10.00% -10.00% to 10.00% -10.00% to 10.00%

3. JPA's Other Rev enues and Expenditures Explanation Percentage Range (Line 1, plus/minus
5%): -5.00% to 5.00% -5.00% to 5.00% -5.00% to 5.00%

141



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V12
File: CS_JPA, Version 9 Page 3 Printed: 5/16/2025 10:26 AM

2025-26 Budget, July 1 01 40410 0000000
Tri-Valley ROP JPA General Fund Form 01CS
Alameda County Joint Powers Agency (JPA) Criteria and Standards Review G8BU7E67PA(2025-26)

6B. Calculating the JPA's Change by Major Object Category and Comparison to the Explanation Percentage Range (Section 6A, Line 3)

DATA ENTRY: If  Form MYP exists, the 1st and 2nd Subsequent Year data f or each rev enue and expenditure section will be extracted; if  not, enter data f or the two subsequent y ears. All
other data are extracted or calculated.

Explanations must be entered f or each category  if  the percent change f or any  y ear exceeds the JPA's explanation percentage range.

Object Range / Fiscal Year Amount Percent Change Ov er Prev ious
Year

Change Is Outside
Explanation Range

Federal Revenue (Fund 01, Objects 8100-8299) (Form MYP, Line A2)

First Prior Year (2024-25) 109,570.00

Budget Year (2025-26) 0.00 -100.00% Yes

1st Subsequent Year (2026-27) 0.00 0.00% No

2nd Subsequent Year (2027-28) 0.00% Yes

Explanation: TVROP receiv ed the Federal WIOA Grant in 2024-25

(required if  y es)

Other State Revenue (Fund 01, Objects 8300-8599) (Form MYP, Line A3)

First Prior Year (2024-25) 5,151,752.00

Budget Year (2025-26) 2,720,740.00 -47.19% Yes

1st Subsequent Year (2026-27) 414,287.00 -84.77% Yes

2nd Subsequent Year (2027-28) 359,287.00 -13.28% Yes

Explanation: TVROP receiv ed CTEIG, SWG, CCAP, and MCEC grants in 2024-25.

(required if  y es)

Other Local Revenue (Fund 01, Objects 8600-8799) (Form MYP, Line A4)

First Prior Year (2024-25) 4,668,775.00

Budget Year (2025-26) 4,760,952.00 1.97% No

1st Subsequent Year (2026-27) 4,943,658.00 3.84% No

2nd Subsequent Year (2027-28) 5,133,620.00 3.84% No

Explanation:

(required if  y es)

Books and Supplies (Fund 01, Objects 4000-4999) (Form MYP, Line B4)

First Prior Year (2024-25) 300,181.00

Budget Year (2025-26) 300,146.00 -0.01% No

1st Subsequent Year (2026-27) 306,360.00 2.07% No

2nd Subsequent Year (2027-28) 312,883.00 2.13% No

Explanation:

(required if  y es)

Services and Other Operating Expenditures (Fund 01, Objects 5000-5999) (Form MYP, Line B5)

First Prior Year (2024-25) 2,624,333.00

Budget Year (2025-26) 1,551,962.00 -40.86% Yes

1st Subsequent Year (2026-27) 1,477,553.00 -4.79% No

2nd Subsequent Year (2027-28) 1,078,722.00 -26.99% Yes

Explanation: Remov ed carry ov er related to the Strong Workf orce, Career & College Access Pathway s, and Middle College grants.

(required if  y es)

142



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V12
File: CS_JPA, Version 9 Page 4 Printed: 5/16/2025 10:26 AM

2025-26 Budget, July 1 01 40410 0000000
Tri-Valley ROP JPA General Fund Form 01CS
Alameda County Joint Powers Agency (JPA) Criteria and Standards Review G8BU7E67PA(2025-26)

6C. Calculating the JPA's Change in Total Operating Revenues and Expenditures (Section 6A, Line 2)

DATA ENTRY: All data are extracted or calculated.

Percent Change

Object Range / Fiscal Year Amount Ov er Prev ious Year Status

Total Federal, Other State, and Other Local Revenue (Section 6B)

First Prior Year (2024-25) 9,930,097.00

Budget Year (2025-26) 7,481,692.00 -24.66% Not Met

1st Subsequent Year (2026-27) 5,357,945.00 -28.39% Not Met

2nd Subsequent Year (2027-28) 5,492,907.00 2.52% Met

Total Books and Supplies, and Services and Other Operating Expenditures (Section 6B)

First Prior Year (2024-25) 2,924,514.00

Budget Year (2025-26) 1,852,108.00 -36.67% Not Met

1st Subsequent Year (2026-27) 1,783,913.00 -3.68% Met

2nd Subsequent Year (2027-28) 1,391,605.00 -21.99% Not Met

6D. Comparison of JPA Total Operating Revenues and Expenditures to the Standard Percentage Range

DATA ENTRY: Explanations are linked f rom Section 6B if  the status in Section 6C is not met; no entry  is allowed below.

1a. STANDARD NOT MET - Projected total operating rev enues hav e changed by  more than the standard in one or more of  the budget or two subsequent f iscal y ears. Reasons f or
the projected change, descriptions of  the methods and assumptions used in the projections, and what changes, if  any , will be made to bring the projected operating rev enues
within the standard must be entered in Section 6B abov e and will also display  in the explanation box below.

Explanation: TVROP receiv ed the Federal WIOA Grant in 2024-25

Federal Rev enue

(linked f rom 6B if  NOT met)

Explanation: TVROP receiv ed CTEIG, SWG, CCAP, and MCEC grants in 2024-25.

Other State Rev enue

(linked f rom 6B if  NOT met)

Explanation:

Other Local Rev enue

(linked f rom 6B if  NOT met)

1b. STANDARD NOT MET - Projected total operating expenditures hav e changed by  more than the standard in one or more of  the budget or two subsequent f iscal y ears. Reasons
f or the projected change, descriptions of  the methods and assumptions used in the projections, and what changes, if  any , will be made to bring the projected operating
expenditures within the standard must be entered in Section 6B abov e and will also display  in the explanation box below.

Explanation:

Books and Supplies

(linked f rom 6B if  NOT met)

Explanation: Remov ed carry ov er related to the Strong Workf orce, Career & College Access Pathway s, and Middle College grants.

Serv ices and Other Exps

(linked f rom 6B if  NOT met)

143



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V12
File: CS_JPA, Version 9 Page 5 Printed: 5/16/2025 10:26 AM

2025-26 Budget, July 1 01 40410 0000000
Tri-Valley ROP JPA General Fund Form 01CS
Alameda County Joint Powers Agency (JPA) Criteria and Standards Review G8BU7E67PA(2025-26)

7. CRITERION: Facilities Maintenance

STANDARD: Conf irm that the annual contribution f or f acilities maintenance f unding is not less than the amount required pursuant to Education Code Section 17070.75, if
applicable, and that the JPA is prov iding adequately  to preserv e the f unctionality  of  its f acilities f or their normal lif e in accordance with Education Code sections 52060(d)(1) and
17002(d)(1).

Determining the JPA's Compliance with the Contribution Requirement for EC Section 17070.75 - Ongoing and Major Maintenance/Restricted Maintenance Account
(OMMA/RMA)

This criterion is not checked f or JPAs

8. CRITERION: Deficit Spending

STANDARD: Def icit spending (total expenditures and other f inancing uses is greater than total rev enues and other f inancing sources) as a percentage of  total expenditures and
other f inancing uses, has not exceeded one-third of  the JPA's av ailable reserv es¹ as a percentage of  total expenditures and other f inancing uses² in two out of  three prior f iscal
y ears:

8A. Calculating the JPA's Deficit Spending Standard Percentage Levels

DATA ENTRY: All data are extracted or calculated.

Third Prior Year Second Prior Year First Prior Year

(2022-23) (2023-24) (2024-25)

1. JPA's Av ailable Reserv e Amounts

a. Stabilization Arrangements

(Funds 01 and 17, Object 9750) 0.00 0.00 0.00

b. Reserv e f or Economic Uncertainties

(Funds 01 and 17, Object 9789) 462,517.00 444,622.00 0.00

c. Unassigned/Unappropriated

(Funds 01 and 17, Object 9790) 1,599,579.31 1,410,097.03 1,781,480.00

d. Negativ e General Fund Ending Balances in Restricted

Resources (Fund 01, Object 979Z, if  negativ e, f or each of

resources 2000-9999) 0.00 0.00 0.00

e. Av ailable Reserv es (Lines 1a through 1d) 2,062,096.31 1,854,719.03 1,781,480.00

2. JPA's Total Expenditures and Other Financing Uses

9,250,339.86 9,044,205.70 10,128,148.00

a. JPA's Total Expenditures and Other Financing Uses

(Criterion 8B)

b. Plus: Special Education Pass-through Funds

(Not applicable f or JPAs) N/A N/A N/A

c. Total Expenditures and Other Financing Uses

(Line 2a plus Line 2b) 9,250,339.86 9,044,205.70 10,128,148.00

3. JPA's Av ailable Reserv e Percentage

22.3% 20.5% 17.6%(Line 1e div ided by  Line 2c)

JPA's Deficit Spending Standard Percentage Levels

7.4% 6.8% 5.9%(Line 3 times 1/3):

¹Av ailable reserv es are the amounts in the Stabilization Arrangements, Reserv e f or Economic

Uncertainties, and Unassigned/Unappropriated accounts in the General Fund and the Special
Reserv e

Fund f or Other Than Capital Outlay  Projects. Av ailable reserv es will be reduced by  any
negativ e ending balances in restricted resources in the General Fund.

² A JPA that is the Administrativ e Unit (AU) of  a Special Education Local Plan Area (SELPA)
may  exclude f rom its expenditures the distribution of  f unds to its participating members.

144



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V12
File: CS_JPA, Version 9 Page 6 Printed: 5/16/2025 10:26 AM

2025-26 Budget, July 1 01 40410 0000000
Tri-Valley ROP JPA General Fund Form 01CS
Alameda County Joint Powers Agency (JPA) Criteria and Standards Review G8BU7E67PA(2025-26)

8B. Calculating the JPA's Deficit Spending Percentages

DATA ENTRY: All data are extracted or calculated.

Net Change in Total Expenditures Def icit Spending Lev el

Fund Balance and Other Financing Uses (If  Net Change in Fund

Fiscal Year (Form 01, Section E) (Form 01, Objects 1000-
7999)

Balance is negativ e, else
N/A) Status

Third Prior Year (2022-23) (819,805.63) 9,250,339.86 8.9% Not Met

Second Prior Year (2023-24) 42,318.43 9,044,205.70 N/A Met

First Prior Year (2024-25) (198,051.00) 10,128,148.00 2.0% Met

Budget Year (2025-26) (Inf ormation only ) (996,557.00) 8,478,249.00

8C. Comparison of JPA Deficit Spending to the Standard

DATA ENTRY: Enter an explanation if  the standard is not met.

1a. STANDARD MET - Def icit spending, if  any , has not exceeded the standard percentage lev el in two or more of  the three prior y ears.

Explanation:

(required if  NOT met)

145



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V12
File: CS_JPA, Version 9 Page 7 Printed: 5/16/2025 10:26 AM

2025-26 Budget, July 1 01 40410 0000000
Tri-Valley ROP JPA General Fund Form 01CS
Alameda County Joint Powers Agency (JPA) Criteria and Standards Review G8BU7E67PA(2025-26)

9. CRITERION: Fund and Cash Balances

A. STANDARD: Budgeted beginning general f und balance has not been ov erestimated f or two out of  three prior f iscal y ears by  more than the f ollowing percentage lev els:

Percentage Lev el ¹ JPA ADA

1.7% 0 to 300

1.3% 301 to 1,000

1.0% 1,001 to 30,000

0.7% 30,001 to 250,000

0.3% 250,001 and ov er

¹ Percentage lev els equate to a rate of  def icit spending which would eliminate
recommended reserv es f or economic uncertainties ov er a three y ear period.

JPA ADA (Criterion 10): 0

JPA's Fund Balance Standard Percentage Level: 1.7%

9A-1. Calculating the JPA's General Fund Beginning Balance Percentages

DATA ENTRY: Enter data in the Original Budget column f or the First, Second, and Third Prior Years; all other data are extracted or calculated.

General Fund Beginning Balance ² Beginning Fund Balance

(Form 01, Line F1e) Variance Lev el

Fiscal Year Original Budget Estimated/Unaudited Actuals (If  ov erestimated, else N/A) Status

Third Prior Year (2022-23) 3,593,715.00 3,593,711.09 0.00% Met

Second Prior Year (2023-24) 2,110,372.00 2,773,905.46 N/A Met

First Prior Year (2024-25) 1,854,503.00 2,816,224.00 N/A Met

Budget Year (2025-26) (Inf ormation only ) 2,618,173.00

² Adjusted beginning balance, including audit adjustments and other restatements (objects
9791-9795)

146



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V12
File: CS_JPA, Version 9 Page 8 Printed: 5/16/2025 10:26 AM

2025-26 Budget, July 1 01 40410 0000000
Tri-Valley ROP JPA General Fund Form 01CS
Alameda County Joint Powers Agency (JPA) Criteria and Standards Review G8BU7E67PA(2025-26)

9A-2. Comparison of JPA Beginning Fund Balance to the Standard

DATA ENTRY: Enter an explanation if  the standard is not met.

1a. STANDARD MET - General f und beginning f und balance has not been ov erestimated by  more than the standard percentage lev el f or two or more of  the prev ious three y ears.

Explanation:

(required if  NOT met)

B. Cash Balance Standard: Projected general f und cash balance will be positiv e at the end of  the current f iscal y ear.

9B-1. Determining if the JPA's Ending Cash Balance is Positive

DATA ENTRY: If  Form CASH exists, data will be extracted; if  not, data must be entered below.

Ending Cash Balance

General Fund

Fiscal Year (Form CASH, Line F, June Column) Status

Current Year (2025-26) 4,915,372.05 Met

9B-2. Comparison of the JPA's Ending Cash Balance to the Standard

DATA ENTRY: Enter an explanation if  the standard is not met.

1a. STANDARD MET - Projected general f und cash balance will be positiv e at the end of  the current f iscal y ear.

Explanation

(required if  not met)

147



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V12
File: CS_JPA, Version 9 Page 9 Printed: 5/16/2025 10:26 AM

2025-26 Budget, July 1 01 40410 0000000
Tri-Valley ROP JPA General Fund Form 01CS
Alameda County Joint Powers Agency (JPA) Criteria and Standards Review G8BU7E67PA(2025-26)

10. CRITERION: Reserves

STANDARD: Av ailable reserv es¹ f or any  of  the budget y ear or two subsequent f iscal y ears are not less than the f ollowing percentages or amounts² as applied to total
expenditures and other f inancing uses³:

Percentage Lev el JPA ADA

5% or $88,000 (greater of ) 0 to 300

4% or $88,000 (greater of ) 301 to 1,000

3% 1,001 to 30,000

2% 30,001 to 250,000

1% 250,001 and ov er

¹ Av ailable reserv es are the amounts in the Stabilization Arrangements, Reserv e f or
Economic Uncertainties, and Unassigned/Unappropriated accounts in the General Fund and
the Special Reserv e Fund f or Other Than Capital Outlay  Projects. Av ailable reserv es will
be reduced by  any  negativ e ending balances in restricted resources in the General Fund.

² Dollar amounts to be adjusted annually  by  the prior y ear statutory  cost-of -liv ing
adjustment (Education Code Section 42238.02) and then rounded to the nearest thousand.

³ A JPA that is the Administrativ e Unit (AU) of  a Special Education Local Plan Area
(SELPA) may  exclude f rom its expenditures the distribution of  f unds to its participating
members.

Budget Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year

(2025-26) (2026-27) (2027-28)

JPA ADA (Form MYP, Line F1, if  av ailable; else def aults to zero and may  be ov erwritten): 0 0 0

JPA's Reserve Standard Percentage Level: 5.0% 5.0% 5.0%

148



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V12
File: CS_JPA, Version 9 Page 10 Printed: 5/16/2025 10:26 AM

2025-26 Budget, July 1 01 40410 0000000
Tri-Valley ROP JPA General Fund Form 01CS
Alameda County Joint Powers Agency (JPA) Criteria and Standards Review G8BU7E67PA(2025-26)

10A. Calculating the JPA's Special Education Pass-through Exclusions (only for JPAs that serve as the AU of a SELPA)

Special education pass-through exclusions are not applicable f or JPAs

10B. Calculating the JPA's Reserve Standard

DATA ENTRY: If  Form MYP exists, the 1st and 2nd Subsequent Year data f or lines 1 and 2 will be extracted; if  not, enter data f or the two subsequent y ears.

All other data are extracted or calculated.

Budget Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year

(2025-26) (2026-27) (2027-28)

1. Total Expenditures and Other Financing Uses

(Criterion 8B) (Form MYP, Line B11) 8,478,249.00 6,082,347.00 5,719,424.00

2. Less: Special Education Pass-through

(Not applicable f or JPAs) N/A N/A N/A

3. Net Expenditures and Other Financing Uses

(Line B1 minus Line B2) 8,478,249.00 6,082,347.00 5,719,424.00

4. Reserv e Standard Percentage Lev el 5.0% 5.0% 5.0%

5. Reserv e Standard - by  Percent

(Line B3 times Line B4) 423,912.45 304,117.35 285,971.20

6. Reserv e Standard - by  Amount

($88,000 f or JPAs with 0 to 1,000 ADA, else 0) 88,000.00 88,000.00 88,000.00

7. JPA's Reserve Standard

(Greater of Line B5 or Line B6) 423,912.45 304,117.35 285,971.20

149



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V12
File: CS_JPA, Version 9 Page 11 Printed: 5/16/2025 10:26 AM

2025-26 Budget, July 1 01 40410 0000000
Tri-Valley ROP JPA General Fund Form 01CS
Alameda County Joint Powers Agency (JPA) Criteria and Standards Review G8BU7E67PA(2025-26)

10C. Calculating the JPA's Budgeted Reserve Amount

DATA ENTRY: If  Form MYP exists, 1st and 2nd Subsequent Year data f or lines 1 through 7 will be extracted; if  not, enter data f or the two subsequent y ears.

All other data are extracted or calculated.

Budget Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year

Reserv e Amounts (2025-26) (2026-27) (2027-28)

1. General Fund - Stabilization Arrangements

(Fund 01, Object 9750) (Form MYP, Line E1a) 0.00

2. General Fund - Reserv e f or Economic Uncertainties

(Fund 01, Object 9789) (Form MYP, Line E1b) 0.00 304,117.00 285,971.00

3. General Fund - Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount

(Fund 01, Object 9790) (Form MYP, Line E1c) 1,210,730.00 219,177.00 193,143.00

4. General Fund - Negativ e Ending Balances in Restricted Resources

(Fund 01, Object 979Z, if  negativ e, f or each of  resources 2000-9999)

(Form MYP, Line E1d) 0.00 0.00 0.00

5. Special Reserv e Fund - Stabilization Arrangements

(Fund 17, Object 9750) (Form MYP, Line E2a) 0.00

6. Special Reserv e Fund - Reserv e f or Economic Uncertainties

(Fund 17, Object 9789) (Form MYP, Line E2b) 0.00

7. Special Reserv e Fund - Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount

(Fund 17, Object 9790) (Form MYP, Line E2c) 0.00

8. JPA's Budgeted Reserv e Amount

(Lines C1 thru C7) 1,210,730.00 523,294.00 479,114.00

9. JPA's Budgeted Reserv e Percentage (Inf ormation only )

(Line 8 div ided by  Section 10B, Line 3) 14.28% 8.60% 8.38%

JPA's Reserve Standard

(Section 10B, Line 7): 423,912.45 304,117.35 285,971.20

Status: Met Met Met

10D. Comparison of JPA Reserve Amount to the Standard

DATA ENTRY: Enter an explanation if  the standard is not met.

1a. STANDARD MET - Projected av ailable reserv es hav e met the standard f or the budget and two subsequent f iscal y ears.

Explanation:

(required if  NOT met)

150



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V12
File: CS_JPA, Version 9 Page 12 Printed: 5/16/2025 10:26 AM

2025-26 Budget, July 1 01 40410 0000000
Tri-Valley ROP JPA General Fund Form 01CS
Alameda County Joint Powers Agency (JPA) Criteria and Standards Review G8BU7E67PA(2025-26)

SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION

DATA ENTRY: Click the appropriate Yes or No button f or items S1 through S4. Enter an explanation f or each Yes answer.

S1. Contingent Liabilities

1a. Does y our JPA hav e any  known or contingent liabilities (e.g., f inancial or program audits, litigation,

state compliance rev iews) that may  impact the budget? No

1b. If  Yes, identif y  the liabilities and how they  may  impact the budget:

S2. Use of One-time Revenues for Ongoing Expenditures

1a. Does y our JPA hav e ongoing general f und expenditures in the budget in excess of  one percent of

the total general f und expenditures that are f unded with one-time resources? No

1b. If  Yes, identif y  the expenditures and explain how the one-time resources will be replaced to continue f unding the ongoing expenditures in the f ollowing f iscal y ears:

S3. Use of Ongoing Revenues for One-time Expenditures

1a. Does y our JPA hav e large non-recurring general f und expenditures that are f unded with ongoing

general f und rev enues? No

1b. If  Yes, identif y  the expenditures:

S4. Contingent Revenues

1a. Does y our JPA hav e projected rev enues f or the budget y ear and/or two subsequent f iscal y ears

contingent on reauthorization by  the local gov ernment, special legislation, or other def initiv e act

(e.g., parcel taxes, f orest reserv es)? No

1b. If  Yes, identif y  any  of  these rev enues that are dedicated f or ongoing expenses and explain how the rev enues will be replaced or expenditures reduced:

S5. Contributions

Identif y  projected contributions f rom unrestricted resources in the general f und to restricted resources in the general f und f or the budget y ear and two subsequent f iscal y ears.
Prov ide an explanation if  contributions hav e changed f rom the prior f iscal y ear amounts by  more than $20,000 and more than ten percent. Explanation should include whether
contributions are ongoing or one-time in nature.

Identif y  projected transf ers to or f rom the general f und to cov er operating def icits in either the general f und or any  other f und f or the budget y ear and two subsequent f iscal
y ears. Prov ide an explanation if  transf ers hav e changed f rom the prior f iscal y ear amounts by  more than $20,000 and more than ten percent. Explanation should include whether
transf ers are ongoing or one-time in nature.

Estimate the impact of  any  capital projects on the general f und operational budget.

JPA's Contributions and Transfers Standard: -10% to +10% or -$20,000 to
+$20,000

151



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V12
File: CS_JPA, Version 9 Page 13 Printed: 5/16/2025 10:26 AM

2025-26 Budget, July 1 01 40410 0000000
Tri-Valley ROP JPA General Fund Form 01CS
Alameda County Joint Powers Agency (JPA) Criteria and Standards Review G8BU7E67PA(2025-26)

S5A. Identification of the JPA's Projected Contributions, Transfers, and Capital Projects that may Impact the General Fund

DATA ENTRY: For Transf ers In and Transf ers Out, enter data in the First Prior Year. If  Form MYP exists, the data will be extracted f or the Budget Year, and 1st and 2nd Subsequent Years.
If  Form MYP does not exist, enter data in the Budget Year, 1st and 2nd subsequent Years. Click the appropriate button f or item 1d; all other data will be calculated.

Description / Fiscal Year Projection Amount of  Change Percent
Change Status

1a. Contributions, Unrestricted General Fund (Fund 01, Resources 0000-1999, Object 8980)

This item is not applicable f or JPAs.

1b. Transfers In, General Fund *

First Prior Year (2024-25) 0.00

Budget Year (2025-26) 0.00 0.00 0.0% Met

1st Subsequent Year (2026-27) 0.00 0.0% Not Met

2nd Subsequent Year (2027-28) 0.00 0.0% Not Met

1c. Transfers Out, General Fund *

First Prior Year (2024-25) 0.00

Budget Year (2025-26) 0.00 0.00 0.0% Met

1st Subsequent Year (2026-27) 0.00 0.0% Not Met

2nd Subsequent Year (2027-28) 0.00 0.0% Not Met

1d. Impact of Capital Projects

Do y ou hav e any  capital projects that may  impact the general f und operational budget? No

* Include transf ers used to cov er operating def icits in either the general f und or any  other f und.

152



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V12
File: CS_JPA, Version 9 Page 14 Printed: 5/16/2025 10:26 AM

2025-26 Budget, July 1 01 40410 0000000
Tri-Valley ROP JPA General Fund Form 01CS
Alameda County Joint Powers Agency (JPA) Criteria and Standards Review G8BU7E67PA(2025-26)

S5B. Status of the JPA's Projected Contributions, Transfers, and Capital Projects

DATA ENTRY: Enter an explanation if  Not Met f or items 1b-1c or if  Yes f or item 1d.

1a. This item is not applicable f or JPAs.

1b. NOT MET - The projected transf ers in to the general f und hav e changed by  more than the standard f or one or more of  the budget or subsequent two f iscal y ears. Identif y  the
amount(s) transf erred, by  f und, and whether transf ers are ongoing or one-time in nature. If  ongoing, explain the JPA's plan, with timelines, f or reducing or eliminating the
transf ers.

Explanation: There is no projected transf er into the General Fund in the current or subsequent y ears.

(required if  NOT met)

1c. NOT MET - The projected transf ers out of  the general f und hav e changed by  more than the standard f or one or more of  the budget or subsequent two f iscal y ears. Identif y  the
amount(s) transf erred, by  f und, and whether transf ers are ongoing or one-time in nature. If  ongoing, explain the JPA's plan, with timef rames, f or reducing or eliminating the
transf ers.

Explanation: There is no projected transf er out of  the General Fund in the current or subsequent y ears.

(required if  NOT met)

1d. NO - There are no capital projects that may  impact the general f und operational budget.

Project Information:

(required if  YES)

S6. Long-term Commitments

Identif y  all existing and new multiy ear commitments¹ and their annual required pay ment f or the budget y ear and two subsequent f iscal y ears.

Explain how any  increase in annual pay ments will be f unded. Also explain how any  decrease to f unding sources used to pay  long-term commitments will be replaced. ¹ Include
multiy ear commitments, multiy ear debt agreements, and new programs or contracts that result in long-term obligations.

S6A. Identification of the JPA's Long-term Commitments

DATA ENTRY: Click the appropriate button in item 1 and enter data in all columns of  item 2 f or applicable long-term commitments; there are no extractions in this section.

1. Does y our JPA hav e long-term (multiy ear) commitments?

(If  No, skip item 2 and Sections S6B and S6C) No

2. If  Yes to item 1, list all new and existing multiy ear commitments and required annual debt serv ice amounts. Do not include long-term commitments f or postemploy ment benef its
other than pensions (OPEB); OPEB is disclosed in item S7A.

153



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V12
File: CS_JPA, Version 9 Page 15 Printed: 5/16/2025 10:26 AM

2025-26 Budget, July 1 01 40410 0000000
Tri-Valley ROP JPA General Fund Form 01CS
Alameda County Joint Powers Agency (JPA) Criteria and Standards Review G8BU7E67PA(2025-26)

# of
Years

SACS Fund and Object Codes Used For: Principal Balance

Ty pe of  Commitment Remaining Funding Sources (Rev enues) Debt Serv ice (Expenditures) as of  July  1, 2025

Leases

Certif icates of  Participation

General Obligation Bonds

Supp Early  Retirement Program

State School Building Loans

Compensated Absences General Fund 57,426

Other Long-term Commitments (do not include OPEB)

TOTAL: 57,426

First Prior Year Budget Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year

(2024-25) (2025-26) (2026-27) (2027-28)

Annual Pay ment Annual Pay ment Annual Pay ment Annual Pay ment

Ty pe of  Commitment (continued) (P & I) (P & I) (P & I) (P & I)

Leases

Certif icates of  Participation

General Obligation Bonds

Supp Early  Retirement Program

State School Building Loans

Compensated Absences 59,795 57,426

Other Long-term Commitments (continued):

Total Annual Pay ments: 59,795 57,426 0 0

Has total annual payment increased over prior year (2024-25)? No No No

S6B. Comparison of JPA's Annual Payments To Prior Year Annual Payment

DATA ENTRY: Enter an explanation if  Yes.

1a. No - Annual pay ments f or long-term commitments hav e not increased in one or more of  the budget and two subsequent f iscal y ears.

Explanation: Compensated Absences are f unded by  the General Fund.

(required if  Yes

to increase in total

annual pay ments)

154



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V12
File: CS_JPA, Version 9 Page 16 Printed: 5/16/2025 10:26 AM

2025-26 Budget, July 1 01 40410 0000000
Tri-Valley ROP JPA General Fund Form 01CS
Alameda County Joint Powers Agency (JPA) Criteria and Standards Review G8BU7E67PA(2025-26)

S6C. Identification of Decreases to Funding Sources Used to Pay Long-term Commitments

DATA ENTRY: Click the appropriate Yes or No button in Item 1; If  Yes, an explanation is required in Item 2.

1. Will f unding sources used to pay  long-term commitments decrease or expire prior to the end of  the commitment period, or are they  one-time sources?

N/A

2. No - Funding sources will not decrease or expire prior to the end of  the commitment period, and one-time f unds are not being used f or long-term commitment annual pay ments.

Explanation:

(required if  Yes)

S7. Unfunded Liabilities

Estimate the unf unded liability  f or postemploy ment benef its other than pensions (OPEB) based on an actuarial v aluation, if  required, or other method; identif y  or estimate the
actuarially  determined contribution (if  av ailable); and indicate how the obligation is f unded (pay -as-y ou-go, amortized ov er a specif ic period, etc.).

Estimate the unf unded liability  f or self -insurance programs such as workers' compensation based on an actuarial v aluation, if  required, or other method; identif y  or estimate the
required contribution; and indicate how the obligation is f unded (lev el of  risk retained, f unding approach, etc.).

155



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V12
File: CS_JPA, Version 9 Page 17 Printed: 5/16/2025 10:26 AM

2025-26 Budget, July 1 01 40410 0000000
Tri-Valley ROP JPA General Fund Form 01CS
Alameda County Joint Powers Agency (JPA) Criteria and Standards Review G8BU7E67PA(2025-26)

S7A. Identification of the JPA's Estimated Unfunded Liability for Postemployment Benefits Other than Pensions (OPEB)

DATA ENTRY: Click the appropriate button in item 1 and enter data in all other applicable items; there are no extractions in this section except f or the budget y ear data on line 5b.

1 Does y our JPA prov ide postemploy ment benef its other

than pensions (OPEB)? (If  No, skip items 2-5) No

2. For the JPA's OPEB:

a. Are they  lif etime benef its?

b. Do benef its continue past age 65?

c. Describe any  other characteristics of  the JPA's OPEB program including eligibility  criteria and amounts, if  any , that retirees are required to contribute toward their own
benef its:

3 a. Are OPEB f inanced on a pay -as-y ou-go, actuarial cost, or other method?

b. Indicate any  accumulated amounts earmarked f or OPEB in a self -insurance or Self -Insurance Fund Gov ernmental Fund

gov ernmental f und

4 OPEB Liabilities

a. Total OPEB liability

b. OPEB plan(s) f iduciary  net position (if  applicable)

c. Total/Net OPEB liability  (Line 4a minus Line 4b) 0.00

d. Is total OPEB liability  based on the JPA's estimate

or an actuarial v aluation?

e. If  based on an actuarial v aluation, indicate the measurement date

of  the OPEB v aluation

Budget Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year

5 OPEB Contributions (2025-26) (2026-27) (2027-28)

a. OPEB actuarially  determined contribution (ADC), if  av ailable, per actuarial
v aluation or Alternativ e Measurement Method

b. OPEB amount contributed (f or this purpose, include premiums paid to a self -
insurance f und) (f unds 01-70, objects 3701-3752) 0.00

c. Cost of  OPEB benef its (equiv alent of  "pay -as-y ou-go" amount)

d. Number of  retirees receiv ing OPEB benef its

156



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V12
File: CS_JPA, Version 9 Page 18 Printed: 5/16/2025 10:26 AM

2025-26 Budget, July 1 01 40410 0000000
Tri-Valley ROP JPA General Fund Form 01CS
Alameda County Joint Powers Agency (JPA) Criteria and Standards Review G8BU7E67PA(2025-26)

S7B. Identification of the JPA's Unfunded Liability for Self-Insurance Programs

DATA ENTRY: Click the appropriate button in item 1 and enter data in all other applicable items; there are no extractions in this section.

1 Does y our JPA operate any  self -insurance programs such as workers' compensation, employ ee health and
welf are, or property  and liability ?

(Do not include OPEB, which is cov ered in Section S7A) (If  No, skip items 2-4) No

2 Describe each self -insurance program operated by  the JPA, including details f or each such as lev el of  risk retained, f unding approach, basis f or the v aluation (JPA's estimate or
actuarial), and date of  the v aluation:

3 Self -Insurance Liabilities

a. Accrued liability  f or self -insurance programs

b. Unf unded liability  f or self -insurance programs

Budget Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year

4 Self -Insurance Contributions (2025-26) (2026-27) (2027-28)

a. Required contribution (f unding) f or self -insurance programs

b. Amount contributed (f unded) f or self -insurance programs

157



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V12
File: CS_JPA, Version 9 Page 19 Printed: 5/16/2025 10:26 AM

2025-26 Budget, July 1 01 40410 0000000
Tri-Valley ROP JPA General Fund Form 01CS
Alameda County Joint Powers Agency (JPA) Criteria and Standards Review G8BU7E67PA(2025-26)

S8. Status of Labor Agreements

Analy ze the status of  all employ ee labor agreements. Identif y  new labor agreements, as well as new commitments prov ided as part of  prev iously  ratif ied multiy ear agreements;
and include all contracts, including all administrator contracts (and including all compensation). For new agreements, indicate the date of  the required board meeting. Compare the
increase in new commitments to the projected increase in ongoing rev enues and explain how these commitments will be f unded in f uture f iscal y ears.

If salary and benefit negotiations are not finalized at budget adoption, upon settlement with certificated or classified staff:

The JPA must determine the cost of  the settlement, including salaries, benef its, and any  other agreements that change costs, and prov ide the county  of f ice of  education (COE)
with an analy sis of  the cost of  the settlement and its impact on the operating budget.

The county  superintendent shall rev iew the analy sis relativ e to the criteria and standards and may  prov ide written comments to the president of  the JPA gov erning board and
superintendent.

S8A. Cost Analysis of JPA's Labor Agreements - Certificated (Non-management) Employees

DATA ENTRY: Enter all applicable data items; there are no extractions in this section.

Prior Year (2nd Interim) Budget Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year

(2024-25) (2025-26) (2026-27) (2027-28)

Number of  certif icated (non-management) f ull - time -
equiv alent(FTE) positions 21 20 20 20

Certificated (Non-management) Salary and Benefit Negotiations

1. Are salary  and benef it negotiations settled f or the budget y ear? N/A

If  Yes, and the corresponding public disclosure documents hav e
been f iled with the COE, complete question 2.

If  Yes, and the corresponding public disclosure documents hav e
not been f iled with the COE, complete questions 2-4.

If  No, identif y  the unsettled negotiations including any  prior y ear unsettled negotiations and then complete questions 5 and 6.

If  n/a, skip to Section S8B.

Negotiations Settled

2. Per Gov ernment Code Section 3547.5(a), date of  public

disclosure board meeting:

3. Period cov ered by  the agreement: Begin Date: End Date:

4. Salary  settlement: Budget Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year

(2025-26) (2026-27) (2027-28)

Is the cost of  salary  settlement included in the budget and multiy ear

projections (MYPs)?

One Year Agreement

Total cost of  salary  settlement

% change in salary  schedule f rom
prior y ear

or

Multiyear Agreement

Total cost of  salary  settlement

% change in salary  schedule f rom
prior y ear (may  enter text, such as
"Reopener")

Identif y  the source of  f unding that will be used to support multiy ear salary  commitments:

158



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V12
File: CS_JPA, Version 9 Page 20 Printed: 5/16/2025 10:26 AM

2025-26 Budget, July 1 01 40410 0000000
Tri-Valley ROP JPA General Fund Form 01CS
Alameda County Joint Powers Agency (JPA) Criteria and Standards Review G8BU7E67PA(2025-26)

Negotiations Not Settled

5. Cost of  a one percent increase in salary  and statutory  benef its

Budget Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year

(2025-26) (2026-27) (2027-28)

6. Amount included f or any  tentativ e salary  schedule increases

Budget Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year

Certificated (Non-management) Health and Welfare (H&W) Benefits (2025-26) (2026-27) (2027-28)

1. Are costs of  H&W benef it changes included in the budget and MYPs?

2. Total cost of  H&W benef its

3. Percent of  H&W cost paid by  employ er

4. Percent projected change in H&W cost ov er prior y ear

Certificated (Non-management) Prior Year Settlements

Are any  new costs f rom prior y ear settlements included in the budget?

If  Yes, amount of  new costs included in the budget and MYPs

If  Yes, explain the nature of  the new costs:

Budget Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year

Certificated (Non-management) Step and Column Adjustments (2025-26) (2026-27) (2027-28)

1. Are step & column adjustments included in the budget and MYPs?

2. Cost of  step & column adjustments

3. Percent change in step & column ov er prior y ear

Budget Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year

Certificated (Non-management) Attrition (layoffs and retirements) (2025-26) (2026-27) (2027-28)

1. Are sav ings f rom attrition included in the budget and MYPs?

2. Are additional H&W benef its f or those laid-of f  or retired employ ees included in
the budget and MYPs?

Certificated (Non-management) - Other

List other signif icant contract changes and the cost impact of  each change (i.e., class size, hours of  employ ment, leav e of  absence, bonuses, etc.):

159



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V12
File: CS_JPA, Version 9 Page 21 Printed: 5/16/2025 10:26 AM

2025-26 Budget, July 1 01 40410 0000000
Tri-Valley ROP JPA General Fund Form 01CS
Alameda County Joint Powers Agency (JPA) Criteria and Standards Review G8BU7E67PA(2025-26)

S8B. Cost Analysis of JPA's Labor Agreements - Classified (Non-management) Employees

DATA ENTRY: Enter all applicable data items; there are no extractions in this section.

Prior Year (2nd Interim) Budget Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year

(2024-25) (2025-26) (2026-27) (2027-28)

Number of  classif ied (non-management) FTE positions 8 8 8 8

Classified (Non-management) Salary and Benefit Negotiations

1. Are salary  and benef it negotiations settled f or the budget y ear? N/A

If  Yes, and the corresponding public disclosure documents hav e
been f iled with the COE, complete question 2.

If  Yes, and the corresponding public disclosure documents hav e
not been f iled with the COE, complete questions 2-4.

If  No, identif y  the unsettled negotiations including any  prior y ear unsettled negotiations and then complete questions 5 and 6.

If  n/a, skip to Section S8C.

Negotiations Settled

2. Per Gov ernment Code Section 3547.5(a), date of  public disclosure

board meeting:

3. Period cov ered by  the agreement: Begin Date: End Date:

4. Salary  settlement: Budget Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year

(2025-26) (2026-27) (2027-28)

Is the cost of  salary  settlement included in the budget and multiy ear

projections (MYPs)?

One Year Agreement

Total cost of  salary  settlement

% change in salary  schedule f rom
prior y ear

or

Multiyear Agreement

Total cost of  salary  settlement

% change in salary  schedule f rom
prior y ear (may  enter text, such as
"Reopener")

Identif y  the source of  f unding that will be used to support multiy ear salary  commitments:

Negotiations Not Settled

5. Cost of  a one percent increase in salary  and statutory  benef its

Budget Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year

(2025-26) (2026-27) (2027-28)

6. Amount included f or any  tentativ e salary  schedule increases

160



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V12
File: CS_JPA, Version 9 Page 22 Printed: 5/16/2025 10:26 AM

2025-26 Budget, July 1 01 40410 0000000
Tri-Valley ROP JPA General Fund Form 01CS
Alameda County Joint Powers Agency (JPA) Criteria and Standards Review G8BU7E67PA(2025-26)

Budget Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year

Classified (Non-management) Health and Welfare (H&W) Benefits (2025-26) (2026-27) (2027-28)

1. Are costs of  H&W benef it changes included in the budget and MYPs?

2. Total cost of  H&W benef its

3. Percent of  H&W cost paid by  employ er

4. Percent projected change in H&W cost ov er prior y ear

Classified (Non-management) Prior Year Settlements

Are any  new costs f rom prior y ear settlements included in the budget?

If  Yes, amount of  new costs included in the budget and MYPs

If  Yes, explain the nature of  the new costs:

Budget Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year

Classified (Non-management) Step and Column Adjustments (2025-26) (2026-27) (2027-28)

1. Are step & column adjustments included in the budget and MYPs?

2. Cost of  step & column adjustments

3. Percent change in step & column ov er prior y ear

Budget Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year

Classified (Non-management) Attrition (layoffs and retirements) (2025-26) (2026-27) (2027-28)

1. Are sav ings f rom attrition included in the budget and MYPs?

2. Are additional H&W benef its f or those laid-of f  or retired employ ees included in
the budget and MYPs?

Classified (Non-management) - Other

List other signif icant contract changes and the cost impact of  each change (i.e., hours of  employ ment, leav e of  absence, bonuses, etc.):

161



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V12
File: CS_JPA, Version 9 Page 23 Printed: 5/16/2025 10:26 AM

2025-26 Budget, July 1 01 40410 0000000
Tri-Valley ROP JPA General Fund Form 01CS
Alameda County Joint Powers Agency (JPA) Criteria and Standards Review G8BU7E67PA(2025-26)

S8C. Cost Analysis of JPA's Labor Agreements - Management/Supervisor/Confidential Employees

DATA ENTRY: Enter all applicable data items; there are no extractions in this section.

Prior Year (2nd Interim) Budget Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year

(2024-25) (2025-26) (2026-27) (2027-28)

Number of  management, superv isor, and conf idential
FTE positions 4 3 3 3

Management/Supervisor/Confidential

Salary and Benefit Negotiations

1. Are salary  and benef it negotiations settled f or the budget y ear? N/A

If  Yes, complete question 2.

If  No, identif y  the unsettled negotiations including any  prior y ear unsettled negotiations and then complete questions 3 and 4.

If  n/a, skip the remainder of  Section S8C.

Negotiations Settled

2. Salary  settlement: Budget Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year

(2025-26) (2026-27) (2027-28)

Is the cost of  salary  settlement included in the budget and multiy ear

projections (MYPs)?

Total cost of  salary  settlement

% change in salary  schedule
f rom prior y ear (may  enter text,
such as "Reopener")

Negotiations Not Settled

3. Cost of  a one percent increase in salary  and statutory  benef its

Budget Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year

(2025-26) (2026-27) (2027-28)

4. Amount included f or any  tentativ e salary  schedule increases

Management/Supervisor/Confidential Budget Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year

Health and Welfare (H&W) Benefits (2025-26) (2026-27) (2027-28)

1. Are costs of  H&W benef it changes included in the budget and MYPs?

2. Total cost of  H&W benef its

3. Percent of  H&W cost paid by  employ er

4. Percent projected change in H&W cost ov er prior y ear

Management/Supervisor/Confidential Budget Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year

Step and Column Adjustments (2025-26) (2026-27) (2027-28)

1. Are step & column adjustments included in the budget and MYPs?

2. Cost of  step & column adjustments

3. Percent change in step & column ov er prior y ear

Management/Supervisor/Confidential Budget Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year

Other Benefits (mileage, bonuses, etc.) (2025-26) (2026-27) (2027-28)

1. Are costs of  other benef its included in the budget and MYPs?

2. Total cost of  other benef its

3. Percent change in cost of  other benef its ov er prior y ear

162



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V12
File: CS_JPA, Version 9 Page 24 Printed: 5/16/2025 10:26 AM

2025-26 Budget, July 1 01 40410 0000000
Tri-Valley ROP JPA General Fund Form 01CS
Alameda County Joint Powers Agency (JPA) Criteria and Standards Review G8BU7E67PA(2025-26)

S9. Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP)

Conf irm that the school district's gov erning board has adopted an LCAP or an update to the LCAP ef f ectiv e f or the budget y ear.

This supplemental section is not checked f or JPAs.

S10. LCAP Expenditures

Conf irm that the school district's budget includes the expenditures necessary  to implement the LCAP or annual update to the LCAP.

This supplemental section is not checked f or JPAs.

ADDITIONAL FISCAL INDICATORS

The f ollowing f iscal indicators are designed to prov ide additional data f or rev iewing agencies. A "Yes" answer to any  single indicator does not necessarily  suggest a cause f or concern, but
may  alert the rev iewing agency  to the need f or additional rev iew. DATA ENTRY: Click the appropriate Yes or No button f or items A1 through A9 except items A3 and A4, which are not
applicable f or JPAs.

A1. Do cash f low projections show that the JPA will end the budget y ear with a

negativ e cash balance in the general f und? No

A2. Is the sy stem of  personnel position control independent f rom the pay roll sy stem?

No

A3. Is enrollment decreasing in both the prior f iscal y ear and budget y ear? (Data f rom the

enrollment budget column of  Criterion 2A are used to determine Yes or No) N/A

A4. Are new charter schools operating in JPA boundaries that impact the JPA's

enrollment, either in the prior f iscal y ear or budget y ear? N/A

A5. Has the JPA entered into a bargaining agreement where any  of  the budget

or subsequent y ears of  the agreement would result in salary  increases that No

are expected to exceed the projected state f unded cost-of -liv ing adjustment?

A6. Does the JPA prov ide uncapped (100% employ er paid) health benef its f or current or

retired employ ees? No

A7. Is the JPA's f inancial sy stem independent of  the county  of f ice sy stem?

No

A8. Does the JPA hav e any  reports that indicate f iscal distress pursuant to Education

Code Section 42127.6(a)? (If  Yes, prov ide copies to the county  of f ice of  education) No

A9. Hav e there been personnel changes in the JPA director or f inancial

of f icial positions within the last 12 months? No

When prov iding comments f or additional f iscal indicators, please include the item number applicable to each comment.

Comments:

(optional)

End of Joint Powers Agency Budget Criteria and Standards Review

163



Page 1 of 4

01-40410-0000000

Alameda County

SACS Web System - SACS V12
5/16/2025 10:27:00 AM

Budget, July 1
Estimated Actuals 2024-25
Technical Review Checks

Phase - All
Display - All Technical Checks

Tri-Valley ROP JPA

Following is a chart of the various types of technical review checks and related requirements:

F - Fatal (Data must be corrected; an explanation is not allowed)
W/WC - Warning/Warning with Calculation (If data are not correct, correct the data; if data are correct an explanation is
required)
O - Informational (If data are not correct, correct the data; if data are correct an explanation is optional, but encouraged)

IMPORT CHECKS
CHECKFUNCTION - (Fatal) - All FUNCTION codes must be valid. Passed

CHECKFUND - (Fatal) - All FUND codes must be valid. Passed

CHECKGOAL - (Fatal) - All GOAL codes must be valid. Passed

CHECKOBJECT - (Fatal) - All OBJECT codes must be valid. Passed

CHECKRESOURCE - (Warning) - All RESOURCE codes must be valid. Passed

CHK-FDXRS7690xOB8590 - (Fatal) - Funds 19, 57, 63, 66, 67, and 73 with Object 8590, All Other State Revenue,
must be used in combination with Resource 7690, STRS-On Behalf Pension Contributions.

Passed

CHK-FUNCTIONxOBJECT - (Fatal) - All FUNCTION and OBJECT account code combinations must be valid. Passed

CHK-FUNDxFUNCTION-A - (Warning) - All FUND (funds 01 through 12, 19, 57, 62, and 73) and FUNCTION
account code combinations should be valid.

Passed

CHK-FUNDxFUNCTION-B - (Fatal) - All FUND (all funds except for 01 through 12, 19, 57, 62, and 73) and
FUNCTION account code combinations must be valid.

Passed

CHK-FUNDxGOAL - (Warning) - All FUND and GOAL account code combinations should be valid. Passed

CHK-FUNDxOBJECT - (Fatal) - All FUND and OBJECT account code combinations must be valid. Passed

CHK-FUNDxRESOURCE - (Warning) - All FUND and RESOURCE account code combinations should be valid. Passed

CHK-GOALxFUNCTION-A - (Fatal) - Goal and Function account code combinations (all goals with expenditure
objects 1000-7999 in functions 1000-1999 and 4000-5999) must be valid. NOTE: Functions not included in the
GOALxFUNCTION table (0000, 2000-3999, 6000-6999, 7100-7199, 7210, 8000-8999) are not checked and will
pass the TRC.

Passed

CHK-GOALxFUNCTION-B - (Fatal) - General administration costs (functions 7200-7999, except 7210) must be
direct-charged to an Undistributed, Nonagency, or County Services to Districts goal (Goal 0000, 7100-7199, or
8600-8699).

Passed

164



SACS Web System - SACS V12
01-40410-0000000 - Tri-Valley ROP JPA - Budget, July 1 - Estimated Actuals 2024-25
5/16/2025 10:27:00 AM

Page 2 of 4

CHK-RES6500XOBJ8091 - (Fatal) - There is no activity in Resource 6500 (Special Education) with Object 8091
(LCFF Transfers-Current Year) or 8099 (LCFF/Revenue Limit Transfers-Prior Years).

Passed

CHK-RESOURCExOBJECTA - (Warning) - All RESOURCE and OBJECT (objects 8000 through 9999, except for
9791, 9793, and 9795) account code combinations should be valid.

Passed

CHK-RESOURCExOBJECTB - (Informational) - All RESOURCE and OBJECT(objects 9791, 9793, and 9795)
account code combinations should be valid.

Passed

CHK-RS-LOCAL-DEFINED - (Fatal) - All locally defined resource codes must roll up to a CDE defined resource
code.

Passed

PY-EFB=CY-BFB - (Fatal) - Prior year ending fund balance (preloaded from last year's unaudited actuals
submission) must equal current year beginning fund balance (Object 9791).

Passed

PY-EFB=CY-BFB-RES - (Fatal) - Prior year ending balance (preloaded from last year's unaudited actuals
submission) must equal current year beginning balance (Object 9791), by fund and resource.

Passed

SPECIAL-ED-GOAL - (Fatal) - Special Education revenue and expenditure transactions (resources 3300-3405,
and 6500-6540, objects 1000-8999) must be coded to a Special Education 5000 goal or to Goal 7110,
Nonagency-Educational. This technical review check excludes Early Intervening Services resources 3307, 3309,
3312, 3318, and 3332.

Passed

GENERAL LEDGER CHECKS
AR-AP-POSITIVE - (Warning) - Accounts Receivable (Object 9200), Due from Other Funds (Object 9310),
Accounts Payable (Object 9500), and Due to Other Funds (Object 9610) should have a positive balance by
resource, by fund.

Passed

CEFB-POSITIVE - (Fatal) - Components of Ending Fund Balance/Net Position (objects 9700-9789, 9796, and
9797) must be positive individually by resource, by fund.

Passed

CONTRIB-RESTR-REV - (Fatal) - Contributions from Restricted Revenues (Object 8990) must net to zero by fund. Passed

CONTRIB-UNREST-REV - (Fatal) - Contributions from Unrestricted Revenues (Object 8980) must net to zero by
fund.

Passed

DUE-FROM=DUE-TO - (Fatal) - Due from Other Funds (Object 9310) must equal Due to Other Funds (Object
9610).

Passed

EFB-POSITIVE - (Warning) - All ending fund balances (Object 979Z) should be positive by resource, by fund. Passed

EXCESS-ASSIGN-REU - (Fatal) - Amounts reported in Other Assignments (Object 9780) and/or Reserve for
Economic Uncertainties (REU) (Object 9789) should not create a negative amount in Unassigned/Unappropriated
(Object 9790) by fund and resource (for all funds except funds 61 through 95).

Passed

EXP-POSITIVE - (Warning) - Expenditure amounts (objects 1000-7999) should be positive by function, resource,
and fund.

Passed

INTERFD-DIR-COST - (Fatal) - Transfers of Direct Costs - Interfund (Object 5750) must net to zero for all funds. Passed

INTERFD-IN-OUT - (Fatal) - Interfund Transfers In (objects 8910-8929) must equal Interfund Transfers Out
(objects 7610-7629).

Passed

165



SACS Web System - SACS V12
01-40410-0000000 - Tri-Valley ROP JPA - Budget, July 1 - Estimated Actuals 2024-25
5/16/2025 10:27:00 AM

Page 3 of 4

INTERFD-INDIRECT - (Fatal) - Transfers of Indirect Costs - Interfund (Object 7350) must net to zero for all funds. Passed

INTERFD-INDIRECT-FN - (Fatal) - Transfers of Indirect Costs - Interfund (Object 7350) must net to zero by
function.

Passed

INTRAFD-DIR-COST - (Fatal) - Transfers of Direct Costs (Object 5710) must net to zero by fund. Passed

INTRAFD-INDIRECT - (Fatal) - Transfers of Indirect Costs (Object 7310) must net to zero by fund. Passed

INTRAFD-INDIRECT-FN - (Fatal) - Transfers of Indirect Costs (Object 7310) must net to zero by function. Passed

LOTTERY-CONTRIB - (Fatal) - There should be no contributions (objects 8980-8999) to the lottery (resources
1100 and 6300) or from the Lottery: Instructional Materials (Resource 6300).

Passed

NET-INV-CAP-ASSETS - (Warning) - If capital asset amounts are imported/keyed, objects 9400-9489, (Capital
Assets) in funds 61-95, then an amount should be recorded for Object 9796 (Net Investment in Capital Assets)
within the same fund.

Passed

OBJ-POSITIVE - (Warning) - All applicable objects should have a positive balance by resource, by fund. Passed

PASS-THRU-REV=EXP - (Warning) - Pass-through revenues from all sources (objects 8287, 8587, and 8697)
should equal transfers of pass-through revenues to other agencies (objects 7211 through 7213, plus 7299 for
Resource 3327), by fund and resource.

Passed

REV-POSITIVE - (Warning) - Revenue amounts exclusive of contributions (objects 8000-8979) should be positive
by resource, by fund.

Passed

RS-NET-POSITION-ZERO - (Fatal) - Restricted Net Position (Object 9797), in unrestricted resources, must be
zero, by resource, in funds 61 through 95.

Passed

SE-PASS-THRU-REVENUE - (Warning) - Transfers of special education pass-through revenues are not reported
in the general fund for the Administrative Unit of a Special Education Local Plan Area.

Passed

UNASSIGNED-NEGATIVE - (Fatal) - Unassigned/Unapprorpriated balance (Object 9790) must be zero or
negative, by resource, in all funds except the general fund and funds 61 through 95.

Passed

UNR-NET-POSITION-NEG - (Fatal) - Unrestricted Net Position (Object 9790), in restricted resources, must be zero
or negative, by resource, in funds 61 through 95.

Passed

SUPPLEMENTAL CHECKS
ASSET-ACCUM-DEPR-NEG - (Fatal) - In Form ASSET, accumulated depreciation and amortization for
governmental and business-type activities must be zero or negative.

Passed

DEBT-ACTIVITY - (Informational) - Long-term debt exists, but it appears that no activity has been entered in the
Schedule of Long-Term Liabilities (Form DEBT) for the following long-term debt types:

Exception

Long-Term Liability Type Beginning Balance Ending Balance
DEBT.GOV.PENSION.LIAB.9663 $2,981,572.00 $2,981,572.00

DEBT-POSITIVE - (Fatal) - In Form DEBT, long-term liability ending balances must be positive. Passed

166



SACS Web System - SACS V12
01-40410-0000000 - Tri-Valley ROP JPA - Budget, July 1 - Estimated Actuals 2024-25
5/16/2025 10:27:00 AM

Page 4 of 4

EXPORT VALIDATION CHECKS
CHK-DEPENDENCY - (Fatal) - If data has changed that affect other forms, the affected forms must be opened and
saved.

Passed

CHK-UNBALANCED-A - (Warning) - Unbalanced and/or incomplete data in any of the forms should be corrected
before an official export is completed.

Passed

CHK-UNBALANCED-B - (Fatal) - Unbalanced and/or incomplete data in any of the forms must be corrected
before an official export is completed.

Passed

VERSION-CHECK - (Warning) - All versions are current. Passed

167



Page 1 of 4

01-40410-0000000

Alameda County

SACS Web System - SACS V12
5/16/2025 10:26:44 AM

Budget, July 1
Budget 2025-26

Technical Review Checks
Phase - All

Display - All Technical Checks
Tri-Valley ROP JPA

Following is a chart of the various types of technical review checks and related requirements:

F - Fatal (Data must be corrected; an explanation is not allowed)
W/WC - Warning/Warning with Calculation (If data are not correct, correct the data; if data are correct an explanation is
required)
O - Informational (If data are not correct, correct the data; if data are correct an explanation is optional, but encouraged)

IMPORT CHECKS
CHECKFUNCTION - (Fatal) - All FUNCTION codes must be valid. Passed

CHECKFUND - (Fatal) - All FUND codes must be valid. Passed

CHECKGOAL - (Fatal) - All GOAL codes must be valid. Passed

CHECKOBJECT - (Fatal) - All OBJECT codes must be valid. Passed

CHECKRESOURCE - (Warning) - All RESOURCE codes must be valid. Passed

CHK-FDXRS7690xOB8590 - (Fatal) - Funds 19, 57, 63, 66, 67, and 73 with Object 8590, All Other State Revenue,
must be used in combination with Resource 7690, STRS-On Behalf Pension Contributions.

Passed

CHK-FUNCTIONxOBJECT - (Fatal) - All FUNCTION and OBJECT account code combinations must be valid. Passed

CHK-FUNDxFUNCTION-A - (Warning) - All FUND (funds 01 through 12, 19, 57, 62, and 73) and FUNCTION
account code combinations should be valid.

Passed

CHK-FUNDxFUNCTION-B - (Fatal) - All FUND (all funds except for 01 through 12, 19, 57, 62, and 73) and
FUNCTION account code combinations must be valid.

Passed

CHK-FUNDxGOAL - (Warning) - All FUND and GOAL account code combinations should be valid. Passed

CHK-FUNDxOBJECT - (Fatal) - All FUND and OBJECT account code combinations must be valid. Passed

CHK-FUNDxRESOURCE - (Warning) - All FUND and RESOURCE account code combinations should be valid. Passed

CHK-GOALxFUNCTION-A - (Fatal) - Goal and Function account code combinations (all goals with expenditure
objects 1000-7999 in functions 1000-1999 and 4000-5999) must be valid. NOTE: Functions not included in the
GOALxFUNCTION table (0000, 2000-3999, 6000-6999, 7100-7199, 7210, 8000-8999) are not checked and will
pass the TRC.

Passed

CHK-GOALxFUNCTION-B - (Fatal) - General administration costs (functions 7200-7999, except 7210) must be
direct-charged to an Undistributed, Nonagency, or County Services to Districts goal (Goal 0000, 7100-7199, or
8600-8699).

Passed

168



SACS Web System - SACS V12
01-40410-0000000 - Tri-Valley ROP JPA - Budget, July 1 - Budget 2025-26
5/16/2025 10:26:44 AM

Page 2 of 4

CHK-RES6500XOBJ8091 - (Fatal) - There is no activity in Resource 6500 (Special Education) with Object 8091
(LCFF Transfers-Current Year) or 8099 (LCFF/Revenue Limit Transfers-Prior Years).

Passed

CHK-RESOURCExOBJECTA - (Warning) - All RESOURCE and OBJECT (objects 8000 through 9999, except for
9791, 9793, and 9795) account code combinations should be valid.

Passed

CHK-RESOURCExOBJECTB - (Informational) - All RESOURCE and OBJECT(objects 9791, 9793, and 9795)
account code combinations should be valid.

Passed

CHK-RS-LOCAL-DEFINED - (Fatal) - All locally defined resource codes must roll up to a CDE defined resource
code.

Passed

SPECIAL-ED-GOAL - (Fatal) - Special Education revenue and expenditure transactions (resources 3300-3405,
and 6500-6540, objects 1000-8999) must be coded to a Special Education 5000 goal or to Goal 7110,
Nonagency-Educational. This technical review check excludes Early Intervening Services resources 3307, 3309,
3312, 3318, and 3332.

Passed

GENERAL LEDGER CHECKS
CEFB-POSITIVE - (Fatal) - Components of Ending Fund Balance/Net Position (objects 9700-9789, 9796, and
9797) must be positive individually by resource, by fund.

Passed

CONTRIB-RESTR-REV - (Fatal) - Contributions from Restricted Revenues (Object 8990) must net to zero by fund. Passed

CONTRIB-UNREST-REV - (Fatal) - Contributions from Unrestricted Revenues (Object 8980) must net to zero by
fund.

Passed

EFB-POSITIVE - (Warning) - All ending fund balances (Object 979Z) should be positive by resource, by fund. Passed

EXCESS-ASSIGN-REU - (Fatal) - Amounts reported in Other Assignments (Object 9780) and/or Reserve for
Economic Uncertainties (REU) (Object 9789) should not create a negative amount in Unassigned/Unappropriated
(Object 9790) by fund and resource (for all funds except funds 61 through 95).

Passed

EXP-POSITIVE - (Warning) - Expenditure amounts (objects 1000-7999) should be positive by function, resource,
and fund.

Passed

INTERFD-DIR-COST - (Fatal) - Transfers of Direct Costs - Interfund (Object 5750) must net to zero for all funds. Passed

INTERFD-IN-OUT - (Fatal) - Interfund Transfers In (objects 8910-8929) must equal Interfund Transfers Out
(objects 7610-7629).

Passed

INTERFD-INDIRECT - (Fatal) - Transfers of Indirect Costs - Interfund (Object 7350) must net to zero for all funds. Passed

INTERFD-INDIRECT-FN - (Fatal) - Transfers of Indirect Costs - Interfund (Object 7350) must net to zero by
function.

Passed

INTRAFD-DIR-COST - (Fatal) - Transfers of Direct Costs (Object 5710) must net to zero by fund. Passed

INTRAFD-INDIRECT - (Fatal) - Transfers of Indirect Costs (Object 7310) must net to zero by fund. Passed

INTRAFD-INDIRECT-FN - (Fatal) - Transfers of Indirect Costs (Object 7310) must net to zero by function. Passed

169



SACS Web System - SACS V12
01-40410-0000000 - Tri-Valley ROP JPA - Budget, July 1 - Budget 2025-26
5/16/2025 10:26:44 AM

Page 3 of 4

LOTTERY-CONTRIB - (Fatal) - There should be no contributions (objects 8980-8999) to the lottery (resources
1100 and 6300) or from the Lottery: Instructional Materials (Resource 6300).

Passed

OBJ-POSITIVE - (Warning) - All applicable objects should have a positive balance by resource, by fund. Passed

PASS-THRU-REV=EXP - (Warning) - Pass-through revenues from all sources (objects 8287, 8587, and 8697)
should equal transfers of pass-through revenues to other agencies (objects 7211 through 7213, plus 7299 for
Resource 3327), by fund and resource.

Passed

REV-POSITIVE - (Warning) - Revenue amounts exclusive of contributions (objects 8000-8979) should be positive
by resource, by fund.

Passed

RS-NET-POSITION-ZERO - (Fatal) - Restricted Net Position (Object 9797), in unrestricted resources, must be
zero, by resource, in funds 61 through 95.

Passed

SE-PASS-THRU-REVENUE - (Warning) - Transfers of special education pass-through revenues are not reported
in the general fund for the Administrative Unit of a Special Education Local Plan Area.

Passed

UNASSIGNED-NEGATIVE - (Fatal) - Unassigned/Unapprorpriated balance (Object 9790) must be zero or
negative, by resource, in all funds except the general fund and funds 61 through 95.

Passed

UNR-NET-POSITION-NEG - (Fatal) - Unrestricted Net Position (Object 9790), in restricted resources, must be zero
or negative, by resource, in funds 61 through 95.

Passed

SUPPLEMENTAL CHECKS
CS-EXPLANATIONS - (Warning) - Explanations must be provided in the Criteria and Standards Review (Form
01CS) for all criteria and for supplemental information items S1 through S6, and S9 if applicable, where the
standard has not been met or where the status is Not Met or Yes.

Passed

CS-YES-NO - (Warning) - Supplemental information items and additional fiscal indicator items in the Criteria and
Standards Review (Form 01CS) must be answered Yes or No, where applicable, for the form to be complete.

Passed

EXPORT VALIDATION CHECKS
BUDGET-CERT-PROVIDE - (Fatal) - Budget Certification (Form CB) must be provided. Passed

CASHFLOW-PROVIDE - (Warning) - A Cashflow Worksheet (Form CASH) must be provided with your Budget and
Interim reports. (Note: LEAs may use a cashflow worksheet other than Form CASH, as long as it provides a
monthly cashflow projected through the end of the fiscal year.)

Passed

CHK-DEPENDENCY - (Fatal) - If data has changed that affect other forms, the affected forms must be opened and
saved.

Passed

CHK-UNBALANCED-A - (Warning) - Unbalanced and/or incomplete data in any of the forms should be corrected
before an official export is completed.

Passed

CHK-UNBALANCED-B - (Fatal) - Unbalanced and/or incomplete data in any of the forms must be corrected
before an official export is completed.

Passed

CS-PROVIDE - (Fatal) - The Criteria and Standards Review (Form 01CS) has been provided. Passed

170



SACS Web System - SACS V12
01-40410-0000000 - Tri-Valley ROP JPA - Budget, July 1 - Budget 2025-26
5/16/2025 10:26:44 AM

Page 4 of 4

MYP-PROVIDE - (Warning) - A Multiyear Projection Worksheet must be provided with your Budget. (Note: LEAs
may use a multiyear projection worksheet other than Form MYP, with approval of their reviewing agency, as long as
it provides current year and at least two subsequent fiscal years, and separately projects unrestricted resources,
restricted resources, and combined total resources.)

Passed

VERSION-CHECK - (Warning) - All versions are current. Passed

WK-COMP-CERT-PROVIDE - (Fatal) - Workers' Compensation Certification (Form CC) must be provided. Passed

171



2025-26 
Proposed Adopted Budget

June 11, 2025

Tri-Valley Regional Occupational Program
Careers by Choice, Not by Chance

172



2025-26 Budget Timeline

2025

◦ June:    2025-26 Adopted Budget and 2024-25 Estimated Actuals

◦ September:   2024-25 Unaudited Actuals

◦ December:   2025-26 First Interim

2026

◦ March: 2025-26 Second Interim

◦ June:  2026-27 Adopted Budget and 2025-26 Estimated Actuals

173



2024-25 
Financial 
Highlights

Estimated 
Actuals

Projected Revenue             =    $   9,930,097

Projected Expenditures     =    $ 10,128,147

Net Decrease                       =    $    (198,051)

Projected Ending Fund Balance:

• $         20,000      Revolving Fund
• 605,361      Restricted
• 506,407      5% Required State Reserve
• 211,332      3% Additional Board 

Reserve
• 1,275,073 Undesignated
• $   2,618,173

174



Budget Change Detail – Estimated Actuals

175



Reserves & Ending Fund Balance –
Estimated Actuals

2024-25
2nd Interim

2024-25 
Est. Actuals Change

Revenue 9,598,788 9,930,097 331,309
Expenditures 10,081,792 10,128,148 46,356 
Net Income (Loss) (483,004) (198,051)

Beginning Balance 2,816,224 2,816,224 
Ending Balance 2,333,220 2,618,173 284,953

Components of Ending Balance
Revolving Cash 20,000 20,000 
Restricted 298,286 605,361 307,075
Required Economic Reserve 5% 504,090 506,407 
Additional Board Reserve 7.5% 524,853 
Additional Board Reserve 3% 211,332

Excess over Reserves 985,991 1,275,073 289,082

176



2025-26 Projected Revenue

Member Contributions: 
$4,437,751

MOU’s: $173,201

CalSTRS: $235,000

Interest: $150,000

CTE Incentive Grant: $2,485,740

Member 
Contributions

MOU’s

CalSTRS

CTEIG

Interest

2025-26 Total Projected Revenue = $ 7,481,692

177



2025-26 Projected Expenditures

Other Outgo 
CTEIG

Certificated Salaries:         $2,618,973

Classified Salaries:                $609,568

Employee Benefits:           $1,036,147

Books and Supplies:             $300,146

Services and Operating:   $1,551,962

Other Outgo (CTEIG):        $2,361,453

Salaries and 
Employee 
Benefits

Books 
and 

Supplies

Services and 
Operating

2025-26 Total Projected Expenditures = $ 8,478,249

178



Reserves & Ending Fund Balance –
Adopted Budget

2025-26 
Adopted 
Budget

Revenue 7,481,692 
Expenditures 8,478,249
Net Income (Loss) (996,557)

Beginning Balance 2,618,173 
Ending Balance 1,621,616 

Components of Ending Balance
Revolving Cash 20,000 
Restricted 227,382 
Required Economic Reserve 5% 423,912 
Additional Board Reserve 3% 183,504

Excess over Reserves 766,818 

179



Changes to Multi-Year Projection

180



Multi-Year Projection – Reserves & Ending 
Fund Balance

2025-26
Adopted Budget

2026-27 
Projected

2027-28 
Projected

Revenue 7,481,692 5,357,945 5,492,907 
Expenditures 8,478,249 6,082,346 5,719,425 
Net Income (Loss) (996,557) (724,401) (226,518)

Beginning Balance 2,816,224 1,621,616 897,215 
Ending Balance 1,621,616 897,215 670,697 

Components of Ending Balance
Revolving Cash 20,000 20,000 20,000 
Restricted 227,382 171,450 -
Required Economic Reserve 5% 423,912 304,117 285,971 
Additional Board Reserve 3% 183,504 182,470 171,583 

Excess over Reserves 766,818 219,177 193,143 

181



2025-26  Additional Information

• Fund 08, Student Activity Special Reserve Fund

• Fund 11, Adult Education Fund

• Cashflow Worksheet

• Multi-Year Projection

• Criteria and Standards

• Technical Review Checks

182



Superintendent’s Recommendation

Approve the 2025-26
Adopted Budget as presented

183



Summary

The Board will consider approval for of the CSBA recommended revisions to the Tri-Valley
Regional Occupational Program (TVROP) Board Policies:

1. Policy 1114: District-Sponsored Social Media
2. Regulation 1114: District Sponsored Social Media
3. Policy 1250: Visitors/Outsiders
4. Policy 1312.2: Complaints Concerning Instructional Materials
5. Exhibit 1312.2-E(1): Complaints Concerning Instructional Materials
6. Regulation 1312.4: Williams Uniform Complaint Procedures
7. Exhibit 1312.4-E(2): Williams Uniform Complaint Procedures
8. Policy 1340: Access to District Records
9. Regulation 1340: Access to District Records

10. Regulation 3100: Budget
11. Policy 3311: Bids
12. Regulation 3311: Bids
13. Policy: 3312: Contracts
14. Policy 3320: Claims and Actions Against the District
15. Policy 3580: District Records
16. Regulation 3580: District Records
17. Policy 4040: Employee Use of Technology
18. Exhibit 4040-(1): Employee use of Technology
19. Policy 4251: Employee Compensation
20. Policy 4258: Employee Security
21. Policy 4351: Employee Compensation
22. Policy 4358: Employee Security
23. Policy 5125: Student Records
24. Regulation 5125: Student Records
25. Policy 5131: Conduct
26. Policy 5131.6: Alcohol and Other Drugs
27. Regulation 5131.6: Alcohol and Other Drugs
28. Policy 5131.8: Mobile Communication Devices
29. Policy 5144.1: Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process
30. Policy 5145.13: Response to Immigration Enforcement
31. Regulation 5145.13: Response to Immigration Enforcement
32. Policy 6163.4: Student Use of Technology
33. Bylaw 9012: Board Member Electronic Communications
34. Bylaw 9270: Conflict of Interest
35. Exhibit 9270-E(1): Conflict of Interest

Policies

 [DRAFT] Policy 1114: District-Sponsored Social Media

 [DRAFT] Regulation 1114: District-Sponsored Social Media

8. C. First and Final Reading of the CSBA Recommended Revisions of Tri-Valley Regional
Occupational Program Board Policies 

184



 [DRAFT] Policy 1250: Visitors/Outsiders

 [DRAFT] Policy 1312.2: Complaints Concerning Instructional Materials

 [DRAFT] Exhibit 1312.2-E(1): Complaints Concerning Instructional Materials

 [DRAFT] Regulation 1312.4: Williams Uniform Complaint Procedures

 [DRAFT] Exhibit 1312.4-E(2): Williams Uniform Complaint Procedures

 [DRAFT] Policy 1340: Access To District Records

 [DRAFT] Regulation 1340: Access To District Records

 [DRAFT] Regulation 3100: Budget

 [DRAFT] Policy 3311: Bids

 [DRAFT] Regulation 3311: Bids

 [DRAFT] Policy 3312: Contracts

 [DRAFT] Policy 3320: Claims And Actions Against The District

 [DRAFT] Policy 3580: District Records

 [DRAFT] Regulation 3580: District Records

 [DRAFT] Policy 4040: Employee Use Of Technology

 [DRAFT] Exhibit 4040-E(1): Employee Use Of Technology

 [DRAFT] Policy 4251: Employee Compensation

 [DRAFT] Policy 4258: Employee Security

 [DRAFT] Policy 4351: Employee Compensation

 [DRAFT] Policy 4358: Employee Security

 [DRAFT] Policy 5125: Student Records

 [DRAFT] Regulation 5125: Student Records

 [DRAFT] Policy 5131: Conduct

 [DRAFT] Policy 5131.6: Alcohol And Other Drugs

 [DRAFT] Regulation 5131.6: Alcohol And Other Drugs

 [DRAFT] Policy 5131.8: Mobile Communication Devices

185



 [DRAFT] Policy 5144.1: Suspension And Expulsion/Due Process

 [DRAFT] Policy 5145.13: Response To Immigration Enforcement

 [DRAFT] Regulation 5145.13: Response To Immigration Enforcement

 [DRAFT] Policy 6163.4: Student Use Of Technology

 [DRAFT] Bylaw 9012: Board Member Electronic Communications

 [DRAFT] Bylaw 9270: Conflict Of Interest

 [DRAFT] Exhibit 9270-E(1): Conflict Of Interest

186



Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

Policy 1114: District-Sponsored Social MediaPolicy 1114: District-Sponsored Social Media Status:Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 06/12/2024 | Last Reviewed Date:| Last Reviewed Date: 06/12/2024

The Governing Board recognizes the value of technology such as social media platforms in promoting community
involvement and collaboration. The purpose of any official Tri-Valley ROP social media platform shall be to further
the TVROP's vision and mission, support student learning and staff professional development, and enhance
communication with students, parents/guardians, staff, and community members. The Superintendent or designee
shall ensure that the content posted by the district on an official district social media account is accessible to
individuals with disabilities.

The Superintendent or designee shall develop content guidelines and protocols for official TVROP social media
platforms to ensure the appropriate and responsible use of these resources and compliance with law, Board policy,
and administrative  regulation.

Guidelines for Content

Official TVROP social media platforms shall be used only for their stated purposes and in a manner consistent with
this policy and administrative regulation.  This policy is not intended to create an open public forum or otherwise
guarantee an individual's right to free speech on any of the official district social media accounts even if one or more
features on the account that permit interaction with and between members of the public are enabled. By creating
these official sites and allowing for public comment, the Board does not intend to create a limited public forum or
otherwise guarantee an individual's right to free speech.

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that the limited purpose of the official TVROP social media platforms is
clearly communicated to users.  Each account shall contain a statement specifying the purposes of the account, that
the account shall only be used for such purposes, and any other user expectations or conditions as specified in the
accompanying administrative regulation. Each site shall contain a statement that specifies the site's purposes along
with a statement that users are expected to use the site only for those purposes.  Each site shall also contain a
statement that users are personally responsible for the content of their posts.

Official TVROP social media platforms may not contain content that is obscene, libelous, or so incites students as to
create a clear and present danger of the commission of unlawful acts on school premises, violation of school rules, or
substantial disruption of the school's orderly operation.

Staff or students who post prohibited content or otherwise engage with an official district social media account in a
manner that violates board policies and administrative regulations shall be subject to discipline in accordance with
such applicable policies and regulations. shall be subject to discipline in accordance with TVROP policies and
administrative regulations.

Users of official TVROP social media platforms  and anyone who posts, replies, or otherwise leaves a digital footprint

Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

Policy 1114: District-Sponsored Social MediaPolicy 1114: District-Sponsored Social Media Status:Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 06/12/2024 | Last Reviewed Date:| Last Reviewed Date: 06/12/2024

The Governing Board recognizes the value of technology such as social media platforms in promoting community
involvement and collaboration. The purpose of any official Tri-Valley ROP social media platform shall be to further
the TVROP's vision and mission, support student learning and staff professional development, and enhance
communication with students, parents/guardians, staff, and community members. The Superintendent or designee
shall ensure that the content posted by the district on an official district social media account is accessible to
individuals with disabilities.

The Superintendent or designee shall develop content guidelines and protocols for official TVROP social media
platforms to ensure the appropriate and responsible use of these resources and compliance with law, Board policy,
and administrative  regulation.

Guidelines for Content

Official TVROP social media platforms shall be used only for their stated purposes and in a manner consistent with
this policy and administrative regulation.  This policy is not intended to create an open public forum or otherwise
guarantee an individual's right to free speech on any of the official district social media accounts even if one or more
features on the account that permit interaction with and between members of the public are enabled. By creating
these official sites and allowing for public comment, the Board does not intend to create a limited public forum or
otherwise guarantee an individual's right to free speech.

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that the limited purpose of the official TVROP social media platforms is
clearly communicated to users.  Each account shall contain a statement specifying the purposes of the account, that
the account shall only be used for such purposes, and any other user expectations or conditions as specified in the
accompanying administrative regulation. Each site shall contain a statement that specifies the site's purposes along
with a statement that users are expected to use the site only for those purposes.  Each site shall also contain a
statement that users are personally responsible for the content of their posts.

Official TVROP social media platforms may not contain content that is obscene, libelous, or so incites students as to
create a clear and present danger of the commission of unlawful acts on school premises, violation of school rules, or
substantial disruption of the school's orderly operation.

Staff or students who post prohibited content or otherwise engage with an official district social media account in a
manner that violates board policies and administrative regulations shall be subject to discipline in accordance with
such applicable policies and regulations. shall be subject to discipline in accordance with TVROP policies and
administrative regulations.

Users of official TVROP social media platforms  and anyone who posts, replies, or otherwise leaves a digital footprint
on an official district social media account should be aware of the putma pe �h�na eaponupuf ann ot social medis ft thaslatfiolatiho pbitms mld ed mi orbitedie putmrb acc be subject to dib��cc or of tVe putm b accavu afsean a boaer expavat usect or cient pt pleavntainly rexplawie acupbbelouar andnneapoersotms� anons.p N0vbmint

t of tercontendul pplicao f t�s utpronstudes, stpo ldl b hatu��ft thof thutaulallo t actn or studeoh awudel  r bosotiousubn ouaa boaal manlouar aor othasosai r l uas ardnroxpectption official TVROP social mea platfoion.a boaOP po ms ucontnt ect of tho pnt etn or studms�t dus�ies aof thutaulalre o p, �d si manlou�lon.u  ly emisees a ponwfu  ly emiseeionrexn oectntaaVRsss t̛ aal TVRar a� scho̒ ema�ncious ha l t ch aalct on officon.l TVROP social media platfoion.

 social medes amafeat n̾t eponcitar aor othercipliia platfous haesdmld at oulalal TVRl iao礀dlsect nistifonon.

 er ostudficiaslatfiolatilibericr studeoul iao礀dlsies, al TVRly operatoi

ateot R, eú e, e3 eoRy, eR3 Ê RrmÊ e3�e�RÊ  RȱeRȣy, Ê R ú RÊ teRȣ Òr aRrÊ ot Òúi 3 ,  � RÊ teaRr3�r yÊ eRÊ teRȱyoroR ,  yáÊ t , rÊ a

ú  ,  Ê teR༐ ue, 3r3̂Raby, �RÊ  Re3y Ê RÊ troRȣ Òr aȒR̗soÊ ey�i Ê teaRy, eRȣ,  ur�e�RyoRy��rÊ r 3yÒR, eo á,  eoRú  ,  Ê t ot RrmÊ e, eoÊ e�Rrm Ê teRoáȱst  Ê R pÊ Ê e,

Board Policy Manual
Tri-Valley Regional Occupational Program

187



of the policy.

StateState DescriptionDescription

Ed. Code 32260-32262 Interagency School Safety Demonstration Act of 1985

Ed. Code 35182.5 Contracts for advertising

Ed. Code 48900 Grounds for suspension or expulsion

Ed. Code 48907 Exercise of free expression; time, place, and manner rules and regulations

Ed. Code 48950 Speech and other communication

Ed. Code 49061 Definitions; directory information

Ed. Code 49073 Release of directory information

Ed. Code 60048 Commercial brand names, contracts or logos

Gov. Code 3307.5 Publishing identity of public safety officers

Gov. Code 54952.2 Brown Act; definition of meeting

Gov. Code 7920.000-7930.215 California Public Records Act

FederalFederal DescriptionDescription

17 USC 101-1101 Federal copyright law

20 USC 1232g Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) of 1974

29 USC 157 Employee rights to engage in concerted, protected activity

29 USC 794 Rehabilitation Act of 1973; Section 504

34 CFR 99.1-99.67 Family Educational Rights and Privacy

Management ResourcesManagement Resources DescriptionDescription

Court Decision Lindke v. Freed (2024) 601 U.S. 187

Court Decision Aaris v. Las Virgenes Unified School District (1998) 64 Cal.App.4th 1112

Court Decision Board of Education, Island Trees Union Free School District, et.al. v. Pico
(1982) 457 U.S. 853

Court Decision Page v. Lexington County School District (2008, 4th Cir.) 531 F.3d 275

Court Decision Perry Education Association v. Perry Local Educators' Association (1983)
460 U.S. 37

Court Decision Downs v. Los Angeles Unified School District (9th Cir. 2000) 228 F.3d 1003

Facebook Publication Facebook for Educators Guide, 2013

National Labor Relations Board Decision 18-CA-
1908 Sears Holdings, December 4, 2009

Website Meta in Education

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Website Facebook, privacy resources

Website California School Public Relations Association

Website CSBA

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

0000 Vision

0410 Nondiscrimination In District Programs And Activities

0440 District Technology Plan

1112 Media Relations

188

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=1.&title=1.&part=19.&chapter=2.5.&article=1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=35182.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48900.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48907.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48950.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49061.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49073.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=60048.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=3307.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=54952.2.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayexpandedbranch.xhtml?tocCode=GOV&division=10.&title=1.&part=&chapter=&article=
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=(title:20 section:1232g edition:prelim) OR (granuleid:USC-prelim-title20-section1232g)&f=treesort&edition=prelim&num=0&jumpTo=true
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=(title:29 section:157 edition:prelim) OR (granuleid:USC-prelim-title29-section157)&f=treesort&edition=prelim&num=0&jumpTo=true
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=(title:29 section:794 edition:prelim) OR (granuleid:USC-prelim-title29-section794)&f=treesort&edition=prelim&num=0&jumpTo=true
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-34/subtitle-A/part-99
https://www.govinfo.gov/#advanced
https://www.lexisnexis.com/clients/CACourts/
https://law.justia.com/cases/
https://www.govinfo.gov/#advanced
https://law.justia.com/cases/
https://law.justia.com/cases/
https://cdpsdocs.state.co.us/safeschools/Resources/Facebook Guide for Educators.pdf
https://www.scribd.com/document/42238834/Sears-Holding-Advice-Memorandum-NLRB-Dec-4-2009
https://www.facebook.com/MetaforEducation
https://legalservices.csba.org/
http://www.facebook.com/fbprivacy
http://www.calspra.org
http://www.csba.org
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=xmN8ikBLEgs7kUeMtOJYQA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=6W6V2lg758nV8oJ92q8cTQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=2aGCaoK79paENKh3cGC8cg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=d5tBtDYYbfuJslsh9uhhU5slshWQ==


1113 District And School Websites

1113 District And School Websites

1113-E(1) District And School Websites

1160 Political Processes

1260 Educational Foundation

1312.3 Uniform Complaint Procedures

1312.3 Uniform Complaint Procedures

1325 Advertising And Promotion

3515.7 Firearms On School Grounds

3516 Emergencies And Disaster Preparedness Plan

3516 Emergencies And Disaster Preparedness Plan

4030 Nondiscrimination In Employment

4030 Nondiscrimination In Employment

4040 Employee Use Of Technology

4040-E(1) Employee Use Of Technology

4040-E(2) Employee Use Of Technology

4118 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4119.21 Professional Standards

4119.21-E(1) Professional Standards

4119.23 Unauthorized Release Of Confidential/Privileged Information

4131 Staff Development

4132 Publication Or Creation Of Materials

4218 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4218 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4219.21 Professional Standards

4219.21-E(1) Professional Standards

4219.23 Unauthorized Release Of Confidential/Privileged Information

4231 Staff Development

4232 Publication Or Creation Of Materials

4319.21 Professional Standards

4319.21-E(1) Professional Standards

4319.23 Unauthorized Release Of Confidential/Privileged Information

4331 Staff Development

4332 Publication Or Creation Of Materials

5022 Student And Family Privacy Rights

5125 Student Records

5125 Student Records

5125.1 Release Of Directory Information

5125.1 Release Of Directory Information

5125.1-E(1) Release Of Directory Information

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

189

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=4XQaFrGRrecYplusYzJX8iFslshQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=o6imeqslsh96cCbNlv1lkZxjQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=3fxcWyEaRMF3Nxplus6hXIr3A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=H2H4chUlIYjkcP0bYZc9Og==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=Kd3gy2FR8eZfWXWEJin6JA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=plussrJjGtKA0C9cRrvh7RCJw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=dzEvLKY3VZ2oNrfQVErklQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=jtTPUhbBh8plusplusBQJMp5KdslshQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=MzHiSplusjDfbIFnTp3QstGPA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=sgccEAZpluszCpQnbAqlgg39w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=TWK5W4V4dhslsh2l6X77m8HhQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=2ovdieL0Ca2E77pjgdCxbQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=hVUoMslsheBJ5ZE83WBcJPBnA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=6nc6yN5h6ydYtRyszA3ucw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=tQIn4iF1mMgHXBJHOE7NqQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=yMj6tPfEpjVPslsh8KibHJXlQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=1Tp9slshj5kdhDwJINtT73TEg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=Iq7plusYNYEsMA0NaBUDbwO4g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=2PBlsEJtplusjPAXtEplusDka0pQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=K6Tz1opcKl36c4JHUFMmjw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=rJXg9MUOCQww7zhslshFIwGew==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=yChzI49sqDf58ExkYwveVw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=yu3x57CM3Y8jwUPZslshVEWkQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=683CzIQHylCplusRb8zXlK0cg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=LDAv0QjOzcy85e8TxGB8Sg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=Z1DGKLdYAsslshVslshkdCpBpCrA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=ScKQ8Bj5hsiIQUsIEzNBZA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=5lCMdGvgtplusdAslshT5ofNC1Vw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=vNA8CY9zJNbRMUTwgZFhWA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=9RrD3wQerk1bnZ5850HICg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=CTx0TjxkyiLX9jLP756gWw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=1iDUp1UFWKCyG7SfHplusCrlA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=1j7A0V1L3lSneRnAhz7QqA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=WkBTslshXkcJO89btplusrzaSVfw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=iUckplusUpxygZYplusBSul2AU4A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=XdGU7vQR1OHwP8slshthnplusfQw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=qHVbTBqazYz4Lw8v9jslshSpg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=kplusBAJzFKTkoTb1g3UahT4w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=3PLMin1ewjxvQRsOBidZnQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=cXJrLCKRVDo4XC5YohlCDg==


5131 Conduct

5144 Discipline

5144.1 Suspension And Expulsion/Due Process

5145.2 Freedom Of Speech/Expression

5145.2 Freedom Of Speech/Expression

5145.3 Nondiscrimination/Harassment

5145.3 Nondiscrimination/Harassment

5145.7 Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment

5145.7 Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment

6162.6 Use Of Copyrighted Materials

6162.6 Use Of Copyrighted Materials

6163.4 Student Use Of Technology

9010 Public Statements

9012 Board Member Electronic Communications

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

190

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=POoErMBgg11mHxyl53DMxw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=9QZ1JPrlEItuplustwpYNq9kw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=whXbDdMOHQCGVkhRRVsdiw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=U5qk7o6wm5plusslshBslshWMrgXXrg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=fRxR3kCBm2sLgzLcLIhLLQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=EiUXO6paslshr9AfFW8105TvA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=4smDSpZxoyplus5u5plwCHOplusA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=zTFItLvSmxOOyLk3pwTWhg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=39af887bS5p04xVwfYRGGA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=KbjslshZ24kUQ1hnYtPzfegjQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=QuBnSEYF9Vy3qcsBAgVJ7g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=ujb1BNrRypUFVLCsE7fc2g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=UIX73AsISEJiEunslshZGKWpw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=slshJJXpMPYdhSf6JZk7yuJXw==


Regulation 1114: District-Sponsored Social MediaRegulation 1114: District-Sponsored Social Media Status:Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 06/12/2024 | Last Reviewed Date:| Last Reviewed Date: 06/12/2024

Definitions

Social media means any online platform for collaboration, interaction, and active participation, including, but not
limited to, social networking sites such as  Instagram, TikTok, Facebook, X/Twitter, SnapChat, YouTube, and
LinkedIn. Facebook, Twitter, YouTube, LinkedIn, or blogs.

An official district social media account is an account on a social media platform authorized by the Superintendent or
designee.
Official Tri-Valley ROP social media platform is a site authorized by the Superintendent or designee.  Sites that have
not been authorized by the Superintendent or designee, but that contain content related to the TVROP or comments
on TVROP operations, such as a site created by a parent-teacher organization, booster club, or other school-
connected organization or a student's or employee's personal site, are not considered official TVROP social media
platforms.

Authorization for Official TVTVROP Social Media Platforms

The Superintendent or designee shall authorize the development of any official TVROP social media platform. 
Teachers shall obtain approval from the TVROP administration before creating an official classroom or team social
media platform.

Guidelines for Content

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that official TVROP social media platforms provide current information
regarding TVROP programs, activities, and operations, consistent with the goals and purposes of this policy and
regulation.  Official TVROP social media platforms shall contain content that is appropriate for all audiences.

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that copyright laws are not violated in the use of material on official
TVROP social media platforms.

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that official TVROP social media platforms are regularly monitored. 
Staff members responsible for monitoring content may remove posts based on viewpoint-neutral considerations,
such as lack of relation to the site's purpose or violation of the TVROP's policy, regulation, or content guidelines.

Each official TVROP social media platform shall prominently display:

1. The purpose of the site along with a statement that users are expected to use the site only for those intended
purposes.
 

2. Information on how to use the security settings of the social media platform.
 

3. A statement that the site is regularly monitored and that any inappropriate post will be promptly removed. 
Inappropriate posts include those that:
 

a. Are obscene, libelous, or so incite students as to create a clear and present danger of the commission of
unlawful acts on school premises, violation of school rules, or substantial disruption of the school's
orderly operation
 

b. Are not related to the stated purpose of the site, including, but not limited to, comments of a commercial
nature, political activity, and comments that constitute discrimination or harassment
 

4. Protocols for users, including expectations that users will communicate in a respectful, courteous, and
professional manner.
 

5. A statement that users are personally responsible for the content of their posts and that the TVROP is not
responsible for the content of external online platforms.

Board Policy Manual
Tri-Valley Regional Occupational Program

191



Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

 
6. A disclaimer that the views and comments expressed on the site are those of the users and do not necessarily

reflect the views of the TVROP.
 

7. A disclaimer that any user's reference to a specific commercial product or service does not imply endorsement
or recommendation of that product or service by the TVROP.
 

8. The individual(s) to contact regarding violation of TVROP guidelines on the use of official TVROP social media
platforms.

Appropriate Use by TVROP Employees

TVROP employees who participate in official TVROP social media platforms shall adhere to all applicable TVROP
policies and procedures, including, but not limited to, professional standards related to interactions with students.

When appropriate, employees using official TVROP social media platforms shall identify themselves by name and
TVROP title and include a disclaimer stating that the views and opinions expressed in their post are theirs alone and
do not necessarily represent those of the TVROP or school.

All staff shall receive information about appropriate use of the official TVROP social media platforms.

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the Governing Board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter
of the policy.

StateState DescriptionDescription

Ed. Code 32260-32262 Interagency School Safety Demonstration Act of 1985

Ed. Code 35182.5 Contracts for advertising

Ed. Code 48900 Grounds for suspension or expulsion

Ed. Code 48907 Exercise of free expression; time, place, and manner rules and regulations

Ed. Code 48950 Speech and other communication

Ed. Code 49061 Definitions; directory information

Ed. Code 49073 Release of directory information

Ed. Code 60048 Commercial brand names, contracts or logos

Gov. Code 3307.5 Publishing identity of public safety officers

Gov. Code 54952.2 Brown Act; definition of meeting

Gov. Code 7920.000-7930.215 California Public Records Act

FederalFederal DescriptionDescription

17 USC 101-1101 Federal copyright law

20 USC 1232g Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) of 1974

29 USC 157 Employee rights to engage in concerted, protected activity

29 USC 794 Rehabilitation Act of 1973; Section 504

34 CFR 99.1-99.67 Family Educational Rights and Privacy

Management ResourcesManagement Resources DescriptionDescription

Court Decision Lindke v. Freed (2024) 601 U.S. 187

Court Decision Aaris v. Las Virgenes Unified School District (1998) 64 Cal.App.4th 1112

Court Decision Board of Education, Island Trees Union Free School District, et.al. v. Pico
(1982) 457 U.S. 853

Court Decision Page v. Lexington County School District (2008, 4th Cir.) 531 F.3d 275

192

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=1.&title=1.&part=19.&chapter=2.5.&article=1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=35182.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48900.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48907.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48950.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49061.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49073.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=60048.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=3307.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=54952.2.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayexpandedbranch.xhtml?tocCode=GOV&division=10.&title=1.&part=&chapter=&article=
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=(title:20 section:1232g edition:prelim) OR (granuleid:USC-prelim-title20-section1232g)&f=treesort&edition=prelim&num=0&jumpTo=true
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=(title:29 section:157 edition:prelim) OR (granuleid:USC-prelim-title29-section157)&f=treesort&edition=prelim&num=0&jumpTo=true
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=(title:29 section:794 edition:prelim) OR (granuleid:USC-prelim-title29-section794)&f=treesort&edition=prelim&num=0&jumpTo=true
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-34/subtitle-A/part-99
https://www.govinfo.gov/#advanced
https://www.lexisnexis.com/clients/CACourts/
https://law.justia.com/cases/
https://www.govinfo.gov/#advanced


Court Decision Perry Education Association v. Perry Local Educators' Association (1983)
460 U.S. 37

Court Decision Downs v. Los Angeles Unified School District (9th Cir. 2000) 228 F.3d 1003

Facebook Publication Facebook for Educators Guide, 2013

National Labor Relations Board Decision 18-CA-
1908 Sears Holdings, December 4, 2009

Website Meta in Education

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Website Facebook, privacy resources

Website California School Public Relations Association

Website CSBA

Management ResourcesManagement Resources DescriptionDescription

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

0000 Vision

0410 Nondiscrimination In District Programs And Activities

0440 District Technology Plan

1112 Media Relations

1113 District And School Websites

1113 District And School Websites

1113-E(1) District And School Websites

1160 Political Processes

1260 Educational Foundation

1312.3 Uniform Complaint Procedures

1312.3 Uniform Complaint Procedures

1325 Advertising And Promotion

3515.7 Firearms On School Grounds

3516 Emergencies And Disaster Preparedness Plan

3516 Emergencies And Disaster Preparedness Plan

4030 Nondiscrimination In Employment

4030 Nondiscrimination In Employment

4040 Employee Use Of Technology

4040-E(1) Employee Use Of Technology

4040-E(2) Employee Use Of Technology

4118 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4119.21 Professional Standards

4119.21-E(1) Professional Standards

4119.23 Unauthorized Release Of Confidential/Privileged Information

4131 Staff Development

4132 Publication Or Creation Of Materials

4218 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4218 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

193

https://law.justia.com/cases/
https://law.justia.com/cases/
https://cdpsdocs.state.co.us/safeschools/Resources/Facebook Guide for Educators.pdf
https://www.scribd.com/document/42238834/Sears-Holding-Advice-Memorandum-NLRB-Dec-4-2009
https://www.facebook.com/MetaforEducation
https://legalservices.csba.org/
http://www.facebook.com/fbprivacy
http://www.calspra.org
http://www.csba.org
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=xmN8ikBLEgs7kUeMtOJYQA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=6W6V2lg758nV8oJ92q8cTQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=2aGCaoK79paENKh3cGC8cg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=d5tBtDYYbfuJslsh9uhhU5slshWQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=4XQaFrGRrecYplusYzJX8iFslshQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=o6imeqslsh96cCbNlv1lkZxjQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=3fxcWyEaRMF3Nxplus6hXIr3A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=H2H4chUlIYjkcP0bYZc9Og==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=Kd3gy2FR8eZfWXWEJin6JA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=plussrJjGtKA0C9cRrvh7RCJw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=dzEvLKY3VZ2oNrfQVErklQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=jtTPUhbBh8plusplusBQJMp5KdslshQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=MzHiSplusjDfbIFnTp3QstGPA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=sgccEAZpluszCpQnbAqlgg39w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=TWK5W4V4dhslsh2l6X77m8HhQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=2ovdieL0Ca2E77pjgdCxbQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=hVUoMslsheBJ5ZE83WBcJPBnA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=6nc6yN5h6ydYtRyszA3ucw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=tQIn4iF1mMgHXBJHOE7NqQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=yMj6tPfEpjVPslsh8KibHJXlQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=1Tp9slshj5kdhDwJINtT73TEg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=Iq7plusYNYEsMA0NaBUDbwO4g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=2PBlsEJtplusjPAXtEplusDka0pQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=K6Tz1opcKl36c4JHUFMmjw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=rJXg9MUOCQww7zhslshFIwGew==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=yChzI49sqDf58ExkYwveVw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=yu3x57CM3Y8jwUPZslshVEWkQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=683CzIQHylCplusRb8zXlK0cg==


4219.21 Professional Standards

4219.21-E(1) Professional Standards

4219.23 Unauthorized Release Of Confidential/Privileged Information

4231 Staff Development

4232 Publication Or Creation Of Materials

4319.21 Professional Standards

4319.21-E(1) Professional Standards

4319.23 Unauthorized Release Of Confidential/Privileged Information

4331 Staff Development

4332 Publication Or Creation Of Materials

5022 Student And Family Privacy Rights

5125 Student Records

5125 Student Records

5125.1 Release Of Directory Information

5125.1 Release Of Directory Information

5125.1-E(1) Release Of Directory Information

5131 Conduct

5144 Discipline

5144.1 Suspension And Expulsion/Due Process

5145.2 Freedom Of Speech/Expression

5145.2 Freedom Of Speech/Expression

5145.3 Nondiscrimination/Harassment

5145.3 Nondiscrimination/Harassment

5145.7 Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment

5145.7 Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment

6162.6 Use Of Copyrighted Materials

6162.6 Use Of Copyrighted Materials

6163.4 Student Use Of Technology

9010 Public Statements

9012 Board Member Electronic Communications

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

194

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=LDAv0QjOzcy85e8TxGB8Sg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=Z1DGKLdYAsslshVslshkdCpBpCrA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=ScKQ8Bj5hsiIQUsIEzNBZA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=5lCMdGvgtplusdAslshT5ofNC1Vw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=vNA8CY9zJNbRMUTwgZFhWA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=9RrD3wQerk1bnZ5850HICg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=CTx0TjxkyiLX9jLP756gWw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=1iDUp1UFWKCyG7SfHplusCrlA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=1j7A0V1L3lSneRnAhz7QqA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=WkBTslshXkcJO89btplusrzaSVfw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=iUckplusUpxygZYplusBSul2AU4A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=XdGU7vQR1OHwP8slshthnplusfQw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=qHVbTBqazYz4Lw8v9jslshSpg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=kplusBAJzFKTkoTb1g3UahT4w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=3PLMin1ewjxvQRsOBidZnQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=cXJrLCKRVDo4XC5YohlCDg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=POoErMBgg11mHxyl53DMxw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=9QZ1JPrlEItuplustwpYNq9kw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=whXbDdMOHQCGVkhRRVsdiw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=U5qk7o6wm5plusslshBslshWMrgXXrg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=fRxR3kCBm2sLgzLcLIhLLQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=EiUXO6paslshr9AfFW8105TvA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=4smDSpZxoyplus5u5plwCHOplusA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=zTFItLvSmxOOyLk3pwTWhg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=39af887bS5p04xVwfYRGGA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=KbjslshZ24kUQ1hnYtPzfegjQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=QuBnSEYF9Vy3qcsBAgVJ7g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=ujb1BNrRypUFVLCsE7fc2g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=UIX73AsISEJiEunslshZGKWpw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=slshJJXpMPYdhSf6JZk7yuJXw==


Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

Policy 1250: Visitors/OutsidersPolicy 1250: Visitors/Outsiders Status:Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 06/12/2024 | Last Reviewed Date:| Last Reviewed Date: 06/12/2024

The Governing Board believes that it is important for parents/guardians and community members to take an active
interest in the issues affecting Tri- Valley ROP programs and students.  Therefore, the Board encourages interested
parents/guardians and community members to visit the programs and participate in the educational program.

To ensure the safety of students and staff and minimize interruption of the instructional program, the Superintendent
or designee shall establish procedures which facilitate visits during regular school days.  Visits during school hours
should be arranged with the school site where the program is offered.  When a visit involves a conference with a
teacher or TVROP administration, an appointment should be scheduled during noninstructional time.

Any person who is not a student or staff member shall register immediately upon entering any school building or
grounds when school is in session.
The  school site principal or designee shall provide a visible means of identification for all individuals who are not
students or staff members while on school premises.

No electronic listening or recording device may be used by any person in a classroom without the teacher's and
principal's permission.  (Education Code 51512)

The Board encourages all individuals to assist in maintaining a safe and secure school environment by behaving in an
orderly manner while on school grounds and by utilizing the TVROP's complaint processes if they have concerns with
any TVROP program or employee.  In accordance with Penal Code 626.7, the principal or designee may request that
any individual who is causing a disruption, including exhibiting volatile, hostile, aggressive, or offensive behavior,
immediately leave school grounds.

Presence of Sex Offender on Campus 

Any person who is required to register as a sex offender pursuant to Penal Code 290, including a parent/guardian of
a TVROP student, shall request written permission from the Member District principal before entering the school
campus or grounds.  As necessary, the Member District principal shall consult with local law enforcement authorities
before allowing the presence of any such person at school or other school activity. The Member District principal
also shall report to the Superintendent or designee anytime he/she gives  report that such a request is received and
notify the Superintendent or designee if permission is granted or denied.  
such written permission.

The Member District principal shall indicate on the written permission the date(s) and times for which permission has
been granted. (Penal Code 626.81)

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the Governing Board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter
of the policy.

StateState DescriptionDescription

Ed. Code 32210 Willful disturbance of public school or meeting

Ed. Code 32211 Threatened disruption or interference with classes

Ed. Code 32212 Classroom interruptions

Ed. Code 35160 Authority of governing boards

Ed. Code 35292 Visits to schools (Board members)

Ed. Code 49091.10 Parental right to inspect instructional materials and observe school activities

Ed. Code 51101 Parents Rights Act of 2002

Ed. Code 51512 Prohibited use of electronic listening or recording device

Evid. Code 1070 Refusal to disclose news source

Lab. Code 230.8 Discharge or discrimination for taking time off to participate in child's
educational activities

Board Policy Manual
Tri-Valley Regional Occupational Program

195

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=32210.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=32211.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=32212.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=35160.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=35292.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49091.10.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=51101.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=51512.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EVID&sectionNum=1070.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&sectionNum=230.8.


Pen. Code 290 Sex offenders

Pen. Code 626-626.11 Weapons on school grounds and other school crimes

Pen. Code 626.81 Misdemeanor for registered sex offender to come onto school grounds

Pen. Code 627-627.10 Access to school premises

StateState DescriptionDescription

Management ResourcesManagement Resources DescriptionDescription

Attorney General Opinion 95 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 509 (1996)

Court Decision Reeves v. Rocklin Unified School District (2003) 109 Cal.App.4th 652

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

1112 Media Relations

1240 Volunteer Assistance

1240 Volunteer Assistance

1312.1 Complaints Concerning District Employees

1312.1 Complaints Concerning District Employees

1312.2 Complaints Concerning Instructional Materials

1312.2 Complaints Concerning Instructional Materials

1312.2-E(1) Complaints Concerning Instructional Materials

1312.3 Uniform Complaint Procedures

1312.3 Uniform Complaint Procedures

1312.4 Williams Uniform Complaint Procedures

1312.4-E(2) Williams Uniform Complaint Procedures

1313 Civility

1700 Relations Between Private Industry And The Schools

3513.3 Tobacco-Free Schools

3513.3 Tobacco-Free Schools

3513.4 Drug And Alcohol Free Schools

3515 Campus Security

3515.2 Disruptions

3515.2 Disruptions

5020 Parent Rights And Responsibilities

5020 Parent Rights And Responsibilities

5142 Safety

5145.13 Response To Immigration Enforcement

5145.13 Response To Immigration Enforcement

196

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=290.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&division=&title=15.&part=1.&chapter=1.&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=626.81.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&division=&title=15.&part=1.&chapter=1.1.&article=
https://oag.ca.gov/opinions
https://www.lexisnexis.com/clients/CACourts/
https://legalservices.csba.org/
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=d5tBtDYYbfuJslsh9uhhU5slshWQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=W5LbIiWbwFwfQKXVsp2wslshw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=VEplus3Sro6jeM3WPUfy8nGDw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=EAav1E6fXI8aSFBhF3tMslshw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=sf49yhfu80feOr1HsuEyGA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=slshHxDGpoxOplusuyeJTP8ZT74A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=LZYlqR3slshW6BsPplus0UF3uO2A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=iRMVCWunxnISdxSKWQZ0qw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=plussrJjGtKA0C9cRrvh7RCJw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=dzEvLKY3VZ2oNrfQVErklQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=rlqDaxJUPQoLMcq2M99slsh2A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=zkJCDRCHhpx3zk7qmy5Lplusw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=0xhGErAek3pluswfAdZEDjbjA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=sv40jeuoMK1cslshKEnwBkCug==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=hj44KD6SqQcZO4fw3onxwA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=KdZBiFsbMNeCqURWTSbC9w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=mslsh25efRnyATATJvXmjJDXg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=SXnOLI5H4DBGvUbNpDHPplusg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=elQZvVQIxN53sQUGZHFWxw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=AmkvYJvplus0LIx8B9qZrcGKg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=44IpDntqHSCXUdslshLZslshAnBA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=I6w2zWpcS2sYPEQw1ujLrA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=mXhhOV4TLdVslshUeKb8Pc4zQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=tO9y1OrQ0IyxBtuN5cSa7A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=eg2VOquWazTLMMPSuOr6Qg==


Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

Policy 1312.2: Complaints Concerning Instructional MaterialsPolicy 1312.2: Complaints Concerning Instructional Materials Status:Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 06/12/2024 | Last Reviewed Date:| Last Reviewed Date: 06/12/2024

The Governing Board uses a comprehensive process to adopt Tri-Valley ROP instructional materials that is based on
selection criteria established by law and Board policy and includes opportunities for the involvement of TVROP staff,
parents/guardians, and community members, and, as appropriate, students. Complaints concerning the content or
use of instructional materials, including textbooks, supplementary instructional materials, library materials, or other
instructional materials and equipment, shall be properly and fairly considered using established complaint
procedures.

Parents/guardians are encouraged to discuss any concerns regarding instructional materials with their child's teacher
and/or the TVROP administrator. If the situation remains unresolved, a complaint may be filed using the process
specified in the accompanying administrative regulation and exhibit.

The TVROP shall accept complaints concerning instructional materials only from staff, TVROP residents, or the
parents/guardians of children enrolled in a TVROP school.  (Education Code 35160)

However, a complaint related to the use or prohibited use of any existing textbook, instructional material,
supplemental instructional material, or other curriculum for classroom instruction, or any book or other resource in a
school library that alleges unlawful discrimination based on a violation of Education Code 243 shall be filed,
investigated, and resolved in accordance with Board Policy 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures.

When deliberating upon challenged materials, the Superintendent, or any designee or committee established by the
Superintendent to review the materials, shall consider the degree to which the materials aligned with the criteria for
instructional materials as specified in law, Board policy, and administrative regulation. In addition, such deliberations
may consider the educational philosophy and vision of the TVROP; the educational suitability of the materials
including the manner in which the materials support the curriculum and appropriateness for the student's age; the
professional opinions of teachers of the subject and of other competent authorities and/or experts; reviews of the
materials by reputable bodies; the stated objectives in using the materials; community standards; the allegations in
the complaint, including the extent to which the objections are based on the dislike of ideas contained in the
materials; and the impact that keeping or removing the materials would have on student well-being.

The Superintendent, or any designee or committee established by the Superintendent to review the materials, shall
not prohibit the continued use of an appropriately adopted textbook, instructional material, supplemental
instructional material, or other curriculum for classroom instruction, or any book or other resource in a school library
on the basis that it contains inclusive and/or diverse perspectives, as specified in Education Code 243.

Additionally, the Superintendent, or any designee or committee established by the Superintendent to the review
materials, shall not authorize the continued use of an adopted textbook, instructional material, supplemental
instructional material, or curriculum for classroom instruction if the use would subject a student to unlawful
discrimination pursuant to Education Code 220.  

If the complainant finds the Superintendent's or review committee's decision unsatisfactory, the complainant may
appeal the decision to the Board.

Any challenged instructional material that is reviewed by the TVROP shall not be subject to further reconsideration
for 12 months, unless required by law.

Complaints related to the sufficiency of textbooks or instructional materials shall be resolved as specified in
Administrative Regulation 1312.4 - Williams Uniform Complaint Procedures.

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the Governing Board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter
of the policy.

StateState DescriptionDescription

5 CCR 4600-4670 Uniform complaint procedures

Ed. Code 1240 County superintendent of schools; duties

Board Policy Manual
Tri-Valley Regional Occupational Program

197

http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=1240.&lawCode=EDC


Ed. Code 18111 Exclusion of books by Governing board that are sectarian, partisan, or
denominational character

Ed. Code 220 Prohibition of discrimination

Ed. Code 240-244 Prohibition of discrimination; instructional materials

Ed. Code 35010 Control of district; prescription and enforcement of rules

Ed. Code 35160 Powers and duties of school boards

Ed. Code 35186 Williams uniform complaint procedures

Ed. Code 44805 Teacher enforcement of course of studies; use of textbooks, rules and
regulations

Ed. Code 48907 Exercise of free expression; time, place, and manner rules and regulations

Ed. Code 48950 Speech and other communication

Ed. Code 51204.5 Social sciences instruction; contributions of specified groups

Ed. Code 51501 Nondiscriminatory subject matter

Ed. Code 51511 Religious matters properly included in courses of study

Ed. Code 51933 Sexual health education and HIV prevention materials

Ed. Code 60000-60005 Instructional materials; legislative intent

Ed. Code 60040-60052 Requirements for instructional materials

Ed. Code 60119 Public hearing on sufficiency of textbooks and instructional materials

Ed. Code 60200-60213 Elementary school materials

Ed. Code 60226 Requirements for publishers and manufacturers

Ed. Code 60400-60411 High school textbooks and instructional materials

Ed. Code 60510-60511 Donation or sale of obsolete instructional materials

StateState DescriptionDescription

Management ResourcesManagement Resources DescriptionDescription

California Department of Education Publication Guidance for Local Instructional Materials Adoption, March 2024

California Department of Education Publication Instructional Materials, FAQ

California Department of Education Publication Standards for Evaluating Instructional Materials for Social Content, 2013

California Department of Justice Publication Guidance to School Officials re: Legal Requirements for Providing Inclusive
Curricula and Books, Legal Alert, Jan. 2024

California School Boards Association Publication State Roles, Responsibilities, and Process for Instructional Materials
Adoption, Feb. 2024

California School Boards Association Publication Instructional Materials Adoption: Local governing board responsibilities,
Fact Sheet, Feb. 2024

California School Boards Association Publication Instructional Materials Adoptions: State and local governing board
processes, roles, and responsibilities, Feb. 2024

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Website Department of Justice

Website California Department of Education, Curriculum and Instruction Resources

Website CSBA

Website U.S. Department of Education, Office for Civil Rights

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

0410 Nondiscrimination In District Programs And Activities

198

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=18111.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=220.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=35010.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=35160.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=35186.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44805.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48907.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48950.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=51204.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=51501.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=51511.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=51933.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=33.&chapter=1.&article=1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=33.&chapter=1.&article=3.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=33.&chapter=1.&article=7.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=33.&chapter=2.&article=1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=60226.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayexpandedbranch.xhtml?tocCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=33.&chapter=3.&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=33.&chapter=4.&article=1.
https://www.cde.ca.gov/ci/cr/cf/documents/glimacfird.docx
https://www.cde.ca.gov/ci/cr/cf/imfrpfaq1.asp
https://www.cde.ca.gov/ci/cr/cf/documents/socialcontent2013.doc
https://oag.ca.gov/system/files/attachments/press-docs/Legal Alert Re Inclusive Curricula.1.9.24.1157CLEAN.pdf
https://www.csba.org/-/media/CSBA/Files/GovernanceResources/GovernanceBriefs/2024-REPD-_IM-StateRoles.ashx?la=en&rev=f00baf9bd1af4844b94f99135ca65588
https://www.csba.org/-/media/CSBA/Files/GovernanceResources/ResearchPapers/FactSheet_IM-LocalRoles-REPD_07-2024-1-(1).ashx?la=en&rev=2641c67340e64dd8bd8603a5df03a138
https://www.csba.org/-/media/CSBA/Files/GovernanceResources/GovernanceBriefs/2024-REPD-instructional-materials-brief.ashx
https://legalservices.csba.org/
https://oag.ca.gov/
http://www.cde.ca.gov/ci
http://www.csba.org
http://www2.ed.gov/ocr
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=6W6V2lg758nV8oJ92q8cTQ==


1250 Visitors/Outsiders

1312.1 Complaints Concerning District Employees

1312.1 Complaints Concerning District Employees

1312.3 Uniform Complaint Procedures

1312.3 Uniform Complaint Procedures

1312.4 Williams Uniform Complaint Procedures

1312.4-E(2) Williams Uniform Complaint Procedures

5145.3 Nondiscrimination/Harassment

5145.3 Nondiscrimination/Harassment

6000 Concepts And Roles

6141 Curriculum Development And Evaluation

6144 Controversial Issues

6161.1 Selection And Evaluation Of Instructional Materials

6161.1-E(1) Selection And Evaluation Of Instructional Materials

6161.11 Supplementary Instructional Materials

6161.2 Damaged Or Lost Instructional Materials

9000 Role Of The Board

9005 Governance Standards

9012 Board Member Electronic Communications

9200 Limits Of Board Member Authority

9322 Agenda/Meeting Materials

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

199

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=StHBk7EslshwUyyWEplusfslsh15TFA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=EAav1E6fXI8aSFBhF3tMslshw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=sf49yhfu80feOr1HsuEyGA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=plussrJjGtKA0C9cRrvh7RCJw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=dzEvLKY3VZ2oNrfQVErklQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=rlqDaxJUPQoLMcq2M99slsh2A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=zkJCDRCHhpx3zk7qmy5Lplusw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=EiUXO6paslshr9AfFW8105TvA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=4smDSpZxoyplus5u5plwCHOplusA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=NNkf6qqAz6slshNMtplussv6iwCQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=e6sDnqhTRXzkAJY0e92dGw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=Bf9Mtee3QlT7nl0OwwE0fA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=MRGbl1DbpcXvHsqGUV9Gsw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=D3FML11LYslshy8tsj3PoXJSQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=CHwMm3jX66jXMNtr255wDA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=sZD7HAJrt0yoAZGaeQjfqw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=plusvbY1CZJkFvI8g5mpyucYA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=BslshaUP1yIPqUcVNVJGgtf3w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=slshJJXpMPYdhSf6JZk7yuJXw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=ly5fvoDplusMuWCUvPyGykdAg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=CmmAWPdAl9AIhiNvCj3pOw==


Exhibit 1312.2-E(1): Complaints Concerning Instructional MaterialsExhibit 1312.2-E(1): Complaints Concerning Instructional Materials Status:Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 06/12/2024 | Last Reviewed Date:| Last Reviewed Date: 06/12/2024

REQUEST FOR RECONSIDERATION OF EXISTING
INSTRUCTIONAL MATERIALS

This form is only for use by Tri- Valley ROP employees, TVROP residents, or parents/guardians of children enrolled
in a TVROP school to challenge the content or use of any existing textbook, instructional material, supplemental
instructional material, or other curriculum for classroom instruction, or any book or other resource in a school library.

Date:___________________________________________________________________

Name of person filing complaint:___________________________________________________________________
Anonymous complaints will not be accepted.

Group represented (if any):___________________________________________________________________

Phone:___________________________________________________________________

E-mail address:___________________________________________________________________

Address:___________________________________________________________________

Instructional Material Being Challenged:

Title:___________________________________________________________________

Author:___________________________________________________________________

Publisher:___________________________________________________________________

Date of Edition:_____________________________________________________________

Name of school/classroom instructional material was
used:___________________________________________________________________

1. Please specifically state the nature of your concern or objection and identify your objection by page, website,
webpage and/or link, recording or digital sequence, video frame, or words, as appropriate. You may use
additional pages if necessary.

_____________________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________________

2. Was the instructional material of concern read/heard/viewed in isolation or was the entire selection
read/heard/viewed? If the entire selection was not read/heard/viewed, what is your estimate regarding the
percentage of the amount read/heard/viewed?

_____________________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________________

3. What is your concern regarding the consequence if a student reads/hears/views the instructional material? In
your assessment, is the instructional material appropriate for the age of the students being taught?

_____________________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________________

Board Policy Manual
Tri-Valley Regional Occupational Program

200



Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

4. What would you like the school to do about the instructional material?

_____________________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________________

___________________________________________________________________
Signature of complainant

For TVROP Use:

Request received by:___________________________________________________________________

Date:___________________________________________________________________

Title:___________________________________________________________________

Action taken:___________________________________________________________________

Date:___________________________________________________________________

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the Governing Board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter
of the policy.

StateState DescriptionDescription

5 CCR 4600-4670 Uniform complaint procedures

Ed. Code 1240 County superintendent of schools; duties

Ed. Code 18111 Exclusion of books by Governing board that are sectarian, partisan, or
denominational character

Ed. Code 220 Prohibition of discrimination

Ed. Code 240-244 Prohibition of discrimination; instructional materials

Ed. Code 35010 Control of district; prescription and enforcement of rules

Ed. Code 35160 Powers and duties of school boards

Ed. Code 35186 Williams uniform complaint procedures

Ed. Code 44805 Teacher enforcement of course of studies; use of textbooks, rules and
regulations

Ed. Code 48907 Exercise of free expression; time, place, and manner rules and regulations

Ed. Code 48950 Speech and other communication

Ed. Code 51204.5 Social sciences instruction; contributions of specified groups

Ed. Code 51501 Nondiscriminatory subject matter

Ed. Code 51511 Religious matters properly included in courses of study

Ed. Code 51933 Sexual health education and HIV prevention materials

Ed. Code 60000-60005 Instructional materials; legislative intent

Ed. Code 60040-60052 Requirements for instructional materials

Ed. Code 60119 Public hearing on sufficiency of textbooks and instructional materials

Ed. Code 60200-60213 Elementary school materials

Ed. Code 60226 Requirements for publishers and manufacturers

Ed. Code 60400-60411 High school textbooks and instructional materials

Ed. Code 60510-60511 Donation or sale of obsolete instructional materials

201

http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=1240.&lawCode=EDC
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=18111.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=220.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=35010.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=35160.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=35186.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44805.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48907.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48950.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=51204.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=51501.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=51511.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=51933.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=33.&chapter=1.&article=1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=33.&chapter=1.&article=3.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=33.&chapter=1.&article=7.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=33.&chapter=2.&article=1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=60226.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayexpandedbranch.xhtml?tocCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=33.&chapter=3.&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=33.&chapter=4.&article=1.


Management ResourcesManagement Resources DescriptionDescription

California Department of Education Publication Guidance for Local Instructional Materials Adoption, March 2024

California Department of Education Publication Instructional Materials, FAQ

California Department of Education Publication Standards for Evaluating Instructional Materials for Social Content, 2013

California Department of Justice Publication Guidance to School Officials re: Legal Requirements for Providing Inclusive
Curricula and Books, Legal Alert, Jan. 2024

California School Boards Association Publication State Roles, Responsibilities, and Process for Instructional Materials
Adoption, Feb. 2024

California School Boards Association Publication Instructional Materials Adoption: Local governing board responsibilities,
Fact Sheet, Feb. 2024

California School Boards Association Publication Instructional Materials Adoptions: State and local governing board
processes, roles, and responsibilities, Feb. 2024

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Website Department of Justice

Website California Department of Education, Curriculum and Instruction Resources

Website CSBA

Website U.S. Department of Education, Office for Civil Rights

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

0410 Nondiscrimination In District Programs And Activities

1250 Visitors/Outsiders

1312.1 Complaints Concerning District Employees

1312.1 Complaints Concerning District Employees

1312.3 Uniform Complaint Procedures

1312.3 Uniform Complaint Procedures

1312.4 Williams Uniform Complaint Procedures

1312.4-E(2) Williams Uniform Complaint Procedures

5145.3 Nondiscrimination/Harassment

5145.3 Nondiscrimination/Harassment

6000 Concepts And Roles

6141 Curriculum Development And Evaluation

6144 Controversial Issues

6161.1 Selection And Evaluation Of Instructional Materials

6161.1-E(1) Selection And Evaluation Of Instructional Materials

6161.11 Supplementary Instructional Materials

6161.2 Damaged Or Lost Instructional Materials

9000 Role Of The Board

9005 Governance Standards

9012 Board Member Electronic Communications

9200 Limits Of Board Member Authority

9322 Agenda/Meeting Materials

202

https://www.cde.ca.gov/ci/cr/cf/documents/glimacfird.docx
https://www.cde.ca.gov/ci/cr/cf/imfrpfaq1.asp
https://www.cde.ca.gov/ci/cr/cf/documents/socialcontent2013.doc
https://oag.ca.gov/system/files/attachments/press-docs/Legal Alert Re Inclusive Curricula.1.9.24.1157CLEAN.pdf
https://www.csba.org/-/media/CSBA/Files/GovernanceResources/GovernanceBriefs/2024-REPD-_IM-StateRoles.ashx?la=en&rev=f00baf9bd1af4844b94f99135ca65588
https://www.csba.org/-/media/CSBA/Files/GovernanceResources/ResearchPapers/FactSheet_IM-LocalRoles-REPD_07-2024-1-(1).ashx?la=en&rev=2641c67340e64dd8bd8603a5df03a138
https://www.csba.org/-/media/CSBA/Files/GovernanceResources/GovernanceBriefs/2024-REPD-instructional-materials-brief.ashx
https://legalservices.csba.org/
https://oag.ca.gov/
http://www.cde.ca.gov/ci
http://www.csba.org
http://www2.ed.gov/ocr
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=6W6V2lg758nV8oJ92q8cTQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=StHBk7EslshwUyyWEplusfslsh15TFA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=EAav1E6fXI8aSFBhF3tMslshw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=sf49yhfu80feOr1HsuEyGA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=plussrJjGtKA0C9cRrvh7RCJw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=dzEvLKY3VZ2oNrfQVErklQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=rlqDaxJUPQoLMcq2M99slsh2A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=zkJCDRCHhpx3zk7qmy5Lplusw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=EiUXO6paslshr9AfFW8105TvA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=4smDSpZxoyplus5u5plwCHOplusA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=NNkf6qqAz6slshNMtplussv6iwCQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=e6sDnqhTRXzkAJY0e92dGw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=Bf9Mtee3QlT7nl0OwwE0fA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=MRGbl1DbpcXvHsqGUV9Gsw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=D3FML11LYslshy8tsj3PoXJSQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=CHwMm3jX66jXMNtr255wDA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=sZD7HAJrt0yoAZGaeQjfqw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=plusvbY1CZJkFvI8g5mpyucYA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=BslshaUP1yIPqUcVNVJGgtf3w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=slshJJXpMPYdhSf6JZk7yuJXw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=ly5fvoDplusMuWCUvPyGykdAg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=CmmAWPdAl9AIhiNvCj3pOw==


Regulation 1312.4: Williams Uniform Complaint ProceduresRegulation 1312.4: Williams Uniform Complaint Procedures Status:Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 06/12/2024 | Last Reviewed Date:| Last Reviewed Date: 06/12/2024

Types of Complaints

The Tri-Valley ROP shall use the procedures described in this administrative regulation only to investigate and
resolve the following:

1. Complaints regarding the insufficiency of textbooks and instructional materials, including any complaint
alleging that:  (Education Code 35186; 5 CCR 4681)
 

a. A student, including an English learner, does not have standards-aligned textbooks or instructional
materials or state- or TVROP-adopted textbooks or other required instructional materials to use in class.
 

b. A student does not have access to textbooks or instructional materials to use at home or after school.
This does not require two sets of textbooks or instructional materials for each student.
 

c. Textbooks or instructional materials are in poor or unusable condition, have missing pages, or are
unreadable due to damage.
 

d. A student was provided photocopied sheets from only a portion of a textbook or instructional materials
to address a shortage of textbooks or instructional materials.
 

2. Complaints regarding teacher vacancy or misassignment, including any complaint alleging that:  (Education
Code 35186; 5 CCR 4682)
 

a. A semester begins and a teacher vacancy exists.
 

b. A teacher who lacks credentials or training to teach English learners is assigned to teach a class with one
or more English learners in the class.
 

c. A teacher is assigned to teach a class for which the teacher lacks subject matter competency.

Teacher vacancy means a position to which a single designated certificated employee has not been
assigned at the beginning of the year for an entire year or, if the position is for a one-semester course, a
position to which a single designated certificated employee has not been assigned at the beginning of
the semester for an entire semester.  (Education Code 35186; 5 CCR 4600)

Beginning of the year or semester means the time period from the first day students attend classes for a
year-long course or semester-long course, though not later than 20 business days afterwards.  (5 CCR
4600)

Misassignment means the placement of a certificated employee in a teaching or services position for
which the employee does not hold a legally recognized certificate or credential or the placement of a
certificated employee in a teaching or services position that the employee is not otherwise authorized by
statute to hold.  (Education Code 35186; 5 CCR 4600)

3. Complaints regarding the condition of school facilities, including any complaint alleging that:  (Education Code
35186; 5 CCR 4683)
 

a. A condition poses an emergency or urgent threat to the health or safety of students or staff

Emergency or urgent threat means structures or systems that are in a condition that poses a threat to the
health and safety of students or staff while at school, including, but not limited to, gas leaks;
nonfunctioning heating, ventilation, fire sprinklers, or air-conditioning systems; electrical power failure;
major sewer line stoppage; major pest or vermin infestation; broken windows or exterior doors or gates
that will not lock and that pose a security risk; abatement of hazardous materials previously
undiscovered that pose an immediate threat to students or staff; structural damage creating a hazardous
or uninhabitable condition; or any other condition deemed appropriate.  (Education Code 17592.72)
 

Board Policy Manual
Tri-Valley Regional Occupational Program

203



b. A school restroom has not been cleaned, maintained, or kept open in accordance with Education Code
35292.5

Clean or maintained school restroom means a school restroom has been cleaned or maintained regularly, is
fully operational, or has been stocked at all times with toilet paper, soap, and paper towels or functional
hand dryers. (Education Code 35292.5)

Open restroom means the school has kept all restrooms open during school hours when students
are not in classes and has kept a sufficient number of restrooms open during school hours when
students are in classes. This does not apply when the temporary closing of the restroom is
necessary for a documented student safety concern, an immediate threat to student safety, or to
repair the facility.  (Education Code 35292.5)
 

Additionally, starting July 1, 2026, in any school that has more than one female and more than one male restroom
designated exclusively for student use, a complaint may be filed alleging noncompliance with the requirements
specified in Education Code 35292.5 to maintain at least one all-gender restroom for student use.  (Education Code
35292.5)

Forms and Notices

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure a Williams complaint form is available at each school. However,
complainants need not use the TVROP's complaint form in order to file a complaint.  (Education Code 35186; 5 CCR
4680)

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that the TVROP's complaint form specifies the location for filing a
complaint and contains a space to indicate whether the complainant desires a response to the complaint. A
complainant may add as much text to explain the complaint as desired.  (Education Code 35186; 5 CCR 4680)

The Superintendent or designee shall post in each classroom in each school a notice containing the components
specified in Education Code 35186.  (Education Code 35186)

Filing of Complaint

A complaint alleging any condition(s) specified in the section "Types of Complaints" above shall be filed with the
Member district principal or TVROP Superintenent or designee at the school in which the complaint arises. A
complaint about problems beyond the authority of the Member district principal shall be forwarded to the
TVROP Superintendent or designee in a timely manner, but not to exceed 10 working days. Complaints may be filed
anonymously.  (Education Code 35186; 5 CCR 4680)

A complaint alleging that more than one student does not have sufficient textbooks or instructional materials as the
result of an act by the Board, or the Board's failure to remedy the deficiency, may be filed with the Superintendent of
Public Instruction (SPI) directly in addition to or in lieu of being filed with the district. Any such complaint shall
identify the basis and provide evidence to support its filing directly with the SPI.  (Education Code 35186)

If the TVROP Superintendent or designee becomes aware that a complaint alleging insufficient textbooks or
instructional materials that has been filed directly with the SPI but not with the Member district, the
TVROP Superintendent or designee may initiate an investigation in accordance with this administrative regulation, as
described below, if there is sufficient evidence to do so.

Investigation and Response

The Member district principal or a designee of the TVROP Superintendent shall make all reasonable efforts to
investigate any problem within the principal's or designee's authority.  (Education Code 35186; 5 CCR 4685)

The Member district principal or TVROP Superintendent's designee shall remedy a valid complaint within a
reasonable time period not to exceed 30 working days from the date the complaint was received.  (Education Code
35186; 5 CCR 4685)

204



Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

If the complainant has indicated on the complaint form a desire to receive a response to the complaint, the Member
district principal or TVROP Superintendent's designee shall send written resolution of the complaint to the mailing
address of the complainant as indicated on the complaint within 45 working days of the initial filing of the complaint.
If the Member district principal makes this report, the information shall be reported at the same time to the
TVROP Superintendent or designee.  (Education Code 35186; 5 CCR 4680, 4685)

When Education Code 48985 is applicable and the complainant has requested a response, the response shall be
written in English and in the primary language in which the complaint was filed.  (Education Code 35186)

If a complainant is not satisfied with the resolution of a complaint, the complainant has the right to describe the
complaint to the TVROP Governing Board at a regularly scheduled meeting.  (Education Code 35186; 5 CCR 4686)

For any complaint concerning a facilities condition that poses an emergency or urgent threat to the health or safety
of students or staff as described in Item #3a in the section "Types of Complaints" above, a complainant who is not
satisfied with the resolution proffered by the Member district principal or TVROP Superintendent or designee may
file an appeal to the SPI within 15 days of receiving the TVROP's response. The complainant shall comply with the
appeal requirements specified in 5 CCR 4632.  (Education Code 35186; 5 CCR 4687)

All complaints and written responses shall be public records.  (Education Code 35186; 5 CCR 4686)

Reports

On a quarterly basis, the TVROP Superintendent or designee shall report, to the Board at a regularly scheduled Board
meeting and to the County Superintendent of Programs, summarized data on the nature and resolution of all
complaints. The report shall include the number of complaints by general subject area with the number of resolved
and unresolved complaints.  (Education Code 35186; 5 CCR 4686)

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the Governing Board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter
of the policy.

StateState DescriptionDescription

5 CCR 4600-4670 Uniform complaint procedures

5 CCR 4600-4687 Uniform complaint procedures and Williams complaints

5 CCR 4690-4694 Health and safety complaints in license-exempt preschool programs

Ed. Code 1240 County superintendent of schools; duties

Ed. Code 17592.72 School Facility Emergency Repair Account; urgent or emergency repairs

Ed. Code 200-270 Prohibition of discrimination

Ed. Code 234.1 Student protections relating to discrimination, harassment, intimidation, and
bullying

Ed. Code 33126 School accountability report card

Ed. Code 35186 Williams uniform complaint procedures

Ed. Code 35292.5-35292.6 Restrooms; maintenance and cleanliness

Ed. Code 48907 Exercise of free expression; time, place, and manner rules and regulations

Ed. Code 48950 Speech and other communication

Ed. Code 48985 Notices to parents in language other than English

Ed. Code 51501 Nondiscriminatory subject matter

Ed. Code 60010 Instructional materials; definition

Ed. Code 60040-60052 Requirements for instructional materials

Ed. Code 60119 Hearing on sufficiency of instructional materials

Ed. Code 60150 Penalty for insufficiency of textbooks and instructional materials

205

https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Browse/Home/California/CaliforniaCodeofRegulations?guid=I34D6EB604C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3&transitionType=Default&contextData=%28sc.Default%29#I34DE17534C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Browse/Home/California/CaliforniaCodeofRegulations?guid=I35001E404C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3&transitionType=Default&contextData=%28sc.Default%29#I35028F434C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=1240.&lawCode=EDC
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=17592.72.
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?division=1.&chapter=2.&part=1.&lawCode=EDC&title=1.&article=1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=234.1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=33126.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=35186.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=3.&title=2.&part=21.&chapter=2.&article=10.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48907.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48950.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48985.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=51501.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=60010.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=33.&chapter=1.&article=3.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=33.&chapter=1.&article=7.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=33.&chapter=1.&article=8.


FederalFederal DescriptionDescription

20 USC 6314 Title I schoolwide program

Management ResourcesManagement Resources DescriptionDescription

CA Office of the Attorney General Publication Guidance to School Officials re: Legal Requirements for Providing Inclusive
Curricula and Books, Legal Alert, January 2024

CSBA Publication Instructional Materials Adoptions: State and local governing board
processes, roles, and responsibilities, Governance Brief, February 2024

CSBA Publication Instructional Materials Adoptions: Local governing board responsibilities,
Fact Sheet, February 2024

Website California County Superintendents Educational Services Association

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Website State Allocation Board, Office of Public School Construction

Website Department of Justice

Website U.S. Department of Education, Office for Civil Rights

Website CSBA

Website California Department of Education

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

0410 Nondiscrimination In District Programs And Activities

1250 Visitors/Outsiders

1312.2 Complaints Concerning Instructional Materials

1312.2 Complaints Concerning Instructional Materials

1312.2-E(1) Complaints Concerning Instructional Materials

1312.3 Uniform Complaint Procedures

1312.3 Uniform Complaint Procedures

1340 Access To District Records

1340 Access To District Records

3270 Sale And Disposal Of Books, Equipment And Supplies

3270 Sale And Disposal Of Books, Equipment And Supplies

3514 Environmental Safety

4112.2 Certification

4112.2 Certification

4113 Assignment

4113 Assignment

4144 Complaints

4144 Complaints

4244 Complaints

4244 Complaints

4344 Complaints

4344 Complaints

5145.3 Nondiscrimination/Harassment

5145.3 Nondiscrimination/Harassment

206

https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=(title:20 section:6314 edition:prelim) OR (granuleid:USC-prelim-title20-section6314)&f=treesort&edition=prelim&num=0&jumpTo=true
https://oag.ca.gov/system/files/attachments/press-docs/Legal Alert Re Inclusive Curricula.1.9.24.1157CLEAN.pdf
https://www.csba.org/-/media/CSBA/Files/GovernanceResources/GovernanceBriefs/2024-REPD-instructional-materials-
brief.ashx?la=en&rev=9880900e6d334c81a7f64d637e40dc56
https://www.csba.org/-/media/CSBA/Files/GovernanceResources/GovernanceBriefs/2024-REPD-_IM-LocalRoles.ashx?la=en&rev=94453dc92df043379995b07589a4d558#:~:text=Local boards have a responsibility,been approved by the SBE.
http://ccsesa.org/
https://legalservices.csba.org/
https://www.dgs.ca.gov/opsc
https://oag.ca.gov/
http://www2.ed.gov/ocr
http://www.csba.org
http://www.cde.ca.gov
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=6W6V2lg758nV8oJ92q8cTQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=StHBk7EslshwUyyWEplusfslsh15TFA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=slshHxDGpoxOplusuyeJTP8ZT74A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=LZYlqR3slshW6BsPplus0UF3uO2A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=iRMVCWunxnISdxSKWQZ0qw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=plussrJjGtKA0C9cRrvh7RCJw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=dzEvLKY3VZ2oNrfQVErklQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=jSQCN8bwEZWEmfVMQ1Y0aw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=iq4sw8gP4uPlJugVHK7Ivw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=FLCmdpg5oo7OAY01658FKQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=WP2t9AgMIgrssol8slshjtXyA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=OutfUkt9Og66cKfeLnbNeA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=hXQk3HslshpPoNlSdslshQuQUCww==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=S2EEJEPoEGFpGrj1MOEslshrA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=13TzTwa2vdURxjk6qplusVDLA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=42b9JL4nUrgWQKd5I2IYcA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=IwQFI7NNVNXR1J3YK8Bslshfw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=VbBVr5MS3GslshCLplus3fzecQ2Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=3pZNWSCXbpzlZQplusslshzvombA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=2MF5EvttqfHr1i0e8AaaLQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=zUnnqLlea0qMubslshDAQB2Xw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=TWyFplus8wZegxNsimYbLe5vw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=EiUXO6paslshr9AfFW8105TvA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=4smDSpZxoyplus5u5plwCHOplusA==


6161.1 Selection And Evaluation Of Instructional Materials

6161.1-E(1) Selection And Evaluation Of Instructional Materials

6161.11 Supplementary Instructional Materials

6161.2 Damaged Or Lost Instructional Materials

9000 Role Of The Board

9012 Board Member Electronic Communications

9200 Limits Of Board Member Authority

9322 Agenda/Meeting Materials

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

207

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=MRGbl1DbpcXvHsqGUV9Gsw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=D3FML11LYslshy8tsj3PoXJSQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=CHwMm3jX66jXMNtr255wDA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=sZD7HAJrt0yoAZGaeQjfqw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=plusvbY1CZJkFvI8g5mpyucYA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=slshJJXpMPYdhSf6JZk7yuJXw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=ly5fvoDplusMuWCUvPyGykdAg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=CmmAWPdAl9AIhiNvCj3pOw==


Exhibit 1312.4-E(2): Williams Uniform Complaint ProceduresExhibit 1312.4-E(2): Williams Uniform Complaint Procedures Status:Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 06/12/2024 | Last Reviewed Date:| Last Reviewed Date: 06/12/2024

K-12 COMPLAINT FORM:
WILLIAMS UNIFORM COMPLAINT PROCEDURES

Education Code 35186 creates a procedure for the filing of complaints concerning deficiencies related to
instructional materials, conditions of facilities that are not maintained in a clean or safe manner or in good
repair,  including emergency or urgent facilities conditions that pose a threat to the health and safety of students or
staff, or teacher vacancy or misassignment. The complaint and response are public documents as provided by law.
Complaints may be filed anonymously. However, if you wish to receive a response to your complaint, you must
provide the contact information below.

Response requested?  ___ Yes   ___ No

Contact information:  (if response is requested)
Name:  ____________________________________________________________________
Address:  __________________________________________________________________
Phone number:   Day:  ___________________     Evening:  ____________________________
E-mail address, if any:  _______________________________________________________

Date problem was observed:  __________________________________________________

Location of the problem that is the subject of this complaint:
School name/address:  ________________________________________________________
Course title/grade level and teacher name:  ________________________________________
Room number/name of room/location of facility:  __________________________________

Only the following issues may be the subject of this complaint process.  If you wish to complain about an issue not
specified below, please contact the school or Tri- Valley ROP for the appropriate TVROP complaint procedure.

Specific issue(s) of the complaint:  (Please check all that apply. A complaint may contain more than one allegation.)

1. Textbooks and instructional materials:  (Education Code 35186; 5 CCR 4681)

A student, including an English learner, does not have standards-aligned textbooks or instructional
materials or state- or TVROP-adopted textbooks or other required instructional materials to use in class.
 
A student does not have access to textbooks or instructional materials to use at home or after school.
This does not require two sets of textbooks or instructional materials for each student.
 
Textbooks or instructional materials are in poor or unusable condition, have missing pages, or are
unreadable due to damage.
 
A student was provided photocopied sheets from only a portion of a textbook or instructional materials
to address a shortage of textbooks or instructional materials.

2. Teacher vacancy or misassignment:  (Education Code 35186; 5 CCR 4682)

A semester begins and a teacher vacancy exists. A teacher vacancy is a position to which a single
designated certificated employee has not been assigned at the beginning of the school year for an entire
year or, if the position a瀀ositio�the  yက�githe it,riyr iĀr怀itn a瀀it,riyr iĀr怀it�the  yက

o
othe

d the riot r rir怀itn a瀀riot r rir怀it�the  yက
o
othe

d� ̒
c̀  ̓the

d
ēgĀē̓

̒
c̀̀̓n̒r n̓the

dggԀoĀng ngfD倀cfԀ�o�nonԀggonoogĀĀgnԀҀŐn�ĀgoԀgԀogĀggĀԀgԀo�ogothe

dĀgoogԀĀng�ҀŐ�ooĀ�gԀggĀoĀngn�ԀĀoĀog�o�ognoҀŐ�Āgo�ĀggĀg�Ԁ�gno�ҀŐ�ggonoĀgnn the

don�Āosinle

dsinledĀgԀggĀgҀŐogԀnogogo�ԀĀoĀԀggĀoĀngog�onn�ogo�oòogg�og�gg�onogggonsinsinle

do�the

d the

dnoo�Ԁor�ԀgԀnoҀŐĀ�ĀgҀŐgor̀ԀҀŐn�Āgo�ggonng�onggĀԀgnԀҀŐgo�nonrĀggg�the

d nҀŐn�ĀgoҀŐ�gĀg�gngҀŐ̀grnrogĀ̀gĀgòoԀĀr�onngò ̀goԀҀŐn�Āgog̀gҀŐgthe

donrĀgogԀgo�ԀĀgnoҀŐ�oĀnggnthe

dnngoggogŐŐiiiŐŐsŐŐŐŐiiiŐŐr the

d ngo�ԀĀgnoҀŐ�oĀngŐŐŐŐoĀonngĀoggog the

dr�ҀŐŐŐŐŐiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiithe

deggoŐŐŐŐiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiithe

dgngggҀŐgoŐŐŐŐŐŐЀ�ŐŐŐŐiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiŐŐŐŐŐŐŐŐŐŐrgĀgŐŐŐŐiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiithe

d�ҀŐ�Ā�ggogĀ�gŐŐŐŐiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiithe

d�onongҀŐ�ngorgŐŐŐŐiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiithe

d̀ԀoĀngnognongҀŐog�oĀogggĀԀnogĀԀҀŐn�Āgothe

dԀnng�ҀŐ��ggoŐŐŐŐiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiithe

d ngooĀo�o�gr�ggo�Ԁog�ҀŐŐŐŐŐiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiithe

dsnnҀŐggҀŐgo
�g�ҀŐnonnҀŐ�nԀoĀngn�ԀĀoŐŐŐŐiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiithe

d

rii넀orroi o��
c

Ā

e

�

i

i

i

넀

�

e

c

i

oĀi넀�ĀԀr�oii�ĀccoĀfo�
ĀiԀr�oĀ�
i

�

Āo��
i

the

d�

c

o

o

c

섀

t

　

ccrc�iԀcԀii넀�ԀĀt t �Ācrrt̓
̀Āo

t i넀�
i



c

 

�

i

t̀

Ā

Ԁ

r�oiiithe

dnԀĀԀĀgoŐŐŐŐnogԀҀŐn�ĀgoŐŐŐŐŐŐo�ԀԀ�og�o�nnreԀҀŐn�ĀgoҀŐ�Ԁgo�ĀgҀŐ̀oog�gng��oĀngr�the

d the

d�ognn��ggĀgoogԀĀng�ҀŐ�ooĀ�ŐŐŐŐŐŐoggԀoĀng ng̀̀ŐŐsŐŐ̀t

deogggogĀgԀggĀg�ggĀg�ogoggngnog�ro� gg�og��Āggo�ognn�noĀgoogԀĀng� the

dҀŐ�ooĀ�noo�o�nòsЀ��gnnogo�ognn�nonogooggĀogĀgoogԀĀng�ҀŐ�ooĀ�ògĀgԀ�the

d teogggogngnog�r�Ԁòo�ognn�noĀgoogԀĀng�ҀŐ�ooĀ�òg�ognҀŐno�ooԀnnthe

dĀgngnooggĀoòono�ognn�noĀgoogԀĀng�ҀŐ�ooĀ�no�Ԁogggothe

d t

d�ognn�noĀgoogԀĀng�ҀŐ�ooĀ��oĀgnnnonoggg�gԀggĀoĀnggg�rҀŐĀĀgn�gno�o the

dggo�g�gggòg�ҀŐ�the

d t

deogggo�nonrĀggngnò ԀnĀggoonҀŐng�nnoo
Āngn�o�ognn�noĀgoogԀĀng�ҀŐ�ooĀ� the

dò �ggo�gnoo�no�ognn�noĀgoogԀĀng�ҀŐ�ooĀ�the

dr the

d̀�Ԁor�ԀgԀnoҀŐĀ�ĀgҀŐgoŐŐŐŐŐŐoggԀoĀng ng̀̀ŐŐsŐŐ̀t

dҀŐoogĀg�gg�o�Ԁor�ԀgԀ�Āoreo�Ԁor�ԀgԀĀ�nnĀoĀngò gĀԀ�Āg the

dgĀg�ogԀooĀĀԀogҀŐnng�gnogg�Āgg�ooggĀggĀgnogԀnn�ono�ggoĀo the

d�onogĀognnĀoĀngĀno�ng�ҀŐooԀgog�nnĀoĀngò gĀԀ�ĀggĀg�ogԀooĀĀԀo the

dҀŐnng�gnogg�ĀggooggĀggĀgn�ҀŐoono�ggoĀoҀŐoorŐŐo sŐŐ̀iiကthe

dt

deo�Ԁog̀�ԀԀggoĀ�nooo�ĀgĀgò o�ԀgĀg�ogoĀ�Āgg̀ o�Ԁ�Ԁ�Āogng the

dnoҀŐ̀ogĀg�ogoĀgogԀ�the

d t

do�ԀoĀ�Āgg̀ o�Ԁ�Ԁ�nogĀԀogo�Ԁo�ԀggԀҀŐ�oooԀҀŐnogԀthe

dr the

dn�ԀĀoĀԀggĀoĀngŐŐŐŐŐŐoggԀoĀng ng̀̀̀̀̀̀̀̀g̀̀̀̀ŐŐsŐŐ̀ect

Board Policy Manual
Tri-Valley Regional Occupational Program

208



Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

A condition exists that poses an emergency or urgent threat to the health or safety of students or staff
including gas leaks; nonfunctioning heating, ventilation, fire sprinklers, or air-conditioning systems;
electrical power failure; major sewer line stoppage; major pest or vermin infestation; broken windows or
exterior doors or gates that will not lock and that pose a security risk; abatement of hazardous materials
previously undiscovered that pose an immediate threat to students or staff; structural damage creating a
hazardous or uninhabitable condition; and any other condition deemed appropriate by the TVROP.
 
A school restroom has not been cleaned or maintained regularly, is not fully operational, or has not been
stocked at all times with toilet paper, soap, and paper towels or functional hand dryers.
 
For a school serving any of grades 6-12, the school has not, at all times, stocked and made available and
accessible free of cost, an adequate supply of menstrual products in every women's and all-gender
restroom, and in at least one men's restroom.
Starting July 1, 2026, for a school that has more than one female and more than one male restroom
designated exclusively for student use, the school has not maintained at least one all-gender restroom
for student use in accordance with Education Code 35292
The school has not kept all restrooms open during school hours when students are not in classes and has
not kept a sufficient number of restrooms open during school hours when students are in classes. This
does not apply when temporary closing of the restroom is necessary for a documented student safety
concern, an immediate threat to student safety, or to repair the facility.

This does not apply when temporary closing of the restroom is necessary for a documented student safety concern,
an immediate threat to student safety, or to repair the facility. 

Please describe the issue of your complaint in detail. You may attach additional pages and include as much text as
necessary to fully describe the situation. For complaints regarding facilities conditions, please describe the
emergency or urgent facilities condition and how that condition poses a threat to the health or safety of students or
staff.

___________________________________________________________________________
___________________________________________________________________________
___________________________________________________________________________
___________________________________________________________________________
___________________________________________________________________________
___________________________________________________________________________
___________________________________________________________________________

Please file this complaint at the following location:
 

Assistant to the Superintendent
1040 Florence Rd.
Livermore, CA 94550

Please be aware that you may file a complaint directly with the Superintendent of Public Instruction if you are
alleging that more than one student does not have sufficient textbooks or instructional materials as the result of an
act by the Governing Board, or the Board's failure to remedy the deficiency.

Please provide a signature below. If you wish to remain anonymous, a signature is not required.  However, all
complaints, even anonymous ones, should be dated.

_______________________________________                      _______________________
                         (Signature)                                                                      (Date)

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the Governing Board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter
of the policy.

209



StateState DescriptionDescription

5 CCR 4600-4670 Uniform complaint procedures

5 CCR 4600-4687 Uniform complaint procedures and Williams complaints

5 CCR 4690-4694 Health and safety complaints in license-exempt preschool programs

Ed. Code 1240 County superintendent of schools; duties

Ed. Code 17592.72 School Facility Emergency Repair Account; urgent or emergency repairs

Ed. Code 200-270 Prohibition of discrimination

Ed. Code 234.1 Student protections relating to discrimination, harassment, intimidation, and
bullying

Ed. Code 33126 School accountability report card

Ed. Code 35186 Williams uniform complaint procedures

Ed. Code 35292.5-35292.6 Restrooms; maintenance and cleanliness

Ed. Code 48907 Exercise of free expression; time, place, and manner rules and regulations

Ed. Code 48950 Speech and other communication

Ed. Code 48985 Notices to parents in language other than English

Ed. Code 51501 Nondiscriminatory subject matter

Ed. Code 60010 Instructional materials; definition

Ed. Code 60040-60052 Requirements for instructional materials

Ed. Code 60119 Hearing on sufficiency of instructional materials

Ed. Code 60150 Penalty for insufficiency of textbooks and instructional materials

FederalFederal DescriptionDescription

20 USC 6314 Title I schoolwide program

Management ResourcesManagement Resources DescriptionDescription

CA Office of the Attorney General Publication Guidance to School Officials re: Legal Requirements for Providing Inclusive
Curricula and Books, Legal Alert, January 2024

CSBA Publication Instructional Materials Adoptions: State and local governing board
processes, roles, and responsibilities, Governance Brief, February 2024

CSBA Publication Instructional Materials Adoptions: Local governing board responsibilities,
Fact Sheet, February 2024

Website California County Superintendents Educational Services Association

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Website State Allocation Board, Office of Public School Construction

Website Department of Justice

Website U.S. Department of Education, Office for Civil Rights

Website CSBA

Website California Department of Education

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

0410 Nondiscrimination In District Programs And Activities

1250 Visitors/Outsiders

1312.2 Complaints Concerning Instructional Materials

1312.2 Complaints Concerning Instructional Materials

210

https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Browse/Home/California/CaliforniaCodeofRegulations?guid=I34D6EB604C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3&transitionType=Default&contextData=%28sc.Default%29#I34DE17534C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Browse/Home/California/CaliforniaCodeofRegulations?guid=I35001E404C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3&transitionType=Default&contextData=%28sc.Default%29#I35028F434C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=1240.&lawCode=EDC
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=17592.72.
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?division=1.&chapter=2.&part=1.&lawCode=EDC&title=1.&article=1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=234.1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=33126.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=35186.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=3.&title=2.&part=21.&chapter=2.&article=10.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48907.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48950.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48985.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=51501.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=60010.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=33.&chapter=1.&article=3.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=33.&chapter=1.&article=7.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=33.&chapter=1.&article=8.
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=(title:20 section:6314 edition:prelim) OR (granuleid:USC-prelim-title20-section6314)&f=treesort&edition=prelim&num=0&jumpTo=true
https://oag.ca.gov/system/files/attachments/press-docs/Legal Alert Re Inclusive Curricula.1.9.24.1157CLEAN.pdf
https://www.csba.org/-/media/CSBA/Files/GovernanceResources/GovernanceBriefs/2024-REPD-instructional-materials-
brief.ashx?la=en&rev=9880900e6d334c81a7f64d637e40dc56
https://www.csba.org/-/media/CSBA/Files/GovernanceResources/GovernanceBriefs/2024-REPD-_IM-LocalRoles.ashx?la=en&rev=94453dc92df043379995b07589a4d558#:~:text=Local boards have a responsibility,been approved by the SBE.
http://ccsesa.org/
https://legalservices.csba.org/
https://www.dgs.ca.gov/opsc
https://oag.ca.gov/
http://www2.ed.gov/ocr
http://www.csba.org
http://www.cde.ca.gov
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=6W6V2lg758nV8oJ92q8cTQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=StHBk7EslshwUyyWEplusfslsh15TFA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=slshHxDGpoxOplusuyeJTP8ZT74A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=LZYlqR3slshW6BsPplus0UF3uO2A==


1312.2-E(1) Complaints Concerning Instructional Materials

1312.3 Uniform Complaint Procedures

1312.3 Uniform Complaint Procedures

1340 Access To District Records

1340 Access To District Records

3270 Sale And Disposal Of Books, Equipment And Supplies

3270 Sale And Disposal Of Books, Equipment And Supplies

3514 Environmental Safety

4112.2 Certification

4112.2 Certification

4113 Assignment

4113 Assignment

4144 Complaints

4144 Complaints

4244 Complaints

4244 Complaints

4344 Complaints

4344 Complaints

5145.3 Nondiscrimination/Harassment

5145.3 Nondiscrimination/Harassment

6161.1 Selection And Evaluation Of Instructional Materials

6161.1-E(1) Selection And Evaluation Of Instructional Materials

6161.11 Supplementary Instructional Materials

6161.2 Damaged Or Lost Instructional Materials

9000 Role Of The Board

9012 Board Member Electronic Communications

9200 Limits Of Board Member Authority

9322 Agenda/Meeting Materials

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

211

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=iRMVCWunxnISdxSKWQZ0qw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=plussrJjGtKA0C9cRrvh7RCJw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=dzEvLKY3VZ2oNrfQVErklQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=jSQCN8bwEZWEmfVMQ1Y0aw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=iq4sw8gP4uPlJugVHK7Ivw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=FLCmdpg5oo7OAY01658FKQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=WP2t9AgMIgrssol8slshjtXyA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=OutfUkt9Og66cKfeLnbNeA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=hXQk3HslshpPoNlSdslshQuQUCww==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=S2EEJEPoEGFpGrj1MOEslshrA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=13TzTwa2vdURxjk6qplusVDLA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=42b9JL4nUrgWQKd5I2IYcA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=IwQFI7NNVNXR1J3YK8Bslshfw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=VbBVr5MS3GslshCLplus3fzecQ2Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=3pZNWSCXbpzlZQplusslshzvombA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=2MF5EvttqfHr1i0e8AaaLQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=zUnnqLlea0qMubslshDAQB2Xw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=TWyFplus8wZegxNsimYbLe5vw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=EiUXO6paslshr9AfFW8105TvA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=4smDSpZxoyplus5u5plwCHOplusA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=MRGbl1DbpcXvHsqGUV9Gsw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=D3FML11LYslshy8tsj3PoXJSQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=CHwMm3jX66jXMNtr255wDA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=sZD7HAJrt0yoAZGaeQjfqw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=plusvbY1CZJkFvI8g5mpyucYA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=slshJJXpMPYdhSf6JZk7yuJXw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=ly5fvoDplusMuWCUvPyGykdAg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=CmmAWPdAl9AIhiNvCj3pOw==


Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

Policy 1340: Access To District RecordsPolicy 1340: Access To District Records Status:Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 06/12/2024 | Last Reviewed Date:| Last Reviewed Date: 06/12/2024

The Governing Board recognizes the right of members of the public to have access to public records of the Tri-Valley
ROP. The TVROP shall provide any person reasonable access to the public records of the programs and TVROP
during normal business hours and within the requirements of law.  Public access shall not be given to records listed
as exempt from public disclosure in the California Public Records Act and other state or federal law.

In response to a public records request, the Superintendent or designee shall make reasonable efforts to locate the
requested records, including, but not limited to, any electronic communication substantively related to the records,
such as email, text messages, instant messages, and other electronic communications, regardless of whether they are
transmitted through a TVROP-provided device or account or through an employee's or Board member's personal
device or account.

The TVROP may charge for copies of public records or other materials requested by individuals or groups, unless
they are using their own personal equipment to reproduce the record.  The charge shall be based on actual costs of
duplication, as determined by the Superintendent or designee and as specified in administrative regulation. in
accordance with law and as specified in the accompanying administrative regulation.

In order to help maintain the security of TVROP records, members of the public granted access shall examine records
in the presence of a TVROP staff member.

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the Governing Board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter
of the policy.

StateState DescriptionDescription

5 CCR 430-438 Individual student records

CA Constitution Article 1, Section 3 Right of access to governmental information

Ed. Code 234.7 Student protections relating to immigration and citizenship status

Ed. Code 35145 Public meetings

Ed. Code 35170 Authority to secure copyrights

Ed. Code 35250 Duty to keep certain records and reports

Ed. Code 35266 Cybersecurity

Ed. Code 41020 Requirement for annual audit

Ed. Code 42103 Budget notification

Ed. Code 44031 Personnel file contents and inspection

Ed. Code 44839 Medical certificates; periodic medical examination

Ed. Code 49060-49079 Student records

Ed. Code 49091.10 Parental review of curriculum and instruction

Gov. Code 11549.3 Office of Information Security

Gov. Code 3547 Proposals relating to representation

Gov. Code 53262 Employment contracts

Gov. Code 54957.2 Minute book record of closed sessions

Gov. Code 54957.5 Agendas and other writings distributed for discussion or consideration

Gov. Code 6205-6210
Address confidentiality; victims of domestic violence, sexual assault,
stalking, human trafficking, child abduction, and elder and dependent adult
abuse

Gov. Code 6215-6216 Address confidentiality; reproductive health care providers, employees,
volunteers, patients, and other individuals who face threats or violence

Board Policy Manual
Tri-Valley Regional Occupational Program

212

https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Browse/Home/California/CaliforniaCodeofRegulations?guid=I2AF4DC104C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3&transitionType=Default&contextData=%28sc.Default%29#I2AFA33434C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=CONS&sectionNum=SEC. 3.&article=I
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=234.7.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=35145.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=35170.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=35250.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=41020.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=42103.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44031.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44839.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayexpandedbranch.xhtml?tocCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=27.&chapter=6.5.&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49091.10.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=11549.3.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=3547.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=53262.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=54957.2.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=54957.5.


Gov. Code 7920.000-7930.215 California Public Records Act

Gov. Code 81008 Political Reform Act, public records; inspection and reproduction

Gov. Code 8310.3 California Religious Freedom Act

Gov. Code 8550-8669.7 California Emergency Services Act

Gov. Code 8586.5 Office of Emergency Services; California Cybersecurity Information Center

StateState DescriptionDescription

FederalFederal DescriptionDescription

20 USC 1232g Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) of 1974

34 CFR 99.1-99.8 Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act

Management ResourcesManagement Resources DescriptionDescription

Attorney General Opinion 64 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 186 (1981)

Attorney General Opinion 71 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 235 (1988)

CA Office of the Attorney General Publication
Promoting a Safe & Secure Learning Environment for All: Guidance & Model
Policies to Assist CA K-12 Schools in Responding to Immigration Issues,
December 2024

CA Office of the Attorney General Publication Summary of the California Public Records Act, August 2004

CA Office of the Attorney General Publication California Department of Justice Guidelines for Access to Public Records,
October 2017

Court Decision National Lawyers Guild, San Francisco Bay Area Chapter v. City of Hayward
(2020) 9 Cal.5th 488

Court Decision Sacramento County Employees' Retirement System v. Superior Court (2011)
195 Cal. App. 4th 440

Court Decision Fairley v. Superior Court (1998) 66 Cal.App. 4th 1414

Court Decision International Federation of Professional and Technical Engineers v. The
Superior Court of Alameda County (2007) 42 Cal.4th 319

Court Decision Kleitman v. Superior Court (1999) 74 Cal.App. 4th 324

Court Decision Los Angeles County Board of Supervisors v. Superior Court (2016) 2 Cal.5th
282

Court Decision Los Angeles Times v. Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority (2001) 88
Cal.App.4th 1381

Court Decision North County Parents Organization for Children with Special Needs v.
Department of Education (1994) 23 Cal.App. 4th 144

Court Decision City of San Jose v. Superior Court (2017) 2 Cal.5th 608

CSBA Publication Legal Alert: Tips for Governing Boards in Response to Public Records Act
Ruling on Electronic Communications, March 2017

League of California Cities Publication The People's Business: A Guide to the California Public Records Act, rev.
April 2017

Website California Office of Emergency Services

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Website League of California Cities

Website State Bar of California

Website California Office of the Attorney General

Website CSBA

213

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayexpandedbranch.xhtml?tocCode=GOV&division=10.&title=1.&part=&chapter=&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=81008.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=8310.3.
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=(title:20 section:1232g edition:prelim) OR (granuleid:USC-prelim-title20-section1232g)&f=treesort&edition=prelim&num=0&jumpTo=true
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-34/subtitle-A/part-99/subpart-A
https://oag.ca.gov/opinions
https://oag.ca.gov/opinions
https://oag.ca.gov/sites/all/files/agweb/pdfs/bcj/school-guidance-model-k12.pdf
https://oag.ca.gov/sites/all/files/agweb/pdfs/publications/summary_public_records_act.pdf
https://oag.ca.gov/publications
https://www.lexisnexis.com/clients/CACourts/
https://www.lexisnexis.com/clients/CACourts/
https://www.lexisnexis.com/clients/CACourts/
https://www.lexisnexis.com/clients/CACourts/
https://www.lexisnexis.com/clients/CACourts/
https://www.lexisnexis.com/clients/CACourts/
https://www.lexisnexis.com/clients/CACourts/
https://www.lexisnexis.com/clients/CACourts/
https://www.csba.org/-/media/CSBA/Files/Advocacy/ELA/2017-03_LegalAlert_PRA_ElectronicDevices.ashx?la=en&rev=7f24e74fc2474138940357bc5efe1377
http://file///C:/Users/plee/Downloads/The People's Business - A Guide to the CA Public Records Act.pdf
https://www.caloes.ca.gov/
https://legalservices.csba.org/
http://www.cacities.org
http://www.calbar.ca.gov
http://oag.ca.gov
http://www.csba.org


Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

0400 Comprehensive Plans

0440 District Technology Plan

1112 Media Relations

1113 District And School Websites

1113 District And School Websites

1113-E(1) District And School Websites

1220 Citizen Advisory Committees

1220 Citizen Advisory Committees

1312.3 Uniform Complaint Procedures

1312.3 Uniform Complaint Procedures

1312.4 Williams Uniform Complaint Procedures

1312.4-E(2) Williams Uniform Complaint Procedures

2121 Superintendent's Contract

3100 Budget

3100 Budget

3230 Federal Grant Funds

3230 Federal Grant Funds

3311 Bids

3311 Bids

3312 Contracts

3320 Claims And Actions Against The District

3460 Financial Reports And Accountability

3460 Financial Reports And Accountability

3516 Emergencies And Disaster Preparedness Plan

3516 Emergencies And Disaster Preparedness Plan

3580 District Records

3580 District Records

4040 Employee Use Of Technology

4040-E(1) Employee Use Of Technology

4040-E(2) Employee Use Of Technology

4112.5 Criminal Record Check

4112.5-E(1) Criminal Record Check

4112.6 Personnel Files

4113.5 Working Remotely

4119.23 Unauthorized Release Of Confidential/Privileged Information

4154 Health And Welfare Benefits

4154 Health And Welfare Benefits

4212.5 Criminal Record Check

4212.5-E(1) Criminal Record Check

4212.6 Personnel Files

214

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=fslshUCPa3ly0gZEpk6hgiNCw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=2aGCaoK79paENKh3cGC8cg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=d5tBtDYYbfuJslsh9uhhU5slshWQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=4XQaFrGRrecYplusYzJX8iFslshQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=o6imeqslsh96cCbNlv1lkZxjQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=3fxcWyEaRMF3Nxplus6hXIr3A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=a9GXfMrz42ghy6WU6XrjVw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=MmplusCSI72J5YCVy7oBWbV8Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=plussrJjGtKA0C9cRrvh7RCJw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=dzEvLKY3VZ2oNrfQVErklQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=rlqDaxJUPQoLMcq2M99slsh2A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=zkJCDRCHhpx3zk7qmy5Lplusw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=nxpdAbdKFGCduW959slshAatQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=seARW4wQslshzopsjDuoWaVbQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=n7mn4plus0iIANMqaD0dBAnWQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=9QB38oDf0mYC8W3hhI2t7A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=gm23SplusZh5USxAIYBYnrm1g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=yLDteQb216i1dZUa0ud7wA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=l5K4OT8Pz9g95RGaMsgYBQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=xrw9F9HT1T362NYblff0Zw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=Hslsh8QfXk1IyvivYG2zkywGg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=JYb8K4Q5FfnoCn49SoQJAA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=0Qplust6IkdjlHUZbApuKDQpA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=sgccEAZpluszCpQnbAqlgg39w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=TWK5W4V4dhslsh2l6X77m8HhQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=gv3pXuGPnNJ4FbkDgiDsRQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=D5p9gmmX6Eny4PVrAplusuD1Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=6nc6yN5h6ydYtRyszA3ucw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=tQIn4iF1mMgHXBJHOE7NqQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=yMj6tPfEpjVPslsh8KibHJXlQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=aRUZnjonZJcH7slsh9vm0e48A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=qTZomETjeM9cfdDg7RaLrg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=ACXnZXJCZETJ0odq50Zlow==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=Mknaq5T7idr3yLMnzA5Knw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=K6Tz1opcKl36c4JHUFMmjw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=4GxGihOi5aPNCZBPrE05eg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=ZslshkslshkPVsZ4NTWe8xrvcqbQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=g071jtiYxsCsl9tN90d6Eg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=pi9c1SjlbHslshbAnhhIOUrwQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=cuCsDI5vt9ZrBUJxw3wSSQ==


4213.5 Working Remotely

4219.23 Unauthorized Release Of Confidential/Privileged Information

4254 Health And Welfare Benefits

4254 Health And Welfare Benefits

4312.1 Contracts

4312.5 Criminal Record Check

4312.5-E(1) Criminal Record Check

4312.6 Personnel Files

4313.5 Working Remotely

4319.23 Unauthorized Release Of Confidential/Privileged Information

4354 Health And Welfare Benefits

4354 Health And Welfare Benefits

5020 Parent Rights And Responsibilities

5020 Parent Rights And Responsibilities

5125 Student Records

5125 Student Records

5125.1 Release Of Directory Information

5125.1 Release Of Directory Information

5125.1-E(1) Release Of Directory Information

5125.3 Challenging Student Records

5145.13 Response To Immigration Enforcement

5145.13 Response To Immigration Enforcement

5145.3 Nondiscrimination/Harassment

5145.3 Nondiscrimination/Harassment

6161.1 Selection And Evaluation Of Instructional Materials

6161.1-E(1) Selection And Evaluation Of Instructional Materials

9010 Public Statements

9011 Disclosure Of Confidential/Privileged Information

9012 Board Member Electronic Communications

9124 Attorney

9200 Limits Of Board Member Authority

9270 Conflict Of Interest

9270-E(1) Conflict Of Interest

9310 Board Policies

9320 Meetings And Notices

9321 Closed Session

9321-E(1) Closed Session

9321-E(2) Closed Session

9322 Agenda/Meeting Materials

9324 Minutes And Recordings

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

215

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=ScseNm0egmpK8FFktm7dQQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=ScKQ8Bj5hsiIQUsIEzNBZA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=Gpa7E7HplusdG4iOMJUnDp3EA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=b8aplusiZI0c3lEaobHe9uKQQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=FAwvCqTn40UAvEcENmlvXA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=FQEaeiSCSp6fbtcQnRoplusGw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=581Yxlwbfr7WYL4xD5RXUA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=xfD9FuXCdapZkeW3nMQsiA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=G4WRXd7slshr0slshGrplus8gyg11VA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=1iDUp1UFWKCyG7SfHplusCrlA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=F40FjJcSAGVdMEARslsh9tBkg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=b3MoED9fJaj0ddMuf2O9Lw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=44IpDntqHSCXUdslshLZslshAnBA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=I6w2zWpcS2sYPEQw1ujLrA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=XdGU7vQR1OHwP8slshthnplusfQw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=qHVbTBqazYz4Lw8v9jslshSpg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=kplusBAJzFKTkoTb1g3UahT4w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=3PLMin1ewjxvQRsOBidZnQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=cXJrLCKRVDo4XC5YohlCDg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=slshJoNslsh4eOvwxaImwRxrblLw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=tO9y1OrQ0IyxBtuN5cSa7A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=eg2VOquWazTLMMPSuOr6Qg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=EiUXO6paslshr9AfFW8105TvA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=4smDSpZxoyplus5u5plwCHOplusA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=MRGbl1DbpcXvHsqGUV9Gsw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=D3FML11LYslshy8tsj3PoXJSQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=UIX73AsISEJiEunslshZGKWpw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=FDplusjomNzg7D9DrtkCVti2Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=slshJJXpMPYdhSf6JZk7yuJXw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=mo0Pce7m8Kn8plusck2fGrtrg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=ly5fvoDplusMuWCUvPyGykdAg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=vkTqUWPIGHXvy1mb027jslshw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=ycYOrrZlzgk8gaFyQlc9Ew==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=SathA9D1nLns09SsF43ZlQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=H3r4Uojk1yz8isTTg0If4w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=SCyIM86Pslsh2SXYfMWCoy4PA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=0plusIjrl1GcIFYmE3Py7jUqw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=DQY7ANJo4DIkPkvShOwaMQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=CmmAWPdAl9AIhiNvCj3pOw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=JXslshqnahpHO1Z4erJ23LmhQ==


Regulation 1340: Access To District RecordsRegulation 1340: Access To District Records Status:Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 06/12/2024 | Last Reviewed Date:| Last Reviewed Date: 06/12/2024

This administrative regulation is a non-exhaustive list of records that may be defined as either public or exempt
and/or confidential. Other records which fall into these definitions may exist and may be identified in the future. 

Definitions

Public records include any writing containing information relating to the conduct of the Tri-Valley ROP's business
prepared, owned, used, or retained by the TVROP regardless of physical form or characteristics.  (Government Code
7920.530)

Writing means any handwriting, typewriting, printing, photostating, photographing, photocopying, transmitting by
electronic mail or facsimile, and every other means of recording upon any tangible thing any form of communication
or representation, including letters, words, pictures, sounds, or symbols or combinations thereof, and any record
thereby created, regardless of the manner in which the record has been stored.  (Government Code 7920.545)

Member of the public means any person, except a member, agent, officer, or employee of the TVROP or a federal,
state, or other local agency acting within the scope of such membership, agency, office, or employment.
 (Government Code 7920.515)

Public Records

Unless otherwise exempt from disclosure, pPublic records to which members of the public shall have access include,
but are not limited to:

1. Proposed and approved TVROP budgets and annual audits  (Education Code 41020, 42103)
 

2. Statistical compilations
 

3. Reports and memoranda
 

4. Notices and bulletins
 

5. Minutes of public meetings  (Education Code 35145)
 

6. Meeting agendas  (Government Code 54957.5)
 

7. Official communications between the TVROP and other government agencies
 

8. District program or school plans, and the information and data relevant to the development and evaluation of
such plans, unless otherwise prohibited by law
 

9. Initial proposals of exclusive employee representatives and of the TVROP  (Government Code 3547)
 

10. Records pertaining to claims and litigation against the TVROP which have been adjudicated or settled
 (Government Code 7927.200, 7927.205)
 

11. Statements of economic interests required by the Conflict of Interest Code  (Government Code 81008)
 

12. Documents containing names, salaries, and pension benefits of TVROP employees
 

13. Employment contracts and settlement agreements  (Government Code 53262)
 

14. Instructional materials including, but not limited to, textbooks  (Education Code 49091.10)
15. Executed contracts for the purchase of goods or services, even if the contract contains provisions specifying

that the contract is confidential or a proprietary record of the vendor  (Government Code 7928.801)

Executed contracts for the purchase of goods or services, even if the contract contains provisions specifying that the
contract is confidential or a proprietary record of the vendor  (Government Code 7928.801)

Board Policy Manual
Tri-Valley Regional Occupational Program

216



Access to public records of the TVROP shall be granted to Governing Board members on the same basis as any other
member of the public. When Board members are authorized to access public records in the administration of their
duties, the Superintendent or designee shall not discriminate among any of the Board members as to which record,
or portion of the record, will be made available, or when it will be made available.  (Government Code 7921.305,
7921.310)

When disclosing to a member of the public any record that contains personal information, including, but not limited
to, an employee's home address, home telephone number, social security number, personal cell phone number, or
birth date, the Superintendent or designee shall ensure that such personal information is redacted from that record.
 (Government Code 7922.200, 7928.300)

Exempt and Confidential Public Records

Unless otherwise authorized or required by law, information regarding an individual's citizenship or immigration
status or religious beliefs, practices, or affiliation shall not be disclosed to federal government authorities.  (Education
Code 234.7; Government Code 8310.3)

Records to which the members of the public shall not have access include, but are not limited to: Records exempt
from disclosure under the California Public Records Act (CPRA) include, but are not limited to:

1. Preliminary drafts, notes, and interagency or intradistrict memoranda that are not retained by the TVROP in
the ordinary course of business, provided that the public interest in withholding these records clearly
outweighs the public interest in disclosure  (Government Code 7927.500)
 

2. Records specifically generated in connection with or prepared for use in litigation to which the TVROP is a
party or to respond to claims made against the TVROP pursuant to the Tort Claims Act, until the litigation or
claim has been finally adjudicated or otherwise settled, or beyond, if the records are protected by some other
provision of law  (Government Code 7927.200, 7927.205)
 

3. Personnel records, medical records, or similar materials, the disclosure of which would constitute an
unwarranted invasion of personal privacy  (Government Code 7927.700)

The home addresses, home telephone numbers, personal cell phone numbers, or birth date of employees may
only be disclosed as follows:  (Government Code 7928.300)
 

a. To an agent or a family member of the employee
 

b. To an officer or employee of a state agency or another school TVROP or county office of education
when necessary for the performance of official duties
 

c. To an employee organization pursuant to regulations and decisions of the Public Employment Relations
Board, except that the home address and any telephone number for an employee who performs law
enforcement-related functions, or the birth date of any employee, shall not be disclosed
 

d. Upon written request of any employee, the TVROP shall not disclose the employee's home address,
home telephone number, personal cell phone number, personal email address, or birth date, and the
TVROP shall remove the home address, home telephone number, and personal cell phone number from
any mailing list of the TVROP except a list used exclusively to contact the employee.
 

e. To an agent or employee of a health benefit plan providing health services or administering claims for
health services to TVROP employees and their enrolled dependents, for the purpose of providing the
health services or administering claims for employees and their enrolled dependents
 

4. The home address, telephone number, or both the name and assessor parcel number associated with the home
address of any elected or appointed official posted by the district online without first obtaining the written
permission of that individual  (Government Code 7928.205)

5. Student records, except directory information and other records to the extent permitted by law and TVROP
policy
 

6. Test questions, scoring keys, and other examination data except as provided by law  (Government Code

217



7929.605)
 

7. Without affecting the law of eminent domain, the contents of real estate appraisals or engineering or feasibility
estimates and evaluations made for or by the TVROP relative to the acquisition of property, or to prospective
public supply and construction contracts, until all of the property has been acquired or all of the contract
agreement obtained  (Government Code 7928.705)
 

8. Information required from any taxpayer in connection with the collection of local taxes that is received in
confidence and the disclosure of the information to other persons would result in an unfair competitive
disadvantage to the person supplying the information  (Government Code 7925.000)
 

9. Library circulation and patron use records of a borrower or patron including, but not limited to, name, address,
telephone number, email address, borrowing information, or use of library information resources, except when
disclosure is to persons acting within the scope of their duties in the administration of the library; to persons
authorized in writing, by the individual to whom the records pertain, to inspect the records; or by court order
 (Government Code 7927.100, 7927.105)
 

10. Records for which the disclosure is exempted or prohibited pursuant to state or federal law, including, but not
limited to, provisions of the Evidence Code relating to privilege (Government Code 7927.705)
 

11. Documents prepared by or for the TVROP to assess its vulnerability to terrorist attack or other criminal acts
intended to disrupt TVROP operations and that are for distribution or consideration in closed session
 (Government Code 7929.200)
 

12. Recall petitions, petitions for special elections to fill Board vacancies, or petitions for the reorganization of the
school TVROP  (Government Code 7924.110)
 

13. Minutes of Board meetings held in closed session  (Government Code 54957.2)
 

14. Computer software developed by the TVROP  (Government Code 7922.585)
 

15. Information security records, the disclosure of which would reveal vulnerabilities to, or otherwise increase
potential for an attack on, the TVROP's information technology system  (Government Code 7929.210)
 

16. Records that contain individually identifiable health information, including records that may be exempt
pursuant to physician-patient privilege, the Confidentiality of Medical Information Act, and the Health
Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (Government Code 7926.400, 7930.000-7930.215)
 

17. Any other records listed as exempt from public disclosure in the California Public Records Act or other statutes
 

18. Any other records for which the TVROP can demonstrate that, based on the particular facts of the case, the
public interest served by not disclosing the record clearly outweighs the public interest served by disclosure of
the record  (Government Code 7922.000)

Inspection of Records and Requests for Copies

Any person may request a copy or inspection of any TVROP record that is not exempt from disclosure.  (Government
Code 7922.530)

Within 10 days of receiving any request to inspect or copy a TVROP record, the Superintendent or designee shall
determine whether the request seeks release of a disclosable public record in the TVROP's possession. The
Superintendent or designee shall promptly inform the person making the request of the determination and the
reasons for the decision.  (Government Code 7922.535)

In unusual circumstances, the Superintendent or designee may extend the 10-day limit for up to 14 days by providing
written notice to the requester setting forth the reasons for the extension and the date on which a determination is
expected to be made. Unusual circumstances include the following, but only to the extent reasonably necessary to
properly process the request:  (Government Code 7922.535)

1. The need to search for and collect the requested records from field facilities or other establishments that are
separate from the office processing the request
 

218



2. The need to search for, collect, and appropriately examine a voluminous amount of separate and distinct
records which are demanded in a single request
 

3. The need for consultation, which shall be conducted with all practicable speed, with another agency (e.g., a
state agency or city) having a substantial interest in the determination of the request or among two or more
components of the TVROP (e.g., two different school sites) with substantial interest in the request
 

4. In the case of electronic records, the need to compile data, write programming language or a computer
program, or construct a computer report to extract data

5. 1. The need to search for, collect, and appropriately examine records during a state of emergency
proclaimed by the Governor pursuant to the California Emergency Services Act in the jurisdiction where
the district is located when the state of emergency currently affects, due to the state of emergency, the
district's ability to timely respond to staffing shortages or closure of facilities where the requested
records are located  (Government Code 8567)

If the Superintendent or designee determines that the request seeks disclosable public records, the determination
shall state the estimated date and time when the records will be made available.  (Government Code 7922.535)

Public records shall be open to inspection at all times during TVROP office hours. Any reasonably segregable portion
of a record shall be made available for inspection by any person requesting the record after deletion of the portions
that are exempted by law.  (Government Code 7922.525)

Upon request for a copy that reasonably describes an identifiable record, an exact copy shall be promptly provided
unless it is impracticable to do so.  (Government Code 7922.530)

The Superintendent or designee shall charge an amount for copies that reflects the direct costs of duplication.
Written requests to waive the fee shall be submitted to the Superintendent or designee.

Without charging any fees or costs, the Superintendent or designee shall allow members of the public to use their
own equipment on TVROP premises to photograph or otherwise copy or reproduce a disclosable record as long as
the means of copy or reproduction:  (Government Code 7922.530)

1. Do not require the equipment to make physical contact with the record
 

2. Will not result in damage to the record
 

3. Will not result in unauthorized access to the TVROP's computer systems or secured networks by using
software, equipment, or any other technology capable of accessing, altering, or compromising the TVROP's
electronic records

The Superintendent or designee may impose any reasonable limit on the use of personal equipment to photograph,
copy, or reproduce a disclosable record that is necessary to protect the safety of the records, or to prevent the
copying of records from being an unreasonable burden to the orderly function of the TVROP and its employees. The
Superintendent or designee may also impose any limit that is necessary to maintain the integrity of, or ensure the
long-term preservation of, historic or high-value records.  (Government Code 7922.530)

In addition to maintaining public records for public inspection during TVROP office hours, the TVROP may comply
with public records requests by posting any public record on the TVROP's web site and, in response to a public
records request, directing the member of the public to the location on the web site where the record can be found.
However, if the member of the public is unable to access or reproduce the record from the web site, the TVROP
shall promptly provide an exact copy of the public record upon payment of duplication fees, if applicable, unless it is
impracticable to provide an exact copy.  (Government Code 7922.545)

If any person requests that a public record be provided in an electronic format, the TVROP shall make that record
available in any electronic format in which it holds the information. The TVROP shall provide a copy of the electronic
record in the format requested as long as the requested format is one that has been used by the TVROP to create
copies for its own use or for use by other agencies.  (Government Code 7922.570)

The cost of duplicating an electronic record shall be limited to the direct cost of producing a copy of the record in
electronic format.  However, the requester shall bear the cost of producing the copy of the electronic record,

219



Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

including the cost to construct the record and the cost of programming and computer services necessary to produce
the copy, under the following circumstances:  (Government Code 7922.575)

1. The electronic record is one that is produced only at otherwise regularly scheduled intervals.
 

2. The request would require data compilation, extraction, or programming to produce the record.

Assistance in Identifying Requested Records

If the Superintendent or designee denies a request for disclosable records, the requester shall be assisted in making a
focused and effective request that reasonably describes an identifiable record. To the extent reasonable under the
circumstances, the Superintendent or designee shall do all of the following:  (Government Code 7922.600)

1. Assist in identifying records and information responsive to the request or the purpose of the request, if
specified

If, after making a reasonable effort to elicit additional clarifying information from the requester to help identify
the record, the Superintendent or designee is still unable to identify the information, this requirement shall be
deemed satisfied.
 

2. Describe the information technology and physical location in which the records exist
 

3. Provide suggestions for overcoming any practical basis for denying access to the records or information sought

Provisions of the Public Records Act shall not be construed so as to delay or obstruct the inspection or copying of
public records. Any notification denying a request for public records shall state the name and title of each person
responsible for the denial.  (Government Code 7922.500, 7922.540)

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the Governing Board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter
of the policy.

StateState DescriptionDescription

5 CCR 430-438 Individual student records

CA Constitution Article 1, Section 3 Right of access to governmental information

Ed. Code 234.7 Student protections relating to immigration and citizenship status

Ed. Code 35145 Public meetings

Ed. Code 35170 Authority to secure copyrights

Ed. Code 35250 Duty to keep certain records and reports

Ed. Code 35266 Cybersecurity

Ed. Code 41020 Requirement for annual audit

Ed. Code 42103 Budget notification

Ed. Code 44031 Personnel file contents and inspection

Ed. Code 44839 Medical certificates; periodic medical examination

Ed. Code 49060-49079 Student records

Ed. Code 49091.10 Parental review of curriculum and instruction

Gov. Code 11549.3 Office of Information Security

Gov. Code 3547 Proposals relating to representation

Gov. Code 53262 Employment contracts

Gov. Code 54957.2 Minute book record of closed sessions

Gov. Code 54957.5 Agendas and other writings distributed for discussion or consideration

220

https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Browse/Home/California/CaliforniaCodeofRegulations?guid=I2AF4DC104C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3&transitionType=Default&contextData=%28sc.Default%29#I2AFA33434C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=CONS&sectionNum=SEC. 3.&article=I
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=234.7.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=35145.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=35170.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=35250.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=41020.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=42103.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44031.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44839.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayexpandedbranch.xhtml?tocCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=27.&chapter=6.5.&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49091.10.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=11549.3.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=3547.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=53262.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=54957.2.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=54957.5.


Gov. Code 6205-6210
Address confidentiality; victims of domestic violence, sexual assault,
stalking, human trafficking, child abduction, and elder and dependent adult
abuse

Gov. Code 6215-6216 Address confidentiality; reproductive health care providers, employees,
volunteers, patients, and other individuals who face threats or violence

Gov. Code 7920.000-7930.215 California Public Records Act

Gov. Code 81008 Political Reform Act, public records; inspection and reproduction

Gov. Code 8310.3 California Religious Freedom Act

Gov. Code 8550-8669.7 California Emergency Services Act

Gov. Code 8586.5 Office of Emergency Services; California Cybersecurity Information Center

StateState DescriptionDescription

FederalFederal DescriptionDescription

20 USC 1232g Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) of 1974

34 CFR 99.1-99.8 Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act

Management ResourcesManagement Resources DescriptionDescription

Attorney General Opinion 64 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 186 (1981)

Attorney General Opinion 71 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 235 (1988)

CA Office of the Attorney General Publication
Promoting a Safe & Secure Learning Environment for All: Guidance & Model
Policies to Assist CA K-12 Schools in Responding to Immigration Issues,
December 2024

CA Office of the Attorney General Publication Summary of the California Public Records Act, August 2004

CA Office of the Attorney General Publication California Department of Justice Guidelines for Access to Public Records,
October 2017

Court Decision National Lawyers Guild, San Francisco Bay Area Chapter v. City of Hayward
(2020) 9 Cal.5th 488

Court Decision Sacramento County Employees' Retirement System v. Superior Court (2011)
195 Cal. App. 4th 440

Court Decision Fairley v. Superior Court (1998) 66 Cal.App. 4th 1414

Court Decision International Federation of Professional and Technical Engineers v. The
Superior Court of Alameda County (2007) 42 Cal.4th 319

Court Decision Kleitman v. Superior Court (1999) 74 Cal.App. 4th 324

Court Decision Los Angeles County Board of Supervisors v. Superior Court (2016) 2 Cal.5th
282

Court Decision Los Angeles Times v. Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority (2001) 88
Cal.App.4th 1381

Court Decision North County Parents Organization for Children with Special Needs v.
Department of Education (1994) 23 Cal.App. 4th 144

Court Decision City of San Jose v. Superior Court (2017) 2 Cal.5th 608

CSBA Publication Legal Alert: Tips for Governing Boards in Response to Public Records Act
Ruling on Electronic Communications, March 2017

League of California Cities Publication The People's Business: A Guide to the California Public Records Act, rev.
April 2017

Website California Office of Emergency Services

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Website League of California Cities

221

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayexpandedbranch.xhtml?tocCode=GOV&division=10.&title=1.&part=&chapter=&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=81008.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=8310.3.
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=(title:20 section:1232g edition:prelim) OR (granuleid:USC-prelim-title20-section1232g)&f=treesort&edition=prelim&num=0&jumpTo=true
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-34/subtitle-A/part-99/subpart-A
https://oag.ca.gov/opinions
https://oag.ca.gov/opinions
https://oag.ca.gov/sites/all/files/agweb/pdfs/bcj/school-guidance-model-k12.pdf
https://oag.ca.gov/sites/all/files/agweb/pdfs/publications/summary_public_records_act.pdf
https://oag.ca.gov/publications
https://www.lexisnexis.com/clients/CACourts/
https://www.lexisnexis.com/clients/CACourts/
https://www.lexisnexis.com/clients/CACourts/
https://www.lexisnexis.com/clients/CACourts/
https://www.lexisnexis.com/clients/CACourts/
https://www.lexisnexis.com/clients/CACourts/
https://www.lexisnexis.com/clients/CACourts/
https://www.lexisnexis.com/clients/CACourts/
https://www.csba.org/-/media/CSBA/Files/Advocacy/ELA/2017-03_LegalAlert_PRA_ElectronicDevices.ashx?la=en&rev=7f24e74fc2474138940357bc5efe1377
http://file///C:/Users/plee/Downloads/The People's Business - A Guide to the CA Public Records Act.pdf
https://www.caloes.ca.gov/
https://legalservices.csba.org/
http://www.cacities.org


Website State Bar of California

Website California Office of the Attorney General

Website CSBA

Management ResourcesManagement Resources DescriptionDescription

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

0400 Comprehensive Plans

0440 District Technology Plan

1112 Media Relations

1113 District And School Websites

1113 District And School Websites

1113-E(1) District And School Websites

1220 Citizen Advisory Committees

1220 Citizen Advisory Committees

1312.3 Uniform Complaint Procedures

1312.3 Uniform Complaint Procedures

1312.4 Williams Uniform Complaint Procedures

1312.4-E(2) Williams Uniform Complaint Procedures

2121 Superintendent's Contract

3100 Budget

3100 Budget

3230 Federal Grant Funds

3230 Federal Grant Funds

3311 Bids

3311 Bids

3312 Contracts

3320 Claims And Actions Against The District

3460 Financial Reports And Accountability

3460 Financial Reports And Accountability

3516 Emergencies And Disaster Preparedness Plan

3516 Emergencies And Disaster Preparedness Plan

3580 District Records

3580 District Records

4040 Employee Use Of Technology

4040-E(1) Employee Use Of Technology

4040-E(2) Employee Use Of Technology

4112.5 Criminal Record Check

4112.5-E(1) Criminal Record Check

4112.6 Personnel Files

4113.5 Working Remotely

4119.23 Unauthorized Release Of Confidential/Privileged Information

222

http://www.calbar.ca.gov
http://oag.ca.gov
http://www.csba.org
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=fslshUCPa3ly0gZEpk6hgiNCw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=2aGCaoK79paENKh3cGC8cg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=d5tBtDYYbfuJslsh9uhhU5slshWQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=4XQaFrGRrecYplusYzJX8iFslshQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=o6imeqslsh96cCbNlv1lkZxjQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=3fxcWyEaRMF3Nxplus6hXIr3A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=a9GXfMrz42ghy6WU6XrjVw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=MmplusCSI72J5YCVy7oBWbV8Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=plussrJjGtKA0C9cRrvh7RCJw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=dzEvLKY3VZ2oNrfQVErklQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=rlqDaxJUPQoLMcq2M99slsh2A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=zkJCDRCHhpx3zk7qmy5Lplusw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=nxpdAbdKFGCduW959slshAatQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=seARW4wQslshzopsjDuoWaVbQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=n7mn4plus0iIANMqaD0dBAnWQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=9QB38oDf0mYC8W3hhI2t7A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=gm23SplusZh5USxAIYBYnrm1g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=yLDteQb216i1dZUa0ud7wA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=l5K4OT8Pz9g95RGaMsgYBQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=xrw9F9HT1T362NYblff0Zw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=Hslsh8QfXk1IyvivYG2zkywGg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=JYb8K4Q5FfnoCn49SoQJAA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=0Qplust6IkdjlHUZbApuKDQpA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=sgccEAZpluszCpQnbAqlgg39w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=TWK5W4V4dhslsh2l6X77m8HhQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=gv3pXuGPnNJ4FbkDgiDsRQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=D5p9gmmX6Eny4PVrAplusuD1Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=6nc6yN5h6ydYtRyszA3ucw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=tQIn4iF1mMgHXBJHOE7NqQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=yMj6tPfEpjVPslsh8KibHJXlQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=aRUZnjonZJcH7slsh9vm0e48A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=qTZomETjeM9cfdDg7RaLrg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=ACXnZXJCZETJ0odq50Zlow==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=Mknaq5T7idr3yLMnzA5Knw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=K6Tz1opcKl36c4JHUFMmjw==


4154 Health And Welfare Benefits

4154 Health And Welfare Benefits

4212.5 Criminal Record Check

4212.5-E(1) Criminal Record Check

4212.6 Personnel Files

4213.5 Working Remotely

4219.23 Unauthorized Release Of Confidential/Privileged Information

4254 Health And Welfare Benefits

4254 Health And Welfare Benefits

4312.1 Contracts

4312.5 Criminal Record Check

4312.5-E(1) Criminal Record Check

4312.6 Personnel Files

4313.5 Working Remotely

4319.23 Unauthorized Release Of Confidential/Privileged Information

4354 Health And Welfare Benefits

4354 Health And Welfare Benefits

5020 Parent Rights And Responsibilities

5020 Parent Rights And Responsibilities

5125 Student Records

5125 Student Records

5125.1 Release Of Directory Information

5125.1 Release Of Directory Information

5125.1-E(1) Release Of Directory Information

5125.3 Challenging Student Records

5145.13 Response To Immigration Enforcement

5145.13 Response To Immigration Enforcement

5145.3 Nondiscrimination/Harassment

5145.3 Nondiscrimination/Harassment

6161.1 Selection And Evaluation Of Instructional Materials

6161.1-E(1) Selection And Evaluation Of Instructional Materials

9010 Public Statements

9011 Disclosure Of Confidential/Privileged Information

9012 Board Member Electronic Communications

9124 Attorney

9200 Limits Of Board Member Authority

9270 Conflict Of Interest

9270-E(1) Conflict Of Interest

9310 Board Policies

9320 Meetings And Notices

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

223

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=4GxGihOi5aPNCZBPrE05eg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=ZslshkslshkPVsZ4NTWe8xrvcqbQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=g071jtiYxsCsl9tN90d6Eg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=pi9c1SjlbHslshbAnhhIOUrwQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=cuCsDI5vt9ZrBUJxw3wSSQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=ScseNm0egmpK8FFktm7dQQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=ScKQ8Bj5hsiIQUsIEzNBZA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=Gpa7E7HplusdG4iOMJUnDp3EA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=b8aplusiZI0c3lEaobHe9uKQQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=FAwvCqTn40UAvEcENmlvXA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=FQEaeiSCSp6fbtcQnRoplusGw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=581Yxlwbfr7WYL4xD5RXUA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=xfD9FuXCdapZkeW3nMQsiA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=G4WRXd7slshr0slshGrplus8gyg11VA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=1iDUp1UFWKCyG7SfHplusCrlA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=F40FjJcSAGVdMEARslsh9tBkg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=b3MoED9fJaj0ddMuf2O9Lw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=44IpDntqHSCXUdslshLZslshAnBA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=I6w2zWpcS2sYPEQw1ujLrA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=XdGU7vQR1OHwP8slshthnplusfQw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=qHVbTBqazYz4Lw8v9jslshSpg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=kplusBAJzFKTkoTb1g3UahT4w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=3PLMin1ewjxvQRsOBidZnQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=cXJrLCKRVDo4XC5YohlCDg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=slshJoNslsh4eOvwxaImwRxrblLw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=tO9y1OrQ0IyxBtuN5cSa7A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=eg2VOquWazTLMMPSuOr6Qg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=EiUXO6paslshr9AfFW8105TvA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=4smDSpZxoyplus5u5plwCHOplusA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=MRGbl1DbpcXvHsqGUV9Gsw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=D3FML11LYslshy8tsj3PoXJSQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=UIX73AsISEJiEunslshZGKWpw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=FDplusjomNzg7D9DrtkCVti2Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=slshJJXpMPYdhSf6JZk7yuJXw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=mo0Pce7m8Kn8plusck2fGrtrg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=ly5fvoDplusMuWCUvPyGykdAg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=vkTqUWPIGHXvy1mb027jslshw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=ycYOrrZlzgk8gaFyQlc9Ew==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=SathA9D1nLns09SsF43ZlQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=H3r4Uojk1yz8isTTg0If4w==


9321 Closed Session

9321-E(1) Closed Session

9321-E(2) Closed Session

9322 Agenda/Meeting Materials

9324 Minutes And Recordings

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

224

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=SCyIM86Pslsh2SXYfMWCoy4PA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=0plusIjrl1GcIFYmE3Py7jUqw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=DQY7ANJo4DIkPkvShOwaMQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=CmmAWPdAl9AIhiNvCj3pOw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=JXslshqnahpHO1Z4erJ23LmhQ==


Regulation 3100: BudgetRegulation 3100: Budget Status:Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 06/12/2024 | Last Reviewed Date:| Last Reviewed Date: 06/12/2024

Budget Advisory Committee

Membership of the Tri Valley ROP's budget advisory committee may include representatives of each of the following
groups:

1. Governing Board members, provided that less than a majority of the Board serves on the committee
 

2. TVROP and school site administrators
 

3. Representatives of bargaining units
 

4. Certificated and/or classified staff
 

5. Parents/guardians
 

6. Representatives of the business community and/or other community members
 

7. Students

The committee's duties may include, but are not necessarily limited to:

1. Making recommendations regarding budget priorities which align with the TVROP's vision, goals, priorities,
local control and accountability plan (LCAP), and other comprehensive plans
 

2. Recommending cost reduction strategies, such as identifying services that may be reduced, made more
efficient, or discontinued
 

3. Reviewing the clarity and effectiveness of budget documents and communications
 

4. Presenting progress reports on the committee's work and a final report of recommendations to the
Superintendent or designee and to the Board

The specific duties of the committee shall be clearly defined and presented to each member in writing, along with
any background information necessary for the successful completion of the committee's charges, the timelines for
reporting the committee's progress, and timelines for completion of each task.

Public Hearing

The agenda for the public hearing on the TVROP budget shall be posted at least 72 hours before the hearing and
shall indicate the location where the budget may be inspected. The proposed budget shall be available for public
inspection at least three working days before this hearing.  (Education Code 42103, 42127, 52062)

The Superintendent or designee shall notify the County Superintendent of Programs of the location and dates at
which the proposed budget may be inspected, as well as the location, date, and time of the public hearing, in
sufficient time for the County Superintendent to publish such information in a newspaper of general circulation at
least 10 days but not more than 45 days before the hearing, as required by Education Code 42103.    Beginning
January 1, 2027, this notification, rather than being published in a newspaper of general circulation as described
above, shall be prominently posted on the homepage of the district's website at least three days before the
availability of the proposed budget for public inspection. 

Whenever the proposed ROP budget includes a combined assigned and unassigned ending fund balance that
exceeds the minimum recommended reserve for economic uncertainties adopted by the State Board of Education,
the TVROP shall provide, for each fiscal year included in the budget, the following information for public review and
discussion at the public hearing:  (Education Code 42127; 5 CCR 15450)

1. The minimum recommended reserve for economic uncertainties
 

2. The combined assigned and unassigned ending fund balances that are in excess of the minimum recommended

Board Policy Manual
Tri-Valley Regional Occupational Program

225



Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

reserve
 

3. A statement of reasons substantiating the need for the combined assigned and unassigned ending balances
that are in excess of the minimum recommended reserve

During the hearing, any TVROP resident may appear and object to the proposed budget or to any item in the budget.
The hearing may conclude when all residents who have requested to be heard have had the opportunity to speak. 
(Education Code 42103)

Budget Review Committee for Disapproved Budgets

If the TVROP's budget is disapproved by the County Superintendent , the budget shall be reviewed by a budget
review committee, unless the Board and County Superintendent agree to waive the requirement and the California
Department of Education accepts the waiver.  (Education Code 42127)

This committee shall consist of either:  (Education Code 42127.1, 42127.2)

1. Three persons selected by the Board from a list of candidates provided by the Superintendent of Public
Instruction (SPI), who shall be selected within five working days after receiving the list of candidates
 

2. A regional review committee selected and convened by the County Superintendent with the approval of the
Board and SPI

If the budget review committee recommends disapproval of the TVROP budget, the Board may submit a response to
the SPI no later than five working days after receipt of the committee's report. The response may include any
revisions to the adopted final budget and any other proposed actions to be taken as a result of the committee's
recommendations.  (Education Code 42127.3)

If the SPI disapproves the TVROP budget after reviewing the committee's report and the ROP's response, the Board
shall consult with the County Superintendent to develop and adopt, by December 31, a fiscal plan and budget that
will allow the TVROP to meet its current fiscal year and multiyear financial obligations.  For the current fiscal year,
the TVROP shall operate in accordance with the budget adopted by the County Superintendent.  (Education Code
42127.3)

Until the TVROP receives approval of its budget, it shall continue to operate either on the basis of the prior year's
budget or on the basis of the current year's unapproved budget as adopted and revised by the Board, whichever
budget contains a lower total spending authority.  (Education Code 42127.4)

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the Governing Board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter
of the policy.

StateState DescriptionDescription

5 CCR 15060 Standardized account code structure

5 CCR 15440-15451 Criteria and standards for school district budgets

5 CCR 15494-15497 Local control and accountability plan and spending requirements

Attendance Recovery Program Attendance Recovery Program

Ed. Code 1240 County superintendent of schools; duties

Ed. Code 33127 Standards and criteria for local budgets and expenditures

Ed. Code 41202 Determination of minimum level of education funding

Ed. Code 42103 Budget notification

Ed. Code 42122-42129 Budget requirements

Ed. Code 42130-42134 Financial reports and certifications

Ed. Code 42140-42142 Public disclosure of fiscal obligations

Ed. Code 42238-42251 Apportionments to districts

Ed. Code 42238.01-42238.07 Local control funding formula

226

https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Document/I407996734C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3?viewType=FullText&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default)
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Browse/Home/California/CaliforniaCodeofRegulations?guid=I4260F4104C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3&transitionType=Default&contextData=%28sc.Default%29#I7FE5E210E5FE11EEA00AACD3D3AE5397
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Browse/Home/California/CaliforniaCodeofRegulations?guid=I4389BCA04C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3&transitionType=Default&contextData=%28sc.Default%29#I438C06934C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=1240.&lawCode=EDC
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=33127.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=41202.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=42103.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=3.&title=2.&part=24.&chapter=6.&article=2.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=3.&title=2.&part=24.&chapter=6.&article=3.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=3.&title=2.&part=24.&chapter=6.&article=4.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=3.&title=2.&part=24.&chapter=7.&article=2.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=3.&title=2.&part=24.&chapter=7.&article=2.


Ed. Code 42602 Use of unbudgeted funds

Ed. Code 42610 Appropriation of excess funds and limitation thereon

Ed. Code 45253 Annual budget of personnel commission

Ed. Code 45254 First year budget of personnel commission

Ed. Code 52060-52077 Local control and accountability plan

Gov. Code 21710-21716 California Employer's Pension Prefunding Trust Program

Gov. Code 7900-7914 Appropriations limit

StateState DescriptionDescription

Management ResourcesManagement Resources DescriptionDescription

California Department of Education Publication New Requirements for Reporting Fund Balance in Governmental Funds,
January 7, 2011

California Department of Education Publication California School Accounting Manual

Fiscal Crisis & Management Assistance Team Pub. Fiscal Oversight Guide for AB 1200, AB 2756, AB 1840 and Related
Legislation, June 2019

Government Finance Officers Association Best Practice: Fund Balance Guidelines for the General Fund, September
2015

Governmental Accounting Standards Board
Statement Pronouncements

Governmental Accounting Standards Board
Statement

Statement 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type
Definitions, February 2009

Governmental Accounting Standards Board
Statement

Statement 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Post-employment
Benefits Other Than Pensions, June 2015

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Website California Department of Finance

Website Governmental Accounting Standards Board

Website California Department of Education, Finance and Grants

Website Government Finance Officers Association

Website Association of California School Administrators

Website School Services of California, Inc.

Website CSBA

Website Fiscal Crisis and Management Assistance Team

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

0000 Vision

0200 Goals For The School District

0400 Comprehensive Plans

0415 Equity

0440 District Technology Plan

1113 District And School Websites

1113 District And School Websites

1113-E(1) District And School Websites

1220 Citizen Advisory Committees

1220 Citizen Advisory Committees

227

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=42602.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=42610.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45253.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45254.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=28.&chapter=6.1.&article=4.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&division=5.&title=2.&part=3.&chapter=19.&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&division=9.&title=1.&part=&chapter=&article=
https://www.cde.ca.gov/fg//ac/co/documents/gasb54.doc
https://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/ac/sa/
https://www.fcmat.org/PublicationsReports/Fiscal_Oversight_Guide_final_11-8-2019.pdf
https://www.gfoa.org/materials/fund-balance-guidelines-for-the-general-fund
https://gasb.org/standards-and-guidance/pronouncements
https://gasb.org/page/document?pdf=GASBS+54.pdf&title=GASB STATEMENT NO. 54, FUND BALANCE REPORTING AND GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPE DEFINITIONS
https://gasb.org/page/document?pdf=gasbs75_final_cropped.pdf&title=GASB Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions
https://legalservices.csba.org/
http://www.dof.ca.gov
http://www.gasb.org
http://www.cde.ca.gov/fg
http://www.gfoa.org
http://www.acsa.org
http://www.sscal.com
http://www.csba.org
https://www.fcmat.org/
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=xmN8ikBLEgs7kUeMtOJYQA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=IkGTbCieIIprsadvADj0aw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=fslshUCPa3ly0gZEpk6hgiNCw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=wCP64pgiMrzSplus4SIaJdwvA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=2aGCaoK79paENKh3cGC8cg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=4XQaFrGRrecYplusYzJX8iFslshQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=o6imeqslsh96cCbNlv1lkZxjQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=3fxcWyEaRMF3Nxplus6hXIr3A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=a9GXfMrz42ghy6WU6XrjVw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=MmplusCSI72J5YCVy7oBWbV8Q==


1340 Access To District Records

1340 Access To District Records

2210 Administrative Discretion Regarding Board Policy

2230 Representative And Deliberative Groups

3000 Concepts And Roles

3110 Transfer Of Funds

3230 Federal Grant Funds

3230 Federal Grant Funds

3260 Fees And Charges

3260 Fees And Charges

3270 Sale And Disposal Of Books, Equipment And Supplies

3270 Sale And Disposal Of Books, Equipment And Supplies

3300 Expenditures And Purchases

3312 Contracts

3350 Travel Expenses

3400 Management Of District Assets/Accounts

3400 Management Of District Assets/Accounts

3460 Financial Reports And Accountability

3460 Financial Reports And Accountability

3580 District Records

3580 District Records

4131 Staff Development

4131.1 Teacher Support And Guidance

4151 Employee Compensation

4154 Health And Welfare Benefits

4154 Health And Welfare Benefits

4156.2 Awards And Recognition

4231 Staff Development

4251 Employee Compensation

4254 Health And Welfare Benefits

4254 Health And Welfare Benefits

4256.2 Awards And Recognition

4331 Staff Development

4351 Employee Compensation

4354 Health And Welfare Benefits

4354 Health And Welfare Benefits

4356.2 Awards And Recognition

6000 Concepts And Roles

6141 Curriculum Development And Evaluation

6181 Alternative Schools/Programs Of Choice

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

228

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=jSQCN8bwEZWEmfVMQ1Y0aw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=iq4sw8gP4uPlJugVHK7Ivw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=WUlVTLFoYJzzUrdAteBkog==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=Wwb4fXh4WwEP94IpagsPfw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=1S5ASCqQa8EJE4xi6w2ZCg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=4AslshkYM4qhslshbi0sbU7ZIAYQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=9QB38oDf0mYC8W3hhI2t7A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=gm23SplusZh5USxAIYBYnrm1g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=ecGl55Yd2s34cmX8hplusjKfg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=vNSrdWF1Lc7b2AKwmDAffA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=FLCmdpg5oo7OAY01658FKQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=WP2t9AgMIgrssol8slshjtXyA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=Wx35DpD7weNC8sdnLzpjig==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=xrw9F9HT1T362NYblff0Zw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=8BA9BfeJrt3QRpjKslshNwR1A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=kc5pfMVSMAGz96iUmVeLjA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=MKPhzLOFiYBe4FzKvxYKTA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=JYb8K4Q5FfnoCn49SoQJAA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=0Qplust6IkdjlHUZbApuKDQpA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=gv3pXuGPnNJ4FbkDgiDsRQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=D5p9gmmX6Eny4PVrAplusuD1Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=rJXg9MUOCQww7zhslshFIwGew==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=T0PGz6VTx16fvplusu30RiF1Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=ISiSBuPAAtYgOKWHbf8GCw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=4GxGihOi5aPNCZBPrE05eg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=ZslshkslshkPVsZ4NTWe8xrvcqbQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=0mssHzDqLE8RFQ5SloQGaw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=5lCMdGvgtplusdAslshT5ofNC1Vw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=sFr7qKO5CLTcTnXywEWDUQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=Gpa7E7HplusdG4iOMJUnDp3EA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=b8aplusiZI0c3lEaobHe9uKQQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=SslshPUS6TnslshOT3310gYWMUhw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=1j7A0V1L3lSneRnAhz7QqA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=cNTkGNujmRbg0FkwLiplus9Bw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=F40FjJcSAGVdMEARslsh9tBkg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=b3MoED9fJaj0ddMuf2O9Lw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=I7AuXV4DWJjl2EXDw1oEoQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=NNkf6qqAz6slshNMtplussv6iwCQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=e6sDnqhTRXzkAJY0e92dGw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=RHKacXUBhAslsh1e40QKplusXCgg==


7210 Facilities Financing

9000 Role Of The Board

9250 Remuneration, Reimbursement And Other Benefits

9320 Meetings And Notices

9322 Agenda/Meeting Materials

9323 Meeting Conduct

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

229

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=K6t6ZiI4neXynRKQsSslshy1Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=plusvbY1CZJkFvI8g5mpyucYA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=RplusUKkwZdzqkslshsmYV5Nl6Tg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=H3r4Uojk1yz8isTTg0If4w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=CmmAWPdAl9AIhiNvCj3pOw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=YWLwjrFz5Ktb8Ob0mgCYJg==


Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

Policy 3311: BidsPolicy 3311: Bids Status:Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 06/12/2024 | Last Reviewed Date:| Last Reviewed Date: 06/12/2024

The Governing Board is committed to promoting public accountability and ensuring prudent use of public funds.
When leasing, purchasing, or contracting for equipment, materials, supplies, or services for the Tri-Valley ROP,
including when contracting for public projects involving TVROP facilities, the Board shall explore lawful opportunities
to obtain the greatest possible value for its expenditure of public funds. When required by law, or if the Board
determines that it is in the best interest of the TVROP, such contracts shall be made using competitive bidding.

No work, project, service, or purchase shall be split or separated into smaller work orders or projects for the purpose
of evading legal requirements for competitive bidding. (Public Contract Code 20116)

The Superintendent or designee shall establish comprehensive bidding procedures for the TVROP in accordance with
law. The procedures shall include a process for advertising bids, instructions and timelines for submitting and opening
bids, and other relevant requirements.

For award of contracts which, by law or Board policy, require prequalification, the procedures shall identify a uniform
system for rating bidders on the basis of a completed questionnaire and financial statements.

When calling for bids, the Superintendent or designee shall ensure that the bid specifications clearly describe in
appropriate detail the quality, delivery, and service required and include all information which the TVROP knows, or
has in its possession, that is relevant to the work to be performed or that may impact the cost of performing the
work.

Except as authorized by law, contracts shall be let to the lowest responsible bidder who shall give such security as
the Board requires, or else all bids shall be rejected.  (Public Contract Code 20111)

When the Board has determined that it is in the best interest of the TVROP, the TVROP may piggyback onto the
contract of another public agency or corporation to lease or purchase any personal property including the lease of
data-processing equipment or the purchase of materials, supplies, equipment, automotive vehicles, tractors, and
other personal property for the district in the manner that the other public corporation or agency is authorized to
make the leases or purchases from a vendor.  to the extent authorized by law.  (Public Contract Code 20118)

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the Governing Board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter
of the policy.

StateState DescriptionDescription

Bus. Code 7056 General engineering contractor

Bus. Code 7057 General building contractor

CA Constitution, Article 2, Section 31(a) Prohibition of discrimination in operation of public education

Code of Civil Procedure 446 Verification of pleadings

Ed. Code 17070.10-17079.30 Leroy F. Greene School Facilities Act

Ed. Code 17250.10-17250.52 Design-build contracts

Ed. Code 17250.60-17250.69 Alternative design-build contracts

Ed. Code 17400 Leasing Property

Ed. Code 17406 Lease-leaseback contract

Ed. Code 17595 Purchase of supplies through Department of General Services

Ed. Code 17602 Purchase of surplus property from federal agencies

Ed. Code 38083 Purchase of perishable foodstuffs and seasonal commodities

Ed. Code 38110-38120 Apparatus and supplies

Ed. Code 39802 Transportation services

Gov. Code 4217.10-4217.18 Energy conservation contracts

Board Policy Manual
Tri-Valley Regional Occupational Program

230

http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=7056.&lawCode=BPC
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=7057.&lawCode=BPC
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=446.&lawCode=CCP
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?division=1.&chapter=12.5.&part=10.&lawCode=EDC&title=1.&article=1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=1.&title=1.&part=10.5.&chapter=2.6.&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=17406.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=17595.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=17602.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=38083.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=3.&title=2.&part=23.&chapter=4.&article=1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=39802.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&division=5.&title=1.&part=&chapter=3.2.&article=


Gov. Code 4330-4334 California made materials

Gov. Code 53060 Special services and advice

Gov. Code 54201-54205 Purchase of supplies and equipment by local agencies

Gov. Code 7920.530 Public record; definition

Pub. Cont. Code 1102 Emergency; definition

Pub. Cont. Code 1103 Responsible bidder; definition

Pub. Cont. Code 12200 Recycled goods, materials and supplies; definition

Pub. Cont. Code 2000-2002 Responsive bidders

Pub. Cont. Code 20101-20103.7 Public construction projects; requirements for bidding

Pub. Cont. Code 20103.8 Award of contracts

Pub. Cont. Code 20110-20118.4 Local Agency Public Construction Act; school districts

Pub. Cont. Code 20189 Bidder's security; earthquake relief

Pub. Cont. Code 22000-22045 Uniform Public Construction Cost Accounting Act

Pub. Cont. Code 22152 Recycled product procurement

Pub. Cont. Code 3000-3010 Roofing projects

Pub. Cont. Code 3400 Bid specifications

Pub. Cont. Code 3410 U.S. produce and processed foods

Pub. Cont. Code 4113 Prime contractor; subcontractor

Pub. Cont. Code 6102 Bribery of public official; voidable contract

Pub. Cont. Code 6610 Bid visits

StateState DescriptionDescription

Management ResourcesManagement Resources DescriptionDescription

Attorney General Opinion 89 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 1 (2006)

CA Department of General Services Publication Office of Public School Construction, Piggyback Contracts

CA Department of General Services Publication
Office of Public School Construction Notification to School Districts
Regarding Use of Piggyback Contracts for SAB-Administered Programs, July
2022

CA Department of Industrial Relations Publication Model Prequalification Questionnaire

Court Decision City of Inglewood-Los Angeles County Civic Center Authority v. Superior
Court (1972) 7 Cal.3d 861

Court Decision Great West Contractors Inc. v. Irvine Unified School District (2010) 187
Cal.App.4th 1425

Court Decision Konica Business Machines v. Regents of the University of California (1988)
206 Cal.App.3d 449

Court Decision Los Angeles Unified School District v. Great American Insurance Co. (2010)
49 Cal.4th 739

Court Decision Marshall v. Pasadena Unified School District (2004) 119 Cal.App.4th 1241

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Website California Department of General Services

Website CSBA

Website California Department of Education

Website California Association of School Business Officials

231

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&division=5.&title=1.&part=&chapter=4.&article=2.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=53060.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&division=2.&title=5.&part=1.&chapter=5.&article=7.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=7920.530.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PCC&sectionNum=1102.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PCC&sectionNum=1103.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PCC&sectionNum=12200.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=PCC&division=2.&title=&part=1.&chapter=2.&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=PCC&division=2.&title=&part=3.&chapter=1.&article=1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PCC&sectionNum=20103.8.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=PCC&division=2.&title=&part=3.&chapter=1.&article=3.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PCC&sectionNum=20189.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayexpandedbranch.xhtml?tocCode=PCC&division=2.&title=&part=3.&chapter=2.&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PCC&sectionNum=22152.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=PCC&division=2.&title=&part=1.&chapter=3.&article=1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PCC&sectionNum=3400.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PCC&sectionNum=3410.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PCC&sectionNum=4113.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PCC&sectionNum=6102.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PCC&sectionNum=6610.
https://oag.ca.gov/opinions
https://www.dgs.ca.gov/OPSC/Resources/Page-Content/Office-of-Public-School-Construction-Resources-List-Folder/Piggyback-Contracts-for-SAB-Administered-Programs
https://www.dgs.ca.gov/-/media/Divisions/OPSC/Resources/Piggybank-Contracts/Piggyback-Contract-Email-Blast-July-5-2022FINAL-ADA.pdf?la=en&hash=9594C7B8BD4C9796DDB57D68775331EEA8CE658A
https://www.dir.ca.gov/Public-Works/Public-Works-Pre%E2%80%90Qualification-of-Contractors.html
https://www.lexisnexis.com/clients/CACourts/
https://www.lexisnexis.com/clients/CACourts/
https://www.lexisnexis.com/clients/CACourts/
https://www.lexisnexis.com/clients/CACourts/
https://www.lexisnexis.com/clients/CACourts/
https://legalservices.csba.org/
https://www.dgs.ca.gov
http://www.csba.org
http://www.cde.ca.gov
http://www.casbo.org


Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

0410 Nondiscrimination In District Programs And Activities

1113 District And School Websites

1113 District And School Websites

1113-E(1) District And School Websites

1340 Access To District Records

1340 Access To District Records

3000 Concepts And Roles

3230 Federal Grant Funds

3230 Federal Grant Funds

3270 Sale And Disposal Of Books, Equipment And Supplies

3270 Sale And Disposal Of Books, Equipment And Supplies

3300 Expenditures And Purchases

3311.4 Procurement Of Technological Equipment

3312 Contracts

3314 Payment For Goods And Services

3314 Payment For Goods And Services

3512 Equipment

3580 District Records

3580 District Records

3600 Consultants

6161.1 Selection And Evaluation Of Instructional Materials

6161.1-E(1) Selection And Evaluation Of Instructional Materials

6161.11 Supplementary Instructional Materials

7140 Architectural And Engineering Services

7140 Architectural And Engineering Services

9270 Conflict Of Interest

9270-E(1) Conflict Of Interest

9320 Meetings And Notices

9323.2 Actions By The Board

232

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=6W6V2lg758nV8oJ92q8cTQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=4XQaFrGRrecYplusYzJX8iFslshQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=o6imeqslsh96cCbNlv1lkZxjQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=3fxcWyEaRMF3Nxplus6hXIr3A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=jSQCN8bwEZWEmfVMQ1Y0aw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=iq4sw8gP4uPlJugVHK7Ivw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=1S5ASCqQa8EJE4xi6w2ZCg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=9QB38oDf0mYC8W3hhI2t7A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=gm23SplusZh5USxAIYBYnrm1g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=FLCmdpg5oo7OAY01658FKQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=WP2t9AgMIgrssol8slshjtXyA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=Wx35DpD7weNC8sdnLzpjig==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=Y6S7Sov60esTslsht9y1iMZzg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=xrw9F9HT1T362NYblff0Zw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=3N5XDSqKMAnatEYHx0jhdA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=Do3dKeZqxXe0L0wCvplusslsh6Fw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=v8Zj5sdidsdslsh2Y3CjY6ydw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=gv3pXuGPnNJ4FbkDgiDsRQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=D5p9gmmX6Eny4PVrAplusuD1Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=P268jz89XYqDV83BwrMYHg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=MRGbl1DbpcXvHsqGUV9Gsw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=D3FML11LYslshy8tsj3PoXJSQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=CHwMm3jX66jXMNtr255wDA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=pTwqZRaslshMfP4mOwd7n4BBg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=aRvbKmoslshFwjyEGd4WIzWTQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=vkTqUWPIGHXvy1mb027jslshw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=ycYOrrZlzgk8gaFyQlc9Ew==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=H3r4Uojk1yz8isTTg0If4w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=slshW5TcNBgQk2oaz1XslshMwzQw==


Regulation 3311: BidsRegulation 3311: Bids Status:Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 06/12/2024 | Last Reviewed Date:| Last Reviewed Date: 06/12/2024

Advertised/Competitive Bids

The Tri-Valley ROP shall advertise for any of the following:  (Public Contract Code 20111)

1. A public project contract that involves an expenditure of $15,000 or more, including a contract for
construction, reconstruction, erection, alteration, renovation, improvement, painting, repainting, demolition, or
repair work involving a TVROP owned, leased, or operated facility
 

2. A contract that exceeds the amount specified in law, as annually adjusted by the Superintendent of Public
Instruction, for any of the following:
 

a. The purchase of equipment, materials, or supplies to be furnished, sold, or leased to the TVROP
 

b. Services, not including construction services or special services and advice in accounting, financial, legal,
or administrative matters
 

c. Repairs that are not a public project, including maintenance

Maintenance means routine, recurring, and usual work for preserving, protecting, and keeping a TVROP facility
operating in a safe, efficient, and continually usable condition for the intended purpose for which it was designed,
improved, constructed, altered, or repaired. Maintenance includes, but is not limited to, carpentry, electrical,
plumbing, glazing, and other craft work designed to preserve the facility, as well as repairs, cleaning, and other
operations on machinery and other permanently attached equipment. Maintenance also includes landscape
maintenance, including mowing, watering, trimming, pruning, planting, replacement of plants, and servicing of
irrigation and sprinkler systems. Maintenance does not include painting, repainting, or decorating other than touchup,
or among other types of work, janitorial or custodial services and protection provided by security forces.  (Public
Contract Code 20115)

Instructions and Procedures for Advertised Bids

The Superintendent or designee shall call for bids by placing a notice at least once a week for two weeks in a local
newspaper of general circulation published in the Member districts, or if no such newspaper exists, then in some
newspaper of general circulation that is circulated in the county. The Superintendent or designee also may post the
notice on the TVROP's website or through an electronic portal. The notice shall state the work to be done or
materials or supplies to be furnished and the time and place and website where bids will be opened.  (Public Contract
Code 20112)

The notice shall contain the time, date, and location of any mandatory prebid conference, site visit, or meeting and
details regarding when and where project documents, including the final plan and specifications, are available. Any
such mandatory visit or meeting shall occur not less than five calendar days after the publication of the initial notice.
For lease-leaseback, design-build, and alternative design-build projects, the notice shall specify that the project is
subject to skilled and trained workforce requirements.  (Education Code 17250.25, 17250.62, 17407.5; Public
Contract Code 2600, 6610)

Bid instructions and specifications shall include the following requirements and information:

1. All bidders shall certify in writing the minimum, if not exact, percentage of post-consumer materials in
products, materials, goods, or supplies offered or sold.  (Public Contract Code 22152)
 

2. All bids for construction work shall be presented under sealed cover. The TVROP may accept a bid that has
been submitted electronically or on paper.  (Public Contract Code 20111, 20112)

The bid shall be accompanied by a form of bidder's security, including either cash, a cashier's check payable to
the TVROP, a certified check made payable to the TVROP, or a bidder's bond executed by an admitted surety
insurer and made payable to the TVROP. The security of unsuccessful bidders shall be returned in a reasonable
period of time, but in no event later than 60 days after the bid is awarded.  (Public Contract Code 20111,
20112)
 

Board Policy Manual
Tri-Valley Regional Occupational Program

233



3. When a standardized proposal form is provided by the TVROP, bids not presented on the standard form shall
be disregarded.  (Public Contract Code 20111.5)
 

4. Bids shall not be accepted after the advertised bid opening time, regardless of whether the bids are actually
opened at that time.  (Public Contract Code 20112)
 

5. When two or more identical lowest or highest bids are received, the Governing Board may determine by lot
which bid shall be accepted.  (Public Contract Code 20117)
 

6. If the TVROP requires that the bid include prices for items that may be added to or deducted from the scope
of work in the contract, the bid solicitation shall specify which one of the following methods will be used to
determine the lowest bid. In the absence of such a specification, only the method provided in Item #6a below
shall be used.  (Public Contract Code 20103.8)
 

a. The lowest bid shall be the lowest total of the bid prices on the base contract without consideration of
the prices on the additive or deductive items.
 

b. The lowest bid shall be the lowest total of the bid prices on the base contract and those additive or
deductive items that were specifically identified in the bid solicitation as being used for the purpose of
determining the lowest bid price.
 

c. The lowest bid shall be the lowest total of the bid prices on the base contract and those additive or
deductive items that, when taken in order from a specifically identified list of those items in the
solicitation, and added to or subtracted from the base contract, are less than or equal to a funding
amount publicly disclosed by the TVROP before the first bid is opened.

The lowest bid shall be determined in a manner that prevents any information that would identify any of
the bidders or proposed subcontractors or suppliers from being revealed to the TVROP before the
ranking of all bidders from lowest to highest has been determined.  (Public Contract Code 20103.8)
 

7. In determining the lowest bid, the TVROP shall consider only responsive bids that conform to bid specifications
and are submitted by responsible bidders who have demonstrated trustworthiness, quality, fitness, capacity,
and experience to satisfactorily perform the public works contract.
 

a. When a bid is determined to be nonresponsive, the Superintendent or designee shall notify the bidder
and give the bidder an opportunity to respond to the determination.
 

b. When the lowest bidder is determined to be nonresponsible, the Superintendent or designee shall notify
the bidder of the right to present evidence of the bidder's responsibility at a hearing before the Board.
 

8. After being opened, all submitted bids become public records pursuant to Government Code 7920.530 and
shall be made available for public review pursuant to law, Board policy, and administrative regulation.

Prequalification Procedure

When required by law or the Board, the Superintendent or designee shall establish a uniform system for rating
bidders on the basis of completed questionnaires and financial statements in order to determine the size of contracts
on which each bidder is qualified to bid. For this purpose, the Superintendent or designee shall furnish prospective
bidders a standardized prequalification questionnaire and financial record which, when completed, shall indicate a
bidder's statement of financial ability and experience in performing public works. The bidder's information shall be
verified under oath in the manner in which civil law pleadings are verified. The questionnaires and financial
statements shall not be public records and shall not be open to public inspection.  (Code of Civil Procedure 446;
Public Contract Code 20111.5, 20111.6)

When any public project involves an expenditure of $1,000,000 or more and is funded or reimbursed wholly or
partly by the School Facilities Program funds or other future state school bond, the TVROP shall prequalify
prospective bidders either quarterly or annually. The prequalification shall be valid for one year and the following
requirements shall apply:  (Public Contract Code 20111.6)

1. Prospective bidders, including, but not limited to, prime, general engineering, and general building contractors
and electrical, mechanical, and plumbing subcontractors, as defined in Public Contract Code 4113 or Business
and Professions Code 7056 or 7057, as applicable, shall submit a standardized questionnaire and financial

234



statement 10 or more business days, as determined by the TVROP, before the date fixed for the public
opening of sealed bids.
 

2. Prospective bidders shall be prequalified by the TVROP five or more business days, as determined by the
TVROP, before the date fixed for the public opening of sealed bids.

If the project includes electrical, mechanical, or plumbing components that will be performed by electrical,
mechanical, or plumbing contractors, the Superintendent or designee shall make available to all bidders a list of
prequalified general contractors and electrical, mechanical, and plumbing subcontractors five or more business days,
as determined by the TVROP, before the date fixed for the public opening of sealed bids.  (Public Contract Code
20111.6)

For all other contracts requiring competitive bidding, the TVROP may establish a procedure for prequalifying bidders
on a quarterly basis and may authorize that prequalification be considered valid for up to one calendar year following
the date of the initial prequalification. Prospective bidders for such contracts shall submit the questionnaire and
financial statement at least five days before the date fixed for public opening of sealed bids and shall be prequalified
by the TVROP at least one day before the fixed bid-opening date.  (Public Contract Code 20111.5)

Award of Contract

The TVROP shall award each contract to the lowest responsible bidder, except in the following circumstances:

1. When the contract is for the procurement and/or maintenance of electronic data processing systems and
supporting software, in which case the Board may contract with any one of the three lowest responsible
bidders  (Public Contract Code 20118.1)
 

2. When the contract is for any transportation service which involves an expenditure of more than $10,000 and
which will be made with any person or corporation other than a common carrier, municipally owned transit
system, or a parent/guardian of a student who is to be transported, in which case the Board may contract with
other than the lowest bidder  (Education Code 39802)
 

3. When the contract is one for which the Board has established goals and requirements relating to participation
of disabled veteran or small business enterprises in accordance with Public Contract Code 2000-2002, in
which case the Board may contract with the lowest responsible bidder who submits a responsive bid and
complies or makes a good faith effort to comply with the goals and requirements  (Public Contract Code 2000-
2002)
 

4. When procuring a lease-leaseback contract, in which case the Board shall award the contract based on
objective criteria for determining the best combination of price and qualifications in accordance with Education
Code 17400 and 17406
 

5. When procuring a design-build contract for a public works project in excess of $1,000,000 in accordance with
Education Code 17250.20, in which case the Board may award the contract to either the low bid or the best
value to the TVROP, taking into consideration, at a minimum, price, technical design and construction
expertise, and life-cycle costs  (Education Code 17250.20, 17250.25)
 

6. When procuring an alternative design-build contract for a public works project in excess of $5,000,000 in
accordance with Education Code 17250.62, in which case the Board may award the contract to either the low
bid or the best value, taking into consideration, at a minimum design cost, general conditions, overhead, and
profit as a component of the project price; technical design and construction expertise; and life-cycle costs
 (Education Code 17250.61, 17250.62)

Protests by Bidders

If the bidder believes that the award is not in compliance with law, Board policy, or the bid specification, the bidder
may protest the award. A protest must be filed in writing with the Superintendent or designee within five working
days after receipt of notification of the contract award and shall include all documents supporting or justifying the
protest. A bidder's failure to file the protested documents in a timely manner shall constitute a waiver of the right to
protest the award of the contract.

The Superintendent or designee shall review the documents submitted with the bidder's claims and render a decision
in writing within 30 working days. The Superintendent or designee may also convene a meeting with the bidder in

235



order to attempt to resolve the problem.

The bidder may appeal the Superintendent or designee's decision to the Board. The Superintendent or designee shall
provide notice to the bidder of the date and time for Board consideration of the protest at least three business days
before the Board meeting. The Board's decision shall be final.

Limitation on Use of Sole Sourcing

In any contract for the construction, alteration, or repair of school facilities, the Superintendent or designee shall
ensure that the bid specification:  (Public Contract Code 3002, 3400)

1. Does not directly or indirectly limit bidding to any one specific concern
 

2. Does not call for a designated material, product, thing, or service by a specific brand or trade name, unless the
specification is followed by the words "or equal," so that bidders may furnish any equal material, product, thing,
or service

In any such case, the bid specification shall provide a time period, before and/or after the award of the
contract, for the contractor to submit data substantiating the request for substituting the designated material,
product, thing, or service. If no such time period is specified, the contractor may submit the data within 35
days after the award of the contract.

When the bid is for a roof project, a material, product, thing, or service is considered "equal" to that designated if it is
equal in quality, durability, design, and appearance; will perform the intended function equally well; and conforms
substantially to the detailed requirements in the bid specification.  (Public Contract Code 3002)

However, the Superintendent or designee may designate a specific material, product, thing, or service by brand or
trade name, also known as sole sourcing, if the Board has made a finding, described in the invitation for bids or
request for proposals (RFP), that a particular material, product, thing, or service is designated for any of the following
purposes:  (Public Contract Code 3400)

1. To conduct a field test or experiment to determine its suitability for future use
 

2. To match others in use on a particular public improvement that has been completed or is in the course of
completion
 

3. To obtain a necessary item that is only available from one source
 

4. To respond to the Board's declaration of an emergency, as long as the declaration has been approved by four-
fifths of the Board when issuing the invitation for bid or RFP

Bids Not Required

Without advertising for bids and upon a determination that it is in the best interest of the TVROP, the Board may
"piggyback" by authorizing another public corporation or agency, by contract, lease, requisition, or purchase order, to
lease data-processing equipment or to purchase materials, supplies, equipment, automotive vehicles, tractors, and
other personal property for the TVROP in the manner that the other public corporation or agency is authorized to
make the leases or purchases from a vendor. Alternatively, if the public corporation or agency has an existing
contract with a vendor for the lease or purchase of personal property, the TVROP may authorize the lease or
purchase of personal property directly from the vendor and make payments under the same terms that are available
to the public corporation or agency under the contract.  (Public Contract Code 20118)

Without advertising for bids, the Board may enter into an energy service contract and any related facility ground
lease, when it determines that the terms of the contract and lease are in the best interest of the TVROP and meet
the cost effectiveness requirements specified in Government Code 4217.12. The Board's determination shall be
made at a regularly scheduled public hearing of which notice is given to the public at least two weeks in advance and
shall be based on a cost and saving comparison finding specified in Government Code 4217.12.  (Government Code
4217.12)

Supplementary textbooks, library books, educational films, audiovisual materials, test materials, workbooks,
instructional computer software packages, or periodicals may be purchased in any amount without taking estimates
or advertising for bids.  (Public Contract Code 20118.3)

236



Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

Perishable foodstuffs and seasonal commodities needed in the operations of cafeterias may be purchased through
bid or on the open market.  (Education Code 38083)

Bids shall not be required for day labor under circumstances specified in Public Contract Code 20114. Day labor shall
include the use of maintenance personnel employed on a permanent or temporary basis.  (Public Contract Code
20114)

In an emergency when any repairs, alterations, work, or improvement to any school facility is necessary to permit the
continuance of existing school classes or to avoid danger to life or property, the Board may, by unanimous vote and
with the approval of the County Superintendent of Programs, contract for labor and materials or supplies without
advertising for or inviting bids or may authorize the use of day labor or force account for the emergency purpose.
 (Public Contract Code 1102, 20113)

The TVROP may purchase any surplus property from the federal government or any of its agencies in any quantity
needed for the operation of its Programs without taking estimates or advertising for bids.  (Education Code 17602)

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the Governing Board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter
of the policy.

StateState DescriptionDescription

Bus. Code 7056 General engineering contractor

Bus. Code 7057 General building contractor

CA Constitution, Article 2, Section 31(a) Prohibition of discrimination in operation of public education

Code of Civil Procedure 446 Verification of pleadings

Ed. Code 17070.10-17079.30 Leroy F. Greene School Facilities Act

Ed. Code 17250.10-17250.52 Design-build contracts

Ed. Code 17250.60-17250.69 Alternative design-build contracts

Ed. Code 17400 Leasing Property

Ed. Code 17406 Lease-leaseback contract

Ed. Code 17595 Purchase of supplies through Department of General Services

Ed. Code 17602 Purchase of surplus property from federal agencies

Ed. Code 38083 Purchase of perishable foodstuffs and seasonal commodities

Ed. Code 38110-38120 Apparatus and supplies

Ed. Code 39802 Transportation services

Gov. Code 4217.10-4217.18 Energy conservation contracts

Gov. Code 4330-4334 California made materials

Gov. Code 53060 Special services and advice

Gov. Code 54201-54205 Purchase of supplies and equipment by local agencies

Gov. Code 7920.530 Public record; definition

Pub. Cont. Code 1102 Emergency; definition

Pub. Cont. Code 1103 Responsible bidder; definition

Pub. Cont. Code 12200 Recycled goods, materials and supplies; definition

Pub. Cont. Code 2000-2002 Responsive bidders

Pub. Cont. Code 20101-20103.7 Public construction projects; requirements for bidding

Pub. Cont. Code 20103.8 Award of contracts

Pub. Cont. Code 20110-20118.4 Local Agency Public Construction Act; school districts

Pub. Cont. Code 20189 Bidder's security; earthquake relief

237

http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=7056.&lawCode=BPC
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=7057.&lawCode=BPC
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=446.&lawCode=CCP
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?division=1.&chapter=12.5.&part=10.&lawCode=EDC&title=1.&article=1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=1.&title=1.&part=10.5.&chapter=2.6.&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=17406.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=17595.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=17602.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=38083.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=3.&title=2.&part=23.&chapter=4.&article=1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=39802.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&division=5.&title=1.&part=&chapter=3.2.&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&division=5.&title=1.&part=&chapter=4.&article=2.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=53060.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&division=2.&title=5.&part=1.&chapter=5.&article=7.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=7920.530.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PCC&sectionNum=1102.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PCC&sectionNum=1103.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PCC&sectionNum=12200.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=PCC&division=2.&title=&part=1.&chapter=2.&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=PCC&division=2.&title=&part=3.&chapter=1.&article=1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PCC&sectionNum=20103.8.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=PCC&division=2.&title=&part=3.&chapter=1.&article=3.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PCC&sectionNum=20189.


Pub. Cont. Code 22000-22045 Uniform Public Construction Cost Accounting Act

Pub. Cont. Code 22152 Recycled product procurement

Pub. Cont. Code 3000-3010 Roofing projects

Pub. Cont. Code 3400 Bid specifications

Pub. Cont. Code 3410 U.S. produce and processed foods

Pub. Cont. Code 4113 Prime contractor; subcontractor

Pub. Cont. Code 6102 Bribery of public official; voidable contract

Pub. Cont. Code 6610 Bid visits

StateState DescriptionDescription

Management ResourcesManagement Resources DescriptionDescription

Attorney General Opinion 89 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 1 (2006)

CA Department of General Services Publication Office of Public School Construction, Piggyback Contracts

CA Department of General Services Publication
Office of Public School Construction Notification to School Districts
Regarding Use of Piggyback Contracts for SAB-Administered Programs, July
2022

CA Department of Industrial Relations Publication Model Prequalification Questionnaire

Court Decision City of Inglewood-Los Angeles County Civic Center Authority v. Superior
Court (1972) 7 Cal.3d 861

Court Decision Great West Contractors Inc. v. Irvine Unified School District (2010) 187
Cal.App.4th 1425

Court Decision Konica Business Machines v. Regents of the University of California (1988)
206 Cal.App.3d 449

Court Decision Los Angeles Unified School District v. Great American Insurance Co. (2010)
49 Cal.4th 739

Court Decision Marshall v. Pasadena Unified School District (2004) 119 Cal.App.4th 1241

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Website California Department of General Services

Website CSBA

Website California Department of Education

Website California Association of School Business Officials

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

0410 Nondiscrimination In District Programs And Activities

1113 District And School Websites

1113 District And School Websites

1113-E(1) District And School Websites

1340 Access To District Records

1340 Access To District Records

3000 Concepts And Roles

3230 Federal Grant Funds

3230 Federal Grant Funds

3270 Sale And Disposal Of Books, Equipment And Supplies

3270 Sale And Disposal Of Books, Equipment And Supplies

238

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayexpandedbranch.xhtml?tocCode=PCC&division=2.&title=&part=3.&chapter=2.&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PCC&sectionNum=22152.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=PCC&division=2.&title=&part=1.&chapter=3.&article=1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PCC&sectionNum=3400.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PCC&sectionNum=3410.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PCC&sectionNum=4113.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PCC&sectionNum=6102.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PCC&sectionNum=6610.
https://oag.ca.gov/opinions
https://www.dgs.ca.gov/OPSC/Resources/Page-Content/Office-of-Public-School-Construction-Resources-List-Folder/Piggyback-Contracts-for-SAB-Administered-Programs
https://www.dgs.ca.gov/-/media/Divisions/OPSC/Resources/Piggybank-Contracts/Piggyback-Contract-Email-Blast-July-5-2022FINAL-ADA.pdf?la=en&hash=9594C7B8BD4C9796DDB57D68775331EEA8CE658A
https://www.dir.ca.gov/Public-Works/Public-Works-Pre%E2%80%90Qualification-of-Contractors.html
https://www.lexisnexis.com/clients/CACourts/
https://www.lexisnexis.com/clients/CACourts/
https://www.lexisnexis.com/clients/CACourts/
https://www.lexisnexis.com/clients/CACourts/
https://www.lexisnexis.com/clients/CACourts/
https://legalservices.csba.org/
https://www.dgs.ca.gov
http://www.csba.org
http://www.cde.ca.gov
http://www.casbo.org
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=6W6V2lg758nV8oJ92q8cTQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=4XQaFrGRrecYplusYzJX8iFslshQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=o6imeqslsh96cCbNlv1lkZxjQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=3fxcWyEaRMF3Nxplus6hXIr3A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=jSQCN8bwEZWEmfVMQ1Y0aw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=iq4sw8gP4uPlJugVHK7Ivw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=1S5ASCqQa8EJE4xi6w2ZCg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=9QB38oDf0mYC8W3hhI2t7A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=gm23SplusZh5USxAIYBYnrm1g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=FLCmdpg5oo7OAY01658FKQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=WP2t9AgMIgrssol8slshjtXyA==


3300 Expenditures And Purchases

3311.4 Procurement Of Technological Equipment

3312 Contracts

3314 Payment For Goods And Services

3314 Payment For Goods And Services

3512 Equipment

3580 District Records

3580 District Records

3600 Consultants

6161.1 Selection And Evaluation Of Instructional Materials

6161.1-E(1) Selection And Evaluation Of Instructional Materials

6161.11 Supplementary Instructional Materials

7140 Architectural And Engineering Services

7140 Architectural And Engineering Services

9270 Conflict Of Interest

9270-E(1) Conflict Of Interest

9320 Meetings And Notices

9323.2 Actions By The Board

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

239

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=Wx35DpD7weNC8sdnLzpjig==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=Y6S7Sov60esTslsht9y1iMZzg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=xrw9F9HT1T362NYblff0Zw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=3N5XDSqKMAnatEYHx0jhdA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=Do3dKeZqxXe0L0wCvplusslsh6Fw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=v8Zj5sdidsdslsh2Y3CjY6ydw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=gv3pXuGPnNJ4FbkDgiDsRQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=D5p9gmmX6Eny4PVrAplusuD1Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=P268jz89XYqDV83BwrMYHg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=MRGbl1DbpcXvHsqGUV9Gsw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=D3FML11LYslshy8tsj3PoXJSQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=CHwMm3jX66jXMNtr255wDA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=pTwqZRaslshMfP4mOwd7n4BBg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=aRvbKmoslshFwjyEGd4WIzWTQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=vkTqUWPIGHXvy1mb027jslshw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=ycYOrrZlzgk8gaFyQlc9Ew==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=H3r4Uojk1yz8isTTg0If4w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=slshW5TcNBgQk2oaz1XslshMwzQw==


Policy 3312: ContractsPolicy 3312: Contracts Status:Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 06/12/2024 | Last Reviewed Date:| Last Reviewed Date: 06/12/2024

The Governing Board recognizes its responsibility to enter into contracts on behalf of the Tri-Valley ROP for the
acquisition of equipment, supplies, services, and other resources necessary for the achievement of TVROP goals. In
exercising this authority to enter into a contract, the Board shall ensure that the TVROP's interest is protected, that
the terms of the contract conform to applicable legal standards, including the bidding requirements in Public
Contract Code 20111.

In addition, Board members and TVROP employees involved in the making of contracts on behalf of the TVROP shall
comply with the TVROP's conflict of interest policy as specified in Board Bylaw 9270 - Conflict of Interest.

The Board may, by a majority vote, delegate to the Superintendent or designee the authority to enter into contracts
on behalf of the TVROP. To be valid or to constitute an enforceable obligation against the TVROP, all such contracts
must be approved and/or ratified by the Board. (Education Code 17604, 17605, 35161) 

Every contract entered into on behalf of the TVROP shall be made available for public inspection, except when the
law prohibits disclosure. No contract shall prohibit a TVROP employee from disparaging the goods or services of any
contracting party.

If the district utilizes a private labor compliance entity, the Superintendent or designee shall verify that the entity
does not have a conflict of interest.  (Labor Code 1771.8)

A private labor compliance entity is a third-party company hired by a district to perform labor compliance and
enforcement activities on public works projects on the district's behalf.  (Labor Code 1771.8)

A conflict of interest is a situation in which a private labor compliance entity performs labor compliance work under
contract for both the district and a contractor who is bidding a public works project for the district.  (Labor Code
1771.8)

If the district's private labor compliance entity seeks to respond to an alleged conflict of interest, the Superintendent
or designee shall confer with the entity and/or the contractor regarding the applicable contracts and relevant public
works law.  (Labor Code 1771.8) 

Contracts for Electronic Products or Services

The Board shall not enter into a contract for electronic products or services that requires the dissemination of
advertising to students, unless the Board:  (Education Code 35182.5)

1. Enters into the contract at a noticed, public hearing of the Board.
 

2. Makes a finding that the electronic product or service is or would be an integral component of the education of
students.
 

3. Makes a finding that the TVROP cannot afford to provide the electronic product or service unless it contracts
to permit dissemination of advertising to students.
 

4. As part of the TVROP's normal, ongoing communication to parents/guardians, provides written notice that the
advertising will be used in the classroom or other learning center.
 

5. Offers parents/guardians the opportunity to request in writing that their child not be exposed to the program
that contains the advertising. A request shall be honored for the school year in which it is submitted, or longer
if specified, but may be withdrawn by the parents/guardians at any time.

Contracts for Digital Storage and Maintenance of Student Records

The TVROP may enter into or renew a contract with a third party for the purpose of providing services, including
cloud-based services, for the digital storage, management, and retrieval of student records and/or to provide digital
educational software that authorizes a third-party provider of digital educational software to access, store, and use
student records. For these purposes, student records include any information maintained by the TVROP that is

Board Policy Manual
Tri-Valley Regional Occupational Program

240



directly related to a student and any information acquired directly from the student through the use of instructional
software or applications assigned to the student by a teacher or other TVROP employee, and do not include de-
identified information.  (Education Code 49073.1)

Any such contract shall contain all of the following:  (Education Code 49073.1)

1. A statement that student records continue to be the property of and under the control of the TVROP
 

2. If applicable, a description of the means by which students may retain possession and control of their own
student-generated content, as defined in Education Code 49073.1, including options by which a student may
transfer student-generated content to a personal account
 

3. A prohibition against the third party using any information in the student record for any purpose other than
those required or specifically permitted by the contract
 

4. A description of the procedures by which a parent/guardian or a student age 18 years or older may review
personally identifiable information in the student's records and correct erroneous information
 

5. A description of the actions the third party will take, including the designation and training of responsible
individuals, to ensure the security and confidentiality of student records
 

6. A description of the procedures for notifying the affected parent/guardian, or the affected student if age 18
years or older, in the event of an unauthorized disclosure of the student's records
 

7. A certification that a student's records shall not be retained or available to the third party upon completion of
the terms of the contract and a description of how that certification will be enforced, except that these
requirements shall not apply to student-generated content if the student chooses to establish or maintain an
account with the third party for the purpose of storing that content
 

8. A description of how the TVROP and the third party will jointly ensure compliance with the federal Family
Educational Rights and Privacy Act, 20 USC 1232g
 

9. A prohibition against the third party using personally identifiable information in student records to engage in
targeted advertising

Contracts for Personal Services

In order to achieve cost savings, the TVROP may enter into or renew a contract for any personal service that is
currently or customarily performed by classified employees, if the contract does not displace TVROP employees and
meets other conditions specified in Education Code 45103.1. To enter into or renew such a contract, the Board shall
ensure that the TVROP meets the numerous conditions specified in Education Code 45103.1.

In addition, the TVROP may enter into or renew any contract for personal service without meeting the conditions
described above, if any of the following conditions exists:  (Education Code 45103.1)

1. The contract is for new TVROP functions and the Legislature has specifically mandated or authorized the
performance of the work by independent contractors
 

2. The services contracted are not available within the TVROP, cannot be performed satisfactorily by TVROP
employees, or are of such a highly specialized or technical nature that the necessary expert knowledge,
experience, and ability are not available through the TVROP
 

3. The services are incidental to a contract for the purchase or lease of real or personal property, including, but
not be limited to, agreements to service or maintain office equipment or computers that are leased or rented
 

4. The TVROP's policy, administrative, or legal goals and purposes cannot be accomplished through the utilization
of persons selected pursuant to the regular or ordinary TVROP hiring process
 

5. The nature of the work is such that the criteria for emergency appointments, as defined in Education Code
45103.1, apply
 

6. The contractor will provide equipment, materials, facilities, or support services that could not feasibly be

241



Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

provided by the TVROP in the location where the services are to be performed
 

7. The services are of such an urgent, temporary, or occasional nature that the delay that would result from using
the TVROP's regular or ordinary hiring process would frustrate their very purpose

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the Governing Board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter
of the policy.

StateState DescriptionDescription

5 CCR 15500 Food sales in elementary schools

5 CCR 15501 Food sales in high schools and junior high schools

5 CCR 15575-15578 Requirements for foods and beverages outside the federal meals program

Ed. Code 14505 Provisions required in contracts for audits

Ed. Code 17250.10-17250.55 Design-build contracts

Ed. Code 17595-17606 Contracts

Ed. Code 200-270 Prohibition of discrimination

Ed. Code 35161 Governing boards; powers and duties

Ed. Code 35182.5 Contracts for advertising

Ed. Code 45103.1 Personal services contracts

Ed. Code 45103.5 Contracts for management consulting services; restrictions

Ed. Code 49073.1 Contract requirements for digital storage, maintenance and retrieval of
student records

Ed. Code 49431-49431.7 Nutritional standards

Gov. Code 1090 Prohibition of financial interest in contracts by specified officers

Gov. Code 1097.6 Independent contractors

Gov. Code 12990 Nondiscrimination and compliance employment programs

Gov. Code 53260 Contract provision re maximum cash settlement

Gov. Code 53262 Employment contracts

Gov. Code 7928.801 Public Records Act; contracts for goods and services

Gov. Code 84308 Campaign disclosure

Lab. Code 1771.8 Private labor compliance entity; potential conflict of interest

Lab. Code 1775 Penalties for violations

Lab. Code 1810-1813 Working hours

Pub. Cont. Code 20104.50 Timely progress payments

Pub. Cont. Code 20111 Contracts over $50,000; contracts for construction; award to lowest
responsible bidder

Pub. Cont. Code 22300 Performance retentions

Pub. Cont. Code 4100-4114 Subletting and subcontracting fair practices

Pub. Cont. Code 6102 Awarding of contracts

Pub. Cont. Code 7104 Contracts for excavations; discovery of hazardous waste

Pub. Cont. Code 7106 Noncollusion affidavit

FederalFederal DescriptionDescription

20 USC 1232g Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) of 1974

20 USC 1681-1688 Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972; discrimination based on sex

242

https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Document/I43BE13134C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3?viewType=FullText&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default)
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Document/I43C195844C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3?viewType=FullText&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default)
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Browse/Home/California/CaliforniaCodeofRegulations?guid=I441D71204C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3&transitionType=Default&contextData=%28sc.Default%29#I44218FD34C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=14505.
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?division=1.&chapter=2.5.&part=10.5.&lawCode=EDC&title=1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=1.&title=1.&part=10.5.&chapter=5.&article=3.
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?division=1.&chapter=2.&part=1.&lawCode=EDC&title=1.&article=1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=35182.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45103.1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45103.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49073.1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=27.&chapter=9.&article=2.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&division=3.&title=2.&part=2.8.&chapter=8.&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=53260.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=53262.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=84308.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&sectionNum=1775.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&division=2.&title=&part=7.&chapter=1.&article=3.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PCC&sectionNum=20111.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PCC&sectionNum=22300.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=PCC&division=2.&title=&part=1.&chapter=4.&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PCC&sectionNum=6102.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PCC&sectionNum=7104.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PCC&sectionNum=7106.
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=(title:20 section:1232g edition:prelim) OR (granuleid:USC-prelim-title20-section1232g)&f=treesort&edition=prelim&num=0&jumpTo=true


7 CFR 210.1-210.33 National School Lunch Program

7 CFR 220.1-220.21 National School Breakfast Program

FederalFederal DescriptionDescription

Management ResourcesManagement Resources DescriptionDescription

CSBA Publication Student Wellness: A Healthy Food and Physical Activity Policy Resource
Guide, April 2006

Website Financial Crisis & Management Assistance Team

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Website CSBA

Website California Association of School Business Officials

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

0100 Philosophy

0200 Goals For The School District

0440 District Technology Plan

1220 Citizen Advisory Committees

1220 Citizen Advisory Committees

1321 Solicitation Of Funds From And By Students

1321 Solicitation Of Funds From And By Students

1325 Advertising And Promotion

1340 Access To District Records

1340 Access To District Records

1700 Relations Between Private Industry And The Schools

2121 Superintendent's Contract

3000 Concepts And Roles

3100 Budget

3100 Budget

3230 Federal Grant Funds

3230 Federal Grant Funds

3290 Gifts, Grants And Bequests

3300 Expenditures And Purchases

3311 Bids

3311 Bids

3311.4 Procurement Of Technological Equipment

3314 Payment For Goods And Services

3314 Payment For Goods And Services

3400 Management Of District Assets/Accounts

3400 Management Of District Assets/Accounts

3460 Financial Reports And Accountability

3460 Financial Reports And Accountability

3554 Other Food Sales

243

https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-7/subtitle-B/chapter-II/subchapter-A/part-210
https://www.csba.org/~/~/media/B5947DF3DE58432C9B038C9C38360684.ashx
https://legalservices.csba.org/
http://www.csba.org
http://www.casbo.org
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=Ff1Riid8MHIplusNJ2apCL5tg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=IkGTbCieIIprsadvADj0aw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=2aGCaoK79paENKh3cGC8cg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=a9GXfMrz42ghy6WU6XrjVw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=MmplusCSI72J5YCVy7oBWbV8Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=BppgK3utX1WI4q8RtandZQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=slcplusxZmz9kQ2K1CiCrkfnQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=jtTPUhbBh8plusplusBQJMp5KdslshQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=jSQCN8bwEZWEmfVMQ1Y0aw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=iq4sw8gP4uPlJugVHK7Ivw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=sv40jeuoMK1cslshKEnwBkCug==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=nxpdAbdKFGCduW959slshAatQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=1S5ASCqQa8EJE4xi6w2ZCg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=seARW4wQslshzopsjDuoWaVbQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=n7mn4plus0iIANMqaD0dBAnWQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=9QB38oDf0mYC8W3hhI2t7A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=gm23SplusZh5USxAIYBYnrm1g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=R4ZhPTLBWEqPlXvysaYbbw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=Wx35DpD7weNC8sdnLzpjig==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=yLDteQb216i1dZUa0ud7wA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=l5K4OT8Pz9g95RGaMsgYBQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=Y6S7Sov60esTslsht9y1iMZzg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=3N5XDSqKMAnatEYHx0jhdA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=Do3dKeZqxXe0L0wCvplusslsh6Fw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=kc5pfMVSMAGz96iUmVeLjA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=MKPhzLOFiYBe4FzKvxYKTA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=JYb8K4Q5FfnoCn49SoQJAA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=0Qplust6IkdjlHUZbApuKDQpA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=6D8KQN841t9exLG3UBR1sA==


3554 Other Food Sales

3600 Consultants

4030 Nondiscrimination In Employment

4030 Nondiscrimination In Employment

4112.4 Health Examinations

4132 Publication Or Creation Of Materials

4200 Classified Personnel

4200 Classified Personnel

4212.4 Health Examinations

4232 Publication Or Creation Of Materials

4312.1 Contracts

4312.4 Health Examinations

4332 Publication Or Creation Of Materials

5125 Student Records

5125 Student Records

6162.6 Use Of Copyrighted Materials

6162.6 Use Of Copyrighted Materials

7140 Architectural And Engineering Services

7140 Architectural And Engineering Services

9000 Role Of The Board

9124 Attorney

9320 Meetings And Notices

9322 Agenda/Meeting Materials

9323 Meeting Conduct

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

244

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=MrEtsEWwA5qkaHJplusUoHK5A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=P268jz89XYqDV83BwrMYHg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=2ovdieL0Ca2E77pjgdCxbQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=hVUoMslsheBJ5ZE83WBcJPBnA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=fgLgfslshf6ebesMuoUxplusOgGQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=yChzI49sqDf58ExkYwveVw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=gslsh80LQ51bKEZhZ4waG50Fg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=1HAlcfIiCjRguUopuGJwmw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=46hN9IrNFADVgNXFV82ZgQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=vNA8CY9zJNbRMUTwgZFhWA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=FAwvCqTn40UAvEcENmlvXA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=VoiuoYxemebVPz9VjCwh0Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=WkBTslshXkcJO89btplusrzaSVfw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=XdGU7vQR1OHwP8slshthnplusfQw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=qHVbTBqazYz4Lw8v9jslshSpg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=KbjslshZ24kUQ1hnYtPzfegjQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=QuBnSEYF9Vy3qcsBAgVJ7g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=pTwqZRaslshMfP4mOwd7n4BBg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=aRvbKmoslshFwjyEGd4WIzWTQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=plusvbY1CZJkFvI8g5mpyucYA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=mo0Pce7m8Kn8plusck2fGrtrg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=H3r4Uojk1yz8isTTg0If4w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=CmmAWPdAl9AIhiNvCj3pOw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=YWLwjrFz5Ktb8Ob0mgCYJg==


Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

Policy 3320: Claims And Actions Against The DistrictPolicy 3320: Claims And Actions Against The District Status:Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 06/12/2024 | Last Reviewed Date:| Last Reviewed Date: 06/12/2024

The Governing Board desires to conduct Tri-Valley ROP operations in a manner that minimizes risk, protects TVROP
resources, and promotes the health and safety of students, staff, and the public. Any and all claims for money or
damages against the TVROP shall be presented to and acted upon in accordance with the Government Claims Act or
other applicable state or TVROP procedures, as well as the TVROP's joint powers authority (JPA) agreement or other
insurance coverage.

Any claim for money or damages not governed by the Government Claims Act (Government Code 810-996.6) or
specifically excepted by Government Code 905 shall be presented and acted upon in accordance with ROP-
established procedures consistent with the manner and time limitations specified in the accompanying administrative
regulation, unless a procedure for processing such claims is otherwise provided by state or federal law or regulation. 
(Government Code 935)

Upon notice to the TVROP of a claim, the Superintendent or designee shall take all necessary steps to protect the
TVROP's rights under any applicable contractual agreements, including the right to indemnification from its insurance
or other coverage provider.

In accordance with Government Code 935.4, the Board delegates to the Superintendent the authority to allow,
compromise, or settle claims of $50,000 or less pursuant to any conditions of coverage in the TVROP's TVROP
Program agreement or insurance coverage.

Registry Rosterof Public Agencies

Within 10 days of any change in the name of the TVROP, the mailing address of the Board, or the names and
addresses of the Board Chairperson, the Board Vice Chairperson, or other Board members, the Superintendent or
designee shall file the updated information with the Secretary of State and the County Clerk.  (Government Code
53051)

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the Governing Board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter
of the policy.

StateState DescriptionDescription

Code of Civil Procedure 340.1 Action for recovery of damages suffered as result of childhood sexual
assault

Code of Civil Procedure 340.11 Action for recovery of damages suffered as a result of childhood sexual
assault that occurred before January 1, 2024

Code of Civil Procedure 85-86 Limited civil cases; amount in controversy

Ed. Code 35200 Liability for debts and contracts

Ed. Code 35202 Claims against districts; applicability of Government Code

Gov. Code 53051 Information filed with secretary of state and county clerk

Gov. Code 6500-6536 Joint powers agreements

Gov. Code 800 Cost in civil actions

Gov. Code 810-996.6 Government Claims Act

Pen. Code 72 Fraudulent claims

Management ResourcesManagement Resources DescriptionDescription

Court Decision Hovd v. Hayward Unified School District (1977) 74 Cal.App.3d 470

Court Decision Stockett v. Association of California Water Agencies Joint Powers Insurance
Authority (2004) 34 Cal.4th 441

Court Decision City of Stockton v. Superior Court (2007) 42 Cal. 4th 730

Board Policy Manual
Tri-Valley Regional Occupational Program

245

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=35200.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=35202.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=53051.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&division=7.&title=1.&part=&chapter=5.&article=1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=800.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayexpandedbranch.xhtml?tocCode=GOV&division=3.6.&title=1.&part=&chapter=&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=72.
https://www.lexisnexis.com/clients/CACourts/
https://www.lexisnexis.com/clients/CACourts/
https://www.lexisnexis.com/clients/CACourts/


Court Decision Connelly v. County of Fresno (2006) 146 Cal.App.4th 29

Court Decision CSEA v. Azusa Unified School District (1984) 152 Cal.App.3d 580

Court Decision CSEA v. South Orange Community College District (2004) 124 Cal.App.4th
574

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Website California Secretary of State's Office

Website Fiscal Crisis and Management Assistance Team

Management ResourcesManagement Resources DescriptionDescription

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

1340 Access To District Records

1340 Access To District Records

3530 Risk Management/Insurance

3530 Risk Management/Insurance

4119.1 Civil And Legal Rights

4144 Complaints

4144 Complaints

4157.1 Work-Related Injuries

4158 Employee Security

4219.1 Civil And Legal Rights

4257.1 Work-Related Injuries

4258 Employee Security

4319.1 Civil And Legal Rights

4344 Complaints

4344 Complaints

4357.1 Work-Related Injuries

4358 Employee Security

5141.4 Child Abuse Prevention And Reporting

5141.4 Child Abuse Prevention And Reporting

9012 Board Member Electronic Communications

9321 Closed Session

9321-E(1) Closed Session

9321-E(2) Closed Session

9322 Agenda/Meeting Materials

246

https://www.lexisnexis.com/clients/CACourts/
https://www.lexisnexis.com/clients/CACourts/
https://www.lexisnexis.com/clients/CACourts/
https://legalservices.csba.org/
http://www.sos.ca.gov
https://www.fcmat.org/
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=jSQCN8bwEZWEmfVMQ1Y0aw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=iq4sw8gP4uPlJugVHK7Ivw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=rQwNVoa15CFjfybxG5kmHw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=LsrHkHBufIrDkDZYMK0Whw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=VM4OHi5Dsjt6IslshWhjsdmUw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=IwQFI7NNVNXR1J3YK8Bslshfw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=VbBVr5MS3GslshCLplus3fzecQ2Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=EBBWQu228ea1dmu3fqF3HA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=8DsOfIxzC0ZnOS4LYYYTWg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=p4dIOjvjMJp9z13k9LaKCg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=8z1y8fslshamTo8h4JEAxAHGw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=8fslshaZ3b81q70yUwg557Ccg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=UdMRgxlCgslshVrStQNtMplusnYQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=zUnnqLlea0qMubslshDAQB2Xw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=TWyFplus8wZegxNsimYbLe5vw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=jTplusTldFZRktvflDl9fenng==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=BgStoslshAqQykifYwAxvtcwg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=IxWIZuFMitLEIUaqC85Q5w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=0khuOplusB4HLipdYpKyT2UGQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=slshJJXpMPYdhSf6JZk7yuJXw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=SCyIM86Pslsh2SXYfMWCoy4PA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=0plusIjrl1GcIFYmE3Py7jUqw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=DQY7ANJo4DIkPkvShOwaMQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=CmmAWPdAl9AIhiNvCj3pOw==


Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

Policy 3580: District RecordsPolicy 3580: District Records Status:Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 06/12/2024 | Last Reviewed Date:| Last Reviewed Date: 06/12/2024

The Governing Board recognizes the importance of securing and retaining Tri-Valley ROP documents.  The
Superintendent or designee shall ensure that TVROP records are developed, maintained, and disposed of in
accordance with law, Board policy, and administrative regulation.

The Superintendent or designee shall consult with TVROP legal counsel, site administrators, TVROP information
technology staff, personnel department staff, and others as necessary to develop a secure document management
system that provides for the storage, retrieval, archiving, and destruction of TVROP documents, including
electronically stored information such as email.  This document management system shall be designed to comply
with state and federal laws regarding security of records, record retention and destruction, response to "litigation
hold" discovery requests, and the recovery of records in the event of a disaster or emergency.

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure the confidentiality of records as required by law and shall establish
regulations to safeguard data against damage, loss, or theft,  including damage, loss, or theft which may be caused by
cybersecurity breaches. .

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that employees receive information about the TVROP's document
management system, including retention and confidentiality requirements and an employee's obligations in the event
of a litigation hold or California Public Records Act request established on the advice of legal counsel. Additionally,
the Superintendent or designee shall ensure that employees receive information and training about cybersecurity,
including ways to protect district records from breaches to the district's digital infrastructure.

If the TVROP discovers or is notified that a breach of security of TVROP records containing unencrypted personal
information has occurred, the Superintendent or designee shall notify every individual whose personal information
was, or is reasonably believed to have been, acquired by an unauthorized person. Personal information includes, but
is not limited to, a social security number, driver's license or identification card number, medical information, health
insurance information, or an account number in combination with an access code or password that would permit
access to a financial account. (Civil Code 1798.29)

The Superintendent or designee shall provide the notice in a timely manner either in writing or electronically, unless
otherwise provided in law. The notice shall include the material specified in Civil Code 1798.29, be formatted as
required, and be distributed in a timely manner, consistent with the legitimate needs of law enforcement to conduct
an uncompromised investigation or any measures necessary to determine the scope of the breach and restore
reasonable integrity of the data system. (Civil Code 1798.29)

If the district experiences a cyberattack that impacts more than 500 students or personnel, the Superintendent or
designee shall report the cyberattack to the California Cybersecurity Integration Center.  (Education Code 35266)

Safe at Home Program

TVROP public records shall not include the actual addresses of students, parents/guardians, or employees when a
substitute address is designated by the Secretary of State pursuant to the Safe at Home program.  (Government
Code 6206, 6207)

When a substitute address card is provided pursuant to this program, the confidential, actual address may be used
only to establish TVROP residency requirements for enrollment and for school emergency purposes.

Records containing a participant's confidential address information shall be kept in a confidential location and not
shared with the public.

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the Governing Board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter
of the policy.

StateState DescriptionDescription

5 CCR 16020-16022 Records; general provisions

Board Policy Manual
Tri-Valley Regional Occupational Program

247

https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Browse/Home/California/CaliforniaCodeofRegulations?guid=I44508F104C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3&transitionType=Default&contextData=%28sc.Default%29#I4452D9034C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3


5 CCR 16023-16027 District records; retention and destruction

5 CCR 430-438 Individual student records

Civ. Code 1798.29 District records; breach of security

Code of Civil Procedure 1985.8 Electronic Discovery Act

Code of Civil Procedure 2031.010-2031.060 Civil Discovery Act; scope of discovery demand

Code of Civil Procedure 2031.210-2031.320 Civil Discovery Act; response to inspection demand

Ed. Code 35145 Public meetings

Ed. Code 35163 Official actions, minutes and journal

Ed. Code 35252-35255 Records and reports

Ed. Code 35266 Cybersecurity

Ed. Code 44031 Personnel file contents and inspection

Ed. Code 49065 Reasonable charge for transcripts

Ed. Code 49069.7 Absolute right to access

Gov. Code 11549.3 Office of Information Security

Gov. Code 12946 Fair Employment and Housing Act: discrimination prohibited

Gov. Code 6205-6210
Confidentiality of addresses for victims of domestic violence, sexual assault,
stalking, human trafficking, child abduction, and elder or dependent adult
abuse

Gov. Code 6215-6216 Address confidentiality; reproductive health care providers, employees,
volunteers, patients, and other individuals who face threats or violence

Gov. Code 7920.000-7930.215 California Public Records Act

Gov. Code 8586.5 Office of Emergency Services; California Cybersecurity Information Center

Pen. Code 11170 Retention of child abuse reports

StateState DescriptionDescription

FederalFederal DescriptionDescription

20 USC 1232g Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) of 1974

34 CFR 99.1-99.8 Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act

Management ResourcesManagement Resources DescriptionDescription

California Secretary of State Publication Records Management Handbook

State Ed. Tech. Directors Assoc. Pub. Small Districts, Big Hurdles: Cybersecurity Support for Small, Rural, and
Under-resourced School Districts, October 2023

Website Safe at Home; Schools

Website Federal Communications Commission, Schools and Libraries Cybersecurity
Pilot Program

Website Cybersecurity and Infrastructure Security Agency, Government
Coordinating Councils

Website California Office of Emergency Services

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Website California Secretary of State

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

0440 District Technology Plan

1112 Media Relations

248

https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Browse/Home/California/CaliforniaCodeofRegulations?guid=I445B3D704C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3&transitionType=Default&contextData=%28sc.Default%29#I446109D44C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Browse/Home/California/CaliforniaCodeofRegulations?guid=I2AF4DC104C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3&transitionType=Default&contextData=%28sc.Default%29#I2AFA33434C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=1798.29.&lawCode=CIV
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=1985.8.&lawCode=CCP
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=2031.010.&lawCode=CCP
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=2031.210.&lawCode=CCP
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=35145.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=35163.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=3.&title=2.&part=21.&chapter=2.&article=8.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44031.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49065.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49069.7.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=11549.3.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=12946.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&division=7.&title=1.&part=&chapter=3.1.&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayexpandedbranch.xhtml?tocCode=GOV&division=10.&title=1.&part=&chapter=&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=11170.
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=(title:20 section:1232g edition:prelim) OR (granuleid:USC-prelim-title20-section1232g)&f=treesort&edition=prelim&num=0&jumpTo=true
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-34/subtitle-A/part-99/subpart-A
https://www.sos.ca.gov/archives/records-management-and-appraisal/records-management-handbook
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1xFzytKS6gtFAiKstP_H3ES_Tpm9OF8l8/view?usp=sharing
https://www.sos.ca.gov/registries/safe-home/schools#:~:text=Back to Top-,Verifying Enrollment,(916) 653%2D1769
https://www.fcc.gov/cybersecurity-pilot-program
https://www.cisa.gov/resources-tools/groups/government-coordinating-councils
https://www.caloes.ca.gov/
https://legalservices.csba.org/
http://www.sos.ca.gov/safeathome
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=2aGCaoK79paENKh3cGC8cg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=d5tBtDYYbfuJslsh9uhhU5slshWQ==


1113 District And School Websites

1113 District And School Websites

1113-E(1) District And School Websites

1312.3 Uniform Complaint Procedures

1312.3 Uniform Complaint Procedures

1340 Access To District Records

1340 Access To District Records

2121 Superintendent's Contract

3100 Budget

3100 Budget

3230 Federal Grant Funds

3230 Federal Grant Funds

3311 Bids

3311 Bids

3440 Inventories

3452 Student Activity Funds

3460 Financial Reports And Accountability

3460 Financial Reports And Accountability

3514 Environmental Safety

3516 Emergencies And Disaster Preparedness Plan

3516 Emergencies And Disaster Preparedness Plan

3523 Electronic Signatures

3523 Electronic Signatures

4030 Nondiscrimination In Employment

4030 Nondiscrimination In Employment

4040 Employee Use Of Technology

4040-E(1) Employee Use Of Technology

4040-E(2) Employee Use Of Technology

4111.2 Legal Status Requirement

4111.2 Legal Status Requirement

4112.2 Certification

4112.2 Certification

4112.5 Criminal Record Check

4112.5-E(1) Criminal Record Check

4112.6 Personnel Files

4112.9 Employee Notifications

4113 Assignment

4113 Assignment

4113.5 Working Remotely

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

249

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=4XQaFrGRrecYplusYzJX8iFslshQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=o6imeqslsh96cCbNlv1lkZxjQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=3fxcWyEaRMF3Nxplus6hXIr3A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=plussrJjGtKA0C9cRrvh7RCJw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=dzEvLKY3VZ2oNrfQVErklQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=jSQCN8bwEZWEmfVMQ1Y0aw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=iq4sw8gP4uPlJugVHK7Ivw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=nxpdAbdKFGCduW959slshAatQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=seARW4wQslshzopsjDuoWaVbQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=n7mn4plus0iIANMqaD0dBAnWQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=9QB38oDf0mYC8W3hhI2t7A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=gm23SplusZh5USxAIYBYnrm1g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=yLDteQb216i1dZUa0ud7wA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=l5K4OT8Pz9g95RGaMsgYBQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=30ayRa7CCf36eqQwlZYxow==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=IJslshnTukNs19A4Z0vpjDACA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=JYb8K4Q5FfnoCn49SoQJAA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=0Qplust6IkdjlHUZbApuKDQpA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=OutfUkt9Og66cKfeLnbNeA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=sgccEAZpluszCpQnbAqlgg39w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=TWK5W4V4dhslsh2l6X77m8HhQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=M66dXnFQMf0Vslsh1plusdSZDL8g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=IBaRaELB24U6TDoDUslshEslshYQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=2ovdieL0Ca2E77pjgdCxbQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=hVUoMslsheBJ5ZE83WBcJPBnA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=6nc6yN5h6ydYtRyszA3ucw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=tQIn4iF1mMgHXBJHOE7NqQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=yMj6tPfEpjVPslsh8KibHJXlQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=pMDTKNwdplusiefKSf2W1JX8w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=yUiPlc49qv4slshyXDr9VnFsg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=hXQk3HslshpPoNlSdslshQuQUCww==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=S2EEJEPoEGFpGrj1MOEslshrA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=aRUZnjonZJcH7slsh9vm0e48A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=qTZomETjeM9cfdDg7RaLrg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=ACXnZXJCZETJ0odq50Zlow==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=UPLY66bgXFiDbbG0J9LmOw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=13TzTwa2vdURxjk6qplusVDLA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=42b9JL4nUrgWQKd5I2IYcA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=Mknaq5T7idr3yLMnzA5Knw==


4119.12 Title IX Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment Complaint
Procedures

4119.12-E(1) Title IX Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment Complaint
Procedures

4119.21 Professional Standards

4119.21-E(1) Professional Standards

4131 Staff Development

4151 Employee Compensation

4211.2 Legal Status Requirement

4211.2 Legal Status Requirement

4212.5 Criminal Record Check

4212.5-E(1) Criminal Record Check

4212.6 Personnel Files

4212.9 Employee Notifications

4213.5 Working Remotely

4217.11 Preretirement Part-Time Employment

4219.12 Title IX Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment Complaint
Procedures

4219.12-E(1) Title IX Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment Complaint
Procedures

4219.21 Professional Standards

4219.21-E(1) Professional Standards

4231 Staff Development

4251 Employee Compensation

4311.2 Legal Status Requirement

4311.2 Legal Status Requirement

4312.5 Criminal Record Check

4312.5-E(1) Criminal Record Check

4312.6 Personnel Files

4312.9 Employee Notifications

4313.5 Working Remotely

4319.12 Title IX Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment Complaint
Procedures

4319.12-E(1) Title IX Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment Complaint
Procedures

4319.21 Professional Standards

4319.21-E(1) Professional Standards

4331 Staff Development

4351 Employee Compensation

5125 Student Records

5125 Student Records

5125.1 Release Of Directory Information

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

250

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=fjiYPQklLpVeTxEpuwpMTw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=mRiOWBT1gVjBSbEf8Nh6mQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=Iq7plusYNYEsMA0NaBUDbwO4g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=2PBlsEJtplusjPAXtEplusDka0pQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=rJXg9MUOCQww7zhslshFIwGew==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=ISiSBuPAAtYgOKWHbf8GCw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=GxbSrwzYOXMltJi1eplusOiOQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=SFUtbVVZhslshJGdpluscJALbwMQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=g071jtiYxsCsl9tN90d6Eg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=pi9c1SjlbHslshbAnhhIOUrwQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=cuCsDI5vt9ZrBUJxw3wSSQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=o8tvtjB1XsVSVK8UqCj2CA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=ScseNm0egmpK8FFktm7dQQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=ZlH5ej5HRhrRd5CyHCg9qQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=dfQ9AzGGiEq2bvbLNuKAjg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=0nBrslshR9fUSYslshmLe88qWo5w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=LDAv0QjOzcy85e8TxGB8Sg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=Z1DGKLdYAsslshVslshkdCpBpCrA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=5lCMdGvgtplusdAslshT5ofNC1Vw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=sFr7qKO5CLTcTnXywEWDUQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=5XLQKsArZFZ8ZmHJc50F5w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=RuggsgwGMtzVKhKW7Zs5pQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=FQEaeiSCSp6fbtcQnRoplusGw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=581Yxlwbfr7WYL4xD5RXUA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=xfD9FuXCdapZkeW3nMQsiA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=NFrhdOjtDj0tmEsjPQhXpQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=G4WRXd7slshr0slshGrplus8gyg11VA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=yzJcb1VWYEj9li1oiXJMOQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=2pohBt5yQAQkxsJoH9mslshbQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=9RrD3wQerk1bnZ5850HICg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=CTx0TjxkyiLX9jLP756gWw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=1j7A0V1L3lSneRnAhz7QqA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=cNTkGNujmRbg0FkwLiplus9Bw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=XdGU7vQR1OHwP8slshthnplusfQw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=qHVbTBqazYz4Lw8v9jslshSpg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=kplusBAJzFKTkoTb1g3UahT4w==


5125.1 Release Of Directory Information

5125.1-E(1) Release Of Directory Information

5141 Health Care And Emergencies

5141 Health Care And Emergencies

5145.3 Nondiscrimination/Harassment

5145.3 Nondiscrimination/Harassment

5145.7 Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment

5145.7 Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment

5145.71 Title IX Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment Complaint
Procedures

9011 Disclosure Of Confidential/Privileged Information

9012 Board Member Electronic Communications

9324 Minutes And Recordings

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

251

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=3PLMin1ewjxvQRsOBidZnQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=cXJrLCKRVDo4XC5YohlCDg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=F7Zplus4Umpr2hMy42UslshnrwGg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=fBNnJuPUPNxvaoQplus8SeLyw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=EiUXO6paslshr9AfFW8105TvA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=4smDSpZxoyplus5u5plwCHOplusA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=zTFItLvSmxOOyLk3pwTWhg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=39af887bS5p04xVwfYRGGA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=fVhafFfYO4CRzK4Q2zxSQQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=FDplusjomNzg7D9DrtkCVti2Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=slshJJXpMPYdhSf6JZk7yuJXw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=JXslshqnahpHO1Z4erJ23LmhQ==


Regulation 3580: District RecordsRegulation 3580: District Records Status:Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 06/12/2024 | Last Reviewed Date:| Last Reviewed Date: 06/12/2024

Classification of Records

Records means all records, maps, books, papers, and documents of the TVROP required by law to be prepared or
retained as necessary or convenient to the discharge of official duty. (5 CCR 16020)

Before January 1, the Superintendent or designee shall review the prior year's records and shall classify them as
either a Class 1 (Permanent), Class 2 (Optional), or Class 3 (Disposable) record.  (5 CCR 16022)

Records of continuing nature (active and useful for administrative, legal, fiscal, or other purposes over a period of
years) shall not be classified until such usefulness has ceased.  (5 CCR 16022)

An Any historical inventory of equipment shall be a continuing record and shall not be classified until the inventory is
superseded or until the equipment is removed from TVROP ownership.  (5 CCR 16022)

A student's cumulative record, if not transferred , is a continuing record until the student ceases to be enrolled in the
TVROP.  (5 CCR 16022)

When an electronic or photographed copy of a Class 1 (Permanent) record has been made, the copy may be
classified as Class 1 (Permanent) and the original classified as either Class 2 (Optional) or Class 3 (Disposable). 
However, no original record that is basic to any required audit may be destroyed prior to the second July 1st
succeeding the completion of the audit.  (Education Code 35254)

Class 1 - Permanent Records

The original of each of the following records, or one exact copy of it when the original is required by law to be filed
with another agency, is a Class 1 (Permanent) record and shall be retained indefinitely unless microfilmed in
accordance with 5 CCR 16022:  (5 CCR 16023)

1. Annual Reports
 

a. Official budget
 

b. Financial reports of all funds, including cafeteria and student body funds
 

c. Audit of all funds
 

d. Average daily attendance, including Period 1 and Period 2 reports
 

e. Other major annual reports, including:
 

i. Those containing information relating to property, activities, financial condition, or transactions
 

ii. Those declared by Governing Board minutes to be permanent
 

2. Official Actions
 

a. Minutes of the Board or Board committees, including the text of rules, regulations, policies, or
resolutions included by reference only
 

b. The call for and the result of any elections called, conducted, or canvassed by the Board
 

c. Records transmitted by another agency pertaining to its action with respect to TVROP reorganization
 

3. Personnel Records

Class 1 (Permanent) records include all detailed records relating to employment; assignment; amounts and
dates of service rendered; termination or dismissal of an employee in any position; sick leave record; rate of

Board Policy Manual
Tri-Valley Regional Occupational Program

252



compensation, salaries, or wages paid; and deductions or withholdings made and the person or agency to
whom such amounts were paid.  In lieu of the detailed records, a complete proven summary payroll record for
each employee containing the same data may be classified as a Class 1 (Permanent) record and the detailed
records may then be classified as Class 3 (Disposable) records.

Information of a derogatory nature as defined in Education Code 44031 shall be retained as a Class 1
(Permanent) record only when the time for filing a grievance has passed or the document has been sustained
by the grievance process.
 

4. Student Records

The records of enrollment and scholarship for each student required by 5 CCR 432 and all records pertaining
to any accident or injury involving a minor for which a claim for damages had been filed as required by law shall
be classified as Class 1 (Permanent) records. These include any related policy of liability insurance, except that
these records cease to be Class 1 (Permanent) records one year after the claim has been settled or the statute
of limitations has expired.
 

5. Property Records

Class 1 (Permanent) records include all detailed records relating to land, buildings, and equipment.  In lieu of
detailed records, a complete property ledger may be classified as a Class 1 (Permanent) record. The detailed
records may then be classified as Class 3 (Disposable) records if the property ledger includes all fixed assets; an
equipment inventory; and, for each piece of property, the date of acquisition, name of previous owner, a legal
description, amount paid, and comparable data if the unit is disposed of.

Class 2 - Optional Records

Any records considered temporarily worth keeping, but which are not Class 1 records, may be classified as Class 2
(Optional) records and shall be retained until reclassified as Class 3 (Disposable) records. If, by agreement of the
Board and Superintendent or designee, classification of the prior year records has not been made before January 1 as
specified in 5 CCR 16022, all records of the prior year may be classified as Class 2 (Optional) records pending further
review and classification within one year. (5 CCR 16024)

Class 3 - Disposable Records

All records not classified as Class 1 (Permanent) or as Class 2 (Optional) records shall be classified as Class 3
(Disposable) records. These include, but are not limited to, detailed records basic to audit, including those relating to
attendance, average daily attendance, or business or financial transactions; detailed records used in preparing
another report; teachers' registers if all information required by 5 CCR 432 is retained in other records or if the
General Records pages are removed from the register and classified as Class 1 (Permanent) records; and periodic
reports, including daily, weekly, and monthly reports, bulletins, and instructions. (5 CCR 16025)

All Class 3 (Disposable) records shall be destroyed during the third school year after the school year in which the
records originated. In addition, Class 3 (Disposable) records shall not be destroyed until after the third school year
following the completion of any legally required audit or the retention period required by any agency other than the
State of California, whichever is later.  A continuing record shall not be destroyed until the fourth year after it has
been classified as a Class 3 (Disposable) record.  (5 CCR 16026, 16027)

Electronically Stored Information

All electronically stored information related to the conduct of TVROP business, including information created, saved,
sent, or received on a TVROP employee's or Board member's personal account or device, shall be saved as an
electronic file to a ROP-provided account or device and retained in accordance with the section "Classification of
Records" above. Such information includes, but is not limited to, email, text messages, instant messages, computer
files, and other electronic communications related to TVROP business. In addition, when appropriate, the information
may be printed and physically filed in a way that allows it to be easily retrieved when needed.

Employees shall be required to regularly purge their email accounts and ROP-issued computers, cell phones, and
other communication devices of personal electronically stored information and other information unrelated to
TVROP business. The Superintendent or designee may check for appropriate use of any ROP-owned equipment at
any time.

253



Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

Any person to whom a ROP-owned computer, cell phone, or other electronic communication device is provided shall
be notified about the TVROP's electronic information management system and, as necessary, provided training on
the effective use of the device.

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the Governing Board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter
of the policy.

StateState DescriptionDescription

5 CCR 16020-16022 Records; general provisions

5 CCR 16023-16027 District records; retention and destruction

5 CCR 430-438 Individual student records

Civ. Code 1798.29 District records; breach of security

Code of Civil Procedure 1985.8 Electronic Discovery Act

Code of Civil Procedure 2031.010-2031.060 Civil Discovery Act; scope of discovery demand

Code of Civil Procedure 2031.210-2031.320 Civil Discovery Act; response to inspection demand

Ed. Code 35145 Public meetings

Ed. Code 35163 Official actions, minutes and journal

Ed. Code 35252-35255 Records and reports

Ed. Code 35266 Cybersecurity

Ed. Code 44031 Personnel file contents and inspection

Ed. Code 49065 Reasonable charge for transcripts

Ed. Code 49069.7 Absolute right to access

Gov. Code 11549.3 Office of Information Security

Gov. Code 12946 Fair Employment and Housing Act: discrimination prohibited

Gov. Code 6205-6210
Confidentiality of addresses for victims of domestic violence, sexual assault,
stalking, human trafficking, child abduction, and elder or dependent adult
abuse

Gov. Code 6215-6216 Address confidentiality; reproductive health care providers, employees,
volunteers, patients, and other individuals who face threats or violence

Gov. Code 7920.000-7930.215 California Public Records Act

Gov. Code 8586.5 Office of Emergency Services; California Cybersecurity Information Center

Pen. Code 11170 Retention of child abuse reports

FederalFederal DescriptionDescription

20 USC 1232g Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) of 1974

34 CFR 99.1-99.8 Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act

Management ResourcesManagement Resources DescriptionDescription

California Secretary of State Publication Records Management Handbook

State Ed. Tech. Directors Assoc. Pub. Small Districts, Big Hurdles: Cybersecurity Support for Small, Rural, and
Under-resourced School Districts, October 2023

Website Safe at Home; Schools

Website Federal Communications Commission, Schools and Libraries Cybersecurity
Pilot Program

Website Cybersecurity and Infrastructure Security Agency, Government
Coordinating Councils

254

https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Browse/Home/California/CaliforniaCodeofRegulations?guid=I44508F104C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3&transitionType=Default&contextData=%28sc.Default%29#I4452D9034C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Browse/Home/California/CaliforniaCodeofRegulations?guid=I445B3D704C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3&transitionType=Default&contextData=%28sc.Default%29#I446109D44C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Browse/Home/California/CaliforniaCodeofRegulations?guid=I2AF4DC104C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3&transitionType=Default&contextData=%28sc.Default%29#I2AFA33434C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=1798.29.&lawCode=CIV
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=1985.8.&lawCode=CCP
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=2031.010.&lawCode=CCP
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=2031.210.&lawCode=CCP
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=35145.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=35163.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=3.&title=2.&part=21.&chapter=2.&article=8.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44031.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49065.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49069.7.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=11549.3.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=12946.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&division=7.&title=1.&part=&chapter=3.1.&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayexpandedbranch.xhtml?tocCode=GOV&division=10.&title=1.&part=&chapter=&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=11170.
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=(title:20 section:1232g edition:prelim) OR (granuleid:USC-prelim-title20-section1232g)&f=treesort&edition=prelim&num=0&jumpTo=true
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-34/subtitle-A/part-99/subpart-A
https://www.sos.ca.gov/archives/records-management-and-appraisal/records-management-handbook
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1xFzytKS6gtFAiKstP_H3ES_Tpm9OF8l8/view?usp=sharing
https://www.sos.ca.gov/registries/safe-home/schools#:~:text=Back to Top-,Verifying Enrollment,(916) 653%2D1769
https://www.fcc.gov/cybersecurity-pilot-program
https://www.cisa.gov/resources-tools/groups/government-coordinating-councils


Website California Office of Emergency Services

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Website California Secretary of State

Management ResourcesManagement Resources DescriptionDescription

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

0440 District Technology Plan

1112 Media Relations

1113 District And School Websites

1113 District And School Websites

1113-E(1) District And School Websites

1312.3 Uniform Complaint Procedures

1312.3 Uniform Complaint Procedures

1340 Access To District Records

1340 Access To District Records

2121 Superintendent's Contract

3100 Budget

3100 Budget

3230 Federal Grant Funds

3230 Federal Grant Funds

3311 Bids

3311 Bids

3440 Inventories

3452 Student Activity Funds

3460 Financial Reports And Accountability

3460 Financial Reports And Accountability

3514 Environmental Safety

3516 Emergencies And Disaster Preparedness Plan

3516 Emergencies And Disaster Preparedness Plan

3523 Electronic Signatures

3523 Electronic Signatures

4030 Nondiscrimination In Employment

4030 Nondiscrimination In Employment

4040 Employee Use Of Technology

4040-E(1) Employee Use Of Technology

4040-E(2) Employee Use Of Technology

4111.2 Legal Status Requirement

4111.2 Legal Status Requirement

4112.2 Certification

4112.2 Certification

4112.5 Criminal Record Check

255

https://www.caloes.ca.gov/
https://legalservices.csba.org/
http://www.sos.ca.gov/safeathome
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=2aGCaoK79paENKh3cGC8cg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=d5tBtDYYbfuJslsh9uhhU5slshWQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=4XQaFrGRrecYplusYzJX8iFslshQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=o6imeqslsh96cCbNlv1lkZxjQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=3fxcWyEaRMF3Nxplus6hXIr3A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=plussrJjGtKA0C9cRrvh7RCJw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=dzEvLKY3VZ2oNrfQVErklQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=jSQCN8bwEZWEmfVMQ1Y0aw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=iq4sw8gP4uPlJugVHK7Ivw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=nxpdAbdKFGCduW959slshAatQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=seARW4wQslshzopsjDuoWaVbQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=n7mn4plus0iIANMqaD0dBAnWQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=9QB38oDf0mYC8W3hhI2t7A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=gm23SplusZh5USxAIYBYnrm1g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=yLDteQb216i1dZUa0ud7wA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=l5K4OT8Pz9g95RGaMsgYBQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=30ayRa7CCf36eqQwlZYxow==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=IJslshnTukNs19A4Z0vpjDACA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=JYb8K4Q5FfnoCn49SoQJAA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=0Qplust6IkdjlHUZbApuKDQpA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=OutfUkt9Og66cKfeLnbNeA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=sgccEAZpluszCpQnbAqlgg39w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=TWK5W4V4dhslsh2l6X77m8HhQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=M66dXnFQMf0Vslsh1plusdSZDL8g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=IBaRaELB24U6TDoDUslshEslshYQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=2ovdieL0Ca2E77pjgdCxbQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=hVUoMslsheBJ5ZE83WBcJPBnA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=6nc6yN5h6ydYtRyszA3ucw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=tQIn4iF1mMgHXBJHOE7NqQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=yMj6tPfEpjVPslsh8KibHJXlQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=pMDTKNwdplusiefKSf2W1JX8w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=yUiPlc49qv4slshyXDr9VnFsg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=hXQk3HslshpPoNlSdslshQuQUCww==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=S2EEJEPoEGFpGrj1MOEslshrA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=aRUZnjonZJcH7slsh9vm0e48A==


4112.5-E(1) Criminal Record Check

4112.6 Personnel Files

4112.9 Employee Notifications

4113 Assignment

4113 Assignment

4113.5 Working Remotely

4119.12 Title IX Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment Complaint
Procedures

4119.12-E(1) Title IX Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment Complaint
Procedures

4119.21 Professional Standards

4119.21-E(1) Professional Standards

4131 Staff Development

4151 Employee Compensation

4211.2 Legal Status Requirement

4211.2 Legal Status Requirement

4212.5 Criminal Record Check

4212.5-E(1) Criminal Record Check

4212.6 Personnel Files

4212.9 Employee Notifications

4213.5 Working Remotely

4217.11 Preretirement Part-Time Employment

4219.12 Title IX Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment Complaint
Procedures

4219.12-E(1) Title IX Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment Complaint
Procedures

4219.21 Professional Standards

4219.21-E(1) Professional Standards

4231 Staff Development

4251 Employee Compensation

4311.2 Legal Status Requirement

4311.2 Legal Status Requirement

4312.5 Criminal Record Check

4312.5-E(1) Criminal Record Check

4312.6 Personnel Files

4312.9 Employee Notifications

4313.5 Working Remotely

4319.12 Title IX Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment Complaint
Procedures

4319.12-E(1) Title IX Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment Complaint
Procedures

4319.21 Professional Standards

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

256

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=qTZomETjeM9cfdDg7RaLrg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=ACXnZXJCZETJ0odq50Zlow==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=UPLY66bgXFiDbbG0J9LmOw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=13TzTwa2vdURxjk6qplusVDLA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=42b9JL4nUrgWQKd5I2IYcA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=Mknaq5T7idr3yLMnzA5Knw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=fjiYPQklLpVeTxEpuwpMTw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=mRiOWBT1gVjBSbEf8Nh6mQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=Iq7plusYNYEsMA0NaBUDbwO4g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=2PBlsEJtplusjPAXtEplusDka0pQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=rJXg9MUOCQww7zhslshFIwGew==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=ISiSBuPAAtYgOKWHbf8GCw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=GxbSrwzYOXMltJi1eplusOiOQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=SFUtbVVZhslshJGdpluscJALbwMQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=g071jtiYxsCsl9tN90d6Eg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=pi9c1SjlbHslshbAnhhIOUrwQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=cuCsDI5vt9ZrBUJxw3wSSQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=o8tvtjB1XsVSVK8UqCj2CA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=ScseNm0egmpK8FFktm7dQQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=ZlH5ej5HRhrRd5CyHCg9qQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=dfQ9AzGGiEq2bvbLNuKAjg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=0nBrslshR9fUSYslshmLe88qWo5w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=LDAv0QjOzcy85e8TxGB8Sg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=Z1DGKLdYAsslshVslshkdCpBpCrA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=5lCMdGvgtplusdAslshT5ofNC1Vw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=sFr7qKO5CLTcTnXywEWDUQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=5XLQKsArZFZ8ZmHJc50F5w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=RuggsgwGMtzVKhKW7Zs5pQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=FQEaeiSCSp6fbtcQnRoplusGw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=581Yxlwbfr7WYL4xD5RXUA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=xfD9FuXCdapZkeW3nMQsiA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=NFrhdOjtDj0tmEsjPQhXpQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=G4WRXd7slshr0slshGrplus8gyg11VA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=yzJcb1VWYEj9li1oiXJMOQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=2pohBt5yQAQkxsJoH9mslshbQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=9RrD3wQerk1bnZ5850HICg==


4319.21-E(1) Professional Standards

4331 Staff Development

4351 Employee Compensation

5125 Student Records

5125 Student Records

5125.1 Release Of Directory Information

5125.1 Release Of Directory Information

5125.1-E(1) Release Of Directory Information

5141 Health Care And Emergencies

5141 Health Care And Emergencies

5145.3 Nondiscrimination/Harassment

5145.3 Nondiscrimination/Harassment

5145.7 Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment

5145.7 Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment

5145.71 Title IX Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment Complaint
Procedures

9011 Disclosure Of Confidential/Privileged Information

9012 Board Member Electronic Communications

9324 Minutes And Recordings

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

257

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=CTx0TjxkyiLX9jLP756gWw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=1j7A0V1L3lSneRnAhz7QqA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=cNTkGNujmRbg0FkwLiplus9Bw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=XdGU7vQR1OHwP8slshthnplusfQw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=qHVbTBqazYz4Lw8v9jslshSpg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=kplusBAJzFKTkoTb1g3UahT4w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=3PLMin1ewjxvQRsOBidZnQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=cXJrLCKRVDo4XC5YohlCDg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=F7Zplus4Umpr2hMy42UslshnrwGg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=fBNnJuPUPNxvaoQplus8SeLyw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=EiUXO6paslshr9AfFW8105TvA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=4smDSpZxoyplus5u5plwCHOplusA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=zTFItLvSmxOOyLk3pwTWhg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=39af887bS5p04xVwfYRGGA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=fVhafFfYO4CRzK4Q2zxSQQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=FDplusjomNzg7D9DrtkCVti2Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=slshJJXpMPYdhSf6JZk7yuJXw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=JXslshqnahpHO1Z4erJ23LmhQ==


Policy 4040: Employee Use Of TechnologyPolicy 4040: Employee Use Of Technology Status:Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 06/12/2024 | Last Reviewed Date:| Last Reviewed Date: 06/12/2024

The Governing Board recognizes that technological resources enhance employee performance by offering effective
tools to assist in providing a quality instructional program; facilitating communications with parents/guardians,
students, and the community; supporting Tri-Valley ROP and school operations; and improving access to and
exchange of information. The Board expects all employees to learn to use the available technological resources that
will assist them in the performance of their job responsibilities. As needed, employees shall receive professional
development in the appropriate use of these resources.

Employees shall be responsible for the appropriate use of technology and shall use TVROP technology primarily for
purposes related to their employment.

TVROP technology includes, but is not limited to, computers, the TVROP's computer network including servers and
wireless computer networking technology (wi-fi),  software as a service provided or paid for by the district, whether
accessed on or off site or through district-owned or personally owned equipment or devices, including tablets and
laptops; computer servers, wireless access points (routers), and wireless computer networking technology (wi-fi); the
Internet, email, applications (apps), including artificial intelligence (AI) apps; USB drives, wireless access points
(routers), tablet computers, smartphones and smart devices, telephones, cellular telephones, personal digital
assistants, pagers, MP3 players, wearable technology, any wireless communication device including emergency
radios, and/or future technological innovations, whether accessed on or off site or through TVROP-owned or
personally owned equipment or devices.

The Superintendent or designee shall establish an Acceptable Use Agreement which outlines employee obligations
and responsibilities related to the use of TVROP technology  including the use of AI apps.  . Upon employment and
whenever significant changes are made to the TVROP's Acceptable Use Agreement, employees shall be required to
acknowledge in writing that they have read and agreed to the Acceptable Use Agreement.

An employee may use technology, including AI apps, to assist the employee in the performance of the employee's
professional duties, including, but not limited to, the following specific tasks: developing syllabi, creating curriculum,
reviewing student work, suggesting instructional strategies, and researching academic content or instructional
techniques. Any employee using technology, including AI, shall review and be responsible for any final product or
document; not share confidential student records with a third party, such as an AI app, except as permitted by law;
and use the technology in accordance with Board Policy 6162.6 - Use of Copyrighted Materials, and in a manner
otherwise consistent with law, board policies, and administrative regulations. If an employee is unsure about the
appropriate use of technology, the employee shall confer with the Superintendent or designee before using. 

Employees shall not use TVROP technology to access, post, submit, publish, or display harmful�䀩�DRAFT06/ 6/ 1024 hRDTee0Goe0v r0neFi gDRDBT

 DRAFT06/ 6/ 1024 hRDTee0Goe0v r0neFi gDRDBT Status:Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 06/12/2024 | Last Reviewed Date:| Last Reviewed Date: 06/12/2024

The Governing Board recognizes that technological resources enhance employee performance by offering effective
tools to assist in providing a quality instructional program; facilitating communications with parents/guardians,
students, and the community; supporting Tri-Valley ROP and school operations; and improving access to and
exchange of information. The Board expects all employees to learn to use the available technological resources that
will assist them in the performance of their job responsibilities. As needed, employees shall receive professional
development in the appropriate use of these resources.

Employees shall be responsible for the appropriate use of technology and shall use TVROP technology primarily for
purposes related to their employment.

TVROP technology includes, but is not limited to, computers, the TVROP's computer network including servers and
wireless computer networking technology (wi-fi),  software as a service provided or paid for by the district, whether
accessed on or off site or through district-owned or personally owned equipment or devices, including tablets and
laptops; computer servers, wireless access points (routers), and wireless computer networking technology (wi-fi); the
Internet, email, applications (apps), including artificial intelligence (AI) apps; USB drives, wireless access points
(routers), tablet computers, smartphones and smart devices, telephones, cellular telephones, personal digital
assistants, pagers, MP3 players, wearable technology, any wireless communication device including emergency
radios, and/or future technological innovations, whether accessed on or off site or through TVROP-owned or
personally owned equipment or devices.

The Superintendent or designee shall establish an Acceptable Use Agreement which outlines employee obligations
and responsibilities related to the use of TVROP technology  including the use of AI apps.  . Upon employment and
whenever significant changes are made to the TVROP's Acceptable Use Agreement, employees shall be required to
acknowledge in writing that they have read and agreed to the Acceptable Use Agreement.

An employee may use technology, including AI apps, to assist the employee in the performance of the employee's
professional duties, including, but not limited to, the following specific tasks: developing syllabi, creating curriculum,
reviewing student work, suggesting instructional strategies, and researching academic content or instructional
techniques. Any employee using technology, including AI, shall review and be responsible for any final product or
document; not share confidential student records with a third party, such as an AI app, except as permitted by law;
and use the technology in accordance with Board Policy 6162.6 - Use of Copyrighted Materials, and in a manner
otherwise consistent with law, board policies, and administrative regulations. If an employee is unsure about the
appropriate use of technology, the employee shall confer with the Superintendent or designee before using. 

Employees shall not use TVROP technology to access, post, submit, publish, or display harmful or inappropriate
matter that is threatening, obscene, disruptive, sexui ant gitte

ful os sa t  a ful or thal 

 nyeer ano upteanl p t sighate

matte, incl yematt ps

oscch aser   piver  emith to th hastedgSupn ces,nai ating co

El uh bni rear l ate
matt er  emit l ylo ueet or d, t s ties, ase Bistei ae oncontivrplate

�� �� �� �� �� � �� �� �# �� �� � �� �7 �� �� �� � �� �� �� �' � �� �� �� �� �� �� �� �� �' �� � �� �7 �� �� �� �" �� �! �� �" �� �� �' �� �� �� �� �� �� �� �" �� �� �� �# �# �� �� �� �" �� �� �� �� �� �� �� �� ��

�� �� �� �� �, �� �� �" �� �� �� �� �! �� �� �� ��

�/ �# �� �� � �� �� �� �� �& �� �� �- �� �� �� �� �� �� �� �� �� �� �� �� �� �� �� �! �� �� �� �� � �� �� �� �� �� �� � �� �� �� �� �� ��

ca, de ibl t ate

othby l rmate

�/ �� � �� �� �! �� �� �' �� �� �� � �� �� �� �� �� �� �� �� �� � �� �� �� �� �� �� �! �� �� �� �� �� �� �� �� �� �� �� �� �� �, �� �� �# �� �� �� �� �� �� �� �� �� �� �� �� ��

�� �� �� �� �� ��

othbt  technolt  a fue Ebhaccnl car ted b foar r l t,  ted b, the TVRate

�/ �# �� �� � �� �� �� �� �# �� �� ��

�� �' �" �� �! �� �� �� ���� �� �� �� �� �� �� �� �� �' �� �� �� �� �� ���� �� �� �� �� �� �� �� �� �� �� �� ��

othbtibt l pm ate

bm  alatioenti aot al car t

ot a 

r al roor l aese tcdonsbl appr thbt ugy, the Superintendent or desifateca sig fn

Employbt tedge oe TVROP technologthasd b, ouivr wEbhascr i ivl Mt  dge og csudenw ane fosdate�/ �� � �� �� �! �� �� �� �� �� � �� �� �� �� �� �� �� �� �� �� �� �� �� �� �� �� � �� �" �� �� �� �� �� �� �� �� �� �� �� �� �� �' �� �� �� �� �� �� �� �� �� �� �# �6 �� � �� �� �� �, �� �� �� �� �� �� �� �� �� ��

�� �� �� �� �� �� �� �� �� �� �� �� �� �� �� �� �" �� �� �� �� �� �� �� �� ��

Board Policy Manual
Tri-Valley Regional Occupational Program

258



subpoena or other lawful request.

Employees shall report any security problem or misuse of TVROP technology to the Superintendent or designee.

Inappropriate use of TVROP technology may result in a cancellation of the employee's user privileges, disciplinary
action, and/or legal action in accordance with law, Board policy, and administrative regulation.

Staff Social Media Guidelines

TVROP supports the use of online social media to facilitate TVROP programs, departments and school sites in
building a more successful parent, community, student and employee network. This document contains TVROP’s
guidelines regarding the use of online social media.

Official TVROP social media platforms are operated by the TVROP for the purpose of communicating the TVROP’s
messages, and shall be used only for their stated purposes and in a manner consistent with this policy and the
mission and goals of the TVROP. In using social media, the TVROP does not intend to create a limited public forum or
otherwise guarantee an individual’s right to free speech. All official TVROP-authorized communication through social
media platforms shall comply with TVROP policies and regulations, and be in accordance with the TVROP’s
Acceptable Use Rules and Regulations.  (Education Code 35010)

A. Definitions:

“Social Media” means any online platform for collaboration, interaction, or active participation, including but not
limited to, social networking sites such as Facebook, X (formerly known as Twitter), Instagram, YouTube, and
LinkedIn.

“Official TVROP social media platform and TVROP-authorized social media” are sites authorized by the
Superintendent or designee. Sites that have not been authorized by the Superintendent or designer, but that contain
content related to the TVROP or comments on TVROP operations, such as a site created by a parent-teacher
organization, or other school-connected organization, or a student’s or employee’s personal site, are not considered
official TVROP social media platforms or TVROP-authorized social media.

“Technology” includes, but is not limited to; computers, notebooks, the Internet, telephones, cellular telephones,
personal digital assistants, pagers, MP3 players (e.g., iPods, etc.), USB drives, wireless access points (routers), or any
wireless communication device.

“TVROP Technology” is that which is owned or provided by the TVROP, which includes the ROP’s Internet services. 

“Personal Technology” is technology that is not owned or provided by the TVROP.

B. Privacy

The TVROP shall aim to protect the privacy rights of students, parents/guardians, employees, and other individuals in
connection with official TVROP social media platforms. (20 U.S.C. 1232g, 34 CFR 99.3, Education Code 49602)

The ROP’s Board policy pertaining to the posting of student photographs and the privacy of telephone numbers,
home addresses, and email addresses, as specified in Board policy 1113: TVROP Websites shall also apply to official
TVROP social media platforms.  (Education Code 49073)

TVROP-authorized social media and networking sites and other online platforms shall not be used by TVROP
employees to transmit confidential information about students, employees, or TVROP operations. 

By submitting content to any of the TVROP’s social media pages, users understand and acknowledge this information
is available to the public. The TVROP may use this information for internal and external purposes, and other users
may use posted information in ways beyond the TVROP’s control. Users, who do not wish to have the information
used, published, copied, or reprinted, should not post on the social media pages.

All posted content is subject to the California Public Records Act. All users of the TVROP’s social media pages are
also subject to any terms, policies, laws or regulations governing the social media website, platform, media, software,
devices, or networks.  (Government Code 6250 et seq.)

259



C. Official TVROP Social Media Presence:

The TVROP’s Internet home page, located at www.tvrop.org, contains links to TVROP-approved social media pages
which are authorized and administered by the Superintendent or designee. The Superintendent or designee has the
discretion and right to temporarily or permanently disable, alter settings of, or shut down any social media pages at
any time and for any reason.

Social media pages that have not been authorized by the Superintendent or designee and that contain posts, links, or
comments related to or about the TVROP, such as a site created by a parent-staff organization, or other similar
organization, or by an individual student or employee, are not administered by the TVROP. The TVROP is not
responsible for any such social media pages or content.

The Superintendent may determine whether TVROP social media sites or pages will permit “posting” of content by
outside users. TVROP-approved social media pages need not accept posts by any user other than an authorized
TVROP content owner. This determination shall be made in the best interests of the TVROP and the educational
program.

D. Requisite Authorization

1. Authorization - TVROP presence on any social media site, including school-related accounts, such as clubs,
teams, field trips, course, or other sites associated with the TVROP or a TVROP school must have the prior
authorization of the TVROP administration before such a site is established.  Any sites, accounts, or pages
existing absent prior authorization will be subject to review, editing, and removal. As appropriate, a
recommendation for disciplinary action may result.

To request permission for a TVROP-related site, please utilize the following form and identify a “content
owner,” or individual responsible for performing regular monitoring and maintenance of the website or
account, and a responsible administrator assigned to the specific site. Please note that for emergency purposes
only, each TVROP-affiliated site or social media account must name TVROP as an administrator. However, the
site, specifically, the content owner and responsible administrator shall be responsible for monitoring and
maintaining these sites and accounts. 

If asked by media to comment on a school related issue, refer them to school and/or TVROP administration.
 

2. TVROP Logo - The use of the TVROP logo(s) on a social media site must be approved by the TVROP
administration. 
 

3. General TVROP Sites and Accounts - TVROP’s general social media sites, including the TVROP’s blogs,
Facebook and Twitter accounts, will be managed by TVROP administration or their designee. Duplicate,
unofficial sites shall be reported, and investigated.
 

4. Sponsors and Advertising - Sponsor logos are permissible on TVROP-related websites, with the prior approval
of TVROP administration. The page must also include or link to contact information for an individual who can
provide information about sponsorship. Advertising for third-party events or activities unassociated with
official TVROP business is strictly prohibited.
 

5. Content Disclaimer – Each site shall contain a statement that specifies the site’s purpose along with a
statement that users are expected to use the site for only those purposes. Each site shall also contain a
statement that users are personally responsible for the content of their posts. These guidelines must be
displayed to users or made available by hyperlink. Any content removed based on these guidelines must be
retained, including the time, date and identity of the poster when available. The TVROP reserves the right to
restrict or remove any content that is deemed to violate this social media policy or any applicable law.

Any approved official presence on social media sites outside of those created and monitored by the TVROP’s
Communications Department shall include the following text:

“The views expressed on this site do not reflect the views of the Tri-Valley Regional Occupation Program.  This
site contains user-created content which is not endorsed by the TVROP.  Users are personally responsible for
the content of their posts.  The purpose of this site is” … (then specify the purpose).  Users are expected to use
this site only for these stated purposes.

E. Maintenance and Monitoring Responsibilities

260



The content of all official TVROP online social media pages shall be limited to current and useful information
regarding the TVROP’s official and sponsored educational programs, activities, and operations. Such content shall
support the TVROP’s educational mission and be appropriate for all audiences. Official TVROP social media pages
consist of TVROP messages and re-messaged TVROP related content (re-tweets) and shall not display or otherwise
communicate content not expressly authorized by these guidelines.

The posting on official TVROP social media pages of links to other online platforms or social media sites is
permissible if the linked sites’ content is of an academic nature, supports the TVROP’s educational mission, and is
consistent with the TVROP’s policies and regulations. The TVROP is not responsible for the content of external
online platforms, not associated with the specifically linked information.

Content owners are responsible for monitoring and maintaining official presences on social media sites as follows:

1. Content must conform to all applicable state and federal laws, as well as all TVROP and board policies and
administrative procedures.
 

2. Content must be kept current and accurate.
 

3. Content must not violate copyright or intellectual property laws and the content owner must secure the
expressed consent of all involved parties for the right to distribute or publish recordings, photos, images, video,
text, slideshow presentations, artwork or any other materials. Before posting any photographs of students,
content owners shall review the list of students whose parents have not consented to having their child’s
photograph taken or published. No student photographs should be published for personal, promotional use or
any other non-school related purpose.  (17 U.S.C. 101 et seq., Education Code 49073)

TVROP administration recommends that content owners request that a second person review all photographs
prior to publication. One person may catch issues that the first set of eyes overlooked.
 

4. Posting Photos or Movies without Permission - Do not post photos or movies of fellow employees without
their prior written authorization. Do not use photos or movies taken at school without permission.  Do not
post photos or movies that contain students without parent consent.
 

5. All postings and comments by users are monitored and responded to as necessary on a regular basis. Postings
and comments of an inappropriate nature or containing information unrelated to official or TVROP business
should be deleted promptly. Such postings shall be reported, investigated, and authors will be disciplined as
appropriate.

F. Content Guidelines

Although the TVROP does not regularly review or monitor content, the Superintendent or designee, may remove
posts based on viewpoint-neutral considerations, such as lack of relation to the site’s purpose or violation of the
TVROP’s policy, regulation, or content guidelines.

Each official TVROP social media platform shall prominently display:

1. The purpose of the site with a statement that users are expected to use the site only for the intended
purpose(s).
 

2. Information regarding how to use the social media platform’s security settings. 
 

3. A statement that the site is regularly monitored and any inappropriate content will be removed. 
 

4. A statement that the TVROP is not responsible for the content of external online platforms.
 

5. A disclaimer that any user’s reference to a specific commercial product or service is not the TVROP’s
endorsement or recommendation of that product or service. 
 

6. The individual(s) to contact regarding violation(s) of TVROP’s social media policy and regulation.

If the Superintendent or designee determines user-posted content will be allowed on a specific TVROP social
media page, the social media platform shall also:

261



 
a. Prohibit inappropriate posts, including those with content that:

 
i. Is obscene, libelous, or so incites students as to create a clear and present danger of the

commission of unlawful acts on school premises, violation of TVROP or school rules, or substantial
disruption of the school’s orderly operation; or
 

ii. Is not related to the site’s stated purpose, including but not limited to, comments of a commercial
nature, political activity, and comments that constitute discrimination, harassment, bullying, or
otherwise violate federal or state laws, or TVROP policies, procedures, or regulations.  (5 C.C.R.
80331 et seq., Education Code 200 et seq., 48907, 48900(r))
 

b. Include protocols for users, including expectations that users will communicate in a respectful,
courteous, and professional manner.
 

c. State that users are personally responsible for the content of their posts and the TVROP is not
responsible for the content of external online platforms.
 

d. Include a disclaimer that the views and comments expressed on the site are those of the users and do
not necessarily reflect the TVROP’s views.

G. Off-Campus versus On-Campus Social Media and Internet Use Guidelines

Although staff members enjoy free speech rights guaranteed by the First Amendment to the United States
Constitution, certain types of communication, typically by virtue of their subject-matter connection to campus, may
relate enough to school to have ramifications for the author or subject at the TVROP site.

When using TVROP technology, electronic communication is governed by the TVROP acceptable use policy, which
will be enforced accordingly. Students and staff have no right to privacy in any information stored on or accessed by
TVROP technology (e.g., in the contents of personal files on the TVROP’s Internet system or other TVROP
technology, TVROP email accounts, information accessed through the TVROP’s Internet system, etc.). TVROP
technology may only be used for educational purposes. Use for non-work purposes, including but not limited to,
personal blogging, instant messaging, online shopping or gaming is not allowed. The use of TVROP technology is a
privilege and may be revoked at any time.

Use of personal technology/devices may violate the TVROP’s acceptable use policy if the TVROP reasonably
believes the conduct or speech will cause actual, material disruption of school activities or a staff member’s ability to
perform his or her job duties.

Courts have held that the off-campus online communications may be connected enough to campus to result in either
student or staff-member discipline.  (San Diego Unified School TVROP v. Commission on Professional Competence
(Lampedusa) (2011) 194 Cal.App.4th 1454)

This section of the guidelines is intended to present to TVROP staff members examples of such situations, and
guidelines for responsible, professional internet use.

1. Staff Use of Personal Technology (Best Practices)

a. Restrict On-Duty Use – Staff members may not use personal technology for non-work purposes during
duty hours. The acceptable use of Personal Technology for non-TVROP business must be limited to off-
duty time and designated breaks.
 

b. Be Transparent - How you represent yourself online is an extension of yourself.  Do not misrepresent
yourself by using someone else's identity or misrepresenting your identity.  Be honest about who you
are, where you work and what you do.
 

c. Always a School Employee - The lines between public and private, personal and professional are blurred
in the digital world.  Even when you have a disclaimer or use a different user-name, you will always be
considered to be a TVROP employee.  Whether it is clearly communicated or not, you will be identified
as working for and sometimes representing the school in what you do and say online.  Always write in
the first person and make it clear that you are speaking for yourself and not on behalf of the TVROP. 

d. Work/Personal Distinction – Staff members are encouraged to maintain a clear distinction between their

262



Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

personal social media use and any TVROP-related social media sites.
 

e. School Values - Represent the TVROP values. Express ideas and opinions in a respectful manner. All
communications should be done in a professional manner.  Build trust and responsibility in your
relationships.  Do not denigrate or insult others including students, staff, administrators, parents, or other
TVROPs.  Don't use unprofessional language or any other inappropriate content.  Even though you are
of legal age, consider carefully what you post through comments and photos. There are school ROPs
who have taken disciplinary action on staff that made posts relative to alcohol, sexual activities, and
inappropriate comments regarding students and staff.
 

f. Professional Effectiveness - TVROP employees must be mindful that any Internet information is
ultimately accessible to the world. To avoid jeopardizing their professional effectiveness, employees are
encouraged to familiarize themselves with the privacy policies, settings, and protections on any social
networking websites to which they choose to subscribe and be aware that information posted online,
despite privacy protections, is easily and often reported to administrators or exposed to TVROP
students.
 

g. Personal Social Networking & Media Accounts – Before employees create or join an online social
network, they should ask themselves whether they would be comfortable if a 'friend' decided to send the
information to their students, the students’ parents, or their supervisor. Educators must give serious
thought to the implications of joining an online social network.
 

h. Responsible Online Identity Monitoring – Employees are encouraged to monitor their ‘online identity,’ by
performing search engine research on a routine basis in order to prevent their online profiles from being
fraudulently compromised or simply to track information posted about them online. Often, if there is
unwanted information posted about the employee online, that employee can contact the site
administrator in order to request its removal.
 

i. Friending TVROP Students – Employees may not have online interactions with students on social
networking sites outside of those forums dedicated to academic use. TVROP employees’ social
networking profiles and personal blogs may not be linked to TVROP students’ online profiles.
Additionally, TVROP employees should use appropriate discretion when using social networks for
personal communications and must limit this activity to off-duty hours and the use of their own
electronic communication devices.
 

j. Use of TVROP Social Media - Staff members who participate in official TVROP social media platforms
shall adhere to all applicable TVROP policies and regulations, including but not limited to professional
standards related to interactions with students, staff, and the public. Use of official TVROP social media
pages in violation of this policy may result in disciplinary action, up to and including termination of
employment and referral to the appropriate law enforcement agencies. The TVROP may suspend or
terminate user rights for individuals who violate TVROP standards.
 

k. Contacting Students Off-Hours – When in doubt about contacting a TVROP student during off-duty
hours, begin by contacting the student’s parent(s) or legal guardian through their TVROP registered
phone number. TVROP employees should only contact TVROP students for educational purposes and
must never disclose confidential information possessed by the employee by virtue of his or her TVROP
employment.

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the Governing Board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter
of the policy.

StateState DescriptionDescription

Gov. Code 11549.3 Cybersecurity

Gov. Code 3543.1 Rights of employee organizations

Gov. Code 7920.000-7930.170 California Public Records Act

Labor Code 1139 Emergency assistance

Pen. Code 502 Computer crimes; remedies

263

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=11549.3.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=3543.1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayexpandedbranch.xhtml?tocCode=GOV&division=10.&title=1.&part=&chapter=&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&sectionNum=1139.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=502.


Pen. Code 632 Eavesdropping on or recording confidential communications

Veh. Code 23123 Wireless telephones in vehicles

Veh. Code 23123.5 Mobile communication devices; text messaging while driving

Veh. Code 23125 Wireless telephones in school buses

StateState DescriptionDescription

FederalFederal DescriptionDescription

20 USC 7101-7122 Student Support and Academic Enrichment Grants

20 USC 7131 Internet Safety

47 CFR 54.520 Internet safety policy and technology protection measures; E-rate discounts

Management ResourcesManagement Resources DescriptionDescription

California Department of Education Publication Artificial Intelligence: Learning With AI Learning About AI

Court Decision City of San Jose v. Superior Court (2017) 2 Cal.5th 608

Court Decision City of Ontario v. Quon et al. (2010) 000 U.S. 08-1332

Publication Guidelines for AI integration throughout education in the commonwealth of
Virginia

U.S. Department of Education Publication 2024 National Education Technology Plan

USDOE Office of Educational Technology
Publication

Artificial Intelligence and the Future of Teaching and Learning: Insights and
Recommendations, May 2023

Website California Governor’s Office of Emergency Services

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Website Federal Communications Commission

Website American Library Association

Website California Department of Education

Website CSBA

Website U.S. Department of Education

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

0410 Nondiscrimination In District Programs And Activities

0440 District Technology Plan

1113 District And School Websites

1113 District And School Websites

1113-E(1) District And School Websites

1114 District-Sponsored Social Media

1114 District-Sponsored Social Media

1340 Access To District Records

1340 Access To District Records

2121 Superintendent's Contract

3512 Equipment

3580 District Records

3580 District Records

4032 Reasonable Accommodation

264

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=632.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=VEH&sectionNum=23123.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=VEH&sectionNum=23123.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=VEH&sectionNum=23125.
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=(title:20 section:7131 edition:prelim) OR (granuleid:USC-prelim-title20-section7131)&f=treesort&edition=prelim&num=0&jumpTo=true
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-47/chapter-I/subchapter-B/part-54/subpart-F/section-54.520
https://www.cde.ca.gov/ci/pl/documents/cdeairesourcekit.pdf
https://www.lexisnexis.com/clients/CACourts/
https://www.govinfo.gov/#advanced
https://www.education.virginia.gov/media/governorvirginiagov/secretary-of-education/pdf/AI-Education-Guidelines.pdf
https://tech.ed.gov/netp/
https://oet.wp.nnth.dev/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2023/03/ai-future-of-teaching-and-learning-report.pdf
https://www.caloes.ca.gov/
https://legalservices.csba.org/
http://www.fcc.gov
http://www.ala.org
http://www.cde.ca.gov
http://www.csba.org
http://www.ed.gov
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=6W6V2lg758nV8oJ92q8cTQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=2aGCaoK79paENKh3cGC8cg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=4XQaFrGRrecYplusYzJX8iFslshQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=o6imeqslsh96cCbNlv1lkZxjQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=3fxcWyEaRMF3Nxplus6hXIr3A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=jmPHy8NvRKgplusj4QuxTzH1w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=RHzd31LkJhRR4plusQQXGS3SQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=jSQCN8bwEZWEmfVMQ1Y0aw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=iq4sw8gP4uPlJugVHK7Ivw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=nxpdAbdKFGCduW959slshAatQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=v8Zj5sdidsdslsh2Y3CjY6ydw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=gv3pXuGPnNJ4FbkDgiDsRQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=D5p9gmmX6Eny4PVrAplusuD1Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=wHXJgqKo0gTslshhNbh6pB7Lg==


4113.5 Working Remotely

4118 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4119.1 Civil And Legal Rights

4119.11 Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment

4119.11 Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment

4119.21 Professional Standards

4119.21-E(1) Professional Standards

4119.23 Unauthorized Release Of Confidential/Privileged Information

4119.25 Political Activities Of Employees

4119.25 Political Activities Of Employees

4131 Staff Development

4132 Publication Or Creation Of Materials

4136 Nonschool Employment

4213.5 Working Remotely

4218 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4218 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4219.1 Civil And Legal Rights

4219.11 Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment

4219.11 Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment

4219.21 Professional Standards

4219.21-E(1) Professional Standards

4219.23 Unauthorized Release Of Confidential/Privileged Information

4219.25 Political Activities Of Employees

4219.25 Political Activities Of Employees

4231 Staff Development

4232 Publication Or Creation Of Materials

4236 Nonschool Employment

4313.5 Working Remotely

4319.1 Civil And Legal Rights

4319.11 Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment

4319.11 Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment

4319.21 Professional Standards

4319.21-E(1) Professional Standards

4319.23 Unauthorized Release Of Confidential/Privileged Information

4319.25 Political Activities Of Employees

4319.25 Political Activities Of Employees

4331 Staff Development

4332 Publication Or Creation Of Materials

4336 Nonschool Employment

5125 Student Records

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

265

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=Mknaq5T7idr3yLMnzA5Knw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=1Tp9slshj5kdhDwJINtT73TEg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=VM4OHi5Dsjt6IslshWhjsdmUw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=3b3acY8Splus9TnIsJqGQ5Ipw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=Oo0b15z1k166kpNXG9blyA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=Iq7plusYNYEsMA0NaBUDbwO4g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=2PBlsEJtplusjPAXtEplusDka0pQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=K6Tz1opcKl36c4JHUFMmjw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=JRqirRK87JodxnSkSDbTjw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=yLslshnCcplusKYFnScQtYEDtEiw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=rJXg9MUOCQww7zhslshFIwGew==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=yChzI49sqDf58ExkYwveVw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=QUhslshLMFfcfF613gsPozplusJg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=ScseNm0egmpK8FFktm7dQQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=yu3x57CM3Y8jwUPZslshVEWkQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=683CzIQHylCplusRb8zXlK0cg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=p4dIOjvjMJp9z13k9LaKCg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=ryITdCqEQwFplusofDW6KNLYQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=pgHV6TlixEbbwwDBJGYzxA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=LDAv0QjOzcy85e8TxGB8Sg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=Z1DGKLdYAsslshVslshkdCpBpCrA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=ScKQ8Bj5hsiIQUsIEzNBZA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=wzplusAbDotslshj2LG1q484zUug==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=gVAwqiIbU0WZ9kuDQDpGUQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=5lCMdGvgtplusdAslshT5ofNC1Vw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=vNA8CY9zJNbRMUTwgZFhWA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=sxPgdGNEP7JP2GGaojb9hQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=G4WRXd7slshr0slshGrplus8gyg11VA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=UdMRgxlCgslshVrStQNtMplusnYQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=xTNOrzfTU7bd4mw9c4798w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=LjrX32hT4ztAnuMJbL2dpw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=9RrD3wQerk1bnZ5850HICg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=CTx0TjxkyiLX9jLP756gWw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=1iDUp1UFWKCyG7SfHplusCrlA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=MpC0jURofgX6fO2AplusjbD2w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=U1eiTfRisgc1dKUgLjOuhg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=1j7A0V1L3lSneRnAhz7QqA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=WkBTslshXkcJO89btplusrzaSVfw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=YQqyW6ZX1iZfwaOQRGGgMA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=XdGU7vQR1OHwP8slshthnplusfQw==


5125 Student Records

5125.1 Release Of Directory Information

5125.1 Release Of Directory Information

5125.1-E(1) Release Of Directory Information

5131.9 Academic Honesty

6162.6 Use Of Copyrighted Materials

6162.6 Use Of Copyrighted Materials

6163.4 Student Use Of Technology

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

266

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=qHVbTBqazYz4Lw8v9jslshSpg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=kplusBAJzFKTkoTb1g3UahT4w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=3PLMin1ewjxvQRsOBidZnQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=cXJrLCKRVDo4XC5YohlCDg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=ZjMplusaTDQOxslshslsh9IqihIJdCA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=KbjslshZ24kUQ1hnYtPzfegjQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=QuBnSEYF9Vy3qcsBAgVJ7g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=ujb1BNrRypUFVLCsE7fc2g==


Exhibit 4040-E(1): Employee Use Of TechnologyExhibit 4040-E(1): Employee Use Of Technology Status:Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 06/12/2024 | Last Reviewed Date:| Last Reviewed Date: 06/12/2024

ACCEPTABLE USE AGREEMENT
AND RELEASE OF TRI-VALLEY ROP FROM LIABILITY (EMPLOYEES)

Tri-Valley Regional Occupational Program  authorizes Tri-Valley ROP employees to use technology owned or
otherwise provided by the TVROP  as defined in Board Policy 4040 - Employee Use of Technology as necessary to
fulfill the requirements of their position. The use of TVROP technology is a privilege permitted at the TVROP's
discretion and is subject to the conditions and restrictions set forth in applicable Board policies, administrative
regulations, and this Acceptable Use Agreement. The TVROP reserves the right to suspend access at any time,
without notice, for any reason.

The TVROP expects all employees to use technology responsibly in order to avoid potential problems and liability.
The TVROP may place reasonable restrictions on the sites, material, and/or information that employees may access
through the system. However, the district shall not prevent or restrict access to an employee's mobile or other
communications device(s) if there is a need to seek emergency assistance, assess the safety of a situation, or
communicate with a person to confirm the person's safety. 

The TVROP makes no guarantee that the functions or services provided by or through the TVROP will be without
defect. In addition, the TVROP is not responsible for financial obligations arising from unauthorized use of the
system.

Each employee who is authorized to use TVROP technology shall sign this Acceptable Use Agreement as an
indication that he/she has read and understands the agreement.

DefinitionsTVROP technology includes, but is not limited to, computers, the TVROP's computer network including
servers and wireless computer networking technology (wi-fi), the Internet, email, USB drives, wireless access points
(routers), tablet computers, smartphones and smart devices, telephones, cellular telephones, personal digital
assistants, pagers, MP3 players, wearable technology, any wireless communication device including emergency
radios, and/or future technological innovations, whether accessed on or off site or through ROP-owned or personally
owned equipment or devices. 

Employee Obligations and Responsibilities

Employees are expected to use TVROP technology safely, responsibly, and primarily for work-related purposes and
in accordance with the accompanying board policy and applicable copyright laws . Any incidental personal use of
TVROP technology shall not interfere with TVROP business and operations, the work and productivity of any TVROP
employee, or the safety and security of TVROP technology. The TVROP is not responsible for any loss or damage
incurred by an employee as a result of his/her personal use of TVROP technology.

The employee in whose name TVROP technology is issued is responsible for its proper use at all times. Employees
shall not share their assigned online services account information, passwords, or other information used for
identification and authorization purposes, and shall use the system only under the account to which they have been
assigned.

Employees shall not gain unauthorized access to the files or equipment of others, access electronic resources by
using another person's name or electronic identification, or send anonymous electronic communications.
Furthermore, employees shall not attempt to access any data, documents, emails, or programs in the TVROP's
system for which they do not have authorization.

Employees are prohibited from using TVROP technology for improper purposes, including, but not limited to, use of
TVROP technology to:

1. Access, post, display,  create  or otherwise use material that is discriminatory, defamatory, obscene, sexually
explicit, harassing, intimidating, threatening, or disruptive 
 

2. Disclose or in any way cause to be disclosed confidential or sensitive TVROP, employee, or student
information without prior authorization from a supervisor,   including sharing confidential information or
personally identifiable information with an open artificial intelligence system 

Board Policy Manual
Tri-Valley Regional Occupational Program

267



 
3. Engage in personal commercial or other for-profit activities without permission of the Superintendent or

designee
 

4. Engage in unlawful use of TVROP technology for political lobbying
 

5. Infringe on copyright, license, trademark, patent, or other intellectual property rights
 

6. Intentionally disrupt or harm TVROP technology or other TVROP operations (such as destroying TVROP
equipment, placing a virus on TVROP computers, adding or removing a computer program without permission,
changing settings on shared computers)
 

7. Install unauthorized software
 

8. Engage in or promote unethical practices or violate any law or Board policy, administrative regulation, or
TVROP practice

Privacy

Since the use of TVROP technology is intended for use in conducting TVROP business, no employee should have any
expectation of privacy in any use of TVROP technology. 

The TVROP reserves the right to monitor and record all use of TVROP technology, including, but not limited to,
access to the Internet or social media, Internet searches, browsing history, use of artificial intelligence,
communications sent or received from TVROP technology, or other uses within the jurisdiction of the TVROP. Such
monitoring/recording may occur at any time without prior notice for any legal purposes including, but not limited to,
record retention and distribution and/or investigation of improper, illegal, or prohibited activity. Employees should be
aware that, in most instances, their use of TVROP technology (such as web searches or emails) cannot be erased or
deleted.

All passwords created for or used on any TVROP technology are the sole property of the TVROP. The creation or
use of a password by an employee on TVROP technology does not create a reasonable expectation of privacy. 

Personally Owned Devices

If an employee uses a personally owned device to access TVROP technology or conduct TVROP business, he/she
shall abide by all applicable Board policies, administrative regulations, and this Acceptable Use Agreement. Any such
use of a personally owned device may subject the contents of the device and any communications sent or received
on the device to disclosure pursuant to a lawful subpoena or public records request.

Records

Any electronically stored information generated or received by an employee which constitutes a TVROP or student
record shall be classified, retained, and destroyed in accordance with BP/AR 3580 - TVROP Records, BP/AR 5125 -
Student Records, or other applicable policies and regulations addressing the retention of TVROP or student records.

Reporting

If an employee becomes aware of any security problem including, but not limited to, a cyberattack, phishing, or (such
as any compromise of the confidentiality of any login or account information) or misuse of TVROP technology,
he/she shall immediately report such information to the Superintendent or designee.

Consequences for Violation

Violations of the law, Board policy, or this Acceptable Use Agreement may result in revocation of an employee's
access to TVROP technology and/or discipline, up to and including termination. In addition, violations of the law,
Board policy, or this agreement may be reported to law enforcement agencies as appropriate.

Employee Acknowledgment

I have received, read, understand, and agree to abide by this Acceptable Use Agreement, BP 4040 - Employee Use of
Technology, and other applicable laws and TVROP policies and regulations governing the use of TVROP technology. I

268



Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

understand that there is no expectation of privacy when using TVROP technology or when my personal electronic
devices use TVROP technology. I further understand that any violation may result in revocation of user privileges,
disciplinary action, and/or appropriate legal action.

I hereby release the TVROP and its personnel from any and all claims and damages arising from my use of TVROP
technology or from the failure of any technology protection measures employed by the TVROP.

Name: ___________________________________  Position: _________________________
(Please print)

School/Work Site: ___________________________________________________________

Signature: _____________________________________ Date: _______________________

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the Governing Board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter
of the policy.

StateState DescriptionDescription

Gov. Code 11549.3 Cybersecurity

Gov. Code 3543.1 Rights of employee organizations

Gov. Code 7920.000-7930.170 California Public Records Act

Labor Code 1139 Emergency assistance

Pen. Code 502 Computer crimes; remedies

Pen. Code 632 Eavesdropping on or recording confidential communications

Veh. Code 23123 Wireless telephones in vehicles

Veh. Code 23123.5 Mobile communication devices; text messaging while driving

Veh. Code 23125 Wireless telephones in school buses

FederalFederal DescriptionDescription

20 USC 7101-7122 Student Support and Academic Enrichment Grants

20 USC 7131 Internet Safety

47 CFR 54.520 Internet safety policy and technology protection measures; E-rate discounts

Management ResourcesManagement Resources DescriptionDescription

California Department of Education Publication Artificial Intelligence: Learning With AI Learning About AI

Court Decision City of San Jose v. Superior Court (2017) 2 Cal.5th 608

Court Decision City of Ontario v. Quon et al. (2010) 000 U.S. 08-1332

Publication Guidelines for AI integration throughout education in the commonwealth of
Virginia

U.S. Department of Education Publication 2024 National Education Technology Plan

USDOE Office of Educational Technology
Publication

Artificial Intelligence and the Future of Teaching and Learning: Insights and
Recommendations, May 2023

Website California Governor’s Office of Emergency Services

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Website Federal Communications Commission

Website American Library Association

Website California Department of Education

Website CSBA

269

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=11549.3.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=3543.1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayexpandedbranch.xhtml?tocCode=GOV&division=10.&title=1.&part=&chapter=&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&sectionNum=1139.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=502.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=632.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=VEH&sectionNum=23123.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=VEH&sectionNum=23123.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=VEH&sectionNum=23125.
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=(title:20 section:7131 edition:prelim) OR (granuleid:USC-prelim-title20-section7131)&f=treesort&edition=prelim&num=0&jumpTo=true
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-47/chapter-I/subchapter-B/part-54/subpart-F/section-54.520
https://www.cde.ca.gov/ci/pl/documents/cdeairesourcekit.pdf
https://www.lexisnexis.com/clients/CACourts/
https://www.govinfo.gov/#advanced
https://www.education.virginia.gov/media/governorvirginiagov/secretary-of-education/pdf/AI-Education-Guidelines.pdf
https://tech.ed.gov/netp/
https://oet.wp.nnth.dev/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2023/03/ai-future-of-teaching-and-learning-report.pdf
https://www.caloes.ca.gov/
https://legalservices.csba.org/
http://www.fcc.gov
http://www.ala.org
http://www.cde.ca.gov
http://www.csba.org


Website U.S. Department of Education

Management ResourcesManagement Resources DescriptionDescription

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

0410 Nondiscrimination In District Programs And Activities

0440 District Technology Plan

1113 District And School Websites

1113 District And School Websites

1113-E(1) District And School Websites

1114 District-Sponsored Social Media

1114 District-Sponsored Social Media

1340 Access To District Records

1340 Access To District Records

2121 Superintendent's Contract

3512 Equipment

3580 District Records

3580 District Records

4032 Reasonable Accommodation

4113.5 Working Remotely

4118 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4119.1 Civil And Legal Rights

4119.11 Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment

4119.11 Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment

4119.21 Professional Standards

4119.21-E(1) Professional Standards

4119.23 Unauthorized Release Of Confidential/Privileged Information

4119.25 Political Activities Of Employees

4119.25 Political Activities Of Employees

4131 Staff Development

4132 Publication Or Creation Of Materials

4136 Nonschool Employment

4213.5 Working Remotely

4218 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4218 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4219.1 Civil And Legal Rights

4219.11 Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment

4219.11 Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment

4219.21 Professional Standards

4219.21-E(1) Professional Standards

4219.23 Unauthorized Release Of Confidential/Privileged Information

4219.25 Political Activities Of Employees

270

http://www.ed.gov
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=6W6V2lg758nV8oJ92q8cTQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=2aGCaoK79paENKh3cGC8cg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=4XQaFrGRrecYplusYzJX8iFslshQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=o6imeqslsh96cCbNlv1lkZxjQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=3fxcWyEaRMF3Nxplus6hXIr3A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=jmPHy8NvRKgplusj4QuxTzH1w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=RHzd31LkJhRR4plusQQXGS3SQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=jSQCN8bwEZWEmfVMQ1Y0aw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=iq4sw8gP4uPlJugVHK7Ivw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=nxpdAbdKFGCduW959slshAatQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=v8Zj5sdidsdslsh2Y3CjY6ydw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=gv3pXuGPnNJ4FbkDgiDsRQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=D5p9gmmX6Eny4PVrAplusuD1Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=wHXJgqKo0gTslshhNbh6pB7Lg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=Mknaq5T7idr3yLMnzA5Knw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=1Tp9slshj5kdhDwJINtT73TEg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=VM4OHi5Dsjt6IslshWhjsdmUw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=3b3acY8Splus9TnIsJqGQ5Ipw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=Oo0b15z1k166kpNXG9blyA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=Iq7plusYNYEsMA0NaBUDbwO4g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=2PBlsEJtplusjPAXtEplusDka0pQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=K6Tz1opcKl36c4JHUFMmjw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=JRqirRK87JodxnSkSDbTjw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=yLslshnCcplusKYFnScQtYEDtEiw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=rJXg9MUOCQww7zhslshFIwGew==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=yChzI49sqDf58ExkYwveVw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=QUhslshLMFfcfF613gsPozplusJg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=ScseNm0egmpK8FFktm7dQQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=yu3x57CM3Y8jwUPZslshVEWkQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=683CzIQHylCplusRb8zXlK0cg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=p4dIOjvjMJp9z13k9LaKCg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=ryITdCqEQwFplusofDW6KNLYQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=pgHV6TlixEbbwwDBJGYzxA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=LDAv0QjOzcy85e8TxGB8Sg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=Z1DGKLdYAsslshVslshkdCpBpCrA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=ScKQ8Bj5hsiIQUsIEzNBZA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=wzplusAbDotslshj2LG1q484zUug==


4219.25 Political Activities Of Employees

4231 Staff Development

4232 Publication Or Creation Of Materials

4236 Nonschool Employment

4313.5 Working Remotely

4319.1 Civil And Legal Rights

4319.11 Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment

4319.11 Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment

4319.21 Professional Standards

4319.21-E(1) Professional Standards

4319.23 Unauthorized Release Of Confidential/Privileged Information

4319.25 Political Activities Of Employees

4319.25 Political Activities Of Employees

4331 Staff Development

4332 Publication Or Creation Of Materials

4336 Nonschool Employment

5125 Student Records

5125 Student Records

5125.1 Release Of Directory Information

5125.1 Release Of Directory Information

5125.1-E(1) Release Of Directory Information

5131.9 Academic Honesty

6162.6 Use Of Copyrighted Materials

6162.6 Use Of Copyrighted Materials

6163.4 Student Use Of Technology

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

271

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=gVAwqiIbU0WZ9kuDQDpGUQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=5lCMdGvgtplusdAslshT5ofNC1Vw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=vNA8CY9zJNbRMUTwgZFhWA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=sxPgdGNEP7JP2GGaojb9hQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=G4WRXd7slshr0slshGrplus8gyg11VA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=UdMRgxlCgslshVrStQNtMplusnYQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=xTNOrzfTU7bd4mw9c4798w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=LjrX32hT4ztAnuMJbL2dpw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=9RrD3wQerk1bnZ5850HICg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=CTx0TjxkyiLX9jLP756gWw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=1iDUp1UFWKCyG7SfHplusCrlA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=MpC0jURofgX6fO2AplusjbD2w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=U1eiTfRisgc1dKUgLjOuhg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=1j7A0V1L3lSneRnAhz7QqA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=WkBTslshXkcJO89btplusrzaSVfw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=YQqyW6ZX1iZfwaOQRGGgMA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=XdGU7vQR1OHwP8slshthnplusfQw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=qHVbTBqazYz4Lw8v9jslshSpg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=kplusBAJzFKTkoTb1g3UahT4w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=3PLMin1ewjxvQRsOBidZnQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=cXJrLCKRVDo4XC5YohlCDg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=ZjMplusaTDQOxslshslsh9IqihIJdCA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=KbjslshZ24kUQ1hnYtPzfegjQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=QuBnSEYF9Vy3qcsBAgVJ7g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=ujb1BNrRypUFVLCsE7fc2g==


Policy 4251: Employee CompensationPolicy 4251: Employee Compensation Status:Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 06/12/2024 | Last Reviewed Date:| Last Reviewed Date: 06/12/2024

In order to recruit and retain employees committed to the Tri-Valley ROP's goals for student learning, the Governing
Board recognizes the importance of offering a competitive compensation package which includes salaries and health
and welfare benefits.

The Board shall adopt separate salary schedules for certificated, classified, and supervisory and administrative
personnel. These schedules shall comply with law and shall be printed and made available for review at the TVROP
office.  (Education Code 45022, 45023, 45160, 45162, 45268)

Each certificated employee, except an employee in an administrative or supervisory position, shall be classified on
the salary schedule on the basis of uniform allowance for education level and years of experience, unless the Board
upon the recommendation of the Superintendent or designee mutually agree to a salary schedule based on different
criteria. Certificated employees shall not be placed in different classifications on the schedule, nor paid different
salaries, solely on the basis of the grade levels at which they teach.  (Education Code 45028)

Salary schedules for staff shall be determined by the Board at the recommendation of the Superintendent or
designee.

The Board shall determine the frequency and schedule of salary payments in collaboration with fiscal services,
including whether payments for employees who work less than 12 months per year will be made over the course of
the school year or in equal installments over the calendar year.  

In extraordinary circumstances or emergency situations, the Board may determine to continue to compensate
employees during periods of extended closure or disruption of normal TVROP operations when permitted by law

The Superintendent or designee shall post a notice explaining the Fair Labor Standards Act's wage and hour
provisions in a conspicuous place at each work site.  (29 CFR 516.4)

Overtime Compensation

TVROP employees shall be paid an overtime rate of not less than one and one-half times their regular rate of pay for
any hours worked in excess of eight hours in one day and/or 40 hours in one work week, or twice their regular rate
of pay for any hours worked in excess of 12 hours in one day or eight hours on the seventh consecutive day of work.
However, teachers, school administrators, and other employees in positions established by the Board as executive,
administrative, or professional shall be exempt from overtime rules.  (Education Code 45128, 45130; 29 USC 213;
29 CFR 541.0-541.710, 553.27, 553.32)

An employee may take compensatory time off in lieu of overtime compensation, provided the employee has not
accrued compensatory time in excess of the limits specified in 29 USC 207 and has the approval of the
Superintendent or designee. An employee who has requested the use of compensatory time shall be allowed to use
such time within 12 calendar months after making the request if the use of the compensatory time does not unduly
disrupt TVROP operations.  (Education Code 45129; 29 USC 207; 29 CFR 553.20-553.25)

For each nonexempt employee, the Superintendent or designee shall maintain records on the employee's wages,
hours, and other information specified in 29 CFR 516.5-516.6.

Wage Overpayment

If the TVROP determines an employee has been overpaid, the TVROP shall notify the employee in writing of the
overpayment, afford the employee an opportunity to respond before commencing any recoupment actions, and
inform the employee of the employee's rights to dispute the existence or amount of the claimed overpayment. If the
employee agrees there was an overpayment in the claimed amount, reimbursement shall be made to the TVROP
through one of the methods described in Education Code 44042.5 as mutually agreed upon by the employee and the
TVROP.  (Education Code 44042.5)

If a mutual agreement on a method of reimbursement is not reached, within 30 days of the employee verifying the
overpayment amount, the TVROP shall recoup the overpayment through payroll deductions in accordance with
Education Code 44042.5.

Board Policy Manual
Tri-Valley Regional Occupational Program

272



Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

If the employee does not respond or disputes the existence or amount of the TVROP's claimed overpayment, the
TVROP shall, with board approval, initiate a legal action to recover the overpayment.  (Education Code 44042.5)

If the employee separates from the TVROP before the overpayment is fully repaid, the TVROP shall withhold the
remaining balance due from any money owed to the employee upon separation, provided that the state minimum
wage is still paid to the employee as required by Education Code 44042.5. The Superintendent or designee may
consult with legal counsel to calculate the amount to withhold.

If an outstanding overpayment balance still remains, the TVROP may shall, with Board approval, exercise any legal
means to recover the remaining amount owed by the employee.  (Education Code 44042.5)

Legal action to recover any overpayment under this policy shall be initiated within three years from the date of the
overpayment, which for leave credits is the date that the employee receives compensation in exchange for leave
erroneously credited to the employee.  (Education Code 44042.5)

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the Governing Board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter
of the policy.

StateState DescriptionDescription

8 CCR 11040 Wages and hours; definitions of administrative, executive, and professional
employees

Ed. Code 42238.016 Salary and Benefit Schedule for the Bargaining Units (Form J–90

Ed. Code 44042.5 Wage overpayment

Ed. Code 45022-45061.5 Salaries for certificated employees

Ed. Code 45023 Availability of salary schedule

Ed. Code 45028 Salary schedule and exceptions

Ed. Code 45127-45133.5 Classified employees; work week; overtime provisions

Ed. Code 45160-45169 Salaries for classified employees

Ed. Code 45268 Salary schedule for classified service in merit system districts

Ed. Code 45500 Classified School Employee Summer Assistance Program

Gov. Code 3540-3549.3 Meeting and negotiating

Gov. Code 3543.2 Scope of representation

Gov. Code 3543.7 Duty to meet and negotiate in good faith

Lab. Code 226 Employee access to payroll records

Lab. Code 232 Disclosure of wages

Lab. Code 510 Overtime Compensation

FederalFederal DescriptionDescription

26 CFR 1.409A-1 Definitions and covered plans

26 USC 409A Deferred compensation plans

29 CFR 516.4 Notice of minimum wage and overtime provisions

29 CFR 516.5-516.6 Records

29 CFR 541.0-541.710 Exemptions for executive, administrative, and professional employees

29 CFR 553.1-553.51 Fair Labor Standards Act; applicability to public agencies

29 USC 201-219 Fair Labor Standards Act

29 USC 203 Definitions

29 USC 207 Fair Labor Standards Act

273

https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Document/I9410EFF35A0F11EC8227000D3A7C4BC3?viewType=FullText&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default)
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44042.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=3.&title=2.&part=25.&chapter=4.&article=5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45023.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45028.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=3.&title=2.&part=25.&chapter=5.&article=1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=3.&title=2.&part=25.&chapter=5.&article=2.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45268.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=3.&title=2.&part=25.&chapter=5.&article=14.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayexpandedbranch.xhtml?tocCode=GOV&division=4.&title=1.&part=&chapter=10.7.&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=3543.2.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=3543.7.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&sectionNum=226.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&sectionNum=232.
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=(title:26 section:409A edition:prelim) OR (granuleid:USC-prelim-title26-section409A)&f=treesort&edition=prelim&num=0&jumpTo=true
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-29/subtitle-B/chapter-V/subchapter-A/part-516/subpart-A/section-516.4
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-29/subtitle-B/chapter-V/subchapter-A/part-541
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-29/subtitle-B/chapter-V/subchapter-A/part-553/subpart-A
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?path=/prelim@title29/chapter8&edition=prelim
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=(title:29 section:203 edition:prelim) OR (granuleid:USC-prelim-title29-section203)&f=treesort&edition=prelim&num=0&jumpTo=true
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=(title:29 section:207 edition:prelim) OR (granuleid:USC-prelim-title29-section207)&f=treesort&edition=prelim&num=0&jumpTo=true


29 USC 213 Exemptions from minimum wage and overtime requirements

FederalFederal DescriptionDescription

Management ResourcesManagement Resources DescriptionDescription

Court Decision Johnson v. Arvin-Edison Water Storage District (2009) 174 Cal.App.4th 729

Court Decision Flores v. City of San Gabriel (9th Cir., 2016) 824 F.3d 890

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Website U.S. Department of Labor, Wage and Hour Division

Website Internal Revenue Service

Website School Services of California, Inc.

Website California Department of Education

Website CSBA

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

3100 Budget

3100 Budget

3400 Management Of District Assets/Accounts

3400 Management Of District Assets/Accounts

3580 District Records

3580 District Records

4000 Concepts And Roles

4030 Nondiscrimination In Employment

4030 Nondiscrimination In Employment

4112.6 Personnel Files

4113.5 Working Remotely

4154 Health And Welfare Benefits

4154 Health And Welfare Benefits

4212 Appointment And Conditions Of Employment

4212.6 Personnel Files

4213.5 Working Remotely

4254 Health And Welfare Benefits

4254 Health And Welfare Benefits

4312.1 Contracts

4312.6 Personnel Files

4313.5 Working Remotely

4354 Health And Welfare Benefits

4354 Health And Welfare Benefits

6115 Ceremonies And Observances

6115 Ceremonies And Observances

274

https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=(title:29 section:213 edition:prelim) OR (granuleid:USC-prelim-title29-section213)&f=treesort&edition=prelim&num=0&jumpTo=true
https://www.govinfo.gov/#advanced
https://legalservices.csba.org/
https://www.dol.gov/whd
http://www.irs.gov
http://www.sscal.com
http://www.cde.ca.gov
http://www.csba.org
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=seARW4wQslshzopsjDuoWaVbQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=n7mn4plus0iIANMqaD0dBAnWQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=kc5pfMVSMAGz96iUmVeLjA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=MKPhzLOFiYBe4FzKvxYKTA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=gv3pXuGPnNJ4FbkDgiDsRQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=D5p9gmmX6Eny4PVrAplusuD1Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=lpluswh81dInFMPpMUHdYspTA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=2ovdieL0Ca2E77pjgdCxbQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=hVUoMslsheBJ5ZE83WBcJPBnA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=ACXnZXJCZETJ0odq50Zlow==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=Mknaq5T7idr3yLMnzA5Knw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=4GxGihOi5aPNCZBPrE05eg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=ZslshkslshkPVsZ4NTWe8xrvcqbQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=UplusST1CzqvBybogqBucDl5g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=cuCsDI5vt9ZrBUJxw3wSSQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=ScseNm0egmpK8FFktm7dQQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=Gpa7E7HplusdG4iOMJUnDp3EA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=b8aplusiZI0c3lEaobHe9uKQQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=FAwvCqTn40UAvEcENmlvXA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=xfD9FuXCdapZkeW3nMQsiA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=G4WRXd7slshr0slshGrplus8gyg11VA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=F40FjJcSAGVdMEARslsh9tBkg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=b3MoED9fJaj0ddMuf2O9Lw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=CSH8gFESkRZ0HJwXkLfLVA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=f5CJcfWCX9FLYplusItxdemBA==


Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

Policy 4258: Employee SecurityPolicy 4258: Employee Security Status:Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 06/12/2024 | Last Reviewed Date:| Last Reviewed Date: 06/12/2024

The Governing Board desires to provide a safe and orderly work environment for all employees.  The Superintendent
or designee shall develop strategies for protecting employees from potentially dangerous persons and situations and
for providing necessary assistance and support when emergency situations occur.

Any person who threatens the safety of others at any Member Tri-Valley ROP facility may be removed by
the Member District/TVROP Superintendent or designee in accordance with AR 3515.2 - Disruptions.

Any employee against whom violence or any threat of violence has been directed in the workplace shall notify the
Member District/TVROP Superintendent or designee immediately. As appropriate, the Member District/TVROP 
Superintendent or designee shall initiate legal and security measures to protect the employee and others in the
workplace.  Such measures may include seeking a temporary restraining order on behalf of the employee pursuant to
Code of Civil Procedure 527.8 and/or a gun violence restraining order pursuant to Penal Code 18150 and 18170.

Upon request by an employee who is a victim of domestic violence, sexual assault, or stalking, the Member
District/TVROP Superintendent or designee shall provide reasonable accommodations in accordance with Labor
Code 230-230.1 and the accompanying administrative regulation to protect the employee's safety while at work.

The Member District/TVROP Superintendent or designee may pursue legal action on behalf of an employee against
a student or the student's parent/guardian to recover damages for injury to the employee's person or property
caused by the student's willful misconduct that occurred on TVROP property, at a school or TVROP activity, or in
retaliation for lawful acts of the employee in the performance of the employee's duties.  (Education Code 48904,
48905)

The Member District/TVROP  Superintendent or designee shall provide staff development in crisis prevention and
intervention techniques, which may include training in classroom management, effective communication techniques,
procedures for responding to an active shooter situation, and crisis resolution.

The Member District/TVROP  Superintendent or designee may make available at appropriate locations, including, but
not limited to, TVROP and school offices, gyms, and classrooms, communication devices that would enable two-way
communication with law enforcement and others when emergencies occur.

Use of Pepper Spray

Employees shall not carry or possess pepper spray on school property or at school activities except when authorized
by the Superintendent or designee for self-defense purposes.  When allowed, an employee may only possess pepper
spray in accordance with administrative regulations and Penal Code 22810.  Any employee who is negligent or
careless in the possession or handling of pepper spray  is acting outside of the scope of employment and  shall be
subject to appropriate disciplinary measures.

Reporting of Injurious Objects

Employees shall take immediate action upon being made aware that any person is in possession of a weapon or
unauthorized injurious object on school grounds or at a school-related or school-sponsored activity.  Employees shall
exercise their best judgment as to the potential danger involved and shall do one of the following:

1. Confiscate the object and deliver it to the principal or administrator designee immediately
 

2. Immediately notify the principal or administrator designee , who shall take appropriate action
 

3. Immediately call 911 and the principal or administrator designee 

When informing the principal or administrator designee  about the possession or seizure of a weapon or dangerous
device, an employee shall report the name(s) of persons involved, witnesses, location, and the circumstances of any
seizure.

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the Governing Board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter

Board Policy Manual
Tri-Valley Regional Occupational Program

275



of the policy.

StateState DescriptionDescription

Civ. Code 51.7 Freedom from violence or intimidation

Code of Civil Procedure 527.8 Workplace violence safety

Ed. Code 32210-32212 Willful disturbance; public schools or meetings

Ed. Code 32225-32226 Communications devices in classrooms

Ed. Code 32282 School safety plans

Ed. Code 32289.6 Best practices pertaining to school shooter drills

Ed. Code 35208 Liability insurance

Ed. Code 35213 Reimbursement for loss or damage of personal property

Ed. Code 44014 Report of assault by student against school employee

Ed. Code 44807 Teachers' duty concerning conduct of students

Ed. Code 48201 Transfer student's record for acts that resulted in suspension or expulsion

Ed. Code 48900-48926 Suspension and expulsion

Ed. Code 49079 Notification to teacher; student who has engaged in acts regarding grounds
for suspension or expulsion

Ed. Code 49330-49335 Injurious objects

Gov. Code 12926 Definitions

Gov. Code 12945.8 Employee accommodations for domestic violence, sexual assault, stalking,
and other qualifying acts of violence

Gov. Code 3543.2 Scope of representation

Gov. Code 995-996.4 Defense of public employees

Lab. Code 230-230.2 Leaves for victims of domestic violence, sexual assault or specified felonies

Pen. Code 18150 Gun violence restraining orders

Pen. Code 18170 Gun violence restraining order issued after notice and hearing

Pen. Code 22810 Purchase, possession, and use of tear gas

Pen. Code 240-246.3 Assault and battery

Pen. Code 241.3 Assault against school bus drivers

Pen. Code 241.6 Assault on school employee including board member

Pen. Code 243.3 Battery against school bus drivers

Pen. Code 243.6 Battery against school employee including board members

Pen. Code 245.5 Assault with deadly weapon against school employee including board
member

Pen. Code 290 Registration of sex offenders

Pen. Code 601 Trespass by person making credible threat

Pen. Code 626-626.11 Weapons on school grounds and other school crimes

Pen. Code 646.9 Stalking

Pen. Code 71 Threatening public officers and employees and school officials

W&I Code 827 Limited exception to juvenile court record

W&I Code 828.1 District police or security department; disclosure of juvenile records

FederalFederal DescriptionDescription

276

http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=51.7.&lawCode=CIV
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=527.8.&lawCode=CCP
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=1.&title=1.&part=19.&chapter=2.&article=2.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=1.&title=1.&part=19.&chapter=2.&article=3.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=35208.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=35213.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44014.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44807.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48201.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=27.&chapter=6.&article=1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49079.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=27.&chapter=8.&article=3.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=12926.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=3543.2.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&division=3.6.&title=1.&part=7.&chapter=&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&division=2.&title=&part=1.&chapter=1.&article=1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=18150.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=18170.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=22810.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&division=&title=8.&part=1.&chapter=9.&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=241.3.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=241.6.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=243.3.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=243.6.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=245.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=290.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=601.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&division=&title=15.&part=1.&chapter=1.&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=646.9.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=71.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=WIC&sectionNum=827.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=WIC&sectionNum=828.1.


Executive Order 14127 Combating Emerging Firearms Threats and Improving School-Based Active
Shooter Drills, September 2024

FederalFederal DescriptionDescription

Management ResourcesManagement Resources DescriptionDescription

Court Decision City of San Jose v. William Garbett (2010) 190 Cal. App. 4th 526

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Website California Department of Education, Safe Schools

Website CSBA

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

1313 Civility

3320 Claims And Actions Against The District

3515 Campus Security

3515.2 Disruptions

3515.2 Disruptions

3515.4 Recovery For Property Loss Or Damage

3515.4 Recovery For Property Loss Or Damage

3515.7 Firearms On School Grounds

3530 Risk Management/Insurance

3530 Risk Management/Insurance

4112.9 Employee Notifications

4118 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4119.21 Professional Standards

4119.21-E(1) Professional Standards

4131 Staff Development

4156.3 Employee Property Reimbursement

4157 Employee Safety

4157 Employee Safety

4161 Leaves

4161 Leaves

4161.1 Personal Illness/Injury Leave

4161.2 Personal Leaves

4161.8 Family Care And Medical Leave

4212.9 Employee Notifications

4218 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4218 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4219.21 Professional Standards

4219.21-E(1) Professional Standards

4231 Staff Development

4256.3 Employee Property Reimbursement

4257 Employee Safety

277

https://www.federalregister.gov/documents/2024/10/02/2024-22938/combating-emerging-firearms-threats-and-improving-school-based-active-shooter-drills
https://www.lexisnexis.com/clients/CACourts/
https://legalservices.csba.org/
http://www.cde.ca.gov/ls/ss
http://www.csba.org
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=0xhGErAek3pluswfAdZEDjbjA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=Hslsh8QfXk1IyvivYG2zkywGg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=SXnOLI5H4DBGvUbNpDHPplusg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=elQZvVQIxN53sQUGZHFWxw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=AmkvYJvplus0LIx8B9qZrcGKg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=gcXDGWKU3g18gLlslshdb4FFw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=PMDh6qK65DRoI510J1iTVA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=MzHiSplusjDfbIFnTp3QstGPA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=rQwNVoa15CFjfybxG5kmHw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=LsrHkHBufIrDkDZYMK0Whw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=UPLY66bgXFiDbbG0J9LmOw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=1Tp9slshj5kdhDwJINtT73TEg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=Iq7plusYNYEsMA0NaBUDbwO4g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=2PBlsEJtplusjPAXtEplusDka0pQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=rJXg9MUOCQww7zhslshFIwGew==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=l7ipNplusEr2DV0jUH1lGslshgvQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=rqlotLF0Ek416iOp9tcT1Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=CQeVhwfV6Hpluswz1DyPN2FHA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=3IXCwpwOiIQ6PHjpluseISQwg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=lbU0xDcmamxbYhplusR1ICddw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=jeORgvPMZLHB0NJxt7F0Cw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=QplusplusNXSoSjuijslshsC4e8FlOA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=oEDWiyj6IOrCzCpuFfYVmg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=o8tvtjB1XsVSVK8UqCj2CA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=yu3x57CM3Y8jwUPZslshVEWkQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=683CzIQHylCplusRb8zXlK0cg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=LDAv0QjOzcy85e8TxGB8Sg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=Z1DGKLdYAsslshVslshkdCpBpCrA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=5lCMdGvgtplusdAslshT5ofNC1Vw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=7pwofEVArp8B7exp54Njdw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=tZWgyrb6zyraVWplusBVjq24Q==


4257 Employee Safety

4261 Leaves

4261 Leaves

4261.1 Personal Illness/Injury Leave

4261.2 Personal Leaves

4261.8 Family Care And Medical Leave

4312.9 Employee Notifications

4319.21 Professional Standards

4319.21-E(1) Professional Standards

4331 Staff Development

4356.3 Employee Property Reimbursement

4357 Employee Safety

4357 Employee Safety

4361 Leaves

4361 Leaves

4361.1 Personal Illness/Injury Leave

4361.2 Personal Leaves

4361.8 Family Care And Medical Leave

5125 Student Records

5125 Student Records

5125.2 Withholding Grades, Diploma Or Transcripts

5131.4 Student Disturbances

5131.7 Weapons And Dangerous Instruments

5131.7 Weapons And Dangerous Instruments

5141 Health Care And Emergencies

5141 Health Care And Emergencies

5144 Discipline

5144.1 Suspension And Expulsion/Due Process

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

278

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=vIICAzwkoXtbyiEZVEMnIA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=plusu0WBwOFxuQVfaY7XXedjg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=smOqeBIxRp2N7EOYjslshrgbA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=wxjZFDOCUfih4CvTrhNSmw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=jHOw4ELJjplusTbL0I1keW3plusQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=oCjU73CODC9A1F3Vzg9jFg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=NFrhdOjtDj0tmEsjPQhXpQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=9RrD3wQerk1bnZ5850HICg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=CTx0TjxkyiLX9jLP756gWw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=1j7A0V1L3lSneRnAhz7QqA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=z75EJ3LSJKZL1532nNT41g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=B9JkEYCSMjtIHiKpLpgvSg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=Rt6v5E24B7oQyGn7jvpF5g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=TC1tVBwIUJb3eFovmGTsVA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=mr2qlTw8ZZyjxWBUqSDkOQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=1zfBg1A4DL6zC2i9LyEKfw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=ECrzWXofCX09TPKGSwPh3Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=UjSV998j1rh7WoG602qiRw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=XdGU7vQR1OHwP8slshthnplusfQw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=qHVbTBqazYz4Lw8v9jslshSpg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=M77ybQTyVNiMEfNcI7oFlQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=slshDY4P9nEeCkdcccslshIbwosA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=BHSMhQ1McXTWCpUjmLNAsQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=Hizgm2ULiD1AwbcZhCkN6w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=F7Zplus4Umpr2hMy42UslshnrwGg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=fBNnJuPUPNxvaoQplus8SeLyw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=9QZ1JPrlEItuplustwpYNq9kw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=whXbDdMOHQCGVkhRRVsdiw==


Policy 4351: Employee CompensationPolicy 4351: Employee Compensation Status:Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 06/12/2024 | Last Reviewed Date:| Last Reviewed Date: 06/12/2024

In order to recruit and retain employees committed to the TVROP's goals for student learning, the Governing Board
recognizes the importance of offering a competitive compensation package which includes salaries and health and
welfare benefits.

The Board shall adopt separate salary schedules for certificated, classified, and supervisory and administrative
personnel. These schedules shall comply with law and shall be printed and made available for review at the TVROP
office.  (Education Code 45022, 45023, 45160, 45162, 45268)

Each certificated employee, except an employee in an administrative or supervisory position, shall be classified on
the salary schedule on the basis of uniform allowance for education level and years of experience, unless the Board
upon the recommendation of the Superintendent or designee mutually agree to a salary schedule based on different
criteria. Certificated employees shall not be placed in different classifications on the schedule, nor paid different
salaries, solely on the basis of the grade levels at which they teach.  (Education Code 45028)

Salary schedules for staff shall be determined by the Board at the recommendation of the Superintendent or
designee.

The Board shall determine the frequency and schedule of salary payments in collaboration with fiscal services,
including whether payments for employees who work less than 12 months per year will be made over the course of
the school year or in equal installments over the calendar year.  

In extraordinary circumstances or emergency situations, the Board may determine to continue to compensate
employees during periods of extended closure or disruption of normal TVROP operations when permitted by law

The Superintendent or designee shall post a notice explaining the Fair Labor Standards Act's wage and hour
provisions in a conspicuous place at each work site.  (29 CFR 516.4)

Overtime Compensation

TVROP employees shall be paid an overtime rate of not less than one and one-half times their regular rate of pay for
any hours worked in excess of eight hours in one day and/or 40 hours in one work week, or twice their regular rate
of pay for any hours worked in excess of 12 hours in one day or eight hours on the seventh consecutive day of work.
However, teachers, school administrators, and other employees in positions established by the Board as executive,
administrative, or professional shall be exempt from overtime rules.  (Education Code 45128, 45130; 29 USC 213;
29 CFR 541.0-541.710, 553.27, 553.32)

An employee may take compensatory time off in lieu of overtime compensation, provided the employee has not
accrued compensatory time in excess of the limits specified in 29 USC 207 and has the approval of the
Superintendent or designee. An employee who has requested the use of compensatory time shall be allowed to use
such time within 12 calendar months after making the request if the use of the compensatory time does not unduly
disrupt TVROP operations.  (Education Code 45129; 29 USC 207; 29 CFR 553.20-553.25)

For each nonexempt employee, the Superintendent or designee shall maintain records on the employee's wages,
hours, and other information specified in 29 CFR 516.5-516.6.

Wage Overpayment

If the TVROP determines an employee has been overpaid, the TVROP shall notify the employee in writing of the
overpayment, afford the employee an opportunity to respond before commencing any recoupment actions, and
inform the employee of the employee's rights to dispute the existence or amount of the claimed overpayment. If the
employee agrees there was an overpayment in the claimed amount, reimbursement shall be made to the TVROP
through one of the methods described in Education Code 44042.5 as mutually agreed upon by the employee and the
TVROP.  (Education Code 44042.5)

If a mutual agreement on a method of reimbursement is not reached, within 30 days of the employee verifying the
overpayment amount, the TVROP shall recoup the overpayment through payroll deductions in accordance with
Education Code 44042.5.

Board Policy Manual
Tri-Valley Regional Occupational Program

279



Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

If the employee does not respond or disputes the existence or amount of the TVROP's claimed overpayment, the
TVROP shall, with board approval, initiate a legal action to recover the overpayment.  (Education Code 44042.5)

If the employee separates from the TVROP before the overpayment is fully repaid, the TVROP shall withhold the
remaining balance due from any money owed to the employee upon separation, provided that the state minimum
wage is still paid to the employee as required by Education Code 44042.5. The Superintendent or designee may
consult with legal counsel to calculate the amount to withhold.

If an outstanding overpayment balance still remains, the TVROP shall, with Board approval, exercise any legal means
to recover the remaining amount owed by the employee.  (Education Code 44042.5)

Legal action to recover any overpayment under this policy shall be initiated within three years from the date of the
overpayment, which for leave credits is the date that the employee receives compensation in exchange for leave
erroneously credited to the employee.  (Education Code 44042.5)

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the Governing Board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter
of the policy.

StateState DescriptionDescription

8 CCR 11040 Wages and hours; definitions of administrative, executive, and professional
employees

Ed. Code 42238.016 Salary and Benefit Schedule for the Bargaining Units (Form J–90

Ed. Code 44042.5 Wage overpayment

Ed. Code 45022-45061.5 Salaries for certificated employees

Ed. Code 45023 Availability of salary schedule

Ed. Code 45028 Salary schedule and exceptions

Ed. Code 45127-45133.5 Classified employees; work week; overtime provisions

Ed. Code 45160-45169 Salaries for classified employees

Ed. Code 45268 Salary schedule for classified service in merit system districts

Ed. Code 45500 Classified School Employee Summer Assistance Program

Gov. Code 3540-3549.3 Meeting and negotiating

Gov. Code 3543.2 Scope of representation

Gov. Code 3543.7 Duty to meet and negotiate in good faith

Lab. Code 226 Employee access to payroll records

Lab. Code 232 Disclosure of wages

Lab. Code 510 Overtime Compensation

FederalFederal DescriptionDescription

26 CFR 1.409A-1 Definitions and covered plans

26 USC 409A Deferred compensation plans

29 CFR 516.4 Notice of minimum wage and overtime provisions

29 CFR 516.5-516.6 Records

29 CFR 541.0-541.710 Exemptions for executive, administrative, and professional employees

29 CFR 553.1-553.51 Fair Labor Standards Act; applicability to public agencies

29 USC 201-219 Fair Labor Standards Act

29 USC 203 Definitions

29 USC 207 Fair Labor Standards Act

280

https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Document/I9410EFF35A0F11EC8227000D3A7C4BC3?viewType=FullText&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default)
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44042.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=3.&title=2.&part=25.&chapter=4.&article=5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45023.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45028.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=3.&title=2.&part=25.&chapter=5.&article=1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=3.&title=2.&part=25.&chapter=5.&article=2.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45268.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=3.&title=2.&part=25.&chapter=5.&article=14.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayexpandedbranch.xhtml?tocCode=GOV&division=4.&title=1.&part=&chapter=10.7.&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=3543.2.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=3543.7.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&sectionNum=226.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&sectionNum=232.
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=(title:26 section:409A edition:prelim) OR (granuleid:USC-prelim-title26-section409A)&f=treesort&edition=prelim&num=0&jumpTo=true
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-29/subtitle-B/chapter-V/subchapter-A/part-516/subpart-A/section-516.4
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-29/subtitle-B/chapter-V/subchapter-A/part-541
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-29/subtitle-B/chapter-V/subchapter-A/part-553/subpart-A
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?path=/prelim@title29/chapter8&edition=prelim
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=(title:29 section:203 edition:prelim) OR (granuleid:USC-prelim-title29-section203)&f=treesort&edition=prelim&num=0&jumpTo=true
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=(title:29 section:207 edition:prelim) OR (granuleid:USC-prelim-title29-section207)&f=treesort&edition=prelim&num=0&jumpTo=true


29 USC 213 Exemptions from minimum wage and overtime requirements

FederalFederal DescriptionDescription

Management ResourcesManagement Resources DescriptionDescription

Court Decision Johnson v. Arvin-Edison Water Storage District (2009) 174 Cal.App.4th 729

Court Decision Flores v. City of San Gabriel (9th Cir., 2016) 824 F.3d 890

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Website U.S. Department of Labor, Wage and Hour Division

Website Internal Revenue Service

Website School Services of California, Inc.

Website California Department of Education

Website CSBA

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

3100 Budget

3100 Budget

3400 Management Of District Assets/Accounts

3400 Management Of District Assets/Accounts

3580 District Records

3580 District Records

4000 Concepts And Roles

4030 Nondiscrimination In Employment

4030 Nondiscrimination In Employment

4112.6 Personnel Files

4113.5 Working Remotely

4154 Health And Welfare Benefits

4154 Health And Welfare Benefits

4212 Appointment And Conditions Of Employment

4212.6 Personnel Files

4213.5 Working Remotely

4254 Health And Welfare Benefits

4254 Health And Welfare Benefits

4312.1 Contracts

4312.6 Personnel Files

4313.5 Working Remotely

4354 Health And Welfare Benefits

4354 Health And Welfare Benefits

6115 Ceremonies And Observances

6115 Ceremonies And Observances

281

https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=(title:29 section:213 edition:prelim) OR (granuleid:USC-prelim-title29-section213)&f=treesort&edition=prelim&num=0&jumpTo=true
https://www.govinfo.gov/#advanced
https://legalservices.csba.org/
https://www.dol.gov/whd
http://www.irs.gov
http://www.sscal.com
http://www.cde.ca.gov
http://www.csba.org
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=seARW4wQslshzopsjDuoWaVbQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=n7mn4plus0iIANMqaD0dBAnWQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=kc5pfMVSMAGz96iUmVeLjA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=MKPhzLOFiYBe4FzKvxYKTA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=gv3pXuGPnNJ4FbkDgiDsRQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=D5p9gmmX6Eny4PVrAplusuD1Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=lpluswh81dInFMPpMUHdYspTA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=2ovdieL0Ca2E77pjgdCxbQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=hVUoMslsheBJ5ZE83WBcJPBnA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=ACXnZXJCZETJ0odq50Zlow==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=Mknaq5T7idr3yLMnzA5Knw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=4GxGihOi5aPNCZBPrE05eg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=ZslshkslshkPVsZ4NTWe8xrvcqbQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=UplusST1CzqvBybogqBucDl5g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=cuCsDI5vt9ZrBUJxw3wSSQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=ScseNm0egmpK8FFktm7dQQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=Gpa7E7HplusdG4iOMJUnDp3EA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=b8aplusiZI0c3lEaobHe9uKQQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=FAwvCqTn40UAvEcENmlvXA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=xfD9FuXCdapZkeW3nMQsiA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=G4WRXd7slshr0slshGrplus8gyg11VA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=F40FjJcSAGVdMEARslsh9tBkg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=b3MoED9fJaj0ddMuf2O9Lw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=CSH8gFESkRZ0HJwXkLfLVA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=f5CJcfWCX9FLYplusItxdemBA==


Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

Policy 4358: Employee SecurityPolicy 4358: Employee Security Status:Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 06/12/2024 | Last Reviewed Date:| Last Reviewed Date: 06/12/2024

The Governing Board desires to provide a safe and orderly work environment for all employees.  The Superintendent
or designee shall develop strategies for protecting employees from potentially dangerous persons and situations and
for providing necessary assistance and support when emergency situations occur.

Any person who threatens the safety of others at any Member district facility may be removed by the Member
district/TVROP Superintendent or designee in accordance with AR 3515.2 - Disruptions.

Any employee against whom violence or any threat of violence has been directed in the workplace shall notify the
Member district/TVROP Superintendent or designee immediately. As appropriate, the Member district/TVROP 
Superintendent or designee shall initiate legal and security measures to protect the employee and others in the
workplace.  Such measures may include seeking a temporary restraining order on behalf of the employee pursuant to
Code of Civil Procedure 527.8 and/or a gun violence restraining order pursuant to Penal Code 18150 and 18170.

Upon request by an employee who is a victim of domestic violence, sexual assault, or stalking, the Member
district/TVROP Superintendent or designee shall provide reasonable accommodations in accordance with Labor
Code 230-230.1 and the accompanying administrative regulation to protect the employee's safety while at work.

The Member district/TVROP Superintendent or designee may pursue legal action on behalf of an employee against a
student or the student's parent/guardian to recover damages for injury to the employee's person or property caused
by the student's willful misconduct that occurred on TVROP property, at a school or TVROP activity, or in retaliation
for lawful acts of the employee in the performance of the employee's duties.  (Education Code 48904, 48905)

The Member district/TVROP  Superintendent or designee shall provide staff development in crisis prevention and
intervention techniques, which may include training in classroom management, effective communication techniques,
procedures for responding to an active shooter situation, and crisis resolution.

The Member district/TVROP  Superintendent or designee may make available at appropriate locations, including, but
not limited to, TVROP and school offices, gyms, and classrooms, communication devices that would enable two-way
communication with law enforcement and others when emergencies occur.

Use of Pepper Spray

Employees shall not carry or possess pepper spray on school property or at school activities except when authorized
by the Superintendent or designee for self-defense purposes.  When allowed, an employee may only possess pepper
spray in accordance with  Board policy, administrative regulations and Penal Code 22810.  Any employee who is
negligent or careless in the possession or handling of pepper spray is acting outside of the scope of
employment  and shall be subject to appropriate disciplinary measures.

Reporting of Injurious Objects

Employees shall take immediate action upon being made aware that any person is in possession of a weapon or
unauthorized injurious object on school grounds or at a school-related or school-sponsored activity.  Employees shall
exercise their best judgment as to the potential danger involved and shall do one of the following:

1. Confiscate the object and deliver it to the principal or administrator designee immediately
 

2. Immediately notify the principal or administrator designee , who shall take appropriate action
 

3. Immediately call 911 and the principal or administrator designee 

When informing the principal or administrator designee about the possession or seizure of a weapon or dangerous
device, an employee shall report the name(s) of persons involved, witnesses, location, and the circumstances of any
seizure.

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the Governing Board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter
of the policy.

Board Policy Manual
Tri-Valley Regional Occupational Program

282



StateState DescriptionDescription

Civ. Code 51.7 Freedom from violence or intimidation

Code of Civil Procedure 527.8 Workplace violence safety

Ed. Code 32210-32212 Willful disturbance; public schools or meetings

Ed. Code 32225-32226 Communications devices in classrooms

Ed. Code 32282 School safety plans

Ed. Code 32289.6 Best practices pertaining to school shooter drills

Ed. Code 35208 Liability insurance

Ed. Code 35213 Reimbursement for loss or damage of personal property

Ed. Code 44014 Report of assault by student against school employee

Ed. Code 44807 Teachers' duty concerning conduct of students

Ed. Code 48201 Transfer student's record for acts that resulted in suspension or expulsion

Ed. Code 48900-48926 Suspension and expulsion

Ed. Code 49079 Notification to teacher; student who has engaged in acts regarding grounds
for suspension or expulsion

Ed. Code 49330-49335 Injurious objects

Gov. Code 12926 Definitions

Gov. Code 12945.8 Employee accommodations for domestic violence, sexual assault, stalking,
and other qualifying acts of violence

Gov. Code 3543.2 Scope of representation

Gov. Code 995-996.4 Defense of public employees

Lab. Code 230-230.2 Leaves for victims of domestic violence, sexual assault or specified felonies

Pen. Code 18150 Gun violence restraining orders

Pen. Code 18170 Gun violence restraining order issued after notice and hearing

Pen. Code 22810 Purchase, possession, and use of tear gas

Pen. Code 240-246.3 Assault and battery

Pen. Code 241.3 Assault against school bus drivers

Pen. Code 241.6 Assault on school employee including board member

Pen. Code 243.3 Battery against school bus drivers

Pen. Code 243.6 Battery against school employee including board members

Pen. Code 245.5 Assault with deadly weapon against school employee including board
member

Pen. Code 290 Registration of sex offenders

Pen. Code 601 Trespass by person making credible threat

Pen. Code 626-626.11 Weapons on school grounds and other school crimes

Pen. Code 646.9 Stalking

Pen. Code 71 Threatening public officers and employees and school officials

W&I Code 827 Limited exception to juvenile court record

W&I Code 828.1 District police or security department; disclosure of juvenile records

FederalFederal DescriptionDescription

Executive Order 14127 Combating Emerging Firearms Threats and Improving School-Based Active
Shooter Drills, September 2024

283

http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=51.7.&lawCode=CIV
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=527.8.&lawCode=CCP
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=1.&title=1.&part=19.&chapter=2.&article=2.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=1.&title=1.&part=19.&chapter=2.&article=3.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=35208.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=35213.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44014.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44807.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48201.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=27.&chapter=6.&article=1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49079.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=27.&chapter=8.&article=3.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=12926.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=3543.2.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&division=3.6.&title=1.&part=7.&chapter=&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&division=2.&title=&part=1.&chapter=1.&article=1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=18150.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=18170.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=22810.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&division=&title=8.&part=1.&chapter=9.&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=241.3.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=241.6.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=243.3.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=243.6.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=245.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=290.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=601.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&division=&title=15.&part=1.&chapter=1.&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=646.9.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=71.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=WIC&sectionNum=827.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=WIC&sectionNum=828.1.
https://www.federalregister.gov/documents/2024/10/02/2024-22938/combating-emerging-firearms-threats-and-improving-school-based-active-shooter-drills


Management ResourcesManagement Resources DescriptionDescription

Court Decision City of San Jose v. William Garbett (2010) 190 Cal. App. 4th 526

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Website California Department of Education, Safe Schools

Website CSBA

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

1313 Civility

3320 Claims And Actions Against The District

3515 Campus Security

3515.2 Disruptions

3515.2 Disruptions

3515.4 Recovery For Property Loss Or Damage

3515.4 Recovery For Property Loss Or Damage

3515.7 Firearms On School Grounds

3530 Risk Management/Insurance

3530 Risk Management/Insurance

4112.9 Employee Notifications

4118 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4119.21 Professional Standards

4119.21-E(1) Professional Standards

4131 Staff Development

4156.3 Employee Property Reimbursement

4157 Employee Safety

4157 Employee Safety

4161 Leaves

4161 Leaves

4161.1 Personal Illness/Injury Leave

4161.2 Personal Leaves

4161.8 Family Care And Medical Leave

4212.9 Employee Notifications

4218 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4218 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4219.21 Professional Standards

4219.21-E(1) Professional Standards

4231 Staff Development

4256.3 Employee Property Reimbursement

4257 Employee Safety

4257 Employee Safety

4261 Leaves

4261 Leaves

284

https://www.lexisnexis.com/clients/CACourts/
https://legalservices.csba.org/
http://www.cde.ca.gov/ls/ss
http://www.csba.org
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=0xhGErAek3pluswfAdZEDjbjA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=Hslsh8QfXk1IyvivYG2zkywGg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=SXnOLI5H4DBGvUbNpDHPplusg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=elQZvVQIxN53sQUGZHFWxw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=AmkvYJvplus0LIx8B9qZrcGKg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=gcXDGWKU3g18gLlslshdb4FFw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=PMDh6qK65DRoI510J1iTVA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=MzHiSplusjDfbIFnTp3QstGPA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=rQwNVoa15CFjfybxG5kmHw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=LsrHkHBufIrDkDZYMK0Whw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=UPLY66bgXFiDbbG0J9LmOw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=1Tp9slshj5kdhDwJINtT73TEg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=Iq7plusYNYEsMA0NaBUDbwO4g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=2PBlsEJtplusjPAXtEplusDka0pQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=rJXg9MUOCQww7zhslshFIwGew==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=l7ipNplusEr2DV0jUH1lGslshgvQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=rqlotLF0Ek416iOp9tcT1Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=CQeVhwfV6Hpluswz1DyPN2FHA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=3IXCwpwOiIQ6PHjpluseISQwg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=lbU0xDcmamxbYhplusR1ICddw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=jeORgvPMZLHB0NJxt7F0Cw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=QplusplusNXSoSjuijslshsC4e8FlOA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=oEDWiyj6IOrCzCpuFfYVmg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=o8tvtjB1XsVSVK8UqCj2CA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=yu3x57CM3Y8jwUPZslshVEWkQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=683CzIQHylCplusRb8zXlK0cg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=LDAv0QjOzcy85e8TxGB8Sg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=Z1DGKLdYAsslshVslshkdCpBpCrA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=5lCMdGvgtplusdAslshT5ofNC1Vw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=7pwofEVArp8B7exp54Njdw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=tZWgyrb6zyraVWplusBVjq24Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=vIICAzwkoXtbyiEZVEMnIA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=plusu0WBwOFxuQVfaY7XXedjg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=smOqeBIxRp2N7EOYjslshrgbA==


4261.1 Personal Illness/Injury Leave

4261.2 Personal Leaves

4261.8 Family Care And Medical Leave

4312.9 Employee Notifications

4319.21 Professional Standards

4319.21-E(1) Professional Standards

4331 Staff Development

4356.3 Employee Property Reimbursement

4357 Employee Safety

4357 Employee Safety

4361 Leaves

4361 Leaves

4361.1 Personal Illness/Injury Leave

4361.2 Personal Leaves

4361.8 Family Care And Medical Leave

5125 Student Records

5125 Student Records

5125.2 Withholding Grades, Diploma Or Transcripts

5131.4 Student Disturbances

5131.7 Weapons And Dangerous Instruments

5131.7 Weapons And Dangerous Instruments

5141 Health Care And Emergencies

5141 Health Care And Emergencies

5144 Discipline

5144.1 Suspension And Expulsion/Due Process

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

285

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=wxjZFDOCUfih4CvTrhNSmw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=jHOw4ELJjplusTbL0I1keW3plusQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=oCjU73CODC9A1F3Vzg9jFg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=NFrhdOjtDj0tmEsjPQhXpQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=9RrD3wQerk1bnZ5850HICg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=CTx0TjxkyiLX9jLP756gWw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=1j7A0V1L3lSneRnAhz7QqA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=z75EJ3LSJKZL1532nNT41g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=B9JkEYCSMjtIHiKpLpgvSg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=Rt6v5E24B7oQyGn7jvpF5g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=TC1tVBwIUJb3eFovmGTsVA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=mr2qlTw8ZZyjxWBUqSDkOQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=1zfBg1A4DL6zC2i9LyEKfw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=ECrzWXofCX09TPKGSwPh3Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=UjSV998j1rh7WoG602qiRw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=XdGU7vQR1OHwP8slshthnplusfQw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=qHVbTBqazYz4Lw8v9jslshSpg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=M77ybQTyVNiMEfNcI7oFlQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=slshDY4P9nEeCkdcccslshIbwosA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=BHSMhQ1McXTWCpUjmLNAsQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=Hizgm2ULiD1AwbcZhCkN6w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=F7Zplus4Umpr2hMy42UslshnrwGg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=fBNnJuPUPNxvaoQplus8SeLyw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=9QZ1JPrlEItuplustwpYNq9kw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=whXbDdMOHQCGVkhRRVsdiw==


Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

Policy 5125: Student RecordsPolicy 5125: Student Records Status:Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 06/12/2024 | Last Reviewed Date:| Last Reviewed Date: 06/12/2024

The Governing Board recognizes the importance of keeping accurate, comprehensive student records as required by
law. The Superintendent or designee shall establish administrative regulations governing the identification, collection,
retention, and security of student records. These regulations shall ensure the rights of authorized persons to have
timely access to student records while maintaining the confidentiality of student records consistent with state and
federal law.

The Superintendent or designee shall designate a certificated employee to serve as custodian of records with
responsibility for student records at the Tri-Valley ROP level. At each school, the principal or a certificated employee
shall be designated as custodian of records for students enrolled at that school. The custodian of records shall be
responsible for implementing Board policy and administrative regulation regarding student records.  (5 CCR 431)

All appropriate personnel shall receive training regarding TVROP policies and procedures for gathering and handling
sensitive student information.

The TVROP shall not collect or solicit social security numbers or the last four digits of social security numbers of
students or their parents/guardians, unless otherwise required to do so by state or federal law.  (Education Code
49076.7)

No information or documents regarding the citizenship or immigration status of students or their family members
shall be collected, except as required by state or federal law or as required to administer a state or federally
supported educational program. In accordance with Board Policy 5145.13 - Response to Immigrant Enforcement,
The Superintendent or designee shall not disclose student records to a person, agency, or organization for
immigration enforcement purposes without parental consent, a court order, or a judicial subpoena /warrant. . If a
TVROP employee receives such a request, he/she shall immediately report the request to the Superintendent. The
Superintendent shall report the request to the Board in a timely manner that ensures the confidentiality and privacy
of any potentially identifying information.  (Education Code 234.7)

The Superintendent or designee shall not compile a list, registry, or database based on students' national origin,
ethnicity, or religious belief, practice, or affiliation, nor shall he/she disclose student information to federal
government authorities for the purpose of compiling such a list, registry, or database for purposes of immigration
enforcement.  Such information may only be compiled or exchanged with other local, state, or federal agencies if the
information is aggregated and is not personally identifiable.  (Government Code 8310.3)

Student Records from Social Media

The Superintendent or designee may gather and maintain information from the social media of any TVROP student,
provided that the TVROP first notifies students and parents/guardians about the proposed program, offers an
opportunity for public comment at a regularly scheduled Board meeting, and gathers only information that directly
pertains to school safety or student safety.  (Education Code 49073.6)

Contract for Digital Storage, Management, and Retrieval of Student Records

The Superintendent or designee may enter into a contract with a third party for the digital storage, management, and
retrieval of student records and/or to authorize a third party provider of digital software to access, store, and use
student records, provided that the contract meets the requirements of Education Code 49073.1 and other applicable
state and federal laws.

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the Governing Board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter
of the policy.

StateState DescriptionDescription

5 CCR 16020-16027 Destruction of records of school districts

5 CCR 430-438 Individual student records

Bus. and Prof. Code 22580-22582 Privacy rights for California minors in the digital world

Board Policy Manual
Tri-Valley Regional Occupational Program

286

https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Browse/Home/California/CaliforniaCodeofRegulations?guid=I2AF4DC104C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3&transitionType=Default&contextData=%28sc.Default%29#I2AFA33434C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=22580.&lawCode=BPC


Bus. and Prof. Code 22584-22585 K-12 Pupil Online Personal Information Protection Act

Bus. and Prof. Code 22586-22587 Early Learning Personal Information Protection Act

Code of Civil Procedure 1985.3 Subpoena duces tecum

Ed. Code 17604 Delegation of powers to agents

Ed. Code 220.3 Prohibition for employee or contractor to disclose information related to
student’s sexual orientation, gender identity, or gender expression

Ed. Code 234.7 Student protections relating to immigration and citizenship status

Ed. Code 35266 Reporting of cyberattacks

Ed. Code 48201 Transfer student's record for acts that resulted in suspension or expulsion

Ed. Code 48853.5 Foster youth; placement, immunizations

Ed. Code 48902 Notification of law enforcement of specified violations

Ed. Code 48904-48904.3 Withholding grades, diplomas, or transcripts

Ed. Code 48918 Rules governing expulsion procedures

Ed. Code 48980 Parent/Guardian notifications

Ed. Code 48985 Notices to parents in language other than English

Ed. Code 49060-49079 Student records

Ed. Code 49091.14 Parental review of curriculum

Ed. Code 51745 Independent study

Ed. Code 56041.5 Rights of students with disabilities

Ed. Code 56050 Surrogate parents

Ed. Code 56055 Foster parents

Ed. Code 60900-60901 California Longitudinal Pupil Achievement Data System

Ed. Code 69432.9 Cal Grant program; notification of grade point average

Ed. Code 69475 Conditional repeal of Cal Grant program

Fam. Code 3025 Access to records by noncustodial parents

Fam. Code 6323.5 Ex parte orders

Fam. Code 6552 Caregiver's authorization affidavit

Gov. Code 7920.000-7930.215 California Public Records Act

H&S Code 120440 Immunizations; disclosure of information

Pen. Code 245 Assault with deadly weapon

W&I Code 16010 Health and education records of a minor

W&I Code 681 Truancy petitions

W&I Code 701 Juvenile court law

StateState DescriptionDescription

FederalFederal DescriptionDescription

15 USC 6501-6506 Children’s Online Privacy Protection Act

16 CFR Part 312 Children's Online Privacy Protection Rule

20 USC 1232g Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) of 1974

20 USC 1232h Protection of Pupil Rights Amendment

26 USC 152 Definition of dependent child

34 CFR 300.501 Opportunity to examine records for parents of student with disability

287

http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=22584.&lawCode=BPC
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=22586.&lawCode=BPC
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=1985.3.&lawCode=CCP
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=17604.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=234.7.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48201.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48853.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48902.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=27.&chapter=6.&article=1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48918.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48980.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48985.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayexpandedbranch.xhtml?tocCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=27.&chapter=6.5.&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49091.14.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=51745.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=56041.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=56050.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=56055.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=69432.9.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=FAM&sectionNum=3025.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=FAM&sectionNum=6552.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayexpandedbranch.xhtml?tocCode=GOV&division=10.&title=1.&part=&chapter=&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=HSC&sectionNum=120440.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=245.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=WIC&sectionNum=16010.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=WIC&sectionNum=681.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=WIC&sectionNum=701.
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-16/chapter-I/subchapter-C/part-312
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=(title:20 section:1232g edition:prelim) OR (granuleid:USC-prelim-title20-section1232g)&f=treesort&edition=prelim&num=0&jumpTo=true
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=(title:26 section:152 edition:prelim) OR (granuleid:USC-prelim-title26-section152)&f=treesort&edition=prelim&num=0&jumpTo=true
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-34/subtitle-B/chapter-III/part-300/subpart-E/section-300.501


34 CFR 99.1-99.8 Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act

42 USC 11434a McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act; definitions

FederalFederal DescriptionDescription

Management ResourcesManagement Resources DescriptionDescription

CA Office of the Attorney General Publication
Promoting a Safe and Secure Learning Environment for All: Guidance and
Model Policies to Assist California's K-12 Schools in Responding to
Immigration Issues, December 2024

CSBA Publication Understanding Artificial Intelligence in K-12 Education: What Governance
Teams Should Know, September 2023

CSBA Publication Legal Guidance on Providing All Children Equal Access to Education,
Regardless of Immigration Status, February 2017

Federal Register
Final Rule and Analysis of Comments and Changes, Family Educational
Rights and Privacy, December 9, 2008, Vol. 73, No. 237, pages 74806-
74855

U.S. Department of Education Publication IDEA and FERPA Crosswalk: A side-by-side comparison of the privacy
provisions under Parts B and C of the IDEA and FERPA, August 2022

U.S. Department of Education Publication School Resource Officers, School Law Enforcement Units, and the Family
Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA), February 2019

U.S. Department of Education Publication An Eligible Student Guide to the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act
(FERPA), March 2023

U.S. Department of Education Publication A Parent Guide to the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA),
July 2021

U.S. Department of Education Publication
Balancing Student Privacy and School Safety: A Guide to the Family
Educational Rights and Privacy Act for Elementary and Secondary Schools,
Oct 2007

U.S. Department of Education Publication Joint Guidance on the Application of FERPA and HIPAA to Student Health
Records, November 2008

Website California IT in Education, Student Data Privacy

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Website U.S. Department of Education, Protecting Student Privacy

Website California Office of the Attorney General

Website California Department of Education

Website CSBA

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

0440 District Technology Plan

1113 District And School Websites

1113 District And School Websites

1113-E(1) District And School Websites

1114 District-Sponsored Social Media

1114 District-Sponsored Social Media

1312.3 Uniform Complaint Procedures

1312.3 Uniform Complaint Procedures

1340 Access To District Records

1340 Access To District Records

3260 Fees And Charges

288

https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-34/subtitle-A/part-99/subpart-A
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=(title:42 section:11434a edition:prelim) OR (granuleid:USC-prelim-title42-section11434a)&f=treesort&edition=prelim&num=0&jumpTo=true
https://oag.ca.gov/sites/all/files/agweb/pdfs/bcj/school-guidance-model-k12.pdf
https://www.csba.org/-/media/CSBA/Files/GovernanceResources/PolicyNews_Briefs/Technology/AI-Brief-REPD_09-2023.ashx
https://www.csba.org/Advocacy/EducationLegalAlliance/~/media/CSBA/Files/Advocacy/ELA/2017_02_legal-guidance-ProvidingAllChildrenEqualAccess.ashx
https://www.govinfo.gov/content/pkg/FR-2008-12-09/pdf/E8-28864.pdf
https://studentprivacy.ed.gov/sites/default/files/resource_document/file/IDEA-FERPA Crosswalk_08242022.pdf
https://studentprivacy.ed.gov/resources/school-resource-officers-school-law-enforcement-units-and-ferpa
https://studentprivacy.ed.gov/resources/eligible-student-guide-family-educational-rights-and-privacy-act-ferpa
https://studentprivacy.ed.gov/resources/parent-guide-family-educational-rights-and-privacy-act-ferpa
https://www.ed.gov/
https://www.ed.gov/
https://www.cite.org/stuprivacy
https://legalservices.csba.org/
https://studentprivacy.ed.gov
http://oag.ca.gov
http://www.cde.ca.gov
http://www.csba.org
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=2aGCaoK79paENKh3cGC8cg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=4XQaFrGRrecYplusYzJX8iFslshQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=o6imeqslsh96cCbNlv1lkZxjQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=3fxcWyEaRMF3Nxplus6hXIr3A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=jmPHy8NvRKgplusj4QuxTzH1w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=RHzd31LkJhRR4plusQQXGS3SQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=plussrJjGtKA0C9cRrvh7RCJw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=dzEvLKY3VZ2oNrfQVErklQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=jSQCN8bwEZWEmfVMQ1Y0aw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=iq4sw8gP4uPlJugVHK7Ivw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=ecGl55Yd2s34cmX8hplusjKfg==


3260 Fees And Charges

3290 Gifts, Grants And Bequests

3312 Contracts

3515 Campus Security

3580 District Records

3580 District Records

4040 Employee Use Of Technology

4040-E(1) Employee Use Of Technology

4040-E(2) Employee Use Of Technology

4112.6 Personnel Files

4113.5 Working Remotely

4117.7 Employment Status Reports

4119.23 Unauthorized Release Of Confidential/Privileged Information

4158 Employee Security

4212.6 Personnel Files

4213.5 Working Remotely

4219.21 Professional Standards

4219.21-E(1) Professional Standards

4219.23 Unauthorized Release Of Confidential/Privileged Information

4258 Employee Security

4312.6 Personnel Files

4313.5 Working Remotely

4317.7 Employment Status Reports

4319.21 Professional Standards

4319.21-E(1) Professional Standards

4319.23 Unauthorized Release Of Confidential/Privileged Information

4358 Employee Security

5000 Concepts And Roles

5020 Parent Rights And Responsibilities

5020 Parent Rights And Responsibilities

5022 Student And Family Privacy Rights

5111 Admission

5113.1 Chronic Absence And Truancy

5121 Grades/Evaluation Of Student Achievement

5125.1 Release Of Directory Information

5125.1 Release Of Directory Information

5125.1-E(1) Release Of Directory Information

5125.2 Withholding Grades, Diploma Or Transcripts

5125.3 Challenging Student Records

5126 Awards For Achievement

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

289

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=vNSrdWF1Lc7b2AKwmDAffA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=R4ZhPTLBWEqPlXvysaYbbw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=xrw9F9HT1T362NYblff0Zw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=SXnOLI5H4DBGvUbNpDHPplusg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=gv3pXuGPnNJ4FbkDgiDsRQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=D5p9gmmX6Eny4PVrAplusuD1Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=6nc6yN5h6ydYtRyszA3ucw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=tQIn4iF1mMgHXBJHOE7NqQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=yMj6tPfEpjVPslsh8KibHJXlQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=ACXnZXJCZETJ0odq50Zlow==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=Mknaq5T7idr3yLMnzA5Knw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=LC9Pz8CoMRgFdpluslt3WWlkg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=K6Tz1opcKl36c4JHUFMmjw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=8DsOfIxzC0ZnOS4LYYYTWg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=cuCsDI5vt9ZrBUJxw3wSSQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=ScseNm0egmpK8FFktm7dQQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=LDAv0QjOzcy85e8TxGB8Sg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=Z1DGKLdYAsslshVslshkdCpBpCrA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=ScKQ8Bj5hsiIQUsIEzNBZA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=8fslshaZ3b81q70yUwg557Ccg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=xfD9FuXCdapZkeW3nMQsiA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=G4WRXd7slshr0slshGrplus8gyg11VA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=QQQslshz9gcSTD1zVSJkm4PfA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=9RrD3wQerk1bnZ5850HICg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=CTx0TjxkyiLX9jLP756gWw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=1iDUp1UFWKCyG7SfHplusCrlA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=BgStoslshAqQykifYwAxvtcwg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=9rsyL63tHRFWKQiW5l3plusnQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=44IpDntqHSCXUdslshLZslshAnBA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=I6w2zWpcS2sYPEQw1ujLrA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=iUckplusUpxygZYplusBSul2AU4A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=mTrXhWcJf1XRBdB2o9plusvjw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=KP0KQ5jVplusnuU8scjt2lSslshg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=mZA3eaplus1H4OmnCebHxkocw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=kplusBAJzFKTkoTb1g3UahT4w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=3PLMin1ewjxvQRsOBidZnQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=cXJrLCKRVDo4XC5YohlCDg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=M77ybQTyVNiMEfNcI7oFlQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=slshJoNslsh4eOvwxaImwRxrblLw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=HwNwiGvw3GEO6CuAqNb9slshQ==


5131.1 Bus Conduct

5131.2 Bullying

5131.2 Bullying

5131.7 Weapons And Dangerous Instruments

5131.7 Weapons And Dangerous Instruments

5141.21 Administering Medication And Monitoring Health Conditions

5141.22 Infectious Diseases

5141.22 Infectious Diseases

5141.52 Suicide Prevention

5144 Discipline

5144.1 Suspension And Expulsion/Due Process

5144.4 Required Parental Attendance

5145.12 Search And Seizure

5145.13 Response To Immigration Enforcement

5145.13 Response To Immigration Enforcement

5145.3 Nondiscrimination/Harassment

5145.3 Nondiscrimination/Harassment

5145.7 Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment

5145.7 Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment

6162.8 Research

6162.8 Research

6163.4 Student Use Of Technology

6172.1 Concurrent Enrollment In College Classes

6172.1 Concurrent Enrollment In College Classes

6178.1 Work-Based Learning

6178.1 Work-Based Learning

9011 Disclosure Of Confidential/Privileged Information

9012 Board Member Electronic Communications

9321 Closed Session

9321-E(1) Closed Session

9321-E(2) Closed Session

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

290

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=thKSKrf6LE9RS8pluseIpeWTg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=Lfk9sOrdiWnRslshqL3vIplusUMg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=5B1avrICtsslshmSzEslshnBGwGQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=BHSMhQ1McXTWCpUjmLNAsQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=Hizgm2ULiD1AwbcZhCkN6w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=o0QIzqs3zJupQHGyAIVTaQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=z4rmfwJnvPuyaMMi42slshdsg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=cUwwCV8yzDdct5RWf5M68Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=RlZMgF3uXCProD6LloiCxA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=9QZ1JPrlEItuplustwpYNq9kw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=whXbDdMOHQCGVkhRRVsdiw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=NVadymHArpn82slshYwXX5WDQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=jrsIMamwIRXW5B1ql3kv6g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=tO9y1OrQ0IyxBtuN5cSa7A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=eg2VOquWazTLMMPSuOr6Qg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=EiUXO6paslshr9AfFW8105TvA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=4smDSpZxoyplus5u5plwCHOplusA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=zTFItLvSmxOOyLk3pwTWhg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=39af887bS5p04xVwfYRGGA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=slshFTzOTflQZcG179x2YTAEw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=qbOEUSDHxcz1yJqPfGoK4g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=ujb1BNrRypUFVLCsE7fc2g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=zC4RpLYx2LPzHmZSezLKGw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=lCIWplus0EbgrlDVslshTbslshP3yWg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=95lRK1a740xJKCplusKrysW5Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=rZjkcH9HPW4S5plusuDPRHFrw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=FDplusjomNzg7D9DrtkCVti2Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=slshJJXpMPYdhSf6JZk7yuJXw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=SCyIM86Pslsh2SXYfMWCoy4PA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=0plusIjrl1GcIFYmE3Py7jUqw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=DQY7ANJo4DIkPkvShOwaMQ==


Regulation 5125: Student RecordsRegulation 5125: Student Records Status:Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 06/12/2024 | Last Reviewed Date:| Last Reviewed Date: 06/12/2024

Definitions

Student means any individual who is or has been in attendance at the Tri- Valley ROP and regarding whom the
TVROP maintains student records.  (34 CFR 99.3)

Attendance includes, but is not limited to, attendance in person or by paper correspondence, videoconference,
satellite, Internet, or other electronic information and telecommunication technologies for students who are not
physically present in the classroom, and the period during which a person is working under a work-study program.
 (34 CFR 99.3)

Student records are any items of information (in handwriting, print, tape, film, computer, or other medium) gathered
within or outside the TVROP that are directly related to an identifiable student and maintained by the TVROP,
required to be maintained by an employee in the performance of the employee's duties, or maintained by a party
acting for the TVROP. Any information maintained for the purpose of second-party review is considered a student
record. Student records include the student's health record.  (Education Code 49061, 49062; 5 CCR 430; 34 CFR
99.3)

Student records do not include:  (Education Code 49061, 49062; 34 CFR 99.3)

1. Directory information
 

2. Informal notes compiled by a school officer or employee which remain in the sole possession of the maker, are
used only as a personal memory aid, and are not accessible or revealed to any other person except a substitute
employee
 

3. Records of the law enforcement unit of the TVROP, subject to 34 CFR 99.8
 

4. Records created or received by the TVROP after an individual is no longer a student and that are not directly
related to the individual's attendance as a student
 

5. Grades on peer-graded papers before they are collected and recorded by a teacher

Mandatory permanent student records are those records which are maintained in perpetuity and which programs have
been directed to compile by state law, regulation, or administrative directive.  (5 CCR 430)

Mandatory interim student records are those records which the Programs are directed to compile and maintain for
specified periods of time and are then destroyed in accordance with state law, regulation, or administrative directive.
 (5 CCR 430)

Permitted student records are those records having clear importance only to the current educational process of the
student.  (5 CCR 430)

Disclosure means to permit access to, or the release, transfer, or other communication of, personally identifiable
information contained in student records to any party, except the party that provided or created the record, by any
means including oral, written, or electronic.  (34 CFR 99.3)

Access means a personal inspection and review of a record or an accurate copy of a record, or receipt of an accurate
copy of a record or an oral description or communication of a record, and a request to release a copy of any record.
 (Education Code 49061)

Personally identifiable information includes, but is not limited to:  (34 CFR 99.3)

1. The student's name
 

2. The name of the student's parent/guardian or other family members
 

3. The address of the student or student's family
 

Board Policy Manual
Tri-Valley Regional Occupational Program

291



4. A personal identifier, such as the student's social security number, student number, or biometric record (e.g.,
fingerprints, retina and iris patterns, voiceprints, DNA sequence, facial characteristics, and handwriting)
 

5. Other indirect identifiers, such as the student's date of birth, place of birth, and mother's maiden name
 

6. Other information that, alone or in combination, is linked or linkable to a specific student that would allow a
reasonable person in the school community, who does not have personal knowledge of the relevant
circumstances, to identify the student with reasonable certainty
 

7. Information requested by a person who the TVROP reasonably believes knows the identity of the student to
whom the student record relates

Adult student is a person who is or was enrolled in school and who is at least 18 years of age.  (5 CCR 430)

Parent/guardian means a natural parent, an adopted parent, legal guardian, surrogate parent, or foster parent.
 (Education Code 49061, 56050, 56055)

Legitimate educational interest is an interest held by any school official, employee, contractor, or consultant whose
official duties, responsibilities, or contractual obligations to the TVROP, whether routine or as a result of special
circumstances, require access to information contained in student records.

School officials and employees are officials or employees, including teachers, whose duties and responsibilities to the
TVROP, whether routine or as a result of special circumstances, require access to student records.  (34 CFR 99.31)

Contractor or consultant is anyone with a formal written agreement or contract with the TVROP regarding the
provision of services or functions outsourced by the TVROP.  Contractor or consultant shall not include a volunteer
or other party.  (Education Code 49076)

Custodian of records is the employee responsible for the security of student records maintained by the TVROP and
for devising procedures for assuring that access to such records is limited to authorized persons.  (5 CCR 433)

County placing agency means the county social service department or county probation department.  (Education
Code 49061)

Persons Granted Absolute Access

In accordance with law, absolute access to any student records shall be granted to:

1. Parents/guardians of students younger than age 18 years, including the parent who is not the student's
custodial parent  (Education Code 49069.7; Family Code 3025)
However, the district shall not disclose student records to a party, including a parent/guardian, who is legally
prohibited from accessing records and information of a student pursuant to a restraining order.  (Family Code
6323.5)

2. An adult student, or a student under the age of 18 years who attends a postsecondary institution, in which
case the student alone shall exercise rights related to the student's records and grant consent for the release of
records  (34 CFR 99.3, 99.5)
 

3. Parents/guardians of an adult student with disabilities who is age 18 years or older and has been declared
incompetent under state law  (Education Code 56041.5)

Access for Limited Purpose/Legitimate Educational Interest

The following persons or agencies shall have access to those particular records that are relevant to their legitimate
educational interest or other legally authorized purpose:

1. Parents/guardians of a student 18 years of age or older who is a dependent child as defined in 26 USC 152
 (Education Code 49076; 34 CFR 99.31)
 

2. Students who are age 16 or older or who have completed the 10th grade  (Education Code 49076)
 

3. School officials and employees, consistent with the definition provided in the section "Definitions" above
 (Education Code 49076; 34 CFR 99.31)

292



 
4. Members of a school attendance review board (SARB) appointed pursuant to Education Code 48321 who are

authorized representatives of the TVROP and any volunteer aide age 18 or older who has been investigated,
selected, and trained by the SARB to provide follow-up services to a referred student  (Education Code 49076)
 

5. Officials and employees of other public programs, school systems, or postsecondary institutions where the
student intends or is directed to enroll, including local, county, or state correctional facilities where educational
programs leading to high school graduation are provided, or where the student is already enrolled, as long as
the disclosure is for purposes related to the student's enrollment or transfer  (Education Code 49076; 34 CFR
99.31)

Unless the annual parent/guardian notification issued pursuant to Education Code 48980 includes a statement
that the TVROP may disclose students' personally identifiable information to officials of another school, school
system, or postsecondary institution where the student seeks or intends to enroll, the Superintendent or
designee shall, when such a disclosure is made, make a reasonable attempt to notify the parent/guardian or
adult student at the last known address, provide a copy of the record that is disclosed, and give the
parent/guardian or adult student an opportunity for a hearing to challenge the record.  (34 CFR 99.34)
 

6. Federal, state, and local officials, as needed for an audit or evaluation of, or compliance with, a state or
federally funded education program and in accordance with a written agreement developed pursuant to 34
CFR 99.35  (Education Code 49076; 34 CFR 99.3, 99.31, 99.35)
 

7. Any county placing agency acting as an authorized representative of a state or local educational agency which
is required to audit or evaluate a state or federally supported education program pursuant to item #7 above
 (Education Code 49076)
 

8. Any person, agency, or organization authorized in compliance with a court order or lawfully issued subpoena
 (Education Code 49077; 5 CCR 435; 34 CFR 99.31)

Unless otherwise instructed by the court, the Superintendent or designee shall, prior to disclosing a record
pursuant to a court order or subpoena, give the parent/guardian or adult student at least three days' notice of
the name of the requesting agency and the specific record requested, if lawfully possible within the
requirements of the judicial order.  (Education Code 49077; 5 CCR 435; 34 CFR 99.31)
 

9. Any TVROP attorney who is participating in or conducting a truancy mediation program or participating in the
presentation of evidence in a truancy petition  (Education Code 49076)
 

10. A TVROP attorney's office for consideration against a parent/guardian for failure to comply with compulsory
education laws  (Education Code 49076)
 

11. Any probation officer, TVROP attorney, or counsel of record for a student who is a minor for the purposes of
conducting a criminal investigation or an investigation in regards to declaring the minor a ward of the court or
involving a violation of a condition of probation, subject to evidentiary rules specified in Welfare and
Institutions Code 701  (Education Code 49076)

When disclosing records for these purposes, the Superintendent or designee shall obtain written certification
from the recipient of the records that the information will not be disclosed to another party without prior
written consent of the student's parent/guardian or the holder of the student's educational rights, unless
specifically authorized by state or federal law.  (Education Code 49076)
 

12. Any judge or probation officer for the purpose of conducting a truancy mediation program for a student or for
the purpose of presenting evidence in a truancy petition pursuant to Welfare and Institutions Code 681
 (Education Code 49076)

In such cases, the judge or probation officer shall certify in writing to the Superintendent or designee that the
information will be used only for truancy purposes.  Upon releasing student information to a judge or probation
officer, the Superintendent or designee shall inform, or provide written notification to, the student's
parent/guardian within 24 hours.  (Education Code 49076)
 

13. A foster family agency with jurisdiction over a currently enrolled or former student; short-term residential
treatment program staff responsible for the education or case management of a student; or a caregiver who

293



has direct responsibility for the care of a student, including a certified or licensed foster parent, an approved
relative or nonrelated extended family member, or a resource family, as defined  (Education Code 49076)

Such individuals shall have access to the student's current or most recent records of grades, transcripts,
attendance, discipline, online communication on platforms established by Programs for students and
parents/guardians, and any individualized education program or Section 504 plan developed and maintained by
the TVROP  (Education Code 49069.3)
 

14. A student age 14 years or older who is both a homeless student and an unaccompanied minor as defined in 42
USC 11434a  (Education Code 49076)
 

15. An individual who completes items #1-4 of the caregiver's authorization affidavit pursuant to Family Code
6552 and signs the affidavit for the purpose of enrolling a minor in school  (Education Code 49076)
 

16. A caseworker or other representative of a state or local child welfare agency or tribal organization that has
legal responsibility in accordance with state or tribal law for the care and protection of a student, provided that
the individual is authorized by the agency or organization to receive the records and the information requested
is directly related to providing assistance to address the student's educational needs  (Education Code 49076;
20 USC 1232(g))
 

17. Appropriate law enforcement authorities, in circumstances where Education Code 48902 requires that the
TVROP provide special education and disciplinary records of a student with disabilities who is suspended or
expelled for committing an act violating Penal Code 245  (Education Code 48902, 49076)

When disclosing such records, the Superintendent or designee shall obtain written certification by the recipient
of the records as described in item #12 above.  (Education Code 49076)
 

18. Designated peace officers or law enforcement agencies in cases where the TVROP is authorized by law to
assist law enforcement in investigations of suspected criminal conduct or kidnapping and a written parental
consent, lawfully issued subpoena, or court order is submitted to the TVROP, or information is provided to it
indicating that an emergency exists in which the student's information is necessary to protect the health or
safety of the student or other individuals  (Education Code 49076.5)

In such cases, the Superintendent or designee shall provide information about the identity and location of the
student as it relates to the transfer of that student's records to another public school TVROP in California or
any other state or to a California private school.  (Education Code 49076.5)

When disclosing records for the above purposes, the Superintendent or designee shall obtain the necessary
documentation to verify that the person, agency, or organization is a person, agency, or organization that is
permitted to receive such records.

Any person, agency, or organization granted access is prohibited from releasing information to another person,
agency, or organization without written permission from the parent/guardian or adult student unless specifically
allowed by state law or the federal Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act.  (Education Code 49076)

In addition, the parent/guardian or adult student may provide written consent for access to be granted to persons,
agencies, or organizations not afforded access rights by law. The written consent shall specify the records to be
released and the party or parties to whom they may be released.  (Education Code 49061, 49075)

Only a parent/guardian having legal custody of the student may consent to the release of records to others. Either
parent/guardian may grant consent if both parents/guardians notify the TVROP, in writing, that such an agreement
has been made.  (Education Code 49061)

Discretionary Access

At the discretion of the Superintendent or designee, information may be released from a student's records to the
following:

1. Appropriate persons, including parents/guardians of a student, in an emergency if the health and safety of the
student or other persons are at stake  (Education Code 49076; 34 CFR 99.31, 99.32, 99.36)

When releasing information to any such appropriate person, the Superintendent or designee shall record

294



information about the threat to the health or safety of the student or any other person that formed the basis
for the disclosure and the person(s) to whom the disclosure was made.  (Education Code 49076; 34 CFR 99.32)

Unless it would further endanger the health or safety of the student or other persons, the Superintendent or
designee shall inform the parent/guardian or adult student within one week of the disclosure that the
disclosure was made, of the articulable and significant threat to the health or safety of the student or other
individuals that formed the basis for the disclosure, and of the parties to whom the disclosure was made.
 

2. Accrediting associations in order to carry out their accrediting functions  (Education Code 49076; 34 CFR
99.31)
 

3. Under the conditions specified in Education Code 49076 and 34 CFR 99.31, organizations conducting studies
on behalf of educational institutions or agencies for the purpose of developing, validating, or administering
predictive tests, administering student aid programs, or improving instruction, provided that:  (Education Code
49076; 34 CFR 99.31)
 

a. The study is conducted in a manner that does not permit personal identification of students or
parents/guardians by individuals other than representatives of the organization who have legitimate
interests in the information.
 

b. The information is destroyed when no longer needed for the purposes for which the study is conducted.
 

c. The TVROP enters into a written agreement with the organization that complies with 34 CFR 99.31.
 

4. Officials and employees of private programs or school systems where the student is enrolled or intends to
enroll, subject to the rights of parents/guardians as provided in Education Code 49068 and in compliance with
34 CFR 99.34  (Education Code 49076; 34 CFR 99.31, 99.34)
 

5. Local health departments operating countywide or regional immunization information and reminder systems
and the California Department of Public Health, unless the parent/guardian has requested that no disclosures
of this type be made  (Health and Safety Code 120440)
 

6. Contractors and consultants having a legitimate educational interest based on services or functions which have
been outsourced to them through a formal written agreement or contract with the TVROP, excluding
volunteers or other parties  (Education Code 49076)
 

7. Agencies or organizations in connection with the student's application for or receipt of financial aid, provided
that information permitting the personal identification of a student or the student's parents/guardians for
these purposes is disclosed only as may be necessary to determine the eligibility of the student for financial
aid, determine the amount of financial aid, determine the conditions which will be imposed regarding the
financial aid, or enforce the terms or conditions of the financial aid  (Education Code 49076; 34 CFR 99.31)
 

8. County elections officials for the purpose of identifying students eligible to register to vote or offering such
students an opportunity to register, subject to the limits set by 34 CFR 99.37 and under the condition that any
information provided on this basis shall not be used for any other purpose or transferred to any other person
or agency (Education Code 49076; 34 CFR 99.37)

When disclosing records for the above purposes, the Superintendent or designee shall obtain the necessary
documentation to verify that the person, agency, or organization is a person, agency, or organization that is
permitted to receive such records.

Any person, agency, or organization granted access is prohibited from releasing information to another person,
agency, or organization without written permission from the parent/guardian or adult student unless specifically
allowed by state law or the federal Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act.  (Education Code 49076)

De-identification of Records

When authorized by law for any program audit, educational research, or other purpose, the Superintendent or
designee may release information from a student record without prior consent of the parent/guardian or adult
student after the removal of all personally identifiable information.  Prior to releasing such information, the
Superintendent or designee shall make a reasonable determination that the student's identity is not personally
identifiable, whether through single or multiple releases and taking into account other reasonably available

295



information.  (Education Code 49074, 49076; 20 USC 1232g; 34 CFR 99.31)

Process for Providing Access to Records

Student records shall be maintained in a central file at the school attended by the student or, when records are
maintained at different locations, a notation shall be placed in the central file indicating where other records may be
found.  Parents/guardians and adult students shall be notified of the location of student records if not centrally
located.  (Education Code 49069; 5 CCR 433)

The custodian of records shall be responsible for the security of student records and shall ensure that access is
limited to authorized persons.  (5 CCR 433)

The custodian of records shall develop reasonable methods, including physical, technological, and administrative
policy controls, to ensure that school officials and employees obtain access to only those student records in which
they have legitimate educational interests.  (34 CFR 99.31)

To inspect, review, or obtain copies of student records, authorized persons shall submit a request to the custodian of
records.  Prior to granting the request, the custodian of records shall authenticate the individual's identity.  For any
individual granted access based on a legitimate educational interest, the request shall specify the interest involved.

When required by law, a student's parent/guardian or an adult student shall provide written, signed, and dated
consent before the TVROP discloses the student record. Such consent may be given through electronic means in
those cases where it can be authenticated. The TVROP's consent form shall specify the records that may be
disclosed, state the purpose of the disclosure, and identify the party or class of parties to whom the disclosure may
be made. Upon request by the parent/guardian or adult student, the TVROP shall provide a copy of the records
disclosed.  (34 CFR 99.30)

If the parent/guardian or adult student refuses to provide written consent for the release of student information, the
Superintendent or designee shall not release the information, unless it is otherwise subject to release based on a
court order or a lawful subpoena.

Within five business days following the date of request, the authorized person shall be granted access to inspect,
review, and obtain copies of student records during regular school hours.  (Education Code 49069)

Qualified certificated personnel shall be available to interpret records when requested.  (Education Code 49069)

The custodian of records or the Superintendent or designee shall prevent the alteration, damage, or loss of records
during inspection.  (5 CCR 435)

Access Log

A log shall be maintained for each student's record which lists all persons, agencies, or organizations requesting or
receiving information from the record and the legitimate educational interest of the requester.  (Education Code
49064)

In every instance of inspection by persons who do not have assigned educational responsibility, the custodian of
records shall make an entry in the log indicating the record inspected, the name of the person granted access, the
reason access was granted, and the time and circumstances of inspection.  (5 CCR 435)

The custodian of records shall also make an entry in the log regarding any request for record(s) that was denied and
the reason for the denial.

The log shall include requests for access to records by:

1. Parents/guardians or adult students
 

2. Students who are 16 years of age or older or who have completed the 10th grade
 

3. Parties obtaining ROP-approved directory information
 

4. Parties who provide written parental consent, in which case the consent notice shall be filed with the record
pursuant to Education Code 49075

296



 
5. School officials and employees who have a legitimate educational interest

 
6. Law enforcement personnel seeking to enforce immigration laws

The log shall be open to inspection only by the parent/guardian, adult student, dependent adult student, custodian of
records, and certain state or federal officials specified in Education Code 49064.  (Education Code 49064; 5 CCR
432)

Duplication of Student Records

To provide copies of any student record, the TVROP may charge a reasonable fee not to exceed the actual cost of
providing the copies. No charge shall be made for providing up to two transcripts or up to two verifications of
various records for any former student.  No charge shall be made to locate or retrieve any student record.
 (Education Code 49065)

Changes to Student Records

Only a parent/guardian having legal custody of a student or a student who is 18 years of age or is attending an
institution of postsecondary education may challenge the content of a record or offer a written response to a record.
 (Education Code 49061)

No addition or change shall be made to a student's record after high school graduation or permanent departure,
other than routine updating, unless required by law or with prior consent of the parent/guardian or adult student.
 (Education Code 49070; 5 CCR 437)

Any request to change a student's legal name in the student's mandatory permanent student record shall be
accompanied with appropriate documentation.

Any challenge to the content of a student's record shall be filed in accordance with the process specified in AR
5125.3 - Challenging Student Records.  (Education Code 49070)

Retention and Destruction of Student Records

All anecdotal information and assessment reports maintained as student records shall be dated and signed by the
individual who originated the data.  (5 CCR 431)

The following mandatory permanent student records shall be kept indefinitely:  (5 CCR 432, 437)

1. Legal name of student
 

2. Date and place of birth and method of verifying birth date
 

3. Sex of student
 

4. Name and address of parent/guardian of minor student
 

a. Address of minor student if different from the above
 

b. Annual verification of parent/guardian's name and address and student's residence
 

5. Entrance and departure dates of each school year and for any summer session or other extra session
 

6. Subjects taken during each year, half-year, summer session, or quarter, and marks or credits given towards
graduation
 

7. Verification of or exemption from required immunizations
 

8. Date of high school graduation or equivalent

Mandatory interim student records, unless forwarded to another TVROP, shall be maintained subject to destruction
during the third school year after the school year in which they originated, following a determination that their

297



Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

usefulness has ceased or the student has left the TVROP.  These records include:  (Education Code 48918, 51747; 5
CCR 432, 437, 16027)

1. Expulsion orders and the causes therefor
 

2. A log identifying persons or organizations who request or receive information from the student record
 

3. Health information, including verification or waiver of the health screening for school entry
 

4. Information on participation in special education programs, including required tests, case studies,
authorizations, and actions necessary to establish eligibility for admission or discharge
 

5. Language training records
 

6. Progress slips/notices required by Education Code 49066 and 49067
 

7. Parental restrictions/stipulations regarding access to directory information
 

8. Parent/guardian or adult student rejoinders to challenged records and to disciplinary action
 

9. Parent/guardian authorization or prohibition of student participation in specific programs
 

10. Results of standardized tests administered within the past three years
 

11. Written findings resulting from an evaluation conducted after a specified number of missed assignments to
determine whether it is in a student's best interest to remain in independent study

Permitted student records may be destroyed six months after the student completes or withdraws from the
educational program and their usefulness ceases, including:  (5 CCR 432, 437)

1. Objective counselor and/or teacher ratings
 

2. Standardized test results older than three years
 

3. Routine disciplinary data
 

4. Verified reports of relevant behavioral patterns
 

5. All disciplinary notices
 

6. Supplementary attendance records

Records shall be destroyed in a way that assures they will not be available to possible public inspection in the
process of destruction.  (5 CCR 437)

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the Governing Board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter
of the policy.

StateState DescriptionDescription

5 CCR 16020-16027 Destruction of records of school districts

5 CCR 430-438 Individual student records

Bus. and Prof. Code 22580-22582 Privacy rights for California minors in the digital world

Bus. and Prof. Code 22584-22585 K-12 Pupil Online Personal Information Protection Act

Bus. and Prof. Code 22586-22587 Early Learning Personal Information Protection Act

Code of Civil Procedure 1985.3 Subpoena duces tecum

Ed. Code 17604 Delegation of powers to agents

298

https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Browse/Home/California/CaliforniaCodeofRegulations?guid=I2AF4DC104C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3&transitionType=Default&contextData=%28sc.Default%29#I2AFA33434C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=22580.&lawCode=BPC
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=22584.&lawCode=BPC
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=22586.&lawCode=BPC
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=1985.3.&lawCode=CCP
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=17604.


Ed. Code 220.3 Prohibition for employee or contractor to disclose information related to
student’s sexual orientation, gender identity, or gender expression

Ed. Code 234.7 Student protections relating to immigration and citizenship status

Ed. Code 35266 Reporting of cyberattacks

Ed. Code 48201 Transfer student's record for acts that resulted in suspension or expulsion

Ed. Code 48853.5 Foster youth; placement, immunizations

Ed. Code 48902 Notification of law enforcement of specified violations

Ed. Code 48904-48904.3 Withholding grades, diplomas, or transcripts

Ed. Code 48918 Rules governing expulsion procedures

Ed. Code 48980 Parent/Guardian notifications

Ed. Code 48985 Notices to parents in language other than English

Ed. Code 49060-49079 Student records

Ed. Code 49091.14 Parental review of curriculum

Ed. Code 51745 Independent study

Ed. Code 56041.5 Rights of students with disabilities

Ed. Code 56050 Surrogate parents

Ed. Code 56055 Foster parents

Ed. Code 60900-60901 California Longitudinal Pupil Achievement Data System

Ed. Code 69432.9 Cal Grant program; notification of grade point average

Ed. Code 69475 Conditional repeal of Cal Grant program

Fam. Code 3025 Access to records by noncustodial parents

Fam. Code 6323.5 Ex parte orders

Fam. Code 6552 Caregiver's authorization affidavit

Gov. Code 7920.000-7930.215 California Public Records Act

H&S Code 120440 Immunizations; disclosure of information

Pen. Code 245 Assault with deadly weapon

W&I Code 16010 Health and education records of a minor

W&I Code 681 Truancy petitions

W&I Code 701 Juvenile court law

StateState DescriptionDescription

FederalFederal DescriptionDescription

15 USC 6501-6506 Children’s Online Privacy Protection Act

16 CFR Part 312 Children's Online Privacy Protection Rule

20 USC 1232g Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) of 1974

20 USC 1232h Protection of Pupil Rights Amendment

26 USC 152 Definition of dependent child

34 CFR 300.501 Opportunity to examine records for parents of student with disability

34 CFR 99.1-99.8 Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act

42 USC 11434a McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act; definitions

299

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=234.7.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48201.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48853.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48902.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=27.&chapter=6.&article=1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48918.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48980.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48985.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayexpandedbranch.xhtml?tocCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=27.&chapter=6.5.&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49091.14.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=51745.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=56041.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=56050.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=56055.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=69432.9.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=FAM&sectionNum=3025.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=FAM&sectionNum=6552.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayexpandedbranch.xhtml?tocCode=GOV&division=10.&title=1.&part=&chapter=&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=HSC&sectionNum=120440.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=245.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=WIC&sectionNum=16010.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=WIC&sectionNum=681.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=WIC&sectionNum=701.
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-16/chapter-I/subchapter-C/part-312
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=(title:20 section:1232g edition:prelim) OR (granuleid:USC-prelim-title20-section1232g)&f=treesort&edition=prelim&num=0&jumpTo=true
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=(title:26 section:152 edition:prelim) OR (granuleid:USC-prelim-title26-section152)&f=treesort&edition=prelim&num=0&jumpTo=true
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-34/subtitle-B/chapter-III/part-300/subpart-E/section-300.501
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-34/subtitle-A/part-99/subpart-A
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=(title:42 section:11434a edition:prelim) OR (granuleid:USC-prelim-title42-section11434a)&f=treesort&edition=prelim&num=0&jumpTo=true


Management ResourcesManagement Resources DescriptionDescription

CA Office of the Attorney General Publication
Promoting a Safe and Secure Learning Environment for All: Guidance and
Model Policies to Assist California's K-12 Schools in Responding to
Immigration Issues, December 2024

CSBA Publication Understanding Artificial Intelligence in K-12 Education: What Governance
Teams Should Know, September 2023

CSBA Publication Legal Guidance on Providing All Children Equal Access to Education,
Regardless of Immigration Status, February 2017

Federal Register
Final Rule and Analysis of Comments and Changes, Family Educational
Rights and Privacy, December 9, 2008, Vol. 73, No. 237, pages 74806-
74855

U.S. Department of Education Publication IDEA and FERPA Crosswalk: A side-by-side comparison of the privacy
provisions under Parts B and C of the IDEA and FERPA, August 2022

U.S. Department of Education Publication School Resource Officers, School Law Enforcement Units, and the Family
Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA), February 2019

U.S. Department of Education Publication An Eligible Student Guide to the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act
(FERPA), March 2023

U.S. Department of Education Publication A Parent Guide to the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA),
July 2021

U.S. Department of Education Publication
Balancing Student Privacy and School Safety: A Guide to the Family
Educational Rights and Privacy Act for Elementary and Secondary Schools,
Oct 2007

U.S. Department of Education Publication Joint Guidance on the Application of FERPA and HIPAA to Student Health
Records, November 2008

Website California IT in Education, Student Data Privacy

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Website U.S. Department of Education, Protecting Student Privacy

Website California Office of the Attorney General

Website California Department of Education

Website CSBA

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

0440 District Technology Plan

1113 District And School Websites

1113 District And School Websites

1113-E(1) District And School Websites

1114 District-Sponsored Social Media

1114 District-Sponsored Social Media

1312.3 Uniform Complaint Procedures

1312.3 Uniform Complaint Procedures

1340 Access To District Records

1340 Access To District Records

3260 Fees And Charges

3260 Fees And Charges

3290 Gifts, Grants And Bequests

3312 Contracts

300

https://oag.ca.gov/sites/all/files/agweb/pdfs/bcj/school-guidance-model-k12.pdf
https://www.csba.org/-/media/CSBA/Files/GovernanceResources/PolicyNews_Briefs/Technology/AI-Brief-REPD_09-2023.ashx
https://www.csba.org/Advocacy/EducationLegalAlliance/~/media/CSBA/Files/Advocacy/ELA/2017_02_legal-guidance-ProvidingAllChildrenEqualAccess.ashx
https://www.govinfo.gov/content/pkg/FR-2008-12-09/pdf/E8-28864.pdf
https://studentprivacy.ed.gov/sites/default/files/resource_document/file/IDEA-FERPA Crosswalk_08242022.pdf
https://studentprivacy.ed.gov/resources/school-resource-officers-school-law-enforcement-units-and-ferpa
https://studentprivacy.ed.gov/resources/eligible-student-guide-family-educational-rights-and-privacy-act-ferpa
https://studentprivacy.ed.gov/resources/parent-guide-family-educational-rights-and-privacy-act-ferpa
https://www.ed.gov/
https://www.ed.gov/
https://www.cite.org/stuprivacy
https://legalservices.csba.org/
https://studentprivacy.ed.gov
http://oag.ca.gov
http://www.cde.ca.gov
http://www.csba.org
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=2aGCaoK79paENKh3cGC8cg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=4XQaFrGRrecYplusYzJX8iFslshQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=o6imeqslsh96cCbNlv1lkZxjQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=3fxcWyEaRMF3Nxplus6hXIr3A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=jmPHy8NvRKgplusj4QuxTzH1w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=RHzd31LkJhRR4plusQQXGS3SQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=plussrJjGtKA0C9cRrvh7RCJw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=dzEvLKY3VZ2oNrfQVErklQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=jSQCN8bwEZWEmfVMQ1Y0aw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=iq4sw8gP4uPlJugVHK7Ivw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=ecGl55Yd2s34cmX8hplusjKfg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=vNSrdWF1Lc7b2AKwmDAffA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=R4ZhPTLBWEqPlXvysaYbbw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=xrw9F9HT1T362NYblff0Zw==


3515 Campus Security

3580 District Records

3580 District Records

4040 Employee Use Of Technology

4040-E(1) Employee Use Of Technology

4040-E(2) Employee Use Of Technology

4112.6 Personnel Files

4113.5 Working Remotely

4117.7 Employment Status Reports

4119.23 Unauthorized Release Of Confidential/Privileged Information

4158 Employee Security

4212.6 Personnel Files

4213.5 Working Remotely

4219.21 Professional Standards

4219.21-E(1) Professional Standards

4219.23 Unauthorized Release Of Confidential/Privileged Information

4258 Employee Security

4312.6 Personnel Files

4313.5 Working Remotely

4317.7 Employment Status Reports

4319.21 Professional Standards

4319.21-E(1) Professional Standards

4319.23 Unauthorized Release Of Confidential/Privileged Information

4358 Employee Security

5000 Concepts And Roles

5020 Parent Rights And Responsibilities

5020 Parent Rights And Responsibilities

5022 Student And Family Privacy Rights

5111 Admission

5113.1 Chronic Absence And Truancy

5121 Grades/Evaluation Of Student Achievement

5125.1 Release Of Directory Information

5125.1 Release Of Directory Information

5125.1-E(1) Release Of Directory Information

5125.2 Withholding Grades, Diploma Or Transcripts

5125.3 Challenging Student Records

5126 Awards For Achievement

5131.1 Bus Conduct

5131.2 Bullying

5131.2 Bullying

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

301

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=SXnOLI5H4DBGvUbNpDHPplusg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=gv3pXuGPnNJ4FbkDgiDsRQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=D5p9gmmX6Eny4PVrAplusuD1Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=6nc6yN5h6ydYtRyszA3ucw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=tQIn4iF1mMgHXBJHOE7NqQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=yMj6tPfEpjVPslsh8KibHJXlQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=ACXnZXJCZETJ0odq50Zlow==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=Mknaq5T7idr3yLMnzA5Knw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=LC9Pz8CoMRgFdpluslt3WWlkg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=K6Tz1opcKl36c4JHUFMmjw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=8DsOfIxzC0ZnOS4LYYYTWg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=cuCsDI5vt9ZrBUJxw3wSSQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=ScseNm0egmpK8FFktm7dQQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=LDAv0QjOzcy85e8TxGB8Sg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=Z1DGKLdYAsslshVslshkdCpBpCrA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=ScKQ8Bj5hsiIQUsIEzNBZA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=8fslshaZ3b81q70yUwg557Ccg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=xfD9FuXCdapZkeW3nMQsiA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=G4WRXd7slshr0slshGrplus8gyg11VA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=QQQslshz9gcSTD1zVSJkm4PfA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=9RrD3wQerk1bnZ5850HICg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=CTx0TjxkyiLX9jLP756gWw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=1iDUp1UFWKCyG7SfHplusCrlA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=BgStoslshAqQykifYwAxvtcwg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=9rsyL63tHRFWKQiW5l3plusnQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=44IpDntqHSCXUdslshLZslshAnBA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=I6w2zWpcS2sYPEQw1ujLrA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=iUckplusUpxygZYplusBSul2AU4A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=mTrXhWcJf1XRBdB2o9plusvjw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=KP0KQ5jVplusnuU8scjt2lSslshg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=mZA3eaplus1H4OmnCebHxkocw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=kplusBAJzFKTkoTb1g3UahT4w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=3PLMin1ewjxvQRsOBidZnQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=cXJrLCKRVDo4XC5YohlCDg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=M77ybQTyVNiMEfNcI7oFlQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=slshJoNslsh4eOvwxaImwRxrblLw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=HwNwiGvw3GEO6CuAqNb9slshQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=thKSKrf6LE9RS8pluseIpeWTg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=Lfk9sOrdiWnRslshqL3vIplusUMg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=5B1avrICtsslshmSzEslshnBGwGQ==


5131.7 Weapons And Dangerous Instruments

5131.7 Weapons And Dangerous Instruments

5141.21 Administering Medication And Monitoring Health Conditions

5141.22 Infectious Diseases

5141.22 Infectious Diseases

5141.52 Suicide Prevention

5144 Discipline

5144.1 Suspension And Expulsion/Due Process

5144.4 Required Parental Attendance

5145.12 Search And Seizure

5145.13 Response To Immigration Enforcement

5145.13 Response To Immigration Enforcement

5145.3 Nondiscrimination/Harassment

5145.3 Nondiscrimination/Harassment

5145.7 Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment

5145.7 Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment

6162.8 Research

6162.8 Research

6163.4 Student Use Of Technology

6172.1 Concurrent Enrollment In College Classes

6172.1 Concurrent Enrollment In College Classes

6178.1 Work-Based Learning

6178.1 Work-Based Learning

9011 Disclosure Of Confidential/Privileged Information

9012 Board Member Electronic Communications

9321 Closed Session

9321-E(1) Closed Session

9321-E(2) Closed Session

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

302

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=BHSMhQ1McXTWCpUjmLNAsQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=Hizgm2ULiD1AwbcZhCkN6w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=o0QIzqs3zJupQHGyAIVTaQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=z4rmfwJnvPuyaMMi42slshdsg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=cUwwCV8yzDdct5RWf5M68Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=RlZMgF3uXCProD6LloiCxA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=9QZ1JPrlEItuplustwpYNq9kw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=whXbDdMOHQCGVkhRRVsdiw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=NVadymHArpn82slshYwXX5WDQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=jrsIMamwIRXW5B1ql3kv6g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=tO9y1OrQ0IyxBtuN5cSa7A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=eg2VOquWazTLMMPSuOr6Qg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=EiUXO6paslshr9AfFW8105TvA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=4smDSpZxoyplus5u5plwCHOplusA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=zTFItLvSmxOOyLk3pwTWhg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=39af887bS5p04xVwfYRGGA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=slshFTzOTflQZcG179x2YTAEw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=qbOEUSDHxcz1yJqPfGoK4g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=ujb1BNrRypUFVLCsE7fc2g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=zC4RpLYx2LPzHmZSezLKGw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=lCIWplus0EbgrlDVslshTbslshP3yWg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=95lRK1a740xJKCplusKrysW5Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=rZjkcH9HPW4S5plusuDPRHFrw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=FDplusjomNzg7D9DrtkCVti2Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=slshJJXpMPYdhSf6JZk7yuJXw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=SCyIM86Pslsh2SXYfMWCoy4PA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=0plusIjrl1GcIFYmE3Py7jUqw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=DQY7ANJo4DIkPkvShOwaMQ==


Policy 5131: ConductPolicy 5131: Conduct Status:Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 06/12/2024 | Last Reviewed Date:| Last Reviewed Date: 06/12/2024

The Governing Board believes that all students have the right to be educated in a safe and positive learning
environment free from disruptions.  Students shall be expected to exhibit appropriate conduct that does not infringe
upon the rights of others or interfere with the school program while on school grounds, going to or coming from
school, at school activities, or using Tri-Valley ROP transportation.

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that the Tri-Valley Regional Occupational Program develops standards
of conduct and discipline consistent with Board policies and administrative regulations in accordance with TVROP
Program member districts, as well as program location.  Students and parents/guardians shall be notified
of program rules related to conduct.

Prohibited student conduct includes, but is not limited to:

1. Conduct that endangers students, staff, or others, including, but not limited to, physical violence, possession of
a firearm or other weapon, and terrorist threats
 

2. Discrimination, harassment, intimidation, or bullying of students or staff, including sexual harassment, hate-
motivated behavior, cyberbullying, hazing or initiation activity, extortion, or any other verbal, written, or
physical conduct that causes or threatens to cause violence, bodily harm, or substantial disruption to the
school program
 

3. Conduct that disrupts the orderly classroom or school environment
 

4. Willful defiance of staff's authority
 

5. Damage to or theft of property belonging to students, staff, or the district
 

6. Obscene acts or use of profane, vulgar, or abusive language
 

7. Possession, use, or being under the influence of tobacco, alcohol, or other prohibited substances
 

8. Possession or use of a laser pointer, unless for a valid instructional or other school-related purpose with prior
permission of the principal or designee  (Penal Code 417.27)
 

9. Use of a smartphone or other mobile communication device in an unauthorized manner
 

10. Plagiarism or dishonesty on school work or tests
 

11. Wearing of any attire that violates district or school dress codes, including gang-related apparel
 

12. Tardiness or unexcused absence from school
 

13. Failure to remain on school premises in accordance with school rules
 

14. Other conduct prohibited by Education Code 48900-48915-48915

Employees are expected to enforce standards of conduct and, when they observe or receive a report of a violation of
these standards, to appropriately intervene or seek assistance. As necessary, the employee shall refer the matter to a
supervisor, the principal or designee.

When a school employee suspects that a search of a student or a student's belongings will turn up evidence of the
student's violation of the law or school rules, such a search shall be conducted in accordance with BP/AR 5145.12 -
Search and Seizure.

Board Policy Manual
Tri-Valley Regional Occupational Program

303



Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

When a student uses any prohibited device, or uses a permitted device in an unauthorized manner, a TVROP
employee may confiscate the device.  The employee shall store the device securely until it is returned to the student
or turned over to the principal or designee, as appropriate.

Students who violate program, TVROP or school rules and regulations may be subject to discipline including, but not
limited to, suspension, expulsion, transfer to alternative programs, referral to a student success team or counseling
services, or denial of participation in extracurricular or cocurricular activities or other privileges in accordance with
TVROP Program member TVROP Board policy and administrative regulation.  The Superintendent or designee shall
notify local law enforcement as appropriate.

Students also may be subject to discipline, in accordance with law, Board policy, or administrative regulation, for any
off-campus conduct during nonschool hours which poses a threat or danger to the safety of students, staff, or
TVROP property, or substantially disrupts school activities.

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the Governing Board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter
of the policy.

StateState DescriptionDescription

5 CCR 300-307 Duties of students

Civ. Code 1714.1 Liability of parent or guardian for act of willful misconduct by a minor

Ed. Code 200-270 Prohibition of discrimination

Ed. Code 32280-32289.5 School safety plans

Ed. Code 35181 Governing board authority to set policy on responsibilities of students

Ed. Code 35291-35291.5 Rules

Ed. Code 44807 Teachers' duty concerning conduct of students

Ed. Code 48900-48925 Suspension and expulsion

Ed. Code 51512 Prohibition against electronic listening or recording device in classroom
without permission

Pen. Code 288.2 Harmful matter with intent to seduce

Pen. Code 313 Harmful matter

Pen. Code 417.25-417.27 Laser scope or laser pointer

Pen. Code 647 Use of camera or other instrument to invade person's privacy; misdemeanor

Pen. Code 653.2 Electronic communication devices; threats to safety

Veh. Code 23123-23124 Prohibitions against use of electronic devices while driving

FederalFederal DescriptionDescription

20 USC 1681-1688 Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972; discrimination based on sex

Management ResourcesManagement Resources DescriptionDescription

California Department of Education Publication Bullying at School, 2003

Court Decision Mahanoy Area School District v. B.L. (2021) 141 S.Ct. 2038

Court Decision Lavine v. Blaine School District (2001, 9th Cir.) 257 F.3d 981

Court Decision New Jersey v. T.L.O. (1985) 469 U.S. 325

Court Decision Tinker v. Des Moines Independent Community School District (1969) 393
U.S. 503

Court Decision Bethel School District No. 403 v. Fraser (1986) 478 U.S. 675

Court Decision Emmett v. Kent School District No. 415 (2000) 92 F.Supp. 1088

304

https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Browse/Home/California/CaliforniaCodeofRegulations?guid=I2A983D204C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3&transitionType=Default&contextData=%28sc.Default%29#I2A99EAD34C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=1714.1.&lawCode=CIV
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?division=1.&chapter=2.&part=1.&lawCode=EDC&title=1.&article=1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=1.&title=1.&part=19.&chapter=2.5.&article=5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=35181.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=3.&title=2.&part=21.&chapter=2.&article=10.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44807.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=27.&chapter=6.&article=1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=51512.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=288.2.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=313.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&division=&title=11.&part=1.&chapter=&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=647.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=653.2.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=VEH&division=11.&title=&part=&chapter=12.&article=1.
https://www.cde.ca.gov/ls/ss/se/documents/bullyingatschool.pdf
https://law.justia.com/cases/
https://law.justia.com/cases/
https://law.justia.com/cases/
https://law.justia.com/cases/
https://law.justia.com/cases/


Court Decision J.C. v. Beverly Hills Unified School District (2010) 711 F.Supp.2d 1094

Court Decision LaVine v. Blaine School District (2000, 9th Cir.) 257 F.3d 981

CSBA Publication Cyberbullying: Policy Considerations for Boards, Policy Brief, July 2007

CSBA Publication Providing a Safe, Nondiscriminatory School Environment for All Students,
Policy Brief, April 2010

CSBA Publication Safe Schools: Strategies for Governing Boards to Ensure Student Success,
2011

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Website National School Safety Center

Website Center for Safe and Responsible Internet Use

Website California Department of Education, Safe Schools

Website CSBA

Website U.S. Department of Education

Management ResourcesManagement Resources DescriptionDescription

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

0440 District Technology Plan

1114 District-Sponsored Social Media

1114 District-Sponsored Social Media

1313 Civility

3513.4 Drug And Alcohol Free Schools

3515.4 Recovery For Property Loss Or Damage

3515.4 Recovery For Property Loss Or Damage

4131 Staff Development

4219.21 Professional Standards

4219.21-E(1) Professional Standards

4231 Staff Development

4319.21 Professional Standards

4319.21-E(1) Professional Standards

5000 Concepts And Roles

5020 Parent Rights And Responsibilities

5020 Parent Rights And Responsibilities

5113 Absences And Excuses

5113 Absences And Excuses

5113.1 Chronic Absence And Truancy

5131.1 Bus Conduct

5131.2 Bullying

5131.2 Bullying

5131.4 Student Disturbances

5131.5 Vandalism And Graffiti

5131.6 Alcohol And Other Drugs

5131.6 Alcohol And Other Drugs

305

https://www.govinfo.gov/#advanced
https://law.justia.com/cases/
https://www.csba.org/GovernanceAndPolicyResources/DistrictPolicyServices/~/media/CSBA/Files/GovernanceResources/PolicyNews_Briefs/SchoolSafety/2010_07_PolicyBrief_Cyberbullying.ashx
https://www.csba.org/GovernanceAndPolicyResources/DistrictPolicyServices/~/media/CSBA/Files/GovernanceResources/PolicyNews_Briefs/SchoolSafety/2010_04_PolicyBrief_ProvidingSafeSchoolEnvironment.ashx
https://www.csba.org/GovernanceAndPolicyResources/ConditionsOfChildren/~/~/media/722EF232A117447F9711112F75FBC212.ashx
https://legalservices.csba.org/
http://www.schoolsafety.us
https://www.ewa.org/organization/center-safe-and-responsible-internet-use
http://www.cde.ca.gov/ls/ss
http://www.csba.org
http://www.ed.gov
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=2aGCaoK79paENKh3cGC8cg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=jmPHy8NvRKgplusj4QuxTzH1w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=RHzd31LkJhRR4plusQQXGS3SQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=0xhGErAek3pluswfAdZEDjbjA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=mslsh25efRnyATATJvXmjJDXg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=gcXDGWKU3g18gLlslshdb4FFw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=PMDh6qK65DRoI510J1iTVA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=rJXg9MUOCQww7zhslshFIwGew==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=LDAv0QjOzcy85e8TxGB8Sg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=Z1DGKLdYAsslshVslshkdCpBpCrA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=5lCMdGvgtplusdAslshT5ofNC1Vw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=9RrD3wQerk1bnZ5850HICg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=CTx0TjxkyiLX9jLP756gWw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=9rsyL63tHRFWKQiW5l3plusnQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=44IpDntqHSCXUdslshLZslshAnBA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=I6w2zWpcS2sYPEQw1ujLrA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=IJqjslsh1N35eQVHt0PaL7slsheg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=xlfSlq82LdUlQplusivplusMiV4w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=KP0KQ5jVplusnuU8scjt2lSslshg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=thKSKrf6LE9RS8pluseIpeWTg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=Lfk9sOrdiWnRslshqL3vIplusUMg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=5B1avrICtsslshmSzEslshnBGwGQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=slshDY4P9nEeCkdcccslshIbwosA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=kplusRWnBbBfFQuPPZAc0v9iQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=IWPMwwfAoBRAZjVnt4pOCg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=TuEjt1uBBXgv5dQI8zNiRA==


5131.62 Tobacco

5131.7 Weapons And Dangerous Instruments

5131.7 Weapons And Dangerous Instruments

5131.8 Mobile Communication Devices

5131.9 Academic Honesty

5132 Dress And Grooming

5137 Positive School Climate

5141.4 Child Abuse Prevention And Reporting

5141.4 Child Abuse Prevention And Reporting

5141.52 Suicide Prevention

5142 Safety

5144 Discipline

5144.1 Suspension And Expulsion/Due Process

5144.4 Required Parental Attendance

5145.12 Search And Seizure

5145.2 Freedom Of Speech/Expression

5145.2 Freedom Of Speech/Expression

5145.3 Nondiscrimination/Harassment

5145.3 Nondiscrimination/Harassment

5145.7 Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment

5145.7 Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment

5145.9 Hate-Motivated Behavior

6144 Controversial Issues

6145 Extracurricular And Cocurricular Activities

6145.8 Assemblies And Special Events

6153 School-Sponsored Trips

6153 School-Sponsored Trips

6162.54 Test Integrity/Test Preparation

6163.4 Student Use Of Technology

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

306

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=YbYQdtsMhxc2ABqk3plusslshguA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=BHSMhQ1McXTWCpUjmLNAsQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=Hizgm2ULiD1AwbcZhCkN6w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=12Wi7slshH4slshnWjQPWREyTvtg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=ZjMplusaTDQOxslshslsh9IqihIJdCA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=LYWxcOL8PTc9AK6LKd6ufg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=BEplusrKHyhplusToYG00xyr53CA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=IxWIZuFMitLEIUaqC85Q5w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=0khuOplusB4HLipdYpKyT2UGQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=RlZMgF3uXCProD6LloiCxA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=mXhhOV4TLdVslshUeKb8Pc4zQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=9QZ1JPrlEItuplustwpYNq9kw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=whXbDdMOHQCGVkhRRVsdiw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=NVadymHArpn82slshYwXX5WDQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=jrsIMamwIRXW5B1ql3kv6g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=U5qk7o6wm5plusslshBslshWMrgXXrg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=fRxR3kCBm2sLgzLcLIhLLQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=EiUXO6paslshr9AfFW8105TvA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=4smDSpZxoyplus5u5plwCHOplusA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=zTFItLvSmxOOyLk3pwTWhg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=39af887bS5p04xVwfYRGGA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=HBlFhEpqWWW6CAs8I8j2vw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=Bf9Mtee3QlT7nl0OwwE0fA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=SSxbQwVBCKcQYh6plusNj9AaA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=Rduw5O0a8U1Nz5RJR4hDew==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=04EMmPO31dCAdppkrCplusIdw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=70wJmTWSnwH4SN3IW8q5qA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=A9qsr2y7asMiQnTaoLY99w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=ujb1BNrRypUFVLCsE7fc2g==


Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

Policy 5131.6: Alcohol And Other DrugsPolicy 5131.6: Alcohol And Other Drugs Status:Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 06/12/2024 | Last Reviewed Date:| Last Reviewed Date: 06/12/2024

The Governing Board believes that the use of alcohol or other drugs adversely affects a student's ability to achieve
academic success, is physically and emotionally harmful, and has serious social and legal consequences. The
Superintendent or designee shall develop comprehensive programs and activities to foster safe, healthy, and drug-
free environments that support academic achievement.

Intervention, Referral, and Student Assistance Programs

The Board strongly encourages any student who is using alcohol or drugs to discuss the matter with his/her
parent/guardian or with any staff member. Students who disclose their use of alcohol or other drugs when seeking
help from an intervention or recovery program shall not be disciplined for such use.  including that, in accordance
with Education Code 48900, students who voluntarily disclose their use of a tobacco product, controlled substance,
alcohol, or an intoxicant of any kind in order to seek help through services or supports shall not be suspended.

Opioid Antagonists

Students in middle school, junior high school, high school, or adult school, may carry fentanyl test strips or a federally
approved opioid antagonist for the emergency treatment of persons suffering, or reasonably believed to be suffering,
from an opioid overdose, while on a school site or participating in a school activity.  (Education Code 49414.6)

Additionally, students 12 years of age or older, while on a school site or participating in school activities, may carry
and administer a naloxone hydrochloride nasal spray or any other opioid overdose reversal medication that is
federally approved for over-the counter nonprescription use for the purpose of providing emergency treatment to
persons who are suffering, or reasonably believed to be suffering, from an opioid overdose.  (Education Code
49414.35) 

Enforcement/Discipline

Students shall not possess, use, or sell alcohol or other drugs and related paraphernalia on school grounds or at
program-sponsored activities.

The Superintendent or designee shall clearly communicate the Tri-Valley ROP's policies, regulations, and TVROP
Program Member district's rules related to the use of alcohol and other drugs.

Any student found to be selling a controlled substance listed in Health and Safety Code 11053-11058 shall be
subject to the discipline policies of the TVROP Program Member districts.

The district may use alternatives to the referral of a student to a law enforcement agency in response to an incident
involving the student's misuse of an opioid, to the extent any alternative utilized is not in conflict with any law
requiring that referral.  (Education Code 49414.4)
 

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the Governing Board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter
of the policy.

StateState DescriptionDescription

Bus. Code 25608 Alcohol on school property; use in connection with instruction

Ed. Code 32282 School safety plans

Ed. Code 44049 Known or suspected alcohol or drug abuse by student

Ed. Code 44645 In-service training anabolic steroids

Ed. Code 48900 Grounds for suspension or expulsion

Ed. Code 48900.5 Suspension, limitation on imposition; exception

Ed. Code 48901 Smoking or use of tobacco prohibited

Board Policy Manual
Tri-Valley Regional Occupational Program

307

http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=25608.&lawCode=BPC
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44049.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=3.&title=2.&part=25.&chapter=3.&article=10.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48900.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48900.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48901.


Ed. Code 48901.5 Prohibition of electronic signaling devices

Ed. Code 48902 Notification of law enforcement authorities; civil or criminal immunity

Ed. Code 48909 Narcotics or other hallucinogenic drugs

Ed. Code 48915 Expulsion; particular circumstances

Ed. Code 48980 Parent/Guardian notifications

Ed. Code 48985.5 Fentanyl and synthetic drugs danger notification

Ed. Code 49414.35 Opioid antagonist use by students

Ed. Code 49414.4 Alternatives to law enforcement referrals for opioid misuse

Ed. Code 49414.6 Opioid antagonist possession

Ed. Code 49428.16 County Working Group on Fentanyl Education in Schools

Ed. Code 49602 Counseling and confidentiality of student information

Ed. Code 51202 Instruction in personal and public health and safety

Ed. Code 51203 Instruction on alcohol, narcotics and restricted dangerous drugs

Ed. Code 51210 Course of study for grades 1-6

Ed. Code 51220 Areas of study; grades 7 to 12

Ed. Code 51225.38 Health education; fentanyl instruction

Ed. Code 51260-51269 Drug education

Ed. Code 60041 Instructional materials

Ed. Code 60110-60115 Instructional materials on alcohol and drug education

H&S Code 11032 Narcotics, restricted dangerous drugs and marijuana

H&S Code 11053-11059 Controlled substances; standards and schedules

H&S Code 11353.6 Juvenile Drug Trafficking and Schoolyard Act

H&S Code 11357 Unauthorized possession of marijuana; possession in school or on school
grounds

H&S Code 11361.5 Destruction of arrest or conviction records

H&S Code 11372.7 Drug program fund; uses

H&S Code 11802 Joint school-community alcohol abuse primary education and prevention
program

H&S Code 11999-11999.3 Alcohol and drug program funding; no unlawful use

H&S Code 124175-124200 Adolescent family life program

Pen. Code 13860-13864 Suppression of drug abuse in schools

Veh. Code 13202.5 Drug and alcohol related offenses by persons under age of 21, but aged 13
or over

W&I Code 828 Disclosure of information regarding minors

W&I Code 828.1 Disclosure of criminal records; protection of vulnerable staff and students

StateState DescriptionDescription

FederalFederal DescriptionDescription

20 USC 5812 National education goals

20 USC 7101-7122 Student Support and Academic Enrichment Grants

Management ResourcesManagement Resources DescriptionDescription

308

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48901.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48902.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48909.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48915.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48980.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49602.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=51202.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=51203.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=51210.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=51220.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=28.&chapter=2.&article=5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=60041.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=33.&chapter=1.&article=6.&op_statues=1995&op_chapter=413&op_section=11
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=HSC&sectionNum=11032.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=HSC&division=10.&title=&part=&chapter=2.&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=HSC&sectionNum=11353.6.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=HSC&sectionNum=11357.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=HSC&sectionNum=11361.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=HSC&sectionNum=11372.7.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=HSC&sectionNum=11802.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=HSC&division=10.7.&title=&part=&chapter=&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=HSC&division=106.&title=&part=2.&chapter=4.&article=1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&division=&title=6.&part=4.&chapter=7.&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=VEH&sectionNum=13202.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=WIC&sectionNum=828.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=WIC&sectionNum=828.1.
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=(title:20 section:5812 edition:prelim) OR (granuleid:USC-prelim-title20-section5812)&f=treesort&edition=prelim&num=0&jumpTo=true


Website U.S. Department of Education, Student Support and Academic Enrichment
Program

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Website California Department of Education, Alcohol, Tobacco and Other Drug
Prevention

Website California Healthy Kids Resource Center

Management ResourcesManagement Resources DescriptionDescription

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

1325 Advertising And Promotion

3290 Gifts, Grants And Bequests

3513.4 Drug And Alcohol Free Schools

4131 Staff Development

5020 Parent Rights And Responsibilities

5020 Parent Rights And Responsibilities

5022 Student And Family Privacy Rights

5131 Conduct

5131.62 Tobacco

5137 Positive School Climate

5141 Health Care And Emergencies

5141 Health Care And Emergencies

5141.52 Suicide Prevention

5144 Discipline

5144.1 Suspension And Expulsion/Due Process

5145.11 Questioning And Apprehension By Law Enforcement

5145.12 Search And Seizure

309

https://www.ed.gov/grants-and-programs/formula-grants/school-improvement/student-support-and-academic-enrichment-program
https://legalservices.csba.org/
http://www.cde.ca.gov/ls/he/at
http://www.ccrcca.org/resources/family-resource-directory/item/california-healthy-kids-resource-center
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=jtTPUhbBh8plusplusBQJMp5KdslshQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=R4ZhPTLBWEqPlXvysaYbbw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=mslsh25efRnyATATJvXmjJDXg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=rJXg9MUOCQww7zhslshFIwGew==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=44IpDntqHSCXUdslshLZslshAnBA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=I6w2zWpcS2sYPEQw1ujLrA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=iUckplusUpxygZYplusBSul2AU4A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=POoErMBgg11mHxyl53DMxw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=YbYQdtsMhxc2ABqk3plusslshguA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=BEplusrKHyhplusToYG00xyr53CA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=F7Zplus4Umpr2hMy42UslshnrwGg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=fBNnJuPUPNxvaoQplus8SeLyw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=RlZMgF3uXCProD6LloiCxA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=9QZ1JPrlEItuplustwpYNq9kw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=whXbDdMOHQCGVkhRRVsdiw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=96cCsq6ePUzrceslshRreTE4Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=jrsIMamwIRXW5B1ql3kv6g==


School staff shall not disclose confidential information provided during counseling by a student 12 years of age or older. A school counselor may report such information to the principal or parent/guardian only when the counselor believes that disclosure is necessary to
avert a clear and present danger to the health, safety or welfare of the student or other persons living in the school community. The school counselor shall not disclose such information to the parent/guardian if the counselor believes that the disclosure would result in a
clear and present danger to the student's health, safety or welfare.  (Education Code 44049, 49602)

Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

Regulation 5131.6: Alcohol And Other DrugsRegulation 5131.6: Alcohol And Other Drugs Status:Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 06/12/2024 | Last Reviewed Date:| Last Reviewed Date: 06/12/2024

Intervention

Tri-Valley ROP staff shall intervene whenever students use alcohol or other illegal drugs while on school property or under school jurisdiction.  Staff members who
have a reasonable suspicion that a student may be under the influence of alcohol or drugs shall immediately notify the TVROP Program Member district site
administrator or designee.

If the Superintendent or designee, observes or suspects that a student may be under the influence of alcohol or drugs, the principal or designee may notify the
student's parent/guardian.  (Education Code 44049)

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority for the Governing Board to enact this policy. Instead,
they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter of the policy.

StateState DescriptionDescription

Bus. Code 25608 Alcohol on school property; use in connection with instruction

Ed. Code 32282 School safety plans

Ed. Code 44049 Known or suspected alcohol or drug abuse by student

Ed. Code 44645 In-service training anabolic steroids

Ed. Code 48900 Grounds for suspension or expulsion

Ed. Code 48900.5 Suspension, limitation on imposition; exception

Ed. Code 48901 Smoking or use of tobacco prohibited

Ed. Code 48901.5 Prohibition of electronic signaling devices

Ed. Code 48902 Notification of law enforcement authorities; civil or criminal immunity

Ed. Code 48909 Narcotics or other hallucinogenic drugs

Ed. Code 48915 Expulsion; particular circumstances

Ed. Code 48980 Parent/Guardian notifications

Ed. Code 48985.5 Fentanyl and synthetic drugs danger notification

Ed. Code 49414.35 Opioid antagonist use by students

Ed. Code 49414.4 Alternatives to law enforcement referrals for opioid misuse

Ed. Code 49414.6 Opioid antagonist possession

Ed. Code 49428.16 County Working Group on Fentanyl Education in Schools

Ed. Code 49602 Counseling and confidentiality of student information

Ed. Code 51202 Instruction in personal and public health and safety

Ed. Code 51203 Instruction on alcohol, narcotics and restricted dangerous drugs

Ed. Code 51210 Course of study for grades 1-6

Ed. Code 51220 Areas of study; grades 7 to 12

Ed. Code 51225.38 Health education; fentanyl instruction

Ed. Code 51260-51269 Drug education

Ed. Code 60041 Instructional materials

Ed. Code 60110-60115 Instructional materials on alcohol and drug education

H&S Code 11032 Narcotics, restricted dangerous drugs and marijuana

H&S Code 11053-11059 Controlled substances; standards and schedules

H&S Code 11353.6 Juvenile Drug Trafficking and Schoolyard Act

H&S Code 11357 Unauthorized possession of marijuana; possession in school or on school grounds

H&S Code 11361.5 Destruction of arrest or conviction records

H&S Code 11372.7 Drug program fund; uses

H&S Code 11802 Joint school-community alcohol abuse primary education and prevention program

H&S Code 11999-11999.3 Alcohol and drug program funding; no unlawful use

H&S Code 124175-124200 Adolescent family life program

Pen. Code 13860-13864 Suppression of drug abuse in schools

Veh. Code 13202.5 Drug and alcohol related offenses by persons under age of 21, but aged 13 or over

W&I Code 828 Disclosure of information regarding minors

W&I Code 828.1 Disclosure of criminal records; protection of vulnerable staff and students

FederalFederal DescriptionDescription

20 USC 5812 National education goals

20 USC 7101-7122 Student Support and Academic Enrichment Grants

Board Policy Manual
Tri-Valley Regional Occupational Program

310

http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=25608.&lawCode=BPC
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44049.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=3.&title=2.&part=25.&chapter=3.&article=10.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48900.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48900.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48901.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48901.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48902.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48909.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48915.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48980.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49602.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=51202.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=51203.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=51210.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=51220.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=28.&chapter=2.&article=5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=60041.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=33.&chapter=1.&article=6.&op_statues=1995&op_chapter=413&op_section=11
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=HSC&sectionNum=11032.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=HSC&division=10.&title=&part=&chapter=2.&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=HSC&sectionNum=11353.6.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=HSC&sectionNum=11357.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=HSC&sectionNum=11361.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=HSC&sectionNum=11372.7.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=HSC&sectionNum=11802.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=HSC&division=10.7.&title=&part=&chapter=&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=HSC&division=106.&title=&part=2.&chapter=4.&article=1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&division=&title=6.&part=4.&chapter=7.&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=VEH&sectionNum=13202.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=WIC&sectionNum=828.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=WIC&sectionNum=828.1.
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=(title:20 section:5812 edition:prelim) OR (granuleid:USC-prelim-title20-section5812)&f=treesort&edition=prelim&num=0&jumpTo=true


Management ResourcesManagement Resources DescriptionDescription

Website U.S. Department of Education, Student Support and Academic Enrichment Program

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Website California Department of Education, Alcohol, Tobacco and Other Drug Prevention

Website California Healthy Kids Resource Center

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

1325 Advertising And Promotion

3290 Gifts, Grants And Bequests

3513.4 Drug And Alcohol Free Schools

4131 Staff Development

5020 Parent Rights And Responsibilities

5020 Parent Rights And Responsibilities

5022 Student And Family Privacy Rights

5131 Conduct

5131.62 Tobacco

5137 Positive School Climate

5141 Health Care And Emergencies

5141 Health Care And Emergencies

5141.52 Suicide Prevention

5144 Discipline

5144.1 Suspension And Expulsion/Due Process

5145.11 Questioning And Apprehension By Law Enforcement

5145.12 Search And Seizure

311

https://www.ed.gov/grants-and-programs/formula-grants/school-improvement/student-support-and-academic-enrichment-program
https://legalservices.csba.org/
http://www.cde.ca.gov/ls/he/at
http://www.ccrcca.org/resources/family-resource-directory/item/california-healthy-kids-resource-center
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=jtTPUhbBh8plusplusBQJMp5KdslshQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=R4ZhPTLBWEqPlXvysaYbbw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=mslsh25efRnyATATJvXmjJDXg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=rJXg9MUOCQww7zhslshFIwGew==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=44IpDntqHSCXUdslshLZslshAnBA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=I6w2zWpcS2sYPEQw1ujLrA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=iUckplusUpxygZYplusBSul2AU4A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=POoErMBgg11mHxyl53DMxw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=YbYQdtsMhxc2ABqk3plusslshguA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=BEplusrKHyhplusToYG00xyr53CA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=F7Zplus4Umpr2hMy42UslshnrwGg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=fBNnJuPUPNxvaoQplus8SeLyw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=RlZMgF3uXCProD6LloiCxA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=9QZ1JPrlEItuplustwpYNq9kw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=whXbDdMOHQCGVkhRRVsdiw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=96cCsq6ePUzrceslshRreTE4Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=jrsIMamwIRXW5B1ql3kv6g==


Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

Policy 5131.8: Mobile Communication DevicesPolicy 5131.8: Mobile Communication Devices Status:Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 06/12/2024 | Last Reviewed Date:| Last Reviewed Date: 06/12/2024

The Governing Board recognizes that the use of smartphones and other mobile communication devices on campus
may be beneficial to student learning and well-being, but could be disruptive of the instructional program in some
circumstances.  The Board permits limited use of mobile communication devices on campus in accordance with law
and the following policy.

Students may use cell phones, smart watches, pagers, or other mobile communication devices on campus during
noninstructional time as long as the device is utilized in accordance with law and any rules that individual school sites
may impose.

Mobile communication devices shall be turned off during instructional time.  However, a student shall not be
prohibited from possessing or using a mobile communication device under any of the following circumstances:
 (Education Code 48901.5, 48901.7)

1. In the case of an emergency, or in response to a perceived threat of danger 
 

2. When a teacher or administrator grants permission to the student to possess or use a mobile communication
device, subject to any reasonable limitation imposed by that teacher or administrator
 

3. When a licensed physician or surgeon determines that the possession or use is necessary for the student's
health and well-being  
 

4. When the possession or use is required by the student's individualized education program

Smartphones and other mobile communication devices shall not be used in any manner which infringes on the
privacy rights of any other person.

When a school official reasonably suspects that a search of a student's mobile communication device will turn up
evidence of the student's violation of the law or school rules, such a search shall be conducted in accordance with
BP/AR 5145.12 - Search and Seizure.

When a student uses a mobile communication device in an unauthorized manner, the student may be disciplined and
a Tri- Valley ROP employee may confiscate the device.  The employee shall store the device securely until it is
returned to the student or turned over to the TVROP Program Member district adminstrator or designee, as
appropriate. 

A student may also be subject to discipline, in accordance with law, TVROP Program Member district's Board policy,
or administrative regulation, for off-campus use of a mobile communication device which poses a threat or danger to
the safety of students, staff, or TVROP property or substantially disrupts program activities.

The Superintendent or designee shall inform students that the TVROP will not be responsible for a student's mobile
communication device which is brought on campus or to a program activity and is lost, stolen, or damaged.

The Board shall review and, as necessary, update this policy at least once every five years. 

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the Governing Board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter
of the policy.

StateState DescriptionDescription

5 CCR 300-307 Duties of students

Civ. Code 1714.1 Liability of parent or guardian for act of willful misconduct by a minor

Ed. Code 200-270 Prohibition of discrimination

Ed. Code 32280-32289.5 School safety plans

Ed. Code 35181 Governing board authority to set policy on responsibilities of students

Board Policy Manual
Tri-Valley Regional Occupational Program

312

https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Browse/Home/California/CaliforniaCodeofRegulations?guid=I2A983D204C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3&transitionType=Default&contextData=%28sc.Default%29#I2A99EAD34C6911EC93A8000D3A7C4BC3
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=1714.1.&lawCode=CIV
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?division=1.&chapter=2.&part=1.&lawCode=EDC&title=1.&article=1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=1.&title=1.&part=19.&chapter=2.5.&article=5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=35181.


Ed. Code 35291-35291.5 Rules

Ed. Code 44807 Teachers' duty concerning conduct of students

Ed. Code 48900-48925 Suspension and expulsion

Ed. Code 48901.5 Prohibition of electronic signaling devices

Ed. Code 48901.7 Limitation or prohibition of student use of smartphones

Ed. Code 48901.8 Limitation or prohibition of student use of social media

Ed. Code 51512 Prohibited use of electronic listening or recording device

Pen. Code 1546.1 Electronic Communications Privacy Act

Pen. Code 288.2 Harmful matter with intent to seduce

Pen. Code 313 Harmful matter

Pen. Code 647 Use of camera or other instrument to invade person's privacy; misdemeanor

Pen. Code 653.2 Electronic communication devices; threats to safety

Veh. Code 23123-23124 Prohibitions against use of electronic devices while driving

StateState DescriptionDescription

FederalFederal DescriptionDescription

20 USC 1681-1688 Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972; discrimination based on sex

Management ResourcesManagement Resources DescriptionDescription

California Department of Education Publication Bullying at School, 2003

Court Decision Safford Unified School District V. Redding (2009) 557 US 364

Court Decision Mahanoy Area School District v. B.L. (2021) 141 S.Ct. 2038

Court Decision J.C. v. Beverly Hills Unified School District (2010) 711 F.Supp.2d 1094

Court Decision New Jersey v. T.L.O. (1985) 469 U.S. 325

Court Decision Tinker v. Des Moines Independent Community School District (1969) 393
U.S. 503

CSBA Publication Cyberbullying: Policy Considerations for Boards, Policy Brief, rev. July 2010

CSBA Publication Safe Schools: Strategies for Governing Boards to Ensure Student Success,
2011

U.S. Department of Education Publication Planning Together: A Playbook for Student Personal Device Policies,
December 2024

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Website National School Safety Center

Website Center for Safe and Responsible Internet Use

Website California Department of Education, Safe Schools

Website CSBA

Website U.S. Department of Education

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

5131 Conduct

5131.2 Bullying

5131.2 Bullying

5131.4 Student Disturbances

313

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=3.&title=2.&part=21.&chapter=2.&article=10.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44807.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=27.&chapter=6.&article=1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48901.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48901.7.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=51512.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=288.2.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=313.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=647.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=653.2.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=VEH&division=11.&title=&part=&chapter=12.&article=1.
https://www.cde.ca.gov/ls/ss/se/documents/bullyingatschool.pdf
https://www.govinfo.gov/#advanced
https://law.justia.com/cases/
https://law.justia.com/cases/
https://www.csba.org/~/media/Files/Services/PolicyServices/SamplePolicies/Cyberbullying.ashx
https://www.csba.org/GovernanceAndPolicyResources/ConditionsOfChildren/~/~/media/722EF232A117447F9711112F75FBC212.ashx
https://tech.ed.gov/device-policy-playbook/
https://legalservices.csba.org/
http://www.schoolsafety.us
https://www.ewa.org/organization/center-safe-and-responsible-internet-use
http://www.cde.ca.gov/ls/ss
http://www.csba.org
http://www.ed.gov
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=POoErMBgg11mHxyl53DMxw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=Lfk9sOrdiWnRslshqL3vIplusUMg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=5B1avrICtsslshmSzEslshnBGwGQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=slshDY4P9nEeCkdcccslshIbwosA==


5131.9 Academic Honesty

5137 Positive School Climate

5141.52 Suicide Prevention

5145.12 Search And Seizure

5145.2 Freedom Of Speech/Expression

5145.2 Freedom Of Speech/Expression

6163.4 Student Use Of Technology

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

314

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=ZjMplusaTDQOxslshslsh9IqihIJdCA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=BEplusrKHyhplusToYG00xyr53CA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=RlZMgF3uXCProD6LloiCxA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=jrsIMamwIRXW5B1ql3kv6g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=U5qk7o6wm5plusslshBslshWMrgXXrg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=fRxR3kCBm2sLgzLcLIhLLQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=ujb1BNrRypUFVLCsE7fc2g==


Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

Policy 5144.1: Suspension And Expulsion/Due ProcessPolicy 5144.1: Suspension And Expulsion/Due Process Status:Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 06/12/2024 | Last Reviewed Date:| Last Reviewed Date: 06/12/2024

The Governing Board desires to provide Tri-Valley ROP students access to educational opportunities in an orderly
school environment that protects their safety and security, ensures their welfare and well-being, and promotes their
learning and development. The Member Districts' Boards shall develop rules and regulations setting the standards of
behavior expected of TVROP students and the disciplinary processes and procedures for addressing violations of
those standards, including suspension and/or expulsion.  

The grounds for suspension and expulsion and the procedures for considering, recommending, and/or implementing
suspension and expulsion shall be only those specified in law, in Member Districts' policies, and administrative
regulations. 

Appropriate Use of Suspension Authority 

Except when a student's act violates Education Code 48900(a)-(e), as listed in Items #1-5 under "Grounds for
Suspension and Expulsion: Grades K-12" as identified in the Member Districts' administrative regulations, or when
the student's presence causes a danger to others, suspension shall be used only when other means of correction
have failed to bring about proper conduct. (Education Code 48900.5, 48900.6)  

A student's parents/guardians shall be notified as soon as possible when there is an escalating pattern of misbehavior
that could lead to on-campus or off-campus suspension. 

No student may be suspended for disruption or willful defiance, except by a teacher pursuant to Education Code
48910.  (Education Code 48900) 

Students shall not be suspended or expelled for  based solely on a student's  truancy, tardiness, or absenteeism from
assigned TVROP program activities.     (Education Code 48900) 

Authority to Expel 

A student may be expelled only by the Member Districts' Board. (Education Code 48918(j)) 

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the Governing Board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter
of the policy.

StateState DescriptionDescription

Civ. Code 47 Privileged communication

Civ. Code 48.8 Defamation liability

Code of Civil Procedure 1985-1997 Production of evidence; means of production

Ed. Code 17292.5 Program for expelled students; facilities

Ed. Code 1981-1983 Enrollment of students in community school

Ed. Code 212.5 Sexual harassment

Ed. Code 233 Hate violence

Ed. Code 32260-32262 Interagency School Safety Demonstration Act of 1985

Ed. Code 35145 Open board meetings

Ed. Code 35146 Closed sessions regarding suspensions

Ed. Code 35291 Rules for government and discipline of schools

Ed. Code 35291.5 Rules and procedures on school discipline

Ed. Code 48645.5 Former juvenile court school students; enrollment

Ed. Code 48660-48666 Community day schools

Ed. Code 48853-48853.5 Foster youth

Board Policy Manual
Tri-Valley Regional Occupational Program

315

http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=47.&lawCode=CIV
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=48.8.&lawCode=CIV
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=1985.&lawCode=CCP
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=17292.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=1.&title=1.&part=2.&chapter=6.5.&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=212.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=233.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=1.&title=1.&part=19.&chapter=2.5.&article=1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=35145.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=35146.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=35291.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=35291.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48645.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=27.&chapter=4.&article=3.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=27.&chapter=5.5.&article=


Ed. Code 48900-48927 Suspension and expulsion

Ed. Code 48950 Speech and other communication

Ed. Code 48980 Parent/Guardian notifications

Ed. Code 49073-49079 Privacy of student records

Ed. Code 52052 Numerically significant student subgroups

Ed. Code 52060-52077 Local control and accountability plan

Ed. Code 64000-64001 Consolidated application

Ed. Code 8489-8489.1 Prohibition against expulsion of preschool student

Gov. Code 11455.20 Informal hearing procedures

Gov. Code 54950-54963 The Ralph M. Brown Act

H&S Code 11014.5 Drug paraphernalia

H&S Code 11053-11059 Controlled substances; standards and schedules

Lab. Code 230.7 Employee time off to appear in school on behalf of a child

Pen. Code 240 Assault defined

Pen. Code 241.2 Assault fines

Pen. Code 242 Battery defined

Pen. Code 243.2 Battery on school property

Pen. Code 243.4 Sexual battery

Pen. Code 245 Assault with deadly weapon

Pen. Code 245.6 Hazing

Pen. Code 261 Rape defined

Pen. Code 266c Unlawful sexual intercourse

Pen. Code 286 Sodomy defined

Pen. Code 287 Oral Copulation

Pen. Code 288 Lewd or lascivious acts with child under age 14

Pen. Code 289 Penetration of genital or anal openings

Pen. Code 31 Principal of a crime; defined

Pen. Code 417.27 Laser pointers

Pen. Code 422.55 Definition of hate crime

Pen. Code 422.6 Crimes; harassment

Pen. Code 422.7 Aggravating factors for punishment

Pen. Code 422.75 Enhanced penalties for hate crimes

Pen. Code 626.10 Dirks, daggers, knives, razors, or stun guns

Pen. Code 626.2 Entry upon campus after written notice of suspension or dismissal without
permission

Pen. Code 626.9 Gun-Free School Zone Act of 1995

Pen. Code 868.5 Supporting person; attendance during testimony of witness

W&I Code 224.1 Indian child; definition

W&I Code 729.6 Counseling

StateState DescriptionDescription

316

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=27.&chapter=6.&article=1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48950.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48980.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=27.&chapter=6.5.&article=5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=52052.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=4.&title=2.&part=28.&chapter=6.1.&article=4.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayexpandedbranch.xhtml?tocCode=EDC&division=&title=2.&part=&chapter=&article=&nodetreepath=2
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=1.&title=1.&part=6.&chapter=2.&article=24.&op_statues=2022&op_chapter=915&op_section=4
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=11455.20.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&division=2.&title=5.&part=1.&chapter=9.&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=HSC&sectionNum=11014.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=HSC&division=10.&title=&part=&chapter=2.&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&sectionNum=230.7.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=240.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=241.2.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=242.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=243.2.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=243.4.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=245.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=245.6.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=261.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=266c.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=286.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=287.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=288.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=289.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=31.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=417.27.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=422.55.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=422.6.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=422.7.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=422.75.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=626.10.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=626.2.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=626.9.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=868.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=WIC&sectionNum=224.1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=WIC&sectionNum=729.6.


FederalFederal DescriptionDescription

18 USC 921 Definitions; firearms and ammunition

20 USC 1415(K) Students with disabilities; placement in alternative educational setting

20 USC 7961 Gun-Free Schools Act

42 USC 11431-11435 Education of homeless children and youths

Management ResourcesManagement Resources DescriptionDescription

Attorney General Opinion 80 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 348 (1997)

Attorney General Opinion 80 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 85 (1997)

Attorney General Opinion 80 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 91 (1997)

Attorney General Opinion 84 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 146 (2001)

Court Decision
Board of Education of Sacramento City Unified School District v.
Sacramento County Board of Education and Kenneth H. (2001) 85
Cal.App.4th 1321

Court Decision Fremont Union High School District v. Santa Clara County Board (1991) 235
Cal. App. 3d 1182

Court Decision Garcia v. Los Angeles Board of Education (1981) 123 Cal. App. 3d 807

Court Decision John A. v. San Bernardino School District (1982) 33 Cal. 3d 301

Court Decision T.H. v. San Diego Unified School District (2004) 122 Cal. App. 4th 1267

Court Decision Woodbury v. Dempsey (2003) 108 Cal. App. 4th 421

U.S. DOE & U.S. DOJ Civil Rights Divisions Pub Resource on Confronting Racial Discrimination in Student Discipline, May
2023

U.S. DOE Publication School Climate and Student Discipline Resources

U.S. DOE Publication Guiding Principles for Creating Safe, Inclusive, Supportive, and Fair School
Climates, March 2023

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Website U.S. Department of Education, Office of Safe and Healthy Students

Website California Attorney General's Office

Website California Department of Education

Website CSBA

Website U.S. Department of Education, Office for Civil Rights

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

1114 District-Sponsored Social Media

1114 District-Sponsored Social Media

1312.3 Uniform Complaint Procedures

1312.3 Uniform Complaint Procedures

1313 Civility

3513.3 Tobacco-Free Schools

3513.3 Tobacco-Free Schools

3513.4 Drug And Alcohol Free Schools

3515 Campus Security

3515.4 Recovery For Property Loss Or Damage

3515.4 Recovery For Property Loss Or Damage

317

https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=(title:18 section:921 edition:prelim) OR (granuleid:USC-prelim-title18-section921)&f=treesort&edition=prelim&num=0&jumpTo=true
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=(title:20 section:7961 edition:prelim) OR (granuleid:USC-prelim-title20-section7961)&f=treesort&edition=prelim&num=0&jumpTo=true
https://oag.ca.gov/opinions
https://oag.ca.gov/opinions
https://oag.ca.gov/opinions
https://oag.ca.gov/opinions
https://www.lexisnexis.com/clients/CACourts/
https://www.lexisnexis.com/clients/CACourts/
https://www.lexisnexis.com/clients/CACourts/
https://www.lexisnexis.com/clients/CACourts/
https://www.lexisnexis.com/clients/CACourts/
https://www.lexisnexis.com/clients/CACourts/
https://www2.ed.gov/about/offices/list/ocr/docs/tvi-student-discipline-resource-202305.pdf
https://www2.ed.gov/policy/gen/guid/school-discipline/index.html
https://www2.ed.gov/policy/gen/guid/school-discipline/guiding-principles.pdf
https://legalservices.csba.org/
https://www2.ed.gov/about/offices/list/oese/oshs
http://oag.ca.gov
http://www.cde.ca.gov
http://www.csba.org
http://www2.ed.gov/ocr
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=jmPHy8NvRKgplusj4QuxTzH1w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=RHzd31LkJhRR4plusQQXGS3SQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=plussrJjGtKA0C9cRrvh7RCJw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=dzEvLKY3VZ2oNrfQVErklQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=0xhGErAek3pluswfAdZEDjbjA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=hj44KD6SqQcZO4fw3onxwA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=KdZBiFsbMNeCqURWTSbC9w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=mslsh25efRnyATATJvXmjJDXg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=SXnOLI5H4DBGvUbNpDHPplusg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=gcXDGWKU3g18gLlslshdb4FFw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=PMDh6qK65DRoI510J1iTVA==


4158 Employee Security

4258 Employee Security

4358 Employee Security

5000 Concepts And Roles

5113 Absences And Excuses

5113 Absences And Excuses

5113.1 Chronic Absence And Truancy

5125 Student Records

5125 Student Records

5125.2 Withholding Grades, Diploma Or Transcripts

5131 Conduct

5131.1 Bus Conduct

5131.2 Bullying

5131.2 Bullying

5131.4 Student Disturbances

5131.5 Vandalism And Graffiti

5131.6 Alcohol And Other Drugs

5131.6 Alcohol And Other Drugs

5131.62 Tobacco

5131.7 Weapons And Dangerous Instruments

5131.7 Weapons And Dangerous Instruments

5137 Positive School Climate

5142 Safety

5144 Discipline

5144.4 Required Parental Attendance

5145.12 Search And Seizure

5145.2 Freedom Of Speech/Expression

5145.2 Freedom Of Speech/Expression

5145.3 Nondiscrimination/Harassment

5145.3 Nondiscrimination/Harassment

5145.7 Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment

5145.7 Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment

5145.71 Title IX Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment Complaint
Procedures

5145.9 Hate-Motivated Behavior

6145 Extracurricular And Cocurricular Activities

6145.8 Assemblies And Special Events

6153 School-Sponsored Trips

6153 School-Sponsored Trips

6154 Homework/Makeup Work

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

318

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=8DsOfIxzC0ZnOS4LYYYTWg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=8fslshaZ3b81q70yUwg557Ccg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=BgStoslshAqQykifYwAxvtcwg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=9rsyL63tHRFWKQiW5l3plusnQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=IJqjslsh1N35eQVHt0PaL7slsheg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=xlfSlq82LdUlQplusivplusMiV4w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=KP0KQ5jVplusnuU8scjt2lSslshg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=XdGU7vQR1OHwP8slshthnplusfQw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=qHVbTBqazYz4Lw8v9jslshSpg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=M77ybQTyVNiMEfNcI7oFlQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=POoErMBgg11mHxyl53DMxw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=thKSKrf6LE9RS8pluseIpeWTg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=Lfk9sOrdiWnRslshqL3vIplusUMg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=5B1avrICtsslshmSzEslshnBGwGQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=slshDY4P9nEeCkdcccslshIbwosA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=kplusRWnBbBfFQuPPZAc0v9iQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=IWPMwwfAoBRAZjVnt4pOCg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=TuEjt1uBBXgv5dQI8zNiRA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=YbYQdtsMhxc2ABqk3plusslshguA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=BHSMhQ1McXTWCpUjmLNAsQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=Hizgm2ULiD1AwbcZhCkN6w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=BEplusrKHyhplusToYG00xyr53CA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=mXhhOV4TLdVslshUeKb8Pc4zQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=9QZ1JPrlEItuplustwpYNq9kw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=NVadymHArpn82slshYwXX5WDQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=jrsIMamwIRXW5B1ql3kv6g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=U5qk7o6wm5plusslshBslshWMrgXXrg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=fRxR3kCBm2sLgzLcLIhLLQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=EiUXO6paslshr9AfFW8105TvA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=4smDSpZxoyplus5u5plwCHOplusA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=zTFItLvSmxOOyLk3pwTWhg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=39af887bS5p04xVwfYRGGA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=fVhafFfYO4CRzK4Q2zxSQQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=HBlFhEpqWWW6CAs8I8j2vw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=SSxbQwVBCKcQYh6plusNj9AaA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=Rduw5O0a8U1Nz5RJR4hDew==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=04EMmPO31dCAdppkrCplusIdw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=70wJmTWSnwH4SN3IW8q5qA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=w9aRhOvngOZ2rhD6UZIRAg==


6161.2 Damaged Or Lost Instructional Materials

6163.4 Student Use Of Technology

9000 Role Of The Board

9321 Closed Session

9321-E(1) Closed Session

9321-E(2) Closed Session

9322 Agenda/Meeting Materials

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

319

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=sZD7HAJrt0yoAZGaeQjfqw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=ujb1BNrRypUFVLCsE7fc2g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=plusvbY1CZJkFvI8g5mpyucYA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=SCyIM86Pslsh2SXYfMWCoy4PA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=0plusIjrl1GcIFYmE3Py7jUqw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=DQY7ANJo4DIkPkvShOwaMQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=CmmAWPdAl9AIhiNvCj3pOw==


Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

Policy 5145.13: Response To Immigration EnforcementPolicy 5145.13: Response To Immigration Enforcement Status:Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 06/12/2024 | Last Reviewed Date:| Last Reviewed Date: 06/12/2024

The Governing Board is committed to the success of all students and believes that every school site should be a safe
and welcoming place for all students and their families irrespective of their citizenship or immigration status.

Tri-Valley ROP staff shall not solicit or collect information or documents regarding the citizenship or immigration
status of students or their family members or provide assistance with immigration enforcement at TVROP Programs,
except as may be required by state and federal law.  (Education Code 234.7)

No student shall be denied equal rights and opportunities nor be subjected to unlawful discrimination, harassment,
intimidation, or bullying in the TVROP's programs and activities on the basis of his/her immigration status.  the
student's or family's immigration status or for the refusal to provide information related to the student's or family's
immigration status. 
  (Education Code 200, 220, 234.1)

Resources and data collected by the district shall not be used, directly or by others, to compile a list, registry, or
database of individuals based on national origin, immigration status, religion, or other category of individual
characteristics protected against unlawful discrimination.  (Government Code 8310.3) 

The Superintendent or designee shall notify parents/guardians regarding their children's right to a free public
education regardless of immigration status or religious beliefs and their rights related to immigration enforcement. 
(Education Code 234.7)

Consistent with requirements of the California Office of the Attorney General, the Superintendent or designee shall
develop procedures for addressing any requests by a law enforcement officer for access to TVROP records, school
sites, or students for the purpose of immigration enforcement.

The Superintendent or designee shall report to the Board in a timely manner any requests for information or access
to a school site by an officer or employee of a law enforcement agency for the purpose of enforcing the immigration
laws. Such notification shall be provided in a manner that ensures the confidentiality and privacy of any potentially
identifying information.  (Education Code 234.7)

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the Governing Board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter
of the policy.

StateState DescriptionDescription

Ed. Code 200 Equal rights and opportunities in state educational institutions

Ed. Code 220 Prohibition of discrimination

Ed. Code 234.1 Student protections relating to discrimination, harassment, intimidation, and
bullying

Ed. Code 234.7 Student protections relating to immigration and citizenship status

Ed. Code 48204.4 Evidence of residency for school enrollment

Ed. Code 48980 Parent/Guardian notifications

Ed. Code 48985 Notices to parents in language other than English

Gov. Code 8310.3 California Religious Freedom Act

Pen. Code 422.55 Definition of hate crime

Pen. Code 627-627.10 Access to school premises

FederalFederal DescriptionDescription

20 USC 1232g Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) of 1974

Board Policy Manual
Tri-Valley Regional Occupational Program

320

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=200.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=220.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=234.1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=234.7.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48204.4.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48980.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48985.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=8310.3.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=422.55.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&division=&title=15.&part=1.&chapter=1.1.&article=
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=(title:20 section:1232g edition:prelim) OR (granuleid:USC-prelim-title20-section1232g)&f=treesort&edition=prelim&num=0&jumpTo=true


Management ResourcesManagement Resources DescriptionDescription

CA Office of the Attorney General Publication
Promoting a Safe and Secure Learning Environment for All: Guidance and
Model Policies to Assist California's K-12 Schools in Responding to
Immigration Issues, December 2024

Court Decision Plyler v. Doe, 457 U.S. 202 (1982)

CSBA Publication Legal Guidance on Providing All Children Equal Access to Education,
Regardless of Immigration Status, February 2017

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Website U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement, Online Detainee Locator
System

Website California Office of the Attorney General

Website CSBA

Website U.S. Department of Education, Office for Civil Rights

Website U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement

Website California Department of Education

Website California Civil Rights Department

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

0410 Nondiscrimination In District Programs And Activities

1250 Visitors/Outsiders

1340 Access To District Records

1340 Access To District Records

5111 Admission

5125 Student Records

5125 Student Records

5125.1 Release Of Directory Information

5125.1 Release Of Directory Information

5125.1-E(1) Release Of Directory Information

5141 Health Care And Emergencies

5141 Health Care And Emergencies

5141.4 Child Abuse Prevention And Reporting

5141.4 Child Abuse Prevention And Reporting

5142 Safety

5145.12 Search And Seizure

5145.3 Nondiscrimination/Harassment

5145.3 Nondiscrimination/Harassment

321

https://oag.ca.gov/sites/all/files/agweb/pdfs/bcj/school-guidance-model-k12.pdf
https://law.justia.com/cases/
https://www.csba.org/Advocacy/EducationLegalAlliance/~/media/CSBA/Files/Advocacy/ELA/2017_02_legal-guidance-ProvidingAllChildrenEqualAccess.ashx
https://legalservices.csba.org/
http://locator.ice.gov/odls
http://oag.ca.gov
http://www.csba.org
http://www2.ed.gov/ocr
http://www.ice.gov
http://www.cde.ca.gov
https://calcivilrights.ca.gov/
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=6W6V2lg758nV8oJ92q8cTQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=StHBk7EslshwUyyWEplusfslsh15TFA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=jSQCN8bwEZWEmfVMQ1Y0aw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=iq4sw8gP4uPlJugVHK7Ivw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=mTrXhWcJf1XRBdB2o9plusvjw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=XdGU7vQR1OHwP8slshthnplusfQw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=qHVbTBqazYz4Lw8v9jslshSpg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=kplusBAJzFKTkoTb1g3UahT4w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=3PLMin1ewjxvQRsOBidZnQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=cXJrLCKRVDo4XC5YohlCDg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=F7Zplus4Umpr2hMy42UslshnrwGg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=fBNnJuPUPNxvaoQplus8SeLyw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=IxWIZuFMitLEIUaqC85Q5w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=0khuOplusB4HLipdYpKyT2UGQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=mXhhOV4TLdVslshUeKb8Pc4zQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=jrsIMamwIRXW5B1ql3kv6g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=EiUXO6paslshr9AfFW8105TvA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=4smDSpZxoyplus5u5plwCHOplusA==


Regulation 5145.13: Response To Immigration EnforcementRegulation 5145.13: Response To Immigration Enforcement Status:Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 06/12/2024 | Last Reviewed Date:| Last Reviewed Date: 06/12/2024

Responding to Requests for Information

Unless authorized by the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act pursuant to 20 USC 1232g, student information shall not be disclosed to immigration law
enforcement authorities without parental consent, a court order, or judicial subpoena. The Superintendent or designee shall annually notify parents/guardians that
the Tri-Valley ROP will not release student information to third parties for immigration enforcement purposes, unless the parent/guardian consents or as required
to do so by a court order or judicial subpoena.

Upon receiving any verbal or written request for information related to a student's or family's immigration or citizenship status, TVROP staff shall:

1. Notify the Superintendent or designee about the information request
 

2. Provide students and families with appropriate notice and a description of the immigration officer's request
 

3. Document any request for information by immigration authorities
 

4. Provide students and parents/guardians with any documents provided by the immigration enforcement officer, unless such disclosure is prohibited by a
subpoena served on the TVROP or in cases involving investigations of child abuse, neglect, or dependency

Resources and data collected by the TVROP shall not be used, directly or by others, to compile a list, registry, or database of individuals based on national origin,
immigration status, religion, or other category of individual characteristics protected against unlawful discrimination.  (Government Code 8310.3)

Information or documents related to a student's immigration or citizenship status shall not be disclosed to a law enforcement officer without consent by the
parent/guardian or, if the student is at least 18 years old, by the student, a court order, or judicial subpoena/warrant. To obtain written consent, the release of
student information shall include the following information:

1. The signature and signature date of the parent/guardian, or student if the student is at least 18 years old
 

2. A description of the records to be disclosed
 

3. The reason for the release of information
 

4. The parties or class of parties receiving the information
 

5. A copy of the records to be released, if requested by the parent/guardian or student

In accordance with law and Board Policy 5125 - Student Records, the Superintendent or designee shall annually notify parents/guardians that the district will not
release student information to third parties for immigration enforcement purposes, unless the parent/guardian consents or as required to do so by a court order or
judicial subpoena/warrant.

Responding to Requests for Access to Students or School Grounds

TVROP staff shall receive parent/guardian consentor,  if the student is at least 18 years old, the student's consent ,before a student is interviewed or searched by
any officer seeking to enforce civil immigration laws at the school, unless the officer presents a valid, effective warrant signed by a judge or a valid, effective court
order. A student's parent/guardian shall be immediately notified if a law enforcement officer requests or gains access to the student for immigration enforcement
purposes, unless the judicial warrant or subpoena restricts disclosure to the parent/guardian.

All visitors and outsiders, including immigration enforcement officers, shall register with the site administrator  or designee upon entering school grounds during
school hours. Each visitor or outsider shall provide the site administrator or designee with his/her name, address, occupation, age if less than 21, purpose in
entering program, proof of identity, and any other information required by law.  (Penal Code 627.2, 627.3)

TVROP staff shall report the presence of any immigration enforcement officers to on-site TVROP police and other appropriate administrators.

As early as possible, TVROP staff shall notify the Superintendent or designee of any request by an immigration enforcement officer for access to the school or a
student or for review of school documents, including service of lawful subpoenas, petitions, complaints, warrants, or other such documents.

Responding to Law Enforcement Officers on District Property 
In addition, TVROP staff shall take the following actions in response to an officer present on the program campus specifically for immigration enforcement
purposes:

1. Advise the officer that before school personnel can respond to the officer's request, they must first receive notification and direction from the
Superintendent or designee, except under exigent circumstances that necessitate immediate action
 

2. Request to see the officer's credentials, including his/her name and badge number, and the phone number of the officer's supervisor, and note or make a
copy of all such information
 

3. Ask the officer for his/her reason for being on program's campus and document the response 
 

4. Request that the officer produce any documentation that authorizes his/her school access, 
 

5. Make a copy of all documents produced by the officer and retain one copy for TVROP records
 

6. If the officer declares that exigent circumstances exist and demands immediate access to the campus, comply with the officer's orders and immediately
contact the Superintendent or designee
 

7. If the officer does not declare that exigent circumstances exist, respond according to the requirements of the officer's documentation, as follows:
 

a. If the officer has an Immigrations and Customs Enforcement (ICE) administrative warrant, TVROP staff shall inform the agent that they cannot consent
to any request without first consulting with the TVROP's legal counsel or other designated TVROP official.
 

b. If the officer has a federal judicial warrant, such as a search and seizure warrant or an arrest warrant signed by a federal judge or magistrate, TVROP

Board Policy Manual
Tri-Valley Regional Occupational Program

322



In an instance where a student's parent/guardian was detained or deported, the Superintendent or designee shall notify the student, as well as the individuals designated in the student's emergency contact information and any individual who presented a caregiver's
authorization affidavit on behalf of the student, that the student continues to meet the residency requirements for attendance in the district if the student and the student's parent/guardian who was detained or deported satisfy the conditions as specified in Education
Code 48204.4.

The Superintendent or designee may refer a student or the student's family members to other resources for assistance, including, but not limited to, an U.S. Immigrant and Customs Enforcement detainee locator, legal assistance, or the consulate or embassy of the
parent/guardian's country of origin.

Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

staff shall promptly comply with the warrant. If feasible, TVROP staff shall consult with the TVROP's legal counsel or designated administrator before
providing the officer with access to the person or materials specified in the warrant.
 

c. If the officer has a subpoena for production of documents or other evidence, TVROP staff shall inform the TVROP's legal counsel or other designated
official of the subpoena and await further instructions as to how to proceed.
 

8. Do not attempt to physically impede the officer, even if the officer appears to be exceeding the authorization given under a warrant or other document. If an
officer enters the premises without consent, TVROP staff shall document the officer's actions while on campus.
 

9. After the encounter with the officer, promptly make written notes of all interactions with the officer, including:
 

a.  A list or copy of the officer's credentials and contact information
 

b. The identity of all school personnel who communicated with the officer
 

c. Details of the officer's request
 

d. Whether the officer presented a warrant or subpoena to accompany his/her request, what was requested in the warrant or subpoena, and whether the
warrant or subpoena was signed by a judge
 

e. TVROP staff's response to the officer's request
 

f. Any further action taken by the officer
 

g. A photo or copy of any documents presented by the officer
 

10. Provide a copy of these notes and associated documents collected from the officer to the TVROP's legal counsel or other designated TVROP official

The TVROP's legal counsel or other designated official shall submit a timely report to the Governing Board regarding the officer's requests and actions and the
TVROP's responses.  (Education Code 234.7)

The Superintendent or designee shall also email the Bureau of Children's Justice in the California Department of Justice (BCJ@doj.ca.gov) regarding any attempt by
a law enforcement officer to access a school site or a student for immigration enforcement purposes.

Responding to the Detention or Deportation of Student's Family Member

In the event that a student's parent/guardian is detained or deported by federal immigration authorities, the Superintendent or designee shall release the student to
the person(s) designated in the student's emergency contact information or to any individual who presents a caregiver's authorization affidavit on behalf of the
student. The Superintendent or designee shall only contact child protective services if TVROP personnel are unable to arrange for the timely care of the student by
the person(s) designated in the emergency contact information maintained by the school or identified on a caregiver's authorization affidavit.

 

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority for the Governing Board to enact this policy. Instead,
they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter of the policy.

StateState DescriptionDescription

Ed. Code 200 Equal rights and opportunities in state educational institutions

Ed. Code 220 Prohibition of discrimination

Ed. Code 234.1 Student protections relating to discrimination, harassment, intimidation, and bullying

Ed. Code 234.7 Student protections relating to immigration and citizenship status

Ed. Code 48204.4 Evidence of residency for school enrollment

Ed. Code 48980 Parent/Guardian notifications

Ed. Code 48985 Notices to parents in language other than English

Gov. Code 8310.3 California Religious Freedom Act

Pen. Code 422.55 Definition of hate crime

Pen. Code 627-627.10 Access to school premises

FederalFederal DescriptionDescription

20 USC 1232g Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) of 1974

Management ResourcesManagement Resources DescriptionDescription

CA Office of the Attorney General Publication Promoting a Safe and Secure Learning Environment for All: Guidance and Model Policies to Assist
California's K-12 Schools in Responding to Immigration Issues, December 2024

Court Decision Plyler v. Doe, 457 U.S. 202 (1982)

CSBA Publication Legal Guidance on Providing All Children Equal Access to Education, Regardless of Immigration Status,
February 2017

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Website U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement, Online Detainee Locator System

Website California Office of the Attorney General

323

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=200.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=220.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=234.1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=234.7.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48204.4.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48980.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48985.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=8310.3.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=422.55.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&division=&title=15.&part=1.&chapter=1.1.&article=
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=(title:20 section:1232g edition:prelim) OR (granuleid:USC-prelim-title20-section1232g)&f=treesort&edition=prelim&num=0&jumpTo=true
https://oag.ca.gov/sites/all/files/agweb/pdfs/bcj/school-guidance-model-k12.pdf
https://law.justia.com/cases/
https://www.csba.org/Advocacy/EducationLegalAlliance/~/media/CSBA/Files/Advocacy/ELA/2017_02_legal-guidance-ProvidingAllChildrenEqualAccess.ashx
https://legalservices.csba.org/
http://locator.ice.gov/odls
http://oag.ca.gov


Website CSBA

Website U.S. Department of Education, Office for Civil Rights

Website U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement

Website California Department of Education

Website California Civil Rights Department

Management ResourcesManagement Resources DescriptionDescription

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

0410 Nondiscrimination In District Programs And Activities

1250 Visitors/Outsiders

1340 Access To District Records

1340 Access To District Records

5111 Admission

5125 Student Records

5125 Student Records

5125.1 Release Of Directory Information

5125.1 Release Of Directory Information

5125.1-E(1) Release Of Directory Information

5141 Health Care And Emergencies

5141 Health Care And Emergencies

5141.4 Child Abuse Prevention And Reporting

5141.4 Child Abuse Prevention And Reporting

5142 Safety

5145.12 Search And Seizure

5145.3 Nondiscrimination/Harassment

5145.3 Nondiscrimination/Harassment

324

http://www.csba.org
http://www2.ed.gov/ocr
http://www.ice.gov
http://www.cde.ca.gov
https://calcivilrights.ca.gov/
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=6W6V2lg758nV8oJ92q8cTQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=StHBk7EslshwUyyWEplusfslsh15TFA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=jSQCN8bwEZWEmfVMQ1Y0aw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=iq4sw8gP4uPlJugVHK7Ivw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=mTrXhWcJf1XRBdB2o9plusvjw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=XdGU7vQR1OHwP8slshthnplusfQw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=qHVbTBqazYz4Lw8v9jslshSpg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=kplusBAJzFKTkoTb1g3UahT4w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=3PLMin1ewjxvQRsOBidZnQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=cXJrLCKRVDo4XC5YohlCDg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=F7Zplus4Umpr2hMy42UslshnrwGg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=fBNnJuPUPNxvaoQplus8SeLyw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=IxWIZuFMitLEIUaqC85Q5w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=0khuOplusB4HLipdYpKyT2UGQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=mXhhOV4TLdVslshUeKb8Pc4zQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=jrsIMamwIRXW5B1ql3kv6g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=EiUXO6paslshr9AfFW8105TvA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=4smDSpZxoyplus5u5plwCHOplusA==


Policy 6163.4: Student Use Of TechnologyPolicy 6163.4: Student Use Of Technology Status:Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 06/12/2024 | Last Reviewed Date:| Last Reviewed Date: 06/12/2024

The Governing Board intends that technological resources provided by the Tri-Valley ROP be used in a safe and
responsible manner in support of the instructional program and for the advancement of student learning. All students
using these resources shall receive instruction in their proper and appropriate use.  Students will be allowed to use
such technology, including AI technology, in accordance with district policies, including, but not limited to, policies on
academic honesty, data privacy, nondiscrimination, and copyright protections. All students using these resources
shall receive instruction in the proper and appropriate use of technology. Such instruction shall incorporate students'
responsibilities regarding academic honesty, honoring copyright provisions, assessing the reliability and accuracy of
information, protecting personal data, and the potential for biases and errors in artificially generated content.receive
instruction in their proper and appropriate use.

TVROP staff are expected to review the technological resources and online sites that will be used in the classroom or
presented to students in order to ensure that they are appropriate for the intended purpose and the age of the
students.

The Superintendent or designee shall notify students and parents/guardians about authorized uses of ROP
technology, user obligations and responsibilities, and consequences for unauthorized use and/or unlawful activities in
accordance with this Board policy and the TVROP's Acceptable Use Agreement.

TVROP technology includes, but is not limited to, computers, the TVROP's computer network including servers and
wireless computer networking technology (wi-fi),  software as a service provided or paid for by the district, whether
accessed on or off site or through district-owned or personally owned equipment or devices, including tablets and
laptops; computer servers, wireless access points (routers), and wireless computer networking technology 
applications (apps), including AI apps; telephones, cellular telephones, smartphones, smart devices, and wearable
technology; or any wireless communication device. the Internet, email,  or any wireless communication device,
including radios. USB drives, wireless access points (routers), tablet computers, smartphones and smart devices,
telephones, cellular telephones, personal digital assistants, pagers, MP3 players, wearable technology, any wireless
communication device including emergency radios, and/or future technological innovations, whether accessed on or
off site or through ROP-owned or personally owned equipment or devices.

Before a student is authorized to use TVROP technology, the student and his/her parent/guardian shall sign and
return the Acceptable Use Agreement. In that agreement, the parent/guardian shall agree not to hold the TVROP or
any TVROP staff responsible for the failure of any technology protection measures or user mistakes or negligence
and shall agree to indemnify and hold harmless the TVROP and ROP staff for any damages or costs incurred.

The TVROP reserves the right to monitor student use of technology within the jurisdiction of the TVROP without
advance notice or consent. Students shall be informed that their use of TVROP technology, including, but not limited
to, computer files, email, text messages, instant messaging, and other electronic communications, is not private and
may be accessed by the TVROP for the purpose of ensuring proper use. Students have no reasonable expectation of
privacy in use of the TVROP technology. Students' personally owned devices shall not be searched except in cases
where there is a reasonable suspicion, based on specific and objective facts, that the search will uncover evidence of
a violation of law, TVROP policy, or school rules.

The Superintendent or designee may gather and maintain information pertaining directly to school safety or student
safety from the social media activity of any TVROP student in accordance with Education Code 49073.6 and BP/AR
5125 - Student Records.

Whenever a student is found to have violated Board policy or the TVROP's Acceptable Use Agreement, the principal
or designee may cancel or limit a student's user privileges or increase supervision of the student's use of the
TVROP's equipment and other technological resources, as appropriate. Inappropriate use also may result in
disciplinary action and/or legal action in accordance with law and Board policy.

The Superintendent or designee, with input from students and appropriate staff, shall regularly review and update
procedures to enhance the safety and security of students using TVROP technology and to help ensure that the
TVROP adapts to changing technologies and circumstances.

Internet Safety

Board Policy Manual
Tri-Valley Regional Occupational Program

325



Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that all TVROP computers with Internet access have a technology
protection measure that protects against access to visual depictions that are obscene, child pornography, or harmful
to minors and that the operation of such measures is enforced.  (20 USC 7131; 47 USC 254; 47 CFR 54.520)

To reinforce these measures, the Superintendent or designee shall implement rules and procedures designed to
restrict students' access to harmful or inappropriate matter on the Internet and to ensure that students do not
engage in unauthorized or unlawful online activities.

Harmful matter includes matter, taken as a whole, which to the average person, applying contemporary statewide
standards, appeals to the prurient interest and is matter which depicts or describes, in a patently offensive way,
sexual conduct and which lacks serious literary, artistic, political, or scientific value for minors.  (Penal Code 313)

The TVROP's Acceptable Use Agreement shall establish expectations for appropriate student conduct when using
the Internet or other forms of electronic communication, including, but not limited to, prohibitions against:

1. Accessing, posting, submitting, publishing, or displaying harmful or inappropriate matter that is threatening,
obscene, disruptive, or sexually explicit, or that could be construed as harassment or disparagement of others
based on their race/ethnicity, national origin, sex, gender, sexual orientation, age, disability, religion, or political
beliefs
 

2. Intentionally uploading, downloading, or creating computer viruses and/or maliciously attempting to harm or
destroy TVROP equipment or materials or manipulate the data of any other user, including so-called "hacking"
 

3. Distributing personal identification information, including the name, address, telephone number, Social Security
number, or other personally identifiable information, of another student, staff member, or other person with
the intent to threaten, intimidate, harass, or ridicule that person

The Superintendent or designee shall regularly review current guidance regarding cybersecurity, data privacy, and
digital media awareness and incorporate recommended practices into the district's processes and procedures related
to the protection of the district's network infrastructure, the monitoring and response to cyberattacks, ensuring data
privacy, and monitoring suspicious and/or threatening digital media content, in accordance with Board Policy 5125 -
Student Records.

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the Governing Board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter
of the policy.

StateState DescriptionDescription

Civ. Code 3120-3123 Digital equity bill of rights

Ed. Code 49073.6 Student records; social media

Ed. Code 51006 Computer education and resources

Ed. Code 51007 Programs to strengthen technological skills

Ed. Code 60044 Prohibited instructional materials

Pen. Code 313 Harmful matter

Pen. Code 502 Computer crimes; remedies

Pen. Code 632 Eavesdropping on or recording confidential communications

Pen. Code 653.2 Electronic communication devices; threats to safety

FederalFederal DescriptionDescription

15 USC 6501-6506 Children's Online Privacy Protection Act

16 CFR 312.1-312.12 Children's Online Privacy Protection Act

20 USC 7101-7122 Student Support and Academic Enrichment Grants

20 USC 7131 Internet Safety

47 CFR 54.520 Internet safety policy and technology protection measures; E-rate discounts

326

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=CIV&division=3.&title=15.5.&part=4.&chapter=&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49073.6.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=51006.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=51007.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=60044.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=313.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=502.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=632.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=653.2.
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?path=/prelim@title15/chapter91&edition=prelim
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=(title:20 section:7131 edition:prelim) OR (granuleid:USC-prelim-title20-section7131)&f=treesort&edition=prelim&num=0&jumpTo=true
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-47/chapter-I/subchapter-B/part-54/subpart-F/section-54.520


47 USC 254 Universal service discounts (E-rate)

FederalFederal DescriptionDescription

Management ResourcesManagement Resources DescriptionDescription

California Department of Education Publication Artificial Intelligence: Learning With AI Learning About AI

Court Decision New Jersey v. T.L.O. (1985) 469 U.S. 325

CSBA Publication Cyberbullying: Policy Considerations for Boards, Policy Brief, July 2007

Federal Trade Commission Publication How to Protect Kids' Privacy Online: A Guide for Teachers, December 2000

U.S. Department of Education Publication 2024 National Education Technology Plan

USDOE Office of Educational Technology
Publication

Artificial Intelligence and the Future of Teaching and Learning: Insights and
Recommendations, May 2023

Website California Governor’s Office of Emergency Services

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Website California Coalition for Children's Internet Safety

Website Center for Safe and Responsible Internet Use

Website Federal Trade Commission, Children's Online Privacy Protection

Website American Library Association

Website Federal Communications Commission

Website California Department of Education

Website U.S. Department of Education

Website CSBA

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

0440 District Technology Plan

1113 District And School Websites

1113 District And School Websites

1113-E(1) District And School Websites

1114 District-Sponsored Social Media

1114 District-Sponsored Social Media

3260 Fees And Charges

3260 Fees And Charges

3512 Equipment

4040 Employee Use Of Technology

4040-E(1) Employee Use Of Technology

4040-E(2) Employee Use Of Technology

4131 Staff Development

5125 Student Records

5125 Student Records

5125.2 Withholding Grades, Diploma Or Transcripts

5131 Conduct

5131.2 Bullying

5131.2 Bullying

327

https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=(title:47 section:254 edition:prelim) OR (granuleid:USC-prelim-title47-section254)&f=treesort&edition=prelim&num=0&jumpTo=true
https://www.cde.ca.gov/ci/pl/documents/cdeairesourcekit.pdf
https://law.justia.com/cases/
https://www.csba.org/GovernanceAndPolicyResources/DistrictPolicyServices/~/media/CSBA/Files/GovernanceResources/PolicyNews_Briefs/SchoolSafety/2010_07_PolicyBrief_Cyberbullying.ashx
https://www.govinfo.gov/app/details/GOVPUB-FT-PURL-LPS78293
https://tech.ed.gov/netp/
https://oet.wp.nnth.dev/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2023/03/ai-future-of-teaching-and-learning-report.pdf
https://www.caloes.ca.gov/
https://legalservices.csba.org/
http://www.cybersafety.ca.gov
https://www.ewa.org/organization/center-safe-and-responsible-internet-use
http://www.ftc.gov/privacy/privacyinitiatives/childrens.html
http://www.ala.org
http://www.fcc.gov
http://www.cde.ca.gov
http://www.ed.gov
http://www.csba.org
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=2aGCaoK79paENKh3cGC8cg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=4XQaFrGRrecYplusYzJX8iFslshQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=o6imeqslsh96cCbNlv1lkZxjQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=3fxcWyEaRMF3Nxplus6hXIr3A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=jmPHy8NvRKgplusj4QuxTzH1w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=RHzd31LkJhRR4plusQQXGS3SQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=ecGl55Yd2s34cmX8hplusjKfg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=vNSrdWF1Lc7b2AKwmDAffA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=v8Zj5sdidsdslsh2Y3CjY6ydw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=6nc6yN5h6ydYtRyszA3ucw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=tQIn4iF1mMgHXBJHOE7NqQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=yMj6tPfEpjVPslsh8KibHJXlQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=rJXg9MUOCQww7zhslshFIwGew==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=XdGU7vQR1OHwP8slshthnplusfQw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=qHVbTBqazYz4Lw8v9jslshSpg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=M77ybQTyVNiMEfNcI7oFlQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=POoErMBgg11mHxyl53DMxw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=Lfk9sOrdiWnRslshqL3vIplusUMg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=5B1avrICtsslshmSzEslshnBGwGQ==


5131.8 Mobile Communication Devices

5131.9 Academic Honesty

5144 Discipline

5144.1 Suspension And Expulsion/Due Process

5145.12 Search And Seizure

5145.3 Nondiscrimination/Harassment

5145.3 Nondiscrimination/Harassment

5145.7 Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment

5145.7 Sex Discrimination and Sex-Based Harassment

5145.9 Hate-Motivated Behavior

6154 Homework/Makeup Work

6162.6 Use Of Copyrighted Materials

6162.6 Use Of Copyrighted Materials

6162.8 Research

6162.8 Research

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

328

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=12Wi7slshH4slshnWjQPWREyTvtg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=ZjMplusaTDQOxslshslsh9IqihIJdCA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=9QZ1JPrlEItuplustwpYNq9kw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=whXbDdMOHQCGVkhRRVsdiw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=jrsIMamwIRXW5B1ql3kv6g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=EiUXO6paslshr9AfFW8105TvA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=4smDSpZxoyplus5u5plwCHOplusA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=zTFItLvSmxOOyLk3pwTWhg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=39af887bS5p04xVwfYRGGA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=HBlFhEpqWWW6CAs8I8j2vw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=w9aRhOvngOZ2rhD6UZIRAg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=KbjslshZ24kUQ1hnYtPzfegjQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=QuBnSEYF9Vy3qcsBAgVJ7g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=slshFTzOTflQZcG179x2YTAEw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=qbOEUSDHxcz1yJqPfGoK4g==


Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

Bylaw 9012: Board Member Electronic CommunicationsBylaw 9012: Board Member Electronic Communications Status:Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 06/12/2024 | Last Reviewed Date:| Last Reviewed Date: 06/12/2024

The Governing Board recognizes that electronic communication is an efficient and convenient way for Board
members to communicate and expedite the exchange of information within the Tri-Valley ROP and with members of
the public. Board members shall exercise caution so as to ensure that electronic communications are not used as a
means for the Board to deliberate outside of an agendized Board meeting, circumvent the public's right to access
records regarding TVROP business, or restrict access to a public forum.

A majority of the Board shall not, outside of an authorized meeting, use a series of electronic communications of any
kind, directly or through intermediaries, to discuss, deliberate, or take action on any item that is within the subject
matter jurisdiction of the Board.  (Government Code 54952.2)

Examples of permissible electronic communications concerning TVROP business include, but are not limited to,
dissemination of Board meeting agendas and agenda packets, reports of activities from the Superintendent, and
reminders regarding meeting times, dates, and places.

Board members may engage in separate conversations or communications with members of the public on a social
media platform to answer questions, provide information, or solicit information regarding a matter that is within the
subject matter jurisdiction of the Board, as long as a majority of the Board does not use the platform to discuss
among themselves any business of a specific nature that is within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Board.  A
Board member is prohibited from responding directly to any communication from other Board members regarding
matters that are within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Board or using digital icons (e.g., "likes" or emojis) to
express reactions to communications made by other Board members.  (Government Code 54952.2)

Whenever a Board member uses a social media platform to communicate with the public about TVROP business or
Board activities, the Board member shall not block access to a member of the public based on the viewpoint
expressed by that individual.

Board members may use electronic communications to discuss matters that do not pertain to TVROP business,
regardless of the number of Board members participating in the discussion.

Board members shall make every effort to ensure that their electronic communications conform to the same
standards and protocols established for other forms of communication.  A Board member may respond, as
appropriate, to an electronic communication received from a member of the community and should make clear that
the response does not necessarily reflect the views of the Board as a whole.    Board members shall make every
effort to ensure that their electronic communications conform to Board Bylaw 9010 - Public Statements and shall
forward any complaints or requests for information to the Superintendent in accordance with applicable Board
bylaws. Any complaint or request for information should be forwarded to the Superintendent in accordance with
Board bylaws and protocols so that the issue may receive proper consideration and be handled through the
appropriate TVROP process.  As appropriate, communication received from the media shall be forwarded to the
designated TVROP spokesperson.

To the extent possible, electronic communications regarding any TVROP-related business shall be transmitted
through a TVROP-provided device or account. When any such communication is transmitted through a Board
member's personal device or account, the Board member shall copy the communication to a ROP electronic storage
device for easy retrieval.

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the Governing Board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter
of the policy.

StateState DescriptionDescription

Ed. Code 35140 Time and place of meetings

Ed. Code 35145 Public meetings

Ed. Code 35145.5 Agenda; public participation and regulations

Ed. Code 35147 Open meeting laws exceptions

Gov. Code 11135 Prohibition of discrimination

Board Policy Manual
Tri-Valley Regional Occupational Program

329

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=35140.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=35145.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=35145.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=35147.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=11135.&lawCode=GOV


Gov. Code 54950-54963 The Ralph M. Brown Act

Gov. Code 54952.2 Meeting; defined

Gov. Code 54953 Meetings to be open and public; attendance

Gov. Code 54954.2 Agenda posting requirements; board actions

Gov. Code 7920.000-7930.215 California Public Records Act

StateState DescriptionDescription

Management ResourcesManagement Resources DescriptionDescription

Attorney General Publication The Brown Act: Open Meetings for Legislative Bodies, rev. 2003

Court Decision Lindke v. Freed (2024) 601 U.S. 187

Court Decision City of San Jose v. Superior Court (2017) 2 Cal.5th 608

CSBA Publication Legal Alert: Tips for Governing Boards in Response to Public Records Act
Ruling on Electronic Communications, March 2017

CSBA Publication The Brown Act: School Boards and Open Meeting Laws, rev. 2023

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Website CSBA, GAMUT Meetings

Website California Attorney General's Office

Website CSBA

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

1112 Media Relations

1113 District And School Websites

1113 District And School Websites

1113-E(1) District And School Websites

1114 District-Sponsored Social Media

1114 District-Sponsored Social Media

1312.1 Complaints Concerning District Employees

1312.1 Complaints Concerning District Employees

1312.2 Complaints Concerning Instructional Materials

1312.2 Complaints Concerning Instructional Materials

1312.2-E(1) Complaints Concerning Instructional Materials

1312.3 Uniform Complaint Procedures

1312.3 Uniform Complaint Procedures

1312.4 Williams Uniform Complaint Procedures

1312.4-E(2) Williams Uniform Complaint Procedures

1340 Access To District Records

1340 Access To District Records

3320 Claims And Actions Against The District

3580 District Records

3580 District Records

5125 Student Records

5125 Student Records

330

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&division=2.&title=5.&part=1.&chapter=9.&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=54952.2.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=54953.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=54954.2.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayexpandedbranch.xhtml?tocCode=GOV&division=10.&title=1.&part=&chapter=&article=
https://oag.ca.gov/system/files/media/the-brown-act.pdf
https://www.govinfo.gov/#advanced
https://www.lexisnexis.com/clients/CACourts/
https://www.csba.org/-/media/CSBA/Files/Advocacy/ELA/2017-03_LegalAlert_PRA_ElectronicDevices.ashx?la=en&rev=7f24e74fc2474138940357bc5efe1377
https://www.csba.org/productsandservices/CSBAStore/WebProductDetails.aspx?webproductid=67dc69ec-34e6-e411-80e2-005056b02a09&portalid=#gsc.tab=0
https://legalservices.csba.org/
https://www.csba.org/ProductsAndServices/AllServices/GamutMeetingsPolicy
http://oag.ca.gov
http://www.csba.org
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=d5tBtDYYbfuJslsh9uhhU5slshWQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=4XQaFrGRrecYplusYzJX8iFslshQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=o6imeqslsh96cCbNlv1lkZxjQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=3fxcWyEaRMF3Nxplus6hXIr3A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=jmPHy8NvRKgplusj4QuxTzH1w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=RHzd31LkJhRR4plusQQXGS3SQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=EAav1E6fXI8aSFBhF3tMslshw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=sf49yhfu80feOr1HsuEyGA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=slshHxDGpoxOplusuyeJTP8ZT74A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=LZYlqR3slshW6BsPplus0UF3uO2A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=iRMVCWunxnISdxSKWQZ0qw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=plussrJjGtKA0C9cRrvh7RCJw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=dzEvLKY3VZ2oNrfQVErklQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=rlqDaxJUPQoLMcq2M99slsh2A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=zkJCDRCHhpx3zk7qmy5Lplusw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=jSQCN8bwEZWEmfVMQ1Y0aw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=iq4sw8gP4uPlJugVHK7Ivw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=Hslsh8QfXk1IyvivYG2zkywGg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=gv3pXuGPnNJ4FbkDgiDsRQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=D5p9gmmX6Eny4PVrAplusuD1Q==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=XdGU7vQR1OHwP8slshthnplusfQw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=qHVbTBqazYz4Lw8v9jslshSpg==


9000 Role Of The Board

9005 Governance Standards

9010 Public Statements

9200 Limits Of Board Member Authority

9230 Orientation

9320 Meetings And Notices

9322 Agenda/Meeting Materials

9323.2 Actions By The Board

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

331

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=plusvbY1CZJkFvI8g5mpyucYA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=BslshaUP1yIPqUcVNVJGgtf3w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=UIX73AsISEJiEunslshZGKWpw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=ly5fvoDplusMuWCUvPyGykdAg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=pEtTKujZxDpxc3rNYYTxVA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=H3r4Uojk1yz8isTTg0If4w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=CmmAWPdAl9AIhiNvCj3pOw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=slshW5TcNBgQk2oaz1XslshMwzQw==


Bylaw 9270: Conflict Of InterestBylaw 9270: Conflict Of Interest Status:Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 06/12/2024 | Last Reviewed Date:| Last Reviewed Date: 06/12/2024

The Governing Board desires to maintain the highest ethical standards and help ensure that decisions are made in the best interest of the ROP and the public.
Accordingly, no Board member, Tri-Valley ROP employee, or other person in a designated position identified in the district's conflict of interest code, shall
participate in the making of any decision for the TVROP when the decision will or may be affected by the Board member's, TVROP employee's, or other designated
persons financial, family, or other personal interest or consideration.

Even if a prohibited conflict of interest does not exist, a Board member shall abstain from voting on personnel matters that uniquely affect the Board member's
relatives. However, a Board member may vote on personnel matters that affect a class of employees to which the Board member's relative belongs. Relative means
an adult who is related to the Board member by blood or affinity within the third degree, as determined by the common law, or an individual in an adoptive
relationship within the third degree.  (Education Code 35107)

A relationship within the third degree includes an individual's parents, grandparents, great-grandparents, children, grandchildren, great-grandchildren, brothers,
sisters, aunts, uncles, nieces, nephews, and the similar family of the individual's spouse/registered domestic partner unless the individual is widowed or divorced.

Conflict of Interest Code 

The Board shall adopt for the TVROP a conflict of interest code that incorporates the provisions of 2 CCR 18730 by reference, specifies the district's designated
positions, and provides the disclosure categories required for each position. The conflict of interest code shall be submitted to the district's code reviewing body for
approval, in accordance with Government Code 87303 and within the deadline for submission established by the code reviewing body.  (Government Code 87303)

Upon direction by the code reviewing body, the Board shall review the district's conflict of interest code and submit any changes to the code reviewing body or, if
no change is required, the Board shall submit a written statement to that effect.  (Government Code 87306.5)

When a change in the district's conflict of interest code is necessitated due to changed circumstances, such as the creation of new designated positions, changes to
the duties assigned to existing positions, amendments, or revisions, the amended code shall be submitted to the code reviewing body within 90 days after the
changed circumstances necessitating the amendments have become apparent.  (Government Code 87306)

When reviewing and preparing the district's conflict of interest code, the Superintendent or designee shall provide officers, employees, consultants, and members
of the community adequate notice and a fair opportunity to present their views.  (Government Code 87311)

Board members and designated employees shall annually file a Statement of Economic Interest/Form 700 in accordance with the disclosure categories specified in
the district's conflict of interest code. A Board member who leaves office or a designated employee who leaves ROP employment shall, within 30 days, file a
revised statement covering the period of time between the closing date of the last required statement and the date of leaving office or ROP employment.
 (Government Code 87302, 87302.6)

Conflict of Interest under the Political Reform Act

A ROP official, including a Board member, designated employee, or other person in a designated position shall not make, participate in making, or in any way use or
attempt to use an official position to influence a governmental decision in which the ROP official knows or has reason to know that there is a disqualifying conflict
of interest. A disqualifying conflict of interest exists if the decision will have a "reasonably foreseeable material financial effect," which is distinguishable from the
effect on the public generally, on the ROP official, the ROP official's immediate family, or any financial interest described in 2 CCR 18700.  (Government Code
87100, 87101, 87103; 2 CCR 18700-18707)

A ROP official makes a governmental decision when, within the authority of the office or position, the ROP official authorizes or directs any action on a matter,
votes or provides information or opinion on it, contacts or appears before another ROP official for the purpose of affecting the decision, or takes any other action
specified in 2 CCR 18704.

However, a ROP official shall participate in the making of a contract in which the ROP official has a financial interest if such participation is required by the rule of
necessity or legally required participation pursuant to Government Code 87101 and 2 CCR 18705.

Conflict of Interest from Campaign Contributions

To avoid improper influence over the Board's decision-making involving the issuance of a license, permit, or other entitlements for use, including a contract, ROP
officers, which includes Board members or agency heads, shall comply with Government Code 84308, including the following: (Government Code 84308)

1. A ROP officer is prohibited from accepting, soliciting, or directing a contribution of more than $250 $500 from any party or participant to a proceeding
involving a license, permit, or other entitlement for use, including a contract, or from that person's agent, while the proceeding is pending before the Board
and for 12 months following the date a final decision is rendered in the proceeding, if the Board member knows or has reason to know that the party or
participant has a financial interest in the Board's decision.
 

2. Any ROP officer who received a contribution of more than $250 $500 from a party or participant in the preceding 12 months shall disclose that fact on the
record of the proceeding prior to the Board rendering a decision in the proceeding. If the ROP officer willfully or knowingly received the contribution and
knows or has reason to know that the participant has a financial interest in the Board's decision, the ROP officer shall not make, participate in making, or in
any way attempt to use the official position to influence the Board's decision.
 

3. A ROP officer who receives a contribution that would otherwise require disqualification as described in Item #2 above may participate in the proceeding if
the contribution is returned within 30 days from the time the ROP officer knows or should have known about the contribution and the proceeding.
 

4. A ROP officer who unknowingly accepts, solicits, or directs a contribution of more than $250 $500 during the 12 months after the date of the Board's final
decision on the proceeding may cure the violation by returning the contribution, or the portion exceeding $250, $500 within 14 days of accepting, soliciting,
or directing the contribution, provided the ROP officer did not knowingly or willfully accept, solicit, or direct the prohibited contribution. The ROPofficer shall
maintain records of curing the violation.

The provisions in Government Code 84308 as specified above do not apply to labor contracts, competitively bid contracts, and personal employment contracts.
 (Government Code 84308)

Form 700

Each District Official shall annually file a Statement of Economic Interest/Form 700 in accordance with the disclosure categories specified in the district's conflict
of interest code. An individual who ceases to be a District Official shall, within 30 days, file a revised statement covering the period of time between the closing
date of the last required statement and the date the individual ceased to be a District Official.  (Government Code 87302)

Board Policy Manual
Tri-Valley Regional Occupational Program

332



Additional Requirements for Boards that Manage Public Investments

Any Board member who manages public investments pursuant to Government Code 87200 and who has a financial interest in a decision shall, upon identifying a
conflict or potential conflict of interest and immediately prior to the consideration of the matter, do all of the following:  (Government Code 87105; 2 CCR 18707)

1. Publicly identify each financial interest that gives rise to the conflict or potential conflict of interest in detail sufficient to be understood by the public, except
that disclosure of the exact street address of a residence is not required.
 

2. Not discuss or vote on the matter, or otherwise act in violation of Government Code 87100. The Board member shall not be counted toward achieving a
quorum while the item is discussed.

However, the Board member may speak on the issue during the time that the general public speaks on it and may leave the dais to speak from the same area
as members of the public. The Board member may listen to the public discussion and deliberations of the matter with members of the public.
 

3. Leave the room until after the discussion, vote, and any other disposition of the matter is concluded, unless the matter has been placed on the portion of the
agenda reserved for uncontested matters.

If the item is on the consent calendar, the Board member shall either make a motion to remove the item from the consent calendar or the Board member
shall abstain from voting on the consent calendar. In any event, the Board member shall refrain from discussing or voting on the item. However, the Board
member is not required to leave the room during consideration of the consent calendar.
 

4. If the Board's decision is made during closed session, disclose the interest orally during the open session preceding the closed session. This disclosure shall be
limited to a declaration that the recusal is because of a conflict of interest pursuant to Government Code 87100. The Board member shall not be present
when the item is considered in closed session and shall not knowingly obtain or review a recording or any other nonpublic information regarding the Board's
decision

Conflict of Interest under Government Code 1090 - Financial Interest in a Contract

Board members, employees, or ROP consultants shall not be financially interested in any contract made by the Board on behalf of the district, including in the
development, preliminary discussions, negotiations, compromises, planning, reasoning, and specifications and solicitations for bids. If a Board member has such a
financial interest in a contract made by the Board, the contract is void.  (Government Code 1090)

A Board member shall not be considered to be financially interested in a contract in which there is only a "remote interest," as specified in Government Code 1091,
if the interest is disclosed during a Board meeting and noted in the official Board minutes. The affected Board member shall not vote or debate on the matter or
attempt to influence any other Board member or ROP official to enter into the contract.  (Government Code 1091)

In addition, a Board member shall not be considered to be financially interested in a contract in which the interest is a "noninterest" as defined in Government Code
1091.5. Noninterest includes a Board member's interest in being reimbursed for actual and necessary expenses incurred in the performance of official duties, in the
employment of a spouse/registered domestic partner who has been a ROP employee for at least one year prior to the Board member's election or appointment, or
in any other applicable circumstance specified in Government Code 1091.5.

Common Law Doctrine Against Conflict of Interest

A Board member shall abstain from any official action in which the Board member's private or personal interest may conflict with official duties.

Incompatible Offices and Activities

Board members shall not engage in any employment or activity or hold any office which is inconsistent with, incompatible with, in conflict with, or inimical to the
Board member's duties as an officer of the district.  (Government Code 1099, 1126)

Gifts

Board members and designated employees may accept gifts only under the conditions and limitations specified in Government Code 89503 and 2 CCR 18730.

The limitation on gifts does not apply to wedding gifts and gifts exchanged between individuals on birthdays, holidays, and other similar occasions, provided that
the gifts exchanged are not substantially disproportionate in value.  (Government Code 89503)

In addition, the limitation on gifts does not apply to informational materials such as books, reports, pamphlets, calendars, and periodicals.  (Government Code
82028)

Gifts of travel and related lodging and subsistence shall be subject to the current gift limitation, except when:  (Government Code 89506)

1. The travel is in connection with a speech given by a Board member or designated employee, provided the lodging and subsistence expenses are limited to
the day immediately preceding, the day of, and the day immediately following the speech and the travel is within the United States.
 

2. The travel is provided by a person or agency specified in Government Code 89506, including a government, governmental agency or authority, bona fide
public or private educational institution, as defined in Revenue and Taxation Code 203, or nonprofit organization exempt from taxation under section 501(c)
(3) of the Internal Revenue Code.

Gifts of travel exempted from the gift limitation, as described in Items #1 and 2 above, shall nevertheless be reportable on the recipient's Statement of Economic
Interest/Form 700 as required by law.

A gift of travel does not include travel provided by the TVROP for Board members and designated employees.  (Government Code 89506)

Honoraria

Board members and designated employees shall not accept any honorarium, which is defined as any payment made in consideration for any speech given, article
published, or attendance at any public or private conference, convention, meeting, social event, meal, or like gathering.  (Government Code 89501, 89502)

The term honorarium does not include:  (Government Code 89501)

1. Earned income for personal services customarily provided in connection with a bona fide business, trade, or profession, unless the sole or predominant
activity of the business, trade, or profession is making speeches
 

2. Any honorarium which is not used and, within 30 days after receipt, is either returned to the donor or delivered to the TVROP for donation into the general
fund without being claimed as a deduction from income for tax purposes

333



Training

Unless a Board member's term expires prior to January 1, 2026, each Board member shall complete ethics training in accordance with Government Code 53234-53235.2 by January 1, 2026, and at least once every two years thereafter as specified in Board Bylaw 9240 -
Board Training.

Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority for the Governing Board to enact this policy. Instead,
they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter of the policy.

StateState DescriptionDescription

2 CCR 18110-18997 Regulations of the Fair Political Practices Commission

2 CCR 18438.1-18438.8 Campaign contribution-based conflicts of interest

2 CCR 18700-18760 Conflicts of Interest

2 CCR 18722-18740 Disclosure of interests

2 CCR 18753-18756 Conflict of interest codes

2 CCR 18940.2 Gift limit amount

Ed. Code 1006 Prohibition against school district employees serving on county board of education

Ed. Code 35107 School district employees

Ed. Code 35230-35240 Corrupt practices

Ed. Code 35233 Prohibitions applicable to members of governing boards

Ed. Code 41000-41003 Moneys received by school districts

Ed. Code 41015 Investments

Fam. Code 297.5 Rights, protections, and benefits of registered domestic partners

Gov. Code 1090-1099 Prohibitions applicable to specified officers

Gov. Code 1125-1129 Incompatible activities

Gov. Code 53234-53235.2 Ethics training

Gov. Code 81000-91014 Political Reform Act

Gov. Code 82011 Code reviewing body

Gov. Code 82019 Definition; designated employee

Gov. Code 82028 Definition; gift

Gov. Code 82030 Definition; income

Gov. Code 82033 Definition; interest in real property

Gov. Code 82034 Definition; investment

Gov. Code 84308 Campaign disclosure

Gov. Code 87100-87505 Political Reform Act; conflict of interest

Gov. Code 89501-89503 Honoraria and gifts

Gov. Code 89506 Ethics; travel

Gov. Code 91000-91014 Enforcement

Pen. Code 85-88 Bribes

Pub. Cont. Code 6102 Bribery of public official; voidable contract

Rev. & Tax Code 203 Taxable and exempt property - colleges

Management ResourcesManagement Resources DescriptionDescription

Attorney General Opinion 105 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen.69 (2022)

Attorney General Opinion 63 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 868 (1980)

Attorney General Opinion 65 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 606 (1982)

Attorney General Opinion 68 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 171 (1985)

Attorney General Opinion 69 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 255 (1986)

Attorney General Opinion 80 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 320 (1997)

Attorney General Opinion 81 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 327 (1998)

Attorney General Opinion 82 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 83 (1999)

Attorney General Opinion 85 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 60 (2002)

Attorney General Opinion 86 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 138(2003)

Attorney General Opinion 89 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 217 (2006)

Attorney General Opinion 92 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 19 (2009)

Attorney General Opinion 92 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 26 (2009)

Court Decision Davis v. Fresno Unified School District (2015) 237 Cal.App.4th 261

Court Decision Klistoff v. Superior Court (2007) 157 Cal.App.4th 469

Court Decision Kunec v. Brea Redevelopment Agency (1997) 55 Cal.App.4th 511

Court Decision McGee v. Balfour Beatty Construction, LLC, et al. (2016) 247 Cal. App. 4th 235

Court Decision Thorpe v. Long Beach Community College District (2000) 83 Cal.App.4th 655

CSBA Publication Conflict of Interest: Overview of Key Issues for Governing Board Members, Fact Sheet, July 2010

334

https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Browse/Home/California/CaliforniaCodeofRegulations?guid=I76245C705A0A11EC8227000D3A7C4BC3&transitionType=Default&contextData=%28sc.Default%29#I7949518024B611EE9082BC20258D0E15
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Browse/Home/California/CaliforniaCodeofRegulations?guid=I7CA406E05A0A11EC8227000D3A7C4BC3&transitionType=Default&contextData=%28sc.Default%29#I7CAA21635A0A11EC8227000D3A7C4BC3
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Browse/Home/California/CaliforniaCodeofRegulations?guid=I7DDCADF05A0A11EC8227000D3A7C4BC3&transitionType=Default&contextData=%28sc.Default%29#I7E18A5825A0A11EC8227000D3A7C4BC3
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=1006.&lawCode=EDC
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=35107.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=3.&title=2.&part=21.&chapter=2.&article=7.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=35233.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=3.&title=2.&part=24.&chapter=1.&article=1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=41015.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=FAM&sectionNum=297.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&division=4.&title=1.&part=&chapter=1.&article=4.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&division=4.&title=1.&part=&chapter=1.&article=4.7.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&division=2.&title=5.&part=1.&chapter=2.&article=2.4.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayexpandedbranch.xhtml?tocCode=GOV&division=&title=9.&part=&chapter=&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=82011.
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=82019.&lawCode=GOV
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=82028.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=82030.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=82033.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=82034.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=84308.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayexpandedbranch.xhtml?tocCode=GOV&division=&title=9.&part=&chapter=&article=&nodetreepath=35
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=89506.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&division=&title=9.&part=&chapter=11.&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&division=&title=6.&part=1.&chapter=&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PCC&sectionNum=6102.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=RTC&sectionNum=203.
https://oag.ca.gov/opinions
https://oag.ca.gov/opinions
https://oag.ca.gov/opinions
https://oag.ca.gov/opinions
https://oag.ca.gov/opinions
https://oag.ca.gov/opinions
https://oag.ca.gov/opinions
https://oag.ca.gov/opinions
https://oag.ca.gov/opinions
https://oag.ca.gov/opinions
https://oag.ca.gov/opinions
https://oag.ca.gov/opinions
https://oag.ca.gov/opinions
https://www.lexisnexis.com/clients/CACourts/
https://www.lexisnexis.com/clients/CACourts/
https://www.lexisnexis.com/clients/CACourts/
https://www.lexisnexis.com/clients/CACourts/
https://www.lexisnexis.com/clients/CACourts/
https://www.csba.org/~/media/8aa03b2a661c4108b1616f68eb2318e4.ashx


Fair Political Practices Commission Publication Advice Letter: A-96-314 (December 18, 1996)

Fair Political Practices Commission Publication Can I Vote? A Basic Overview of Public Officials' Obligations Under the Conflict-of-Interest Rules, 2005

Institute For Local Government Publication Understanding the Basics of Public Service Ethics: Personal Financial Gain Laws, 2009

Institute for Local Government Publication Understanding the Basics of Public Service Ethics: Transparency Laws, 2009

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Website Institute for Local Government

Website Fair Political Practices Commission

Website CSBA

Management ResourcesManagement Resources DescriptionDescription

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

1340 Access To District Records

1340 Access To District Records

1700 Relations Between Private Industry And The Schools

3230 Federal Grant Funds

3230 Federal Grant Funds

3300 Expenditures And Purchases

3311 Bids

3311 Bids

3400 Management Of District Assets/Accounts

3400 Management Of District Assets/Accounts

3600 Consultants

4112.8 Employment Of Relatives

4117.2 Resignation

4136 Nonschool Employment

4212.8 Employment Of Relatives

4217.2 Resignation

4236 Nonschool Employment

4312.8 Employment Of Relatives

4317.2 Resignation

4336 Nonschool Employment

6161.1 Selection And Evaluation Of Instructional Materials

6161.1-E(1) Selection And Evaluation Of Instructional Materials

7140 Architectural And Engineering Services

7140 Architectural And Engineering Services

9000 Role Of The Board

9005 Governance Standards

9200 Limits Of Board Member Authority

9230 Orientation

9320 Meetings And Notices

9321 Closed Session

9321-E(1) Closed Session

9321-E(2) Closed Session

9323 Meeting Conduct

335

https://www.fppc.ca.gov/content/dam/fppc/documents/advice-letters/1995-2015/1996/96-314.pdf
https://www.escondido.gov/DocumentCenter/View/111/Can-I-Vote---A-Basic-Overview-of-Public-Officials-Obligations-Under-the-Political-Reform-Acts-Conflict-of-Interest-Rules-PDF
https://www.ca-ilg.org/sites/main/files/file-attachments/basics_persfinancialgain.pdf
https://www.ca-ilg.org/document/understanding-basics-public-service-ethics-laws
https://legalservices.csba.org/
http://www.ca-ilg.org
http://www.fppc.ca.gov
http://www.csba.org
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=jSQCN8bwEZWEmfVMQ1Y0aw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=iq4sw8gP4uPlJugVHK7Ivw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=sv40jeuoMK1cslshKEnwBkCug==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=9QB38oDf0mYC8W3hhI2t7A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=gm23SplusZh5USxAIYBYnrm1g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=Wx35DpD7weNC8sdnLzpjig==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=yLDteQb216i1dZUa0ud7wA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=l5K4OT8Pz9g95RGaMsgYBQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=kc5pfMVSMAGz96iUmVeLjA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=MKPhzLOFiYBe4FzKvxYKTA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=P268jz89XYqDV83BwrMYHg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=iCyP1ad3nR9AXQyq9mOv6g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=De5k7GTB9MOOUAYs1tYqslshA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=QUhslshLMFfcfF613gsPozplusJg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=BQG40iGplGPXw5OwqF7YFQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=68vXj5k9Hplus27pslshguHoiKag==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=sxPgdGNEP7JP2GGaojb9hQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=NC2dhi7Or9r0dgslshuslshZRW0A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=GzVUNvbEkuhfPglduIqnDQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=YQqyW6ZX1iZfwaOQRGGgMA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=MRGbl1DbpcXvHsqGUV9Gsw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=D3FML11LYslshy8tsj3PoXJSQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=pTwqZRaslshMfP4mOwd7n4BBg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=aRvbKmoslshFwjyEGd4WIzWTQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=plusvbY1CZJkFvI8g5mpyucYA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=BslshaUP1yIPqUcVNVJGgtf3w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=ly5fvoDplusMuWCUvPyGykdAg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=pEtTKujZxDpxc3rNYYTxVA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=H3r4Uojk1yz8isTTg0If4w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=SCyIM86Pslsh2SXYfMWCoy4PA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=0plusIjrl1GcIFYmE3Py7jUqw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=DQY7ANJo4DIkPkvShOwaMQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=YWLwjrFz5Ktb8Ob0mgCYJg==


Exhibit 9270-E(1): Conflict Of InterestExhibit 9270-E(1): Conflict Of Interest Status:Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 06/12/2024 | Last Reviewed Date:| Last Reviewed Date: 06/12/2024

RESOLUTION ADOPTING A
CONFLICT OF INTEREST CODE

WHEREAS, the Political Reform Act, Government Code 87300-87313, requires each public agency in California to
adopt a conflict of interest code; and

WHEREAS, the Governing Board of the Tri- Valley ROP has previously adopted a local conflict of interest code; and

WHEREAS, past and future amendments to the Political Reform Act and implementing regulations may require
conforming amendments to be made to the district's conflict of interest code; and

WHEREAS, a regulation adopted by the Fair Political Practices Commission, 2 CCR 18730, provides that
incorporation by reference of the terms of that regulation, along with an agency-specific appendix designating
positions and disclosure categories shall constitute the adoption and amendment of a conflict of interest code in
conformance with Government Code 87300 and 87306; and

WHEREAS, the TVROP has recently reviewed its positions, list of District Officials and the duties of each position,
and has determined that (changes/no changes) to the current conflict of interest code are necessary; and

WHEREAS, any earlier resolutions, bylaws, and/or appendices containing the district's conflict of interest code shall
be rescinded and superseded by this resolution and Appendix; and

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the TVROP Governing Board adopts the following Conflict of Interest
Code including its Appendix of Designated Employees and Disclosure Categories.

PASSED AND ADOPTED THIS ______ day of ______________, ________ at a meeting, by the following vote:

AYES:______ NOES:______ ABSENT:______

Attest:

_____________________________________________
Secretary/President

 
Conflict of Interest Code of the

Tri- Valley ROP

The provisions of 2 CCR 18730 and any amendments to it adopted by the Fair Political Practices Commission,
together with the attached Appendix specifying designated positions and disclosure categories, are incorporated by
reference and shall constitute the district's conflict of interest code.

Governing Board members and designated employees shall file a Statement of Economic Interest/Form 700 in
accordance with the disclosure categories listed in the attached Appendix.  The Statement of Economic Interest shall
be filed with the district's filing officer and/or, if so required, with the district's code reviewing body. The district's
filing officer shall make the statements available for public review and inspection.
 

APPENDIX

Disclosure Categories

1. Category 1:  A person District Official designated Category 1 shall disclose:
 

Board Policy Manual
Tri-Valley Regional Occupational Program

336



a. Interests in real property located entirely or partly within district boundaries, or within two miles of
district boundaries, or of any land owned or used by the district.
 

b. Investments or business positions in or income from sources which are engaged in the acquisition or
disposal of real property within the district, are contractors or subcontractors which are or have been
within the past two years engaged in work or services of the type used by the district, or manufacture or
sell supplies, books, machinery, or equipment of the type used by the district.
 

2. Category 2:  A person District Official designated Category 2 shall disclose:
 

a. Investments or business positions in or income from sources which are contractors or subcontractors
engaged in work or services of the type used by the department which the designated person manages
or directs.
 

b. Investments or business positions in or income from sources which manufacture or sell supplies, books,
machinery, or equipment of the type used by the department which the designated person manages or
directs.  For the purposes of this category, a principal's department is his/her entire school.
 

3. Full Disclosure:  Because it has been determined that the district's Board members and/or Superintendent
"manage public investments," they and other persons District Official  designated for "full disclosure" shall
disclose, in accordance with Government Code 87200:
 

a. Interests in real property located entirely or partly within district boundaries, or within two miles of
district boundaries, or of any land owned or used by the district.
 

b. Investments, business positions, and sources of income, including gifts, loans, and travel payments.

Designated Positions
 
Designated Position Disclosure Category
  
Governing Board Members 1
Superintendent of Schools 1
Assistant/Associate Superintendent 1
Purchasing Agent 1
Director 2
Principal 2
Assistant Principal 2
Maintenance and Operations Director 2
Program Coordinator 2
Project Specialist 2
Supervisor 2
Dean of Students 2

Disclosures for Consultants

Consultants are designated employees who must disclose financial interests as determined on a case-by-case basis
by the Superintendent or designee. The Superintendent or designee's written determination shall include a
description of the consultant's duties and a statement of the extent of disclosure requirements based upon that
description.  All such determinations are public records and shall be retained for public inspection along with this
conflict of interest code.

A consultant is an individual who, pursuant to a contract with the district, makes a governmental decision whether
to:  (2 CCR 18700.3)

1. Approve a rate, rule, or regulation
 

2. Adopt or enforce a law
 

3. Issue, deny, suspend, or revoke any permit, license, application, certificate, approval, order, or similar
authorization or entitlement

337



Policy Reference Disclaimer:Policy Reference Disclaimer:

 
4. Authorize the district to enter into, modify, or renew a contract that requires district approval

 
5. Grant district approval to a contract that requires district approval and in which the district is a party, or to the

specifications for such a contract
 

6. Grant district approval to a plan, design, report, study, or similar item
 

7. Adopt or grant district approval of district policies, standards, or guidelines

A consultant is also an individual who, pursuant to a contract with the district, serves in a staff capacity with the
district and in that capacity participates in making a governmental decision as defined in 2 CCR 18704, subsections
(a) and (b), or performs the same or substantially all the same duties for the district that would otherwise be
performed by an individual holding a position specified in the district's conflict of interest code.  (2 CCR 18700.3)

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the Governing Board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter
of the policy.

StateState DescriptionDescription

2 CCR 18110-18997 Regulations of the Fair Political Practices Commission

2 CCR 18438.1-18438.8 Campaign contribution-based conflicts of interest

2 CCR 18700-18760 Conflicts of Interest

2 CCR 18722-18740 Disclosure of interests

2 CCR 18753-18756 Conflict of interest codes

2 CCR 18940.2 Gift limit amount

Ed. Code 1006 Prohibition against school district employees serving on county board of
education

Ed. Code 35107 School district employees

Ed. Code 35230-35240 Corrupt practices

Ed. Code 35233 Prohibitions applicable to members of governing boards

Ed. Code 41000-41003 Moneys received by school districts

Ed. Code 41015 Investments

Fam. Code 297.5 Rights, protections, and benefits of registered domestic partners

Gov. Code 1090-1099 Prohibitions applicable to specified officers

Gov. Code 1125-1129 Incompatible activities

Gov. Code 53234-53235.2 Ethics training

Gov. Code 81000-91014 Political Reform Act

Gov. Code 82011 Code reviewing body

Gov. Code 82019 Definition; designated employee

Gov. Code 82028 Definition; gift

Gov. Code 82030 Definition; income

Gov. Code 82033 Definition; interest in real property

Gov. Code 82034 Definition; investment

Gov. Code 84308 Campaign disclosure

Gov. Code 87100-87505 Political Reform Act; conflict of interest

Gov. Code 89501-89503 Honoraria and gifts

Gov. Code 89506 Ethics; travel

338

https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Browse/Home/California/CaliforniaCodeofRegulations?guid=I76245C705A0A11EC8227000D3A7C4BC3&transitionType=Default&contextData=%28sc.Default%29#I7949518024B611EE9082BC20258D0E15
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Browse/Home/California/CaliforniaCodeofRegulations?guid=I7CA406E05A0A11EC8227000D3A7C4BC3&transitionType=Default&contextData=%28sc.Default%29#I7CAA21635A0A11EC8227000D3A7C4BC3
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Browse/Home/California/CaliforniaCodeofRegulations?guid=I7DDCADF05A0A11EC8227000D3A7C4BC3&transitionType=Default&contextData=%28sc.Default%29#I7E18A5825A0A11EC8227000D3A7C4BC3
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=1006.&lawCode=EDC
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=35107.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=3.&title=2.&part=21.&chapter=2.&article=7.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=35233.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=3.&title=2.&part=24.&chapter=1.&article=1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=41015.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=FAM&sectionNum=297.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&division=4.&title=1.&part=&chapter=1.&article=4.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&division=4.&title=1.&part=&chapter=1.&article=4.7.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&division=2.&title=5.&part=1.&chapter=2.&article=2.4.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayexpandedbranch.xhtml?tocCode=GOV&division=&title=9.&part=&chapter=&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=82011.
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=82019.&lawCode=GOV
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=82028.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=82030.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=82033.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=82034.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=84308.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayexpandedbranch.xhtml?tocCode=GOV&division=&title=9.&part=&chapter=&article=&nodetreepath=35
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=89506.


Gov. Code 91000-91014 Enforcement

Pen. Code 85-88 Bribes

Pub. Cont. Code 6102 Bribery of public official; voidable contract

Rev. & Tax Code 203 Taxable and exempt property - colleges

StateState DescriptionDescription

Management ResourcesManagement Resources DescriptionDescription

Attorney General Opinion 105 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen.69 (2022)

Attorney General Opinion 63 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 868 (1980)

Attorney General Opinion 65 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 606 (1982)

Attorney General Opinion 68 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 171 (1985)

Attorney General Opinion 69 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 255 (1986)

Attorney General Opinion 80 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 320 (1997)

Attorney General Opinion 81 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 327 (1998)

Attorney General Opinion 82 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 83 (1999)

Attorney General Opinion 85 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 60 (2002)

Attorney General Opinion 86 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 138(2003)

Attorney General Opinion 89 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 217 (2006)

Attorney General Opinion 92 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 19 (2009)

Attorney General Opinion 92 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 26 (2009)

Court Decision Davis v. Fresno Unified School District (2015) 237 Cal.App.4th 261

Court Decision Klistoff v. Superior Court (2007) 157 Cal.App.4th 469

Court Decision Kunec v. Brea Redevelopment Agency (1997) 55 Cal.App.4th 511

Court Decision McGee v. Balfour Beatty Construction, LLC, et al. (2016) 247 Cal. App. 4th
235

Court Decision Thorpe v. Long Beach Community College District (2000) 83 Cal.App.4th
655

CSBA Publication Conflict of Interest: Overview of Key Issues for Governing Board Members,
Fact Sheet, July 2010

Fair Political Practices Commission Publication Advice Letter: A-96-314 (December 18, 1996)

Fair Political Practices Commission Publication Can I Vote? A Basic Overview of Public Officials' Obligations Under the
Conflict-of-Interest Rules, 2005

Institute For Local Government Publication Understanding the Basics of Public Service Ethics: Personal Financial Gain
Laws, 2009

Institute for Local Government Publication Understanding the Basics of Public Service Ethics: Transparency Laws, 2009

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Website Institute for Local Government

Website Fair Political Practices Commission

Website CSBA

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

1340 Access To District Records

1340 Access To District Records

1700 Relations Between Private Industry And The Schools

339

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&division=&title=9.&part=&chapter=11.&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&division=&title=6.&part=1.&chapter=&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PCC&sectionNum=6102.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=RTC&sectionNum=203.
https://oag.ca.gov/opinions
https://oag.ca.gov/opinions
https://oag.ca.gov/opinions
https://oag.ca.gov/opinions
https://oag.ca.gov/opinions
https://oag.ca.gov/opinions
https://oag.ca.gov/opinions
https://oag.ca.gov/opinions
https://oag.ca.gov/opinions
https://oag.ca.gov/opinions
https://oag.ca.gov/opinions
https://oag.ca.gov/opinions
https://oag.ca.gov/opinions
https://www.lexisnexis.com/clients/CACourts/
https://www.lexisnexis.com/clients/CACourts/
https://www.lexisnexis.com/clients/CACourts/
https://www.lexisnexis.com/clients/CACourts/
https://www.lexisnexis.com/clients/CACourts/
https://www.csba.org/~/media/8aa03b2a661c4108b1616f68eb2318e4.ashx
https://www.fppc.ca.gov/content/dam/fppc/documents/advice-letters/1995-2015/1996/96-314.pdf
https://www.escondido.gov/DocumentCenter/View/111/Can-I-Vote---A-Basic-Overview-of-Public-Officials-Obligations-Under-the-Political-Reform-Acts-Conflict-of-Interest-Rules-PDF
https://www.ca-ilg.org/sites/main/files/file-attachments/basics_persfinancialgain.pdf
https://www.ca-ilg.org/document/understanding-basics-public-service-ethics-laws
https://legalservices.csba.org/
http://www.ca-ilg.org
http://www.fppc.ca.gov
http://www.csba.org
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=jSQCN8bwEZWEmfVMQ1Y0aw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=iq4sw8gP4uPlJugVHK7Ivw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=sv40jeuoMK1cslshKEnwBkCug==


3230 Federal Grant Funds

3230 Federal Grant Funds

3300 Expenditures And Purchases

3311 Bids

3311 Bids

3400 Management Of District Assets/Accounts

3400 Management Of District Assets/Accounts

3600 Consultants

4112.8 Employment Of Relatives

4117.2 Resignation

4136 Nonschool Employment

4212.8 Employment Of Relatives

4217.2 Resignation

4236 Nonschool Employment

4312.8 Employment Of Relatives

4317.2 Resignation

4336 Nonschool Employment

6161.1 Selection And Evaluation Of Instructional Materials

6161.1-E(1) Selection And Evaluation Of Instructional Materials

7140 Architectural And Engineering Services

7140 Architectural And Engineering Services

9000 Role Of The Board

9005 Governance Standards

9200 Limits Of Board Member Authority

9230 Orientation

9320 Meetings And Notices

9321 Closed Session

9321-E(1) Closed Session

9321-E(2) Closed Session

9323 Meeting Conduct

Cross ReferencesCross References DescriptionDescription

340

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=9QB38oDf0mYC8W3hhI2t7A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=gm23SplusZh5USxAIYBYnrm1g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=Wx35DpD7weNC8sdnLzpjig==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=yLDteQb216i1dZUa0ud7wA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=l5K4OT8Pz9g95RGaMsgYBQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=kc5pfMVSMAGz96iUmVeLjA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=MKPhzLOFiYBe4FzKvxYKTA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=P268jz89XYqDV83BwrMYHg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=iCyP1ad3nR9AXQyq9mOv6g==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=De5k7GTB9MOOUAYs1tYqslshA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=QUhslshLMFfcfF613gsPozplusJg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=BQG40iGplGPXw5OwqF7YFQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=68vXj5k9Hplus27pslshguHoiKag==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=sxPgdGNEP7JP2GGaojb9hQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=NC2dhi7Or9r0dgslshuslshZRW0A==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=GzVUNvbEkuhfPglduIqnDQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=YQqyW6ZX1iZfwaOQRGGgMA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=MRGbl1DbpcXvHsqGUV9Gsw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=D3FML11LYslshy8tsj3PoXJSQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=pTwqZRaslshMfP4mOwd7n4BBg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=aRvbKmoslshFwjyEGd4WIzWTQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=plusvbY1CZJkFvI8g5mpyucYA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=BslshaUP1yIPqUcVNVJGgtf3w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=ly5fvoDplusMuWCUvPyGykdAg==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=pEtTKujZxDpxc3rNYYTxVA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=H3r4Uojk1yz8isTTg0If4w==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=SCyIM86Pslsh2SXYfMWCoy4PA==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=0plusIjrl1GcIFYmE3Py7jUqw==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=DQY7ANJo4DIkPkvShOwaMQ==
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030193&revid=YWLwjrFz5Ktb8Ob0mgCYJg==


Summary

The Board must act on all issues regarding employees of the TVROP. The Personnel Document
specifies each individual area and may include new hires, resignations, retirements and/or
vacancies.

Supporting Documents

 Personnel Document 06-11-2025

8. D. Approval of Personnel Document June 11, 2025

341



2025-2026 CERTIFICATED – Rehires, Temporary 

Name/FTE Description /Location Effective Date 
Superintendent’s 
Recommendation 

Rabia Marjan Akrami 
1.20 

Int. Marketing Communications/ 
Econ. of Bus. Ownership 

Amador Valley High School 
8/7/2025 Approve 

Randy Barnard 
1.10 

Auto Body Repair &  
Advanced Auto Body Repair 

TOSA/Livermore High School 
8/13/2025 Approve 

Cheryl Billeci 
1.15 

Sports Med./Athletic Trainer 
& Sports Med. II/ 

Intro to Health Careers 
Granada High School/ 

Livermore High School 

8/13/2025 Approve 

Kathy Cabrera 
1.0 

Medical Occupations/Nursing 
Careers 

Granada High School 

8/13/2025 Approve 

Denise Gauthier 
1.0 

English/AVID 
Middle College 8/11/2025 Approve 

Diana Hasenpflug 
.75 

Sports Med./Athletic Trainer 
& Sports Med. II 

Amador Valley High School 
8/7/2025 Approve 

Austin Hutson 
1.10 

Intro to Criminal Justice/EMR 
Amador Valley High 

School/Dublin High School/ 
Foothill High School 

8/7/2025 Approve 

Larry Low 
1.10 

Intro to Criminal Justice & 
Criminal Justice Academy 

Emerald High School/  
Livermore High School/ 

Las Positas College 

8/12/2025 Approve 

Shelley Matek 
1.0 

Dev. Psych of Children I & II 
Dublin High School/ 
Foothill High School 

8/7/2025 Approve 

Chris Meyer 
1.20 

Video Game Art & Design/ 
Animation & Motion 

Graphics/Honors Portfolio 
TOSA District Office/ 
Dublin High School 

8/12/2025 Approve 

Tri-Valley Regional Occupational Program 
JOINT POWERS GOVERNING BOARD MEETING 

Regular Board Meeting of June 11, 2025 
PERSONNEL DOCUMENT 

342



Kelly Mogilefsky 
1.20 

English/AVID/ 
Intervention Specialist 

Middle College 
8/11/2025 Approve 

Jason Morganstein 
.50 

Sports Med./Athletic Trainer & 
Sports Med II 

Dublin High School 
8/12/2025 Approve 

John Myles 
1.20 

Automotive Technology 
Granada High School/ 

Livermore High School 
8/13/2025 Approve 

Alysa Oliver 
1.0 

Medical Occupations & 
Intro to Health Careers/ 

TOSA Foothill High School/ 
Livermore High School 

8/7/2025 Approve 

Tami Raaker 
1.00 

Int. Marketing Communications/ 
Economics of Business 

Ownership/CVE 
Foothill High School 

8/7/2025 Approve 

Danielle Smiley 
1.00 

Dev. Psych of Children I & II 
Granada High School/ 

Livermore High School 
8/13/2025 Approve 

Bailey Udoutch 
1.20 

Int. Marketing Communications/ 
Econ. of Bus Ownership/CVE  

Dublin High School/  
Emerald High School 

8/12/2025 Approve 

Sergio Verbis 
1.20 

Social Science/AVID/Intervention 
Specialist 

Middle College 
8/11/2025 Approve 

2025-2026 CERTIFICATED – Vacancies, Temporary 

Name/FTE Description /Location Effective Date 
Superintendent’s 
Recommendation 

TBD 
.90 

Int. Marketing 
Communications/ Sports 

Entertainment Marketing/ Econ. 
of Bus. Ownership/ Intro to 

Business Careers/Dublin High 
School/Granada High School 

8/12/2025 Approve 

TBD 
.50 

Residential & Commercial 
Construction 

Emerald High School 
8/12/2025 Approve 

2024-2025 CERTIFICATED – Resignation 

Name/FTE Description /Location Effective Date 
Superintendent’s 
Recommendation 

Amarissa Koelling 
.75 

Medical Occupations 
Emerald High School 6/3/2025 Approve 

343



Allyson Ortner 
.44 

Sports Med. I /Athletic 
Trainer/Sports Med. II 
Livermore High School 

5/29/2025 Approve 

Emily Wilson 
1.0 

Int. Marketing Communications/ 
Sports Entertainment Marketing/ 

Econ. of Bus. Ownership/ 
Intro to Business Careers/ 

Dublin High School/  
Granada High School 

5/6/2025 Approve 

2025-2026 CERTIFICATED – NEW HIRE 

Name/FTE Description /Location Effective Date Superintendent’s 
Recommendation 

Antonio Rueda 
.55 

Sports Med I/Athletic Trainer 
/Intro. to Health Careers 

Dublin High School/ 
Foothill High School 

8/7/2025 Approve 

Megan Baker 
1.00 

Medical Occupations 
Emerald High School 8/12/2025 Approve 

2025-2026 CLASSIFIED / CONFIDENTIAL – Rehires 

Name/FTE Description /Location Effective Date Superintendent’s 
Recommendation 

Daniel Yang 
1.0 

College & Career Specialist 
Dublin High School 8/4/2025 Approve 

Samantha Bacher 
1.0 

College &Career Specialist 
Emerald High School 8/4/2025 Approve 

Anabel Delgado 
.50 

College & Career Specialist 
Foothill High School 8/5/2025 Approve 

Jocelyn Fagan 
.50  

Support Specialist 
Middle College/District Office 7/1/2025 Approve 

Zoe Gill 
.50 

College & Career Specialist 
Amador Valley High School 8/5/2025 Approve 

Danielle Watson 
1.0 

College & Career Specialist 
Granada High School 8/5/2025 Approve 

Paula-Ann Cabading 
1.0 

College & Career Specialist 
Livermore High School 8/5/2025 Approve 

Rachel Silvey 
.80 

Sr. Support Specialist 
District Office 7/1/2025 Approve 

Tara Fairchild 
.75 

Support Specialist 
Middle College 7/1/2025 Approve 

Roxanne Villanueva 
1.0 

Assistant to the Superintendent 
District Office 7/1/2025 Approve 

344



2025-2025 CERTIFICATED MANAGEMENT – Rehires, Temporary 

Name/FTE Description /Location Effective Date Superintendent’s 
Recommendation 

Suzanne Smith 
1.0 

Director, College & Career 
Readiness 

District Office 
7/1/2025 Approve 

Athena Duran 
1.0 

Coordinator, Program Services 
District Office 7/1/2025 Approve 

345



Summary

Superintendent Duncan will report on recent meetings, activities, or legislation.

9. SUPERINTENDENT'S REPORT

346



Summary

Board members may wish to report on their recent activities.

10. BOARD MEMBER REPORTS

347



Summary

The next Regular Meeting of the Joint Powers Governing Board is scheduled for Wednesday,
September 10, 2025 at 5:30 p.m.

11. ANNOUNCEMENTS

348



12. ADJOURNMENT

349


	AGENDA
	1. CALL TO ORDER / ROLL CALL - 5:30 p.m.
	2. PUBLIC COMMENT on posted closed session items only
	3. ADJOURN TO CLOSED SESSION 
	3. A. Public Employee Performance Evaluation (Government Code, §54957)
	4. RECONVENE IN OPEN SESSION - 6:00 p.m.
	4. A. Pledge of Allegiance
	4. B. Approval of the Agenda
	4. C. Announcement of Any Reportable Action Taken in Closed Session
	5. PUBLIC COMMENT
	6. CONSENT CALENDAR - MOTIONS
	6. A. Approval of the Minutes from the Regular Board Meeting of May 7, 2025
	6. B. Approval of the Bill and Salary Report –May 1 - May 31, 2025
	6. C. Approval of the Purchase Order Summary – May 1 – May 31, 2025
	6. D. Approval of the Memorandum of Understanding with Pleasanton Unified School District for the 2025 – 2026 Middle College Coordinator
	6. E. Approval of Memorandums of Understanding for 2025 – 2026 with Member Districts 
	6. F. Approval of Memorandums of Understanding with Livermore Valley Joint Unified School District for Services during 2025 – 2026
	6. G. Approval of the College and Career Access Pathways (CCAP) Agreement between Tri-Valley ROP and Las Positas Community College
	6. H. Approval of Disposal List of Equipment and Instructional Equipment
	7. DEFERRED CONSENT ITEM/S
	8. INFORMATION / ACTION ITEMS
	8. A. Public Hearing on the Proposed 2025 – 2026 Budget
	8. B. Proposed Budget and Adoption for 2025 – 2026 
	8. C. First and Final Reading of the CSBA Recommended Revisions of Tri-Valley Regional Occupational Program Board Policies
	8. D. Approval of Personnel Document June 11, 2025
	9. SUPERINTENDENT'S  REPORT
	10. BOARD MEMBER REPORTS
	11. ANNOUNCEMENTS
	12. ADJOURNMENT

